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No. 1. 
OFFENDESS PROWATMIC 13ILL. 

Clause When a person is convicted of a minor offence, not having been previously convicted s tu2stnsi ecT:of.  
in New South Wales, or elsewhere, in so far as is known to the Court, of an offence, and is Ent conviction 
sentenced upon such conviction to penal servitude or imprisonment for a period exceeding 
thsee-menthe, the following provisions shall have effect :— 

(1) The Court shall proceed to pass sentence upon the offender in the usual form. 
(ii) The Court may, if it thinks fit, suspend the execution of the sentence upon the 

offender entering into a recognizance, with or without sureties, in such 
amount as the Court directs, such recognizance being conditioned that the offender 
shall be of good behaviour for a period from the date of the sentence equal to the 
term of the sentence, or if the term of the sentence is less than twelve months, 
then for the period of twelve months, and shall not (luring the like period do or 
omit to do any act whereby the recognizance would become liable to be forfeited 
under the provisions hereinafter contained. 

(m) When such recognizance is entered into the offender shall may be removed to 
such gaol or other place as the Court may determine and there forthwith 
submitted to the examination customary for securing future identification. 
But detention for this purpose shall not exceed the term of twenty-four 
hours, and the offender shall thereupon be discharged from custody, but shall 
be liable to be arrested by any of the Peace Officers and to be committed to 
prison, under a warrant issued for that purpose by any Court or Justice of the 
Peace, to perform his sentence, if during the period specified in the recognizance 
any of the conditions hereinafter specified happens with respect to him, and 
written notice shall upon his discharge be given to the offender, signed by the 
Clerk or other officer of the Court, specifying the conditions under which the 
offender will become liable to be so committed to prison. 

(rv) When an offender is so committed to prison the sentence shall begin to run from 
the date of such committal, but the term of the sentence shall not extend beyond 
the period specified in the recognizance, and at the expiration of that period the 
offender shall be entitled to be discharged. (Bead.) 

Motion made (Mr. Gould) that the following subsection be inserted as subsection (m) of the 
clause. 

(In) The Court may, if it think fit, direct that the offender shall pay the 
costs of the prosecution, or some portion of the same, within such period 
and by such instalments as may be directed by the Court. 

TUESDAY, 30 APRIL, 1880. 

Queition 
221— 



4 7 j 

2 

Question put,—That the words proposed to b 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 24. 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Burns, 
Mr. O'Connor, 	Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. King. 
M r. Carruthers, 
Mr. Trail), 
	 Tellers, 

Mr. H. IL Brown, Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Cullen. Mr. Molesworth, 

Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Stephen, 
Mr. Tone, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Mayfair, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(antlerhury), 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Morton, 

Proposed amendment negatived. 

e inserted be so inserted. 

Noes, 38. 
Mr. Copland,. 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. .1. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Howe, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Ferguson, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Cass,  

Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. alBeckett, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Colls, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Seobie, 

• Mr. Plumb. 
Tellers, 

Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Hassan. 

And the clause having been amended, as indicated,— 
Clause as amended agreed to. 	• 
On motion of Mr. J. P. Abbott, the Chairman left the Chair, to report the Bill with amendments. 

[3d.] 
Sydney : Charles Potter, Government Printer.-1ESD. 
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IN 
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TUESDAY, 14 MAY, 1889. 
NO. 1. 

MINISTERIAL ELECTION BILL. 
Clause 1. From and after the passing of this "Act" it-shallmet-lm--lawful-te deeliwe-them-at 

eleetien-of-any-M-ember  of the-LeoLlative-Ameneitl, or te-issue-a-wirit-feim-new-election-by 'cotl lawful to decare seats of masemef-stieh-llembe..-lnying (tempted an y-one  of themffieemenumesated.  in the-Schedule  to the members vactutt 
il-Geftetittitiepi-Aht Amendment Aet-4l-S94, "the seat of any Member of the Legislative eo we.tecueptanee of 

Assembly who shall accept any office of profit under the Crown during pleasure 
or for a term of years, being any one of the offices enumerated in the Schedule to 
the "Constitution Act Amendment Act of 1884," or which may hereafter be 
created by any Act of Parliament as an office of the Executive Government, shall 
not thereby become vacated or be void, nor shall there be any necessity for a writ 
to issue for a new election. (Read.) 

Motion made (Mr. Gould) that all the words after the word "Act" in line 1 be omitted,' with 
a view to insert the following words :— 

" the seat of any Member of the Legislative Assembly who shall accept any office of 
profit under the Crown during pleasure or for a term of years, being any one of the 
offices enumerated in the Schedule to the Constitution Act Amendment Act of 1884,' 
or which may hereafter be created by any Act of Parliament as an office of the 
Executive Government, shall not thereby become vacated or be void, nor shall there be 
any necessity for a writ to issue for a new election." 

Question put,—That the Words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause.. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 3. 
Sir Henry Parkes. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Crick. 

Noes, 59. 
Mr. Tonkin, 	 Mr. Nicoll, 

• Mr. Carruthers, 	Mr. If. H. Brown, 
Mr. Morton, 	 Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Burns, 	 Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, Mr. A'Beekett, 
Mn Brunker, 	Mr. Gormly, 

' Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Alfred Allen, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Willis, 	 Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Haynes, 	 Ir. Hassall, 
Mr. Afolesworth, 	Mr. 0. 0. Hangar, 
Mr. Wright, 	 Mr. Hutchison 
Mr. Hurley, 	 (Cantethrow), 
Mr. Nobbs, 	 Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Hibbs, 	 Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Chapman, 	Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Dawson, 	Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Plumb, 	 Mr. Walker, 
Mi. Edmunds, 	Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Garrard, 	Mr. Barbour, 

Words omitted. 
270— 

Mr. Tradl, 
Mr. Toohey, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, D 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Hawke°, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Shepherd, 

No. 2. 

Ir. Levien, 
fr. Turner, 

Mr. Cass, 
fr. Woodward, 
fr. Waddell, 

Mr. Stevenson. 
Tellers, 

Ir. Hogan, 
Jr. Joseph Abbott. 
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No. 2. 
SAME BILL. 
Same clause. 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted 
inserted, 

Committee divided. 
Ayes, 43 

Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Hibbs, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Alfred Allen, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Edmunds, 

Words inserted. 
No. 3. 

SAME BILL. 
Same clause. 

Quesi ion put,—That the clause as amended stand clause 1 of the Bill. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 42. 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Hibbs, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Alfred Allen, 
Mr. Haynes, 
31: r. Edmonds, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Levien, 
Mr. Hassan, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Eyrie, 

Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
And the Bill having been further amended, CIntirrin left the Chair, on motion of Mr. Hurley, to 

report the Bill with amendments to the House. 

Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Hutchison, 

(Canterbury). 
Tellers, 

Mr. Lesion, 
Mr. Ilassaft 

in place of the words omitted be so 

Noes, 16. 
Mr. Truitt, 
Mr. Toohey, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Willis, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. A'Beekett, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. 0. 0. Hangar. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Tonkin. 

Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. t lubb, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Hutchison, 

:

Canterbury 
Mr. Cass  
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Scobie. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Hawthorne. 

Noes, 1.5. 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. 13 rubker, 
Sir II enry Parkes, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. 0. 0. Hangar, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. A'Beckett, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. H. H. Brown. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Toohey. 
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' NEW SO UTE' WALES. 

No. 3. 
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COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE. 
(EXTRACTED FROM THE MINUTES.) 

No. 1. 
	 THURSDAY, 6 JUNE, 1889. 

Clause 5. It shall be lawful for the Minister from time to time to direct "any Local Laud 
Board "to deal with any matter, question, or inquiry that has arisen, or shall arise, without 
regard to the Land Board District or Land District in which the land forming the 
subject of such matter, question, or inquiry may be "situated." And the said Land Board 
shall have as full power and jurisdiction to deal with the matter as if the land aforesaid 
were situated within that Board's proper Land Board District or Land District. Provided 
that anything similarly done by any Local Land Board before the commencement of this 
Act, either from inadvertence or otherwise, shall have the same effect in law as if done by 
the Land Board empowered to deal therewith. (Read.) 

Motion made (Mr. 1.1raill) to omit from lines 1 and 2 the words "any Local Land Board" 
with a view to insert the words,— 

" the Local Land Board of any district contiguous to that in which any part of the laud 
applied for is situate." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 69. 
Mr, McMillan, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Garrett, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. ir. H. Brown, 
Mr. Thompson, 
Mr, Paid, 
Mr. Abigail, 

r. Harold SI ephen, 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Na.ssall, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Alfred Allen, 
Mr. Ring, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Hutchison 

• 	(Canieriner.4), 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. Lees, 

Words stand. 
385— 

Mr. Merlon, 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Sophie, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Tome, 
Mr. :Kyrie, 
Ti!,. Lytle, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott. 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Martin, 
Mr, Hogan, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. A'Beekett, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Stevenson. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr, Kidd. 

Noes, 13. 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen. lane:), 
Mr. Dalton, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Alison. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Edmunds, 

No. 2. 

CROWN LANDS BILL. 
Land Boards 
nitty be author. 
37.0.1 to deal with 
matters outside 

ttliar  iiCr"  
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No. 2. 
Sante clause. 

Motion made (Mr. Cluntter) to ineert, after the word "situated," in line 4, the following 
words,— • 

"Provided that such Land Board is, in the Opinion of the Minister, the most convenient 
of access to the parties whose cases are to be inquired into by such Land Board." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 16. 	 Noes, 61. 
Mr. Tonkin, Mr. Alison, 

Mr. Crick, 	 Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 	 Mr. Nicoll,  
Mr. Garvan, 	 Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Chanter, 	 Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Traill, 	 Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Edmunds, 	 Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Wall, 	

Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Gould, 

Mr. Gough, 	 Mr. •Borne, 
Mr. Hutchison, 	 Mr. Reid,  

(Glen Threes), 	 Mr. Garrett, 
Mr. Seaver, 	 Mr. Alfred Allen, 
Mr. J. R. Abbott, 	 Mr. Stephen, 
Mr. A'Biieliat. 	 Mr. Abigail, 

Mr. Wheeler, Tellers, 	 Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Turner, 	 Mr. McCourt, 
Dr. Ross. 	 Mr. 0.0. Danger, 

Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Thompson, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. BOW1111111, 

Mr. Lyno, 
Mr. Greene, 

. Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Bruce 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Cuis, 

Weida proposed to be luseCicel vegativcd 
'Olittiab its read agreed to. 
On motion of M. Brauer, the Cliairmau left the Chair to raport progress and ask leave to sit 

T
r 

o:niorifl. 

Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. T. a Danger, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Teem 
Mr. King 
Mr. Cullen, 	. 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Holhorow. 

Tellers, 
Mr.. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Hassell. 

• 

y ,  11,0) : Charles Potter, Covennount, Pri, ,ter.-18,i9. 
[ad. I 
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No. 1. 	• 
Cnows Lays BILL. 

Clause 12. The title to any conditional purchase or conditional or homestead lease applied for Applications ter 
after the commencement of this Act shall commence from "the date of application therefor," ci,'„1,tatal  
"if valid," and any such application, shall withdraw such of the lands therein described as recutharl 
may be available for the purpose from any annual lease or occupation lie,ense under which setserd,;lemare. 
they may be held. Provided that the Land Agent shall, within one week of the receipt of 
any such application, notify the same through the post to the holder of any annual lease or 
occupation license within which the land applied for or any part thereof may be situated. 
And no person making any such application shall acquire any rights of impounding any 
stock of the lessee or licensee until-tliseo weelm after-the-date-ei-sueli-applieatien- in the case 
of a conditional purchase or conditional lease until four weeks after the date of 
such application, and in the case of a homestead lease for three months after the 
date of such application. If land be granted in satisfaction thereof of a less area than, 
or in a different position from, that applied for, such of the land described as may not be 
granted, or, if the application be withdrawn, the whole of the lauds described therein, shall, 
at the date of confirmation of the application, or approval of its withdrawal, as the case may 
be, revert to the lease or license. In the ease of a homestead lease, any similar reverter 
shall take effect on notification in the Gazette, of the approval of such lease, or of the 
acceptance of the applicant's refusal thereof. The rents of any such conditional or home-
stead leases shall be paid annually in advance not later than one day prior to a date 
corresponding to the date of application. (Read.) 

And the Committee continuing to sit after midnight,— 

THURSDAY, 13 JUNE, 1389, AM 

Motion made (Mr. TV. E. Abbott) to omit from line 2 the words "the date of applical ion 
therefor," with a view to insert the words "time date of preliminary allotment by the Land 
Board." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 23. 	 Noes, 15. 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. B. H. Brown, 
Mr. Paul, 	• 
Mr. Lakethan, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Cass, 

Words stand. 

Mr. Mackinnon, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. recce, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Jones. 

Tetters, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger. 
Mr. Woodward. 

Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 	Tellers, 
Mr. Edmunds, 	Mr. FitzGerald . - 
Mr. R B. Wilkinson, 	Mr. Cruickshank. 
Mr. A'Bockett, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Dawson. 

No. 2, 

 

WED.NESDAY 12 JUNE, 1839. 

360- 
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No. 2. 
Same clause. 

Motion made (Hr. Lakeman) to omit from line 3 the words " if valid." 
Question pnt,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 19. 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. It. B. Wilkinson, 

Words stand. 

Mr. A'Beekett, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Prank Parnell, 
Mr. Alison. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Teeee. 

Noes, 14. 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. W. K Abbott, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Dawson, 	• 
Mr. Mackinnon, 

Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger. 

And the clause having been amended as indicated. 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
On motion of Mr. Brunker the Chairman left the Chair to report progress and ask leave to 

sit again to-morrow. 

THURSDAY, 13 JUNE, 1889. 

Conditional pur-
chases may he 
made in Eastern 
Division core. 
prising 1,280 

No. 3. 
SAME BILL. 

Clause 17.—Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in sections twenty-four or forty-two of 
the Principal Act, it shall be lawful for any person, after the commencement of this Act, 
to conditionally purchase in the •Eastern Division, an area not exceeding "one thousand two 
hundred and eighty" acres; and whenever the holder of lands conditionally purchased 
"under the-Repealed:Aets"  hat oxercised-er-shall-exereisc his right-ef-making-an additienel-eensli-
ti nal purchase Ender the-Principal AeL.-in-any-Th-vinion, the arcs 
es-mere- applieati  no, together with that previously purchased wider  the paid AGM, boo exceedeel 
or chall  exceed eta-lien41;4-and-fertfleresretiek-area-  shall net-be-held-to have  been or to be cub 
ject-4e-the-coneldien-of any fui4hes4erm-ef residence than may have been-requireethe-repealed 
Ask-, (Read.) 

Motion made (Afr. AfcCourt) to omit from lines 3 and 4 the words "one thousand two hundred 
and eighty," with a view to insert the words " six hundred and forty." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 44. Noes, 24. 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. )3runker, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Burdekin, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Jones, 	• 
Mr. john Wilkinson, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Lakeman, 

Words stand. 

Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Scohie, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Air, Teece, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Mackinnon, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr, Wall, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. Hey nes, 
Mr. Holborow. 

Tellers, 
Mr. IL H. Brown, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Mr. McRae, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mi. McFarlane, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. A'Beckett, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen lanes), 

Mr. Nicoll, 
Tellers, 

Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Hassell. 

No. 4. 
Same clause. 

Motion made (Air. Crick) to omit from line 5 the words "under the repealed Acts," with a. 
view to insert the words, "miller the repealed Acts shall apply for an additional conditional 
purchase, which when taken with his conditional purchase or purchases of the same series 
shall exceed the area of six hundred and forty acres, such area over six hundred and forty 
acres shall be subject to the conditions of residence. and improvements required by the 
principal or any amending Act, provided that such residence and improvements may be 
effected on any part of the said bolding." 

Question 
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Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted s tand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 27. 	 Noes, 32. 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Cooke, 	 Mr. Willis, Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Carruthers, Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. Hayes, Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, Mr. Tecce, 	 Mr. Crick, Mr. Hassell, 
Mr. Brunker, Mr. Lamb, 	 Mr. Copland, Mr. Hutchison 
Mr. Bruce Smith, Mr. Burdekin, Mr. Dickens, (Glen innes), 
Mr. Gould, Mr. H. H. Brown, Mr. Gormly, Mr. Plumb, 	• 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 

Mr. O'Connor. 
Tellers, 

Mr. Holborow, 

Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Torpy, 

Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Barnes, 

Mr. :Barbour, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Lee, 

Mr. Harold Stephan. Mr. Edmunds, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 

Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Mackinnon, 
Mr. A'Beckett. 

Tellers, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Cass. 

Words struck out. 
No. 5. 	 - 

Same clause. 
Question then put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 

Mr. AfeCotirt, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Rolborow, 
Mr. Tecce, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Cooke. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Lew 

Committee divided. 
Ayes, 28. 	 Noes, 32. 

Mr. Willis, 	 Mr. 0.0. Danger, 	 Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Hayes, 	 Mr. Mackinnon, 	 Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Nicoll, 	 Mr. Germly, 	 Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Wright, 	Mr. Dickens, 	 Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Crick, 	 Mr. Reid, 	 Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Hutchison 	Mr. Edmunds, 	 Mr. Lynn, 

(Glen lanes), 	Ur. Torpy, 	 Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Garret, 	 Mr. Perry, 	 Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Garrett", 	Mr. Jones, 	 Mr. Harold. Stephen, 
Mr. Lakeman, 	Dr. Boss. 	 Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Hassell, 	 Mr. Morton, rs lle, Mr. O'Sullivan, 	 Tellers, 	 Mr. John Wilkinson, 
Mr. Plumb, 	 Mr. Cruickshank, 	 Mr. Burdekin, 
Mr. Alison, 	 Mr. A'Beckett, 	 Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Barnes, 	 Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Cass, 	 Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Stevenson, 	 Mr. J. P. Abbott, 

Words, proposed to be inserted, negatived. 
And the remaining words of the clause having been, on motion of Mr. Brunker, omitted,— 

No. 6. 
(Same clause.) 

Motion made (Mr. Brztnker) that there be inserted, in place of the words omitted, the following 
words:— 

" shall before the first day of June, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-nine, have - 
applied for an additional conditional purchase in any division, the area of which, when 
taken with all conditional purchases of the same series, exceeds six hundred and forty acres, 
such area shall only be subject, and be held to have been subject, to the condition of 
residence required by the said Acts. But whenever, when, within six months after the 
day aforesaid, the holder of lands conditionally purchased under the said Acts shall have 
applied, or shall apply, for an additional conditional purchase in any division, the area of 
which, when taken with all conditional purchases of the same series, exceeds six hundred 
and forty acres ;  such area shall be subject, and be held to have been subject, to the same 
condition of residence as an original conditional purchase made after the commencement of 
this Act, unless before or at the confirmation of the application, or as soon as possible 
thereafter, the Land Board or the Land Court shall be satisfied that for the twelve months 
previous to the time of the application the applicant (or, in any case, within the provisions 
of the twentieth section of this Act, his mortgagor) has been continuously resident on a 
conditional purchase or lease of the same series. If the said Board or Court shall be so 
satisfied, the further term of residence shall not in any such case as last aforesaid be 
required in any division"— 

which, having been amended as indicated,— 
Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 23. 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. Mackinnon, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Seale, 
Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Brucker, 	Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Greene, 	 Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Morton, 	 Mr. Lee. 
Mr. Lyne, Tellers, Mr. Ring, 
Mr. Haynes, 	 Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Wilshire, 	Mr. Harold Stephen. 
Mr. O'Connor, 

Words, proposed to be nserted, negatived. 

Noes, 25. 
Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen Tunes), 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Gorni ly, 
Mr. Lai:mien, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. McCourt, 

Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Jones, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. A'Beckett. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. 0. 0. Hangar. 

Clause, 
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Clause, as amended, negatived. 
On motion of Mr. Brunker, Chairman left the Chair to report progress and ask leave to sit 

again To-morrow. 

:FRIDAY, 14 JUNE, 1889. 

Allowance to 
Members of 
Legislative 
Assembly 

No. 7. 
PARLIAMENTARY REPRESENTATIVES ALLOWANCE Bum. 

Clause 2.—Every Member of "the" Legislative Assembly now serving or hereafter to serve 
therein shall, unless he is one of the persons specified or referred to in the next following 
section, be entitled to receive, by way of reimbursement for expenses incurred by him in 
the discharge of his Parliamentary duties, an allowance at the rate of three hundred pounds 
per annum; which allowance shall be charged on the Consolidated Revenue Fund, and be 
payable to every Member of this present Parliament Legislative Assembly now serving, 
from the commencement of the present Session, and to every Member hereafter elected, 
from the time of his taking his seat, and in every case, until he shall resign or vacate his 
seat, or until Parliament shall be dissolved, or shall expire by efiluxion of time. (Read.) 

Motion made (Mr . W E. Abbott) omit from line 1 the word "the" with a view to insert "every 
future" 

Question put,—That the word proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 41. 	 Noes, 14. 

, [3d.] 

Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen Inner), 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. J. 1'. Abbott, 
Mr. Gana°, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Torpy,. 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Plumb, 

Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr, 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Teece 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Crecr, 
Mr. Wright. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Rascal!, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Mr. Gould,' 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Chapman. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Lamb. 

 

Word stands. 
And the Clause having been amended as indicated, 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
On motion of Mr. O'Connor the Chairman left the Chair to report the Bill with amendments. 

Sydney : Charles Potter, uovermeent Printer —1553.. 
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LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 5. 

WEEKLY REPORT OF DIVISIONS 
IN' 

COMMITTFE OF THE WHOLE. 

(EXTRACTED neon-  TITE MINUTES) 

TUESDAY, 18 TUNE, 1889. 
No. 1. 

CIIOWN LASCDS BILL. 
Clause is, Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in section tiventpfour or forty-two of Gandillella! 

the Principal Act, it shall be lawful for the Governor, subject to the general provisions of r ants.] area 
that section twenty-four as aforesaid, to proclaim, and set apart, front time to time, Msif:Iggsrsan  
special " areas," in which it shall be lawful to conditionally purchase such areas as may be or population 
notified in the proclamation, not exceeding eile–theueend–twe–huntlFed--and -eighty three boundaries. 

hundred and twenty acres in the Eastern, or twe–thalleand--five–hUndved–and--sixty six 
hundred and forty acres in the Central or Western Division. It shall also be lawful 
for the Governor, by notification in the Government Gazette, to proclaim and set apart as 
special areas any lands within the suburban or population boundaries or population areas 
of any cities, towns, or villages, and such lands (without cancellation or revocation of such 
boundaries or areas) shall, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Principal Act, 
be open to conditional purchase on or after such dates, and in such areas, and subject to the 
payment of such deposits, and such instalments, and subject to the fulfilment of such 
conditions as to "residence," iinprovements, fencing, or otherwise, as may be specified in 
the proclamation. Any conditions so set forth shall have the force of law, and any breach 
thereof shall render the conditional purchase liable to forfeiture in accordance with this Act 
or the Principal Act. The Governor may at any time by notification in the Gazette revoke 
or modify any proclamation, before or after the commencement of this Act, of any special 
area, or of any conditions applicable thereto. Before any special areas are declared to 
be open for conditional purchase, the same shall be surveyed and shall be taken as 
surveyed. (Read.) 

And the clause having been amended, as indicated in lines 1 and 2. 
Motion made (Mr. Alison) to insert after the word "areas" in line 4 the words,—" (not being 

. within pastoral or homestead leases)" 
Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 11. 	 Noes, 47. 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. A'Beekett, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Willis, 
Th.. type, 
Mr. Hawken. 

Tellers. 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. QM. 

 

Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Frank Farnell, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Fletcher, 
Mr. 0 arvan, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Mayfair, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Greer, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Grid:, 
Tfr. Barnes, 
Mr. Perry, 	. 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Culls, 

Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Martin, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Chtbb, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Tecee, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr, Roberts. 

Tellers. 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Frank Smith. 

 

 

  

insertion of words proposed negatived, 
389— 

 

And 
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And the clause having been further amehded as indicated in fines 6 and V. 
No. 2. 

Same clause. 
Motion made (.3fr. 0. 0. Dan gar) to omit from line 14 the word "residence." 
Question put,—That the word proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 40. 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Franker, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. A'Beckett, 	• 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Tome 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury); 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Copland, 

Word stands. 

Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr, Lamb, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Barnes, 

Tellers, 
Mr. Hawkon, 
Mr. Paul. 

Noes, 11. 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. 0. 0, Danger, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott 
Mr. Ryrie, 

Tellers, 
Mr. Greer, 
Mr. Hassell. 

  

No. 3. 
Same clause. 

Motion made (Yr. P. Abbott) to add to the end of the clause the Words, "Before any special 
areas are declared to be open for conditional purchase the same shall be surveyed, and 
shall be taken as surveyed." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be added be so added. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 42. 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Teeee, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Scottie, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. A' Beckett, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Paul, 

Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Creer, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Garven, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr, Hassan. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Edmunds. 

Noes, 5.. 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. 0. 0. Banger. 

Tellers, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Willis. 

  

Conversion of 
conditional 
leases into addi-
tional condi-
tional purchases. 

Words added. 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
And the Committee continuing to sit alter midnight,— 

WEDNESDAY, 19 JUNE, 1889, AM 

On motion of Mr. Brunker, the Chairman left the Chair to report progress, and ask leave to sit 
again to-morrow. 

WEDNESDAY, 19 JUNE, 1889. 
No. 4. 

SANE Barn 
Clause 24.—The holder of any conditional lease under  the  forty cighthrfifty-seesuil, or fifty fourth 

soot-ion 	of tho 	Prineifol-skefi in respect of which no forfeiture shall have been incurred, 
may at any time apply for the whole or part of the land comprised under such lease as an 
additional conditional purchase or purchases, subject to all the provisions of that the 
Principal Act as-amended-by and. this Act as to the making of applications, available land 
area, deposits, measurement, and all other conditions applicable to ordinary additional con-
ditional " purchases " other than the condition of residence (except that nothing in the 

Principal 
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Principal Act shall be held to render any such additional conditional purchase invalid bj 
reason only that the land may be situated in the Western Division) ; provided that the land 
so purchased shall not, with any conditional purchases of the same series, exceed one 
thousand two hundred and eighty acres in the Eastern, or two thousand five hundred and 
sixty acres in the Central or Western 'Division": And in all such cases the remaining 
area of such conditional lease may be held at a proportionate part of the rental thereof, 
although such lease may, when taken with the land conditionally purchased, exceed one 
thousand two hundred and eighty acres in the Eastern, and two thousand five hundred and 
sixty acres in the Central or Western Division. A refund of the rental shall not be granted, 
until after confirmation of the application for the additional conditional purchase, but when 
granted, shall be calculated from the date of such application. Notwithstanding anything 
to the contrary in the Principal Act, no condition of residence shall be held to have attached 
or to attach to any land conditionally leased under sections forty-eight, fifty-two, or fifty-
four of that Act ; and, subject to payment of rent and fulfilment of any prescribed Con-
ditions, all conditional leases shall have a term of tea fifteen years from the respective dates 
of their commencement. (Further considered.) 

And tile clause having been amended as indicated in lines 1 to 5,— 
Motion made (Mr. Brunker) to insert after the word " purchases," in line 7, the words " other 

than the condition of residence." 
Question put—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 
Committee divided: 

Ayes, 69. 	 Noes, 13.  
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr, Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr..Patd, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. Martin, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. McCann, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Cass, 

Words inserted. 

Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Hassan, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. 1'. G. Danger, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Dawson. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Thompson, 
Mr. Lakemnn. 

Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. A'Beckett, 
Mr. McRae, 
'Dr. Ross. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Creer, 
Mr. Tonkin. 

  

No. 5. 
Sonic clause. - 

Motion made (Mr. Hayes) to insert after the word "Division," in line 12, the words "The 
right to so purchase shall not be granted for more than two leases held by the same owner 
under the 52nd section of the Principal Act." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 

Noes, 42. 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Thompson, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Creer,  
Mr. Matt:0, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Hassell, 
Mr. Gann, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. A'Beekett, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Shepherd, 

Trail], 

Mr. McCourt 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Barbour. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. O'Sullivan. 

- 

Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Martin, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. MOrton, 
Mr. Alison, 

Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. 0. 0. Dangar, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Hawkins, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Ball. 

Tellers, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. Dickens. 

Insertion of words proposed negatived. 	 No. B. 

Committee divided. 
Ayes, 28. 
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No..6. 
' (Same clause.) 

Motion made (Mr. Hassell) to omit from the last line but one of the clanse the word " ten" and 
insert the word" fifteen." 

And the word " ten" having been omitted,— 
Question put,—That the word proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 
Committee divided. 

Noes, 4. 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Garrard. 

Tellers, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Traill. 

Ayes, 55. 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr Thompson, 
Mr. A'Beckett, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. 0:Sullivan, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Temp, 
Mr. Seobie, 
3fr, Perry, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. A I ison, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. W. E. Abbot t, 

Word inserted. 
Clause as amended agreed to. 

Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. I'. G. Hangar, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. 0.0. Danger, 
Mr. Olubb, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. DMVS01), 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Ityrie, 
Mr. Hassell, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Hawkins, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Morton. 

Yellers, 
31r. R. 13. Wilkinson, 

Dickens. 

No. 7. 
Conditional lease 	8.1Atis Bud,. 
tourZeNelke" 	Clause 25. Any applicant for, or holder of, land conditionally purchased under the Principal Act 
three trines ma 	 (not being milder section forty-seven thereof) may obtain a conditional lease, or additional area of the 
conditionally 	 conditional leases, to comprise an "area" exceeding three times the area of such land, 
putebosee land, 	 provided that the total area of land conditionally purchased and conditionally leased shall 

not exceed one thousand two hundred and eighty acres in the Eastern, "and two thousand 
five hundred and sixty acres in the Central" Division. In estimating the area which may be 
lea_ed in aceerdaime with thin o - etioa, conditionally purchased or conditionally leased, 
all conditional purchases of the same series, and all land held by conditional lease under 
sections-forty eight, fiftSwerer-fifty f  us-of-that-A-et by virtue of such conditional purchases, 
shall be included, and the land which may be leased shall adjoin the land so conditionally 
purchased or conditionally leased. With any application for a conditional lease after the 
commencement of this Act a deposit of twopence per acre of the area applied for shall be 
paid to the Land Agent Applications for conditional leases or additional conditional 
leases under this Act shall be made in the prescribed manner, and shall be dealt 
with as if the same had been made under the forty-eighth section of the Principal 
Act, and any conditional lease granted in pursuance thereof shall be deemed to 
have been granted under the said section, and the provisions of that Act shall, 
unless otherwise provided in this Act, apply to conditional leases granted after 
the commencement of this Act. All conditional purchases of the same series, and 
all conditional leases granted in virtue thereof, shall, for all purposes of residence, 
fencing, or improvement, be deemed to be one holding. Provided that in all cases 
where the conditional or additional conditional lease shall exceed three times the 
area of the conditional purchase by virtue of which such conditional or additional 
conditional lease shall have been applied for, the applicant shall fulfil the condition 
of residence prescribed in the original Act in respect of an original conditional 
purchase. (Read.) 

Motion made (Ain Hayes) to insert after the word "area," in line 3, the word "not." 
And the Committee continuing to sit after midnight,— 

• 

TIIURSDAY, 
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THURSDAY, 20 JUNE, 1889 A.m. 

Question put,—That the word proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 18. 	 Noes, 30. 
• Mr. j. P. Abbott, 	 Mr. Carruthers, 

Mr. Lee 	 Tellers, 	 Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. MS; 	 Mr. Copland, 	 Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Hayes, 	 Mr. W. E. Abbott. 	 Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Thompson, 	 Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Wilshire, 	 Mr. Eyrie, 
Mr. A'Beckett, 	 Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Cullen, 	 Mr. Chanter, 
Dr. Rose, 	 Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Frank Farnell, 	 Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Davis, 	 Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Dickens, 	 Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Alieon, 	 Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Hassell, 	 Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Gormly, 	 Mr. Shepherd 
Mr. Barnes. 	 Mr. Willis 

- Insertion of word proposed negatived. 

Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Cooke. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Paul. 

No S. 
Same clause. 

Motion made (.5 .fr. Hassan) to omit from lines 5 and 6 the words "and two thousand five hundred 
and sixty acres in the Central." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 36. 	 Noes, 10. 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Hassell, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. A'Beekett, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Frank Farnell. 

Tellers. 
Mr. Thompson, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson. 

Mr. J. P. Abbott, 	Mr. Tecce, 
Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Lak mum, 
Mr. Brutal:or, 	Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Crick, 	 Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Copland, 	Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. 0. 0. Dangar, 	Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Jones, 	 Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Carruthers, 	Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Bowman, 	Mr-, T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Barbour, 	Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Willis, 	 Tellers. 
Mr. Torpy, 	 Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Puller, . 	Mr. Cooke. 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Ball, 

Words stand. 
And the clause having been amended as indicated. 

No. 9. 
Same clause. 

Question put,—That the clause as amended, stand clause 25 of the Bill. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 27, 	 Noes, 19. 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Barbour, 	 Dr. Ross, 	 Mr. Davis. 
Mr. Breaker, 	Mr. Nobbs, 	 Mr. Gormly; 	Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Ball, 	 Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Stevenson, 	 Mr. Ryrie, 	 Tellers% 
Mr. Jones, 	 Mr. T. G. Danger, 	 Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 	Mr. Frank Farnell, 
Mr. Copland, 	Mr. Dawson, 	 Mr. McRae, 	 Mr. Cruickshank. 
Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 	 Mr. Thompson, 
Mr. Morton, 	 Mr, Willis, 	 Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Carruthers, 	Mr. Crick, 	 - Mr. Lee, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 	Mr. Lalieman, 	 Mr. W. B. Abbott, 
Mr. Teeee, 	 Mr. Barnes, Tellers. Mr. Bowman, 	 Mr. Hassell, 
Mr. Torpy, 	 Mr. Harold Stephen, 	 Mr. A'Beekett, 
Mr. Cooke, 	 Mr. Edmunds. 	 Mr. .T. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Fuller, 	 Mr. Cullen, 

Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
On motion of Mr. Brunker the Chairman left the Chair to report progress and ask leave to sit 

again to-morrow. 

THURSDAY, 
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THURSDAY, 20 JUNE, 1889. 

Rents of leases to 
he subject to 
reappraisement. 

Extension of 
term of leases in 
the western 

No. 10. 
SAME SILL. 

Clause 28. All leases granted after the commencement of this Act shall be granted subject to the 
provisions hereof as amending the Principal Act. The holder of any pastoral or "homestead" 
or conditional lease granted before the commencement of this Act "(other than of a pastoral 
leaSe in the Eastern Division)" may bring his lease under the provisions hereof by making an 
application to the Minister within ninety days of such commencement. If no such applica-
tion be made the lease shall continue to be dealt with as regards the rent thereof as if this 
Act had not been passed. Subject to application as aforesaid, and to the due fulfilment of 
any conditions attaching thereto leases in the Western Division, whether pastoral or home-
stead, shall be for terms of twenty-one years without any right of extension ; such term 
being, in the case of a lease granted before the commencement of this Act, computed from 
the end of that year of the lease which may be current at the commencement of this Act ; 
and in the case of a lease granted after the commencement of this Act, from the commence-
ment of the lease. The term of twenty-one years shall in either case be divided into three 
periods each of seven years. The terms of pastoral leases in the Central and Eastern 
Divisions, save as hereinafter provided, shall not be affected or altered by this Act. The 
determination of the rent for any of the leases hereinbefore referred to, and for conditional 
leases, shall be subject to the following provisions :— 

(a) In the case of a pastoral or homestead lease in the Western Division, the rent 
shall be separately determined or redetermined for each seven-year period of such 
lease. 

(0 In the ease of a pastoral lease in the Central Division, so much of the first period 
thereof as, after the end of that year of the lease which may be current at the 
commencement of this Act, may then remain to run, shall for the purposes of this 
Act be joined with the second period thereof, and the rent shall be redetermined 
for such combined period. 

(c) In the case- of a conditional lease granted after the commencement of this Act, 
the rent shall be determined for the whole term of the lease. 

Provided always that nothing hereinbefore contained shall be construed to permit the 
redetermination of any rent which, under the provisions of the Principal Act, shall become 
or shall have become due for such part of a term as may precede or have preceded the end 
of that year of the lease which may be current at the commencement of this Act. And 
further provided that, pending determination or redetermination, the lessee shall in every 
case continue to pay the provisional or the previous rent; but when such determination 
shall have been made he shall be entitled to a refund of any sums paid in excess, or shall 
pay within the prescribed time any difference due to the Crown between the provisional or 
previous rent and the rent as determined or redetermined. (Read.) 

Motion made (Mr. Hassan) to insert after the word "homestead" in line 3, the words "or con-
ditional." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 52. 	 Noes, 15. 

  

Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Garrett. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Myr*. 

Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Sierran, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Reese'', 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. A'Beckett, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Mackinnon, 

- - 	• 
Words inserted. 

Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Garrard. 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. Black, 
Dr. Ross, - 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Ball. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Perry. 

 

No. 11. 
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No. U. 
Same Clause. 

Motion made (Mr. Lee) to omit from lines 3 and 4, the words " (other than of a pastoral lease 
in the Eastern Division)." 

And the Committee continuing to sit after midnight,— 

FRIDAY, 21 JUNE, 1889, ex. 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 43. 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Wright, 
Ur. Carruthers, 
Mr. Creel., 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Garrett., 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Gonnly, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Jones, 
Ur. Nicoll, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Hewn, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Torpy, 

Words stand. 

Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Paul, . 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Mackinnon, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. recce, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Morton. 

Noes, 15. 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. A'Beckett, 
Mr. Ring. 

Tellers, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Waddell. 

[Gd.] 

On motion of Mr. Drunker the Chairman left the Chair to report progress, and ask leave to sit 
again on Tuesday next. 

Sydney Charles Potter, Government Printer —1889. 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 6. 

WEEKLY REPORT OF DIVISIONS 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE. 

(EXTRACTED FROM THE MINUTES) 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JUNE, 1889. 
No. 1. 

CROWN LANDS BILL. 
Clause 28. All leases granted after the commencement of this Act shall be granted subject to the Irte Ltsbleci °tags to 

provisions hereof as amending the Principal Act. The holder of any pastoral or homestead ree,,,,pwesmwit. 
or conditional lease granted before the commencement of this Act (other than of a 
pastoral lease in the Eastern Division) may bring his lease under the provisions hereof by 
making an application to the Minister within ninety days of such commencement. If no 
such application be made the lease shall continue to be dealt with as regards the rent 
thereof "and the term thereof shall, except in the case of conditional leases, 
remain" as if this Act had not been passed. Subject to application as aforesaid, and to ExtensionOf 
the due fulfilment of any conditions attaching thereto "pastoral or homestead " rtheVeesatseern 
leases in the Western Division, Ns4vethev-pasteviil-eti4emestead, shall be for terms of twenty- Division. 
one years without any right of extension ; such term being, in the case of a lease granted 
before the commencement of this Act, computed from the end of that year of the lease 
which may be current at the commencement of this Act; and in the case of a lease granted 
after the commencement of this AM, from the commencement of the lease. The term of 
twenty-one years shall in either case be divided into three periods each of seven years. The 
terms of pastoral leases in the " Central" and Eastern divisions, save as hereinafter pro-
vided, shall not be affected or altered by this Act. The determination of the rent for any 
of the leases hereinbefore referred to, and for conditional leases, shall be subject to the 
following provisions :— 

(1) Subject to the provisions of section 81 of the Principal Act the Minister 
shall direct upon application in the prescribed manner within three 
months from the passing of this Act by the licensee of any resumed area • 
in the Western Division that a reappraisement shall be made of the 
same and in the case of a pastoral or homestead lease in the Western 
Division, the rent shall be separately determined or redetermined for each seven-
year period of such lease. 

(b) In the case of a pastoral lease in the Central Division, so much of the first period 
thereof as, after the end of that year of the lease which may be current at the 
commencement of this Act, may then remain to run, shall. for the purposes of this 
Act, be joined with the second period thereof, and the rent shall be redetermined 
for such combined period. 

407—A 
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CO In the case of a conditional lease granted after the commencement of this Act, 
the rent shall be determined for the whole term of the lease "And in the case 
'oft conditional lease granted before the commencement of this Act, and 
"brought under the provisions of this section, the rent shall be deter-
" mined for such part of the term of the lease as may remain to run after 
"the end of the year of the lease current at the commencement of this Act." 

Provided always that nothing hereinbefore contained shall be construed to permit the 
redetermination of any rent which, under the provisions of the Principal Act shall become 
or shall have become due for such part of a term as may precede or have preceded the end 
of that year of the lease which may be current at the commencement of this Act. 
And further provided that, pending determination or redetermination, the lessee shall in 
every case continue to pay the provisional Or the previous rent ; but when such determina-
tion shall have been made he shall be entitled to a refund of any sums paid in excess, or 
shall pay within the prescribed time any difference due to the Crown between the provisional 
or previous rent and the rent as determined or redetermined; and upon the application 
of any Homestead or any Pastoral tenant the Minister shall cause to be issued to 
him a lease for the land held by him, which lease shall be in the form prescribed 
and shall be subject to a fee of twenty shillings." (Further considered.) 

And the clause having been further amended as indicated in lines 7, 8, 9 and 10. 
Motion made (Mr. Hassan) to insert after the word" Central," in line 16, the words" Division 

shall be for a period of fifteen years, to be computed from the commencement of the 
existing lease." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 16. 	 Noes, 60. 
Mr. Ryric, 	 Mr. Chanter, 	Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Lyne, 	 Mr. Wright:, 	 Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Copeland, 	 Mr. Hutchison 	Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Grahame, 	 (Glen. Than), Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Brunker, 	Mr. Street, 
Mr. Wadden, 	 Mr. O'Connor, Mr. Goug 

Mr. Crick, 	
h, 

Mr. Lamb, Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 	 Mr. Willis, 	 Mr. Ball,  
Mr. H. H. Brown, 	 Mr. O'Sullivan, 	Mr. Tecce, 
Mr. Davie, 	 Mr. McRae, 

, 	
Mr. Barnes, 

Mr. Slattery Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 	 Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Thompson, 
Dr. Ross 

At r. Dickens, 	 Mr. ;I- o n es , 
Mr. Kidd, 	 , 	 Mr. Levien, 
Mr. Ferguson. 	 Mr. litzGerald, 	Mr. Cass, 

Mr. Hawthorne, 	Mr. Inglis,  Tellers. M r. Morton, Mr, Edmunds, 
Mr. Alison, 	 Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Hassan. 	 Mr. Wilshire, 	Mr. Ritchie, 

Mr, W. E. Abbott, 	Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. S. P. Abbott, 	Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Barbour, 	Mr. Holborow, 

Mr. Turner, Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Mitchell, 	Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Colts, 	 Mr. DEOVS011, 
Mr. Fuller, 	 Mr. Train, 
Mr. Comity, 	Mr. Greene. 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 	2Wlers. 
Mr. William Stephen, Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Nicoll, Mr. Dowel. 
Mr. Perry, 

insertion of words proposed negatived. 
And the Committee continuing to sit after Midnight,— 

THURSDAY, 27 JUNE, 1880, A.M. 
No. 2. 

Same clause. 
It havina been proposed, on motion of Mr. S. P. Abbott, to insert before the first word of sub-

section (a) the words, "Subject to the provisions of section eighty-one of the Principal 
Act, the Minister shall direct, upon application in the prescribed manner within three 
months from the passing of this Act by the licensee of any resumed area in 'the' Western 
Division, that a reappraisement shall be made of the same, and." 

Motion made (Mr. Alison) to amend the proposed amendment by inserting after the word 
"the," in line 3, the words "Central and." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted in the proposed amendment be so 
inserted. 

Committee 
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Committee divided. 
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Ayes, 25. Noes, 28. 
Mr. Cough, Mr. Barnes, Mr. Ferguson, Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Trail!, Mr. Ryrie, Mr. Jones, ltr. Woodward, 
Mr. Copeland, Mr. Lakeman, Mr. Gould, Mr. Hawken, 
Mr, Slattery, Mr. H. H. Brown, Mr. Levien, Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, Mr. Dawson, Mr. McMillan, Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Davis, Mr. Harold Stephen, Mr. Drunker, Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. ATeckett, Mr, W. E. Abbott, Mr. Paul, Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Gormly,
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mi. Copland, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Greene, 	, 

T ll e err. 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Alison. 

Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Thomson, 
Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Hobbs, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Teece, 

Mr. Mitchell, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. FitzGerald. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen Inner), 
Mr. Barbour. 

Insertion (in the proposed amendment) of words proposed negated. 
And the words proposed to be inserted in the clause haring been inserted,— 

No. 3. 
Same clause. 

Motion made (Mr. Copeland) to insert after sub-section (b), to stand as new sub-section (c) the 
following," (e) Notwithstanding any notification by the Minister, in terms of sub-section (tv) 
of section seventy-eight of the Principal Act, pastoral lessees in the Eastern Division shall 
have a right, at the expiration of their leases, to an extension thereof for a term of five 
years, and the rent shall be redetermined for such period of extension. Provided that 
where, in the opinion of the Local Land Board, the land embraced within such lease is so 
situated or of such quality as to be required for agricultural settlement, the Minister, on 
giving six months notice; prior to the expiration of such lease, shall have power to refuse 
such extension." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 16. 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. A'Beckett , 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. FitzGerald, 
Mr. Lakemat, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Ferguson, 
Mr. H. IT. Brown, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Lee. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Crick. 

Noes, 31. 
Mr. Copland, 	Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Dawson, 	Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Sone., 	 Mr. Teeee, 
Mr. Drunker, 	Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Dowel, 	 Mr. Scale, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 	Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Carruthers, 	Mr. Thompson, 
Al r. Mitchell, 	Mr. Coils, 
Dr. Ross, 	 Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Willis, 	 Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 	Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Chanter, 	Mr. Hobbs, 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. McRae, 	 Tellers,  
Mr. Barbour, 	Mr. Hutchison, 
Mr. Paul, 	 (Glen Inner), 
Mr. Haynes, 	 Mr. Levien. 
Mr. Barnes, 

 

Insertion of words proposed negatived. 
And the clause having been further amended as indicated,— 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
On motion of Mr. Drunker, the Chairman left the Chair to report progress, and ask leave to sit 

again to-morrow, 

THURSDAY, 27 JUNE, 1889. 
No. 4. 

SAME Dm. 
Clause 29. Shee14-it--appear-to the satiefactica of the-Allister, cilia repelit  b -  the-Lesableud-Beard, Lands may be 

and subject to the reco mmendation of the Land Court that the whole or any part of the pa= rwaour  
land held under a pastoral or scrub lease whether granted before or after the commence- settlement-
ment of this Act is req uired for settlement by conditional purchase or conditional lease or 
otherwise, it shall be lawful for the Minister, upon giving six months notice in the 
GOVel)1112611i Gazette, to withdraw from the pastoral or scrub lease such lands as may be 
therein described ; and upon the expiry of such notice the lands so described shall there-
-upon be withdrawn from m such lease and may be held on application by the pastoral lessee 
under occupation license at such rate as may be appraised, or be otherwise- dealt with in 
accordance with the Principal Act or this Act And the lessee shall be entitled to a ref und 
of any rent paid in con nection therewith, computed from the expiry of the notice before-
mentioned, and to a reduction of future rent proportionate with the area withdrawn less 
811”114333 	to the  GIBitganirelld."  es-etheewieet Lands reserved from sale for towns or 
villages shall not be deemed by virtue of such reservations to be withdrawn from pastoral 
or homestead lease; but the proclamation of cities, towns and villages, and the definitionof 
the limits of suburban lands to be attached thereto, shall be held to withdraw and to have 
withdrawn such lands from any lease or license within the boundaries of which they may be 
situated from the date of such proclamation. (Read.) 

:Motion 



49; 
4. 

Motion made (Arr. Brunker) to omit all the words down to and including "rent," in line 13. 
Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 3. 	 Noes, 64. 
Mr. Chanter. 	 Mr. Willis, 

T lie 	 Ur. Hayes, C ers,  Mr. Copland, 
Mr. McRae, 	 Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Tumor. 	 Mr. Gorraly, 

Mr. Lakernan, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Lvne, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. McFarlane. 
Mr, Gould, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Martin, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Alfred Allen, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. I. P. Abbott, 
Mr. A'Beckett, 

TVords omitted. 
And the clause having been further amended as indicated,— 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 

Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Street, . 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Teeee, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. O'Connor. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Moleswortli, 
Mr. FitzGerald. 

Reserve from 
lease reverts mt 
revocation to 
pastoral lease. 

No. 5. 
SAME BILL. 

Clause 31. "Upon the forfeiture of any conditional or other purchase, or" forfeiture OP 
surrender of any conditional or other lease, or upon. the revocation of any reserve from 
lease or license, or upon the amender of-any  rortion held in fee siniple-as-hereinafter-pr-ceeidetl i  
situated within the external boundaries of any pastoral or homestead lease or occupation 
license, the laud comprised therein shall (subject to the power of the Governor or the 
Minister to waive or reverse such forfeiture, or to cancel or modify such revocation) be added 
to the land under lease or license, and be included under such lease or license, and from the 
date of forfeiture taking Or having taken effect or the notification in the Gazette of the 
revocation of the reserve, rent or license fee shall be payable for such unimproved lands 
at the same rate per acre as for the rest of the lease or "license." but if such land con- 
tains improvements the rate shall be determined by appraisement in accordance 
with section six of this Act. Any such forfeited or surrendered lands, situated within 
the external boundaries of any reserve from sale, or reserve from conditional purchase, or 
population area, or suburban lands, or gold-field, shall be added to and form part of the 
same whether held under lease or license or not, and no specific notification of such • 
reservation or addition as aforesaid shall be held to be necessary under the Principal Act or 
this Act. In any case where any forfeited or other lauds have been or shall be reserved 
from sale and from lease or license, it shall be lawful for the Governor by notification in 
the Government Gazette to revoke such reservation, wholly or in part ; and unless otherwise 
expressly declared, any revocation of reservation from lease or license shall not operate as a 
revocation of reservation from sale, nor shall any revocation of reservation from sale operate 
as a revocation of reservation from lease or license. (Read.) 

Motion made (Mr. Barbour) to omit from line 1 the words " -Upon the forfeiture of any condi-
tional or other purchase." 

And the Committee continuing to sit after midnight,— 

FRIDAY, 28 TUNE, 1889 A.M. 
Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 21. 	 Noes, 14. 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Haynes, 	 Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Drunker, 	Mr. Wilshire, 	 Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. T. G. Danger, 	 Mr. Barbour, 	 Tellers, 
Mr. FitzGerald, 	Mr. A'Beekett, 	 Mr. Gough, 	Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Copeland, 	Mr. Sydney Smith, 	 Mr. Coils, 	Mr. Turner. 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 	Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Dickens, 	Mr. O'Connor. 	 Mr. Stokes , 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 	 Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Wall, 	 Tellers, Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Ball, 	 Mr. Dawson, 	 Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Teece, 	 Mr. Cullen. 	 Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Waddell, 	 Mr. Gormly, 

Words stand. 	- 
And the clause having been amended as indicated in lines 1, 2, 3, 8, and 9. No. 
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No. 6. 

Sante clause. 
It having been proposed, on motion of Mr. Brunker, to insert, after the word "license," 

in line 10, the words "but if such laud contains 'improvements' the rate shall be determined 
by appraisement in accordance with section 6 of this Act." 

Motion made (Mr. Lakeman) to amend the proposed amendment by inserting after the word 
improvements" the words "such improvement shall be paid for by the pastoral tenant." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be :inserted in the proposed amendment be so 
inserted. 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 3. 
Mr. Dawson. 

Tellers, • 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Turner. 

Noes, 20. 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. FitzGerald, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Gandy, 

Cruickshank, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Tepee, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Lee, 

Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. A'Beckett, 
Mr. McMillen 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr, Cullen. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Dickens. 

 

  

Insertion (in thernpovea amendment) tithe words proposed negatived. 
And the words proposed to be inserted in the clause having been inserted and the clause further 

amended as indicated. 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
On motion of Mr. Brunker, the Chairman left the Chair to report progress and ask leave to sit 

nab I Oil TUcsday next. 

No. 7. 

WILNTWOUTU IBILICATION BILL 

Clause 11. Subject to the provisions hereinafter contained, and for tho purposes of this Act it Power et the 
shall at any time be lawful for the Trust to exercise any of the following powers, that is to Third' 
say— 

(I) To erect and construct upon. any part of the irrigation area such dams, weirs, 
flood-gates, culverts, aqueducts, sluices, flumes, pipes, engines, pumping machinery, 
reservoirs, canals, water-courses, embankments, or other works as may be be fleece. 
sary or expedient for carrying out the purposes of this Act. 

(a) To construct a dam, or flood-gate, or both, across the mouth of the creekiknown - 
as Tchilltanlcurra Creek, at the junction of the said creek with the river Darling, 
and elsewhere on the said creek or any of its affluents. 

(iii) To take or divert water from the lake known as Fletcher's Lake, adjacent to the 
northern boundary of the irrigation area, and from all creeks, water-courses, 
lagoons, swamps, canals, trenches, tanks, reservoirs, or other sources lying within 
or to be constructed or excavated within the irrigation area. 

(iv) To widen or deepen any existing creek, lagoon, swamp, or water-course within the 
irrigation area.. 

(v) To lay pipes or cut trenches or ducts outside the irrigation area for:the purpose of 
delivering water to owners of adjoining lands. 

(vi) To take water from the rivers Darling and Murray by means of pumping or other 
machinery elected within the irrigation area under such regulations as to 
quantity as the Minister may "sanction." 

But nothing in thus section shall be taken or construed to authorize the Trust to construct nar t  
ally dam, weir, embankment, or other work whatever in or upon either of the rivers Darling to be interfered 
or Murray, so as to obstruct, impede, or in any way interfere with the natural flow or the wall 
navigation of such rivers. (Read.) 

And the clause having been amended as indicated,— 
Motion made (Xi% Sydney Smith) to insert after the word "sanction " in line 21, the words 

"Provided however that the Minister may at any time cause inspection to be made of any 
works initiated, constructed, or managed by the Trust, and if the construction, maintenance, 
or management of such works be unsatisfactory, the Minister may require the Trust to 
make, such alterations or improvements as may be deemed necessary or useful. The cost of 
such inspection to be defrayed by said Trust,* 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 
407—B 	 Committee 

FRIDAY, 28 JUNE, 7889.. 
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Committee divided. 

Mr: McMillan, . 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr: Gould, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Paull, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Garrett, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Teece. 
• • 

Ayes, 16. 
Tellers, 

Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Torpy. 

Noes, 27. 
Mr: Fletcher, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr: Ewing, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Crick, 	• 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 

Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Alfred Allen, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Hawke°, 
Mr. Abigail. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Lees. 

Insertion of words.proposed negatived. 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 

tater-way 
through land not 
to confer right to 
water on owner. 

No. S. 
Sat Bat. 

Clause 28. Under no circumstances shall the passage of water through the land of any owner 
confer on such owner any right, title or vested interest in such water. (Read.) 

Motion-made (Mr. Hateken) to add to end of clause the words "Provided that no action at law 
shall lie against the owner of any land for any using of water where the water may run 
through an open water-course." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be added be so added. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 6. 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Isms, 
Mr. Clubb. 

Mr. Hanlon, 
Mr. Ewing. 

Noes, 33. 
Mr. Dibbs, 
Mr. Fletcher, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Brusher, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Alfred Allen, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. McMillan, 

Mr. Pluinb, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. 'Frank Smith, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Slattery. 

Teller:, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. O'Sullivan. 

  

Addition of words proposed negatived. 
And the remaining clauses of the Bill having been considered,— 
On motion of Mr. J. P. Abbott, the Chairman left the Chair to report the Bill with amendments. 

Sydney : ,,harles Potter, Government Printer.-1989. 
[6d.] 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 7. 

WEEKLY REPORT OF DIVISIONS 
DT 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE. 

(EXTRACTED FROM THE MINUTES) 

TUESDAY, 2 JULY, 1889. 
No. 1. 

.CnowN LANns BILL. 
Clauee 32. After the expiration of any pastoral lease in the Eastern Division, granted under the Holder of ans-

Principal Act, the lands theretofore subject to any such lease " shall," without more, Matleirmea%ii,l1h: 
become and be dealt with as a resumed area ; and the Governor may, in pursuance of the to have pre-
eighty-first section of that Act, issue licenses to occupy the same, subject to all the con- oefereetinptaaht to 

ditions in the said seetien-eentainedreweept Act, and this Act contained relating thereto, "ce"se. 
provided that any appraisement of the license fee shall be made in accordance with this Act. 
The holder of any such expiring lease may not less than six months before its expiration apply 
for a license to occupy the Crown Lands theretofore held by him under such lease; and after 
expiration of the lease as aforesaid the same shall be granted tb him t provided, that at the 
time of making the application all arrears of the rent of such pastoral lease shall 
have been paid up, and within three months thereafter there shall have been be lodged 
with the Colonial Treasurer, as provisional license fee, a sum calculated at the same rate per 
section of six hundred and forty acres of the estimated area-as may be parable for the area 
originally resumed, if the applicant shall occupy the same, but if not, then at the rate of 
two pounds per section, and the said provisional license fee shall continue to be pay-
able until an appraisement shall have been made, and the license fee fixed there-
under duly notified ; after an appraisement of the license fee shall have been made the 
difference between the provisional license fee and the fee so appraised shall be paid to or 
'by the licensee in the prescribed manner, subject, in default of his paying any deficiency, 
to a forfeiture of the license. If application and payment of the provisional license fee 
shall not have been made as aforesaid, the right to occupy the said lands may be disposed 
of by auCtion or tender, and all Crown Lands not held under lease or license, and not 
reserved from lease .or license, shall -be open to annual lease in the prescribed 
manner, and the first applicant shall have a right to an annual lease of the land 
;applied for on payment of such rent as the Land Board shall determine, as provided 
by this Act, or the lands may be otherwise dealt with, under the provisions of the 
-Principal Act and this Act. -(Further considered.) 

Motion made (Hr. Copeland) to omit !routine 2 the word " shall" twith.a -view to insert the 
-words ." may, on the recommendation of the Local Land Board, the-  divided as near as 
practicable into two equal parts, and the Minister shall have power .to grant to the former 
lessee a lease for a further period of be years for -either but only one of such subdivided 
portions, the annual rent for which shall be re-appraised in the prescribed manner." 

437—A 	 Question 
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Question put,—That the word proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 41. 
Mr. Brunker, 	Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Bruce smith, 	Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Carruthers, 	Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Burns, 	 Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Chanter, 	 Mr. Hawke'', 
Mr. Perry, 	 Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Nicoll, 	 Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Gormly, 	 Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Torpy, 	 Mr. Stokes, 
Dr. Boss, 	 Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. W. E. Abbttl, 	Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Nobbs, 	 Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Dale, 	 Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Fuller, 	 Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Playfair, 	 Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Lees, 	 Mr. Hayes. 
Mr. McRae, 	 Tellers, Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Dowel, 	 Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Barnes, 	 Mr. Cruickshank. 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Edmunds, 

Noes, 25. 
Mr. h'Beckett, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. L. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Loseph Abbott, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Green, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Leo, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. Seaver. 
hi r, Crick, 
Mr. Wright. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Frank Fame]], 
Mr. Wall. 

Word stands. 
And the clause having been amended as indicated,— 

Clause, as amended, agreed to. 

On motion of Mr. Brunker'tlae Chairman left the Chair to report progress, and asked leave to 
sit again To-morrow. 

WEDNESDAY, 3 JULY, 1889, 

Homestead 
leases may com-
prise an area of 
20,460 acres. 

General pro-
visions as to 
homestead 
lenses. 

No. 2. 
Siorn BILL. 

Clause 33. After the commencement of this Act the area which may be granted and held under 
a homestead lease way shall not exceed " ten " thousand two hundred and forty acres, 
but shall not exceed twenty thousand four hundred and eighty acres, nor be less than sin 
hundred and forty acres ; and any applicant for or holder of a homestead lease, whether 
applied for before or after the commencement of this Act, may in virtue thereof obtain 
additional homestead leases adjoining the land comprised, in the original or any prior 
additional homestead lease, provided that the total area of such original and additionals 
shall not exceed the maximum area allowed by this section. And any original and additional 
homestead leases may for all purposes of residence and fencing be held to be one homestead 
lease ; but no additional homestead lease shall be transferred apart from the original or vice 
versa unless and until the prescribed condition of residence has been fulfilled. Nothing in 
this, or the Principal Act shall prevent any homestead lease being transferred by way of 
mortgage or security, at the risk of the transferee, before the expiration of the prescribed 
term of residence subject to the conditions of the lease being fulfilled by the original appli-
cant therefor. The provisions of section one hundred and twenty-five of the Principal Act 
shall be held to extend to homestead leases : and notwithstanding anything in that Act, 
notice by an applicant of his non-acceptance of any homestead lease, applied for before or 
after the commencement of this Act, shall not entitle him to a refund of deposit, unless, in 
the opinion of the Minister, the land approved to be leased differs materially in form or 
situation from that applied for ; and if the applicant shall have occupied or made use of any 
land by virtue of his application, the Minister may refuse to accept any such notice of non-
acceptance: Provided that the acceptance by the Minister of any such notice shall take 
effect on the expiration of seven days after notification in the Gazette. Nothing in the 
Principal Act shall be held to prevent the Local Land Board from granting an exemption 
from fencing any natural or other boundary of land held under homestead lease. The lease 
may be surrendered on giving the Minister not less than twelve months notice ; and if ally 
rent due thereon be not paid within the prescribed time, or if any condition attaching thereto 
be not fulfilled, any homestead lease shall be liable to forfeiture ; and forfeiture shall take 
effect thirty days after notification thereof in the Gazette. And on any determination of 
any homestead lease, the land comprised therein may be leased as a homestead lease by 
auction or tender, or otherwise disposed of, in accordance with the provisions of the Principal 
and this Act. The holder of a homestead lease shall, after the commencement of this Act, 
reside continuously thereon for six months of each year of the prescribed term of residence, 
and shall, prior to the date of commencement of residence during any year, notify the Local 
Land Board to that effect ; and such notice shall specify the date from which he intends to 
reside. (Further considered). 

Question 
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Question again proposed, on motion of Mr. J. P. Abbott, to omit from line 2 the word "may," 
with a view to insert the words "shall not." 

Question put,—That the word proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 31. 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Playf 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Thompson, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Dalton, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Scobie, 

Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Cells, 
Mr. 0. O. Hangar. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Kidd. 

Noes, 45. 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Hibbs, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. FitzGerald, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. McCeurt, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. T. G. Dangar, 
Mr. It. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Ring, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Dawson, 

Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. a'Beckett, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Sec, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. Street, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Fletcher, 
Mr. John Wilkinson. 

2'ellers, 
Mr. ;Toseph Abbott, 
Mr. Dickens. 

Word omitted. 
And the words proposed to be inserted having been inserted in place of the word omitted,— 

No. 3. 
Same clause. 

Motion made (Hr. La7:entan) to omit from line 2 the word "ten," with a view to insert the 
word "fifteen." 

Question put,—That the word proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 44. 	 Noes, 31. 
Mr. Hibbs, Mr. W. E. Abbott, Sir Henry Parkas, Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Wright, Mr. Plumb, Mr. Crick, Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Chanter, Mr. Davis, Mr. McMillan, Mr. Lakemau, 
Mr. Lamb, Mr. Greene, Mr. Drunker, Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, Mr. Clarke, Mr. Gould, Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Lyne, Mr. Joseph Abbott, Mr. O'Sullivan, Mr. Hutchison 
Mr. Nicoll, Mr. Wyman Brown, Mr. Playfair, (Canterbury), 
Mr. John Wilkinson, Mr. See, Mr. Mitchell, Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Fletcher, Mr. Holborow, Mr. Cruickshank, Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. Burns, Mr. Dawson, Mr. Wall, Mr. Traill. 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mx. FitzGerald, 

Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. McCourt, 

Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, Tellers, 

Mr. Copeland, Mr. Dickens, Mr. Thompson, Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Street, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Creer, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. B owman, 
Mr. Perry, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Turner, 

Mr. Ball, 
Mr. id Beckett, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Xing, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Morton. 

Tellers, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Dalton, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. 'ferny, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Dowel, 

Mr. Haynes. 

Word stands. 

No. 4. 

Same clause. 

And the Question having been proposed, on motion of Mr. Brunker,—That the Chairman leave 
- 	the Chair, and ask leave to sit again at a later hour of the day,— 
Motion made (Mr. Lee),—" That the Question be now put." 

Question 
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lands. 
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Question put,—That the Question be now put. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 47. 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr:Cruickshank, 
MT. Nicoll, 
Mr. John Wilkinson, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. FitzGerald, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr, See, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Tem°, 

Mr. Dalton, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Ba 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Martin, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Morton. 

• 	
Tellers. 

Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger. 

Noes, 25. 
Mr. Copland, 	 Tller Mr. W. E. Abbott, 	 e 	I.  
Mr. Wright, 	 Mr. Thompson, 
Mr. Slattery, 	Mr. Lakeman. 
Mr. Dibbs, 
Xr. Copeland, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Crick, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Trail, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Hawken. 

And it appearing by the tellers' lists that the majority in favour of the motion consisted of "at 
least forty Members,"— 

Question agreed to. 
Question,—That the Chairman leave the Chair, and ask leave to sit again at a later hour of the 

day,—put and agreed to. 

THURSDAY, 4 JULY, 1889. 
No. 5. 

SAME BILL. 
Clause 35. The Minister may, upon the recommendation of the Local Land Board, lease by 

auction any Crown Lands not being under pastoral or conditional lease, which may be 
usually covered with snow for a part of each year and unfit for continuous use or occupa-
tion. Such land shall be leased in areas of not less than one thousand two hundred and 
eighty or more than ten thousand two hundred and forty acres, and during the currency of 
the lease shall be exempt from sale or other lease under the provisions of the Principal Act 
or this Act. Every such lease shall commence from the day of sale, and shall withdraw the 
land from any annual lease or license under which it may be held, and rent therefor shall 
be paid annually in advance not later than the last day of each year of the lease, subject in 
default to forfeiture, by notice in the Gazette. The prescribed fee for the survey of the 
hind and the fast year's rent shall be paid by the purchaser at the time of sale, and upon 
default the lease may there and then be reoffered for sale. The lease shall have a term of 
seven years, and at the expiration thereof the lessee shall have a right of rtension for a 
term of three years, subject to the payment of such annual rental as may be determined in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act, not being less than the annual rental of the 
preceding term, provided that he shall have notified to the Minister at least twelve months 
prior to the expiration of such term his intention of claiming such extension ; and the 
Minister may determine any such lease, by giving the lessee notice to that effect not later 
than one year prior to the date on which the term shall expire. Provided further that not 
more than " two " of any such leases shall be held by, or in the interest of, one person. 
(Read.) 

Motion made (w. Dawson)to omit from the last line of the clause the word "two," with a view 
to insert the word "one." 

Question put,—That the word proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 30. 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Germly, 
Mr. lakeman, 
Mr. Teem, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Chinon, 
Mr. Lync, 

Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. FitzGerald, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. 0.0. Danger, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Dale. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Hamill. 

Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Davis, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. King. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Dawson, 
MT. Lea. 

Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Word stands. No. 6. 

Noes, 12. 
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No. 6. 
Same clause. 

Motion made (Mr. Lakenutii) to add to the end of the clause the words " Provided nevertheless 
that the present holders of pastoral leases in such snow lands shall have a -referent right 
of a snow lease of the whole of his present pastoral leasehold laud, if applied for within 
six months." 

Question put,—The words proposed to be added to the clause be so added. 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 9. 	 Noes, 30. 

 

Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Fit zGereld, 
Mr. Dibbs, 
Mr. Bruce Smith,, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Frank Parnell, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Ball, 

Mr. Tecce, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Perry, 	' 
Mr. Torpy, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Willis; 
Sir Henry Parke; 
Mr. Dawson. 

Tellers, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Cullen. 

Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Hassell. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Lakeman. 

  

No by 

Addition of words proposed negatived. 
Clause, as read, agreed to. 

SAME BILL. 
• Clause 42. The Minister may direct the survey of the boundaries or portions of the boundaries 

of any land held under applied for as a pastoral lease " ereesupatien lieenee," and upon such 
survey being made, may demand from the lessee or licensee, towards defraying the cost of 
such survey, payment of any sum not exceeding twenty shillings for each linear mile of the 
boundaries or portion of the boundaries so surveyed; or, if such survey be made at the 
request of the lessee -or licensee, may demand froth the lessee or licensee the whole or any 
part of the cost thereof; and in default of payment of such sum within sixty days after 
notification of the demand in the Gazette, such lessee or licensee shall become liable to the 
same penalties as attach to non-payment of his rent or license fee. And if at any inquiry 
or proceeding before a Local Land Board concerning any application to purchase or lease 
Crown Lauds, any question or dispute shall arise as to the extent or boundary or boundaries 
of any land comprised in any lease or license, it shall be competent for such Board thereupon 
to inquire into the matter and recommend for the approval of the Minister (subject to 
appeal) any adjustment of such boundary or boundaries which may appear reasonable ; or 
such adjustment of boundaries may, subject to the ultimate approval of the Minister, be 
determined by agreement between the parties ; and for this purpose, the description of any 
land applied for as aforesaid may be modified to conform with the boundary or boundaries 
so determined ; and any such boundary or boundaries approved by the Minister as aforesaid 
shall, for the purposes of the Principal Act or this Act or of any repealed Act, be held to 
be the boundary or boundaries of such pastoral lease or occupation license or other lands 
applied for. And the Minister may refer to the Local Laud Board for inquiry any question, 
or dispute, which may have arisen, or may arise, in respect of the boundaries of any laud 
held under lease or license, and the Board shall in due course deal therewith ; provided that 
in any ease the Board may make such order as it may deem fit touching the cost of such 
inquiry, and of any survey which may be deemed necessary, which shall be borne by such 
persons and in such proportions as the Board may direct. (Read.) 

Motion made (Mr. .4.1ison) to omit from line 2 the words " or occupation license." 
Question put, —That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Surrey of lease-
hold and 
resumed area 
and settlement 
of disputed boon-
darks. 

Ayes, 20. 	 Noes, 21. 
Sir Henry Parkes, Mr. Teeee, 	 Mr. Dickens, Mr. Mackinnon, 
Mr. O'Connor, Mr. Stevenson, Mr. O'Sullivan, Mr. Ring, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, Mr. Cullen, Mr. FitzGerald, Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Brunker, Mr. Ball, Mr. Ali son, Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Frank Parnell, Mr. Morton, Mr. Crick, Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Perry, Mr. McMillan, Mr. Cruickshank, Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Gould, 	• 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Air. Willis, 
Mr. Torpy, 

Mr. Carruthers. 
Tellers, 

Mr. Lokemen, 

Mr. A'Beckett, 
Mr. Gormlv, 
Mr. H. B. -Wilkinson, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 

Mr. Dawson. 
Tellers, 

Mr. Turner, 
Mr, Chanter, Mr. Haynes. Mr. Greene, 

Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Hassell. 

Words omitted. 

437—B 
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No. 8. 
Same clause. 

Question put,—That the clause as amended stand 
Committee divided. 

lyes,16. 
Mr. Dawson, 	Mr.,FitzGerald. 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 	Tellers, Mr. Di2rens, 
Mr. WBeekett, 	Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Greene, 	 Mr. Cruickshank. 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Xing, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr..Mackinnon, 
Mr—Davis, 
Mr. 0. O. Danger, 
Mr. Hassell, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 

part of the Bill. 

Noes, 23. 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Bninker, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Hobbs, 
Mr. Haynes, 

Mr. Ball, 
-Mr. Stevenson, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Teecc, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 

Tellers, 
Mr. Frank Fermi!, 
Mr. Lee. 

Clause, as amended, negatived. 
Orn motion of Mr. Brinker, the Chairman loft the Chair to report progress, and ask leave to sit 

again an .Tuesday next. 

Sydnoy;Charles Potter, Goverment Printer:448M. 
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IN 
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(EXTRACTED FROM THE MINUTES) 

TUESDAY, 9 JULY, 1889. 
NO. 1. 

CHURCH AND SCHOOL BMWS MINING BILL. 

(Consideration of Legislative Council's Amendments.) 
Clause 6, Nothing in this Act contained shall be taken to remove 

of the Church and School Lands in respect of mining out of 
Public Instruction. (Considcreo.) 

Motion made (Mr. Carrothers) that the Committee disagree with the 
amendment inserting new Clause 6. 

Motion made (Mr. .Uric/c) that the Chairman leave the Chair, report pro 
sit again this day six months,—and question put. 

Committee divided. 

the administration nguovil.t2:  
the Department of 'totter this Act. 

Legislative Council's 

gress, and ask leave to 

Noes, •1. Ayes, 3. 
Mr. Toohey. 

Teller:, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Crick. 

Negatived. 
458—  

Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Fletcher, 
Mr. Lyne, • 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Traill, • 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Goodchap, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. AI °Court, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. KM, • 
Mr. 0.0. Hangar, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Torpy, 

Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Doris, 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbm;c), 
Mr. Wilshire, 

Scohic, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Greer, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen Issues), 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. H. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Mayfair, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. J. 3?. Abbott, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Hurley. 

Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Hassall. 

And 
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And the Legislative Council's Amendment inserting new Clause 6 having been disagreed to,— 
On motion of Mr. Carruthers the Chairman left the Chair to report that the Committee had 

disagreed to one and agreed to the remainder of the Council Amendments. 

Prohibition of 
indecent and 
obscene matter 
in reports, Au. 

FRIDAY, 12 JULY, 1889. 
No. 2. 

PUBLICATION OF OBSCENE EVIDENCE PREVENTION BILL. 	 - 
Clause 2, The Judge or person or persons presiding at or holding any Court may shall make an 

order forbidding the "publication" of any details or matter, being in his opinion of all 
• indecent or obscene character, given in evidence, or arising in any way in the course 

proceedings in or before such Court. 
(I) Every such order shall be made by such Judge, person, or persons, in open Court, 

and may shall be so made either in writing sr-verbally, and may be in the nature of 
a general or particular prohibition and shall" forthwith be stated by the Judge 
or person or persons presiding. 

(ii) A Court for the purposes of this enactment includes the Supreme and every 
Circuit Court, every District Court, and Court of Quarter or Petty Sessions, 
presided over by any Police or Stipendiary Magistrate, and in whatsoever 
jurisdiction such Court may be sitting, and-wItether-euelt-Getrut-(i f a Court of-Petty 
Sessiene)-eltall-lte-held-by-er-befere-twe-e• r-mere-Snetiieea-ef-the Pcecere*-eabefere 
any-Police or Stipendiary-Megietsatei and also includes every Coroners' Court awl-
every Juotico of tho Peace nitting or-holding on Inquiry pumuont t  the pr  visions-el' 

o  of tli flee 
(in) "Publication" for the purposes of this Act means publication in any newspaper, 

book, pamphlet, periodical, news sheet, placard, or by any other method whatso-
ever by means of which news or other matter may be published, advertised, or 

publicly made known. (Read) 
.The clause having been amended as indicated in line 1. 
Motion made (lb% Frank Smith) to insert after the word " publication" in lino 2, the words "in 

any newspaper published in Now South Wales." 
Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 16. 	 Noes, 81. 
Mr. O'Connor, 	 Sir Henry Parkes, 	Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Nicoll, 	 Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Willis, 	 Mr. Fletcher, Mr. Se 
Mr. Nobbs, 	 Mr. Harold Stephen, 	Mr. Dawson, 

son,  

Mr. Torpy, 	 Mr. Brunker, 	Mr. Lee,  
Mr. Edmunds, 	 Mr. Alexander Brown, Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Chapman, 	 Mr. Garrett, 	Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Cass, 	 Mr. Ferguson, 	Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Hawken, 	 Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 	Mr. Chanter, 

M Mr. Cooke, 	 r. Dowel,  Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Scobie, 	 Mr. Garrard,  Mr. Howe. 

Mr. Dickens, 	 Tellers, Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Lees, Mr. MeCourt, 

Mr. Seaver. 	 Mr. Hawthorne, 	Mr. Turner, 
Tellers, 	 Mr. Clubb, 	 Mr. Hurley. 

Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 	 Mr. Dalton, 
Mr. Stevenson. 	 Mr. Waddell, 

Insertion of words proposed, negatived. 
And the clause having been further amended as indicated,— 
Cl ause, as amended, agreed to. 

Penalty on 
disobedience of 
order forbidding 
publication of 
indecent matter, 
Sic. 

No. 3. 
SAME BILL. 

C]ausc 3. If, in disobedience to, or violation of, any such order, any person shall publish, or aid or 
assist in the publication of, any details or matter forbidden by such order to be published, 
every such person shall, where the order disobeyed or violated shall be made by a Judge 
of the Supreme Court or a Circuit Court, be deemed guilty of contempt of Court and be 
punishable accordingly ; and where the order disobeyed or violated shall be made by a 
District Court Judge, or Chairman of Quarter Sessions, or by a Police or Stipendiary 
Magistrate, or a Coroner, er-by-one-es-more Justiees-ef-the-Pease ;  every such person shall be 
liable to be fined or imprisoned, or to be both fined and imprisoned, provided that in 310 
case shall the fine exceed ene-hentlsed twenty-five pounds, or the imprisonment et* one 
menthe month. (Read) 

The Clause having been amended as indicated,— 
Motion made (Mr. Stevenson) to omit the last word "months" with a view to insert the word 

"week." 
Question put,—That the word proposed to be omitted stand part of the Clause. 

Committee 



Noes 25, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Fletcher, 
Mr. Trail], 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. O'Connor, 

Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Edmund; 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Dawson. 

Teller:, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Morton, 

be inserted in place of the word omitted. 

Noes, 12. 
Mr. O'Connor, 	 Tellers, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 	Afri  
Mr. Cooke, Mr. Hawke n.  Stevenson, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Edmunds. 
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Committtee divided. 
Ayes, 16. 

Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Sir Henry Parke; 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Lees, 

• Mr. Perry, 
Word omitted. 

Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Wilshire. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Dickens. 

Noes 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Trail!, 
Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. MeCoart, 
Mr. Cobb, 

Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Bowman. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Hawken. 

No. 4. 
(Same clause.) 

Question put,—That the word "week," proposed to be inserted, be so inserted. 
Committee divided.. 

Ayes, 17. 	 Noes, 17. 
Mr. Trail, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr.Willis,1 

Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Chapman, 

Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Han ken, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Garvan. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Cobb, 
Mr. McCourt. 

Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Ur. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Gerrard, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. See, 

Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Turner, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Chanter. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Lees. 

The numbers being equal, the Chairman gave his casting vote with the Noes, and declared the 
question to have passed in the negative. 

Insertion of word proposed, negatived. 
Motion made (Mr. Alexander Brown) that the word " mouth " be inserted in place of the word 

omitted. 

And the Committee continuing to sit after Midnight,— 

SATURDAY, 13 JULY, 1889. 
No. 5. 

(Same clause.) 
Motion made (Mr. liatoken),—That the Chairman do now leave the 

—and question put. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 3. 
Mr. Cooke. 

Tellers, 
Mx. Stevenson, 
Mr. Hawken. 

Negatived. 
No. 6. 

(Same clause.) 

Chair and report progress, 

Question put,—That the word " month " 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 17. 
Mr. Drunker, 	Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Chanter, 	Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Molesworth, 	Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Wilshire. 
Mr. Slattery, Tellers, Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Fletcher, 	Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Traill, 	 Mr. Dickens. 
Mr. Clubb, 

Word inserted. 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
On motion of Mr. Alexander Brown, the Chairman left the Chair to report the Bill with amend. 

plants and with an amended Title. 

Sydney: Charles Potter, Government Printer..-1889 
[3d. ] 
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LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 9. 

WEEKLY REPORT OF DIVISIONS 
IN 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE. 
(EXTRACTED FROM THE MINUTES) 

No. 1. 
Cnows LANDS BILL. 

Clause 43. Upon The-enpiratiou rellierwiae-thandainforfeiture ensurrender application being made incomin g  
in the prescribed manner by the holder of any homestead lease or of any pastoral kou'retolnIyaY 
lease (64er-than a pastorallease-in-thealastem-D4isien) rand-after a 2eletting-ef-4140-land-e4'-any tenant 14r int. 
part thereef4y-pastaral-leitee-the-mittaing-tenant-shall be-entitle€1-4-e1aim-eompeneation hem-the Fovea" "W.  
inecimine-tenant-fer-any-ilurable-water-improvinnents-situatecl-thereentiet-lieing  the  proporty of 
4he-Gren4)-whiehrin414e-opittimi-of-t4e4linisterrafter -Iere4-aad-4etac40iDa4i€41-13y—the—Lan4 
Berinalrlitiv-e-been 	incide-hena-fide-and-ase-iteeeetiary fer-the-benefietal-tina-and-eempatien-ef-the 
land.  The Land-Ben41-(oubjeet  to  appeal)-shall appraise  the -value  of the impriw-ements-te-the  
incoming  tenantrand-sliall-sletormine-whether the amount-shall be paid-in-one-stun or  by in-tal 
melds, and the-am  unto-ef-the-several instalments, end the-perietl-wi41ita-v4tieli-ary am-n or 
Matalinent-shall-he-paishi-1444-ilefault-ef-any-payment  the  remedy-6f the-entgeing-tenent-sinill 
he against the-ineeming-tenant, and not anain.A  the Crown; and -no claim  shall he-against-the 
Crews-for-the 	reanwithrdestimotienrer-deferieration  of any-inipreementsrpendingrer-befererer 
after, relating  ef the-landrainfrsatne se detertnined  to be  due-1r014-an-inneining-tedm-entgeing 
tenant chall-eonstitute  a eliarcie-npen-the-pastoral lease-lease 	firct after  any  stone-due-to-the 
Crown for rent 	 tetherwiserancelditiy-pitsclia6e)  	lease shalhbe-lienini-to-imittire-ao  to the 
existence  of any--sueli-eitargei-P-revdcled-that-no-eneh-leseee-ohall ransler-any  eireumstanees 
whateverj-lia*e--any-elaitta-agaiitst--the--Gsowit-in-respeet  of  4.116-3.1eltie  of any-improveniente: 
in the " Central or" Western Division for an extension of such lease, the Land Extension of 
Board shall hold an inquiry as to all permanent improvements existing upon the pastoral  
land held thereunder, exclusive of all improvements forfeited or belonging -to the n  

tl and E   

141:ee  Crown: Provided that such application shall be lodged within ninety days prior 
to the last twelve menthe two years of the current lease, and shall be accompanied by 
a deposit of twenty pounds, to cover the expenses of dealing therewith. The Board 
shall find and report- 

(i) The value of such improvements. 
(ii) Whether or not they have been made bona fide and with intent to increase 

the carrying capacity, benefit, or profit of the land for pastoral purposes. 
(iii) Whether or not the land has been materially benefited thereby. 
(iv) Whether or not, in consideration of such improvements, an extension of 

the term of the lease should be granted. 
The Board shall thereupon make a recommendation to the Minister, who may 
either accept the same or refer it to the Land Court. The procedure in connection 
with any such reference shall, mutatus mutandis, be the same as that prescribed 
by section six of this Act in connection with appraisements. The Land Court 
may, on any appeal or reference in the premises, sustain, vary, or reverse any 
finding or recommendation of the Board, and its final or ultimate recommendation 
shall be carried into effect by the Minister. No extension for more than five 
years shall be recommended or granted of any pastoral lease in the Central 
Division, or for more than seven years of a homestead'or pastoral lease in the 
Western Division ; and nothing in this or the Principal Act shall be construed 

480-A 	 tu 

TUESDAY, 16 JULY, 1889. 
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to permit any second, further, or other extension than is provided in this section. 
The lease shall, during any such extended term, be held upon the same conditions, 
and at the same rate of rental as prior to the extension ; and pending notice 
in the " Gazette " either of approval or refusal of any extension the previous 
lease shall be held to continue. Upon the expiration (by effluxion of time or 
otherwise) of the term or extended term of any homestead lease, or of any 
pastoral lease in the Central or Western Division, all improvements on the 
land theretofore held under such lease, whether made before or after the 
commencement of the Principal Act, shall become the property of the Crown, 
and no compensation shall be payable therefor to the outgoing lessee. Upon 
the expiration of the term, or extended term, of any pastoral lease, the 
lands comprised thereunder may be offered by auction or tender under occu-
pation license, or otherwise dealt with as vacant lands. Lands held under 
any such pastoral lease, which may have been or which may be forfeited or 
surrendered, may be relet under pastoral lease, by auction or tender, for the 
unexpired portion of the forfeited or surrendered term, upon such conditions as 
to periods of appraisement of rent or otherwise as may be determined by the 
Minister, or may be offered by auction. or tender under occupation license, or 
otherwise dealt with as vacant lands ; but no pastoral or homestead lessee whose 
lease shall, after the commencement of this Act, have been forfeited or surren-
dered shall be competent to hold any pastoral or homestead lease or occupation 
license, or any under-lease or other interest in or under any such lease or license 
of any of the lands comprised in the said forfeited or surrendered lease ; and 
any lease, under-lease, transfer, assignment, contract, trust, or dealing made in 
contravention hereof shall be void and of no effect at law or in equity, and 
shall render the pastoral or homestead lease liable to forfeiture. After forfeiture 
or surrender of any pastoral lease as aforesaid the -lands shall not be deemed to 
be vacant lands, and shall not be available as such until after notification in 
the " Gazette" that the same may be so dealt with. ( Further considered.) 

The clause having been amended as indicated, and the words shown in black letter having been 
proposed to be inserted in place of the words omitted after the word "lease" in line 3, — 

Question again proposed,—on motion of Mr. Barbour that the words "central or " in line 19 be 
omitted,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the proposed amendment. 

And the Committee continuing to sit after Midnight.,— 

WEDNESDAY, 17 JULY, 1589, am. 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the proposed amendment. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 48. 	 Noes, 20. 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Ferguson, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Leo, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Willis, 

Words stand. 

Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. l'Beckett, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Ring, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Bowman. 

Tenets, 

Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Turner. 

Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Sehev, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Iraill,• 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Tellers, 
Mr. John Wilkinson, 
Mr. Dowel. 

And the words proposed to be inserted having been amended as indicated, and inserted in the 
clause,— 

No. 2. 
(Same clause.) 

Motion made (AH. Harold Stephen) to add to the words just inserted the following words :— 
" Provided always that no such extension of lease shall be granted unless the Minister is 
satisfied that the land is not required for settlement,"—and question put. Committee 
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Committee divided. 
Ayes, 29. 

Dr: ROES, 
Mr. '12mi II, 
Mr. John Wilkinson, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Schey, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Cooke. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Dowel. 

Addition of words proposed negatived. 

Noes, 42. 
Mr. Willis, 	 Mr. Hutehison 
Mr. Crick, 	 (Canterbury), 
Mr. Mitchell, 	Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Davis, 	 Mr. Teeee, 
Mr. Brunkcr, 	Mr. Baynes, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 	Mr. T. G, Bangs; 
Mr. Alison, 	 Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Morton, 	' 	Mr. 11. H. Brown, 
Mr. Black, 	 Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. illBeekett, 
Mr. Waddell, 	Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. 0.0. Danger, 	Mr. Burdokin, 
Mr. Ferguson, 	Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Turner 	 Mr. King. 
Mr. Dale, Tellers, Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Holborow, 	Mr. Innib, 
Mr. Bowman; 	Mr. Molosworth. 
Mr. Hawken, 

No. 3. 
(Same clause.) 

Motion made (Mr. O'Sullivan) to add to the words just inserted the following words :—" Not-
withstanding anything contained in this or the Principal Act, no extension of lease shall be 
granted for more than half the leasehold area in the Central Division,"—and question put, 

"Committee divided. 
Ayes, 16. • 	 Noes, 40. 

Mr. Chanter, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Sehey, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Perry. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Dowel. 

Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Brunlcer, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Ring, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Ferguson, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Gould, 

Mr. h'Beckett, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. II. 11. Brown, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Tecee, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Holborow. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Dickens. 

  

Addition of words proposed negatived. 

No. 4. 
(Same clause.) 

Motion made (Mr Chanter) to add to the words just inserted the following words :—"Provided 
that nothing in this clause shall apply to any lands south of the Lachlan River,"—and 
question put. 

Committee divided. 
Ayes, 19. 

Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Herold Stephen, 
Mr. Salley, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Trail]. 

Tellers, 

Mr. Perry, 
Mr. WBeckett. 

Noes, 37. 
Mr. Dickens, 	Mr. Hutchison 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	 (Canterbury), 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Teece, 
Mr. King, 	 Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Davis, 	 Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Brooker, 	Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Ferguson, 	Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Dale, 	 Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Ritchie, 	 Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Lamb, 	 Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. Alison; 
Mr. Cass, 	 Mr. Black, 
Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Crick, 	 Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Waddell, 	Mr. Cullen. 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 	Tellers, Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Bowman, 	Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Ball, 	 Mr. 0. 0. Danger. 

Addition of words proposed negatived. 	 No. 
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Protection of 
artesian wells. 

4 

No. 5. 
(Same clause.) 

.Question put,—That the clause as amended stand clause 43 of the Bill. 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 37. 

Mr. Brunker, 	Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Ball, • 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Black, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. -Waddell, 
Mr. Bruce Smitb, 	Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Carruthers, 	Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Lamb, 	 Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. h'Beekett, 	Mr. 0. 0. Dangar, 
Mr. Ferguson, 	Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 	Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Wilshire, 	Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Hutchison 	Mr. Haynes, 

(Canterinow), 	Mr. King, 
Mr. Davis, 	 Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Dale, 	 Mr. Alison. 
Mr. Ritchie, 	 Tellers, Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Turner, 	 Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Teece, 	 Mr. Molesworth. 

Mr. Trail), 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. 301103, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Germly, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Dr. Ross. 

Noes, 19. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Schey, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Clause, as amended, agreed to. 

On motion of Mr. l3runker, the Chairman left the Chair to report progress and ask leave to sit 
again to.morrow. 

IKEDNES.DA.Y, 17 JULY, 1889. 

No. C. 

CROWN LANDS BIM 
Clause 45. Upon application in the prescribed manner (accompanied by a deposit of ten pounds 

to cover the expenses in dealing therewith) for permission to bore and search for water in 
any land in the Western Division, held by the applicant under occupation license or annual 
lease, the Land-Bean:1 Minister may, by notice in the gazette and some paper circulating 
in the district, set apart each an area not exceeding five thousand seven hundred and 
sixty acres in one block on the resumed area as-the-Beetal-may-eensider rcasenable-fer-the 
pmposes-ef-the-applieatien, Upon publication of such notice the land therein described shall 
be held to be temporarily exempt from sale or lease under this or the principal Act to 
other than the applicant, but shall not be withdrawn from the occupation Ecense or annual 
lease ; and within twenty-eight days after such notice the applicant shall commence to bore 
and search for water, and shall forward to the Chairman of the Land Board by registered 
letter notice verified by statutory declaration of his having done so; and the work of boring 
and searching as aforesaid shall be " continued" until water be found, or until it appear to 
the Land-Beard Minister that the work cannot be pursued with reasonable hope of success 
or profit. Within fourteen days after the discovery of water, the licensee or lessee shall, 
by registered letter, notify the fact to the arid Chairman of the Local Land Board, 
and the said licensee or lessee shall, on approval by the Governor, become entitled to a 
lease for such a term, not exceeding tweety,eae-yeararand-ef-eneh-an-rarearand-frem-seeli 
a-Elate-as-shall be apprceeedrnet-  exceeding the--propertien of five--iteres--te-eaeh-one--peund-ef 
enpence, irbieh-the-Beard-shall-be catiatierits-been--inaurreel-in  boring and-searehing--eperatiene 
the unexpired term of the current pastoral lease ; and the rental of such area shall be at 
the rate then payable upon the laud held under such occupation license or annual lease. If the 
applicant shall fail to forward any prescribed notice, or if the Beard Minister shall consider 
that the application has not been made bonti fide, or that reasonable efforts have not been 
or are not being made to discover water, or that any water discovered is not sufficiently 
permanent, or that the quantity is not sufficiently great, °Hell Beard he may withdraw the 
notice aforesaid, or the Governor may cancel the lease, and upon publication in the Gazelle 
and any paper cirCulating in the district, of notice of such withdrawal, or cancellation, the 
temporary exemption from sale or lease of such land, and the lease thereof, shall be held to 

. be annulled. (Read.) 
' The Clause having been amended as indicated in lines 4 to 7,— 

Motion made (Al?. Tonkin) to insert after the word "continued," in line 13, the words "with 
the expedition necessary to the satisfaction of the Minister,"—and question put. 

Committee 
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- 	Noes, 61. 
Sir Henry Parkes, 	Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Graham, 	Mr. Garrett, 
Mr. Gould, 	 .Mr. Burns, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 	Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Drunker, 	Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Dickens, 	Mr. Hutchison 
Mr. Gorrnly, 	 (Canterinery), 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Copland, 	. 	Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Lakeman, 	Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 	Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Hawken, 	Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Garvan, 	 Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Henry Clarke, 	Mr. Ring, 
Dr. Ross, 	 Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Barnes, 	 Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Nobbs, 	 Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Perry, 	 Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Jones, 	 Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 	Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 	Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Ryrie, 	 Mr. recce, 
Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Hassan, 	 Mr. Sohn Wilkinson, 
Mr. Ferguson, 	Mr. H. H. Brown. 
Mr. Carruthers, . 	Tellers, Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Rogan, 	 Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Wall, 	 Mr. Alison. 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 2. 
Tellers, 

Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Tonkin. 

Insertion of words proposed, negatived. 
And the clause having been further amended as indicated,— 

No. 7 . 
(Same clause.) 

Question ,put,—That this clause as amended stand clause 45 of the Bill. 

Committee divided. 

Ayes 41. 	 Noes 14. 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Garrett, 
Mr. Graham, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Ferguson, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterlessry), 
Mr. Nobbs, • 
Mr. Playful; 
Mr. Davis, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Gould, 	. 

Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Wart, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Dalton, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Tecce

i  Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. King. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Hassell. 

Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Dawn, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Gann. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Clause, as amended, agreed to. 

No. S. 
San BILL. 

Clause 46. It shall be lawful for the Governor to accept from the holder of any pastoral lease Surrender and 
 of a surrender of any portion of laud which may be situated within the pasteval-heldS lease- itne. 

hold or resumed area, and of which he holds a grant, or is entitled to demand a grant, 
and to assure to him, by way of exchange for the land so surrendered, an equal area within 
the leasehold " area." After the acceptance of such surrender, the land shall, upon 
proclamation in the Gazette, and not before, become Crown laud for the purposes of the 
Principal Act or of this Act, and any improvements thereon shall, notwithstanding the 
surrender, remain the property of the surrenderor, and thereafter be dealt with and treated 
as if they were improvements made with the permission of the Local Land Board upon 
such Crown lands. The lessee shall pay all costs and fees incurred in respect of the 
surrender and exchange of such land. Provided that, if the land applied for by way of 

exchange 
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exchange is measured land, and is, in the aggregate, less than forty acres in excess of the 
land surrendered, such excess area may be granted to the lessee, at a price to be 
determined in accordance with section six of this Act. And the Governor may acquire, 
for the purpose of access or approaches to any natural water, tank, or dam, or for a road, or 
travelling stock route, or camping reserve, or watering-place, or for any like purpose, any 
land of any tenure, either by way of purchase or by granting in fee shnple, or for any less 
estate, any Crown land of equal value in exchange for such land. And any land so acquired 
shall thereupon be deemed to be reserved from sale and lease, and may, on revocation of the 
reserve, be dealt with, in accordance with the Principal or this Act. The Local Land Bogrd 
shall inquire into and report upon any application or proposal for the exchange or purchase 
of any land under the provisions of this section, and the value of any land acquired or 
granted thereunder shall be determined in accordance with section six of this Act. And the 
Governor may make all grants of lands exchanged for the purposes of this section. (Read.) 

The clause having been amended as indicated in lines 2 and 3,— 

Motion made (Mr. W. E. Abbott) to insert after the word " area " in line 5 the words "and the 
land so surrendered or exchanged shall be measured in connection with other lands held by 
the same owner, in accordance with the survey regulations in force in reference to 
conditional purchases or conditional leases, in so far as the same can be made applicable 
thereto." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 15. 	 Nees, 47, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Dalton, 	• 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Sophie. 

Tellers, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. O'Sullivan. 

Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Hassell, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Garrett, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Gnu, 
Mr. Dibbs, 
Mr. Lee, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Henry Clarke, 
Mr. Lyne, 

Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. King, • 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Hawker', 
Mr. Tone, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Ferguson, 
Mr. Chanter. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Olubb, 
Mr. Haynes. 

  

Insertion of words proposed negatived. 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
On motion of Mr. Brunker, the Chairman left the Chair to report progress, and ask leave to sit 

again To-morrow. 

THURSDAY; 18 Ira Y, 1889. 

Residential 
' lease may be 

granted to 
holder of 
miner's right 
or mineral 
license. 

No. 9. 
CROWN LANDS Bum. 

Mr. Brunker brought up new clause, to follow Clause 48,— 
It shall be lawful for the Goternor, on the recommendation of the Warden of 

any Gold-field, to grant leases for periods not exceeding fifteen years'of areas 
not exceeding "ten" acres of Crown Land within gold and mineral fields to 
any holder of a miner's right or mineral license for the purpose for bona fide 
residence upon such terms and conditions as to rent, cost of survey, term of 
lease, erection of fences and buildings, and upon such other provisions for the 
protection of the public interest as may be prescribed. (Read.) 

Motion made (Mr. Willis) to omit the word "ten," line 3, and insert the word "twenty." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee 



Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Henry Clarke, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Dalton, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Teems, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Ur. King, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mn. Garvan, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Wright. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Levies], 
Mr. Haynes. 

Noes, 3. 
Mr. Edmunds. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Crick. - 

51 :5 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 69. 
Mr. McMillan, 

- Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Garrett, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr, Alison, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Lyric, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Hutchinson 

(Glen limes), 
• 

Word stands. 
Clause, as read, agreed to. 

7 

No. 10. 
SAME BIM 

Mr. Barbour brought up new Clause,— 
No person occupying land under a conditional purchase or conditional or home- NO action fcr 

stead lease, or land held under a freehold title acquired under this Act, or a trer 
leasehold area, shall be entitled to bring any action for trespass (other than a 	6" 
wilful trespass) on such land until he shall have fenced such land pursuant to 
the provisions of the Principal Act. (Read) 

Question put,—That the clause, as read, stand part of the Bill. 
Committee divided. 

Negatived. 

Ayes, 17. 
Mr. Greer, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mn. Garvan, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. MoCourt, 
Mr. Cleanly, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Kidd. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Barbour. 

Noes, 48. 
Mr. Tonkin, 	 Williain Stephen, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 	Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Davis, 	 Mr. Case, 
Mr. Brunker, 	Mr. See, 
Mr. Wright, 	 Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Turner, 	 Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Morton, 	 Mr. 0.0. Danger, 
Mr. Torn, 	 Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Burns, 	 Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Alison, 	 Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Lamb, 	 Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Xing, 	 Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. h'Beckett, 	Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Wilshire, 	Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Ryrie, 	 Mr. Tosco, 
Mr. Henry Clarke, 	Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 	Mr. Seaver. 
Mr. Lees, Tel/.re, Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Cooke, 	 Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Abigail, 	 Mr. Hawken. 

And 



Ayes, 3. 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Lohman, 
Mr. Barbour. 

Negatived. 

Noes, 33. 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Brooker, 	Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 	Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Torpy,: 	 Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 	Mr. T. G. Bangor, 
Mr. Willis, 	 Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. McRae, 	 Mr. Colts, 
Mr. YBeckett, 	Mr. Kyrie, 
Mr. Morton, 	Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Fuller, 	 Mr. Xing, 
Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Davis. 
Mr. Bruce Smith, Tellers, Mr. Gormly, • 
Mr. 0. 0. Bangor, 	Mr. Ifajnes, 
Mr. Cooke, 	 Mr. Harold Stephen. 
Mr. Ball, 

8 

And the Committee continuing to sit after Midnight,— 

FRIDAY, 19 JULY, 1889, A.u. 

Conditional 
purchases how 
made up to 
maximum 
area. 

No. 11. 
SAME BILL. 

Mr. Barbour brought up new clause:— 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Principal Act or this 

Act any conditional purchaser under any of the repealed Acts and any con-
ditional purchaser under the Principal Act or this Act who shall be in occupation 
of his conditional purchase may, if adjoining land be not available, make up 
his holding to the maximum area but in one block, from other available land 
in the same Division, subject to the condition of an additional term of five 
years residence from the date of application to purchase or lease, but the con-
ditions of residence may be fulfilled on the original conditional purchase. 
Provided that no conditional purchaser under the Principal or this Act shall 
be permitted to make a second original conditional purchase. (Read.) 

Question put,—That the clause, as read, stand part of the Bill. 
Committee divided. 

Improvement; 
on homestead 
leases. 

No. 12. 
SAME BILL. 

Me. Willis brought up n OW clause:— 
Notwithstanding anything contained in this or the Principal Act it shall be lawful 

for the Local Land Board to grant to a homestead lessee a period not exceeding 
twelve months to pay for the appraised value of all the improvements on the 
land so leased. Provided always that the applicant for such homestead lease 
shall within ninety days after the gazettal of the acceptance of his application 
pay into the Treasury a suit not less than one-fourth of the whole of the 
appraised value of the said improvements, and interest on the balance due, at 
the rate of 4 per centum per annum. (Read.) 

Question put,—That the clause, as read, stand part of the Bill. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 6. 	 Noes, 24. 
Mr. Ryrie, 	 Ur. Dais, 	 Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. it'Becket., 	 Mr. McRae, 	 Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Chanter, 	 Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Barbour. 	 Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Ball, 

Mr. O'Sullivan, 	Mr. I me, 
Tellers, Mr. Goimiy, 	 Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 

Mr. Cruickshank, 	 Mr. Brunkcr, 	Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Willis. 	 Mr. Lamb, 	 Mr. Alison, 

Mr. King,. 	 Mr. Laketnan. 
Mr. Mentllan, Tellers, Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 	Mr. Herold Stephen, 
Mr. Steveitann, 	Mr. Paul. 

Negatived. 

Additional 
conditional 
purchases. 

No. 13. 
SANE BILL. 

Mr. Chanter brought up new clause :— 
Any person now residing upon his original conditional or additional conditional 

purchase, the total area of such purchases not exceeding the area allowed 
under this Act, may make a further additional conditional purchase within 
ten miles of his original conditional purchase, and shall thereupon continue 
to reside either upon the original or additional conditional purchase for a 
further period of five years. (Read.) 

Question put,—That the clause, as read, stand part of the Bill. 	 Committee 
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Committee divided. 
Ayes, 10. 

Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Gormly. 

lcegatived. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Paul. 

Noes, 16. 
Mr. Willis, 	 Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 	Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Brunker, 	Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. 'recce, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Wilshire. 
Mr. Lamb, 	 Tellers, Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. King, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. 0. 0. Danger. 

No 14. 
SA3fE Bat. 

I 	FIRST SCHEDULE. 

No. of Section. 
I 	

Extent of Repeal. 

Section 	18 	 The w hole. 
Section 	19 	 The w hole. 
Section 	21 	 The w hole of sub-section (ix). 
Section 	29 	 The w hole. 
Section 	41 	 The w hole. 
Section 	49 	 The w hole. 
Section 	50 	 The w hole. 
Section 	53 	 The w hole. 
Section 	55 	 The w ole. 
Section 	56 	 The 	ole. 
Section 	59 	 The w hole. 
Section 	69 	 The w 	ole. 
Section 	78 	 Sub-sections (vi and vat). 
Section 	79... The words "Provided that all improvements on the land at the date of 

expiration, forfeiture, or surrender shall become the property of Her 
Majesty without compensation therefor." 

Section 	82 	 The whole of sub-section (r). 
Section 	83 	 The w hole. 
Section 	86... 	 The w hole. 
Section 	87 	 The whole. 
Section 	88 	 The w hole. 
Section 100 	 The whole. 
Section 110 	 The whole. 
Section 110 	 The whole. 
Section 143 	 The w hole. 

(Read).. 
Motion made (Mr. Harold Stephen) to insert the following new line :— 

"Section 130 	I The whole." 
Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 
Committee divide& 

Ayes, 6. 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Stevenson, 

Tellers, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Noes, 21. 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 

Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Teece. 

Tellers, 
Mr. W.Beokett, 
Mr. Alison. 

  

Insertion of words proposed negatived. 
First Schedule, as read, negatived. 
On motion of Mr. Brinker, the Chairman left the Chair to report the Bill with amendments to ,  

the House. 

Sydney: Chivies Potter, Government Printer.-1889. 
I91.1 	 480—B 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No.10. 

WEEKLY REPORT OF DIVISIONS 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE. 

(EXTRACTED FROM THE MINUTES) 

TUESDAY 23 JULY, 1889. 
No. 1. 

GENERAL POST OFFICE (APPROAC1LES IMPROVEMENT) BILL. 

i‘llstrsitryt: coin.  f 
Clause 5. Notwithstanding anything contained in any other Act, this Act shall, for all purposes statutory 

whatsoever, be deemed to be an absolute statutory authority, enabling the Minister for 
Public Works to commence and complete, subject to such plans and conditions as the smlevtscrsoorska or 
Governor, with the advice aforesaid, shall prescribe, the enlargement and improvement of Lale  residue of 
the thoroughfare hereinafter mentioned ; and the lands resumed by this Act shall be used land.  
for, and applied to, the purposes following, that is to say— 

(a) Towards the formation and making of a public street, ift-eplargemeutae-proseut 
thoroughfare one hundred feet wide betweenGeorge and Pitt Streets, of-e-nell-width r  
aud--with-euela--appreaeheeraad-ef-elleh-slesign-as-May-be-determised-lie-GeNteraeri 
and such street, after formation and completion by the said Minister, shall, upon 
a proclamation by. .the Governor, with. the advice of the Executive Council, 
published in the Gazette, become vested in the Municipal Council of the City of 
8ydney in the same manner as other public highways of the said City are vested 
in the said Council, and subject to the like powers and obligations as are applicable 

, 	in respect of such public highways. 
(b) " The residue of the said lands remaining after the formation of the said street shall 

be sold or leased by public auction, at such times, for such prices, and subject to 
such terms, conditions, covenants and provisions for buildings" (temporary or 
perpetual), and for the occupation thereof, as the Governor, with the advice afore- 

!' 	 said, may determine. 
Provided always that the Governor, with the advice aforesaid, may form and dedicate to the 

public in such manner as he may think fit, any  mi  ez a lane connecting Chisholm Lane 
and Angel Place of not less than the lawful width, for the purpose of giving access to the 
buildings to be erected on the lands so Sold or leased, reserving for Faure disposal two 
feet in width of the resumed land in front of the adjoining lands on the north. 
(Read.) 

And the clause having been amended as indicated in sub-section (a),— 
Motion made (Mr. Hatoken) to emit from sub-section (b), the words, The residue of the said 

lands remaining after the formation of the said street shall be sold or leased by public auction, 
at such times, for such prices, and subject to such terms, conditions, covenants and provisions 
for buildings." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
; 	 496— 	 Committee 
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Committee divided. 
Ayes, 65. 

Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Trail], 
Mr. Paul, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Dibbs, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Hobbs, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Garyan, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Clarke, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. Dalton, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Lees 
Mr. Frank Smith, 

Words stand. 

2 

Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, , 
Mr. Edmunds, 	• 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Toobey, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. &able, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Garrett, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. T. G. Dangar, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Omer, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen (sues), 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. LOViC13. • 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Tonkin. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Waddell. 

Noes, 5. 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Copland. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Hawken. 

And the clause having been further amended as indicated,— 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
On motion of Mr. McMillan, the Chairman left the Chair to report the Bill, with amendments, 

to the House. 

THURSDAY, 25 JULY, 1889. 
No. 2. 

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE FUND BILL (No. 4). 
SCHEDULE. 

SERVICES OP 1889. 
&ads, Bridges, and other PubHe Works— 

For repairing Roads and Bridges and other Public Works damaged by the 
recent heavy rains—Further sum £20,000 0 0 

IN ANTICIPATION OF LOAN VOTES. 
Railways and Tramways— 

Duplicating Railway Lines- 
Hurstville and George's River, Sutherland and Waterfall £52,000 	0 
Teralba to Adamstown 	 35,500 
Granville to Liverpool 	 52,000 
Liverpool to Campbelltowu—Towards cost of 	 10,000 

149,500 0 0 
"Duplicating Tramway Line- 

" Botany Line to Sir Joseph Banks' Grounds 11,000 0 0" 
Department of Public Works— 

Towards the Construction of Tramway Line —Leichhardt 
to Five Dock (Estimated cost, £17,000) 	... 210,000 	00 

Dulwich Hill Trsmway Extension ... 	 ... 	5,050 	00 
15,050 0 0 

Repayment of Loans— 
To recoup the Treasurer's Advance Vote for payment therefrom for City 

of Sydney Water Supply Debentures (6 per cent.), due and paid off 
1st July, 1889 5,000 0 0 

Total 	... 	 ... £200,550 0 0 

Motion made (Mr. Wright) to omit lines 13 and 14, viz.:— 
"Duplicating Tramway Line- 

" Botany Line to Sir Joseph Banks' Grounds 
And the Committee continuing to sit after midnight,— 

(Read.) 

• ... 	11,000 0 0' .  

• FRIDAY, 
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FRIDAY, 26 JULY, 1889, A.M. 
Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the Schedule. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 28, 	 Noes, S. 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Dawson. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Frank Parnell, 
Mr. Tonkin. 

On motion of Mr. McMillan, the Chairman left the Chair to report the Bill, without amendment, 
to the House. • 

FRIDAY, 26 JULY, 1889. 
No. 3. 

BATHURST CATTLE SALE-YARDS Bur, (as amended and agreed to in Select Committee.) 
Clause 7. So soon as any such sale-yards shall be established and by-laws approved and published, Fewer to d  

the said Borough Council of Bathurst may demand from the auctioneer, agent, owner, or ta=es.an  
person selling the cattle, and take in respect of any cattle brought to any such sale-yards 
or yarded in or brought to any other sale-yards within the Borough of Bathurst "or 
within two miles from any boundary thereof" if such cattle be intended for sale by 
public auction or private contract, the fees or charges mentioned in the said by-laws. 
Provided that the fees or charges levied upon cattle brought to other sale-yards shall not 
exceed those levied upon cattle yarded in or brought to the sale-yards established under 
this Act. Provided further that the said Council shall have only the power to levy 
one half the same rates and charges which are chargeable in the Municipal Sale-
yards for a period of six years from the passing of this Act, but thereafter the 
said Council shall have power to levy the full rates and charges as aforesaid for or 
in respect of any yards or premises situated within the aforesaid limits which 
shall before the commencement of this Act have been established and which are 
now being used for the bona, fide purpose of holding sales of cattle thereat, but the 
said privilege of paying only such half-rates and charges as aforesaid shall not 
extend to any proprietor of any such last-mentioned yards or premises unless he 
shall within one month after the date of the passing of this Act have given notice 
to the Council by writing under his hand that he claims the said privilege, but 
such privilege shall absolutely cease and determine if at any time after the date 
of the passing of this Act no sale of cattle shall have taken place at such yards or 
premises for a continuous period of six calendar months. (Read.) 

Motion made (Mr. Tonkin) to omit from lines 4 and 5 the words "or within two miles from any 
boundary thereof." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 17. 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Dickens, , 	Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Carruthers, 	Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Frank Parnell, 	Mr. Torpy. 
Mr. Stevenson, Tellers, Mr. 33runker, 
Mr. Rchnunds, 	Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Ritchie, 	 Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Cullen, 

And it appearing from the Tellers' Lists that there was not a Quorum of members present in the 
Committee,— 

The Chairman left the Chair to report accordingly. 

The Committee having resumed,— 
Question attain put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause,—and 

agredto. 
And the clause having been further amended as indicated,— 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
On motion of Mr. Paul, the Chairman left the Chair, to report the Bill, with amendments, to the 

House. 

[3d.] 
	 Sydney : Charles Potter, Government Printer,-1&a9, 

Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. 13runker, 	Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. flees, 
Mr. Carruthers, 	Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Sehey, 
Mr. Morton, 	 Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Ritchie, 	 Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Garrard, 	Mr. King, 
Mr. Hawken 	Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Shepherd, 	Mr. Clubb. 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr, Woodward, 	 Tellers,  
Mr. Fuller, 	 Mr. 11. H. Brown, 
Mr. Hutchison, 	Mr. Haynes. 

(Canterbury), 
Words stand. 
Schedule, as read, agreed to. 

Noes, 2. 
Tellers, 

Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Dawson, 
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LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 11. 

WEEKLY REPORT OF DIVISIONS 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE. 

(EXTRACTED FROM THE MINUTES) 

THURSDAY, 8 AUGUST, 1889. 
No. 1. 

WOLLONGONG HARBOUR TRUST BILL. 

Clause 98. The Commissioners "may," for the purpose of forming a sinking fund to pay off power to  form  

the principal sums borrowed under the authority of this Act, and from such time as the sinking fund ,  

Commissioners may determine, appropriate and set apart annually such part of the surplus 
revenues as the Commissioners, after defraying or providing for the ordinary expenditure 
and the interest on money owing on the security of the revenues may think fit, and shall 
from time to time cause the sums so set apart and appropriated to be invested in such 
securities as trustees arc by law for the time being authorized to invest in or in debentures 
issued under this Act, and to be increased by accumulation until the sinking fund is of 
sufficient amount to repay the said principal sums or some part thereof which the Com-
missioners may think ought to be paid oft'. (Read.) • 

Motion made (Mr. Joseph Abbott) to omit from line 1 the word " may " with a view to insert 
the word "shall." 

Question put,—That the word proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 22. 	 Noes, 13. 
Sir Henry Parke; 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. &hey, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Woodward, 

Word stands. 
Clause, as read, agreed to. 
On motion of Sir Henry Parkes the Chairman left the Chair to report progress and ask leave 

to sit again on Tuesday next. 

Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Puller, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Baynes, 
Mr. Ring. 

Tellers, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Paul. 

Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Nicoll, 

• Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Jones. 

 

Tellers, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott. 

   

549— 	 FRIDAY, 
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PlabitY, AUGUST, 1S80. 
No 

FUEL BUD. 

We bingt 	 Clause S. (0 Every person offering or having fuel for sale by weight in any vehicle or deliver- 
time 	ke 
Int (tried. 	 ing any fuel purchased by weight to the buyer thereof from any vessel, or vehicle, shall 

carry in some convenient place in such vehicle or vessel a geed-and lawful weighing machine, 
with-proper-weightfi of a design approved of by the Inspector of Weights and 
Measures. And every such person failing to comply with the requirements of this section 
shall incur for every such offence a penalty not exceeding twenty five pounds. 

(it) Every such person who when offering, or having fuel for sale or delivering 
fuel purchased by weight shall knowingly use any light weight, Or an unjust weighing 
machine, when weighing any fuel sold Or intended for sale shall incur a penalty for every 
such offence not exceeding ten pounds ; and the employer of such person if any knowingly 
permitting the use of any such light weight or unjust weighing machine shall 
"also" incur a penalty not exceeding fifty hanty pounds; and every such "lightweight  and" 
weighing machine may be examined, seized, and forfeited if found defective, in manner 
directed by any Act in force for the time being relating to Weights and Measures. 

I'rnv iso.  (III) Nothing in this section shall " apply" to fuel carried in bulk in any vehicle or 
vessel belonging to the buyer of such fuel or to ally person in charge of any such vehicle or 
vessel. (Read). 

And the clause basin ,/ been amended as indicated,— 
Motion made (111).. Ilawken) to omit from line 12, the word "also." 
Question put that the word proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 15. 	 Noes, 10. 
Mr. Greer, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Wilshire, 

Word stands. 

Mr. Moleiworth, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Twee, 
Mr. Perry. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Hawthorne. 

Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Alfred Allen, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Gould, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Dawson, 

Tellers, 

Mr. Lees, 
Mr. 'Timken. 

  

And the clause having been further amended as indicated,— 

PonMty forming 
light weight-% 
unjust, weighing 

&e. 

No. S. 
Same clause. 

Motion made (Mr. Hawken) 
Question put that the words 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 2A. 
Sir Henry Parkes, 	Mr. 

Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 

Mr. 
Mr. 

to omit from line 1.2, the words " light weight and." 
proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 

Mr. Brunker
i  Mr. Alfred Allen, 

Mr. Gould, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Greer, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Wheeler, 

Moleswort 
Ritchie, 
Garrard, 
Cooke, 
Waddell, 
O'Connor, 
Stevenson, 
Nicoll, 
Hawthorne. 

Tellers, 
Cass, 
Harold Stephen. 

Noes, 2. 
Tellers, 

Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. DMV501). 

  

[3d.] 

Words stand. 
Motion made (W. Gould) to insert after the word " apply" in line 1 of subsection (m), the 

words "to sales or delivery of fuel in quantities exceeding five tons at one time nor." 
Notice was taken that there was not a Quorum present,— 
The Chairman counted the Committee and there not being a Quorum present, left the Chair to 

report accordingly. 

Sytlue;• : Charles Potter, Goverment Printer.—ISSO. 
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WEEKLY REPORT OF DIVISIONS 
IN 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE. 
(EXTRACTED FROM THE MINUTES) 

TUESDAY, 13 AUGUST, 1889. 
No. 1. 

SUPPLY—GENERAL ESTIMATES FOR 1889. 
(Supplement to Schedule B.) 

Question proposed,—That there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding £2,001 10s. for 
Supplement to Schedule B. 

And the Committee continuing to sit after Midnight,— 

WEDNESDAY, 14 AUGUST, 1889, A.M. 

Question put and passed. 
Motion made (Mr. McMillan) that the Chairman leave the Chair, report progress, and ask leave 

to sit again,—and Question put. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 46 	 Noes, 9. 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. Reid, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Brooker, 	 Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Black, 
Mr. O'Connor, 	Mr. Paul, 
Sir Henry Parke., 	Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Trail, . 	 Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Street, 	 Mr. Clubh, 
Mr. Alfred Allen, 	Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Tonkin, 	 Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Ritchie, 	 Mr. Greene, 
Mr. King, 	 Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Playdair, 	 Mr. Tome, 
Mr. Hutchison 	Mr. Walker, 

(Caplerbury), 	Mr. Lytle, 
Mr. Wheeler, 	 Mr. Hassell, 
Mr. Wilshire, 	Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Moleeworth, 	Mr. Schey, 
Mr. Nohbs, 	 Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Cullen, 	 Mr. Waddell. 
Mr. Gibbs, 
Mr. Abigail, 	 Tellers, 
Mr. Dowel, 	 Mr. ILwken, 
Mr. Hurley, 	 Mr. Dickens. 
Mr. Chapman, 

Question agreed to. . 
Chairman left the Chair to report accordingly. 

 

Mr. Hugh Taylor, 
Mr. Garrett, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Dawson. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Plumb. 

  

    

[ad.] 	 505— 
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Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Hawken, 

Word stands. 

Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Lamb, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Street, 
Dr. Ross. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Cullen 
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IN 
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WEDNESDAY, 21 AUGUST, 1889. 
NO. 1. 

TREASURY BILLS DEFICIENCY BILL 

Clause a On the thirty-first day of December, one thousand eight hundred and "ninety," Annual amount 
the sum of One hundred and fifty thousand pounds shall be paid from the Consolidated =VA's? 
Beevenue Fund to the credit of a Special Trust Fund. Account in a Bank doing the Govern- Treasury Bills. 
vaunt business, and the like sum shall be paid to the said Special Trust Fund Account 
annually thereafter, for the purpose of paymg off the said Treasury Bills, until such bills 
are finally extinguished ; and the Colonial Treasurer shall, from time to time, out of such 
Special Trust Fund pay off and redeem such Treasury Bills t'o the extent to which there 
may be moneys to the credit of such Special Trust Fund Account. (Bead.) 

Motion made (Mr. Dibbs) to omit from line 1 the word "nineiy," with a view to insert the 
word "eighty-nine." 

Question put,—That the word proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 39. 	 Noes, 11. 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Dibbs, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Goodchap, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. McRae. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Dawson. 

Clause, as read, agreed to. 
On motion of Mr. McMillan, the Chairman left the Chair, to report the Bill, without amend-

ment, to the Rouse. 

Dd.] 	 595— 
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No. 14. 
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IN 
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(EXTRACTED FROM THE MINUTES) 

THURSDAY, ,1 SEPTEMBER, 1889. 
NO. 1. 

MAIL SEETICE BETWEEN SYDNEY AND SAN FRANCISCO, via AUCKLAND AND HONOLULU. 
(Resolutions.) 

Mr. O'Connor moved,—That the Committee agree to the following Resolutions :— 
(1.) That this House approves of the continuance of the Mail Service between Sydney and 

San Francisco, via Auckland and Honolulu, by the Union Steamship Company of New 
Zealand (Limited), for a further term of twelve months from November next, on the 
following terms, namely :—The subsidy to be reduced to £33,500, and the Government 
of New South Wales to be responsible therefor, with the proviso that if the Govern-
ment of New Zealand should hereafter join in this extension of contract, or should 
contribute, either in the shape of postages or by direct subsidy, any sum in excess of 
£6,000, such excess to the extent of £3,500 shall be allowed to the Company in con-
sideration of the abatement of £3,500 they have agreed to make in the amount of 
present subsidy of £37,000. Duration of voyage to be 600 hours, as at present ; but 
no penalties to be imposed provided voyage does not exceed 648 hours. No premiums 
to be paid for early arrival. Any contribution from the United States to be divided 
between the contractors and the Government of New South Wales, the former taking 
one-third and the latter two-thirds thereof. All postages from other Colonies to be 
retained by the New South Wales Government, subject to adjustment of a share 
thereof with the New Zealand Government, should that Colony agree to occupy a 
similar position in this extended contract to that which it now occupies in regard to 
the existing service. The spirit of the existing contract, in regard to the size of the 
vessels employed, and in all other respects, to be adhered to in the extended contract, 
Mid only European crews to be employed. 

(2.) That the foregoing Resolution be communicated by Address to His Excellency the 
Governor. 

Debate ensued. 
Motion made (Mr. O'Sullivan) that there be inserted, to stand as Resolution No.2, the following 

words :— 

"(2.) That the Union Steamship Company shall not sublet their contract to any 
British or foreign steamship owners, or charter any -vessels not registered in the 
Australian Colonies." 

626— 	 Question 
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Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted be so inserted. 

Committee divided. 
Ayes, 18.. 	 Noes, 27. 

Mr. Wright, 	 Mr. Kidd. 	 Mr. McRae, 	 Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Mitchell, , 	 Mr. Brunker, 	Mr. MeCourt, Tellers Mr. Abigail, 	 Mr. Playfam, 	Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Thompson, 	Mr. Grahame, 	 Mr. O'Connor, 	Mr. Hutchison 
Mr. Nicoll, 	 Mr. Turner.. 	 Mr; Bruce Smith, 	 (Canterbury), 
Mr. Stevenson, 	 Mr. Burns, 	 Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Woodward, 	 Mr. Dale, 	 Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Waddell, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 	Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Hogan, 	 Mr. Clubb, 	 Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Creer, 	 Mr. McFarlane, 	Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 	 Mr. Frank Parnell, 	Mr. Teece. 
Mr. Gamin, 	 Mr. See, Tellers, Mr. Wyman Brown, 	 Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Wall, 	 Mr. Nobbs, 	 Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Dawson, 	 Mr. Inglis, 	 Mr. Chapman. 

Insertion of words proposed negatived. 

On motion of Mr. O'Connor, the Chairman left the Chair, to reportthe Resolutions to the House. 

Sydney : Charles Totter. Government Idrinter.=ISED. 
[3dj 



Noes, 17. 
Mr. Torpy, Tellers, Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Slattery, 	Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Creer, 	 Mr. Willis. 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Dibbs, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Henry Clarke, 
Mr. &hey, 
Mr. Hogan. 

left the Chair, to report the Bill with amendments 
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IN 
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No. 1. 
Wom.onnomi HARBOUR TRUST BILL :— 

Clause 48. Upon the passing of this Act there shall be vested in the Commissioners for the Itntrel:1, Re., 
purposes of this Act, the bed and soil and shores of the waters, and the pieces and parcels :aceugu ils  loners. 
of Crown Land according to the descriptions contained in the First Schedule, but subject First schedule. 
to the right of Her Majesty to resume possession at any time, without payment of com- 
pensation, of any land required for purposes of national defence, or for giving ingress, egress, 
and regress to and from the shore. And the lands so vested in the Commissioners are in this 
Act designated "Harbour Trust Lands," and whenever it shall be deemed necessary 
in the public interest the Governor may by proclamation dissolve the Trust and 
take control of the whole of the lands, works, goods, and chattels of the Trust, 
subject to all liabilities and obligations attaching to the same, and with all 
the powers hereby created or otherwise vested in such Trust. 

Rea  Motion made (Sir Henry Parkes) that there be added at the end of the clause thefollowing 
words :—And whenever it shall be deemed necessary in the public interest the Governor 
may by proclamation dissolve the Trust and take control of the whole of the lands, works, 
goods, and chattels of the Trust, subject to all liabilities and obligations attaching to the 
same, and with all the powers hereby created or otherwise vested in such Trust. 

Question pnt,—That the words proposed to be added be so added;  
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 32. 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Drunker, 	Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Carruthers, 	Mr. Burns

'  Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. Hutchison 
Sir Henry Parkes, 	(Can(erinoy), 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Woodward, 	Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Teem, 
Mr. i'Beekett, 	Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 	Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Molesworth, 	'Mr. Tonkin, 
Mi. Wheeler, 	Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Cooke, 	 Mr. Holborow. 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Coils, 	 Tellers, 
Mr. Gormly, 	Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Plumb, 	 Mr. Haynes. 
Mr. Ball, 

Words added. 
Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
On motion of Sir Henry Parkes, the Chairman 

to the House. 

WEDNESDAY, 11 SEPTEMBER, 1889. 

[3d.] 	 641— 
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NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 16. 

WEEKLY REPORT OF DIVISIONS 
IN 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE. 

(EXTRACTED PROM THE MINUTES) 

TUESDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER, 1889. 
/CO. 1. 

SUPPLY—ADDITIONAL ESTIMATES roil 1889. 
Permanent and *Volunteer Military Perces—General Stair 

Question proposed—That there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding £266 13s. 4d. 
for Military Secretary, at £800 per annum, from 1st September. 

Motion made Mfr. Cridel—That the item be reduced by the sum of £266 13s.,—and Question 
put. . 

Committee divided. 
Ayes, 22. 	 „Noes, 48. 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen limes), • 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Schey, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Garran, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Dibbs, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. &entity, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Willis. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Grahame. 

Mr. Play fair, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. McM Man, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Sir 11 enry Parkes, 
Mn Abigail, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. At:Court., 
Mr. B cid, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Burdekin, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Street, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Mei? ite, 
Mr. Kidd, 

Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. it'Beckett, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. T:P. Abbott, 
'Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Ring, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. H. IT. Brown, 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Heinen, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Holborovr, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Ewing. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Lees. 

Reduction negatived. 
And the item hating been reduced, on the motion of Sir Henry Parkes, by £60 138. 4d. 
Item, as reduced, agreed to. 

651— No. 2. 
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No. 2. 

SAME ESTIMATES. 
Permanent Submarine Miners. 

Question proposed,—That there be granted to Iler Majesty a HUM not exceeding £619 5s. U. 
for Permanent Submarine Miners,—and Question put. 

Committee diVicled. 

Ayes, 48. 	 Noes, 10. 
Mr. }franker, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Melba, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Illolesworth, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Burdekin, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. a'Beekett, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Goodehap, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Ring, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Ridd, 

Item agreed to. 

Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. H. H. Brown 
Mr. 'recce, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Gormly, 

. Mr. Dawson. 
Tellers, 

Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Cullen, 

Mr. Dibbs, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Nicoll; 
Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Bowman. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Crielc, 
Mr. Sehey. 

On motion of Mr. McMillan, the Chairman left the Chair to report progress and ask leave to sit 

WEDNESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER, 1889. 

again. 

Land Court to 
consist of three 
members. 

No. 8. 
Caen LANDS BILL. 

(Consideration of Legislative Council's Amendments.) 
Clause 8.—There shall be a Land Court, which shall be a Court of Record, and have an official 

seal. The said Court shall consist of three members, one of whom shall be the President, 
and it shall be lawful for the Governor with the advise-of-the  Exceuti..4-0ounail to remove any , 
member of such Land Court for inability or misbehaviour, provided that twenty-one days 
at least before the removal of such member of the Land Court lie shall have notice of the 
intention to remove him, and he shall thereafter and before removal have the opportunity 
of being heard before the Governor and the Executive Council in his defence. The 

• President and each member shall be appointed by the Governor, and shall be paid Minh 

salaff-er-allewanees-as-the GoveRgosr-may 	 approve 
(r) The President shall preside at all meetings of the Court, but in his absence through 

• illness or other sufficient reason any member may be authorized by the Governor to 
temporarily act as President, who, while so acting, shall have and exercise all the 
powers and authorities, and be subject to all the obligations applicable to the office 
of President. In the absence, through illness or otherwise, of any member, the 
Governor may appoint any person to temporarily act as member. 

• (ii) Any member who shall sit or act in any case in which he is or has been directly or 
indirectly interested, shall be liable to a penalty not exceeding five hundred pounds. 

(m) The Land Court shall have power to hear and determine all appeals and all matters 
referred to such Court by the Minister or by a Local Land l3eard under the pro. 
visions of sub-section (vii) of section fourteen of the Principal Act, and to make 
such orders for payment of costs incurred in such appeals or proceedings as such 
Court may think fit ; and such appeals and matters shall, after the prescribed notice 
has been given to the parties, and at such times and, places as the Land Court may 
appoint, be heard and determined .  in open Court and the Crown may without 
having lodged a caveat, appeared before the Local Land Board, given notice 
of appeal; or taken any, preliminary step other than may be prescribed by 
the regulations or by rules of the Land Court appear as a party in all proceed 
lugs in which its rights, interests, or revenues may be concerned, and all parties may 
be heard by counsel, attorney, or agent, but no fresh evidence shall be adduced 
before such Court, except with the sanction of such Court. In all eases in which the 
said Land Court- shall make any order or award for the payment of money, whether 

as 
• 
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as costs or otherwise, the said order or award shall, liaVO as hereinbeforc provided, 
be conclusive upon the parties, and have the force of a judgment of the Supreme 
Court at common law ; and the party in whose favour any such order or award may 
have been finally or ultimately made may obtain a certificate of the amount due 
thereunder, which certificate shall be conclusive evidence of the facts therein stated, 
and he shall, upon production thereof to the Prothonotary, be entitled to have 
judgment entered up thereon, without any judge's order to that effect, aid to have 
akecution for such amount and costs issued and enforced in the same way as may be 
thine upon judgments at common law; provided Hutt, in any ease in which a deposit 
has been made by an appellant ;  the same shall be available in payment or part pay-
ment of any sum Wffich he may be ordered to pay, and the surplus, if any, shall be 
returned. 

(iv) If in any case it shall appear to the Land Court that any evidence tendered before 
such Court, or that further evidence, ought to be taken before the Local Land 
Board, or that the case is incomplete, it may lie remitted to the Board for such 
action as the Land Court may direct ; and the Board shall take such action, and may 
uphold, reverse, alter, or amend, its previous decision in ally way that may be consi-
dered necessary. The Land Court shall have power to remit to the. Board any case 
in which an order has been made by the Land Court with directions to the Board to 
enforce or carry out such order, and in any such case the Board shall be empowered 
and bound to act accordingly. 

(v) A majority of the members of the Land Court shall constitute a quorum. The 
decision of the Land Court upon any appeal' shall, subject to the provisions of 
section six of this Act, be final and conclusive. 

(vi) Whenever any question of law shall arise in a case before the Land Court, the 
Land Court shall, if required in writing by any of the parties within the prescribed 
time and upon the prescribed conditions, or may of its own motion state and submit 
a case for decision by the Supreme Court thereon," whisk deffisieu 4411-be eiseelusi-ve." 
Every such case shall purport to be stated under this section, and shall state the 
names of the persons who are parties to the appeal, reference, Or other proceeding, 
and shall be transmitted to the Prothonotary of the Supreme Court to be dealt with 
as to the setting down of the case for argument, and the hearing of the same, and its 
return with the decision of the Supreme Court thereon, as the ;fudges or any two of 
them shalt direct. The Supreme Court for the purposes of this section may consist 
of two Judges only, and shall have power to deal with the costs of, and incidental to, 
any case stated under this section as it may think fit. 

(m) Any subpcena, summons, or other process issuing out of the Land Court, shall have 
the same force and effect as if issued out of the Supreme Court, in any matter 
pending therein ; and the Land Court shall have the same powers of dealing with 
witnesses who fail to appear when called, or refuse to answer questions, or otherwise 
misconduct themselves, and for repressing disorders, or punishing contempts com-
mitted in the face of the said Court, as are possessed by the Supreme Court or any 
Judge thereof upon the hearing of any cause or matter within the jurisdiction of 
the said Court. Any warrant to apprehend and to detain and bring before 
the Land Court, or to keep in any gaol, prison, lock-up, or other place of 
detention, any person liable upon the order of the Land Court to be so dealt 
with, shall be valid and sufficient if it be in the form appropriate thereto 
contained in the Third Schedule to this Act, or to the effect thereof; and 
the Sheriff, his deputy and assistants, and all officers of the police force, and 
gaolers, to whom the same shall be addressed shall obey the same. Provided 
that no such warrant shall be issued against a person who fails to appear as 
a witness when called, unless it be proved to the satisfaction of the Land 
Court that he has been duly served with a summons or subpcena, and that 
payment or tender of his reasonable expenses has been made to him. 

(rut) It shall be lawful for the Governor to appoint a Registrar of the Land Court and 
other necessary officers, who shall be paid such salaries as may from time to time be 
approved. The Registrar shall have the custody of the official seal of the Court, 
and of its records, and shall sit in the Court, and keep and sign minutes of the 
Court's proceedings, and make reports of the Court's decision in each case to the 
Minister. The Registrar shall have power to seal with the official seal, and to sign 
and issue in the name of the Court, subpcerms, summons, certificates, orders, notices, 
and other documents ; and the Registrar shall perform the various matters and things 
in respect of which powers are hereinbefore conferred upon him, or which by any 
regulation in that behalf made as hereinafter provided he may be ordered to do. 
Any duties imposed or Dowers conferred upon the Registrar as aforesaid may, 
in his absence or inability to act, be discharged or exercised by any person 
provisionally appointed as Deputy Registrar by the President or Acting 
President of the Land Court. 

(ix) All Courts of Law and Equity shall take judicial notice of the seal of the Land 
Court, and of the signature of the President, sr Acting President, Registrar, or 
Deputy Registrar, when attached to any document; issuing out of the said Court. 
(Considered.) 

Motion 
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Motion made (Mr. Brooker) that the Committee disagree to the Legislative Council's amendment 
omitting from line 4 in subsection (vi) the words "-whish-deeisien-shall-be-eanalusiver —and 
Question put. 

Committtee divided. 

Ayes, 62. 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr, Chanter, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Scobic, 
Mr, Bowman, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Dowel, 

Amendment disagreed to. 

Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. John Wilkinson, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Arr. Teeee, 
Mr. Sehey, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Gass, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. 6:Beckett, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Dawson. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Lateman, 
Mr. Hassell. 

Noes, 5. 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Grahame. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Conditional lease 
may be applied 
for not exceed-
ing three times 
the area of the 
conditionally 
purchased land. 

No. 4. 

Same Bill :— 
Clause 26 :—Any applicant for, or holder of, land conditionally purchased nader since the 

commencement of the Principal Act (not being under section forty-seven thereof) may 
obtain a conditional lease, or additional conditional leases, to comprise an area" not" 
exceeding three times the area of such land, provided that the total area of land conditionally 
purchased and conditionally leased shall not exceed one thousand two hundred and eighty 
acres in the Eastern, and two thousand five hundred and sixty acres in the Central Division. 
In estimating the area which may be conditionally purchased or and conditionally leased, all 
conditional purchases of the same series, and all land held by conditional lease by virtue of 
such conditional purchases, shall be included and the land which may be leased shall adjoin 
the land so conditionally purchased or conditionally leased. With any application for a 
conditional lease after the cotnmencement of this Act a deposit of twopence per acre of the 
area applied for shall be paid to the Land Agent. Applications for conditional leases or 
additional conditional leases under this Act shall be made in the prescribed manner, and 
shall be dealt with as if the same had been made under the forty-eighth section of the 
Principal Act, and any conditional lease granted in pursuance thereof shall be deemed to 
have been granted under the said section, and the provisions of that Act shall, unless other-
wise provided in this Act, apply to conditional leases granted after the commencement of 
this Act. All conditional purchases of the same series, and all conditional leases granted 
in virtue thereof, shall, for all purposes of residence, fencing, or improvement, be deemed 
to be one holding. Provided that in all-eases-where-t1ie-sen4itional-m=adei44ena4-ean441enrd-leasa 
shall exceed threeImes the area of tbe conditional purchase, by virtue of which such con-
ditional or addition al conditional lease shall have been applied for, the applicant shall fulfil 
the condition of re sidence prescribed in the original Act in respect of an originalconditional 
perehaset (Consid red.) 

Motion made (.71/).. Brunker) that the Committee disagree to the Legislative Council's amendment 
inserting the word " not " in line 3. 

And the Committee continuing to sit after midnight. 

THURSDAY, 
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Question put. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 33. 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Ball, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Crick, 

Amendment disagreed to. 

Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mi. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr. 

Mr. 
Mr. 

MeCourt, 
Gonnly, 
Woodward, 
Barbour, 
Garrard, 
Dickens, 
Cooke, 
Teem 
Gough, 
Bowman, 
Hurley, 
Dawson, 
Tonkin. 

Tellers, 
"ottoman, 
Harold Stephen, 

Noes, 10. 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. a'Beckett, 
Mr. King. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Turner. 

   

On motion of Mr. Drunker, the Chairman left the Chair to report progress and ask leave to sit 
again to morrow. 

No. 5. 
Same Bill:— 

Clause 43 :—Upon application being made in the prescribed manner by the holder of any Extension of 

homestead lease or of any pastoral lease in the Central or Western Division for an extension ro,,,,,,Tteirt 
of such lease, the Land Board shall hold an inquiry as to all permanent improvements leases. 
existing upon the land held thereunder, exclusive of all improvements forfeited or belonging 
to the Crown. Provided that such application shall be lodged within ninety days prior to 
the commencement of the last two years of the current lease, and shall be accompanied 
by a deposit of twenty pounds to cover the expenses of dealing therewith. The Board shall 
before the commencement of the last year of such lease find and report— 

(1.) The value of such improvements. 
(ix.) Whether or not they have been made bond . fide and with intent to increase the 

carrying capacity, benefit, or profit of the land for pastoral purposes. 
(im) Whether or not the land has been materially benefited thereby. 
(Iv.) Whether or not in consideration of such improvements an extension of the term of 

the lease should be granted, and if so, for what term. 
The Board shall thereupon make a recommendation to the Minister, who may either accept 
the same or refer it to the Land Court. The procedure in connection with any such 
reference shall, mut ails ?nut andis, be the same as that prescribed by section six of this Act 
in connection with appraisements. The Land Court may, on any appeal or reference in the 
premises, sustain, vary, or reverse any finding or recommendation of the Board, and its final 
or ultimate recommendation shall be carried into effect by the Minister. No extension for 
more than five years shall be recommended or granted of any pastoral lease in the Central 
Division, or for more than seven years of a homestead or pastoral lease in the Western 
Division ; and nothing in this or the Principal Act shall be construed to permit any second, 
further, or other extension than is provided in this section. The lease shall, during any 
such extended term, be held upon the same conditions, and at the same rate of rental as 
prior to the extension ; and pending notice in the Gazette either of approval or refusal of 
any extension the previous lease shall be held to continue. Upon the expiration (by efiluxion 
of time or otherwise) of the term or extended term of any homestead lease, or of any pastoral 
lease in the Central or Western Division, all improvements on the laud theretofore held 
under such lease, whether made before or after the commencement of the Principal Act, 
shall become the property of the Crown, and no compensation shall be payable therefor to 
the outgoing lessee, provided, however, that if an extension of any pastoral lease in 
the Central Division shall not be applied for, or, if applied for, shall not be granted, 
or if the application shall have been withdrawn within thirty days from the date of 
the publication of the report of the said Board, the holder of such lease shall, upon 
application within the prescribed time, accompanied by such provisional license fee 
as is required by section thirty-three of this Act, and subject to the general 
provisions of that section, be entitled to a preferential occupation license of the 
land theretofore held under lease, and if such license be obtained, any improve- 
iments on the land, other than such as may have been forfeited or forfeitable to or 
vested in the Crown, shall be dealt with under the provisions of section forty- 
four of this Act, in the same manner as improvements on lands in the Eastern 
Division held under occupation license in pursuance of section thirty-three of 

this 

THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER, 1889. 
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occupation license, may be offered by auction or tender under 'occupation license, or 
otherwise dealt with as vacant lands. Lands held under any such pastoral lease Which may 
have been or which may be forfeited or surrendered may be relet under pastoral lease by 
auction or tender, for the unexpired portion of the forfeited or surrendered term, upon 
such conditions as to periods of appraisement of rent or otherwise as may be determined 
by the Minister, or may be offered by auction or. tender -under occupation license or 
otherwise dealt with as vacant lands; lant-no-paoteml-er-komostead-lessoe-whoee 4ease-ohrill 
after-the-oommeneement f this Act have-beea-forfetted or uniendered-ohall-he serimetent-to-lield 
ariy-Pasteral-er4minestea44eace, or oseupation-lieence rm=any-aMeelease r other interest-in or 
undemmay-sueh-lease-or-lieenae ef-nny  of-the-lands  eampriced in the raid  f rfeited or aarrendered 
lease-fraud-any leaaerander-lease, tranaferramipmentreentract, trustramdealing, 	c Min 
venti n hereof-shall 	id and of no effeet-at-law or ni-equityraodhall  _render the pastmul r 
Immeatead lease liable-to-ferfelture After forfeiture or surrender of any pastoral lease as 
aforesaid, the lands shall not, except for the purposes of pastoral lease or reservation 
or dedication, be deemed to be vacant Crown lands, and shall not be available as such until 
after notification in the Gazette that the same may be so dealt with. (Considered.) 

The amendment inserting words after " lessee " in line 32 having been amended, as indicated,— 

Motion made (Mr. Brunker) that the Committee agree to the Legislative CouneTs amend-
ment as amended,—and Question put. 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 36. Noes 25. 

Sir Henry Parkes, Mr. Molesworth, Mr. Woodward, Mr. Bibb°, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, Mr. Cruickshank, Mr. Grahame, Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. McMillan, Mr. Alison, Dr. Ross, Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Brunker, Mr. Ryrie, Mr. Barbour, Mr. John 'Wilkinson. 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Gould, 

Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Dickens, 

Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Barnes, 

Tellers, 
Mr. Torpy, 

Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Morton, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Seohie, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Wilshire, 

Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. :I:Beckett, 
Mr. Tecce, 
Mr. Greene, 
MV. 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Cass. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. LakellUM. 

Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Jones, 

Mr. Dawson. 

Amendment agreed to. 

this Act. 'Upon the expiration of the term, or extended term, of any pastoral lease, the 
lands comprised thereunder , if not subject to and applied for under preferential 

Protection of 
Artesian wells 

No. O. 

SAME 
Clause 44 46. Upon application in the prescribed manner (accompanied by a deposit of ten 

pounds to cover the expenses in dealing therewith), for permission to bore and search for 
water in any land in the Western Division, held by the applicant under occupation license 
or annual lease, the Minister may, by notice in the Gazette, and-some-paper eireulatingrimthe 
chattier, set apart an area not exceeding fix , th tamed-seven hundred and sixty ten thousand 
two hundred and forty acres in one block on the resumed area. Upon publication of 
such notice the land therein described shall be held to be temporarily exempt from sale or 
lease under this or the Principal Act to other than the applicant, but shall not be withdrawn 
from the occupation license or annual lease ; and within twenty eight  sixty days after such 
notice the applicant shall commence to bore and search for water on such land, and shall 
forward to the Chairman of the Land Board by registered letter notice verified by statutory 
declaration of his having done so ; and the work of boring and searching as aforesaid shall 
be continued until water be found, or until it appear to the Minister that the work cannot 
be pursued with reasonable hope of success or profit. Within fourteen days after the 
discovery of water, the licensee or lessee shall, by registered letter, notify the fact to the 
Chairman of the Local Land Board, and the said licensee or lessee shall, on approval by 
the Governor, become entitled to a lease for such a term as may be determined, not 
exceeding the unexpired term of the current pastoral lease of the leasehold area of 
the pastoral holding ; and the rental of such area shall be at the rate then payable upon 
the land held under such occupation license or annual lease, If the applicant shall fail to 
forward any prescribed notice, or if the Minister shall consider that the application has not 
been made tolna fide, or that reasonable efforts have not been or are not being made to 
discover water, or that any water discovered is not sufficiently permanent, or that the 
quantity is not sufficiently great, he may withdraw the notice aforesaid, or the Governor 
may cancel the lease, and upon publication in the Gazette and any paper circulating in  the 
olistPie of notice of such withdrawal, or cancellation, the temporary exemption from sale 
or lease of such laud, and the lease thereof, shall be held to be annulled. Provided that 

not 
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not more than one such area shall be leased under the provision of this section out of each 
sixty-four thousand acres of an occupation license, mid not more than three such areas shall 
be leased hereunder in respect of one and the same occupation license. Provided further 
that upon approval of the Minister all artesian wells heretofore made may be brought under 
the provisions of this clause oh application within ninety days after the passing 
commencement of this Act. (Considered.) 

Motion made (Mr. Brunker) that the Committee disagree to the amendment in lines 5 and 6, 
omitting "fie thousand seven hundred and eixty, and inserting ten thousand two hundred 
and forty,"—and Question put. 

Committee divided. 
• 

Ayes, 34• 	 Noes, 6. 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Dickens. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Waddell. 

Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Torpy, • 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. John Wilkinson, 

Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Srobio, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Ball. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Turner. 

21Snentlment disagreed to. 
On motion of Mr. Branker, the Chairman left the Chair, to report that the Committee had 

agreed to some, disagreed to others, and amended others of the Legislative Council's 
amendments. 

Sydney : Charles Potter, Government PrInter.-1880.' 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 17. 

'WEEKLY REPORT OF DIVISIONS 
MT 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE. 
(EXTRACTED FROM THE MINUTES.) 

TUESDAY, 21 SEPTEMBER, 1889. 
No. 1. 

SUPPLY—ADDITIONAL ESTIMATES FOR 1889. 
Colonial Sccretary—Afiscellaneotts Services. 

Question put,—That there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding £489 Se. Sd. to pay 
Municipal Council of Young amount of subsidy to which entitled, under the Municipalities 
Act on rates collected but not accounted for by the late Council Clerk. 

The Committee divided. 
Ayea, 84. 

Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. n'Beckett, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr, Trail], 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Tamer, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Kidd, 

• Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Creer, 
l'if r. Nicoll, 

- Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Playf air, 
Mr. Hutchison 
. 	(Glen Innes), 

Item agreed to. 
680—  

Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Dale 
Mr. Wil:hire, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Roberts, 
Mr. Street, 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. a 0. Danger, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Schey, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Henry Clarke, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Cass,- 
Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Dalton, 
Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Ferguson, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Graham; 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Burdekin. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Plumb. 

Noes, 2. 

Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Crick. 
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No. 2. 
SAYE ESTIMATES. 

(Same Department.) 
Question proposed,—That there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding £1,000 as 

subsidy for inter-island Steam Communication with the New Hebrides Group. 
And the Committee continuing to sit after Midnight,— 

WEDNESDAY, 25 SEPTEMBER, 1889, A.m. 
Question put. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 40. 
Mr. Brunker 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Ritchie 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Faller, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Frank Smith, , 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. i'Beckett, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. neaten, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Teets, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. MeCourt, 

• 
Mr. Plumb; 
Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr: Abigail, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. McMillen, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mt. Bruce Smith; 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Burdekin. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Seaver. 

Noes, 24. 
Mr. Torpy, 	 Mr. Perry. 
Mr. Chanter, Tellers, Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Nicoll, 	 Mr. Wall, 
Mr. 0-ough, 	 Mr. Walker. 
Mr. Toobey, 
Mi. Hutchison. • 

(Glen Janes), 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr: Train, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Griot:, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Schey, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Henry Clarke,, 
Mr. See, 
Mr.- Howe,,  

Item agreed :ten ,  

No. 3 

SAME ESTIMATES. 
(Same Department.) 
Question proposed2—That there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding £5,000 for 

establishing Agricultural College and Experimental Farms. 
Motion made (Mr. Toohey),—That the item be reduced by the sum of £4,999,—and Question 

put. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 11. 	 Noes, 37: 
. Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen lanes), 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Sehey. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Toobey, 
Mr. Traill. 

Mr:Carruthers, 	Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Mitchell, 	Mr. O'Beckett, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr.: Turner, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. 0.0. Danger, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. Hutchison 
Mr.:Brunker, 	 (Canttrbury), 

.Mr.-01Conner, 	Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr Shepherd, 	Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr.:Paul, 	 Mr.-Teecc, 
Mr. Abigail, . 	Mr. McRae, 
Mr..Clubb, 	 Mr. Kidd, 
Mr.-Hawthorne, 	Mr.-Tonkin, 
Ilr.•Chapman, 	Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Plumb, 	 Xt. Inglia, 
Mr.-Wilshire, 	Mr. Seaver, 
Mr.zWillis, 	 Mr. Garz•ard. 
Mr. Woodward, Tellers, Mr. Cullen, 
Mr.iColls, 	 Mr...Gough, 
Mr. Scale, 	 Mr. Frank Smith. 

; 

Reduction negatived. 
Item agreed to. 

No. 41-  
SAME ESTIMATES. 

(Same Department.) 
Question put,—That there be granted to Her Majesty a] Sum not exceeding E3,500 for Pyne 

Park, Balmain—resumption and drainage of lowlands..... 
Committee 
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Committee divided. 
Ayes, 40• 

.31r2Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Trail], 

Mr. Gould 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. l riglis, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. 0. C). Dangar, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Gough, 

Item agreed to. 

Mr 'Cells 
r. °Rabb, 

In Grahame, 
Mr. Plumb 

r. Kidd, 
r. Hutchison 

(Glen limes), 
Mr. Woodward, 
Ir. Cooke, 

Mr. Hobbs, 
Mr. Turner, 

jr. Me Rae, 
r. Cullen 

Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Teen; 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Garrard. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Hawthorne. 

Noes, 2. 
Tellers, 

Mr. Toohey, 
Mr. Sehey. 

On motion of Mr. McMillan, the Chairman left the Chair to report progress and ask leave to sit 
again. 

THUI?SDAY, 26 SEPTEMBER, 1889. 
No. 5. 

CROWN L ASDS BELL :— 
Message from Legislative Coisneil of 26th September. 

Motion made (Mr. BrunIce,r) that the Committee does not insist upon its -disagreements; to tha 
Couneil's amendments insisted on by the Council, and agrees to the Council's amendments 
upon its amendments in clauses 18 and 20. 

And the Committee continuing to sit after Midnight,— 

FRIDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER, 1889, a.m. 

And Mr. Copeland requiring the question to be put on the amendments seriatim,— 
Question put,—That the Committee does not insist on its disagreement to the Council's amend-

ment in clause 8, lines 30 and 31, omitting "sash-salary or-allowanees-as-tlie-C/avemer-may 
aP14.0*e." 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 59. 
11r. Dickens, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Thompson, 
3tl r. Alison, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Inglis,  
Mr. lint chison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Wens, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Paul, • 
Mr. Tette, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Blatk, 

Hawken, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. 0. 0. Deegan 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 

Tellers, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Ewing. 

Disagreement not insisted on. 

Sir Henry Parke; 
Mr, McMillan, 
Mr. 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Roberts, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. a' Beckett, 
Mr. Fitzgerald, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. 3 iseph Abbott, ' 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Rite hie, 
M r..1. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Mitehell, 
Dr. Rots, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Greene, 
ltl r. Nicoll, 
Mr. CI ubh, 

Noes, 26. 
Mr. Dyne, 
MY. Torpy, 
Mr. CITCr, 
leir. Dibbs, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen Inner), 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mn•Traill, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Gandy, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Grab IMIC, 

Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Schey, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. Gills, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. R3 rie, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Dawson. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. lacing n, 

No. 6, 



Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Dibbs, 
Mr. Greer, 
Mr. Hutehison 

(Glen lanes), 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Sehey, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
laS r. Barnes, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Jones; 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Wall, 
?.tr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Colic, 
Mr. McCourt. 

Tellers, 
MT. Hayes, 
Mr. Lakeman. 

Dickens, 
H. H. Brown, 
Thompson, 
lhorken, 
Alison, 
Wilshire, 
Plumb, 

Hutch icon 
(Canterbury), 
/Cobbs, 
Waddell, 
Bowman, 
Tonkin, 
King, 
Cullen, 
Willis, 
T. G. Danger, 
Dowel, 
Cooke, 
Teeee, 
Paul, 
0. 0. Danger, 
Blitek, 
R. B. Wilkinson, 
Burns. 
Tellers, 
Crick, 
Ewing. 
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No. 6. 

SAME BILL 

Question put,That the Committee does not insist on its disagreement to the Council's amend-
ment in clause 12, lines 6 and 7, omitting “in-the-ense of a conditienal-mivellase-sr-eenditifoutt 
 until-four weeko-after-the-date-ef-suelnappliontion ; and  in the-eage—of-a-hemegicad 1  ace for," 

and. inserting "until the expiration of." 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 58 	 Noes, 27. 
Sir Henry Parkes, 	Mr. 
Mr. Me kiillan, 	Mr. 
Mr. Brunker, 	 Mr. 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. 
Mr. O'Connor, 	Mr. 
Mr. Roberts, 	 Mr. 
Mr. Lees, 	 Mr. 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr, William Stephen, Mr. 
Mr. arBeckett, 	Mr. 
Mr. Fitzgerald, 	Mr. 
Mr. Woodward, 	Mr. 
Dr. Ross, 	 Mr. 
Mr. Mitchell, 	Mr. 
Mr. Seaver, 	 Mr. 
Mr. S. P. Abbott, 	Mr. 
Mr. Ritchie, 	 Mr. 
Mr. Dale, 	 Mr. 
M r. Scobie, 	 Mr. 
Mr. Frank Smith, 	Mr. 
Mr. Wheeler, 	 Mr. 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 	Mr. 
Mr. Molesworth, 	Mr. 
Mr. Davis, 	 Mr. 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Greene, 	 Mr. 
Mr. Nicoll, 	 Mr. 
Mr. Clubb, 

Disagreement not insisted on. 

No. 7. 

SAXE BILL. 
Question put,—That the Committee does not insist on its disagreement to the Council's amend-

ment in clause 26, line 54, inserting 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 61. 
Sir Henry Parkes,• 
Mr. MGM Man, . 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Roberts, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. alBeekett, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Perrv, 
Mr. Danis, 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. °ebb, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Dr. ROSS

'  Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Molesworth, 

Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. I nglis, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Thompson, 
Mr. Lvne, 
Mr. 0: 0. Dangar, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. T. G. Pangs; 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Ityrie, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Burns. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Fitzgerald. 

Noes, 19. 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen lens), 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. McCourt, 
lair. Coils, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr.•Sehey, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Lohman. 

Disagreement not insisted on. 	
No. S. 



NOes, 28. 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen Inner), 
Mr. Trail!, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. L" 113, 

Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Dammam 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Sober, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Creer, 
Mr. Greene. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Barbour. 

54 .5 

No. S. 
SAME BILL. 

Question ptit,—That the Committee does -not insist onlits disagreement to the Council's amend-
ment in clause 44, line 53, omitting " te-hins." 

Committee divided. 

56. 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Callen, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Molcsworth, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Ritcltie, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. R. 13. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Block, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Burns. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Frank Smith ;  
Mr. Joseph Abbott. 

Ayes, 
• 

Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. lirunker, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Roberts, 
Mr. Gould.  
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. alDeckett, 
Mr. Fitzgerald, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. 'Nicoll, 
Mr. E wing, 
Mr. Tliompson, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Hawke'', 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Inglis, 

r. B Lath iE011 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Waddell, 

Disagreement not insisted on. 

No. 9. 
SAME BILL 

Question put,—That the Committee does not insist on its disagreement to the Council's 
amendment in clause 45, lines I. and 2, omittinr ,  "five-tlieusaud-seven-hundred-and-si*tryi  and 
inserting " ten thousand two hundred and forty." 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 54. 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. SydnCy Smith, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Roberts, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. d'Beckett, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Nicoll, 

Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Thompson, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Hobbs, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. 0. 0. Bengal-, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. T. G. Danger, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Black, 
Mr. R. B. Ihrilkinson, 
Mr. Burns. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Fitzgerald. 

Noes, 28. 
Mr. Copeland, Tellers, Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen lanes), 	Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Traill, 	 Mr. Wall. 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Mellourt, 
Mr. Colls, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. SChey, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Creer, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Disagreement not insisted on. 

No. 10. 



No. 10. 

SAME BILL, 

'Question •put,—That the Committee does not insist on its disagreement to the Council'', 
amendment omitting clause 48. 

Committee divided. 

Ayes, 49. 	 Noes, 33. 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Roberts, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. William Stephan, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. Burns, 
Mr. Mitchell,  
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. £Beckett, 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Willis, 

Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Chtbb, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Alison, 
Ur. Woodward, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Ring, 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Moleswortb, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Ur. Wilshire, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. 0. 0. Dangar, 
Mr. T. G. Dangar, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Thompson. 

Tellers, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Fitzgerald. 

Mr. Hayes, 	 Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Copeland, 	Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Lyne, 	 Mr. Byrie, 
Mr. Dibbs, 	 Mr. Coils, 
Mr. Traill, 	 Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Tunkin, 	 Mr. Cruickebank. 
Mr. Gormly, Teller:, Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen hmes), Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Barbour, 	 Mr. Dawson. 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Creer, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Lakeman, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Scbey, 
Mr. Greene, 

Disagreement not insisted on. 

On motion of Mr. Bruuker, the Chairman left the Chair to report that the Committee does not 
insist on its disagreements from the Council's amendments insisted on by the Council, 
and agrees to the Council's amendments upon its amendments in clauses .18 and 20. 

FRIDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER, 1889. 

No. -11. 

Authority to 
mine on 
purchased or 
leased laud. 

MINING BILL. 

Clause 2. Any Crown Land which, after the commencement of this Act, shall be sold condi-
tionally or by auction or in virtue of improvements or otherwise, and any Crown Land 
which has been or shall hereafter be leased conditionally under the "Crown Lands Act of 
1884," or any Act amending the same, shall be subject to the following conditions, 
namely :—Any person specially authorized in the prescribed manner by the Minister shall, 
on depositing a sum of money as prescribed to cover the cost of' repairing any damage done 
to "the surface of" the land, be at liberty to dig and search for gold or other minerals 
within such "laud," and should it be found to contain gold or other minerals, or any 
substance which the Governor :hall declare by proclamation a mineral, the Governor 
may cancel wholly or in part the sale or lease of such •  land, and upon the notification 
thereof in the Gazette the proprietor shall be entitled to compensation for the value of the 
land or of his interest therein (as the case may be), and of the improvements thereon 
(as appraised by the Land Board, subject to appeal in accordance with the "Crown Lands 
Act of 1884," or any Act amending the same), but exclusive of the value of gold or other 
minerals therein, and such land shall thereupon become Crown Land within the meaning of 
the Mining Act 1874," or any Act amending the same, and shall be reserved from sale or lease 
until such reservation be revoked by the Governor. Provided that the person so specially 
authorized by the Minister to din- and search for gold or other minerals, upon satisfying the 
Minister that he has complied with all the conditions of such authority shall, on the 
appearance of such notification in the Gazette, be deemed to be the first applicant for a 
claim or lease of such land or a portion thereof, and the date of such application shall be 
reckoned from the day of publication of such notification in the Gazette, but in other 
respects as to labour conditions, and other matters, such application will be dealt with 
subject to the regulations in force for the time being authorizing the occupation of Crown 
Lands for mining purposes. (Read.) 

Motion made (Mr. Crick) to omit from line 7 the words "the surface of" 
Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the clause. 

Committee 
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Committee divided. 
Ayes, 72. 

Sir Henry Parkes, 	Mr. Moleswerth, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr.- McRae, 
Mr. McMillan, 	- Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Carruthers, 	Mr. flak, 
Mr. Drunker, 	 Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. See, 	 Mr. Hugh Taylor, 
Mr. O'Connor, 	Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. Nicoll, 	 Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Paul, 	 Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Martin, , 	Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Grahame, 	Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Ritchie, 	 Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Abigail, 	 Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Wall, 	 Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Chapman, 	Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 	Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. King 	 Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Perry, 	 Mr. Il enry Clarke, 
Mr. Gonnly, 	 Mr. Dowel. 
Mr. Plumb, 	 Mr. Goodehap, 
Mr. Thompson, 	Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Torpy, 	 Mr. L'Beckett, 
Mr. Joteph Abbott, 	Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Alfred Allen, 	Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Fuller, 	 Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Hutchison 	Mr. Walker, 

(Glen lanes), Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Copland, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 	Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. McCourt, 	Mr. &hey, 
Mr. Cooke, 	 Mr. Cruickshank. 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Tones, 	 Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Copeland, 	Mr. Cullen. 
Mr. Crecy, 

Words stand. 

Tellers, • 

Noes, 9. 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Fitzgerald, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Waddell, 

Tellers, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Crick. 

No 12. 
SAWS' BILL. 

(Same Clause.) 
Motion made (Mr. Crick) to insert after " land " in line 8 the words, " after notice thereof to 

the owner and occupier and report by the Warden" and question put. 
Committee divided. 

Noes, 67. 
Mr. Schey, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. John Wilkinson, 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Brooker, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Pkyfair, 
Mr. Martin, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. Cells, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Pao], 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Hurley, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Alfred Allen, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. MeCourt, 

Mr. Gough, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. 0. 0. Dangar, 
Mr. Bowman 
Mr. Dawson 
Mr, Carrutt:crs, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Cullen 
Mr. Gondy, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. erect, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. recce, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Dalton, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Fuller. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Ayes, 4. 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr Crick. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Seaver. 

[6d.1 

Insertion of words proposed negatived. 
Clause, as read, agreed to. 
On motion of Mr. Sydney Smith, the Chairman left the Chair to report the Bill with amendments 

to the House. 
?Saar . Charles Potter, Government PrInter.-1889. 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 18. 

WEEKLY REPORT OF DIVISIONS 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE. 
(EXTRACTED FROM THE MINUTES) 

MONDAY, 80 SEPTEMBER, 1889. 
No.!. 

SUPPLY—ADDITIONAL EsnitsktrEs. 
Public Instruction. 

Question proposed,—That there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding £26,563 6s, 
for the Department of Public Instruction. 

Motion made (Mr. Crick),—That the item "Museum—Contingencies--For the purchase of a 
special collection of Minerals from the Melbourne Centennial Exhibition, the preparation 
of Catalogues, and the purchase of Books, £550,"—be omitted. 

Question put,—That the item be omitted. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, G. 	 Noes, is: 
Sir Henry Perko, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Brattier, 
Mr: O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. M.cMillan, 
Mr. Sydney Smith,. 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Frank Smitb,, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Turner; 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Mayfair, 
Mr. 1'. G. Dimgaf,, 
Mr. Holborow, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Dalton, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Si okes, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Davie, 
Mr. Hurler, 
Mr. Kidd,. 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Seater,  

Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Tina 
Mr. Roberts, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Garvan,, 
Mr. Coperand;, 
Mr; Wheeler, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Levien, 
Mr. Ilaseall, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Frank Yarnell, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. &Beckett, 
Mr. Ring, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Burrs, 
Mr. Henry Clarke, 
Mr. Terre, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Dan-son, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. John Wilkineon. 

Tellers, 
Mr. MeRae, 
Mr. Cullen, 

Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Walker,. 
Mr. Scher, 
Mr. Toobey. 

Tellers, 
Ur. Comic, 

. Mr. Hutchison 
(Glen lanes) . 

Omission nf item negniived. 
rote as proposed (£26,563 Go.), agreed to. 	 No. 2. 

698— 
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No. 2. 
SAME ESTIMATES. 

Administration of Justice. 
Question proposed,—That there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding £16,738 58.1d. 

for the Department of Administration of Justice. 
Motion made (Mr. Copeland),—That the item under Miscellaneous Services " Gratuity to Sir 

j. C. Read, Bart., for services performed in the Police Force prior to his transference to the 
Prisons Department, £400,"—be omitted. 

And the Committee continuing to sit after Midnight,— 

TUESDAY, 1 OCTOBER, 1889, AM. 
Question put,—That the item be omitted. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 9. 
Mr. Trail!, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen lune:), 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Garrard, 

Tellers, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Welker. 

Omission of item negatived. 

Noes, 56. 
Sir Henry Parkes, 	Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Howe, 	 Mr. Tlawthorne, 
Mr. Levier], 	 Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Hibbs, 	 Mr. Barnes, - 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Brunker, 	Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Sober, 	 Mr. ti'Beckett, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. Scobie, - 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 	Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. McFarlane, 	Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Waddell, 	Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. 0 rabame, 	Mr. lifolesworth, 
Dr. Ross, 	 Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Nicoll, 	 Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Torpy, 	 Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 	Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Jones, 	 Mr. Tete°, 
Mr. Tilde!, 	 Mr. Hutchison 
Mr. Wilshire, 	 (Canterbury), 
Mr. Alexander Brown, Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Graven, 	 Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Carruthers, . 	Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. McCourt, 	Mr. Roberts, 
Mr. Cooke, 	 Mr. Harold Stephen. 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Reid, 	 Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Haynes. 
Mr. Fuller, 

Tellers, 

No. 3. 

SAME ESTIMATES. 
(Same Department.) 

Motion made (Mr. Copcland),—That the item under Miscellaneous Services "To meet the 
abatement which should, in terms of the Civil Service Ad:, be deducted from the Pension 
to W. E. Plunkett, late 'Under Secretary of justice, £801 5s. 4d.,"—be omitted. 	- 

Question put—That the item be omitted. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 17. 	 Noes, 53. 

 

Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Levien, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Dr. Ross, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. Hugh Taylor, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Riad, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Gamin, 
Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Henry Clarke, 

Mr. Stevenson, 
' Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. iilBeekett, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Molesitorth, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Roberts, 
Mr. Teem, 
Mr. Ilawlien, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Hawthorne. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Dale. 

Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Schey, 
Mr. Chanter,. 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr, Copeland, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen Ines), 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. Howe. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. 0. O. Danger. 

  

Omission of item negatived. 
Vote as proposed (£16,738 5s. id), agreed to. 	 No. 4. 



Mr. HAI. Brown, 
Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Woodward, 

Item omitted. 	 • 
And the vote having been further reduced,— 
Vote as reduced (208,056 10s. 10d.), agreed to. 

Mr. McMillan, 	- 	Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Gould, 	 Mr. Dale, 
Mr. O'Connor, ' 	Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Carruthers, 	' 	Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Brunker, 	Mr. Molesworth, 
Sir Henry Parkes, 	Mr. 0. 0. Hangar, 
Mr. Playfair, 	Mr. Bowman, ... 
Mr. /I...Beckett., 	Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Greene, 	 Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Hutchison 	Dr. Ross, 

(Glen loses), 	Mr. Cooke 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Roberts, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Plumb. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Waddell. 
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No. 4. 
SAME ESTIMATES. 

Secretary for Public Works. 
Question proposed,—That there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding £89,106 19s. 10d. 

for the Department of Secretary for Public Works. 
Motion made (Mr. Bruce Smith),—That the item under Colonial Architect's Department, 

Public Works and Buildings, Erection of Broken Hill Post and Telegraph Office, £4,500, 
be omitted. 

Question put,—That the item be omitted. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 45. 	 Noes, 20. 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Schey, 
Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Jones, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Goodebap, 
Mr. Crick. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Willis. 

No. 5. 
Salm ESTIMATES. 

Colonial Secretary—Miscellaneous Services. 
(Postponed Item.) 	 • 
Question .proposed,—That there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding £1,102 10s., 

"Remuneration to Mr. John Davies, from 2nd May to 30th December, 1887, for services as 
Chairman of the late Casual Labour Board, in addition to allowance paid to him for 
travelling expenses." 

And in the course of debate Mr. Dibbs, having used words complained of by Mr. Garrard as 
personally offensive to him as a Member of the House, withdrew the words when called 
upon to do so by the Chairman. Mr. Garrard, however, further demanded that Mr. Dibbs 
should apologize for the words. The Chairman stated thit he had not called on Mr. Hibbs 
to apologize, and did not consider an apology was required. 

Whereupon Mr. Garrard moved,—" That the Chairman leave the Chair and report the following 
Point of Order to the House, and ask leave to sit again when the Point of Order has been 
decided, viz., the Honorable Member for Murrumbidgee, Mr. Dibbs, having in his speech 
in Committee made use of language which the Honorable Member for Balmain, Mr. 
Garrard, took to be personally offensive, he asked that the words should be withdrawn 
and an apology made, the Chairman ruled that Mr. Dibbs having withdrawn the words, 
and he, the Chairman, not having requested an apology, in his opinion it was not needed"— 
and Question put. 

Committee divided. 
Ayes, 36. 	 Noes, 27. 

Mr. McMillan, Mr. Cullen, Mr. Wright, Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Brusher, Mr. Haynes, Mr. Gana; Mr. Grahame, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, ' 	Mr. Nobbs, Mr. Copeland, Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, Mr. llawkeh, Mr. Tyne, Mr. Stevenson, 
Sir Henry Parkes, Mr. Hutchison Mr. Alexander Brown, Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Gould, (Canterbury), Mr. Chanter, Mr. Harold Stephen. 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. 6)Beckett, 

Mr. Greene, 
Mr. McCourt, 

Mr. Traill, 
Mr. Hutchison 	• Tellers, 

Mr. Garrard, Mr. Cooke, (Glen :nines), Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Seaver, ' 
Mr. Roberts, 	- 
Mr. Playfair, 	' 
Mr. Hugh Taylor, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. O'Connor, 	' 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. &OM, 
Mr. Bowman, 

Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Molesworth, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Woodward. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Kidd, 

Mr. &hey, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Hibbs, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Goodchap, 
Mr. Lexien, 	. 
Mr. O'Sullivan, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Walker, 

Mr. Willis. 

Resolution agreed to. 
The Chairman left the Chair to report accordingly. 

THURSDAY, 
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THURSDAY, 3 OCTOBER, 1880. 
No. 0. 

SAME ESTIMATES. 

(Same Postponed Item.) 
Question again stated,—That there be granted to Efer Majesty a sum not exceeding £1,102 102., 

"Remuneration to Mr. John Davies, from 2nd May to 30th December, 1887, for services as 
Chairman of the late Casual Labour Board, in addition to allowance paid to him for 
travelling expenses," upon which Mr. Dibbs had moved,—That the item be reduced by the 
sum of £1,100. 

Question put,—That the item be reduced by £1,100. 

Noes, 42. 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. See. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Harold Stephen. 

Committee divided. 

.Ayes, 23. 
Mr. Hibbs, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Garvan, 
Mr. Alexander Brown, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Lyne, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Hut ChiS071 

(Glen lanes), 
Mr. Toohey, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr. Schen 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. W. T. Abbott, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. McFarlane, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Torpy, 

Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Reid, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Shepherd, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Martin, 

Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr Garrett, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Roberts, 
Mr. Teem', 
Mr. II. H. Brown, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Seobic, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Mitchell. 

Tellers, 
Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. Turner. 

Proposed reduction negatived. 
And the Committee continuing to sit after Midnight,— 

_FRIDAY, 4 OCTOBER, 1889, A.m. 
No. 7. 

S.AME ESTIMATES. 
(Same Postponed Item.) 

And a reduction of the item by £602 10s., moved by Mi. Reid, having been negatived,— 
Motion made (Hr. Sagnes),—That the Question be now put. 
Question put,—That the Question be now put. 
Committee divided. 

Ayes, 43 
Sir Henry Parkes,. 
Mr. McMillen, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Drunker; 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Street, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. IT II. :Brown, 
Mr. Garrett, 
Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Hugh Taylor, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. Dale, 	- 
Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Scobie, 

Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Martin, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Alfred Allen, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Dickens, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Reid, 
Tfr-Tcoce, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Stokes, 
Mr. Chapman. 

Tellers, 
Mix 0: 0: Hangar, 
Mr: Eliimb. 

Noes, 31. 
Mr. Torpy, 
Mr. Traill, 
Mr. John Wilkinson, 
Mr. Willis, 
Mr. Hutchison, 

(Glen Innes), 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Hibbs, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Toohey, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Schey, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Howe, 
Mr: Chanter, 
Mr. A lexander Brown, 
Mr. Greer, 
Mn Henry Clarke, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mn Copland, 
Mr. Barnes, 
Mr. Macfarlane, 

Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Colls, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. See. • 

Tellers, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Lakeman. 

And it appearing by tlaerTellers' lists that the majority in.. favour of the motion. consisted of , 
"at least forty members;"— 

Question agrecetto. 

No. 8. 
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No. 8. 
SAKE ESTIMATES. 

(Same Postponed Item.) 
Question put,—That there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding L1,102 10s., 

"Remuneration to Mr. John Davies, from 2nd May to 30th December, 1887, for services 
as Chairman of thelate Casual Labour• Board, in addition to allowance paid to him for 
travelling expenses." 

Committee divided. 
Ayes, 38. 	 Noes, 12. 

Sir 'Henry Parkes, 	Mr. Lees, 
Mr. McMillan, 	Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Gould, 	. 	Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Brunker, 	Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. O'Connor, 	Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 	Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 	Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Street, 	 Mr. Hutchison 
Mr. Paul, 	 (Canterbury), 
Mr. Carruthers, 	Mr. Hugh Taylor, 
Mr. Haynes, 	 Mr. Ritchie, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 	Mr. Garrett, 

- Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr.Chapman. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Allen. 

Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Martin, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Cooke, 

Item agreed to. 

Mr. John Wilkinson, 
Mr. Welker, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Lotman, 
Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. W. E. Abbott, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr. Deasm, 
Mr. Dickens. - 

Tellers, 
Mr. Waddell, 

. Mr. Stokes. 

No. 9. 
SAME ESTIMATES. 

Colonial Secretary—Miscellaneous Services. 
(Postponed Item). 

Question proposed,—That there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding £4,614 5s. 11d.: 
" Expenses in connection with the Casual Labour Board Inquiry Commission." 

Motion made (Aft. Waddell),—That the item be reduced by the sum of £1,401 15s.,—and 
Question put. 	- - 

Committee divided. 
Ayes, 35. 	 Noes, 15. 

Mr. Copland, 
Mr. Gerard, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Wen banes), 
Mr. Hawthorne, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Colts, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Hawker,, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. McCourt, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Gormly, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. See, 

Reduction agreed to. 

Mr. Sehey, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Turner, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Joseph Abbott, 
Mr. Leo, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Tome, 
Mr. 0. 0. Danger, 
Mr. Plumb, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Wilshire. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Paul. 

Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Drunker, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Lyn°, 
Mr. Dlbs, 
Mr. Goodchap, 
Mr. Hasten, 
Mr. Garai). 

Tellers, 
Mr. Mitchell, 
Mr. Walker. 

  

Item, as reduced (X3,242 10s. 11d.), agreed to. 
And the Committee continuing to sit after Midnight,— 

SATURDAY, 5 OCTOBER, 1889, A.M. 
On motion of Mr. McMillan, the Chairman left the Chair to report progress and ask leave to 

sit again, and also to report Resolutions to the House. 
No 10. 

APPROPRIATION BILE. 
Clause III—COLONIAL SECIIETARY—(Read.) 

Motion made (Mr. Dibbs),—That the:clauselbe amended by the omission of the item No. 161. 
" Item 161. Remuneration to Mr. John Davies, from 2nd May to 30th December, 1887, for 

services as Chairman of the late Casual Labour Board, in addition to allowance paid to him 
for travelling expenses, £1,102 10s. Od." 

Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the Clause. 
Committee 



Dd.] 

Committee divided. 
Ayes, 34. 	 Noes, 24. 

Sir Henry Parkes, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr..Sydney Smith, 
Mr. O'Connor, 
'Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Ring, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Plumb, Tll Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 	e ers,  
Mr. Hawken, 	Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Hawthorne, 	Mr. 0. 0. Danger. 

Words stand. 
Clause, as read, agreed to. 
And the remaining clauses of the Bill having been agreedto,— 
On motion of Mr. McMillan, Chairman left the 'Chair to report the Bill without amend-

ment to the House. 

Sydney : Charles Potter, Government Printer. -1880. 

Mr. Lee, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Dale, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Wilshire, 

•Mr. Woodward, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Teece, 
Mr. Street, 
Mr. Fuller, 
Mr. Hugh 'Taylor, 
Mr. Garrett. 

Mr. John Wilkinson, 
Mr. Creer, 
Mr. Hibbs, 
Mr. See, 
Mr. Wright, 
Mr. Chanter, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen Inner), 
Mr. Stevenson, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Lakemen, 
Mr. Playfair, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Walker, 
Mr. Henry Clarke, 
Mr. Lyne, 	- 
Mr. Sehey, 

Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Dalton, 
Mr. Trail], 
•Mr. Grarvan, 
Mr. Howe. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. rial3M11. 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 1. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OP 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

• 	WHEN 
RECEIVED. 

i 	PROM WHOM 
i AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. 

ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 
 

1889. 
Feb. 28 Certain free 	selectors 	of Two hundred and Mr. Cruickshank 	 Representing that in consequence of the 

Inverell. thirty-five. drought, Petitioners have been unable to 
obtain any return for their labour ; and 
praying the Rouse to pass a Bill for the 
purpose of either remitting or postponing 
the payment of instalments nnd interest 
on their respective selections. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 	 P. W. WEBB, 
Sydney, 1st March, 1889. 	 Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

(Sda 	 57.- 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No, 2. 

WEEKLY' ABSTRACT 
OP 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

WHEN 
RECEIVED 

FROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. 

ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1889. 
March 6 ... Fruitgrowers, exporters of  Eight 	hundred Mr. Nobbs 	 Praying the House to take immediate 

fruit, 	and 	others 	in- 
terested in the fruit in-
dustry. 

and sixty-nine steps to provide increased fruit market 
accommodation. 

John Fitzgerald Burns . One 	 Mr. Gould 	 Praying the House to appoint a Select 
Committee 	to complete the 	inquiry 
into the work of the unemployed on 
the roads at Hornsby. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 	 F. W. WEBB, 
Sydney, 8th March, 1889. 	 Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 3. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OP 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

WHEN 
RECEIVED. 

FROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
OP SIGNATURES. 

By WHOM 
PRESENTED. ABSTRACT OP PRAYER. 

1889. 
April 2 Excelsior Land Investment 

and Building Company 
and Bank (Limited). 

Three 	 Mr. Stevenson 	 Praying for leave to introduce the Toronto 
Tramway Bill. 

Barrier Ranges and Broken Four 	 Mr. J. P. Abbott 	 Praying for leave to introduce the Broken 
Hill Water Supply Cona- 
palsy (Limited). 

Hill Water Supply Bill. 

Illawarra 	Harbour 	and 
stand 	Corporation 

Two 	 Mr. Sutherland 	 Praying for leave to introduce the Ilia-
warn Harbour and Land Corporation 

(Limited). Bill. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 4th April, 1889. 

W. WEBB, 
Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

[3d.] 	 164- — 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 4. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OF 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 
WHEN 

RECEIVED. 
FROM WHOM 

AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 
NUMBER 

OP SIGNATURES. 
BY WHOM 

PRESENTED, ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1889. 
9 April Silverton Tramway Corn- 

pany (Limited). 
Four 	 Mr. T. P. Abbott 	 Praying for leave to introduce the Silverton 

Tramway Extension Bill. 

10 	,, 	... Alexander Rogers, Chair- 
man of meeting at 
Attunga. 

One 	 Mr. Levier! 	 

	

Representing 	that the 	farmers 	in 	the 
district 	of 	Tainivorth are 	holders of 
conditional purchases on which one 
year's interest is now due, and that, in 
consequence of the recent drought, they 
are unable to pay it ; arid praying the 
House to take their case into favourable 
considerable. 

11 	„ 	... Richard Tilden Smith, of 
Sydney, 	and 	John 

Two 	 Mr. Stevenson 	 Praying for leave to introduce the Silk-
stone Coal-mine Railway Bill. • 

Thomas Mance, of Par-
ramatta. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 11 April, 1886. 

 

F. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

   

[3d.] 	 165— 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLYs. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 5, 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OP 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY TEE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

WHEN 
RECEIVED. 

PROM WHOM 
A:CD 'WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
ON SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. 

ABSTRACT OP PRAYER. 

1889. 
April 16 Henry Rieketson, of Bar- 

ratta Station. 
, 

One 	 Mr. Lamb 	 Praying 	to be 	heard 	by 	Counsel or 
Attorney 	before 	Select 	Committee 
sitting 	upon 	"Conditional 	Purchases 
made upon Berretta Run." 

„ 	16 Mayor and Aldermen of 
the Borough Council of 
Grafton 

Twelve 	 Mr. McFarlane 	 Praying the House in passing the Fire 
Brigades Act Amendment Bill, to make 
provision to enable the country towns 
to withdraw from the operation thereof. 

„ 	17 Certain 	Crown 	Lessees, 
Conditional Purchasers 

Two hundred and 
sixty.five 

Mr. T. G. Danger._ . Praying the House to make certain alter-
ations in the Land Act. 

Merchants, and others. 
„ 	17 Augustus R. Fraser, Chair 

man of the Tenterfield 
One 	 Mr. Lee 	  Condemning the working of the "Rabbit 

Nuisance Act of 1883," and praying the 
Pastures and Stock Pro 
tection and Sheep Board 

House to adopt other principles. 	. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 	 F. W. WEBB, 
Sydney, 17th April, 1889. 	 Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

[3d.] 	 205— 
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1886. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 6. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OP 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

WHEN 
RECEIVED. 

PROM W1103S 
AND IVIIENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. 

ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1889. 
April 24 . Mallow,  Clarke Cowl ishaw Three 	 Mr. Cullen 	 Praying for leave to introduce the New 

Zanies Burns, and Charles South Wales Tramway Company's Bill. 
Frederick Stokes. • 

„ 	24 Certain 	inhabitants 	of Seventeen 	 Mr. Seaver 	 Praying the House not to pass the Broken 
Broken Hill and District Hill Water Supply Bill. 

„ 	25 •. Municipal 	Council 	of Two 	 Mr. Chapman 	 Pray ing the House not to pass the New 
Sydney. South Wales Tramway Company's Bill. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 	 E. W. 1VEBB, 
Sydney, 25th April, 1889. 	 Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

Dd.) 	 257— 
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1889. 

LE GISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 7. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT. 
op 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY TEE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

WREIf 
RECEIVED. 

FROM WROM 
AND 'WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. 

O ABSTRACT 	F PRAYER.  

1889. 
1 May 	.. Mayor and Aldermen of Eleven 	 Mr. Paul 	 Praying for leave to introduce the Bathurst 

Bathurst. Cattle Sale-Yards Bill. 

2 	„ 	„ Certain Jurors and Rcsi- One hundred and Mr. Chanter 	 Praying the House to cause the Minister 
dents of the Town and forty-seven. of 	Justice 	to 	make 	inquiries 	with 
District of Deniliquin. - reference io certain remarks made by his 

Honor Mr. Justice Windeyer at the 
Circuit Court at Wagga Wagga. 

2 	,, 	. Cecil Bloxsome, Chairman 
of the Glen Macs Pas- 
turas and Stock Protee-
lion Board. 

One 	 Mr. Wright..... ...... 

• 

Praying the House to repeal the Rabbit 
Nuisance Act of 1883. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 2 May, 1880. 

F. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

   

Dd.] 	 258— 



565 



567 

1889. 

LEGISLATIVE E ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 8. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OF 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY TEE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLYe 

WHEN 
RECEIVED. 

FROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRF.SENTED. 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. 

. ARSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1889. 
May 8 	 Henry Glasson, Chairman 

of the Carcoar Pastures 
and Stock Protection 
Board. 

One 	 Mr. Plumb 	 Condemning the "Rabbit Nuisance Act 
of I 88S," and praying the House to 
adopt other principles. 

Legislative Assembly Offices. 
Sydney, 8th May, 1889. 

F. IV. WEBB, 
Clerk of the Legislative Assembly. 

   

[ad.] 	 2130- 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 9. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OF 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 
WREN 

RECEIVED. 
FROM WHOM 

AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 
NI7MHER 

OF SIGNATURES. 
BY WHOM 

PRESENTED. ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1889. 
14 May 	... William Small, Chairman 

of the Grafton Pastures 
and Stock Protection 

One 	 Mr. McFarlane 	 Condemning the working of the "Rabbit 
Nuisance Act of 1883," and praying the 
House to adopt other principles. 

Board. 

14 	,, Certain residents of towi 
of Kelso. 

Thidy 	 Mr. Tonkin 	 Praying that the Bathurst Catlle Sale. 
yards Bill may be so amended that a 
rate on all stock sold within the pro-
posed radius will not be allowed. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 	 F. W. WEBB, 
Sydney, 16 May, 1889. 	 Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

Oa] 
	 301— 
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18S9. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 10. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
op 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

WHEN 
RECEIVED. 

FROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. 

ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1889. 
May 21 Mayor and Aldermen of One .. 	 

the Borough Council of 
Central Illawarra. 

Mr. Alexander Brown Praying to be heard by Counsel or Attar-
nor before Select Committee sitting on 
the " Illawarm Harbour and Land Cor-
poration Bill." 

„ 	21 	... Francis O'Donnell, of Five Three 	 
Islands, David James, of 
the same place, and John 
Richards, of Unanderra, 
near Wollongong. 

Mr. Alexander Brown Praying to be beard by Counsel or Atter-
ney before Select Committee sittina

' 
 on 

the "Illawarra Harbour and LanclCor-
poration Bill." 

22 A. T. Laurie, Chairman of One 	 
the Port Stephens Pas- 
tures and Stock Protec- 
tion Board. 

Mr. Roberts 	 Condemning the working of the " Rabbit 
Nuisance Act of 1883; and praying for 
its repeal. 

' 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 23rd May, 1869. 

F. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

[3 d.] 	 302- 
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1889 
May 28 

	

„ 28 	 

	

„ 28 	 

Certain electors of the 
Electorate of Moulin% 

Certain electors in the 
Police Distrietof Tweed 

J. N. Antill, Chairman o f  
the Picton Pastures and 
Stock Protection Board. 

Seven hundred 
and eight. 

Three hundred 
and forty-eight. 

One 

„ 29 	 Edmund Henry Taylor, 
of Sydney, and George 
Kerry Kirkland, cd 
Sydney. 

• 
29:. . 

	

	Certain residents of Bath 
urst and District. 

29 	 David Scotland, Chairman 
of the Board of Direc 
tors of the Windsor 
Gas-light Company 
(Limited). 

Two ....... 

Eight hundred 
and fifty. 

One 	 

Mr. Paul 	 

Ma AVa»t 	 

Praying the Boum to pass the "Bathurst 
Cattle Sale-yards 

Praying for leave to bring in the 
't Windsor Gas-light Company 
(Limited) Act Amendment Bill." 

WI [EN 
RECEIVED. 

FROM %THOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY IADIDAI 
PRESENT.F.D. 

ABSTRACT 01,  PRAYER. 

Praying that the Electoral District of 
Monaro may be divided into two Elec-
torates, viz., Police District of Coma 
and Police District of Bombala. 

Praying that the Tweed and Brunswick 
portions of the Electorate of I hel:tich-
tumid should be erected into a separate 
Electorate. 

Condemning tbe working of the Rabbit 
i Nuisance Act of 1883,and praying that 

the principle of lccal administration 
may be adopted. 

Praying for leave to bring in the 
" Sydney and Suburban Electric 
Lighting Bill." 

M r. Dawson 

Mr. Ewing 	 

Mr. Kidd 	 

Mr. Melville 	 

572 

1589. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 11, 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OF 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 31st May, 1880, 

F. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of the Legislative Assembly. 

   

[3d.] 	 833— 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 12. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OF 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 
WREN 

RECEIVED. 
FROM WHOM 

AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 
NUMBER 

OF SIGNATURES. 

Dr WHOM 

PRESENTED. 
ABSTRACT OP PRAYER. 	- 

1889. 
0 June ... J. Moseley and S. Riddle, 

Directors of the Narrabri 
Pastures and Stock Pro- 
tection Board. 

Two 	 Mr. T. G. Danger Condemning the working of the "Rabbit 
Nuisance Act of 1883," and praying that 
the House will adopt the principle of 
local self-government and compel each 
district to destroy the pests within it. 
boundaries. 

6 	,, 	.. Edwin ErnestAllen Oatley.  
of 	Sydney, and 	Jobn 

Two 	 Mr. Want 	 Praying for leave to bring in the Warwick 
Farm Railway Bill. 

Thompson, of Sydney. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 7 June, 1889. 

F. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

   

pd.j 	 339—.  
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 13. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OP 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY TEE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 
WREN 

RECEIVED. 
FROM WHOM 

AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 
NUMBER 	 BY STROM 

OF SIGNATURES. 	PRESENTED. 
ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1889. 
11 June .. William Elphinstone Gm- 	One 	... ......... .. 

hame, lath Teacher of the 
Public 	School, 	Cedar 

Mr, Roberts 	 Having completed the sixtieth year of his 
age, resigned from the Public Ser;rice in 
terms of section 13 of the Civil Service 

Party Creek, Wingbam. Act, and praying the House to grant him 
some allowance from the Superannuation 
Fund. 

14 June James 	MeLaurin, Chair- One 	 
man of Public Meeting 
held at Germanton. 

Mr. Lynn 	 Suggesting certain alterations in the Crown 
Lands Bill. 

Legislath e Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 14 June, 1889. 

P. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

[13t7.) 	 380— 
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1889. 

- LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 14. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OP 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY TI1R 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

WREN 
RECEIVED. 

PROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

HUMMER 
OP SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. 

ABSTRACT OP PRAYER. 

1889. 	. 
Tune 25 	... 

„ 	25 .. 

W. E. Abbott, Chairrnan 
of the kfurrurundi Pas- 
tures andStockProteetion 
Board, 

George Lovell, Mayor of 
Ryde, and Alfred Weeks, 
Mayor of Hunter's Hill. 

One 	 

Two 	 

Mr. Waddell 	 

Mr. Frank Farnell 	 

Condemning the working of the " Rabbit 
Nuisance Act of 1883," and praying that 
the principle of local administration 
may be adopted. 

Praying for leave to bring in the "Muni. 
cipalitios of Ryde and Hunter's Hill 
Bill." 

„ 	25 	... Frederick 	Samuel 	Ellis 
Holt, 	of 	Sutherland 

Two 	 Mr. Burns 	. 	 Praying the House not 	to 	affirm the 
expediency of bringing in the "General 

House, 	Sylvania, 	and Post Office (Approaches) Improvement 
Alfred William Holt, of Bill." 
Clifton, St. Leonardo. 

„ 	26 	... Sas. Collins, of 13rougham 
street, Glebe. 

One 	 Mr. Kidd 	 Praying that the 	" Oakey Park Coal- 
mining Company's Railway Bill" may 
be referred to a Select Committee, and 
that he may be cited to attend in person 
or by counsel, as an opponent of the Bill. 

„ 	26 	... Landowncrs,farmers, store One thousand six Mr. Woodward 	 Praying the House to pass the' Wollon- 
keepers, 	and 	other 	in 
habitants of the Town of 

hundred 	and 
fifty. 

gong Harbour Trust Bill." 

Wollongong and Elector 
ate of Illawarra. 

• „ 	28 Red h cad Coal-mining Com 
pany (Limited). 

Three 	 Mr. I. P. Abbott.... Praying for leave to bring in the "Redhead 
Coal-mine Railway Act Amending Bill." 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 28th June, 1889. 

F. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

441— 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No, 15. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OP 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY 1.11E 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 
WHEN 

RECEIVED. 
FROM WHOM 

AND WRE,NGE PRESENTED. 
NUMBER 

OP SIGNATURES. 
BY WI103t 

PRESENTED. AI:SWOT OF PRAYER. 

1899. 
; July 	 Frederick 	Samuel 	Ellis 

Holt, 	of 	Sutherland 
Two 	....... ..... Mr. Burns 	 Praying the House tot I o pass into law 

tle `• General Post Office (Approaches 
House, 	Sylvania, 	and 
Alfred William Holt, of 

Improvement) Bill," as it now stands, 
and that Petit loners may be heard by 

Clifton, St. Leonanis. Counsel against . 

4 	„ 	...... Mahlon Clarke Cowlishaw. 
of Sydney, Merchant. 

Ono 	 Mr. Fletcher ...... ...... Praying for leave to bring in the " Stock Lon 
Gas and Electricity Bill." 

Logislatil e Assembly Offices, 	 F. W. WEBB, 
Sydney, 5th July, 1850. 	 Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

[ad.] 	 463— 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 16. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OF 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY TIIE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

WREN 
DECEIVED. 

FROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

PRESENTED. 

1859. 
July 9 	 SeottishAustralianMining 

Company (Limited). 
One 	 Mr. Brie ........ 	.... Praying to be beard by Counsel before 

the Select Committee sitting on the 
"Redhead Coal Mine Railway Act 
Amending Bill." 

9 	 John Gilbert Thompson, 
Edward IlenryJohnson, 
and James Giles. 

Three 	 Mr. Lees 	 Praying that the interests of the Peti-
timers may be conserved as regards 
provision for compensation to tenants 
in case of the resumption of land in 
connection with the " General Post 
Office 	(Approaches 	Improvement) 
Bill." 

9 	 Sarah 	Cunyngliame, 	of 
Parramatta. 

Ono 	 Mr. Howe 	 Praying to be heard by Counsel before 
the Select Committee appointed to 
inquire into and report upon the matter 
of her removal from the position of 
Superintendent of the Maequarie-strect 
Asyhun, Parramatta. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 12th Slily, 1889. 

F. W. WE1313, 
Clerk of the Legislative Assembly. 

[3d.] 	 464— 
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LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 17. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
Or 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

DT THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 
WHEN 

RECEIVED. 
PROM WHOM 

AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 
NUMBER 

OP SIGNATURES. 
BY WHOM 

PRESENTED. 
ABSTRACT OP PRAYER. 

1889. . 
16 July 	... G. Arthur Thompson, 

Mayor of Albury. 
One 	........ ....... Mr. John Wilkinson In opposition to the proposal of granting 

an extension of pastoral leases in 	the 
Central Divison, and praying the House 
to restore to the Crown Lands Bill the 
original clause. 

16 	„ 	. Edward Neave and John Two 	. Mr. Hurley 	 Praying 	for 	leave 	to 	bring 	in 	the 
Ewan Palmer, of Sydney. " Katoomba Lighting Bill." 

18 	„ 	.. George 	Lovell, 	doling 
Chairman of the Fruit. 
growers' Union of New 
South Wales. 

One 	 Mr. Nobbs 	.. ....... :. Praying 	for 	increased 	Fruit 	2..farket 
accommodation

' 
 and that steps be taken 

to resume block of land between Quay. 
street and the Darling Harbor Railway 
Line, for the erection of suitable markets 
thereon. 

Legislathe Assembly Offices, 	 F. W. WEBB, 
Sydney, 19th July, 1889. 	 Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

[3d.] 	 512— 
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1880. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 18, 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OF 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

WREN 
RECEIVED. 

PROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1889. 
July 24 . Mahlon Clarke Cowlishaw,  

James Burns, and Charles 
Frederick Stokes, Diree 
ton of the New South  
Wales Tramway Company 
(Limited). 

Three 	 Mr. Cullen 	 
, 

Praying for leave to bring in the "New 
South Wales Tramway Company's Bill." 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 26th July, 18S9. 

F. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

[3d.] 	 • 513— 
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1889. 

LEGISLA.TIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 19. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OF 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

EY TILE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 

WHEN 
RECEIVED. 

FROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1889. 
July 30 	 Sydney Maxted, Director 

of Government Asy- 
lams, and Boarding-out 
Officer, of Sydney. 

One 	 Sir Henry Parkes . Praying to be represented by Comm 
or Attorney before Select Committei 
sitting on case of "Mrs. Cunynghame, 
late Superintendent of the Macquarie 
street Asylum for Infirm and Destitute, 
Parramatta." 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 2nd August, 1W. 

F. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of the Legislative Assembly. 

[34 
	

532— 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 20. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OF 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY TUE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 

WHEN 
BRUIN' EH 

 FROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

By WHOM 
PRESENTED. 

ABSTRACT OF BRAYER. 

1889. 
August 6... Certain residents of the 

District of Elawarra. 
One 	thousand 
three 	hundred 
and forty-seven. 

Mr. Cullen 	 Praying the House tonnes the "thawarra 
Harbour and Land Corporation Bill." 

Legislative A ssembly Offices, 
Sydney, 9th August, 1889. 

 

P W. WEBB, 
Clerk of the Legislative Assembly. 
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1889. 

Lr:GISTATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No, 21, 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
op 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 

wilEN 
RECEIVED. 

FROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

NUMBER . 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1880. 
August 20... George Maiden, of Sydney One 	 Mr. Slattery 	 Praying for leave to bring in the "Broken 

Hill and Pinnacles Tramway Bill." 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 23rd August, 1889. 

F. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of the Legislative Assembly. 

[34 	598— 	
, 
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WHEN 
RECEIVED. 

PROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 

HUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

BY WHOM 
PRESENTED. ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

That hey are opposed to the contem-
plated exienditure of a sum of money 
in dreilging operations on the Hawkes-
bury River, but favor the construction 
of a light line of railway from the 
Windsor Railway Station to Saekville 
Reach. 

1889. 
August 29. Certain farmers, free- 	One hundred and 

holders, and residents of thirteen. 
the Hawkesbury River. 

Mr. Stevenson ..... 

595 

1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 21 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OP 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 	 F. W. WEBB, 
Sydney, 29th August, 1889. 	 Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

(Bd.) 	 628— 
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1889. 

4t 	 LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 23, 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OF 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 
WHEN 

RECEIVED. 
FROM WHOM 

AND WHENCE PRESENTED. 
NUMBER 

OF SIGNAITRES. 
BY WHOM 

PRESENTED. ABSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1889. 
5 Sept. West Wallsend Coal Coni•Tick 	 

pany (Limited). 
Mr. Burns 	 Praying for leave to bring in a Bill to eon-

firm the removal by the West Wallecnd 
Coal Company (Limited), of its registered 
office to Sydney, and for providing that 
the Articles of Association adopted by 
the Company after its registration shall 
have the same efficacy as if the same had 
been the original Articles of Association. 

- 

Legislatil e Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 5th September, 1889. 

F. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of Legislative Assembly. 

[3d.] 	 647— 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 24. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OP 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 

WHEN 
RECEIVED. 

FROM WHOM 
AND WHENCE PRESENTED, 

NUMBER 
OF SIGNATURES. 

DV WHOM 
PRESENTED. 

ARSTRACT OF PRAYER. 

1889. 
September 26 Farmers, 	storekeepers, 

producers, 	and others 
of the parish of liar- 
graves, in the Welling-
ton District. 

Thirty-one 	 Mr. Wall 	 Praying that duties may be imposed on 
all agricultural products imported 
into the Colony. 

Legislative Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 27th September, 1889. 

•  

F. W. WEBB, 
Clerk of the Legislative A seembly. 

m.1 	687— 
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18S9. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

No. 25. 

WEEKLY ABSTRACT 
OD 

PETITIONS RECEIVED 

BY THE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 
WREN 

RECEIVED. 
FROM WHOM 

AND WHENCE PRESENTED 
NUMBER 

OF SIGNATURES. 
BY WHOM 

PRESENTED. 
ABSTRACT OP PRAYER. 

3839. 
9 Oct. Certain 	Farmers, 	Store- 

Icepeers, Producers, and 
Laborers of District of 
Taralga. 

One hundred and 
six. 

Mr. Holborow 	 Praying 	for 	duties 	to 	be imposed 	on 
imported agricultural products. 

Legislatise Assembly Offices, 
Sydney, 10th October, 1889. 

F. W. WEBB, 
Cleric of Legislative Assembly. 

L3d.] 	 807- 
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Comminion. • 

VICTORIA, by the Grace of God, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland, Queen, Defender 
of the Faith, and so forth,— 

To our trusty and well-beloved- 
C1TA.RLES EDWARD RELCHER, Esquire, one of Our Counsel learned in the law, President ; 
EDWARD Wthraisx KNOX, Esquire, and 
ALFRED LAMB, Esquire,— . 

Greeting :— 
Know ye, that We, reposing great trust and confidence in your ability, zeal, industry, 

discretion, and integrity, do, by these presents, authorize and appoint you or any two of you, as hereinafter 
mentioned, to make a strict and immediate inquiry into all charges or accusations against Members of 
Parliament, or other persons, as contained in the Official Reports of Debates of Our Legislative Assembly 
on the 12th, 13th, 14th, and 18th days of December instant, so far as they tend to implicate any Member 
or Members of Our said Assembly, or other persons whatever, in corrupt or improper conduct in connec-
tion with the proposal of the Government to dispose of the Tramways in the City of Sydney and the 
Suburbs, and to take any steps which you may deem to be necessary (including visits to Melbourne or 
other places if so deemed to be necessary) to arrive at the truth in the premises, and to see that justice to 
all parties is done : And We do by these presents grant to you or any two of you, at any meeting 
or meetings to which all of you shall have been duly summoned full power and authority to call before 
you all such persons as you may judge necessary, by whom you may be better informed of the truth in 
the premises, and to require the production of all such books, papers, writings, and all other documents 
as you may deem expedient, and to visit and inspect the same at the offices or places where the same 
or any of them may be deposited, and to inquire of the premises by all lawful ways and means : And We 
do give you power at your discretion to procure such clerical and other assistance as you may deem 
necessary for enabling you duly to execute this Our Commission : And Our further will and pleasure is, 
that you do within one month after the date of this Our Commission, certify to Us, in the office of 
Our Colonial Secretary under your or any two of your hands and seals, what you shall find touching 
the premises ; and We hereby command all G-overnment officers and other persons whomsoever within 
Our said Colony, that they be assistant to you and each of you in the execution of these presents : And 
We appoint, you the said CfrAntEs EDWARD PILCIIER, Esquire, to be President of this Our Commission, 
which said Commission We declare to be a Commission for all purposes of the Act 41 Victorim No. 1, 
intituled, " A.n Act to regulate the taking of Evidence by Commissioners under the Great Seal." 

In testimony whereof, We have caused these Our Letters to be made Patent, and the Great 
Seal of Our said Colony of New South Wales to be hereunto affixed. 

Witness our Right Trusty and Well-beloved Councillor, CLABLES ROBERT, BARON 
CARRINGTON, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distingliished Order of Saint 
Michael and Saint George, Our Governor and Commander-in-Chief of Our Colony 
of New South Wales and its Dependencies, at Government House, Sydney, in 
New South Wales aforesaid, this nineteenth day of December, in the fifty-second 
year of Our Reign, and in the year of Our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
eighty-eight. 

(L.s.) 	CARRINGTON. 

By His Excellency's Command, 
(is.) HENRY PARKES. 

Entered on record by me, in REGISTER OF PATENTS, No. 13, pages 287-8, this twentieth day of 
December, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-eight. 

CRITCHETT WALKER, 
(For the Colonial Secretary and Registrar of Records.) 
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ROYAL COMMISSION RE CHARGES ARISING OUT OF PROPOSED 
DISPOSAL OF GOVERNMENT TRAMWAYS. 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS. 

FRIDAY, 4 JANUARY, 1889. 
PRESENT :— 

Charles Edward Pilcher, Esq., Q.C., President, in the Chair. 
E. W. Knox, Esq., 	 Alfred Lamb, Esq. 

Commission read. 
Commissioners deliberated as to mode of procedure. 
The following witnesses were examined :—Mr. G. R. Dibbs, na, Mr. J. H. Carruthers, M.P., 

Mr. John Haynes, M.P., and Mr. R. H. Levien, M P 
It was directed that Mr. Robert Bowman, of Melbourne, be written to and informed that the 

Commission are now sitting in Sydney, and desire to examine him. If Mr. Bowman should not be able to 
come to Sydney, he be then requested to state if lie would submit himself for examination in Melbourne 
in the event of the Commissioners taking evidence there. 

Ordered, that the following witnesses be subprenacd for Monday, 711 January :— 
Mr. T. S. Huntley, at 10 .30 adn. 
The Honorable James Inglis and the Honorable Wm. Clarke, at 1110 a.m. 
Mr. Robert Smith and Mr. A., H. M'Culloch, jun., at noon. 

Commission adjourned until Monday, ith January, at 1030 a.m. 
CHAS. E. FILCHER, 

President. 

MONDAY; 7 JANUARY, 1889 
PRESENT :— 

Charles Edward :Filcher, Esq., President, in the Chair. 
F. W. Knox, Esq., 	 I 	 Alfred Lamb, Esq. 

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and signed by the President. 
The following witnesses were examined :-14Ir. T. S. Huntley (who was warned by the President 

that he need not answer any question relating to his alleged interview with Mr. Haynes, unless he chose 
to do so), the Hon. William Clarke, M.P. ; the Hon. James Inglis, M.P. ; Mr. Barling, Under Secretary 
for Works. 

Ordered that the following witnesses be subpumaed for Tuesday, January 8th :—Mr. John 
Woods, Mr. James Burns, Mr. Alfred Bennett, Mr. Archibald, at 1010 a.m. Mr. Pritchard, Mr. E. P. 
Simpson, at 1D15. 

Also, that a note be sent to Mr. A. H. McCulloch, junior, reminding him that he was summoned 
for Monday, and asking him to appear at 1030 on Tuesday. 

TUESDAY, 8 JANUARY, 1889. 
PRESENT :— 

Charles Edmund Pileher, Esq., President, in the Chair. . 
B. W. Knox, Esq., 	 I 	 Alfred Lamb, Esq. 

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and signed by the President. 
The following witnesses were examined :—Mr. .lames Burns, Mr. Alfred Bennett, Mr. F. 

Archibald, Mr. John Woods, the Hon. John Sutherland. 
Ordered that the Secretary write to Mr. Curren Woods in reply to a letter from him, asking for 

the name of the gentleman referred to by him as having read a communication relative to the leasing of 
the tramways. 

Ordered also that the Secretary call at Mr. McCulloeh's office and enquire when he will return 
from Melbourne, and be at liberty to give evidence before the Commission. 

And that Mr. Edward Pritchard be summoned for the following day, Wednesday, at 1010 adn. 
CHAS. E. HIGHER, 

President. 

WEDNESDAY, 9 JANUARY, 1889. 
PRESENT :— 

C. E. Pilcber, Esq., President, in the Chair. 
E. W Knox, Esq. 

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and signed by the President. 
Mr. E. P. Simpson was examined. 
The Secretary was instructed to telegraph to Messrs. Bowman and McCulloch, requesting them to 

attend a meeting of the Commission for the purpose of examination. 
Also to summon Messrs. Edward Pritchard and Carron Woods for Friday morning. 

CHAS. E. FILCHER, 
President. 

FRIDAY; 

CHAS. E. PILCHER, 
President. 
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FRIDAY, 11 JANUARY, 1889, 
PRESENT :— 

Charles Edward Pileher, Esq., President, in the Chair. 
E. W. Knox, Esq. 

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and signed by the President. The followino-
witnesses were examined :—Mr. Henry Gunett, Mr. Starkey, Mr. Taylor, Mr. Pritchard, Mr. A. 11. 
McCulloch, junior, Mr. John Woods (re-examined). 

A note was received from Mr. Huntley askina
° 
 permission to make an alteration in his evidence. 

Ordered that the correction be added as a footnote to Mr. Huntley's evidence. 
Ordered that the following witnesses be summoned for Monday, the 14th instant :—Mr. Thomas 

Dalton, at 1030 o'clock ; Mr. Kelso King, at 1030 o'clock ; Mr. C. Cowlishaw, at 11 o'clock : Mr. Sohn 
M.cElhone, M.P., at 12 o'clock ; Mr. David Proudfoot, at 12 o'clock. That a telegram 'be sent to 
Mr. Bowman of Melbourne, offering his expenses and, maintenance in the event of his coming to Sydney 
for examination by the Commissioners, and asking him to name a convenient day as early as possible 
during the following week ; also, that a letter be written to Mr. James Fletcher, M.P., asking him to 
attend the meeting of the Commission on Monday morning the 14th instant. 

CHAS E :FILCHER, 
President. 

MONDAY, 14 JANUARY, 1889. 
PRESENT :— 

C. E. Pilcher, Esq., Q.C., President, in the Chair. 
E. W. Knox, Esq., 	 A. Lamb, Esq. 

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and signed by the President. 
The following witnesses were examined :—Mr. Thomas Dalton, M.P.; Mr. James Fletcher, MY.; 

Mr. M. C. Cowlishaw Mr. Kelso King ; Mr. McElhone, MR 
Ordered that the following witnesses be summoned for Tuesday, the lfith instant, at 10 . 30 o'clock 

in the forenoon :—James Burns, Esq. ; John Woods, Esq. ; 0-. McL. *Matheson, Esq. 
CHAS. E. PILCITIER, 

President. 

TUESDAY, 15 JANUARY, 1.889. 
PRESENT :— 

C. E. Filcher, Esq., Q.C., President. 
E. W. Knox, Esq., 	 Alfred Lamb, Esq. 

The following witnesses were re-examined :—Mr. James Burns, Mr. John Woods. 
Mr. G. Mi. Matheson, and Mr, David Fri:m(1foot were examined. 
Mr. Matheson was recalled and re-examined at the conclusion of Mi. Proudfoot's evidence. 

CHAS. E. Paella 
President. 

THURSDAY, 17 JANUARY, 1.889. 
MORNING. 

PRESENT :— 
Mr. B. W. Knox (in the Chair). 

Mr. Alfred Lamb. 
Mr. Toohey, M.P., was examined. 

AFTERNOON. 
PRESENT :— 

Mr. C. E. Pilcher, Q.C., President, in the Chair. 
Mr. E. W. Knox, 	 Mr. Alfred Lamb. 

The following witnesses were examined :—Mr. Robert Bowman, Mr. M. E. Tonkin, M.P. 
The Secretary was instructed to insert advertisements in the Sydney daily newspapers, inviting 

persons to come forward and give evidence before the Commission, at 10 .30 a.m., on Thursday, the 24th 
inst. 

At the request of the Commission the Chairman certified for the expenses and maintenance of Mr. 
Bowman. 

CHAS. E. PILCHER, 
President. 

THURSDAY, 24 JANUARY, 1889. 
PRESENT :— 

C. E. Pilcher, Esq., Q.C., President. 
E. W. Knox, Esq., 	I 	Alfred Lamb, Erg. 

The minutes of this and the two previous meetings were read and signed by the President. 
Mr. G-. S. Duncan, of Melbourne, was called and examined. 
At the request of the Commission, the Chairman certified for Mr. Duncan's expenses and main-

tenance. 	 CHAS. E. PILCHER, 
President. 
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. ALLEGED ATTEMPTED BRIBERY OF MEMBERS OF PARLIAMENT. 

REPORT. 

To His Excellency the Right Honorable CHARLES ROBERT, BARON 
CARRINGTON, a Member of Her Majesty's Most Honorable Privy 
Council, Knight Grand Cross of the Most Distinguished Order of Saint 
Michael and Saint George, Governor and Commander-in-Chief of the 
Colony of New South Wales and its Dependencies. 

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY,— 
As Her Majesty's Commissioners, appointed by Letters Patent under 

the Great Seal of the Colony, dated the 19th day of December, 1.888, to make a 
strict and immediate inquiry into all charges or accusations against Members of 
Parliament or other persons, as contained in the official reports of the debates of 
the Legislative Assembly of New South Wales on the 12th, 13th, 14th, and 18th 
days of December last, in so far as they tend to implicate any Member or Members 
of the said Assembly, or other person whatever, in corrupt or improper conduct in 
connection with the proposal of the Government to dispose of the tramways in the 
city of Sydney and the suburbs, we have the honor to submit to your Excellency 
the following Report :— 

The charges or accusations contained in the reports of the debates on the 
days named are as follows :— 

Upon the l2th December Mr. Dibbs, then the Leader of the Opposition, is 
reported to have said,— 

There are lists containing the .names of Honorable Members of this House for whom certain 
shares are set aside, provided they hold their tongues and allow a feeling motion of this sort to be passed. 

speak on authority, and I make the statement that in one or two of the syndicates formed to tender 
for the tramway shares had been put aside to secure the co-operation of Honorable Members of this House. 
* * * The Honorable the Minister for Justice can tell us snore about this affair, and snore about 
Mr. Fehongs appointment than any other men. He can tell us whether 311.. Pelson, nominally as Railway 
Commissioner, is not here for the purpose of piloting through the leasing of the tramways to a Melbourne 
syndicate. 

bn the following day Mr. Dibbs is reported to have said,— 
By way of personal ex-planation I should like to set at ease the mind of the honorable gentleman 

who has just spoken, and ex -plain to other honorable Members who appear to have misunderstood what 1 
said last night. I did not charge any honorable Member of this House with having been guilty- of cor-
ruption, or with haying received any bi ibe. What I distinctly said was this : that syndicates have been 
formed—and I mentioned four of them—for the purpose of tendering for the Tramway Service, and that 
shares have been set aside for those Members of the House who might be kept silent on the occasion. 
did not charge any Member of the House with having accepted a bribe in any shape or form. 

• 	On 
25—b 
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On the 13th December Mr. 1VIcElhone is reported to have said,— 
We have had the Minister for Justice and the Minister for Public Instruction going down to 

Melbourne. The agent there for the Melbourne Tramway told me that two of our Ministers were 
over there, and that they were in the syndicate, and had a large interest in it. This is part of the 
robbery and jobbery of the Government headed by Sir Henry Parkes. 

• 	 i On the same day Mr. Levien s reported to have said,— 
I was introduced to a gentleman of the name of Mr. Robert Bowman, 20, King-street, Melbourne. 

He was a Member of the Legislature of Victoria, and a wine and spirit merchant. He said to me, "I 
would like to see you to-morrow; I have something I should like to say to you. I wish you would come 
Mad speak to me." He did not mention the matter about which he wished to speak ; but I thought it 
was something in connection with racing matters, he being of a sporting turn of mind. I said, "I will 
meet you." The next day I met this gentleman, I think, in Collins-street. He said, "What I wanted to 
speak to you about was with reference to the leasing of the tramways in New South Wales. I 
am working up a syndicate, and I have got a good deal to do with it. You are a Member of the 
Legislature of New 'South Wales, and if you will assist us you will have a good chance of being solicitor." 
It may be very amusing, but nevertheless it is true. We have been told that all the things that have 
been said in reference to Members were untrue; but I am one of those who believe there is a great deal 
of truth in it. I said, "I don't want the solicitorship of this business. That is not my game." He then 
said, " I believe there is in New South Wales a gentleman named Pritchard who attends to things of 
this sort. Do you thing we could get him in P" He also said, "We have the Minister of 
Justice and the Minister of Public Instruction." I believe it my duty to mention the matter to the 
House, and if I were ungenerous enough to make these charges merely to injure those two hon. Members; 
I should be condemned by every honest man. I noticed that the leader of the Opposition said last night 
that there would be a certain number of shares for-Members of Parliament; and Mr. Bowman said to me 
in Melbourne, "'We intend to reserve .  a good many shares for Members of Parliament ; but it is the 
Opposition that we fear. -We know that the Government supporters are all right." If these statements 
are untrue, they are a gross libel. The matter rests between Mr. Bowman and the two Members to 
whom I have referred. I ask the Premier now to tell those hon. Members in their own interests, and for 
the sake of the Government, to .  go and clear their characters in the eyes of the country. The whole case 
will rest upon the evidence of Mr. Bowman and myself. I have here a card of Mr. Bowman's with his 
handwriting on it, and in the course of conversation to which 1 have referred. 

On the same day Mr. Haynes is reported to have said :— 
About four months ago I was met in one of the streets of this city and was most undoubtedly 

offered a large bribe to support this proposal to lease the tramways. 
Mr. McElhone :—Name ! Name ! 
Mr. Haynes: The hon. Member will not get the name until tho right time. I intend to vote for 

this proposal, and when the House comes to deal with the question of leasing the trams, if this individual 
is connected with the syndicate, I will expose the whole thing. I was careful enough to state the fact 

. three months ago to a well-known citizen, who made a note of it so that I might not be tripped up. I was 
offered, if I would support the leasing of the tramways to these people, 1,000 sovereigns and 1,500 paid-up 
shares. * * * About three months ago, as I was walking up King-street, I was met by a gentleman whom 
I know in this city. He told me that the leasing of the trains would be brought before the House 
shortly, and he said that if I supported the matter, and saw it go through, his syndicate would stand 

- me 1,000 sovereigns, and give Inc a receipt showing-that I had subscribed fully for 1,500 shares in the 
syndicate for leasing the trams. * * * Well, Mr. Huntley made me that offer in King-street. 
I approved of the principle of leasing the tramways ;  but I intended to interpose the statement I made 
to-night when the question of dealing with the leasing came up for consideration. The statement is 
absolutely and in every particular correct, and I make it, not accidentally, but intentionally, and with a 
determination resolved upon more than three months ago. I hear the Secretary for Public Works say 
that this gentleman was not in his office. He was not in the Minister's office, but he was in the lobby of 
the Public Works Department. He was standing there with a number of other people. * * * 
About three months ago I was walking up King-street to the Assembly when I was mot by the person 
before the bar of the House, Mr. Thomas Huntley, who stopped and told me that Parliament would 
shortly be dealing with the question of the leasing of the trams, and he stated that if I would assist in 
that matter with others, I should get 1,000 sovereigns for my work, and in addition get 1,500 paid-up 
shares, which would be given to me in this way : that I would get a receipt as having paid for the shares, 
and the shares would be handed to me in due course. (An hon. Member: What shares?) Mr. Haynes: 
In a syndicate, which was to lease or take the trans from the Government. That is my statement 
distinct and clear. 

On the 18th December Mr. Carruthers is reported to have said :— 
I was coming out of the Fresh Food and Ice Company's shop in King-street, when I met a gentle- 

man, Mr. T. S. Huntley. Mr. Huntley is a person with whom I have been acquainted for some five or 
six years past. He is a constituent of mine, and an alderman of a neighbouring -borough to where I reside. 
During my acquaintance with him I have never known anything derogatory to his character, or anything 
that would tend to cause me to be suspicious of intercourse with him in any shape or form. This gentle- 
man, after giving me an ordinary salute, and making a few common-place remarks, said, "What do you 
think about this tramway business?" This was in King-street, in the open street. " -Well," I said, "I 
don't know ; I don't know what you mean." He said, "I mean with regard to letting this Melbourne 
'crowd have our tramways without anybody knowing anything about it." I said, "I do not think that is a 
proper thing." He said, "I do not think it is a proper thing either. We Sydney people ought to be 
allowed to come in and have the same show as the Melbourne people." I said, "Most decidedly ; and 
more than that, I think that if the trionways are to be sold the general public throughout the world 
should have a tidy and, plain opportunity of tendering, and buying them in the same way as any other 

property 
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property would be bought and sold." He said, "Supposing au attempt were made to have a resolution 
passed in the House that if the tramways are to be sold or leased it should be done in the most 
open and public manner possible, would you be inclined to support that?" I said, "Supposing the 
tramways are to be sold or leased, I certainly think, as I have said before, that they should be 
leased in a public manlier, and in a manner best calculated to get a good price for the Government," 
He said, " That is all I want—fair play ; a fair field and no favour. Now." he said, '1 may as 
well tell, you what I have done. I have been interesting myielf lately, and I have formed a public 
company, composed entirely of Sydney men ; men who are worth any amount of money, who can plank 
down their £1,000,000 for the purchase of. the tramways if we get a chance." He said, "The men who 
are in the company are the best men we have in Sydney ; they are known as men of honorable character, 
and as men of means." He mentioned the names of some of them to me ; but they have escaped my 
memory, with one exception, that of Mr. a F. Stokes. "Now," he said, " It is a real good thing if we 
succeed." He said, "I cannot ask you or anybody else to take up shares, because the shares are all gone; 
and, more than that, we have decided to have no Member of Parliament in the syndicatenot to allow 
any Member of Parliament, or any person holding a public office, to hold shares, because we think 
that the fact might be used to injure them, and to injure us ; therefore we thought it best to 
have no Member of Parliament mixed up with us. But I will tell you what we have done, so that -  you 
will not think there is any unfairness in keeping Members of Parliament out of it simply on account of 
their position. We are about to reserve a number of shares "—I think he said 50,000, but I am not 
sure—" provided we succeed in getting the trains, to be allotted amongst Members of Parliament." 
Honorable Members laugh. If they laugh because they think there is something corrupt here they are' 
laughing very much out of place. it is a matter for solid shame that a bribe of any description should 
be offered to any Member of this Ronde. Honorable Members, I say, are laughing at the wrong time 
and in the wrong place. If they let me proceed they will see that the attempt to foul and besmirch the 
character of this Parliament, which is involved in this matter, will fail most signally. This gentleman 
said " We are about to reserve a certain number of shares, say 50,000—provided always that we succeed 
in getting the contract—to be allotted amongst Members of Parliament and others who are now pre-
eluded from joining in, at par. After the thing is over, any Member can come in and make his applica-
tion, and it will be dealt with by the Board." I said :—" Mr. Huntley, I think you make a very grave 
mistake indeed in having any such proposal or mixing up any such matter with a public company. 
Depend upon it no Member of Parliament, so far as I know the Members "—honorable Members need 
not think this is something as an afterthought, for I can undertake to put Mr. Huntley upon his oath, 
and, if he speaks the truth, make him corroborate my statement—I said :—" From my knowledge of the 
Members of Parliament 1 do not think any of them require any incentive of that character (because I 
treated it then n,s something, held out as an incentive) to do their duty. If you want to get this thing 
through, if you want to be the successful tenderers, go in on your own merits ; let matters take their own 
course in a straightforward and honorable manner, and you have got nothing to fear. You will have your 
equal chalice with the whole world. Take my advice, Mr. Huntley, and never mention such a subject to 
anybody again." 

In addition to these specific charges, insinuations and suggestions were made 
during the debate imputing dishonesty and corruption both to Members of Parlia-
ment and to private persons who were interested in the syndicates formed for the 
purpose of tendering for the Tramways. We have called before us and have 
examined the gentlemen whO are reported to have made these charges and 
accusations, and all other persons who we were informed, or thought, could give 
us any information on the subjects of our inquiry (with the exception of Mr. Robert 
Smith, who left for England before the first sitting of the Commission). The 
evidence of all the witnesses is attached hereto.. 

We have thought it well, in framing our Report, to take the charges in the 
order in which they Eire here placed. 

MR. DIBBS' 

Mr. Dibbs, in his evidence given before us, explains that he made the 
charges above set out upon the authority of certain statements made to him by 
Mr. A. H. McCulloch, junior, and Mr. Robert Smith, of Norton, Smith, & Co.; 
that the suspicions engendered by those statements were increased by his distrust 
of the general conduct of the Government, and by the apparent anxiety of certain 
strangers who were present during the debate in the fate of the Government resolu-
tions. Mr. Dibbs distinctly says that he makes no imputation against these gentle-
men, and that they were interested in the tendering syndicates. 
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After fUlly Considering the Teasens given by Mr. Dibbs, Ve find that they do 
not justify the charges lie has made—charges winch lie himself admits do not 
impugn the honour of Members of Parliament, but which certainly are a very 
grave reflection upon many prominent and respectable citizens. Mr. Dibbs no 
doubt made these charges in all good faith, believing in them at the time he made 
them, but they are not supported by the evidence. 

Mn. MCELHONE'S CHIRGES. 

Mr. McElhone says that Mr. Proudfoot informed him that a Mr. Duncan, of 
Melbourne, had told him that the Government of New South Wales had already 
made arrangements to lease the tramways to a Melbourne syndicate, and that Mr. 
Clarke, the late Minister for Justice, was largely interested in that syndicate. , Mr. 
McElhone also says, upon the authority of Mr. Proudfoot, that Mr. Matheson, a 
Member of the late Assembly, made a similar statement to him, Mr. Proudroot, so 
far as regards the leasing of the tramways. 

We examined Mr. McElhone, Mr. Proudfoot, Mr. Matheson, and Mr. Duncan. 
Mr. Proudfoot's evidence substantially corroborated that given by Mr. MeElhone, 
except that he would not be sure that Mr. Clarke's name was mentioned in connection 
with the syndicate. 

Mr. Matheson states that he did in effect tell Mr. Proudfoot what he is 
represented to have said about the leasing of the tramways, but that he did it to 
silence an objectionable visitor, and without any authority or knowledge to justify 
his statement. 

Mr. Duncan, it will be noticed, gives the most complete denial to Mr. 
Proudfoot's account of the interview between them. 

Upon this evidence we have come to the conclusion that there is nothing to 
justify the statement that Mr. Clarke was interested in the syndicate referred to 
or that any arrangements were made between the Government of New South Wales 
and the Melbourne tramway syndicate, as alleged by Mr. Proudfoot. 

Mn. LEVIEN'S CHARGE, 

Mr. Levieu stated that Mr. Bowman, of Melbourne, informed him that the 
late Minister of Justice and the late Minister of Public Instruction either were to 
have, or had, interests in the syndicate which that gentleman was then forming, in 
the event of his syndicate obtaining the lease of the Tramways. 

Upon this charge we examined Mr. Levien, Mr. Bowman, Mr. Clarke, the 
late Minister of Justice, Mr. Inglis, the late Minister of Public Instruction, and 
Mr. Pritchard, whose name is mentioned by Mr. Levien in his evidence. In addition 
we obtained from Mr. Bowman the names of all the persons who were interested in 
his syndicate. Mr. Clarke and Mr Inglis both absolutely deny that there is any 
truth in the statement alleged to have been made by Mr. Bowman, and Mr. Bowman 
positively swears that he never made any such statement. 

We also examined Mr. Pritchard, who corroborates Mr. Inglis in this : that 
the latter gentleman advised Mr. Pritchard not to have anything to do with Mr. 
Bowman. 

This evidence, in our opinion, altogether fails to substantiate the charge 
made by Mr. Levien. 	 Mn. 



On 

625 

13 

1111. HAYSES' CAARGE 

Mr. Haynes says that about four months ago, when on his way to the House .  
in the afternoon, he met Mr. Huntley, at the corner of King and Castlereagh streets 
in King-street ; that in the course of a short conversation Mr. Huntley offered him 
21,000 and 1,500 paid-up shares in the syndicate with which he was associated, on 
condition that he (Mr. Haynes) would support the granting of the lease of the tram-
ways to Mr. Huntley's syndicate. 

Mr. Haynes also said, in support of this charge, that shortly after the offer 
was made to Mm he Mentioned the matter to Mr. Bennett, of the Evening News;  
and Mr. Archibald, of the Bulletin. 

-Upon these charges we examined Mr. Haynes, Mr. Bennett, Mr. Archibald, 
and Mr. Huntley, and in connection therewith we shall have to refer to the evidence. 
given by Mr. Carruthers, Mr. Kelso King, Mr. Burns, Mr. Cowlishaw, and Mr. 
McCulloch. 

Mr. Bennett says that Mr. Haynes did call upon him one day about noon, 
and told him that an offer of a bribe in connection with the tramway leasing pro-
posals had been made to him that morning in Pitt-street by a person whcise name 
Mr. Haynes did not disclose, and that Mr. Haynes promised him (Mr. Bennett) to 
endeavour to obtain an offer of the bribe in writing. 

Mr. Archibald says that he met Mr. Haynes one day in Pitt-street, about 
2 o'clock in the afternoon, when Mr. Haynes said, " I have caught them at last ;" 
and further informed him that he had been offered a bribe of a thousand or two for 
his support, of the tramway leasing proposals. Also, that Mr. Haynes did not disa 
close the name of the person who offered the bribe, though requested to do so. 
From the evidence it appears that Mr. Haynes had not discovered Mr. Huntley's 
name at the time of the debate in Parliament, though he frequently saw him in the 
meantime. 

Mr. Carruthers states that during the formation of the syndicate, which 
ultimately became the New South Wales Tramway Company, Mr. limitley told 
him that they did intend to reserve a certain number of shares to be applied for 
by Members of Parliament and other persons in a public position after the resolu-
tions had been dealt with, and that these shares were to be allotted at par when 
applied for by such persons. This statement Mr. Huntley admits, but says that 
the idea was never communicated by him to any of the gentlemen composing 
the then syndicate, nor were they cognizant of it, and that after the conversation 
with Mr. Carruthers he abandoned the idea. Mr. Carruthers also says that in his 
conversation with Mr. Huntley he certainly did not view Mr. Huntley's intended 
proposal as anything calculated to be a bribe to Members of Parliament. 

We have also the evidence of Mr. Kelso King, who says that Mr: Burns, 
of Burns, Philp, & Co., the chairman of the New South Wales Tramway Company, 
before the registration of that company, told him that they had reserved, or 
intended to reserve, 100,000 shares for Membars of Parliament This statement 
Mr. Burns denies; and it will be observed that if such reservation was contemplated 
by either Mr. Huntley or Mr. Burns, it was before the company was registered, 
and when the venture was in a syndicate form. 
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On the other hand, Mr. Huntley most positively swears that he did not meet 
Mr. Haynes as that gentleman alleged, and that he did not have any conversation 
with him, nor did he make him any offer of any kind, either at the time and place 
named by Mr. Haynes or at any other time and place. 

The evidence of Mr. Huntley, Mr. James Burns, and Mr. Co7lishaw, is to 
the effect that at the time of the alleged conversation with Mr. Haynes no shares .  
were reserved in the New South Wales Tramway Company for Members of 
Parliament, and that Mr. Huntley had no authority to make any such offer, and 
that no such promise would have been recognized or fulfilled. Mr. Burns and Mr. 
eowlishaw further state that such a reservation was never contemplated in their 
company. 

We also had before us the whole of the books and share list of the New South 
Wales Tramway Company, and found that all the shares in the company, with the 
exception of 24,000, were allotted ; and the minute-book does not disclose any 
reference to shares reserved for any purpose whatever. 

Upon this evidence we have to state that Mr. Haynes has not Made out his 
charge against Mr. Huntley ; at the same time we do not desire to make any 
reflection upon Mr. Haynes, because from the nature of the case the charge made 
by him would be difficult of proof unless lie had succeeded in fulfilling his promise 
made to Mr. Bennett and obtained an offer of the bribe in writing. 

MR. CAltirummts' CHARGE. 

The next charge is that made by Mr. Carruthers. We have already referred 
to this in dealing with the evidence upon the charge made by Mr. Haynes. 
Mr. Carruthers' statement is admitted by Mr. Ifuntley ; and Mr. Huntley's 
statement that he abandoned the idea of reserving shares for Members of Parlia-
ment is supported by the books of the New South Wales Tramway Company, 
which show that all the shares except 24,000 were actually allotted before the tender 
was sent in. 

TGE GENERAL CHARGES. 

With reference to the suggestions of bribery, to which definite shape was not 
given, we have only to say that i.n our opinion these have proved to be as devoid of 
solid foundation as the more specific charges which we have dealt with in the fore-
going pages. These insinuations against the honour and good faith of Members of 
Parliament and others appear to have arisen from rumours and suspicions which we 
believe to be unjustifiable and totally unsupported by facts. 

We feel bound to add that a comparison of the evidence given before us, 
with the speeches as reported in Hansard, will in more than one instance show that 
gentlemen who made positive statements in. Parliament implying a full knowledge of 
the alleged corruption were admittedly unable to give us any information upon the 
subject when under examination before us. One witness stated that he believed in 
the dishonesty of Mr. Clarke because of certain conditions which he was informed 
were embodied in the specification accompanying the advertisement calling for 
tenders. It turned out, on inspection of the specification, that this gentleman's 
information was entirely erroneous. This instance shows how easily suspicions are 
created, and consequent rumours set afloat, and what value can be attached to 
either. 

We 
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We have the honor, in conclusion, to report to your Excellency that in our 
opinion the charges of bribery and dishonesty made in the debates of the Assembly 
cannot be sUstained; and that, with regard to the special accusation made by Mr. 
John Haynes against Mr. T. S. Huntley, Mr. Haynes has failed to satisfy us that a 
bribe was offered to him by Mr. Huntley. 

Certified under our hands and seals this 25th day of January, 1889. 

CHAS. E. PILCHER, T2RESIDENt 

EDW. W. KNOX. 
&LIMED LAMB. 
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ROYAL COMMISSION ON ALLEGED ATTEMPTED BRIBERY OF MEMBERS 
OF PARLIAMENT. 

MINUTES OF EVIDENCE. 

FRIDAY, 4 JANUARY, 1889. 

fitment:— 
C. E. PLLCHER, Esq., Q.C., RUES:IDEST, 

W. E. KNOX, ESQ., 	 J 	 A. LAMB, ESQ. 

THE PRESIDENT IN THE CHAIR 
George Richard Dibbs, M.P., called in, sworn, and examined:— 

1. President.]I believe you are a Member of the Legislative Assembly ? Yes. 	 G. R. Hibbs, 
2. And I believe you are the leader of the Opposition ? Yes. 	 M.P. 
3. This Royal Commission has been appointed in consequence of certain statements made in the 
Assembly on the 12th, 13th, 14th, and 18th December last. On one of those days you are reported in 4  J811.4889 ' 
llansard, page 1131, as follows:— 

Perhaps the hon. Member is not aware of what is passing. There are lists containing the names of lion. Members of 
this House, for whom certain shares are set aside, provided theywill bold their tongues and allow a feeling motion of this 
sort to be passed. 

Hos, MEMBERS: Name ! Name! 
Mr. HIBBS : Hon. Members will have the names in due time. 
Sir HENRY FABLES : Would it not be better to give them now ? 
Mr. HIBBS : The bon. Member will have them when I like to give them. 
HON. MEMBERS : Give them now! Name! 
Mr. Dl BBS 1. speak on authority when I make the statement that in one or Wu of the syndicates formed to tender for 

the tramways, shares have been put aside to secure the co-operation of hon. Members of thus House, I am not the man to 
make statements of that kind without sufficient foundation. The Government has been negotiating with regard to those 
tramways for some months ; and I would like to ask who drew up the specifications which appeared in the Gazelle. 

Further on you are reported to have said 
It is no use saying that, because the Govenmient have not. Tenders were called on a date before the specifications 

could reach other parts of the world. The Government should have taken steps to get tenders from England, the Con' 
tinent, and America. In due time I will substantiate what I have said as to shares having been set aside for Members 
of this House to secure their silence, and when they have influence to secure their Go-operation. 

Sir HENRY PARKES : Those Members must be on the Opposition side 
Mr. HIBBS They rely upon hon. Members supporting the Government to lend themselves or to give away their 

feelings entirely to the speech of the Premier. 
Mr. C. A. LEE: his only just to us to mention their names. 
Mr. TUOMPSON : The hon. Member should give his authority. 
Mr. DIBBS : I will give you the names and my authority in good time. 
Mr. FRANK SMITH: The hon. Member should do so before a vote is taken. 

At page 1133, in answer to an interjection by Mr. O'Connor, you are reported to have said:— 
Mr. D. O'Cosson: Has he been apprehended by the police since ? 
No ; but I believe they will have some of the members of the syndicate, and they may have some Members of the 

Government before this matter is done with. These gentlemen are prepared IO give over and above the money invested 
a bonus of B500,000 for forty years. The money is already subscribed to pay a deposit into the Colonial Treasury. 

Then at page 1232, on the following day, you are reported to have made these remarks by way of personal 
explanation :— 

By way of personal explanation, I should like to set at ease the mind of the lion, gentleman who has just 
spoken, and explain to other hon. Members who appear to have misunderstood what I said last night, that I did not 
charge any hon. Member of this House with having been guilty of corruption, or with having received any bribe. What 
I distinctly said was this : that syndicates had been formed—and I mentioned four of them—for the purpose of tendering 
for the tramway service, and that shares had been set aside for those Members of the House who might be kept silent on 
the occasion. I did not charge any Member of the House with having accepted a bribe in any shape or form. 

Mr. ABIGAIL: The hon, gentleman raid that Members of the Government should be in the bands of the police. That is 
the charge ! 

said nothing of the kind. I have a right to interpret my own language, and there can be no mistake as to the words I 
used. I said that the air was thick with suspicions. And surely the statements made here to-night show that there were 
grounds for these suspicions. So far as the attempt is made to "fix upon me that I charged Members of this House with 
accepting any bribe, or being parties to any bribe. I deny that I made any such statement. I only alleged that syndicates 
had been formed, and that shares in those syndicates had been set aside for Members of Parliament. I did not charge 
hon. Members, either individually or collectively, with being parties to any bribe. 

'With reference to the remarks reported at pages 1131 and 1133, do you desire to give any information to 
the Commission? Nothing beyond this, that the statements made by me in those two pages have been 
confirmed by Members of the Rouse who have come forward and given themselves as the parties to whom 
shares had been offered. 1 had heard of some parties in the House having been offered shares ; in fact 
I had heard of Mr. Carruthers having been offered shares, and Mr. Carruthers came forward in the 
House and gave the information which connected the statement I made with the fact. I had heard from 

25—A 
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G. R,  Mils, a friend of Mr. Carruthers, whose name Mr. Carruthers gave up in his speech—Mr. MeCnlloch—of shares M. P. 	being set aside in some deeds of agreement that had been made,—I had not seen the deeds,—and that Mr. 
4 5n1889 Carruthers had been offered shares. That is what I was alluding to. Mr. Carruthers came forward and a ., 	. gave the whole of the information to the House, his announcement having been preceded by a similar 

statement by Mr. Haynes. Of Mr. Haynes I know nothing. 	• 

4. Then who were the Members upon whose information you made those statements ? I made the state-
ments in a general way, as explained in my remarks at page 1232 of Hansard, as I had been informed of 
the existence of syndicates, and as to the existence of syndicates there is no doubt—that has been admitted. 
That portion of my statement which refers to the £500,000 was from a member of one of the syndicates—
Mr. Robert Smith. He gave me the information about that, and he also gave me information about the 
existence of other syndicates. He told me that to his knowledge other syndicates had set aside shares 
for Members of Parliament ; but he stated that the syndicate which he represented was making an honest 
tender for the work, stating positively that they were not mixed up in any way with the setting aside of 
shares for Members of Parliament, but at the same time he said he knew that others were doing this. 
That information I received on the day that I. made the statement in the House. 
5. Do you allude to Mr. Robert Smith, of Norton and Co. ? Yes. Mr. Smith told me of the existence 
of two syndicates—a Melbourne syndicate and a Sydney syndicate, and the syndicate he proposed to 
tender for—and it was all arranged—was a third syndicate. He told me they had subscribed the money 
to make the necessary terms, and lie believed they would give over £500,000 as a bonus. 	• 
6. Mr. Lamb.] Over the cost of the tramways ? Yes. 
7. President.) As far as I understand the matter the £500,000 was quite legitimate. It simply means 
that that is their value of the goodwill ? Yes ; the goodwill and the right of the streets. We were out 
on the water at the time and it was past 12 o'clock on the day when the tenders were to have been sent 
in ; so that we were speaking of things which had occurred. The tender was in, so that there could be no 
mistake about it. We were out on a picnic excursion on that very day, when all the arrangements were 
made, and coming back from the picnic I made the statement in the House. But Mr. Smith 'distinctly 
gave me to understand that the syndicate with which he was connected made no such provision as the 
setting aside of shares for Members of Parliament. 
S. Then you understood from Mr. Smith that the syndicate to which he belonged had not made any 
provision in any way whatever to interfere with the honesty of Members of Parliament ? I understood 
that distinctly. But lie told me that he believed others had, and I told him I had, heard the same report 
too. I told him I had heard that other syndicates had made provision for shares to be allotted to 
Members of Parliament upon certain terms so that his statement agreed with what T. had heard, and I 
heard it from Mr. McCulloch, who had heard it from Mr. Carruthers, who had been tempted and who had 
been offered shares, and had entered into all the details with Mr. McCulloch. 
6. Do I understand, then, that the information upon which you made the statement in the House was the 
information you had obtained from Mr. McCulloch and also from Mr. Robert Smith ? Yes. The infor-
mation was conveyed to Inc in the form of a. conversational statement by Mr. McCulloch of the existence, 
—as I believed, to his knowledge—of two syndicates, in both of which, or the agreements for which, 
provision had been made for setting aside a certain portion of shares—upon what terms I do not 
know—for Members of Parliament who would favour the passing of the tram proposals. That statement 
made by Mr. McCulloch was so far confirmed in conversation with Mr. Robert; Smith as to give it, in my 
opinion, the appearance of perfect honafides to enable me to make the statement which I del. 
10. Of your own knowledge do you know of any attempt being made, in any shape or form, to interfere 
Or bribe any Member of Parliament ? I would not swear to that of my own knowledge. One may hear 
statements made and you may get a strong instinct of what is going on from surrounding circumstances, 
and. I spoke under that instinct. For instance, you see gentlemen who dabble largely in these matters 
in close attendance at the House, in close conversation with Members of the house ; you see them 
behind the Speaker's chair, and you see them there night after night, and at all hours of the night ; and 
you notice a variety of things which you cannot give definite shape to or make legal evidence of, but 
which occur to a man's mind, and upon which he may form a strong opinion which may be pretty true ; 
but you cannot make legal evidence of it, nor can I swear to it as a matter of fact. 
11. Then do I understand you to say that the information you obtained received confirmation in your 
mind from the fact of certain gentlemen being constantly in attendance at the House during this debate 
That all helped to confirm. 
12. It wa.s an element in your mind ? Yes—the intense interest taken in the matter. And I would also 
say, that clear confirmation was furnished by two Members of the House; who, speaking after me in the 
debate, said they had been offered a• bribe, and thus gave a strong colouring of fact to my bare statement 
made under the instinct with which I acted. One may have a strong suspicion from surrounding circum-
stances, but when those strong suspicions are borne out by facts and the statements of Members to whom 
bribes were offered, that is strong colouring to give countenance to the statement I made. 
13. if the statements are true, that is a strong confirmation of your suspicions ? Yes ; I have no reason 
to doubt that the statements are true. They have been denied in one case; but so far is Mr. Carruthers' 
statement is concerned it has not been denied in any way that I can see. Mr. Carruthers made the statement 
upon his honor and so did Mr. Haynes, and these statements made by these two MOD upon honor confirmed 
largely the suspicions which T had gathered in my own mind from a variety of surrounding circumstances 
that occur when you are in communion with a hundred people in the House, and thousands of people 
outside. You gather up the idea in your own mind, and it is confirmed by the fact. 
14. You stated just now that the attendance of certain people at the House during the debate formed an 
element in your mind in arriving at a conclusion ? Of intense personal interest. 
15. Who were the persons whom you noticed? Gentlemen from Melbourne, and some from Sydney. 
16. Do you remember their names ? Mr. Jennings was behind the Speaker's chair ; a gentleman named 
Fraser, an auctioner, was behind the chair. There was also Mr. Andrew Rowan, of Melbourne, and 
another Melbourne gentleman, whose name I have forgotten. 
3.7. Was it the Secretary of the Melbourne Tramway Company, Mr. Clapp ? I do not know. He was a 
military looking individual with a moustache, and evidently a man of some standing and position, but 
baye forgotten his name. These gentlemen were there at late hours of the night, and very early in the 
morning, intensely interested in this matter, and from conversations I had with them I think they were 

pretty 
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pretty certain that the resolution would be carried by a large majority. I had a conversation with them G. R. Dibba, 
M.P. about it. 

18. With reference to those gentlemen whose names you have mentioned, do I understand that it svas  4 Jan, 1889. simply their presence there and the great interest they seemed to take in the matter that drew your  
attention to them ? Yes ; but I make no personal imputation upon any one of them. 
1.9. I notice at page 1232 of " Hansard" that you make a personal explanation which has already been 
read ;—do I understand you to say that that explanation given by you at page 1232 is the explanation you 
adhere to of what you said at page 1131 ? Yes, that is so. 
20. I have asked you already whether you know personally of any attempt to bribe or of any bribery ? 
Yes, :ind I said I aid not. 
21. And were your suspicions which were aroused from what you heard from Mr. Illtulloch and 
Mr. Smith mainly based upon those statements ? 

Joseph Hector Carruthers, M.P., called in, sworn, and examined :— 

24. How long have you been a Member ? Since the last general election. 

22. President] Are you a Member of the Legislative Assembly? Yes. 
23. For what constituency ? Canterbury. 	 Carruthers, 

25. You were present, I believe, in Parliament on the 1.8th December last, when the discussion on the 4 Ian., 1889. 

J. H. 

MY. 

proposed leasing of the tramways took place ? Yes; I was there two nights when the debate occurred. 
26. Were you there on the 18th ? If that is one of the nights, I was there. The 18th was the night 
after the discussion, the Tuesday after the discussion on the leasing of the tramways. I was present then. 
27. And you made a speech ? I did. 
28. I find by Hansard, pages 1259-63, that you made it speech, which I will read :—" On Thursday .  
evening, or Friday morning" ? I have read that speech, last night or yesterday morning. It is a correct 
report of what I said, almost verbatim. 
29. 111,01 read this passage :— 

Now, the facts arc simply these : Something like four or five weeks ago, during the currency of a debate in this House, 
the hon. Member for Eden, Mr. Giervan, had occasion to use a volume of Hansard, so I was informed by the librarian 
then, which within half an hour afterwards I desired to make use of myself. I went, to the library and sought the 
vol nine, but was informed that, the lion. Member for Edon lied it. I then searched for him, but I did not find him in the 
House, and one of the messengers informed me that he was in the Opposition room. I went to the Opposition room, 
opened the door, and said, " Gentlemen, excuse me. Is Mr. Garvan here ?" He was not there, and the lion. Member 
for Newcastle, who is always very friendly to me, said, "Come in, Joe ;  I want to see you." The hon. Member passed 
some casual remark, and the bon. Member for Tamworth, Mr. Levien, also spoke to MP, and I shook hands with him. 
'That was how I came to be in the Opposition room, where I remained a. few seconds. Immediately after what I have 
mentioned—and I regret to have to divulge any conversation—sib° conversation turned on the tramway question, and I 
heard rumours bruited about that there was a great swindle on; that some Members of the Government wore in it ; and 
that there was general eorruption in Parliament. 

The expression I want to draw your attention to is this : "I heard rumours bruited about that there was 
a great swindle on" ? That was in the Opposition room. I heard the remark made in a general way 
that 'there was a great swindle on ;" they thought "somebody was going to make a pool out of it." I 
cannot give the exact remarks, more than that that was the general tenor of the observations which were 
thrown out as interjections from one to another, and the fact that there was a great swindle on, and that 
there was to be a, big pool scooped by somebody. 
ha Who were the persons in the room at that time, as far as you remember? I recollect that Mr. 
Fletcher was there ; Mr. Wall I know was there, by his statements afterwards in the House; Mr. Dalton 
was there — 
31. Mr. Levien.? T think Mr. Levien was there, although he was rather doubtful about that. He has 
a very vague recollection about it. I do not know who else was there. There were five or six more 
there, I know. I went in there, and I was only there two or three minutes, and I had my back turned to 
most of those in the room during that period. There were some sitting down at the table writing, and 
all I could see of them was the top of their heads. I did not take any pains to discover who was or 
who was not there, and it is only of the one or two chief persons who addressed me that I have any 
recollection. 
32. Who were they ? Mr. Fletcher, Mr. Levien, and Mr. Dalton. Mr. Fletcher and Mr. Dalton were 
sitting face to face to where I was standing. 
33. Were these charges to which you refer made by Mr. Fletcher and Mr. Dalton? I would not like to 
put the charges actually into the mouths of anyone. The gentlemen whom I recollect as speaking more 
than anyone else were Mr. Fletcher, Mr. Dalton, and, I think, Mr. Levier', in spite of the slight doubt 
that exists in my mind as to whether Mr. Levien was there. My recollection goes to beer me out that 
Mr. Levien was there. He took part in the conversation. Those were the three gentlemen whom I 
recollect as having spoken at all. 
34. Can you remember the particular form in which the charges were made more accurately than you 
have mentioned already? No; they were mere assertions thrown out—just a word or two—" great 
swindle on"—vague charges of that description. 
25. Vague charges ? Very vague charges. 
36. Were the gentlemen in the room Government supporters or Opposition men ? They were Opposition 
Members. 
3.7. Can you remember anything definite that was said at that conversation ? I cannot remember anything 
more; it all happened in a much shorter space of time than you have taken to examine me ; it was all 
over in two or three minutes—my remarks and their remarks. I think I have given almost every word 
said by them—just interjections thrown out. 
38. You go on to say that this was said : "That some Members of the Government were in it, and that 
there was general corruption in Parliament." Do you remember who said either of those things, or 
words to that effect ? The words, so far as I remember, were just as I have stated there. Whoever it 
was speaking at the time said that he believed that some of the Ministers were in it—he mentioned no 
names—and that some Members were in it. 
39. Did they mention any names ? No names were mentioned at all. 
40. Did you know in any way to whom they -referred ? No, there was no inference to be drawn from 
what they said, beyond the plain remark that they made. 	 41. 
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Carruthers , 
41. This is another portion of your speech,— 	 • 

M.P. 	I was asked how I felt on the leasing of the tramways ; and I said that I did not care about the proposal, and about 
the policy that was being pursued with regard to the leasing of the tramways—that I objected to the leasing of tho 

4 Jan., 1889. 	tramways under the present conditions. The statement was then made by an hon. Member, followed by another from 
another hon. Member, that there was an atmosphere of suspicion surrounding the whole thing. 

Who was it said that ? I think Mr. Fletcher. 
42. And " that they heard that Members were in it" ;—who said that ? I could not actually state. I 
believe almost everybody in the room who was speaking at all said something to that effect. 
43. Including yourself ? I had not spoken. I had not said anything up to that time on the question. 
44 "That there was a list of shares to be allotted to Members ; that some Ministers wore in it, and that 
some were going to make a bic

” 
pool out of it" ,—who said that ? I would not like to be certain about that. 

The three gentlemen whom I remember to have spoken were, as I have said before, Mr. Fletcher, Mr. 
Dalton, and Mr. Levien, and whether one of them said it, or whether another said it, I could not say. 
I would not like to fix the remark on any one individual, for the simple reason that they were all 
speaking. It seemed to be a babel of charges of this description, the same as I afterwards heard in the 
House itself, thrown out on all sides as fast as they could be said, and to attempt to put the 
charge into the mouth of one individual is impossible. Every one who spoke in the Opposition room that 
evening had the same story to say, that there was "on atmosphere of corruption about the whole thing; 

• that Members mid Ministers were in the swim ; that there was a swindle on ; and that lists of shares were 
floating about for Members of Parliament who would assist to get this job carried through." That is the 
gist of the conversation. 
45. In that room ? In that room. I have heard it not only there but I have heard the same conversation 
meeting me and assailing me in tram-cars, 'buses, railway-carriages, and wherever I have travelled, from 
Members of Parliament, private individuals, and people about ton who know what is going on. If you 
entered into conversation with them you got the same things said by them as were said by the Members 
of the Opposition at that time. It was a common topic of conversation, and a current story. 
46. You say that wherever you went the conversation was to the same tenor and effect as that you heard 
in the Opposition room ;—were any of the charges you heard on the 'buses and tram-cars, or in the 
Opposition room, or in the precincts of the House, statements made from actual knowledge, or merely 
rumours ? They seemed to me to be persons retailing rumours. 
47. That is the opinion you formed from what you heard both in and out of Parliament, that they were 
sithply retailing rumours ? Exactly. 
43. No facts ? No facts ; nothing by which you could fix any individual to make him answer for his 
statement. 
49. Mere rumours, which may be true or false ? Yes. 
50. With the exception of the McCulloch matter and the Huntley matter, of which I will speak presently, 
did you ever know or hear of anything in or out of Parliament except mere rumours, and nothing upon 
which you could make any charge against anyone? No. 
51. As to the Huntley matter, what was that? I made a statement in the Opposition room, but I 
suppose you don't want that. I will go to the matter itself. 
52. Yes ? Some months ago, I think between four and six months ego, certainly not shorter than four 
months, it may be longer than six months, I met Mr. Huntley in King-street, between the hours of 
1 and 2 p.m. 
53. What Huntley is that ? T. S. Huntley, who used to be a member of the firm of Huntley and Barnard-
He was afterwards proprietor or keeper of the "New Brighton Hotel," Lady Robinson's Beach. I do not 
know what his business is now. The part of King-street I met him in was in front of the Fresh Food 
and Ice Company's shop, between Pitt and George streets. 
54. Do you know Mr. Huntley? I have known him four or five years ; I have had an acquaintance 
with Mr. Huntley from matters of business, in which be was engaged as an auctioneer. I have never had 
actually any business transactions with him. I knew him when lie was an alderman of the borough of 
Rockdale—that is a neighbouring borough to where I live ; and as he took an interest in public matters, 
and was a constituent of mine, he very often. came into contact with inc. I have always known him, so 
far as my observation goes, as a straightforward, honest, and, at the same time, shrewd and capable 
business man. 
55. You met him in front of the Fresh Food and Ice Company four or five months ago? He opened 
conversation in a casual way, and in a few minutes the conversation turned on the tramways. He asked 
me how I felt on the question of the tramways. I said I did not know what he meant. I did not under-
stand his question. He then explained that he wished to know how I viewed the assumed intention of 
the Government to hand over the tramways to a Melbourne syndicate. Mr. MeElhone had given colour 
to charges of that description by statements he made in the House ' • and Mr. Huntley assumed that this 
expressed an intention on the part of the Government to hand the tramways over to a Melbourne 
syndicate. I stated that I did not believe that at all. I did not like the idea of any underhand 
business of that description. He asked me then if I would be in favour of any resolution or any 
movement to compel the Government, if they did lease these tramways, or if they dealt with them 
at all, to allow them to be submitted to open competition without any underhand work giving a 
preference to a Melbourne crowd or any other crowd, so that the Sydney people, as he expressed it, 
would have the same show of buying these trams as the Melbourne people. I told him that if the 
tramways were to be leased I thought the only course would be to submit them to open competition, in 
the same way as any other public or private property would be. He stated that that was all that he 
wanted, that all he wanted was fair play, a fair field, and no favour. Hp to this point I had been rather 
in the dark as to the tenor of Mr. Huntley's conversation, as to what was Ids object in entering into this 
conversation, and he then said that he might as well explain that be had been engaged since he left the 
hotel—that was the " New Brighton Hotel "—in forming companies, of any description at all—any large 
companies, and that lately he had engaged himself in forming a company to be prepared to take over the 
tramways ; that they were all Sydney men, men of large means, of good position, and of high standing; that 
they could put down, I think he said, up to £2,000,000 to purchase these tramways, under any conditions that 
the Government within reason might impose upon them; and that they were prepared to conduct the tram-
way system, if they should succeed in getting it, upon the most approved principle known to the world. He 

mentioned 
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mentioned some names to me to show me the high standing of the company he had formed. He mentioned 	J. H. 
one name, Mr. C. F. Stokes. The other names he mentioned I do not remember, but I presume that theywere Carruthers, 

Same names that have since been given in the Parliamentary Reports. He also stated that there were no 
shares available in this company—that they wore all applied for or allotted.; that they had no Members of 4 j 4889. 
Parliament in it, and that therefore they could not offer shares to any . Member of Parliament—but that 
they had determined to allow no Member of Parliament to take shares in the company. They thought it 
would be better to keep it above suspicion and above reproach in every way ; but that in order that 
Members and other public officers who might by their position be precluded from holding shares in the 
company before the event might not be unfairly treated, they were going to make a provision to reserve 
a certain number of shares. I think the way he spoke of it was, "According to our capital, 50,000 
or so many shares, to be allotted at par to the Members of Parliament who might choose to apply 
for them—providing," he said, " providing always that we happen to be the lucky tenderers." I listened 
to this. 1 do not know that I interjected anything at the time that it was going on ; but as soon as 
the remark was made, I stated to Huntley that I thought he was making a very great mistake ; that I 
did not think that Members of Parliament wanted any shares, or wanted any interest in a company of that 
sort ; that it would be looked upon as a kind of incentive to them to support the proposal, and I did not 
think that they wanted any such incentive. Speaking for myself, I said if I were in favour of the leasing 
of the tramways, and I believed, from what I know of most of the Members of the House that they are of 
the same disposition, if they had an opinion in favour of the leasing of the tramways, they would carry 
out that opinion without any offer of this description, and all the more readily without any knowledge 
that such a thing would be hung up for them. I said, "I think you are making a mistake Mr. Huntley, 
in connecting such a proposal with any bons fide venture such as yours, and if you take my advice you 
will drop the matter, and say no more about it to any one." I would not pursue it any further ; it wilido 
you more harm than good. I then turned the conversation to seine other subject and left him. 
56. What number of shares did Mr. Huntley speak of as being reserved ? I think lie said 50,000 or so, 
according to the capital. 
57. And did he say upon what terms these public gentlemen could go iii and take these shares ? At par. 
I think when he mentioned that he explained at any rate, if he did not explain it then, I have the idea in 
my head that I understood it at the time, that shares were to be given to Members of Parliament or any-
one else then shut out at par after the event, and that probably the shares would be at a premium to the 
general public, and the difference between the price at par and the premium at which they were selling in 
the open market would be a very fair advantage to those who had got them at par. I do not knew 
whether he explained that to .me, or whether I gathered that at the time from the knowledge-that I 
possess of commercial dealings. 
5S. Did you understand from Mr. Huntley in any way that those reserved shares were to be a bribe to 
Members of Parliament ? No ; I looked on the matter as on the borderland—that it was capable of being 
looked at in two ways. 
59. What I want to know is, so far 'as you could gather, what wasliuntley's intention ; was it that these 
shares were to be reserved for public men who could not come into competition before they got the lease, 
or was it to be a bribe to them to secure the lease for the company ? My strong and clear impression at 
the time was that there was no attempt whatever to offer a bribe. That was my clear impression at the 
tune. 
60. That is the impression you gathered from what Mr. II. Huntley- said ? Exactly. 
61. .21Ir. Knox.] Yet von said that at the same time you assumed that the shares would go at a premium, 
and that Members of Parliament would thus be well rewarded for their services in passing the resolutions ? 
I assumed that giving the shares at par when they were selling at a profit was a considerable advantage ; 
but I gathered from what he stated that there was to be nothing of the kind done beforehand, that these 
shares were to be given afterwards at par to those who chose to apply for them, and that they were to be 
allotted by the directors. If there were 100 or 500 applications they were to be allotted equally. 
62. President] Had you any reason to believe that the same approach was made to other Members of 
Parliament besides yourself—that Huntley spoke to other Members of Parliament in the same terms? I 
do not know anything of that. 
63. You do not know of your own knowledge that it was done ? No, I. do not. You see it is very hard 
to shake out of your mind all the changes that come over it from hearing the different aspects put after-
wards,. I have only spoken now in answer to what the President has stated about my impression at the 
lime. My impression at the time was that Huntley had no idea whatever of holding out a bribe to me, 
or to any other Member of Parliament. 
61. But as a matter of fact, apart from what Mr. Huntley's intentions may have been, if this had become 
generally known it would have been a very strong incentive to the House to accept the proposal to lease 
the trams ? I have looked at it since, and I have seen that it is capable of two constructions. I did not 
put the bad construction on it. 
65. But if that were circulated amongst Members of Parliament it would be, quite apart from the high 
moral character of Members of Parliament, a strong incentive ? I think it would be the other way. I 
know the effect it had on me, and I thick it would be the same with a great many others. Sooner than 
have-a shadow of that kind cast over their votes they would sacrifice the broad principle. 
66. At any rate you will admit that, assuming that your anticipations were realised, that these things 
would go to a premium at once, that any public men or Members of Parliament participating, in these 
reserved shares would at once obtain a large pecuniary advantage ? Yes. 
67. Was that all that took place between you and Huntley on that occasion ? That is all that I can 
remember. I may have stated more to the House, more details; but that is the gist of what took place 
from start to finish, and 1 think it is accurate in details as to the more vital portions of the conversation. 
It only lasted about 10 minutes. 
GS. What syndicate was Mr. Huntley connected with ? I did not know at that time, except that he 
mentioned one with the name of Mr. C. F.•Stokes in it ; but I have learned since, mainly from the debates 
in the House. 
09. Is that of Burns, Phillips ? No. The syndicate is mentioned in the House. 
70. Is it the New South Wales Tramway Company ? 1 think that you will see it mentioned. He is 
secretary to that company. 

71. 
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Sr}L 	71. Can you tell me whethei these are the syndicate F-  Carruthers, 
The shares are distributed amongst Messrs. C. F. Stokes, of the firm of R. Towns & Co., James Barns, of Burns, Philp. 
& Co., Malcolm, Donald MeEttehern, M. C. Cowlishaw, and John Arthur, each of whom holds 100,000 ; James B. 

4 jam, 1889. 

	

	Nicholson, 50000; H. It. Smith, 40,000 ; David Wilson, 30,000 ; R. B. Wallace, of Newcastle, 25,000; A. Hoffnung 
25,000; T. Sapvell, and J. W. Cliff; 20,000 each. 

I have had my memory refreshed since by these debates ; but as far as it serves me with reference to this 
conversation Stokes' name alone was mentioned. 
72. Can you tell me 110w? Seeing these names here ? 
73. Yes ? I think he mentioned Saywell's name. He mentioned Stokes, Saywell, Cowlishaw, and 
Paling Those are all the names I remember now, though he mentioned more than these. 
74. Wallace of Newcastle ? No, I do not remember. 
75. Hoffnung ? I do not recollect Ms name. 
76. Cliff ? Do you know whether this was the New South Wales Tramway Company ? I believe that 
is so. 
77. You mentioned a matter of McCulloch's ; what was that—what McCulloch is that ? Mr. A. H. 
McCulloch, junior, formerly Member for Central Cumberland. 
78. What was the nature of that matter ? Between five and six weeks ago we were walking down from 
Macquarie-street, towards the tramway at Hunter-street, and I was about to leave him there. Suet as I 
was going—I suppose the fact of the trams running past called it to his mind—he said, "I say, 
have you heard anything about this swindle with the tramways ?" I said, " No." " Well," he said, 
" I ant told that there is a great swindle on, and that some companies are formed, at least one company is 
formed, and there is a list of members for whom shares are reserved." " 	I said, " that is a very 
rough thing ; I can see that that may be correct. On the other hand it may be some rascally move to 
injure people. What is to prevent some disreputable ragamuffin in getting up a company and putting down • 
the names of respectable men without their knowledge ?" I said, "Do you know anything about it ?" 
He said, "I do not know much about it, but I know sufficient to show me that there is some truth in it—rt 
great deal of truth in it." T said, "I should be very suspicious about anything of tliat character. A MOTO of 
that kind might be made simply with a view to the injuring of some very respectable men." He said, "Oh,well, 
I do not know anything about that ;  I do not think there is anything of that sort in it." "But," he said, " I 
believe there is a list actually made out, with the names of Members of Parliament down for so many 
shares." I said, " Do you know anything that could fix that and actually prove what you are saying ?" 
"Well," he said, "1 could not go that far ; 1 have only got good reason to believe it but I have no absolute 
proof of it." "Well," I said, "I will tell you something I know that may show you whether there is any truth 
in what you are speaking of, or whether this is some idle thing to bolster up a wild story." I said, " Some 
time ago a gentleman told me that he was about to form, or was forming, a syndicate to tender for the trams ; 
that he liad got the syndicate full; that a company was formed ; that they had no Members of Parliament 
in it ; but that they were thinking of reserving a certain number of shares for Members of Parliament, to be 
given to them after the whole thing was over, at par." I said, " That man was Huntley." He said, 
"Very probably that is the man that is responsible for what I have heard ;" and he said, "If so, if 
Huntley- is at the bottom of this, I would not pay much attention to it at all." I said, "Do you not 
believe much of what Huntley says ?" "Well," he said, shrugging his shoulders, " I do not think there 
is much importance to be attached to anything he is connected with." That is all that took place between 
us. I might mention that from the time 	had the conversation with Huntley, up to the time of the 
debate in the Assembly, I never spoke to him. I saw him once, passing through the street, but i. never 
saw him again to have any conversation with him ; and I never discussed the subject with another human 
soul until I spoke to Mr. McCulloch, and it seemed then to dawn upon my memory as something I had 
heard once and forgotten, and which had lain, as it were, slumbering in my mind. This conversation 
never occurred to me until McCulloch's specific statement recalled it to my mind, and that, I think, was 
something between three and four months afterwards. 
79. Apart from the statement made to you by Mr. Huntley—there seems to be nothing in what 
McCulloch says—do you know of any offer, in any shape or form, by anyone to influence Members' votes 
in connection with the tramway business ? Not the slightest; I have no knowledge whatever of any such 
thing. 
80. By any one ? By any one. 
81. And you can give us no further information ? No I have no further information on the subject. 
82. Do you know of anything to justify the rumours that you say were current in and out of the House ? 
No ; I do not think I do know of anything to justify them in the slightest degree. What I have told you 
regarding Mr. Huntley and Mr. McCulloch are the only tangible things that]. have heard of all through, 
and I do not think that those things would at all justify the rumours that were being cast about throughout 
the community. 
83. Have you got the letter from Mr. Huntley that you read in the House ? 1 have not got the original 
here ; I have it in the office. The letter published in Hansard is an exact copy of the original. I sent it 
up to Mr. Robinson, of the Hansen? staff, and he inserted it in Hansard. I will send the letter up to the 
Secretary of the Commission. 

John Haynes, M.P., called in, sworn, and examined :— 
J. Haynes, 84. President.] I believe you are a member of the Legislative Assembly ? Yes.. 

M.P. 	85. Member for Mudgee ? Yes ; one of the members. 
86. How long have you been a member ? Nearly two years. 

4 1-an '' 1889' 87. You took part in the debate in the Assembly on the 12th, 13th, 14th, and 18th December last P 
Yes, I think so ; the first debate. 
88. In your speech you say, as reported at page 1288 of Hansard 

I. hove waitcd. several hours to address the House, and if the debate had continued until daybreak I should have 
remained here to make the speech which I am about to make. Those who have watched the proceedings in this House 
10-11Ight will sec that the charge which I made the other night is proved beyond the shadow of a doubt. The hon. 
member for Canterbury says that he was met by Mr. Huntley, the person who was brought before the bar the other 
night. I knew nothing whatever about what had taken place between Mr. Huntley and the lion. member for Canterbury. 
The hon. member says that four or five months ago Mr. Huntley stated that on the leasing of the tramways being dealt 

with 
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with by Parliament, though the shares wore fully subscribed, a certain number would be given to Members of Parliament, J. Haynes, 
and that they would be at par. Shares at par go to a premium, and it may mean in reality ±;t advance on every share. 	M.P. 
Why should shares at par be granted to Members of Parliament under any circumstances ? Would not anybody say 
that what I have brought to light is part md parcel of a great job to got at Parliament, and obtain possession of the 4 Jan., 1889. 
trams ? I will give still further proof. 

What did you mean by the words " I will give still further proof "? It is badly reported in that part. 
I had no further evidence to give. I said I would reiterate the statements I had previously made. 
89. Do you know personally anything about this Huntley-  matter Mr. Carruthers spoke of ? No ; I do 
not, only what I heard him state in the House. 
90. Of your own knowledge ? No. 
91. Then you say,— 

On a certain afternoon when coming to the House I was met in King.street by Mr. Huntley, who informed me of the 
intention of Parliament to deal with the leasing of the trams, and he said that if I would support the leasing of the tntms 
I should get £1,000 for my assistance and 1,500 paid-up shares when the whole thing was through. 

- I want to know when this was, what were the surrounding circumstances, what Mr. Huntley said, and 
everything ? It was in the afternoon, about the time Parliament would be assembling. I was going. 
92. How long ago ? rhave not the date exactly, between three and four months ago. I was going to 
Parliament. 
03. -Where were you when you met Mr. Huntley ? Just at the intersection of Elizabeth-street and 
King-street. I was coming up Elizabeth-street and had crossed over from Elizabeth-street into King-
street going to Parliament, and was opposite the Supreme Court, opposite the corner of the Supreme 
Court. on the pathway. 
911. Which side of King-street were you ? Opposite the Supreme Court. 
95. Then you met Huntley ? I mot Huntley there. 
00. How long had you known Huntley, if at all, before that ? I knew him about two years before that. 
I knew him as a citizen. There was a firm of Huntley and Barnard, and I knew the two members which 
constituted the firm. but I could not fix which was Huntley and which was Barnard. 
07. Did you know them to speak to ? 1 was a stranger to them to a large extent, but after]. was returned 
to Parliament Mr. Huntley used to salute me. 
OS. What do you mean by "salute you" ;—bow to you? Bow to me. Prior to that I did not know them 
personally; 1 think I. have been in their office once or twice about some business in connection with 
newspapers. 
09. I want you to tell us exactly the hind of terms you were on with Mr. Huntley? I was a stranger to 
him, undoubtedly a stranger to him ; I never associated with him ; he had never met me at any place, 
except at his office, and then II was there only as a reporter ; T. think I went to report ; they had some 
business transactions with some land, and as a newspaper proprietor 1 went there to get their support, 
and got it ; then a long interval of two years intervened before I met him; this was the first time I spoke 
to him. 
100. What did he say to you ? He met site in King-street ; he approached Inc. 
101. When he approached you what did he do ? Ile shook me by the band. I did not know what was 
his object. I thought it was out of recogn itiou of something. 
102. Had he ever shaken hands with you before ? No, not before. I. thought it was out of recognition 
of some work I. was doing in Parliament. At that time T was very vigorously employed at one or two 
things, and had just come from the country with a good deal of success in the 'decentralisation programme 
that 1 had taken up, and one or two other matters, and I had got a good deal of credit, justifiably or not, 
in the Press, and I thought it was out of recognition of dna that he approached Inc. At any rate he came 
and shook hands with me, and said that Parliament would be dealing with the leasing of the tramways 
shortly. T had heard something about it, but very indistinctly. and. 1 said, "Is that so?" and he said " Yes, 
it would come on shortly," and he implied that it would be all right ;  and said lie hoped I would 

n
(-rive it my 

support, and that for my support and assistance and general advocacy for his syndicate I would have 1,000 
sovereigns and 1,500 paid-up Li shares. Ile then entered into a brief statement with regard to the shares, 
to the effect that application was to be made for these shares. Whether he stated it or not it was under-
stood at any rate that it was to be a. fictitious application, and that I would get a receipt as if. I had paid 
the money. 
103. Mr. Knox.] Meaning to imply, I suppose, that the shares would be issued to you at par, but that 
somebody else would pay for then? I was to pay no money for them ; they were reserved. He said 
that shares would be available. I understood distinctly that they would be reserved. I do not know 
whether he said anything distinctly, but the impression on my mind was that I was not to be the only 
person dealing with the matter in that way, and of course that the money was to be available after the 
thing had been handed over. 
101. President.] What were you to do for that ? I was to support it and advocate it. 
105. Support what ? The leasing of the trams to this syndicate. 
109. To which syndicate ? To the syndicate, I presume, he represented. I did not know what syndicate 
was formed, or whether any syndicate was formed, and in point of fact from that day up to the day of the 
opening of the tenders, whenever I saw Mr. Huntley I avoided him ; without offending lfim I passed him 
quickly, as I did not want to draw hint into going further into that matter, and partly from the fact that 
I thought the thing had been dropped by him, because I never saw him in connection with anybody after-
wards, nor did I hear a word from him, and I knew nothing whatever of his identity with the train 
leasing project until the morning I came down here to the Government offices, accidentally, on business, 
and saw him with several persons in the vicinity of the Works Department. 
107. Did I understand you to say that you were to get 1 ; 500 paid-up shares ? Yes. 
1.05. And the application was to be a fictitious one, and they were to give you a receipt in full as if you 
had paid the money ? Yes. 
100. While in fact you were to pay no money ? I was to pay no money, of course not. 
110. Did he say anything about any other number of' shares for anyone else ? I understood that that 
was a portion of a large amount that was available for that purpose. 
111. Did be mention how many ? No, he did not. At that time I was strongly opposed to the leasing 
of the trains. 
112. See it-  you can remember if he told you of any other number of shares to be used for any purpose ? 
No, he did not. I, of course, inferred front what he stated. 	 113. 
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4 5S 1889. 114. Do you remember anything about a number of 50,000 shares? No. I speak, very often unfortunately n"  with a good deal of interruption in Parliament, and I see in Hansard a reporters' error. It says here, 
" I will give still further proof." I said, " I will repeat my statement ; I will give further proof." And 
then further down the report says, "Mr. O'Mara : That being true, means the whole House. Mr. Haynes: 
And that 50,000 shares would be available for Members of Parliament," and I pointed simultaneously to 
Mr. Carruthers who was alongside. 
115. Then that statement which appears in Hansard, about 50,000 shares at par being available for 
Members of Parliament, referred to what Mr. Carruthers had stated, and not to what Mr. Huntley told 
you? Entirely. Mr. Huntley never mentioned anything of the kind. Then again the report says, 
"Do hon. Members need any further proof of the statement which I made?" That has reference to my 
quoting Mr. Carruthers' statement about the 50,000 shares. Immediately after this offer was made to 
me I repeated to three private friends what had actually taken place, but in each case I could not give 
the man's name. 
116. Did you mention that conversation to any people ? Yes, I did. 
•117. Who were they ? I mentioned it to Mr. Alfred Bennett, of the Booting News and Town and 
Country Journal, next day, and to Mr. Archibald, of the Bulletin, and to Mr. Courteney, one of the 
editors of the Telegraph. 
118. On what date did you mention it to Mr. Archibald and to Mr. Courteney ? Within a few days 
afterwards. 	• 
119. Did Mr. Huntley tell you what syndicate he belonged to ? No. 
120. Do you know what syndicate he belonged to ? No,I do not know exactly the syndicate, unless it was 
stated in the Telegraph. 
121. It appeared afterwards in the debate ? I do not think so, as far as I know. I think there was some 
statement of names in the Telegraph, but that is the first that I saw of it. 
122. It is in the debate here too ; it is the New South Wales Tramway Company ? That was the same 
time as the Telegraph, I expect. I have no idea of the syndicate. If it was mentioned in Parliament I 
no doubt heard it, but I have DO personal information as to any syndicate. In point of fact I did not 
know whether he had any authority, or what he was at the time. 
123. 'When he made this statement to you did you know, or had you any idea as to when the debate was 
coming on—when the Government intended to submit the proposals ? Yes: I knew the debate would 
come on some time. 
124. Yes, but about how long first? Any time that would be convenient. 
125. You mean that it was :thing that might come on at short notice ? Yes, any time. 
126. What I understand from you is that at the time of the conversation with Huntley you understood 
that this tramway debate would shortly come on ? Yes ; at that time I was opposed to the idea of 
leasing the trams, and I was opposed to the idea until nearly a week before the proposals did come on ; 
but there were preceding debates on the management of the railways, when one or two 3fembers, closely 
identified with the railway suburbs, made speeches with regard to the employees there which seemed 
to me to be a forecast of trouble with regard to the Civil Service, and, turning the whole thing over in 
my mind, I came to the conclusion that it was expedient to lease the trains on good terms, and I voted 
for the Government proposal. for the leasing of the trams, and I intended when the Government came to 
deal with the leasing of the trams to lay this fact of the offer before Parliament. 
27. When this offer was made to you what did you say to it ? I said I would see into the matter. I 

did not either encourage him or discourage him. 
128. Was it understood in ally way that he was to see you again, or anything of that sort ? I think we 
were to be seen again; I am not quite certain. 
129. Just think for a moment whether the impression left on your mind was that he was to see you again 
before the debate came on ? I think we were to be seen again. 
1.30. Who was to be seen again ? I was to be seen again. I think that was the impression. It appeared 
to me that the discussion at that time was that the principle of the leasing of the tramways, and the 
leasing to certain particular people, was to be one item. 
131. As I understand then, at the time of that conversation you did not know what syndicate lie repre-
sented? I did not. 
132. And you do not know now ? I do not know now absolutely. I saw certain names. That was the 
first time I saw them. 
133. 'What I want to know is this : If it was understood that you were to advocate the leasing to some 
particular syndicate, how were you to support that unless you knew what syndicate you were to advocate? 
I presumed that there was only one party interested in the dealing with the leasing of the trams, and 
that party was represented by Mr. Huntley. I regarded Mr. Huntley always as a man of capital. I 
have heard otherwise, and I do not know now whether I am right or wrong. 
181. I understood you to say that you understood that the parties who were to accept the lease were 
really all one ? Yes. 
135. And that there was no competition for it? No competition for it. I understood that they were all 
concerned in it. 
130. How long did the conversation last ? About five or six minutes, not much more. It was in a busy 
time of the day. 
131. Was anything said by Huntley with reference to other Members ? No; I do not think so. No. 
138. As to whether or not he had made similar overtures to other Members? 'Whether he said anything 
or whether the conversation led me to believe it, I concluded that I was one of a number to whom these 
overtures were made. Yes ; that there was to be an expenditure of money for this purpose. 
139. By this syndicate ? By this syndicate and of shares • that was the distinct impression on my mind. 
140. Was it from anything Huntley said that you drew that conclusion ? Well; I fancy with regard to 
the shares it was, because he said that an application would be made for shares, and that they would be 
given to me as if I had paid up. 
141. But that referred to yourself only ? it referred to myself ; but the impression on my mind was 
that I was to be one of a number. 

142. 

Lifasnes• 113. We want to know what he said, if you can remember ? No, that offer was confined to me. There 
M.P. 	was no mention of any reserve of shares to others. 
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142. Was it from what Huntley said that you received that impression? I fancy so ; I cannot exactly L Harws, 
recall the words, but I fancy so ; and I distinctly understood with regard to the coin that that would be 	Mr.  
part of a fund available for the purpose. He mentioned the name of no Member of Parliament ; nor 

4Jan 1889 did be mention any amount of shares as being reserved. 
143. Mr. Knox.] And he did not approach you again ? He did not, In reality I was new to public life 
at that time, and I was a bit thrown off by the largeness of the offer, and I really avoided him wherever 
I met him I met him very seldom, and I must say that I did not see that he wished to approach me ; 
but I kept out of his way, and whenever I met him I passed him hurriedly. I cannot say that Huntley 
ever attempted to approach me since. 
141. President.] With the exception of that one matter, are you aware of any other attempts made by 
any person to interfere with any Member of Parliament on this question. I do not mean suspicions or 
rumours ? No, I am not. I have heard rumours about newspaper people and that kind of thing being 
approached, but not of Members of Parliament. 
145. You mean to get newspapers to write it up, I suppose? Yes. 
146. But you are not aware, apart from the matter you have spoken of, of any attempt on the part of 
anyone to interfere with any Member of Parliament ? No, I am not. 
147. And you can give us DO further information ? lean give you no further information. 
148. The conversation with Mr. Huntley took place during the present Session of Parliament? Yes ; I 
think it was a little over three months ago. 

Robert Henry Levien, M P., called in, sworn, and examined :— 
149. President.] You are a Member of Parliament representing the Electorate of Tamworth, I believe? 
Yes. 
150. And you have been a Member of Parliament for some years ? Yes ; for eight years. 
151. I believe you took part in the debates in Parliament on the question of the leasing of the tramways 
on the 12th, 13th, 14th, and 1801 December last ? Yes. 
152. On the 13th December you made a speech in which you spoke as follows :— 

Whim  the tenders for the leasing of the trams were called for, something arose. I was in the city of Melbourne, and 
I heard that the time for receiving the tenders would close on the 15th November. I had not been long in Melbourne 
before I was introduced to a gentleman, and I intend to mention names, because the gentleman to whom I was introduced 
was once, I believe, a Member of the Legislature of Victoria, and in conjunction with a gentleman and these syndicates 
that were endeavouring to work what I will describe by no other term than that of a swindle upon the country. I use 
the names of two Ministers whose names were mentioned in reference to this matter. I am not going to make this 
statement recklessly, nor without being able to support my bare statement, and I am looking at the Minister of Public 
instruction, and I use his name ; and 1 am looking at the Minister of justice, and I use his name ; and though the 
honorable Member for the Murrumbidgee has been charged with cowardice, I will say this, that he is no coward ; he is 
as honest, as upright, and as just as the honorable gentleman who dared to accuse him last night of cowardice. BLit 
when I was in Melbourne I was spoken to with reference to these tenders, and I was asked what may opinion was. I 
said, " I am in favour of the Government holding the tramways and not leasing them," because I believed there was 
some swindle abroad. I met the honorable Member for Grenfell, Mr. Vaughn, and I think he will corroborate every 
word I say. I had not been long introduced to a gentleman, whose card I will hand to the Colonial Secretary, because 
1 will keep nothing back — 

Mr. MUELIIONE : Don't part with it. 
Mr. LEVIEN : This was a gentleman who thought no doubt to use me, because, I suppose, he thought I was fit for the 

action. But he mistook his man. I told the House that 1 was against leasing the tramways ; but I am going to make 
a statement clearly and definitely, so that this House and the country will know that in my public position, as a 
representative of the people, I am not lying, but can corroborate every word say. I was introduced to a gentleman 
of the name of Mr. Robert Bowman, 20, lung-street, Alelbourne. He was a Member of the Legislature of Victoria, and 
a wine and spirit merchant. He said to me, "I would like to see you to-morrow- ; I have something I should like to 
say to you. I wish you would come and speak to me." He did not mention the matter about which he wished to 
speak ; but I thought it was something in connection with ruin.- matters, he being of a sporting turn of mind. I said, 
"I will meet you.' The next day I met this gentleman, I think', in Collins-street. He said, "What I wanted to speak 
to you about was with reference to the leasing of the tramways in New South Wales. I am working up a syndicate, and 
I have got a good deal to do it with it. You are a Member of the Legislature of New South Wales, and if you will 
assist us you will have a good chance of being solicitor. It may be very amusing, but nevertheless it is true. We have 
been told that all the things that have been said in reference to Members were untrue ; but I am one of those who 
believe there is a great deal of truth in it. I said, "I don't want the solicitorship of this business. That is not my 
game." He then said, "I believe there is in New South Wales a gentleman named Pritchard who attends to things of 
this sort: Do you think we could get him in "? He also said, " We have the Minister of Justice and the Minister of 
Public Instruction." 1 believe it my duty to mention the matter to the House, and if I were ungenerous enough to 
make these charges merely to injure those two honorable Members, I should be condemned by every honest man. I 
noticed that the leader of the Opposition said last night that there would be a certain number of shares for Members 
of Parliament ; and Mr. Bowman said to Inc in Melbourne, " We intend to reserve a good many shares for Members 
of Parliament ; but it is the Opposition that we fear. We know that the Government supporters are all right." If 
these statements are untrue, they are a gross libel. The matter rests between Mr. Bowman and the two Members to 
whom I have referred. I ask the Premier now to tell those honorable Members in their own interests, and for the sake 
of the Government, to go and clear their characters in the eyes of the country. The whole case will rest upon the 
evidence of Mr. Bowman and myself. I have here a card of Mr. Bowman's with his own handwriting on it, and in the 
course of the conversation to which I have referred, he gave me the card. Mr. Bowman told me that he would telegraph 
to Mr. Pritchard, and ask him to meet me at Redfern Railway Station; so that I could ask Inm whether he would join 
the syndicate. If the telegram was sent, I have no doubt that the two Members of the Government to whom I have 
referred, will be materially assisted in dealing with the matter. 

When was it that you were in Melbourne ? It was during the Melbourne Cup meeting 	think the 
first week in November. 
153. Did you ever know this Mr. Bowman before? No; I had never seen him before. 
154. Who introduced you to him ? I forget now. I was introduced to him at the Menton° races. 
That was the first time I ever saw him. 
155. You do not remember who introduced you ;—did you meet him at lunch, or how was it ? I think 
somebody introduced me to him in the saddling paddock. 
159. have you got the card he gave you? I left it in my safe at the office. 
157. Could you send it to us ? Certainly. 
158. Was there any writing on it? Yes; the name was in print, but the address "63, King-street, 
Melbourne," was in the handwriting of Mr. Bowman. 
159. How Caine he to give you that card? He did not give me the card then. 

25—B 	 IGO. 

R. II. Levien, 
M.P. 

4 Jan , 1829. 
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B. tr. Levien, 160. When did he give it to you ? He gave me the card when he met me in Collins-street about two 
312 ' 	days afterwards. 

4  0a„.3.869.  161. I understand, then, that you were introduced to him at the Mentone races, and that two days 
afterwards you met him in Collins-street, Melbourne ? Yes. 
162. And what was it he said to you then ? He said, " You are a member of the New South Wales 
Parliament, are you not"? I said, " Yes." He said, "Have you heard about the leasing of the tram-
ways"? I said, " No." He said, "They close on the 15th of the month." I said, "Do they"? I said, 
"It is a very strange thing their closing very quickly, not giving time for other tenders to come in." He 
said, "I am working in the interests of a syndicate 1 am trying to get up in Melbourne, and I will get 
you the solicitorship of it." He said, "I believe you area solicitor"? I said, "Yes ; but," I said, "I do. 
not care for that kind of business,—I do not do that kind of business." He said, "But it would be a 
good thing for you. Do you know anybody who would like to come in and join in the syndicate"? I 
said, "No, I do not, excepting one person who may join you, and that is Mr. Pritchard, a contractor, in 
New South Wales." I said, "He was over here the other day ; I was speaking to him in Melbourne; 
and he was here about some tram business of his own." I said, " I think he is the only person who would 
be likely to go into a matter of this kind." He said, "Do you think you could get him to stand in with 
us "? I said, "I do not know ; he is living in New South Wales, but he was in Victoria the other day." 
He said, "Do yowknow his address in Victoria " ? I said, "I do net." He said, "Where could Hind 
him in New South Wales"? I said, "Pritchard, contractor, Sydney, I dare say will find him." He said, 
"if you are goilig over would you ask him whether he would stand in with us, and I would send him a 
telegram and ask him to meet you." I said, "Well, you may ; I will tell him that you would like him to 
join in the syndicate." He said, "It will be all right—it will be a good thing." He said, "Two of the 
Ministers—Mr. Inglis and Mr. Clarke—» ere to have a large interest in it, and he said, it will be all 
right as fax as they were concerned. They will see to the Government supporters ; but he said, you are 
amongst the Opposition." He said, "It is the Opposition we are afraid of ; we would like their support, 
because I hear there may be some contention about the matter." So he said, "We are reserving a 
number of shares for Members of Parliament." I said, "I do not MIT) to have anything to do with this 
kind of thing, but so far as asking Mr. Pritchard is concerned I shall do so. 	further stated, I do not 
think it the correct thing for the Government to close the tenders so quickly." That was the first time 
I had heard that tenders were to be closed on that day, or that I had heard much about them at all. He 
was the first who told me. 
163. Is that all that took place ? That is the principal part. He said he thought it would be. a good 
spec., and that no doubt the matter would be carried to a successful issue. I thinlc he mentioned that 
there was another syndicate with which however he had nothing to do. 
161. Did'nt he give you his card on that occasion ? Yes. 
165. How was it he came to give you his card ? He was talking of telegraphing to New South Wales 
to find out where Pritchard was, and I said "I am going home in a day or two," and he said" Well, I will 
ask Pritchard to meet you, and you can tell him who I am, and that I am working up this syndicate, 
and ask him whether he will stand in with us," and I said "I will have no objection to tell Pritchard 
that." 
166. -Who said "I will ask Pritchard to meet you" ? Bowman, and he gave me the card, and he said, 
"This is my card, and you can tell Pritchard, and he chn reply to me." 
167. Then it was for the purpose of giving Pritchard the address that he gave you the card? Yes. 
168. Who was it mentioned Pritchard's name first ? I mentioned Pritchard's name first. 
169. What Mr. Pritchard was it ? He is a contractor. I think he had a contract in connection with the 
Bondi sewer. 
170. It is not the auctioneer ? Oh, no ; not that Mr. Pritchard. 
171. You think he was one of the Bondi sewer contractors ? Yes ; I knew Pritchard myself, and I knew 
he had something to do with an electric tram, and that is how I came to mention his name. He went 
over to Melbourne, and was trying to sell his electric tram patent. 
172. How would he be mixed up in. syndicates ? I believe Mr. Bowman asked me if I knew anyone who 
would join in his syndicate, and I said, " The only person I know who has anything to do with trains is 
Mr. Pritchard," thinking Mr. Pritchard was more likely than anyone else. 
173. I. gather that this Mr. Bowman did not know Mr. Pritchard at all until you mentioned him ? No. 
174. Did not even know his name ? No; I do not know that he has seen him now. 
175. At that time as far as you could gather he did not even knew his name or even know of his existence 
until you mentioned 	? No; I am certain he did not because be kept asking where he could find him 
116. Did Mr. Bowman make any appointment with you to meet him ? Yes, He asked me if I would 
meet him in Collins-street, naming a certain place, which at this moment I forget. 1 was to meet him at 
a certain hour near the corner. I was a few minutes late, and I saw him going into an hotel close by, and 
I followed him in, and then he came out and spoke to me. 
177. Do you know what syndicate be belonged to? No, 1 do not, neither did he mention it. 
178. Do you know now ? No. 
179. When he said there were a certain number of shares reserved for Members of Parliament what did 
you understand by that ? I thought that that was the inducement that if he could see any Members of 
Parliament he would tell them that this matter could be worked up. Of course they were to have this 
interest for supporting the leasing of the tramways. That was to be an inducement to them to support 
the proposal, and they could come in and buy these shares. 
180. -Who could come in ? The Members of Parliament who supported the leasing of the trams. 
181. And buy the shares? I do not suppose it was intended to give them. 
182. I do not want to know what were your suspicions, but I want you to tell be any impression you 
gathered from what Mr. Bowinan said ? Well, .1 gathered. from -what he said the impression that he 
intended this as an inducement for Members of Parliament to vote for them—that they were intended 
to be approached liberally with these shares -under certain conditions. 
183. To Members of Parliament ? To Members of Parliament. 
184. Did he say upon what terms Members of . Parliament were to have them ? No, he did not. 
185. Did you gather that they were to have them on liberal terms ? Yes ; because I told him I would 
have nothing to do with the matter, and immediately afterwards I repeated the conversation I had had 

with 
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with him to Mr. Alexander Bowman, the Member for The Hawkesbury, and to Mr. Vaughn. I told them E. Th Levien, 
that I suspected that there was something wrong about the leasing of the trains from the way this Man 	Mai* 
spoke to me, and I immediately sent a telegram to Mr. Neild to tell him I would support his motion. 4 Jan., 1889. 186. 31r. Knox.] Mr. Bowman said nothing f urther about the connection of Messrs. Inglis and Clarke with 
the matter ? No, nothing further than that; in fact, I did not know that he knew either Mr. Inglis or Mr. 
Clarke until he mentioned their names, because he was a perfect stranger to me. It naturally struck me 
at once that he had the Government support in the matter when, he said that these two Ministers were to 
have an interest in the syndicate he was promoting. 
1.87. President.] You did not gather on what terms they got their interest ? No, I did not. 
188. Apart from that matter of Mr. Bowman's are you aware of any attempt that has been made by any 
one to interfere with a Member of Parliament on this question ? No, I am not, not in any instance. 
189. In any way whatever ? No; I have never been spoken to by anybody. 
190. And you are not aware of any attempt apart from this one matter ? No, I am not. 
191. You have heard, of course, of rumours, and you have heard rumours, I suppose, about there being a 
great deal of corruption going on and all that kind of thing ? Yes. 
192. From your own knowledge, are you aware of any justification whatever for any of those rumours, 
except so far as what Mr. Bowman told you? Well, that is a difficult question to answer-excepting 
merely worldly suspicions. 
193. I do not mean suspicion ;-you do not know of anything ? I know of no fact that would lead me 
to support my idea that it was to be a swindle, excepting from what Mr. Bowman told me, and his using 
the names of Mr. Inglis and Mr. Clarke pretty freely in his conversation with me, I took it that they 
pretty well understood. I did not know at the time how he knew Mr. Clarke and Mr. Inglis, and I did 
not examine him to see what interest they had. 
194. What I mean, is, that anybody may have suspicions; rumours are the result of suspicions, but you 
know of nothing of your own knowledge except what Mr. Bowman told you ? No, nothing whatever. 
1.95. And you are not aware of any attempt, directly or indirectly, to bribe any Member of Parliament 
on this question? lain not aware in any one instance. 
196. Can you give us any information, or toll us of any names that would be able to throw any light on 
this matter ? No. I think that you will find from my remarks on both occasions that I never referred 
to any other instance except this. 
1.97. In your speech, reported at page 1243 of Hansard, speaking of Mr. Bowman you say, "lie implicated 
both the Minister of Justice and the Minister of Public Instruction." What do you mean by 
" implicated " ? That they were to have a large interest in this syndicate. 
1.98. That is what you meant by the word "implicated" ? Yes, and that of course they were working in 
the interests of that syndicate on account of the interest they held. 
199. Did you understand that from him too ? Of course, that is the inference I drew. 
200. What I mean is, did he say anything to justify that inference. If you can remember his words, all 
the better ; but, if you cannot, can you say whether he used words to give you to understand that these 
two gentlemen were working in the interests of a syndicate ? I cannot say that ho implicated them by 
any direct statement absolutely, except that he stated that they were to have a large interest-that they 
had a large interest in this syndicate-they would have a large interest in the syndicate if they obtained ,  the leasing of the trams. My suspicions were only drawn from that and nothing more. 
201. From that you inferred that these two Ministers were to use their influence to obtain the lease? Yes. 
202. That they were to have a large interest if the syndicate obtained the lease ? Yes. 
203. Mr. Lamb.] Have you heard since whether or not Mr. Bowman's party tendered? I do not knoW. 

MONDAY, '7 JANUARY, 1889. 

Weald:- 
C. E. PILCHER, Esq., Q.C., PuusInENT: 

E. W. KNOX, Esq., 	 A. LAMB, ESQ. 
TRE PRESIDENT IN THE CHAIR 

Thomas Sellwood Huntley called in, sworn, and examined :- 
201. President.] What is your present occupation ? Land and property agent, and I am the secretary 	T. S.  
of the New South Wales Tramway Company. 	 Huntley.  
205. What was your occupation before you started the land and property agency ? I have been a land r -A--• 

7 Jan., 1889. and property agent for many years. 
200. How many years ? Seven years. 
207. Were you always alone or in partnership ? I was in partnership with Mr. Barnard two years ago. 
208. You dissolved the partnership with him two years ago ? Yes. 
209. How long have you been connected with the New South :Wales Tramway Company. The company 
was registered on the 31st May last. 
210. How long before had you been connected with the formation of the company ? Perhaps three or 
four weeks. 1 could not say exactly-several weeks. 
211. Did you take an active part in the formation of the company ? I did, I formed it. 
212.. Were you the originator of it ? Yes, I think so, generally. 
213. Have you the books and papers connected with that company, to show the list of shareholders ? 
Yes, everything. 
214. Have you the prospectus ? We never had a prospectus ; but there are the articles of association. 
215, Have you the share list ? Yes. This is the share register, showing the names of the shareholders, 
entered up separately-seventy-three of them. 
216. What was the capital of the company ? £1,000,000 was the nominal capital. 
217. In pound shares ? E1 shares. 
218. Does that all appear in the articles of association ? Yes. 
219. And does the disposition of all these shares appear also ? It appears in the share register ; only a 
few signed the articles of association. 	 220. 
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T. S. 	220. How many shares do the signatures to the articles of association represent? 777,000. 
Huntley. 221. And how many have been applied for and allotted up to the present time ? 077,000. 

7 San 1689 222. Leaving a balance of 23,000 unallotted and unapplied for ? There were more than a million applied ., 	. for, but the 23,000 were unallotted. The capital was more than subscribed for, but only 977,000 were 
allotted. 
223. If the capital was oversubscribed could you tell me how it was that there was a balance left 
unallotted ? It was thought likely that we might amalgamate perhaps with some other syndicate, some 
other company, and incorporate them with us. It was never so expressed, but that was the fact. 
221. You contemplated amalgamating with some other syndicate? We thought we might amalgamate 
with some other syndicate, and these shares were not allotted with that object in view, 
225. How would you have utilized these unallotted shares in the event of an amalgamation ? Simply 
sell them at par. We should absorb the other syndicate, take them in, distribute our shares to them at 
their par value, and so remove one element of competition. 
226. But did you calculate that you could get rid of an opposing syndicate by 23,000 shares ? Oh, no. 
The 223,000 shares not subscribed for at the time the articles of association were signed were reserved, 
with the view to the possible amalgamation with another syndicate. 
227. I asked you first why the 23,000 shares • were not allotted, considering that the capital was over. 
subscribed ? They formed part af the balance left at the time to which the statement I have just made 
refers. To make the matter quite clear I may explain that 120,000 shares were issued to one party of 
contractors who were thinking of tendering as a syndicate. We have absorbed them since, and allotted 
them 120,000 shares. 
228. Who were they? This is the entry in the minute book referring to tlfe transaction : "The Chair-
man then introduced Messrs. Johnston A; Monie to the meeting, and explained that it had been arranged 
to admit them, with four others, viz., Messrs. Angus, Moine, jun., Mimic, sen., Fishburn, and J. W. 
Ferguson, who would all subscribe for 20,000 shares each, in all 120,000 shares." That disposed of 
120,000 of the 223,000 shares that remained at the time the articles of association were registered. 
220. Do I understand that these gentlemen proposed to form another syndicate ? They did. 
230. And in order to get rid of that opposing syndicate you got them to join your syndicate, they taking 
up 120,000 of the 223,000 shares ? That is correct. The minute I have just read IS dated the 24th 
October. The other shares had then been allotted to applicants who came in from time to time. We 
had any number of applications from parties who wished to come in ; but the Board, for reasons of their 
own-the non-suitability of the parties or otherwise-did not allot them all shares. They were not put 
publicly on the market, and therefore it was a matter of discretion with the Board. 
231. Then, how many of the 223,000 shares were allotted in that way ? There are 23,000 left now, and 
there were 120,000 allotted to the gentlemen I have just named. That makes 142,000. The difference 
between that number and the 223,000 were allotted from time to time by the Board. 
232. To persons who came ? Yes. 
232. What I want to know is, why were not the 23,000 allotted ? it was so recent when these 120,000 
were allotted-the 24th October-that there was no want of funds, as I shall show you by our bank book. 
We were not in want of funds, and the Board simply kept them over, not, having any special object in 
view. My minutes are all here: they can be read right through from beginning to end. 
234. Can you tell me whether the 23,000 were reserved for any reason whatever ? No ; they were not 
specially reserved. 
235. Why were they not allotted ? I am not able to say why they were not allotted. 
236. You say that the £1.000,000 capital was oversubscribed ? Yes. You have got hold of some figures 
which do not appear to be quite right, because on the first day of allotment we allotted 856,000 shares, 
so that the balance that then remained was not 223,000, as you seem to think, but the difference between 
856,000 and 1,000,000-that is to say, 141,000. 
237. What became of them ? 120,000 went to those six gentlemen whom I have named, and the balance 
of 23,000 have not been allotted or applied for since that allotment took place. 
238. But are there not applications in the office that will cover those 23,000? I could not say that 
without referring to the books. 
239. I am takino

° 
 your own language. You say that the capital was oversubscribed ? -Yes. 

240. Beyond £1,000,000 ? You must understand that there were no formal forms sent out for applica-
tions for shares in this case, as is usual with companies being floated-forms accompanying the pros-
pectus. Persons would come in to the chairman's office (Mr. James Burns), or they would go to Mr. 
M. C..Cowlishaw, or Mr. Charles Stokes, and say, " I want so many shares in this company." There 
were just memoranda taken of these informal applications, and when the matter came before the Board 
the result was the allotment of these 856,000 shares. Since then 120,000 shares have been allotted to 
the other persons to get rid of the opposing syndicate, and there arc 23,000 shares on hand now. 
241. I understood you to say that the capital was oversubscribed ? That is correct. 
242. Then why were these 23,000 not allotted ? There has been no allotment except of the 120,000 
since that. There has been no application for them. 
243. There must have been applications to cover them in the office according to what you say ? I say 
that there were informal applications to Messrs. Burns, Cowlishaw, and Stokes, and perhaps some other 
members of the Board-there were five of them-and these directors would make a note of the applications, 
and when the allotment of shares took place they allotted 856,000 shares. 
244. Do you mean to say that there has been no allotment at all since the 120,000 were got rid of ? I do ; 
nor has there been any allotment, except the 120,000, since the 7th of June. 
245. Do you know of any reason why the 23,000 were not allotted, because according to your evidence 
there have been at all events informal applications to cover them ? that is correct. 
246. And you do not know of any reason why these 23,000 shares were not allotted ? I do not. 
247. Are the matters coining before the Board matters of which you would have cognizance ? Yes. 
248. Are you aware of anything at any of the meetings that took place that would explain why the 
22,000 were not allotted ? No; not a word. Nothing occurs in my minutes, or any conversation about 
it. The only thing that occurs in the minutes in this resolution-" Resolved, That no director sell any of 
his shares except to a friend or friends, at par." This happened in consequence of overtures being made 
through Melbourne brokers to buy these shares at a premium. 

249. 
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T. 249. When was that ? This was on the 7th June. Thera were overtures to us to sell 800,000 shares at 	S. 
Huntley. a premium. 

250. At what premium ? As much as half-a-crown a share, although there was only 2s. a hundred shares " Bo 1889.  
paid up. But the Board said this-"If we become parties to anything of this kind we shall bring ourselves 
into disrepute, because we have nothing to sell. It is a preliminary company, and how can we sell 
nothing ?" Hence they resolved to Ind this resolution en the book. Asa matter of fact they never sold 
any of :their shares excepting to personal friends at par, for which 1 have received the money, and handed 
to them 2s. per hundred shares in terms of the articles of association. 
2:51. Then I understand that on the 7th June you had offers to purchase 300,000 of these shares at 2s. Gd. 
premium ? Yes. 
252. That is a premium of 2s. 6d. per hundred shares ? No, per share. 
253. That would be a hundred half-crowns for every hundred shares ? Yes. 
251. Do you wish to explain anything further with reference to the allotment of the shares ? I wish the 
circumstances to be made perfectly clear. On the 7th June, 850,000 shares were allotted, and 141,000 
shares were reserved for future issue at the discretion of the directors. Of the 141,000, 120,090 were 
allotted to six gentlemen whose names I have given, leaving a balance of 24,000 still unallotted. 
255. I am going to ask you a question with reference to a conversation with Mr. Haynes, and I think it 
right to tell you that you are not bound to answer it unless you like. I shall also ask you a few questions 
with reference to a conversation with Mr. Carruthers. But first let me ask-did you at any time have in 
contemplation the reserving of any number of shares for Members of Parliament or other persons in 
public positions? There was a thought passing through my mind which formed the subject of 
conversation with Mr. Carruthers. I cannot say that it was long before it, because I think it must have 
been simultaneously almost with my seeing him. 
256. Do I understand you, then, that that idea did not enter your mind until you had the conversation 
with Mr. Carruthers ? At about that time ; not a long time before. 
257. Had you, before you saw Mr. Carruthers, communicated that idea to any of the directors ? I 
had not. 
258. Or to any one connected with the company ? No. 
259. Or to any one ? No.* 
260. And what was the idea that occurred to your mind? It seemed to me to be somewhat unfair to 
Members of Parliament and others, who were politically prevented from entering into such an undertaking,  
that they should be shut out altogether from the right to embark upon what I looked upon as very likely 
to be a profitable enterprise, and I said to Mr. Carruthers, "I have got an idea that it would be perhaps 
wise or desirable to reserve a certain number of shares to be applied for by Members of Parliament and 
others after a contract is entered into with my company by the Government-supposing a contract is 
entered into-that they may apply for them at par." 
201. What do you mean by applying for them at par ? At their subscribed value. 
262. Were they to pay anything for them ? Oh, certainly ; they were to subscribe for them the same 
as any other person. There was not the inost remote thought of giving anything away. 
263. Then your idea was to let them have the advantage of getting them at par, even though they 
happened to be at a premium ? That was the idea, that if the shares did go to a premium they would 
have the advantage of the premium, and subscribe for the shares at par. 
201.. When was It that this idea occurred to you? Can you fix the time ? It was some time just before 
the registration of the company. 
205. When was the registration of the company ? On the 31st May. 
266. Can you fix the time of your conversation with Mr. Carruthers ? Yes ; previous to the formation 
of the company. 
267. Are you quite sure of that ? Quite sure. 
268. And there is no doubt that the company was registered on the 31st May ? None. 
269. Can you say about how long before that date the conversation with Mr. Carruthers took place ? It 
may have been a week or ten days. 
270. Can you tell me whether at the time this idea occurred to you, and you had the conversation with 
Mr. Carruthers, you had received those communications from the Melbourne brokers of which you spoke? 
Oh, no ; because the existence of the company was not known until after the registration took place. It 
was all private ; there was no publication in the papers or anything of that kind until after the statement 
to the effect that the company had been registered. 
271. Then at the time of this conversation with Mr. Carruthers you did not know whether or not the 
shares would go to a premium ? No. 
272. And you did not know whether or not any persons were prepared to buy them at a premium? No, 
no knowledge whatever. 
278. It was after the registration of the company that the communication came from the Melbourne 
brokers ? Yes, some time afterwards; some tune between that and the 7th of 'June, the day of the first 
meeting of the Board. If I recollect rightly, the Daily Telegraph published a short statement to the effect 
that the company had been registered and that I was the secretary. 
274. Had you any belief, apart from actual knowledge, at the time of the conversation with Mr. 
Carruthers that the shares would go to a premium ? I had nothing to justify the belief, because that 
would have been impossible. It would have been impossible for us to tell at what price we would become. 
purchasers of the trains, if we did become purchasers. The possibility or otherwise of a premium would 
greatly depend upon the price we would have to pay. There was only a possible chance of the shares 
goina

° 
 to a premium ; there was nothing to justify the expectation of a speculator. 

275. As I understand, this company, like all the others, was formed merely as a syndicate company, to 
secure the lease of the trams ? Yes. We called it the preliminary company to secure the lease. 
276. It was a syndicate company to secure the lease ? I do not know how the term "syndicate" is to be 
explained. 277.wen, a company to secure the lease ? Yes; lease or purchase. The articles of association set out 
very distinctly what the objects are -" to lease or purchase these trams and build other trains." 

278. 
*Mr. Huntley, upon revising his evidence, added :-I may have had a conversation with one or more Members on 

the subject of the tramways generally, but certainly not for the purpose of corrupting them. 
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T. S. 	278. Did this company have in contemplation the carrying on of the tramways in the event of their obtain- 
Huntley. ing the lease ? Yes. 
""A-----` 279. The same company ? Yes. 7 Jan., 1889. 280. They did not require to have another company formed ? No. 

2801. Then in the event of a lease being obtained the shares in the company would at once be the only 
shares that the public could obtain ? Yes. 
281. Only assuming that you obtained the lease ? That is quite right. 
282. Assuming that you obtained the lease, the shares in the company of which you are the secretary, 
would have been the only shares the public could have obtained ? That is right. But I may say that it 
would have been necessary to issue another million shares. When the company was registered we had 
no earthly knowledge of the proposals that would be formulated by the Government. When the Gazette 
extraordinary of the 15th October disclosed the Government proposals we saw that it would be necessary 
to carry out new works, and to alter and carry on the old ones, and that this would require another 
million of money. 
283. In other words that you would have had to increase your capital by £1,000,000 ? That is right. 
284. What was the total amount called up ? £977, being £1 per thousand shares. 
285. How did you pay the deposit required to accompany the tender ? We got a special credit from the 
bank of £50,000 on the bond of five directors. That appears in my minutes. 
286. Of course you would have to pay interest at the bank ? That is right. 
287. As I understand, whether the capital was increased or whether it was not the only shares the public 
could obtain would be the shares of this company ? That is right. 
288. Either original or increased capital shares ? That is right. 
289. Why was it that you thought that Members of Parliament and gentlemen holding public positions 
should be protected in the way you have suggested, by allowing them afterwards to come in and take 
shares at par ? I am not able to give any special explanation of that. It was an idea winch occurred, to 
me at the time. I thought I would like some Members of Parliament I knew to subscribe for some 
shares as a paying venture. I believed it to be a possibly paying venture. 
290. Do you not see that once that got wind, got known at all, it would, if Members of Parliament were 
disposed to take that view of it, act as a very direct bribe ? I see the possibility of its being so construed, 
but there was not. 
291. I am not speaking of what passed in your mind ; but you SOO now that such a thing might operate 
as a very strong incentive to persons of a -peculiar form of mind to give their votes in a certain way ? I 
do. As against that there is the caution of Mr. Carruthers. 
292. I am coming to that. You had a conversation with Mr. Carruthers. Have you told us that 
conversation ? I met him in King-strent and told him that I was forming a company to acquire the 
tramways. • I think it began first of all by my saying, "I see that there is some movement on foot by a 
Melbourne syndicate to acquire the Government tramways. Do you not think if they are to be disposed 
of, they should be disposed of by public tender, to give other persons an opportunity of tendering ? 
Would you be in favour, if such a proposal were brought forward, of tenders being publicly invited for 
the sale or lease of the tramways ? 3 ' 
293. That is, to submit them to public competition? Yes. He said, " Certainly ; if they are to be disposed 
of, I should support its being, done in that way." I then told him that I was forming a company, in which 
some of the best commercial men were interested, for the purpose of trying to acquire the tramways, amid 
it was then that I said I had a thought that sonic shares might be reserved, as I have already described, 
for persons who were politically prevented from applying at the early stages, who could apply after a 
contract had been entered into with the Government for the purchase or leasing. He then at once 
said, "I would not do anything of the kind. Do not do that, old man ; I would not do anything of the 
kind. Evil may be made out of it," and there the matter ended. It never went beyond my lips after 
that, not oven to my Board. 
294. Who were your Board at that time ? The same as the Board at the present time. They arc men-
tioned in the articles of association-John Arthur Mallon Clarke Cowlishaw, James Burns, Charles 
Frederick Stokes, and Malcolm Donald WEacharn. 
295. Now you say that this idea occurred to your mind ;-did you ever communicate it to the Board in 
any way whatever ? I did not. 
296. Or to anyone connected with the company ? No. 
297. Do I understand that the view Mr. Carruthers took of it persuaded you that you were wrong ? 
That is 80. 
293. You admit now that you see the impropriety of it ? Yes. 
299. Can you tell me whether any shares were kept back in any way at all for Members of Parliament or 
for other persons in public positions to subscribe for at par or otherwise? Never. 
300. In any way whatever ? Not in any way whatever. I might add that there is no such person in 
the company as a shareholder. 
301. There is no Member of Parliament and no person in a public position in the company ? No; and I 
am not a shareholder myself, and I never held a share. 
302. How long had you known Mr. Carruthers ? Five or six years. 
803. Had you known him intimately at all ? He is a Member for Canterbury, and I am a voter of 
Canterbury. 
304. Had you often been brought into contact with him ? Very frequently. 
305. Publicly and in business ? Publicly and in business. 
300. Now there is another conversation with Mr. Haynes ? Alleged conversation. 
307. The conversation that he has sworn to ;-with reference to that I have told you of course that if you 
like you can decline to answer ? What is the object of declining to answer ? 
303. I cannot tell you ;-all I say is that you are entitled to decline, if you like ;-of course, if you ask 
me, I strongly recommend you not to decline ? I am not going to decline. It is the last thing I would 
think of. 
309. How long had you known Mr. Haynes? I only knew him as john Haynes, when he was asso-
ciated with the Bulletin. 

310. 
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310. Had you ever come into contact with him in business ? He frequently canvassed me in the office 	T. S.  
for permission to write squibs and advertisements for laud sales to put in the Bulletin. That is the only Huntloy. 
transaction I have had with him 
311. Did you know him at all, personally? Only in that way. 	 7 Jan., 1889. 
312. I mean when you met him in the street did you shake hands with him ? Never in my life. 
313. Were you on sufficiently intimate terms to call him by name, or anything of that sort? No. If I 
addressed him I should call him "Mr. Haynes." 
311. How often have you spoken to him in your life ? I do not think I have spoken with him for two 
years, since the dissolution of my firm. 
315. Were the conversations then such as you described when he came to you for permission to put squibs 
in about land sales ? Yes. 
310. You have beard his account in the House, and you have read the report in Hansard of what he says 
you said to him and he said to you. Now, first of all, did you meet him at all anywhere, at about the 
time this matter was corning on in Parliament, or contemplated coming on ? I did not. I have sat in a 
tram car with him once ; that is the only thing, to my knowledge within the last two years. 
317. Were was that? Passing along Elizabeth-street; he happened to be sitting in the same compart-
ment. That is the only time I have been near him. 
318. How long ago was that ? I believe twelve months ago. 
319. What do you say about that alleged interview between you and him at the corner of King and 
Elizabeth Streets ? I say it is absolutely untrue; that there is not a word of truth in it. 
320. Did you meet him there? I did not. 
321. Did you speak to him at all ? No, not this two years. I might have said, "How do you do," in 
the street SWIM lime; but I never had a conversation with him. 
322. You mean in passing you may have accosted him ? He very likely would have bowed to me. 
323. But is it true that you told him that if lie used his influence in Parliament in supporting the obtain-
ing of the lease for your company he would have £1,000 and 1,500 paid up shares ? No, it is untrue ; 
and I will show the impossibility of its being true, looking at it from an ordinary common-sense point of 
view. My bank-book and balance-sheet show that we have never had more than £997 to our credit, and 
the articles of association show that there are no paid-up shares in the company whatever. 
321. lb.. Knox.] But surely there would be funds available after the lease was obtained. The directors 
had power to call up all the capital, and thus form paid-up shares ? Of course that is possible. Then, 
as against that, I should say that at no time could I make such an offer without the concurrence of my 
Board, and the instructions of the Board. This is a public company, and the records of the company- are 
in the books, and open to the inspection of any shareholder. I could not make such an offer without 
direct sanction and authority, and I say that no conversation took place on such a subject, and that 1 .  
never had any authority to offer Mr. Haynes or any other person any bribe or consideration in any shape 
or form. 
325. President.] If I remember the conversation rightly, Mr. Haynes said that if he used his influence in 
getting the lease 1,000 sovereigns and 1,500 paid-up shares would be given to him? Yes, he said so. 
326. You hand in a statement of accounts, showing that at no time had the company £1,000, and at any 
rate, under the existing state of things, they could never have had more than that shown in the balance-
sheet ? That is right-except the £50,000 deposit. 
327. That is money borrowed from the bank, not your money at all ? Money borrowed. 
328. I -understand you to say, in addition, that the articles of association show, that in fact there arc no 
paid-up shares ? That is right. 
329. It they were given away as paid-up shares, somebody else would have to pay the money ? That is 
right. 
330. Mr. Knox.] Do I understand you to say that, in addition to the instructions of the Board, you never 
received instructions direct or indirect from anyone of the shareholders or directors to use any portion of 
his shares or the proceeds of them to induce members of Parliament to vote for the transferring of these 
tramways ? That is what I do say, that I had no instructions or authority from anyone at any time. 
331. President.] To use any portion of the shares or of their shares in any- way for the purpose of the 
furtherance of the company ?. No; I have not. 
332. Of the £977, the only money the company ever had, I see that there was expended £355 Is. 7d. 
for the purposes of the company ? Yes. 
333. Leaving a credit balance of £621 18s. 5d.? That is right. 
331. The money expended for the purpose of the company was, I see, for incidental expenses in connec-
tion with the formation of the company ? That is right. 
335. Legal expenses, books, papers, and so on-ordinary incidental expenses ? Yes. That statement 
was prepared for a general meeting on Friday next, and I only got it accidentally, not knowing that I 
was to be summoned here. 
336. 1 want you to be quite clear about this ; I suppose you have thought the matter over. I want an 
absolute positive statement, if you can make it, as to whether or not you met Mr. Haynes and had 
any conversation with him within the last three Or four months at the corner of King and Elizabeth 
streets, or any other place about the trains? I have not. 
337. I will read you this passage from a speech by Mr. Haynes :- 

He told me that the leasing of the trams would be brought before the House shortly, and he said that if I supported 
the matter, and saw it go through, his syndicate would stand me 1,000 sovereigns, and give Inc a receipt showing that 
I had subscribed fully for 1,500 shares in the syndicate for leasing the trams. 

338. Is that true or not ? It is not true. 
339. Have you any doubt in the world about it ? Not the slightest doubt. 
310. Is there any word of truth in it ? Not a word. 
341. Any semblance of truth ? No, there could not be-I never met him. 
312. Is it possible that you could have had any conversation of any kind with Mr. Haynes within the last 
three or four months ? No. I am clear that I have not spoken to him for two years. 
343. Are you quite certain that you never spoke to him about the trams ? Quite certain. 

The 
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• 	 The Hon. William Clarke, M.P., called in, sworn, and examined :- 
11011 • Wat 344• President.] You, I believe, are the Minister for Justice in the present Administration? Yes. 

Clarke, M.P. 345. And you are a member of the Government who introduced the resolutions with reference to the 
leasing of the trams? Yes. 7 Janmffa, 316. 'Which was debated last month, and upon which the House divided ? Yes. 
317. Do you know Mr. Bowman, of Melbourne ? I do. 
318. What is lie? He was a traveller at the time I knew him for a tea firm, a mercantile firm. 
349. What tea firm was that ? I think he was travelling for Henty and Company. 
850. How many years ago was that ? About fifteen. 
351. Have you seen Mr. Bowman at all lately ? I saw him, I think, about the month of October last in 
Sydney. 
352. Where did you see him? At the Treasury. 
353. What conversation had you with him there? I was surprised, to see him in the Treasury, talking 
with Mr. Eager, and I simply said, "Halloo, Bowman, what are you doing here.?" 
354. You remembered him ? Oh, yes, I remembered him. He was a Member of Parliament in Victoria!, 
and I knew him more prominently in that position. 
855. What took place then? He simply said words to tins effect-I would not say positively that they 
were the exact words-but the gist of it was that he was going to make some inquiry about the trains, or 
that he was going to tender for the trams. That is all that passed. 
356. Nothing else ? Nothing else. 
357. Did you see him again at any other. time ? No. 
358. Had you any connection in any shape or form with any syndicate that was formed in Melbourne, or 
Sydney, or anywhere with a view to leasing these trains ? Never, directly or indirectly. 
359. Or had you seen anyone, or promised your influence in any shape or form, towards obtaining the 
leasing of the trams, quite apart from any particular syndicate ? No. 
360. Or agreed to use your influence to get the Government to bring in these resolutions ? No. I do 
not think such a thing would have been likely, as the Government had expressed their intention to lease 
the trams ; there was no necessity for it that lean see. 
361. If anyone has said that you were in any way connected or interested in any syndicate formed for the 
purpose of leasing the trams, is there any truth in it ? Not the slightest. 
362. Or had they any authority from you to make such a statement ? No. 
363. Or would a similar statement as to your having any interest in the matter in the way of using your 
influence to further it, or in any way of that sort, be true ? No. 
361. When did you first become aware that any syndicates were being formed ? In consequence of the 
introduction to the Cabinet, by the Colonial Secretary, of Mr. Andrew Rowan, particulars of which 
interview appeared in the papers laid before Parliament. That was my first intimation. 
365. Was that before this motion ? Oh, yes ; in 1887. 
366. That is the old matter ? That is the old matter, yes. 
367. That was at a time when Mr. Rowan was representing a Melbourne syndicate ? Representing a 
Melbourne and Sydney syndicate. 
SG& 'When did you first become aware of the existence of syndicates proposing-,  to deal with your late 
intention of leasine,  the trams ? I knew last year that there were several syndicates floated. 
369. How long before you introduced your resolutions, or was it before? Several months before. I saw 
by the press of the formation of one company at any rate. 
370. Is that the New South Wales ? I do not know the name of the company ; that was the first 
intimation of that company. 
371. Was that the company Mr. Huntley was associated with ? I do not know Mr. Huntley in 
connection with it. 
372. Did you know otherwise except through the press ? Not of the establishment of that company. 
373. Or of any syndicates ? Yes; Mr. Rowan told me that their Melbourne syndicate was going in for 
the trains. 
374. That was in 1887? No, in 1888. 
275. When was that ? I could not fix the month-I think at the commencement of the year. I heard 
that they were going to tender for the trains. 
370. Where did you nee Mr. Rowan-at Melbourne or in Sydney ? In Sydney. 
377. Did you know otherwise at all from anyone else anything, about proposed syndicates or existing 
syndicates? Yes ; Mr. Jennings told me that he was getting up a syndicate. 
878. Anyone else ? No One else. 
379. Then you. only knew-, as I gather, that in the event of the Government's intentions being carried out 
there were syndicates being formed to deal with the matter ? That is all I know. 
350. You had no interest in any shape or form in any of them? Not in the slightest degree. 
351. And you never said you had, or authorised anyone to say that you had? I never said I had, nor 
authorised anyone to say that I had. 
382. You never authorised Mr. Bowman to say that you had? Never. I never had any conversation 
with him, except such as I have reported to you. 
383. As to the Cliff matter ;-were you associated with Mr. Cliff in any way at all in connection with ally 
syndicates ? No. 
381. Or had you any interest in ally syndicates with which he was connected ? No, nor any conversation 
with him on the subject. 
385. Was there any agreement or understanding, expressed or implied, between you and Mr. Cliff or 
anyone that you would have any interest in any shape or form? No. I never had any conversation 
with Mr. Cliff on the subject. 
356. And apart from that, you had no interest, either expressed or implied, and no understanding that 
you would have any interest with Mr. Cliff, or with anybody else ? No, none whatever, 
387. h is stated that Mr. Fehon's appointment was made really with a view to put it in his power to act 
in the interests of a particular syndicate in Melbourne. That is, as I understand the matter ; is it not 
so ? The words were, that I had assisted Mr. Fehon to get the appointment of Railway Commissioner in
order that some fraud might be worked. in connection with the leasing of the tramways. 	

s 
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388. That preference might be given to some syndicate with which he was connected ? No, not that any Hon. Wm. 
preference might be given. I think the words will be found in the Hansard report of Mr. Dibbs' Clarke ' MP' 
speech. 
389. " He can tell this House whether Mr. Paoli, nominally as Railway Commissioner, is not here for the 7 jtut; "89 ' 
purpose of piloting through the leasing of the tramways to a Melbourne syndicate." What do you say to 
that ? I never had a word of conversation with Mr. Felton about the leasing or the selling of the trams. 
390. Had you anything to do specially with the appointment of Mr. Fehon ? Yes, I recommended him. 
391. I cannot do more than ask you whether there is a word of truth in the suggestion of Mr. Dibbs that 
Mr. Fehon was nominally a Commissioner for Railways, but really in that position for the purpose of 
piloting through the leasing of the tramways to a Melbourne syndicate ? Not a word of truth in it as far 
as I know. 
392. Did you ever hear such a thing suggested, excepting by Mr. Dibbs ? No, excepting by Mr. Dibbs. 
393. Did Mr. Bowman bring a letter to you from the Minister for Education ? I do not remember it. 
894. What were you doing, do you remember, at the Treasury that day? That I could not remember. 
I have not the slightest idea what I was there for. 
395. Do the duties of your Department involve visiting the Treasury ? No; but sometimes my repre-
sentative character may call me to the Treasury. 
396. But not in connection with the Deportment? No. I represent the electoral district of Orange, 
and may have some business to do at the Treasury for my constituents ; but I do not remember that I 
was there even on that business. 
307. You cannot say what took you to the Treasury on that particular day, or what your business was that 
day? No ; unless it was that about that time I wanted to see Mr. Eagar about getting the use of the 
steam launch "Premier." I went to see if it was all right. That is all I can remember at the present 
moment. 

The Honorable James Inglis, MP., called in, sworn, and examined 
398. President.] You are the Minister of Public Instruction ? Yes. 	 Hon. Jamee 
399. In the present Government Yes. 	 Inglis, MX. 
400. You are a member of the Government that introduced the tram-leasing resolutions? Yes. 
401. Are you aware that any syndicates were in existence for the purpose of dealing with the Govern- 7 jai)" 1889* 
meut in leasing the tramways ? Only by common report ; I did not know of my own knowledge. 
402. When did you first become aware of the existence of any such syndicates, by common report or 
otherwise ? When Mr. Rowan came up first of all. 
403. When was that ? That was a good many months ago. 
404. 1887 or 1888 ? It was 1887 when I knew of it first. I took very little interest in the matter of 
the syndicates. 
405. That is Mr. Rowan, of Melbourne ? Yes. 
406. 'Were you aware of the existence of any -  syndicates formed in Sydney ? Not personally ; I heard 
that Jennings, Munro, and others were interested in one. 
407. I suppose you heard of the others in the same way ? I only heard of these two. 
408. Rowan's and Jennings ? That is all I heard of until Mr. Bowman came up to see me. 
409. Then Mr. Bowman came up to see you ;—how long had you known Mr. Bowman ? I knew Mr. 
Bowman first when I was Commissioner for India at the first Melbourne Exhibition. I was introduced to 
him by Messrs. James lienV and Company. ruder Ifenty's orders he was starting the Calcutta, Tea 
Association. 
410. In Melbourne ? In Melbourne; and my brother, the Hon. A. B. Inglis, chairman of the Calcutta 
Chamber of Commerce, and a member of the Viceroy's Council, wrote to me saying that it would be a 
good thing to work:in:with Henty, and then the Dimity's started this man Bowman, and I got the exclusive 
agency of the Calcutta Tea Association in Sydney—Mr. Bowman being the man who was really working 
the thing, though he was backed by Henty and Co. Mr. Brown, my partner, and I carried on that agency 
for over a year. We were to get better terms from Mr. Bowman when we had raised the sales to a 
certain point. I worked very hard, and went through the country lecturing, for which I was paid by the 
Indian Government ; they paid me a subsidy for my expenses, and we soon worked up the sales to very 
much more than the required amount. Then we found that Mr. Bowman hummed and hawed, and would 
not give us better terms, so we threw up the agency and started on our Own account. That agency was 
taken up by George Griffiths and Company, and I believe they have it still. Mr. Brown and I went on our 
own account ; imported our tea-s direct, started the Assam blend of our own, and from that time until 
the other day I have had no business transactions with Mr. Bowman. 
411. You say "the other day " ? Then he sent me up a telegram, which I have in my pocket, and which 
I will give you. I have seen him once or twice in Melbourne, when I have been there, but not to do 
business with him, just as a mere casual acquaintance, and that, on the 29th October, is the first com-
munication with him in writing that I have had. The following is the telegram I received :—" When are 
tenders to be called, and what is deposit for lease Sydney trains? Reply quick." 
412. Did you send a reply to that ? Upon my word, 1 really forget, it made so little impression upon me. 
I think I wrote him a note to say that all the information that would be of any use to him he would get 
in the Government Gazette of such a date, nothing else, if I did that ; but I do not remember whether I 
did. Some days afterwards he followed his telegram and came up himself. Whether I replied to him I 
cannot say. Very likely I did, for I generally reply and answer all my day's letters, if I can, on the day 
I get them. At all events, some days afterwards, Mr. Bowman Call1C up, and he came to see me. He told 
me that he was representing a syndicate, and he mentioned Air. Bent's name, and some others ; but Mr. 
Bent's name is the only one 1 can remember. He asked me if I could give him any information, and I 
told him that the only information 1 could give him was in the public specifications which were published 
in the Gazette. Ile then asked me if I would give him a note to the Under Secretary so that he 

h would go to the fountain head, and get what information he could. I think I gave him my card to Mr. 
Bailing, and on the back of it I said, "Mr. Bowman is an ex-member of Parliament, from Victoria, and 
wants information about the trams. Let him have all, the information you can give him," or something 
like that; but it was of such an ordinary conventional character that it made no impression upon my 

25—C 	 mind. 
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grnis 'hal" mind. If Mr. Barling is called I am sure he will corroborate this. Many persons come to me wanting 
:Inglis' MS' my card, and to get information about this, that, or the other, and I am always courteous to them; and if 
7 Jan 188B I can assist them in getting any information of public interest I do so, and I simply did the same with .,  Mr. Bowman, and I saw DO more of him until one day when Mr. Sutherland was ill, and I went up to 

sign some formal documents for him. I met Mr. Bowman in the lobby of the Works Department. As I 
was going in to Sir Henry lie stopped me and said that he was going down to Melbourne that night, and 
if he could only see Sir Henry for a few minutes it would help him very much that he had got all the 
information he could, and he would like to see Sir Henry as to whether there would be an extension of the 
time, or something of that sort. When I went in to Sir Henry I said, "There is a man, Bowman, 
outside, an ex-member of Parliament from Victoria.. He is anxious to see you for a moment about 
these trams." I took little interest in the matter after it had been settled by the Cabinet, it not 
being one demanding such personal interest from me as if it had been in connection with my own 
Department, but I thought it was desirable that the Government should get as many tenders as 
possible. Sir Henry said,-11 do not remember the exact words, but it was to this effect,—" I do not 
want to see him ; I have nothing to do with him ; it is not in my Department." " Oh, you had, better 
see him, and get rid of him," I said, and he said, "Very well." When I came out Mr. Bowman was 
not there ; but I told one of the messengers who was at the door to " tell that gentleman Sir Henry 
will see him in a minute," and then I went off to Mr. Sutherland's room, 80 that whether Mr. Bowman 
saw Sir Henry or not I cannot say. If he told anyone that I introduced him to Sir Henry that is 
not true. So that this is quite compatible with what Sir Henry said in the House about not remem-
bering to have seen Bowman. Perhaps be did not ; I do not know that he did. The next thing was that 
some time afterwards a. Mr. Pritchard sent in his card- 
413. Was he one of the contractors for the sewers ? I do not know. I never saw him before, 
and have not seen him since ; but I believe he is a railway contractor. 	I asked Jessop, my 
messenger, what his business was, whether it was public business, as I generally do. Jessop came 
in, and said that he wanted to see me for a minute, and would not keep me long, and that he was 
Mr. Pritchard, a railway contractor. I said, "Show him in." He said, "Mr. Bowman, of Melbourne, 

• 

	

	 has asked me to call on you. He is representing a Melbourne syndicate, and I am representing 
a Sydney one. Mr. Bowman has made proposals to us to coalesce with them, to join forces, and 

.. has asked me to call on you, that possibly you might give me some information." I said, as 
' nearly as I can recollect, ' t  But this is I'M irregular. Even if I had any information you do not 

suppose t would give you it if it wore not open to the public." He said, " Mr. Bowman repre-
sented to me that if I called, upon you you would be glad perhaps to give me some information." 
I said, "Mr. Bowman had no right to say anything of the kind. All I know of Mr. Bowman is 
that I had some transactions with him some years ago, and they did not end altogether pleasantly, 
anti since then I have had, nothing to do with him ; and if you take my advice the less you have 
to do with Mr. Bowman perhaps the better for you." If you call Mr. Pritchard you will find that I 
have never had any communication with him since, never seen him since, never saw him in my life before, 
and I have not written to him, nor have I written to Mr. Bowman. 1 have been content with what I 
said in the House. I am quite sure that if you see Mr. Pritchard he will tell you, if he is a man of 
honour and truth, that that is exactly what I told him—that I cautioned !inn not to look upon Mr. 
Bowman as a friend of mine ; that I could not give him any information further than what was already 
open to the public ; and that the less he had to do with Mr. Bowman perhaps it would be the better for 
him. That is all my connection with the train matter. 
414. Is it true that you ever had or have any interest in any syndicate formed for the purpose of leasing 
the trams ? Absolutely none whatever. 
41.5. Directly or indirectly ? Not in any way conceivable. 
410. Either directly or indirectly ? Neither directly nor indirectly. 
417. Is it true that you authorised Mr. Bowman or anyone else to say that you had ? Never. 
415. Or did you ever promise to use your influence in obtaining the leasing of the trams to anyone, or to 
any syndicate ? Never and in justice to Mr. Bowman, 1 may say that he never made the remotest hint 
of anything of that kind to me. All he did was simply to presume, upon his old business acquaintance 
with me, to ask me for the ordinary conventional kindness of a card, to enable him to get through his 
business more quickly than if he had not the card of a Member of Parliament or a Minister. People are 
often kept waiting in the lobbies a long time, and that was the only reason why he asked me to give lthn 
my card, Whatever Mr. Bowman may have said in Melbourne, I do not know ; but if he has said any-
thing further than that, it is not true. 

J. Darling. 

Jan., 1889. 

Joseph Barling called in, sworn, and examined:— 
419. President.] What dice do you bola in the Works Department? Under Secretary for Works. 
420. Could you tell us how many tenders were sent in to lease the trains ? I am speaking now from 
memory, but I think I am correct in saying that there were three tenders. 
121. Can you tell us who the tenderers were ? The tenders were not examined. Perhaps the better way 
would be to produce the record of our proceedings when the tenders were opened. The tenders were 
opened, lint they were not looked at by us. They were opened by the tenderers that they might identify the 
deposits, merely for the purpose of our taking account of them, they were bank drafts 1 think, and sending 
them to the Treasury to be forwarded to the Bank for the return of the amounts to the depositors. 
According to the record to which I have referred the three gentlemen, who signed the receipts for the 
tenders were John Woods, M. C. Cowlishaw, and \V. IL Jennings. Those three gentlemen were present. 
422. Do you remember Mr. Bowman coming to Sydney ? I do not remember his coming to Sydney, but 
a gentleman whom I believe to be Mr. Bowman called upon me. It is my practice to require the messenger 
to take the card of any gentleman who calls upon me, and having put the date upon it to deposit it in a 
card-basket as I find this a convenient method of identifying persons who call upon me, and as it happens 
Mr. Bowman's card is in my basket. This gentleman came to ine from Mr. Inglis. Whether Mr. Inglis 
gave him a letter of introduction or only a card I forget, but I am inclined to think that he brought a 
card. At any rate its purport was to request ine to put this gentleman in the way of finding out where 
the specifications were to be seen and particulars obtained with regard to the leasing of the tramwaYs. 

The 
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The course I pursued was this, I called the chief clerk and asked him to find out where the specification J: 
was. I had not the specification myself and up to that time in fact I had nothing whatever to do with it. 1'4'Th 
The specification was not prepared by me or in our office, and I did not for the moment know where it 'Tan" 1889' 
was. I asked the chief clerk to take this gentleman, who I suppose was Mr. Bowman, to the place where 
the specification was, and the chief clerk informed me that he tookMin to an officer of the Railway Depart-
ment named Badham, who I suppose showed him the specification. That was all I had to do with the 
matter. What makes me think that tins gentleman only brought a card from Mr. Inglis is that I could 
not find any letter of introduction, and Mr. Badham also thinks there was only a card. But so little did 
1 think of the matter at the time, that it entirely escaped my memory until Mr. Inglis mentioned it to me 
on the day or the day before he made his statement in the Muse. 
423. I suppose that a card or memorandum from a Minister of the Crown would expedite the inquiry of 
the gentleman who presented it ? I do not know that I could truthfully say so in a ease of this kind. 
I think that if anyone came to me and asked for the whereabouts of a public specification, I should show 
him as much attention as if he presented the card of a Minister. There are some cases in which a 
Minister of the Crown would receive greater attention than anyone else, but not in a case of this kind. 
424, flowerer, the memorandum or card, or whatever it was, was simply an introduction to you showing 
you what tins gentleman wanted to see? Nothing more; I looked at it in no other light. 

425. President.] 1 believe you are a member of the firm of Burns, Philp, & Co.? Yes. 	 James Burns. 
426. And you are the Chairman of the New South Wales Tramway Company ? Yes. 	 8 Tan., 1889. 427. The company was registered, I believe, on the 31st May ? I believe so. 
428. 'We have your share register and the articles of association, and I observe that there are still 
unallotted 23,000 or 24,000 shares. Can you tell us why those shares were not allotted? Well, in the 
first instance there were more shares applied for than we could allot, and I remember going through the 
list myself with Mr. Cowlishaw, and where people 'applied for 20,000 or 50,000 we cut the number down 
to 10,000 and 20,000, so as to keep it within bounds, so to speak, BO that we could allot the shares. We 
thought that it would be injudicious to issue up to the last share, and there was a balance of a few shares 
left. 
429. Some 28,000 I think? Yes, I do not think that there was any particular design in not allotting 
them all. It arose in this way : those who applied, say, for 20,000 shares we cut down to 10,000. We 
cut the shares down to the number we thought the applicants were entitled to receive. 
430. Did you also decline seine of the applications on the ground of the people who made the applications ? 
I do not think so. As far as my memory serves me, no proposals were declined, but the matter was dealt 
with by simply cutting down the applications. 
431. But none were declined on the ground, for instance, that the applicants were persons whom you 
thought it was 'perhaps not desirable to have in the Company ? No, I do not remember any such case. 
432. Was there any reason that you know of for not allotting the 23,000? No, there was certainly no 
specified reason whatever, 
433. But was there any reason present to the minds of the directors that you are aware of, specified or 
not specified ? No; there was no reason that suggested itself to any of the directors that I know of. I 
do not see what we could do with a number of shares like that. It was an odd number that happened to 
be left over after the allotment. 
434, Did your company make any provision in the way of withholding shares to be applied for afterwards 
by Members of Parliament or other persons in public positions F Quite the contrary. I distinctly 
remember, and I was talking to one of the directors this morning and he said that he remembered my 
stating at one of' the meetings that we should not, OD any consideration, allow any Member of Parliament 
to hold an interest because it might be construed disadvantageously for us afterwards, and it was all 
understood thing amongst ourselves that no Member of Parliament was to be allowed to take shares. 
435. But would that be in the original distribution ? Yes ; or in any distribution. We only had 
1,000,000 shares. 
436. What I want you to give me an answer to is this: Was there any arrangement or understanding in 
the company that any number of shares should be kept back for the purpose of allowing Members of 
Parliament or other public officers to apply for them at par or on any terms after the formation of the 
company after the company had obtained the lease? None whatever. 
437. To your knowledge was such a thing ever suggested to the company ? No; it was never suggested 
to the company that I know of. 
438. You never heard of it ? I never heard of it, and I am sure it never occurred, because our feeling 
all along was dead against it and the other way. We had overtures made to us for shares from different 
people. We were offered a premium of 2s. tid. for 200,000 or 300,000 shares by a firm of brokers in 
Sydney, and there were people anxious to get shares who would have paid us a premium. But I remember 
remarking at a meeting one day that we had not anything tangible to sell, that we were only going on 
the chance of getting the lease of the trains, and it looked very much like backing a horse on a racecourse 
if people were going to pay a large premium anticipating that we as directors of the company had a 
better chance of winning than anybody else. It was not a very honest thing to do. So that we pledged 
ourselves that we would not allow any shares to be sold by any one if we could help it at any premium 
whatever. We were simply going to try to secure the tramway business if the Government were intending 
to sell it. We endeavoured to secure it for Sydney. The company was purely a local company. Those 

were 
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James Burns. were the lines we went on. We never took any action until we saw the whole of the correspondence 
published in Gazette form by the Government, showing that there were Americans and Melbourne 

8 Jan., 1889. people and others about to tender for the Sydney trains ; and it struck a few gentlemen in Sydney that if 
the trams were to be leased a local company should try if possible to get them, and with that object in 
view we formed ourselves into a company and we tried to keep it aloof in every way from the shadow of 
a suspicion. We have the minutes of all our meetings hero, and I think they will bear inspection in 
every way. 1 do not see how a public company like ours could possibly have made any reservation of 
shares. We as the directors simply represented the shareholders. 
439. But quite apart from that, as a matter of fact you say you did not do it ? No. 
110. Or anything like it ? Nothing like it ; never dreamt of it even. 
411. It never entered your heads, and it was never suggested to you by anybody ? No ; we endeavoured 
to keep a straight course. 
442. But apart from that, it was never suggested to you, and never came before you for consideration 
even? No. . 
443. You are sure of that ? Quite sure of it. 
441. That is, in that form ? it was never talked of at all at the meetings. Of course we heard rumours 
that all sorts of things were going on, as you will in private conversation, and all that sort of thing. 
445. Would you tell me this; :Sid you ever authorize, or to your knowledge did the directors or any 
person connected with the company authorize, anyone to make any offer to any Member of Parliament ? 
Never. 
410. Did you ever hear of one being made ? No; and 1 am certain it never was made. I am sure my 
co-directors would never sanction such a thing, and I am sure I would never do it myself. 
417. Did your directors or any of you, or you or anyone authorised by them, ever instruct Mr. Huntley, 
or tell Mr. Huntley that he might, either directly or indirectly, inform Members of Parliament that they 
would get shares or money, or any other reward, for assisting to get the lease for your company ? No, I 
never did anything of the kind. 
443. Did you ever hear of that, or anything like that, until you heard the speeches made in Parliament? 
I never heard a word about it until 1 saw an accusation made in Parliament by Mr. Haynes against our 
Secretary. The first thought that shuck ine was that perhaps Mr. Huntley might have been connected 
with some other company prior to ours. I was quite staggered when I found that the charge related to 
our company, and I said Mr. Huntley ought either to be put into a madhouse, if there is any truth in it, 
or it is pure romance, because it did not seem to fit in with our ease at all. We had no paid up shares, 
and no money to pay, and the connection we had with a large number of business people in the city, and 
our own names, would preclude anything of that sort happening surely. I think it is opposed to reason 
and common sense. 
949. But what we want to know is, is it trim—you say it is not true ? Quite untrue ; at least, of course, 
I do not- 
450. I mean as far as you know ? As far 89 I know. 
451. If it was done it was never done by your authority in any shape or form ? Quite the reverse. 
We did quite the opposite. We had an understanding amongst ourselves that no Members of Parliament 
were to be admitted, or to have any connection with it whatever. 
452. You read Mr. Carruthers' speech in Parliament ? I did. 
453. You remember that the material part of his speech was that Mr. Huntley said that his idea was to 
retain some shares, so that Members of Parliament and persons in similar positions might, if they liked, 
come in at par ;—did such a proposition ever come before you in any shape or form at any time ? I 
never heard Mr. Carruthers' name. 
454. Did you ever hear that proposition from any one? I never heard of it until I saw it in the paper. 
455. Did the directors, to your knowledge, hear of it ? Never. 
456. Did it ever come before you for your consideration ? Never. 
457. Was such a thing brought before you, either before or after the registration of the company, in any 
way at all ? I never heard a word about it. I never heard of Mr. Carruthers. 
458. Apart from Mr. Carruthers ;—I am speaking qf the proposition ? No. To my knowledge there 
was no intimation to the secretary or any one else that he might approach any Member of Parliament on 
any pretext whatever. 
45(.:'. I want to know whether at any time—either before the registration of the company or afterwards—
that proposition ever came before the notice of the directors in any shape or form, or was it ever con-
sidered by them ? Never. 
460. Neither one nor the other ? Neither one nor the other. 
401. Mr. Knox.] If Mr. Huntley made the suggestion, he did it entirely without authority ? Decidedly 
so, if he did. I never saw Mr. Huntley in my life, until he was brought round by Mr. Cowlishaw, and he 
said, "Well, we will want a secretary for this if it comes off," and he introduced Mr. Huntley to me. 
402. The deed of association is dated the 29th May, and the company was registered on the 31st? Yes. 
463. Was that the first day—the 29th May—when there were any directors in connection with the 
company ? Yes, I presume so. 
464. As far as you know ? As far as I know. Of course, the thing would be in process of formation 
before this. 
405. But there would be no directors before the 29th May, and then only by deed ? No. There were 
live of us who agreed to take a certain interest for ourselves and friends, and we saw the necessity of 
keeping the directorship amongst ourselves—because while we were tendering, it would not do to let others 
come in, who would know all we were doing. 

Alfred 
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Alfred Bennett, called in, sworn, and examined :- 
466. President.] You are one of the proprietors of the Evening News? Yes • I am the managing A. Bennett. 
proprietor. 
467. Do you know Mr. Haynes;  the Member of Parliament ? Yes, well. 	 8 Jan., 1889. 
468. Is he on the staff of the Evening News? He is a contributor. 
469. Did Mr. Haynes at any time make any statement to you with reference to Mr. Huntley ? He never 
mentioned Mr. Huntley's name to me. 
470. Did he mention anything to you with reference to any offer that had been made to him ? In 
reference to these tramways? 
471. Yes? Yes. About four months ago, or longer perhaps, he come into my office-it is his habit 
when he comes in to come direct to me and tell Inc anything he has got to give to the paper-and lie 
informed me that morning that he had been offered a bribe on the tramway question. 
472. What time of the day was it he told you this ? This was in the morning, about midday, I believe. 
473. When was it he told you he had been offered a bribe? In the morning, before one o'clock, or about 
one-between twelve and one, perhaps. 
474. A.t any rate, before he spoke to you about any other business, which was about one o'clock ? Yes. 
475. Can you fix the day in any way at all? No, I cannot, He told me that a person had met him in 
Pitt-street, and offered to bribe him if he would support the leasing of the trains. 
476. In Pitt-street ? Yes. 
477. Did he say what part of Pitt-street ? No, be did not. 
478. He said in Pitt-street? Yes. 
479. Did he say what offer it was ? No ; he did not exactly tell me what offer it was. 
480. Do you remember any details of the offer ? I did not ask him any particulars. I told him to be 
very cautious. He knew that our paper was in opposition to the leasing of the trams, as advertised. 
481. As advertised ? Tenders had been called, I think, then. 
482. Your impression is that tenders had been called, and he knew, you say, that your paper was opposed 
to the Government proposals for leasing the trains ? Yes, he knew that ; and the paper had written 
against it. 
483. This was, you say, four months or more from now ? Yes 
481. Four months at least? Yes. I told him to be cautions, and if he could get any writing that he 
could make an example of this man. 
485. You mean he should get the offer in writing so that he could make an example of the man ? Yes. 
486. What did he say to that ? He said he would try his best. I told him not to be too hasty in making 
a complaint to the House, as I was anxious to see if he could make a good case. He also said. "I cannot 
tell you just now the name of the person who offered it to him." Of course, as he did not volunteer the 
name, I did not press him for it, 
487. Did he identify him in any way, except that he was a man who said this ? No, he did not-only 
someone connected with a syndicate. He did not say which syndicate. 
488. Was it known at that time that there was more than one syndicate ? I think it was. 
489. Do you think that Mr. Haynes knew that? I do not know. He did not indicate in any way which 
syndicate it was. It was somebody connected with a syndicate. 
490. But, connected with the paper as you are, you are under the impression that it was known at that 
time that there was more than one syndicate ? Yes. 
491. And you say that Mr. Baynes had been writing in your paper upon the subject ? No. 
492. I understood you to say so ? Oh no, he did not write on it at all. 
493. You say that your impression is that it was known at that time. Could you say, from your position 
in public life, whether at that time it was known generally that there was more than one syndicate ? 
Yes ; I think it was. 
494. That is your belief ? Yes. 
495. That it was a matter publicly known that there as more than one syndicate ? Yes. 
496. What is Mr. Haynes' connection with your paper ? Well, as I have mentioned, he is a contributor 
of Parliamentary and other news. 
497. What I want to know is this : Does he mainly obtain his living from contributing to the Evening 
lsi"eavs? No ; I think he does journalistic writing for other papers. 
498. But is that at any rate a material item in Ins income ? Oh! yes, it is a very nice little income. 
499. He would, therefore, I suppose, have an interest in communicating anything he could to your paper 
which would further the views of the paper upon that question ? Yes, certainly. 
500. And if it were material and true, of course, it would be most important ? Yes ; and the more im-
portant it is, it is communicated direct to me first. 
501. You say that he said he was offered a bribe. Did he tell you what the bribe was in any way ? No ; 
I do not think he did. 
502. Did he mention it ? He may have done so, but 
503. I mean as far as your memory serves you ? I think he mentioned that a substantial bribe was 
offered. 
504. You cannot say whether it was to take the shape of money or shares, or both, from what he said ? 
No, I could not. 
505. Simply " a substantial bribe" is all he told you, as far as your memory serves you ? Yes. 
506. You have already stated that he did not tell you the name of the person who made him the offer ? 
He said he could not just then. 
507. Did he tell you the syndicate on whose behalf the offer was made? No; I did not inquire. 
508. He did not tell you? No. 
509. Mr. Land'.] Did you understand that he was purposely witholding the name, or that he did not 
know what the person's name was ? I do not know. His words were, " I cannot tell you the man's 
name just now." Whether he did not know his name then or whether he was witholding it I do not 
know. I did not press it as it did not come voluntarily. 
510. President.] From your connection with the paper you will perhaps be able to tell us what time the 
House generally meets ? At that time, I think, at half-past 3,-between 3 and 4. 
511. I understand you to say that Mr. Haynes told you this about 1 o'clock in the day ? Yes. 
512. Did I also understand you to say that he told you the bribe had been offered to him that morning 
Yes. 	 513. 
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A. Bennett. 518. And, as you understood, some short time before he saw you that morning ? Yes. 
514. In Pitt-street ? Yes. 

8 ...Tann 1889,• 515. And the House meets nominally at 4, but really at half-past ? Yes ; it used to meet about half 
past 3. 
516. I think the rule of Parliament is that everything is half an hour late, to allow half-an-hour's grace? 
Yes. 
517. Can you give us any further information in any way at all about this ? No; that is all the 
information I can give you. 

Jules Francois Archibald, called in, sworn, and examined :- 
J. F . 	 518. President.] You are the editor of the Balletin? Yes. 

Archibald, 519. Do you know Mr. Haynes? I do. 1 have known him for many years. 
, o ,„n  520. Is he connected in any way with your paper ? Not now. 

-an" ""' 521. -Was he some time ago ? At one time. 
522. How long ago ? I suppose about three years ago he was connected with our paper. 
523. Has he been a contributor to your paper since ? Not since. 
524. He has had no connection, as contributor or otherwise, for the last three years ? Not in any way 
for the last three years. 
525. Has he at any time made any statement to you with reference to any offer made to him about the 
leasing of the tramways ? Yes ; I remember that, three or four months ago, I met him in Pitt-street. I 
at the time, being with Mr. Macleod, my present partner, and Mr. Haynes said something to Inc about 
"having caught them at last." He seemed to be in a rather excited condition, and he remarked that an 
offer had been made to him of a thousand or two for his support, and that at the right time be would tell 
all about it. 
526. 'What time of the day was this ? As far as my recollection serves me, it was after lunch. 
527. How long after, do you remember ? I suppose about a quarter past 2, or something of that kind. 
That is the time I ordinarily return to the office. 
528. You were on your way back to the office from lunch ? Yes. 
529. That would be a little after 2? Yes. I am rarely out of the office during the day, and I am very 
rarely indeed out of the office with Mr. Macleod unless it is that we go to lunch together. 
530. You remember that you were returning from lunch to the office ? Yes. 
531. For that reason you fix it some short time after 2 o'clock ? Yes, a little after 2 o'clock. 
532. What part of Pitt-street was he in when he made the statement ? I think just outside the Mutual 
Provident Society's Office. It was either outside that, or Gibbs Bright's. 
538. That is the north end of Pitt-street ? Yes, the north end of Pitt-street. It was outside some large 
yellow-stone building, I remember. 
534. Did he say who had made the offer ? No, he did not. I asked him who it was, and I remember he 
did not tell me. 
535. Did he give you any answer when you asked him who it was ? " Oh," he said, "I will tell at the 
right time." 
536. He did not say he did not know, or anything of that kind? No; he did not say he did not know. 

• 537. Did you understand from what he said that he did know, but would not tell until what he con-
sidered the right time ? Yes, that is my impression, that he did know. 
538. He said he was to get a thousand or two ;-in what form was that thousand or two'? What did you 
understand it to mean ? I cannot remember whether he said anything about shares. I know he said he 
had been offered a thousand or two. 
539. Did you understand that to be money, or what ? I had heard other rumours of a similar kind from 
various quarters, and I thought it meant shares. I think I had seen a paragraph in some of the papers 
540. The Evening Nem ? Well, I am not certain-a paragraph somewhere or other that a number of 
shares had been reserved for Members of Parliament. I thought it might have reference to that. I 
thought also it might have been Haynes who wrote the paragraph, or published it in some way. 
541. Just give ine that expression again, "that he had been offered a thousand or two, and had caught 
them at last," some such expression as that ? He seemed rather excited at the time. He said that he 
had caught them at last, and when we asked him what it was all about, he said he had been made an offer 
of a thousand or two for his support. 
542. His support for what ? Well, to carry the tramway proposals through Parliament. 
543. Did he say when the offer had been made to him ? No, he did not say when, I think. I remember 
that when he left, Mr. Macleod said to me, "He seems to be rather in a rage with the Government ; 
something has gone wrong with him." Mr. Macleod made some remark of that kind. 
544. When you say he seemed excited could you judge from his manner and excitement and so on whether 
or not this cause of excitement, whatever it was, was recent or long standing ? 	he seemed to be so 
very excited about the matter, and HO very much in earnest that it looked as if the mink of excitement' 
had been immediately precedent to our meeting. 
545. At any rate some short time before? Oh yes, just immediately. 
546. Did it seem at all like a matter be could have brooded over for the night, judging from the state of 
his excitement ? Ordinarily lie is by no means an excitable man; he is very even tempered and good 
humoured, but he seemed to Inc absolutely red hot with it. 
547. Do you know anything else that von can give us information about ? No, I do not ; that is all I 
know about the matter. Mr. Haynes -told me that he told the Commission of this circumstance. He 
came down to the office the other day, and recalled it to my memory. I said, "I remember it." He said, 
"I am going to call you as a witness." 
548. When was it he came down to the office ; did he tell you the circumstances, what had occurred, and 
what he said to you? He simply said, "Do you remember a conversation we had about the offer made to 
me ?" or something of that kind. I. said, "Yes, I remember you speaking to me about the matter, in Pitt-
street, some time ago. I was with Macleod at the time." He said, "I mentioned that to the Commission. 
I am going to have you called as a witness." 	 549. 

Mno.-I find that Mr. Haynes was for a little while engaged, about twenty-two months ago, in certain advertising 
business connected with The Bulletin.-J. F. ARCHIBALD. 
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Are_ pibald. 
549. Do you mean this Commission ? Yes. 	 .T. F. 
550. When was it be spoke to you about this ? I suppose it must have been two or three weeks when he 

8 hitt 188911  
first mentioned to me that I was to be called ; but he has been down since. 
551. When was it he was down last? I am wronu

b 
 in saying he came to the office last. 

552. 1 mean when did he see you? The last timeI met him was at the corner of Hunter-street, the other 
day, last Monday or Tuesday. 
553. Did you receive a letter from Mr. Haynes ? Yes ; I received a letter from Mr. Haynes some 
considerable time ago now, asking me to write a letter to him addressed to the Legislative Assembly. 
554. Is this the letter- 

I now remember that I also spoke to you three months ago of a heavy bribe of 1,000 sovereigns and 1,500 41 shares 
having been offered me by a civilian for my advocacy and vote in the leasing of the trams to a syndicate. As I intend 
making further reference to this matter, will you please say whether the above is a fact or not ? I would like, also, if 
you would state whether or not: I did not on the night of Thursday, lath, speak to you of my intention of revealing the 
facts of the attempted bribery at the then occurring opportune time ? 

Did you receive that letter ? I think I did-some such letter as that. 
555. What 13th is that? That must be the 13th of last month. 
556. Did he see you at all on the 13th December-the first night the tramway business came on in 
Parliament ? I think he sent me the letter and then came round afterwards to see Inc. 
557. That was the 13th? Yes ; I suppose it was the 13th, 
558. What did he-say then ? He said, "I simply want you to state what our conversation was." I did 
not send him the letter, as a matter of fact. "After all," I thought to myself, " anything I have got to 
say about it, I can say if I am called upon. I do not think any conversation I had with Haynes in - 
the street proves anything at all, and it will look rather as if I had some interest in bolstering up this 
statement." 
550. Having written that letter he went to you, on Thursday, 13th December ? 	came to me after I 
received the letter. He wrote the letter first, and then came to see me. 
500. What did he ask you then ? He asked me whether I remembered our conversation. I told him I did. 
561. Did you tell him what the conversation was ? Yes, I told him what the conversation was. I do not 
think I had read his letter. He came down to me in the morning. I had my letters there, and I saw 
his writinu

b 
 on the outside ; but I had not opened his letter, as far as remember. 

562. Had he been to see you at all before that? lain not quite sure that he had been to see me. I do 
not think he did see Inc. I did not attach very much importance to the thing at all," Because," J said 
to myself, " Haynes wants me to state what our conversation was, and I do not think it proves anything. 
It really does not matter very much. T. do remember the circumstance of our conversation, but that 
proves nothing." 
563. Can you tell us anything more ? That is all I can toll you. 

John Woods, called in, sworn, and examined :- 
561. Premident.] I believe you are connected with one of the syndicates that tendered for the leasing of S. Woods. 
the trams ? Yes. 
-565. Which one? The Sydney and Melbourne syndicate. 	 8 Jan., 1889. 
566. What position (lid you hold ? I was one of the syndicate. 
567. Were you one of the directors ? No ; there were no directors elected. 
568. You are one of those who took a prominent part in forming the syndicate ? Yes. There were not 
many of us in it. 
509. Can you tell 118 of whom the syndicate consisted ? It consisted besides myself of the following 
gentlemen, making in all eight members :-Mr. William Cain, of :Melbourne, who is a director in the 
Sydney Omnibus Company; Mr. Jenkin Collier, of Melbourne ; Mr. W. J. Sprigg • Mr. Andrew Rowan; 
the Hon. William McCulloch ; Mr. Robertson, of Wagner & Robertson ; and Mr. 'Frank Capp, manager 
of the Melbourne Tramway Company. 
570. What was the capital of your syndicate ? I am not sure whether it was three or four millions-

. either one or the other. It was at first three millions, and I think we increased it to four millions ;• but 
I am not sure. 
571. In £1 shares ? Yes. 
572. Then do I understand that these gentlemen, whose names you have mentioned, took up the whole of 
the 3,000,000 or 4,000,000 ? Not exactly; because, although the capital of the company was to be 
£4,000,000 the members of the syndicate only undertook, at that time, to find £50,000. 13ut the members 
of the syndicate held the whole interest in the syndicate for themselves. 
573. It was a syndicate ? Yes. 
574. And these three or four million shares were held by the eight of you ? Yes. We were to find a 
certain amount of money each, which we did, to provide the deposit to be sent in with the tender. Each 
member of the syndicate found an emial amount. We had made no arrangements as to what we would 
do afterwards; but there is no doubt we would have nut the thing into a company, because we should not 
have been able to find all the money ourselves. 
575. Your intention was, if you obtained the lease, to form a company ? Yes, in the first instance offering C .  
a certain amount of shares in Sydney. 
576. Were there any shares in your syndicate kept or reserved in any way for any Members of Parliament 
or persons in public positions ? Not one, not even for ourselves. 
577. So far as you know, was there ally intention to allot any shares upon any terms to any Members of 
Parliament or any persons in public positions at any time ? No ; every share was to be sold. 
578. That is, if you formed it into a company ? Yes. 
579. Sobl in the usual way ? Yes. There was not a sixpence reserved for one individual in the syndicate 
oven. 
580. Where was the syndicate to which you belong formed? It was formed in Sydney to a certain extent. 
Some two or three years ago we waited upon the Colonial Secretary about leasing the trains. I think we 
met in one of these rooms. Mr. Rowan, Mr. Cain, and others were present. 

- , 	- 	 581. 
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581.. -Was there any agreement or anything of that sort in connection with your syndicate amongst 
yourselves-anything in writing ? No ; nothing at all. 
582. You say that each of you found a certain amount of money-what was done with that ? It was sent 
in with the tender. 
533. Did you send in the deposit in cash ? Each of us sent in a bank deposit receipt from ins own bank 
for so much, amounting in all to £50,000. 
584. Then your tender was accompanied by several bank deposit receipts ? Yes. 
585. Representing over £6,000 each, or £50,000 altogether ? Yes. 
586. Then was there any writing or agreement of any kind between yourselves in existence ? No, except 
a small memorandum containing a statement of the capital of the company at £4,000,000, and an agreement 
to tender for the trams in these words, " We, the undersigned, agree to tender for the trams," which 
agreement was signed by the persons whose signatures appear to the document I now produce [Appendix 
A.] These are the only two documents in existence. We had a meeting before we sent in the tender, 
when we fixed the capital of the company. 
587. You say the syndicate was formed originally in Sydney ? Yes. 
588. -Were there any meetings of the syndicate in Melbourne ? There were. 
589. Was there any agreement or writing between you down there ? No ; nothing more than what I 
have told you. We could not come to any agreement until we knew whether or not we would get the 
tender. 
590. I mean amongst yourselves ? No, nothing more than what I have stated, that is, that we were, as 
far as my memory serves me, to issue 500,000 shares to the public at once. 
591. Upon the lease being obtained ? Yes. 
592. And then 500,000 as you want it ? Yes. 
593. If you obtained the lease, that would be the mode in which you would form your intended company? 
Yes. 
594. But beyond that, was there anything in writing? No. 
595. And you say you do not know whether that was in writing ? I am not certain whether that was in 
writing or not ; I doubt if it was. 
590. -Were the terms and conditions of the syndicate among yourselves settled in Sydney or in Melbourne ? 
There was nothing settled more than I have told you. We only had one meeting in Sydney. Mr. Rowan 
went to Queensland and I went down to Melbourne at the time of the Cup meeting, and we had a meeting 
there. 
597. Then there was only one meeting in Melbourne and one in Sydney ? That is all. 
595. As I understand you, the proceedings in connection with the syndicate were these, that you eight 
gentlemen agreed to. find so much money for the purpose of tendering, and if you got the lease you then 
would form it into a company upon the terms you mentioned, and that is the whole thing ? That is the 
whole thing ; that is all I know about it. 
599. Were any members of the Government here interested in your syndicate in any shape or form ? 
Certainly not. 
600. In no way whatever ? In no way whatever. 
601. Or was there any promise that they should acquire an interest hereafter in any way ? No; not to 
my knowledge. 
602. Did you ever hear of any such promise or of any arrangement or understanding? No; nothing of 
the sort. 
603. Was any promise made by the Ministry, or any Member of the Ministry, or any statement or repre-
sentation made by them to your syndicate as to your obtaining the lease? No; not to my knowledge. 
I never had any promise from any Minister. 
604. Did you ever hear of one? Never. How could there be ? It is unreasonable to think so. If a 
thing is offered for public tender what can a Minister do ? 
605. Can you tell us when it was that the Government first of all called for tenders publicly ? I think it 
was about five or six months ago; but I cannot distinctly remember. I think the tenders in the first 
instance were to be received some time in October. 
606. You speak of this syndicate of yours having been in existence for some years. Now at any time 
before tenders were called for, or at any other time, was any offer made, or promise or understanding • 
come to between your syndicate and the Government or any Member of the Government with reference 
to your obtaining the lease of the trains ? No. I know very well that the Government could not lease 
the trams without bringing the matter before the House. 
607. But apart from that I want to know whether the Government or any Members of the Government 
at any time ever came to any agreement, or had any negotiations with your syndicate with the view of 
granting you a lease of the trains ? No. 

The Honorable John Sutherland, M.P., called in, sworn, and examined :- 
Hon. J. 608. President.] You are Minister for Works in the present Administration ? Yes. 

Sutherland. 609. And have been so for several years past ? Yes. 
i•-••••-•4--"Th 610. Will you furnish the Commission with a copy of the Parliamentary papers containing information 

8 J an., 1889. concerning the original proposal to lease the trains ? Yes. 

IVEDNESDAY; 
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WEDNESDAY, 9 JANUARY, 1889. 

flaunt:— 
E. W. KNOX, ESQ., 	I . C. E. FILCHER, EN., PRESIDENT. 

THE PRESIDENT IN THE CHAIR. 
Edward Percy Simpson called in, sworn, and examined :— 

611. President.] You are a member of the firm of Want, Johnson, and Company? I am. 	 E. P. 
612. And you belong to the syndicate generally known as the Jenning,s' syndicate ? I do ; and was siml"°n• 
chairman of that syndicate. 
613. What was that syndicate ? Do you mean the names ? 
614. You can tell us all about it ? I will just give you a short history of it. In the first place the 
Government called for tenders. I, in conjunction with Mr. Robert Smith, of Norton and Company, Mr. 
Goddard, Mr. Jennings, and others, including Mr. Filcher, in the first instance formed a small syndicate for 
the purpose of tendering for the trams. That syndicate, as it was too small, was afterwards dissolved, 
and Mr. Filcher absolutely retired from it. A fresh syndicate was formed, including all the members of 
the original syndicate, except Mr. Filcher, who had nothing to do with the new syndicate, and on 
more elaborate and influential lines. The syndicate consisted of forty-six shares and thirty-three share-
holders, six shares being allotted to Mr. Jennings as fully paid up shares, in consideration of Ms 
transferring to the syndicate certain patent rights in connection with tramway construction. 	The 
syndicate, Nvhich I may say I consider to be one of the most wealthy and influential that was ever 
formed in the metropolis, comprised the following gentlemen :—MT. II. Jennings, R.. Watkins (Robert 
Chalmers & Co.), T. Walker, R. Swan (Walker & Swan), G, Munro (A. H. MacArthur & Co.), 
R. Smith (Messrs. Norton & Co.), A. Meeks (Bright Bros. & Co.), E. P. Simpson (Want, Johnson & 
Co.). G. A. & P. Mein, T. Saywell,R. Allen (Allen & Allen), W. C. Goddard, H. E. Russell, Griffiths 
& Weaver, E. II. Taylor (Starkey & Taylor), Louis Anions, C. T. Starkey (Starkey & Taylor), E. 
Pritchard, J. Plumb, John Hunter, Joseph Marshall, C. I. Boyle, Frank hill, Herbert Salway (Fisher, 
Ralfe, & Salway), Turnbull, A. Eyell, F. A. A. Wilson, A. E. Jaques (Stephen, Jaques, & Stephen), 
Wickham & Foxall, R. Young, j. B. Christian, A. Sutherland, C. & E. Millar. That is the syndicate 
that tendered. We tendered for the trams but did not get them. Some of these names represent three 
or four shares. 
615. You spoke of six paid-up shares being given to Mr. Jennings. Were there any other paid-up 
shares in the syndicate at 	? None whatever, and each member of the syndicate, on his name being 
submitted to the shareholders, who had been elected, had to deposit with the syndicate £1,250 for each 
share, as an earnest of his intention to go through with the matter. All those deposits were made, and 
a lender, in pursuance of a resolution of the shareholders, made to the Government: 
61G. Were these shares held in different proportions by the gentlemen mentioned—I mean did some hold 
five, some six, some one, and se on ? No; I think they were all held as one share to one man; but in 
some cases one person represented two or three other names. • 
617. Do you know whether any of the persons they represented were Members of Parliament? They 
were not. 
618. Are you certain? I am certain. 
619. Oh% Knox.] Practically there was no Member of Parliament represented in any shape or way in the 
syndicate ? -Neither directly nor indirectly. I say directly or indirectly because under our syndicate 
agreement, the name of every member of the syndicate had to be submitted to the general body of the 
syndicate, and the syndicate had the power of rejecting any name, and the directors had the power of 
refusing to recognise any transfer. 
620. President.] Was any provison made in your syndicate in any way whatever for inducing Members 
of Parliament to vote one way or the other ? No ; and I consider it an unintentional insult to me and 
every member of the syndicate to ask such a question. 

FRIDAY, 1.1 JANUARY 1889. 

Vreztut:— 
B. W. KNOX, ESQ., 	j 	C. E. FILCHER, Ego PRESIDENT. 

THE PRESIDENT IN THE CHAIR.. 

Henry Gullett called in, sworn, and examined:— 
621. President.] What are you ? Journalist. 	 H. Gullett. 
622. Connected with what piper? The Daily Telegraph. 
623. Do you kubw Mr. Haynes ? Yes, 	 Jan., 1589. 
624. How long have you known him ? I have known him very slightly, and only during the last year 
or SO. 	 • 
623. Have you ever had any eon venation with him, or has he made any statement to you with reference 
to the leasing of the trams ? llo made a statement to me on that subject about three months ago. 
626. Do you remember when and where that was ? It was in the Daily Telegraph office, I cannot fix 
the date; but it was at the time when the subject of the trains was under general discussion. I think 
three months ago. 
627. Was it before the Government called for tenders or after ? According to my recollection it was 
after tenders had been called for, and certainly before the time for acceptance. 
628. Was it before or ,  after the resolution was introduced by Sir Henry Parkes into the House ? Long 
before that. 
629. What did he tell you ? He Wfl,S in the office one night, and he was talking in a general way, and in 
the course of conversation he said there was a great deal of wire-pulling, and efforts being made to secure 
the leasing of the trains by the parties interested, and he said that he had been applied to on the subject. 

25—D 	 He 
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H. 	He said that he had been applied to by some one on their behalf, who had made him a promise of 
money and shares if he gave them his support-either gave them his support directly or abstained from 
opposition. 11 Jan., 188€. . 	Did he say when that offer was made to him, and where? lie made no detailed statement at all, 
and I did not ask. him. It was a general statement, just in those terms. 
631. Did he say anything else about it ? He said nothing else. I did not put any questions, or carry on 
the subject. 1 just gave him my advice that at the proper time be should make a statement of what 
had occurred to Parliament, and he said that he would do so. That was all that took place. 
632. What time of the day was it when he made the statement to you? It was in the evening. 
633. What time ? I could not say ; I should think about 10 o'clock. 
634. At night ? At night. 
635. You did not gather from him that the statement had been made to him that day ? 	; there was 
nothing to indicate that. 
636. Mr. Knox.] Do you remember whether this was while Parliament was sitting ? According to my 
recollection it must have been very close to the time of the assembling of Parliament, but whether before 
or after I could not say. 
637. You have no recollection of anything which took place about that time which would enable you to 
fix the date ? No. The matter made very little impression on me at the time. It only came up fresh 
to my memory afterwards, when the statement was repeated in Parliament. My impression, from what 
I said, is that Parliament cmild not have been sitting at the time. My impression is that I was giving 
him advice to take effect at some future time. 

Charles Timothy Starkey called in, sworn, and examined 
C. T. Starkey' 638. President.] I believe you are a member of the firm of Starkey and Taylor, accountants ? Yes. 
13.77;7389.  639. And I believe your firm were members of a syndicate formed for the purpose of tendering for the 

t1 	Sydney trams-what was called the Jennings syndicate ? Yes ; I had one share, and I believe my partner 
had one. 
610. Do you know all about the division of the shares and the arrangements of the syndicate ? No; I 
do not. .1 only attended one meeting and that was on the point oi rising when I got there. My partner, 
Mr. Taylor, attends to all financial matters in connection with our business. 
641. Do you know anything aboutoMr. Haynes ? I have seen him some half a dozen times perhaps. 
642. Do you know anything of the matter ID connection with Mr. Haynes and Mr. Huntley ? Only what 
I saw in the papers. 

Edmund Efg&ry Taylor called in, sworn, and examined :- 
E. H. Taylor. 643. President.] You are a member of the firm of Starkey and Taylor, accountants ? Yes. 

644. I believe you held a share in one of the tram syndicates ? I did. 
Jan., 1880. 645. The Jennings syndicate ? I was one of the promoters of that syndicate in conjunction with Messrs. 

Jennings, Robt. Smith, Simpson, and others. 
646. Do you know anything about the distribution of shares in the syndicate ? Yes. 
617. Can you tell me whether any shares were reserved in any way for Members of Parliament ? Cer-
tainly not. 

Edward Pritchard called in, sworn, and examined :- 
E. Pritchard. 648. President.] I believe you are a contractor? Yes. 

619. You were a contractor on the Bondi sewers ? Yes. 
11 Jan., 1889. 65G. And you now have the Hornsby railway ? Yes. 

651. Do you know Mr. Bowman, of Melbourne ? I do not. 
652. Did you ever see him ? I never saw him in my life to my knowledge. 
653. Do you know Mr. Levien, the Member of Parliament ? Yes. 
654. Did you receive a communication from Mr. Bowman ? I did. 
655. When was that ? It must have been two months ago. I received a telegram from him. 
656. Have you got the telegram ? I tried to hunt it up, but could not find it. 
657. Do you remember the substance of it ? He asked me to jOiThEis syndicate in Melbourne. 
658. You got a telegram from him about two months ago, asking you to join his syndicate in Melbourne ? 
Yes ; or asking the To advise the people with whom I was associated to join his syndicate-to use my 
influence to induce them to join his syndicate. He being a stranger to me, be referred me to Mr. Inglis. 
659. In the telegram ? Yes. 
660. Who were the persons with whom you were associated here-1 mean in the way of a syndicate ? I 
do not know the whole of them. 
661. Was it the syndicate that was called the " jennings syndicate" ? Yes. 
662. Consisting of Mr. Robert Smith, Mr. E. B. Simpson, and many others ? Yes. 
663. Did you reply to Mr. Bowman's telegram ? Some days after I did. 
664. Do you remember what answer you sent ? I telegraphed stating that I did not understand his 
telegram and asking him to write more fully. 
605. Did you get a letter ? I did not. 
600. Did the communication stop there ? Yes ; but I heard that he was in Sydney inquiring for me, 
though I did not see him. I remember now about the time it was. It was a few days before the Govern-
ment extended the time for receiving tenders. 
667. That would be in November ? I think so. 
668. Then your communications with him ceased with those two telegrams ? Yes. 
669. Did you see Mr. Inglis ? I did. 
670. -Upon receipt of the telegram ? I think a couple of days afterwards. I was at Chatsworth, and the 
telegram, which I think came to town, had to be forwarded to me ;  and as I was very likely at the quarry, 
I probably did not get it for two days. I think it was about two or three days afterwards that I saw Mr. 

671. 
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671. Where did you see him? At his office. 	 E. Pritchard. 
672. What took place ? I went to his office and enclosed the telegram in an envelope, which I marked Can., 1882. "Private," and sent it in to him, so that I should not have to wait. 
673. Then you were shown into the office, I suppose ? Yes. 
674. What took place ? I asked Mr. Inglis whether he knew this gentleman, and he said he did, and I 
asked him what sort of a man he was. He said the man had no business to refer me to him, and he would 
not advise me to have anything to do with him. 
675. Is that all that took place between you and Mr. Inglis ? That is all. 
676. Mr. Knox.] Then you let the matter drop? Yes. Even if Mr. Inglis had spoken favonrably of 
him I do not think I should have entertained his proposal, because I was pledged to the Jennings syndi-
cate, and I do not BCC why I should have left them in order to join the Melbourne syndicate. After 
seeing Mr. Inglis I did not even lay Mr. Bowman's telegram before my'syndicate. 
077. You say you had a share in the Jennings syndicate? Yes. 
678. Can you say as far as you know whether there was any provision made in the syndicate for bribing 
Members of Parliament ? I am sure there was not. I must have heard something of it if there had been, 
but I never heard a word of the sort. 

John Woods called in, sworn, and further examined :- 
679. I believe, some eighteen months or more ago, your syndicate tried to obtain a lease of the trams j-Woods-
from the Government ? We met Sir Henry Parkes in this office and put it before him, and told him that 
we were prepared to lease the trams. I believe that every Member of the Cabinet was then present. 	n Jan., 1889. 
680. What (lid Sir Henry Parkes say ? Sir Henry Parkes stated, as far as my memory serves me, that 
it was not possible for the Government to lease the trains ; but that he would very probably bring in a 
Bill during the Session to lease the trams. 
681. Is that all that took place ? I think that is all that took place. 
682. Is it true that the Government at any time promised or led you to understand that you were to have 
a lease of the trams without competition? Never ; it never was asked. 
663. You never asked for it, and no such promise was given, in any shape or form? No promise was 
made to us by the Government in any shape or form. 
661. That you were to have the trams without competition? No ; the question was never asked, and it 
was never promised. 
685. Mr. Knox.] And you never expected it? We never expected it. The reading of the Act is quite 
plain. They can only lease I think for three yea's. 
686. President.] I want to ask you one more question. In any of the negotiations at that time, that is 
before these tenders were called, was there any arrangement by which any member of the Government 
was to have any interest in any shape or form in the leasing of the teams? There never was any 
arrangement among members of the syndicate that any Member of the Government should have a share 
or any interest in the tramways when leased, nor, so far as I am aware, did any member of the syndicate 
contemplate or make any arrangement or promise of this nature for himself. The thing was never even 
proposed or discussed. 
687. Have you any doubt in your Own mind that no such arrangement was made ? I have no doubt at all. 
688. Was Mr. Inglis or Mr. Clarke, either one or the other, in any way associated or interested in the 
syndicate in any shape or form ? In no way whatever. 
689. Either prospectively or at that time ? They were not interested in any way. 
690. Nor were they to be interested ? I am sure they were not. 

Andrew Hardie McCulloch, junr., called in, sworn, and examined;- 
691. President.] I believe you were a Member for Central Cumberland at one time for some years? Yes. 	A. H. 
692. Do you know Mr. Carruthers ? Yes. 	 McCulloch, 
693. He tells us that he had a conversation with you in which you made some statements with reference 	junr. 
to the tram syndicates ? Yes. 11 Jan., 1889. 691. Do you remember the conversation ? Well, I think I remember the substance of it. 
695. In which Mr. Huntley's name was mentioned ? I am not sure whether Mr. Huntley's name was 
mentioned ; but I mentioned to Mr. Carruthers that I had heard that a company had been formed in 
which 100,000 shares had been reserved for Members of Parliament, and he said that he had heard 
something of the same kind, and I think then that he mentioned that Mr. Huntley had told him that shares 
were reserved in the company for Members of Parliament, but he ridiculed the idea of these being 
reserved for any individual members of Parliament. 
696. You say that you heard that a company had been formed ;-which company was that ? I did not 
know which company. 
697. You were simply told that a company had been formed ? Yes ; I believe it was the syndicate of 
which I afterwards learnt that Huntley was the secretary. 
698. Do you remember who your informant was ? I think it was Mr. Kelso King. 
699. Mr. Knox.] The manager of the Mercantile Mutual ? Yes. 
700. President.] Did he tell you that 100,000 shares had been reserved, or that he had heard it ? That 
I would not be sure of ; it was only conversation. 
701. For aught you know it might have been mere rumour repeated by King to you ? Yes, mere rumour 
repeated to me. 
702. Do you, of your own knowledge, know of anything of that sort ? Nothing whatever. 
703. Did you hear anything of that sort from anybody excepting King P Oh, I think it became pretty 
general talk afterwards, and I heard many persons mention it. 
704. Substantially the same thing ? Substantially the same thing ; sometimes 50,000 and sometimes 
100,000 shares. 
705. But with reference to the same syndicate ? Yes. 
706. That was the syndicate of which Mr. Huntley was secretary ? I beard afterwards that it was. 
707. You said that the rumour you heard, and which you believe was talked about generally, was this 
same rumour with reference to the same company ? Yes. 

708. 
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A. 317 . 	708. Do you know of any attempt in any way whatever to influence Members of Parliament on this 
McCulloch, question ? No, none whatever. junr. 109. Is this the only thing of the kind you ever heard of ? That is all I ever heard of. 

11 Jan., 1869.  710. Except mere rumour ? That is the only thing. Of course I have heard all sorts of rumours. 
711. You know of no attempt in any shape or form to influence any Member of Parliament on the tram 
question ? Nothing whatever. 
712. And you cannot say whether or not any shares were reserved for Members of Parliament in the 
company of which Huntley was secretary ? Of my own knowledge I cannot say it. The shares which 
Mr-King mentioned to Inc as being reserved for Members of Parliament I understood were not to be 
given to the Members, but reserved for them to apply for like other members of the public. 

MONDAY, 14 JANUARY, 1889. 

lament:— 
C. E. PILCHER, Esq., QC., PRESIDENT. 

E. W. KNOX, ESQ., 	 j 	A. LAMB, ESQ. 

THE PRESIDENT IN THE CHAIR. 

Thomas Dalton, M.P., called in, sworn, and examined :— 
T. Dalton, 713. President.] You area Member of Parliament, representing the Electorate of Orange? Yes. 

714. Do you remember when the debate on this tram business occurred ? I do. 
14 Jan 1389 715. Do you remember yourself', Mr. Fletcher, Mr. Levien, and some others being in the Opposition .,  Room at Parliament House ? 1 can detail the whole of the circumstances to you. I cannot fix the date, 

but I think it was on or about the date that the Colonial Secretary tabled the resolutions about the 
tramways. I remember it was before tea-time, in the afternoon. What is commonly known as the 
Opposition Room was vacant ; but in a little ante-room leaning from this room there were Mr. Fletcher, 
Mr. Wall, I think Mr. Dawson, and myself, sitting together, when Mr. Carruthers came through the 
Opposition Room and put his head out at the door and asked for somebody ; he says Mr. Garvan, but I 
have no personal recollection of the name now. However, immediately he appeared Mr. Fletcher asked 
him to come in and sit down, and I said the same thing, and told him to come in, he was among friends. 
He came in, and Mr. Fletcher asked him how he felt about the tramways. He said he did not like it at 
all—that he was opposed to it. I cannot exactly remember now the words that were used, or who used 
them ; but I have a distinct recollection of Mr. Carruthers saying that he would, not vote for the Bill, on 
the ground that there was corruption spoken of, and that he had some knowledge of it himself. I also 
recollect his saying that overtures were made to him by somebody whose name he did not mention at the 
time ; and he went on to say other things on the same lines. I was not certain of the point he was aiming 
at, and I put a leading question to him, and asked him if he knew these things as facts; and then, after 
that, he said, "Yes," he did know they were facts, because somebody offered him something if he would 
vote for the resolution. That is all I know about it. Immediately after this conversation, to the best of 
my recollection ;  Mr. Levien Caine into the room, and I took the trouble to explain to him at the time 
that portion of the conversation that I have already given in evidence. 
710. Were any such expressions used by yourself, or Mr. Fletcher, or Mr. Levien, as intimated that the 
tram business was a fraud or a swindle, or that anybody was going to make a pool out of it? No. The 
only thing that was said was that it was in the air ; that corruption as in the air ; that it was said out 
of doors that Members of Parliament had something to do with it; and that was what really prompted 
my remark to Mr. Carruthers when I asked hint if lie knew what he was stating to be facts. 
717. You say " it was in the air"—I suppose you mean rumours? Yes. 
718. Did Mr. Fletcher, Mr. Levien, or yourself, or anybody else in your presence, say anything to Mr. 
Carruthers to the effect that the tram business was a swindle, or that there was corruption, or that 
anybody was going to make a pool out of it, or anything to that effect ? No. The fact of the matter is 
this : I believed all along, and J. am of opinion that Mr. Fletcher believed also, and other members of the 
Opposition, that there was nothing whatever in the affair. 
719. What do you mean by nothing whatever in the affair ? That there was really no corruption, nor do 
I believe it now. I know that some foolish remarks have been made about asking people, and I may say 
here that I myself was asked if I thought the Opposition would vote for the Bill, and I made the remark 
that they would never get the Bill, that they need not bother their heads about it, and that they were 
foolish in providing money for the purpose. I mentioned this to Mr. Burns, and also to Mr. Woods. 
720. You have told us already that you do not believe yourself that there was any corruption ? Yes. 
721. I am bound to put you this question: Do you know of any attempt, direct or indirect, to influence 
or to bribe any Member of Parliament ? Certainly not; I know nothing of the sort of my own knowledge ; 
nothing whatever. 
722. Do you know anybody who does? I do not. 
723. When you say "of your own knowledge" you mean you do not know ? I mean to say that nobody 
approached me. 
724. And you know of nobody else being approached? No; nobody told me they had been approached 
excepting what I have told you. 
725. Excepting Mr. Carruthers ? Excepting what Mr. Carruthers said. 
720. When you speak of a person asking you if you thought the Opposition would vote for the leasing of 
the trams, I do not understand you to mean that there was any corruption ? Certainly not. 
727. That it was only an inquiry ? Simply an inquiry. 

James 
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James Fletcher, Esq., M.P., called in, sworn, and examined 
728. President.] I believe you are a Member of Parliament representing 	 J. Pletcher, 
729. Do you rethember the time when the train-leasing debates were on in Parliament last month ? I do. 	M.P. 
730. Do you remember a circumstance when you and Mr. Dalton and some others were sitting in the 1 4 jamoss9.  

he said he thought there was some corruption, or words to that effect ; he led us to understand that there 

mentioned in the debates in Parliament—had snot him in King-street, and told him that there were so 

731. Will you tell its what that was ? Mr. Carruthers came in, and after he had been in some little time 

was sonic corruption going on in the attempt to lease the tramways, and without being asked what it was, 

many thousand shares to be allotted to Members of Parliament if the resolution was carried to lease the 

Opposition room and Mr. Carruthers eame in ? I do. 

he gave a statement that Mr. Ifuntley—I think that was the name, I do not remember the name, but it was 

. Newcastle ? I am, 

trams. I think he protested against any such thing being done with Members of Parliament. That is all 
I heard about it. A. great deal of talk went on with other Members in the room, but I paid no attention 
to it, beyond what I have told you. 
732. Did you, or Mr. Dalton, or Mr. Levien, or any one else, except Mr. Carruthers, use any expression 
to the effect that the leasing of the trams was a piece of corruption, or that anybody was making a pool 
out of it ? I think the most I said, or anybody else said, was that if that was the ease it looked 
very like corruption. And I said more. Backed up, as I understood it was, by the fact that the 
specification for leasing the tramways, as drawn up by the late Commissioner for Railways, Mr. Goodehap, 
bad been altered by a sub-committee of the Cabinet, I said that I did think it looked very fishy. I may be 
permitted to say that I think now it looked awfully fishy. Beyond that I know nothing. Nobody ever 
spoke to me about giving me any portion of the 1.00,000 shares. 	 • 
733. What was the alteration in the tenders you have referred to ? I remember Mr. Goodchnp telling 
me about his specifications. There was no such thing as advancing a certain sum—lending the intending 
tenderers a certain sum of money at 4 per cent. But apart altogether from the details of the alteration, 
knowing that they had been originally drawn up by perhaps one of the ablest men in the Colony on 
railway matters, the very fact of any attempt being made by the members of the Government to alter 
Mr. Goodchap's work to my mind was sufficient to create suspicion. 
734. Suspicion of fraud ? I think so. Not fraud on the part of the Government; but I do not think it 
was as open in the interests of the public, nor as fair as it would have been, if they had allowed Mr. 
Goodehap's specifications to remain unaltered. 
735. Do I understand that the alteration you refet to was that after the specification passed out of the 
hands of Mr. Goodchap the Government proposed that they should advance a sum of money to the 
tenderers at an interest of 1 per cent. ? Yes. 
730. Are you aware whether the Government of Victoria have guaranteed the loans to the Tram Company 
in that Colony P No; I think the municipalities did it under tho law ; but then they get back everything 
at the end of the term, without payment. 
737. The Government gets that back ? 	; the various municipalities through which the tramways run, 
as I understand it. 
738. Is it the municipalities then that guaranteed. the interest, or the Government ? I think the muni-
cipalities. But the difference between them and us is this : Our tramways are made already ; but there 
the Tram Company had to make the tramtvays, which become the property of the municipalities at the 
expiration of the term. 
739. Are you aware of any attempt in any shape or form to interfere or bribe any Member of Parliament 
on the question of trains? I am not. The only thing I know about that is what was stated by Mr. Haynes. 
710. That is the only information you have about it ? That is the only information that I have. I know 
several gentlemen who, I have learned since, were intending to tender, and all I can say is that from my 
knowledge of them they would be no parties to corruption. 
711. Did they tender ? I do not think so. 
742. Do you know the gentlemen who composed these different syndicates ? I do not. I made up my 
mind to oppose the proposal from the very first. 
713. I would like to ask you this question, as you have a wide experience and knowledge of persons here. 
Those are the names of the shareholders in the New South Wales Tramway Company (reading list) ; 
just want to know your opinion of these gentlemen, in general terms ? I know a number of those 
gentlemen intimately, and they would be far above anything corrupt. 
741. You speak generally of this list ? I speak generally. I know that the majority of those mentioned 
here would not lend themselves to anything of the sort. 
715. You say that personally you know of no attempt to influence or bribe in any shape or form any 
Member of Parliament, and that you never experienced any, or heard of anything, with the exception of 
what Mr. Haynes said ? No I do not think any man would have the hardihood to offer a bribe to me. 
I heard rumours such as the statement of Mr. Carruthers. 
710. But you know of nothing to justify the rumours ? Nothing whatever. 

Mahlon Clarke Cowlislmw called in, sworn, and examined:— 
747. President.] You are a member of the firm of Cowlishaw Brothers, merchants, of Sydney ? Yes. 	M. C. 
798. And I believe you were on the Board of Directors of the N.S.W. Tramway Co.? Yes. 	 CoMishrov. 
719. We have the minutes of your Company here, and I see that, on the 26th October last year, it was 
resolved " That Messrs. Cowlishaw and Burns be deputed to approach the Sydney Omnibus Co. to arrange 14J  1,05.3. 
an amalgamation, if practicable, on the most favourable terms possible";—did you and Mr. Burns 
approach the Sydney Omnibus Co. ? We had an interview with Mr. Cain and Mr. Woods. 
750. As a matter of fact no amalgamation took place ? No. 
751. Was anything said at that interview with reference to the shares in your syndicate—as to their 
disposal ? The proposal we made was that we should give them half of our shares and retain half 
ourselves—that each should have 500,000 shares ; that we should give their syndicate 500,000 and keep 
the remainder, each one in our syndicate giving back so many shares. 
752, You mean the shareholders in your syndicate contributing 500,000 shares amongst them ? Yes, 
ratably. 	 753. 
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753. That proposal came to nothing ? No. CowlishCa.w. 754. Was anything said about keeping back any number of shares ;--did that make up an even number ; 
14 Jan., 1889. was there any question about an odd number of shares ? No, there was no question of keeping back any 

shares at that time. We treated it as if all our shares were alloted with these people. The only shares 
kept back at any time were some shares that were allotted to another syndicate which we absorbed-the 
syndicate in which Messrs. Monie and Fishburne and others were interested. We treated with Taylor and 
Starkey for the absorption of the Jennings syndicate, but we could not come to terms. 
755. But you did absorb the Monie syndicate, and you tried to absorb the Jennings syndicate and the 
Sydney Omnibus Co. syndicate, and failed in both these latter cases? Yes. 
756. Was anything said, or was any arrangement made by your syndicate at any time to keep back shares 
for any purpose-any ultimate purpose of the syndicate ? The only shares that were kept back were 
kept with the object of getting any one we thought would benefit our company. 
757. in what way do you mean ? For instance, if there was a man with a patent we could give him so 
many shares, and get his patent. For instance, we have got one patent now from Duck, Kerr, & Co., of 
Edinburgh,-the best patent, they say, that is in use in any part of the world. Well, we would treat 
with them to give them so many shares and so much cash if we got the lease of the trams. 
758. Were any shares kept back in your syndicate in any way for Members of Parliament or for any 
other public persons ? Not that I know of. 
759. Did you ever hear of such a thing ? No. 
760. I do net mean to say as a gift to them, but on any terms whatever ? I do not think they were ever 
mentioned specially. 11 neve; heard them mentioned specially. 
761. Any number of shares kept back so that they might come in afterwards as members of the public ? 
246,000* shares were kept back. There were more applications than the million shares originally, but we 
cut the numbers down. 
762. But out of that 246,000 Atonic's syndicate absorbed 120,000? Yes, and we thought we would get 
the Jennings syndicate for the remainder. 
763. What I. want to know is, whether any of those shares that were kept back were ever intended in any 
shape or form to be reserved for Members of Parliament or other persons in public positions ? No, I do 
not think so. I did not understand so. 
764. Did you ever hear so ? No. It was never mentioned to me as such. 
765. Was it ever mentioned at any Board meeting ? No. 
766. What did you understand they were being kept back for then ? To get anyone we thought would 
benefit our company-engineers, or anybody of that sort. 
767. But that expression might include Members of Parliament, because they might benefit your company 
very materially ? It was never mentioned at any meeting about any Members of Parliament. 
768. What do you mean by persons who might benefit your company-what class of persons ? People 
who thoroughly understood the working of tramways would benefit our company ; laying down the trains ; 
who would not come in unless they had shares in the company. 
769. Was it also intended absorb other syndicates? Yes, which we did. 
770. And, as you said before, persons with patents ? Yes. 
711 And you say you never heard of the shares being intended in any shape or form for Members of 
Parliament ? No. 
772. On any terms ? No. 
778. Was anythinff

° 
 said at that interview either by you or by Mr. BUMS, to the effect that shares were 

being retained for Members of Parliament ? Not to my knowledge. 
774. Did you hear it ? No; I do not think so. 
775. Did you hear Mr. Burns say it ? No. 
1776. You say you do not think so-that is an equivocal expression ? Of course I could not say exactly 
what took place, because Mr. Cain got very excited about it at the meeting, and said we must trust to 
them. He wanted us to come in behind them and Mr. Cain, and Mr. Burns got to words about the 
matter, so that things might have been said that I did not take particular notice of. I know that as a 
matter of fact, as far as I was concerned, there was no understanding that anything was to be retained 
for Members of Parliament. 
777. And you never said so ? No. 
778. Was there any discussion at this meeting with Mr. Cain and Mr. Woods about the allotting of the 
100,000 shares of your company that were not dealt with? No, not that I know of; not that I remember. 
779. Did Mr. Cain ask anything about them-what you were going to do with them ? 	; not to my 
knowledge. 
780. As I understand, you were to give them 500,000 shares, and retain 500,000? Yes. 
781, You say that these 500,000 were to be made up by contributions from the shareholders ? Yes ; the 
balance that was required. We had then about 140,000t odd shares, and then we were all to contribute 
ratably to make up this quantity. 
782. What quantity ? The 500,000. 
783. Was the unallotted portion to come in to this 500,000? Yes. Mr. Cain at the time said, " We do 
not want to know anythina at all about your symlicate. We only know Mr. Burns, yourself, and Mr. 
Stokes." But the principal conversation at that meeting was between Mr. Cain and Air. Burns. 

'  784..1 want you to be quite clear if you can whether, so far as you are aware, you being a member of 
the Board, any shares were ever reserved to be given to Members of Parliament on any terms ? Not that 

. 1 know of. 
785. it was never mentioned at any Board meeting, and you never heard of it ? No. 
786. Mr. Knox.] Was it mentioned at this meeting with the Omnibus Company ? No; not to my 
knowledge. 
787. Surely everything that passed must have been to your knowledge ? Yes ; but many things might 
have been said that I might not have taken particular notice of. 
788. Surely you would have taken notice of a statement that 100,000 shares had been reserved? I do not 
remember anything being said. 	 789. 

* NOTE (on revision):-Withess, in revising his evidence says : I find the number of shares available was 146,000. 
t NOTE (on revieion):-Witness in revising his evidence says I find the number of shares should be 26000. 
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789. Surely you can remember definitely whether or not anything was said at that meeting to the effect 	M. O. 
that 100,000 shares were to be reserved for Members of Parliament? I say `` no " to that. They were Cowlishaw. 

not being reserved ; and I explained to the President a moment or two ago what we proposed. 'We r" ---'• 
14 Jan 1889. explained to Mr. Cain and Mr. Woods how we were to deal with these shares, that we were to give them 	.,  

the shares we were not allotting. We were then to give back ratably, according to our holdings in the 
company, so many shares to make up their quantity. 
790. President] To make up the 500,C00? Yes. 
791. What we want to know is this. At the time you had this interview with Mr. Cain and Mr. Woods 
you had about 140,000*uuallotted shares ? Yes. 
792. Did you or Mr. Burns represent that those 140,000* shares or any portion of them were intended 
for Members of Parliament ? I did not. 
793. Did:Mr. Burns ? Not to my knowledge. 
794. Did you hear him do it ? No, I did not. 
795. Are you quite sure about that ? Yes. 
796. I do not mean as presents, but on any terms ? No; it was never mentioned. 

Kelso King called in, sworn, and examined :- 
797. President] You are the manager, I believe, of the Mercantile Mutual Insurance Society ? Yes. 	Kelso King. 
798. I believe you act as agent for a number of gentlemen in addition to that ? Yes. 
799. Were you interested in any of the syndicates formed to obtain the leasing of the trams ? Not 

14,7---A---Than., 1889.  

myself • I was not interested. 
800. Were you interested as acting for some other gentlemen ? As acting for members of a public 
company-a registered company. 
801. Which one was that ? The Sydney Tramway and Omnibus Company. 
802. Are you aware that there were negotiations between the New South Wales Tramway Company and 
the Sydney Tramway and Omnibus Company for the amalgamation of the syndicates ? It was merely a 
suggestion. There were no negotiations entered into. There was merely a suggestion that such a thing 
should happen. 
803. Where was the suggestion made, so far as you know ? The suggestion was made to me. 
801. But, first of all, I am speaking about the two companies ;-were any negotiations entered into 
between the two companies or syndicates? Nothing besides what occurred with myself. 
805. Were you present at the interview between the two companies ? No, I was not. 
806. What suggestion is this that you refer to ? A suggestion was made. 
807. By whom ? By a member of Mr. Burns' syndicate. I do not know the name of the syndicate 
it was. 
808. The New South Wales Tramway Company. Who was the member of that syndicate that made the 
suggestion to you ? Captain Broomfield. 
809. He made a suggestion-to what effect ? About amalgamating ; that it might be worth while 
amalgamating with his own syndicate. 
810. Nothing more ? He simply asked me if I would go and see Mr. Burns. 	 • 
811. Nothing more ? Nothing more. 
812. Did you go and see Mr. Burns ? I did. 
813. What took place between you and Mr. Burns ? It was merely a conversation, at which I was not 
at liberty to bind anybody. I did not tell him whom I represented, or anything of the kind ; but I 
simply told him that I did represent members of a company who would tender for the trams, and I was 
there at his invitation. He asked me what proportion we would want of his company. That I could-not 
say ; but I went there to hear his suggestions, and he told me, amongst other things, that he had reserved 
certain shares, and that be would not be able to give very many, because he had to reserve certain shares 
for people who would not come in just then until the arrangement was decided, or the necessary permission 
was given to lease the trams 
814. Was that his own language, were those the words that he used? No, those were not exactly the 
words he used ; but they were to that effect. 
815. Give us his words ? He said Members of Parliament. 
816. Give us his exact words, as nearly as you can ? Those are his exact words, that he had reserved 
100,000 shares for Members of Parliament. 
817. On what terms, did he say ? I do not know on what terms; I did not ask him. I suppose the same 
terms as everyone else ; but I did not ask him anything about that. 
818. 'Where was this ? In his office. 
819. Do you remember the dote? I cannot say the date ; but it was about the time he registered. He 
had not registered at that time, and I saw the registration noted a few days afterwards. 
820. The company was registered about the first week in June ? I could not tell you. That would be 
six months ago, and it does not seem anything like that. If that is the date it is longer than I supposed. 
821. Is that what you referred to when you spoke to Mr. McCulloch ? Yes. 
822. When he made this remark to you what did you understand from him by his reserving these shares 
for Members of Parliament ? I understood him to say that Members of Parliament would not come into 
it until it was passed in the House. 
823. What I want to know is this: Very often the detailing a bare statement would not convey to other 
people exactly what seemed to be passing between two minds at the time of the conversation, and very 
often an impression in the mind of an intelligent man is more valuable than mere words. 1 want to know 
what impression you received from what he told you as to the 100,000 shares ? That he had reserved 
them, as I stated, for these people. Do you mean on what terms ? 
824. I want to know whether your impression was that they were to be a bribe ? I do not think so. 
825. The impression you gathered was that they were not to be a bribe ;-is that so ? It is. 
826. The reason I ask you is because impressions in the case of honest and respectable people are often 
more valuable than mere words ? I thought, from what he said, that these were personal friends of his, 
and that he wanted to see them in it because bethought it was a good thing. 	 827. 

NOTE (On revieien) : -Witness subsequently corrected the figures to 26,000. 
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X. Xing. 827. Did he mention the names of any Members of Parliament? No; he did not mention the name of 
any member of his syndicate either. 14 Jan., 188?: 828. Air. Knox.] Were you not aware, then, that there had been a roosting between the directors of the 
Sydney Omnibus Company and the directors of the New South Wales Tramway Company ? No. 

John McElhone called in, sworn, and examined :— 
3. Malhono. 829. President.] You are a Member of the Legislative Assembly ? Yes. 

830. We received a letter from you the other day, in which you make reference to some dealings of the 
14 Jan., 1889. Government with regard to the leasing of the tramways ? To some statements made to me. 

831. In your speech in Parliament, reported at page 1271 of Hansard, you refer to a conversation you 
had with a gentleman in Sydney ; would you give the Commission the particulars of that conversation ? 
Prior to the prorogation of Parliament last Session, which would the about seven or eight months ago, I 
met Mr. Proudfoot at the corner of King and George Streets, opposite the Joint Stock Bank, and he 
made certain statements to me about the leasing of our tramways to the Melbourne Tramway and 
Omnibus Company. I asked Mr. Proudfoot to put the statement which he made to me in writing, other-
wise I would not act upon it. I said that if he would give me his statement in writing I would bring the 
matter under the notice of Parliament, and try to put a stop to any particular company getting 
the lease of our tramways without full and fair competition. Mr. Proudfoot then wrote me to say 
that he had been in Melbourne a short time prior to speaking to me, and that when in Melbourne 
Ile had seen Mr. Duncan, the engineer for the Melbourne Tramway and Omnibus Company, whom 
he had known for a good many years in New Zealand, and who had in fact been almost 
brought up as a boy under him on his railway works ; that in a conversation about the 
leasing of the trams, and with regard to various syndicates tendering for them, Mr. Duncan 
told him that it was no use any Sydney or other syndicate tendering to lease the New South Wales 
tramways, as the Government of New South Wales had virtually given the lease of the tramways to the 
Melbourne Tramway and Omnibus Company, and that it was all settled, excepting the signing of the 
agreement and the handing of them over. Mr. Proudfoot also stated to me that two of our Ministers 
had been over there, he believed, in connection with the leasing of the trams, and he mentioned the name 
of Mr. Clarke, who, he believed, would be an interested party with the Melbourne Tramway and Omnibus 
Co. if the lease to that tramway was carried out. He also stated to me that when up inspecting the -White 
Bock silver-mine with Mr. Matheson, the Member for Glen Eines and other Members of Parliament, he, 
Mr. Proudfoot, made a statement that it would be a better mine than any silver-mine if our trams could 
be got on reasonable terms; upon which Mr. Matheson said it was too late for anyone to think of getting 
them, as the Government had actually agreed to give the Melbourne Tramway and Omnibus Co. a 
lease of the New South Wales tramways. Mr. Proudfoot distinctly stated that he believed from what he 
had been told that Mr. Clarke was an interested party with the Melbourne Tramway and Omnibus 
Company if the lease were carried out. 
832. It was in consequence of this statement from Mr. Proudfoot that you referred to the matter in 
Parliament', and Sir Henry Parkes then gave a distinct promise that it should only be done with the 
sanction of Parliament, and only by tender ? Yes. 
833. After the tenders were called for, and the question of the leasing of the trains took that form, are 
you aware, of your own knowledge, of any attempt in any shape or form to bribe or interfere with any 
Member of Parliament ? None whatever, except as regards what I heard in Parliament from Mr. Haynes, 
and Mr. Carruthers. 
834. You are aware of nothing except what they said ? No. 
835. And you are only aware of that from what they said ? From what I heard in Parliament. No one 
ever spoke to me about it in any shape or form except Mr. John -Woods, who asked me on one occasion 
if I would use my influence to get a company with which he was connected the lease of our tramways, to 
which I replied that T. was opposed to the leasin g  the trains. Mr. Woods then said to me, " Suppose it 
comes to a competition between a Sydney and a bMelbourne company, which would you go for ?" I said, 
" Certainly, as far as 1 could fairly do it, I would give my assistance to enable a Sydney company to have 
the preference over any Victorian or other company, as long as the terms were favourable." Mr. Woods 
then assured me that he was promoting a company entirely in the interests of Sydney capital. I said to 
Mr. Woods, "I believe you are connected with the Melbourne Tramway and Omnibus Co.," and 
he said, "No, it is entirely Sydney capital." On my way to Melbourne, shortly afterwards, I met 
Mr. Andrew Rowan, who is connected with the Melbourne Tramway Company, and he asked me in 
the train what I thought about leasing the trams, and I said I had not given the matter any thought at 
all—had not bothered much about it. I said, " You have no chance of getting it." He said, " Why ?" 
I said, "There is a strong Sydney syndicate tendering for it who are sure to get it." He said, "Who are 
they ?" I said, "Mr. John Woods is the principal man in it." Mr. Rowan then told me that Mr. John 
Woods was acting for the Melbourne Tramway and Omnibus Company. That is the only conversation 
1 had with anyone about it in any shape or form. 
830. Arr. Lamb.] When you referred in the House to the statement made to you about the promise to 
lease the trams on the part of the Government, did Sir Henry Parkes deny that such a promise had been 
made ? Yes ; he said it was untrue. I got a distinct premise from the Government that the tramways 
would only be leased subject to open competition by tender, no favour being given to anyone. 

TUESDAY, 
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TUESDAY, 15 JANUARY, 1889. 
Vrtszni:— 

C. E. P1LCHER, ESQ., PRESIDENT. 
E. W. KNOX, ESQ., 	j 	A. LAMB, Esc/. 

THE PRESIDENT IN THE CHAIR. 
:fames Burns, recalled, and further examined:— 

837. President.] There is one matter that we did not know of at the time we examined you before, Mr. James Burns. 
Burns. It appears that there was a negotiation between your syndicate and the Sydney Omnibus Com-
pany'ssyndicate, with a view to an amalgamation? Yes ; there was an interview one day down at my 15  Jan.,  11155' 
office. 
838: Who was present at that interview ? Mr. Cain, from Melbourne, Mr. John 'Woods, Mr. Cowlishaw, 
and myself. 
839. You and Mr. Cowlishaw, I see by the minutes of. your syndicate, were the two gentlemen deputed 
to enter into that negotiation ? I did not know that we were deputed. 
840, It is so? Yes ; they expressed a desire to meet us. 
841. I think the words are that you should "approach them." However you were deputed to carry on 
that negotiation with this syndicate ? We did so, at any rate. 
842. What took place at that interview ? Very little took place. 
843. Tell, us what it was ? Mr. Cain and Mr. Woods came in, and Mr. Cowlishaw was there. I asked 
them if they had any proposal to make, and both Mr. Cain and Mr. Woods made some sort of a proposal ; 
but it was not at all clear to inc. I could not well understand the proposal they did make. After they 
left I said to Mr. Cowlishaw, " I did not know what really brought them into the office to interview us," 
because there was nothing tangible in what they said, as far as I remember. The meeting did not result 
in anything at all. I could not really tell you exactly what was said. There was some round-about 
proposition that we would not suffer if they got the contract, but there was nothing definite put before 
ES. 
844. Was there any proposal that they were to participate in your shares to any extent ? I remember 
asking whether they were inclined to come in with us, and they said, " No ; on no account," that if 
there was any junction we must go in behind them. I think those were the exact words that Mr. Cain 
used. I said that we were acting for a largo body of shareholders, that we were a public company, and 
that we could not go behind anybody ; but that it was possible, if they joined us, that we might arrange 
among ourselves, so as to strengthen our chance of getting the trams to give a certain proportion of what 
we held. There was some proposition of that kind, I think ; but I would not be sure. 
845. Such a conversation might have taken place? Such a conversation might have taken place. 
840. That is, if they joined you that they would participate in your shares, your shareholders contributing 
to make up the quantity they would require that might have taken place ? If it did not take place it 
was in our minds. I remember before the interview asking one Or two of the largest shareholders if they 
would mind halving their interest. I said that I was willing to give up a portion of mine to the Melbourne 
people if they came to us, and they said they would give a proportion of their interest. But we never 
came near any understanding at ; they simply said they would not conic behind us, and I raid that I did 
not see how we could go with them, that we were tendering on our own account, and must tender, and 
would tender. I think that concluded the conversation. 
817. Can you toll me at that time how many unallotted shares you had ? I think it was about 30,000. 
I have not the documents here to refer to ; but some small amount, I believe. 
848. At that time there were 24,000 unallotted shares ? There was a small portion of unallotted shares, 
which, as I have explained, was purely accidental. 
819. Did you, in your syndicate, retain or reserve, or set apart any number of shares, so that Members of 
Parliament might come in and apply for them after the matter had gone through Parliament ? Such a 
thing was never contemplated, as I have already told you. 
850. Do you know Mr. Kelso King, the Manager of the Mercantile Mutual Insurance Society ? I cannot 
say that I know him. I remember a Mr. Kelso King coming into the office one day. That was the name 
upon a card handed me, I believe. 
851. Do you know him ? I would not know him if I saw him. 
852. You know the gentleman to whom I refer, the Manager of the Mercantile Mutual? The name is 
familiar to me. 
853. You say you remember him coming to your office one day ? I fancy he came in one day. 
854. What was that about ? Well , it is a long time ago. I think it must be six or eight months ago. 
855. Do you know what he came about ? I fancy that it was something about smite tram syndicate that 
he said he was organising. I think he mentioned Mr. Skarrat's name. 
850. Or was it that he was acting for smile gentlemen in another syndicate ? I think he said he was 
representing some other syndicate, or was getting up a syndicate, or something. 
857. And what did he come to you for, do you remember ? I remember lie gave several names. I think 
Mr. Walter Hall, Mr. Scarrett, and some other names were mentioned as being a party who were going 
to tender for the trains, and he said if their party would join ours would we be inclined to give 
them an interest, and, if so, what interest would we give. I fancy that was the tenor of the 
conversation. 
858. Did you say what interest ? Well it is such a long time ago that I could not recall the exact Con-
versation. I fancy I said we might give them 100,000 shares, or somethintt

b 
 of that kind. At that time 

our own company was only in process of formation. It was rumoured that a company was getting up, 
and a good many people used to come to the office and say, " I hear that a tramway company is being 
formed ; can I come in or have some shares ?" In fact, as you know, tho thing was never advertised. It 
was only floated by report, so to speak. The directors put their friends down and organized the company 
quietly, without getting any written applications. 1 do not think that any written applications were 
received. 
859. And you say you are under the impression that you said you might give them 1.00,000 shares ? I 
fancy that at that time, when we were forming the company, I did say something to that effect, and that 

25—E 	 Mr. 
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James Bura Mr. King said it was not enough and went away. I do remember a gentleman coming in. Kelso King, 
r3/4-A—•—• I think, was his name. I had never seen him before, and I do not think I have ever seen him since. He 

15 Jan., 1889. explained either that he was organizing or representing some other syndicate, and said, " Supposing we 
were to join you, would you be inclined to give us an interest ; or have you got any interest you can 
allot to us?" At that time I do not think the company was registered ; I am sure it was not. 
860. Did lie mention the syndicate he was representing ? As far as I remember he mentioned several 
names. 
861. lie did not mention any syndicate ? Well, he might have called it a syndicate or a company ; it 
was a party. 	 • 
862. What I mean is, did he give it a name—did he call it the Sydney Omnibus Company? No. 
863. The names he mentioned were Sennett's and Hall's ? Yes; those are the names retained in my 
memory as having been mentioned. There was always a doubt in my mind as to whether this Melbourne 
Company embraced these parties whom Mr. King professed to represent at that time, or whether they 
were a different party. In fact I do not know to this day whether or not they were distinct parties. 
861. 'Did you say to Mr. King that your company were reserving 100,000 shares for Members of Parlia-
ment to come in and apply for after the matter had gone through Parliament, if they chose ? I could not 
have said such a thing. 
865. As a matter of fact did you ? No. It would have been quite impossible. 
866. I may tell you that Mr. 1Cing said you did. Does that shake you at all—do you still adhere to 3

-
our 

former statement ? I do. T do not see how it is possible that such a thing could have passed. There 
has been much discussion and rumour about this thing, and it is so long ago, that Mr. King may have 
mixed up some other conversation or some rumour or report with what he heard from me. That seems to 
me the only explanation. 
867. But having been told that Mr. King says you did say that, do you still adhere to your statement 
that you said nothing of the sort ? I still adhere to my statement that it would have been quite impossible 
for me to say it. 
868. But quite apart from the impossibility, did you, or did you not, say it? I did not say it, decidedly. 
869. Could you tell me this :—You remember Droonie and party amalgamating with you, and taking 
1.20,000 shares ; was it before or after that amalgamation that this conversation took place with Mr. King? 
I fancy it was before. It seems to Inc a more remote period, because if you had not mentioned it now I. 
should never have remembered that I ever had any interview with a Mr. King. 
870. So that in point of fact, if it was before, at the time you had the conversation with Mr. King about 
140,000 odd shares were unallotted ? The possibilities are that at that time we might have had half a 
million. I think that at that early period we must have only been in process of formation, and talking 
about forming a company. If, however, we had at that time only 140,000 shares left, and had given 
Skarrat's party 100,000, then we could not afterwards have amalgamated with Moonie and party, as we 
would only have had 40,000 shares left 
871. Can you say whether or not the conversation with Mr. King was a day or two before the registra-
tion ? As far as my memory serves me it was a considerable time before the registration. It appears to 
me to have been seine months before registration. 
872. Mr. King said, "What took place between you and Mr. Burns" ? It was really a conversation, in 
which I was not at liberty to bind anybody. I did not tell him whom I represented, or anything of the 
kind. I simply told him that I did represent members of a company who had tendered for the trams, 
and I was there by invitation. He asked me what proportion 
873. Then he went on to say that he understood they were not to be a present in any way at all; but that 
Members of Parliament were to be at liberty to come in and apply for them. He said his impression was that 
you had friends in Parliament that you wanted to protect in that way ? I think that Mr. King has made a 
great mistake. He must have imputed these words "Members of Parliament" to me.. As I have 
explained, the company, as far as I remember, was in process of formation. I had written to a good 
many people. I had a cablegram from a friend. in London asking about these teams; and I intended to 
try and reserve some of my own shares for him. 
874. Who was the friend :in London? I had a cablegram from Mr. Dawes, of London, asking about the 
trains. 
876. You mean with a view to securing an interest? I do not know with what view ; but I remember 
cabling to Mr. Dawes, in answer to his cabled inquiry, stating that there were parties both in Sydney and 
in Melbourne intending to tender for the trains. I thought Mr. Dawes might like an interest. and I 
never anticipated holding all my own shares. I had written to several friends, who have since taken an 
interest with me, and I may possibly have said to Mr. King that I had reserved some shares for my 
friends; but I cannot possibly see how he could have twisted that round to Members of Parliament, for I 
have, with perhaps one exception, no friends Members of Parliament. I do not think I know more than 
five or six Members of Parliament to speak to altogether. 
876. Do you now then state positively that you did not say what Mr. King attributes to you, that is, that 
you had reserved 100,000 shares for Members of Parliament, even in the innocent way that he says he 
understood you to mean ; do you positively say that you did not say that ? I say positively that I could 
not have said such a thing. 
877. And that you did not ? And that I did not. It would not be possible for me to say such a thing. 
He must have misinterpreted my meaning, or, hearing rumours afterwards, inadvertently imputed them 
to me. 
878. I think I asked you before did Mr. Huntley ever mention any such proposal to you or to any of the 
directors—any proposition about reserving shares for Members of Parliament ? I could not say what he 
said to other directors; I do not remember his 'haying proposed it to me. 
879. You never heard it ? I never heard it. 

John 
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John Woods, recalled and further examined :- 
880. President.] I believe that you and Mr. Cain met Mr. Burns and Mr. Cowlishaw with reference to a 3, Woods. 
proposal to amalgamate your two syndicates ? Yes. 
881. Can you tell us what took place at that meeting? Nothing took place except that they were anxious 
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that we should amalgamate, and we refused to have anything to do with it. What Mr. Cain said was 
this-I sent my letter to say-it was this-" Gentlemen, go on ; our lines are settled, and if we get it we 
will give you a show. If you get it at a price that will satisfy us we will take an interest in it." That 
was all the conversation. Mr. Burns said, " Will you put it in writing ?" Mr. Cain said, " No, 
gentlemen; our lines are laid down, and we will follow it out." 
882. Mr. Lamb.] How did the interview come about ;-did you go to them, or did they invite you to go ? 
I think Mr. Cowlishaw and I had a chat one day in Pitt-street as we were coming from a Board 
meeting. 
883. It was a sort of mutual meeting ? Yes. 
884. President.] Was anything said at that interview about any shares having been reserved for Members 
of Parliament by anyone ? No, not a word. 
885. Either by Mr. *Burns, Mr. Cain, Mr. Cowlishaw, or yourself ? Not a word. 
886. To your knowledge, was any such thing ever done either in your syndicate or in the N.S.W., 
Tramway Co.? I know nothing about the N.S.W. Tramway Co. 
887. To your knowledge, I mean? Not to my knowledge. 
888. Nor from information ? Well, you know you hear a lot of rumours. 
889. I do not mean rumours-I mean authoritative statements from any member of a syndicate ? Not 
ono-nothing of the sort. 'We parted upon that, and walked away saying, "Gentlemen, you take your 
course ; we will take ours." 
890. Was this interview about the proposed amalgamation carried on in a friendly way, or did you get to 
high words ? It did not occupy five minutes altogether. 
891. Did you get excited about it at all ? No. 
802. None of you ? No. 
893. Mr. Cain, for instance ? It would take something to excite Cain. 
894. It was not a stormy interview at all ? Oh, dear no I have always been on the most friendly terms 
with Mr. Burns. I look upon him as one of our best citizens. 
895. Yes, but you knew that in business you may get excited with your best friends ? It was not so on 
this occasion. All that passed I have told you to the best of my recollection. Several people wanted to 
see me about amalgamating and that kind of thing, but I said, " No ; I am not going to have anything to do 
with anybody but my Melbourne friends. We have got the patent, and I am going to be connected with 
men who understand what they are doing." Of course we were met at the corners of the streets by 
dozens of people asking, "What are you going to do about the trams ?" and "What are you going to do 
about this or that P" but I did not bother about that ; I made up my mind to one course-to protect the 
Omnibus Co., and get the trams, if we could, by fair means ; if we did not, to let it go. 
890. You have told us with whom you were associated in the Sydney syndicate ;-is it true that you 
stated that your associates in that syndicate were all Sydney men ? No. 
897. Did you Jell Mr. Malhone that ? No, I did not. I will tell you what I told Mr. McElhone, as far 
as my memory serves inc. I was going along George-street and I met him at the corner of the street. I 
had Just come over from Melbourne. McElhoue said, "You have been to Melbourne ?" I said, "Yes." 
He said, "Have you been working about these tramways ?" I said, "Yea, I have been down settling 
the matter." He said, "Is the Sydney Omnibus Company in it?" I said, "Yes." He then asked, "Is 
Mr. Duncan in it ?" T said, "Mr. Duncan is not, except as engineer of the Company ; he is to be 
employed to put down the trains if we got the lease." That was all the conversation that took place 
between Mr. McElhone and myself. 
898. And you did not tell him that you were only associated with Sydney capital ? No, certainly not. 
How could I do that? 
899. Can you tell Inc whether any Minister of the Crown in thus Colony had any interest in any shape or 
form in the syndicate with which you were associated? None whatever. No man living had any interest 
in the syndicate except those whose names I gave to you. 
900. Or bad any Minister any promise of an interest ? No. 
901. Or was there any understanding that any Minister, in any waywhatever, could at any time acquire an 
interest ? Not to my knowledge. 
902. Did you over hear of such a thing? No; the thing was never discussed before the syndicate. 
903, Specially I ask you the same question with reference to Mr. Clarke and Mr. Inglis? I told you 
the other day, and I repeat the same thing now. 
904. Is there a word of truth in the suggestion that either of these gentlemen was in any way, at any 
time, under any circumstances, to acquire an interest in your syndicate ? I do not believe there is the 
slightest word of truth in it. 
905. Do you remember a promise being made in the House by Sir Henry Parkes that before anything was 
done with regard to leasing the trains a Bill would be introduced, and tenders would be called for ? I do. 
900. Before that, do you remember some negotiations going on between the Government and any body of 
gentlemen in Melbourne with reference to the leasing of the trams? There were no negotiations excepting 
a letter from ine to Mr. Goodchap. 
907. That is contained in the printed correspondence ? Yes. 
008. And then there was that interview you spoke of with the Colonial Secretary which took place in this 
building ? Yes. 
909. And that is all that took place? Yes. 
910. Can you say about when that was ? It is nearly eighteen months or two years since my first letter 
to Mr. Goodchap appeared. 
911. The syndicate with which you were connected we have called for convenience sake the "Sydney 
Omnibus Company's syndicate," but I believe that as a matter of fact it was a Melbourne syndicate, and 
that you were the only Sydney man in it ? Yes; I was the representative in the syndicate of the Sydney 
Omnibus Company, and the Melbourne gentlemen represented a Melbourne syndicate. 

George 
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George M`Leod Matheson, M.P., called in, sworn, and examined:- 
U. Mt. 

Matheson, 912. President.] Yon are a Member of Parliament ? Yes. 
M.P. 	913. And you are also, I believe, a member of the firm of Smith and Matheson, brokers ? Yes. 

914. You know of the proposal of the Government last year to lease the tramways ? Yes. 
15 Jan., 1889. 915. Do you remember the occasion when Sir Henry Parkes stated in Parliament that the trains would 

only be leased with the sanction of Parliament, and only by public tender ? No ; I do not remember that 
particularly. 
910. Not even by hearsay ? I remember reading of it in the newspapers. 
91.7. You remember the circumstances occurring ? My impression is that he did say so several times. 
918. Prior to his making that announcement, do you remember any negotiations pending between the 
Government and any one, or any negotiations going on, with the view of 

negotiations 
 leasing of the trams ? No. 

919. Either of your knowledge or from hearsay ? No; I do not know anything about any transactions 
or any negotiations going on at all. I do not know anything about them. 
920. Prior to that? Prior to that. 
921. Do you know of any negotiations about eighteen months ago ? No. 
922. Or twelve months ago ? No. 
923. When did your first knowledge of the leasing of the trams arise ? Well, I heard it talked of 
generally, and I saw of tenders being called for by the Government that is all. 
924. Was it then about the time you saw that tenders were called for that you first became aware that 
the Government were negotiating for the leasing of the trains-I mean that the Government contemplated 
leasing the trams ;was it about that time ? Except that Iliad heard of it and read of it in the newspapers, 
that is all. 
925. For how long before tenders were called ? For as long as they were talking of it in the newspapers ; 
because I read the newspapers pretty regularly. 
926. About how long ? I should think I have heard of it for the last year almost. 
927. Except what appeared. in the daily papers, did you know anything about the matter at all until the 
tenders were called for ? No ; I think I may say certainly not. 
928. Do you remember being at the White Rock Silver-mine with a Mr. Proudfoot, he being one of the 
company? Yes. 
029. Was he there more than once ? I think he was only there once. He was only there once with me 
at any rate. 
930. Do you remember his making any reference on that occasion to the leasing of the trams ? Yes, 
perfectly well, several references. 
931. What did he say ? Well, it is a very lon g 	ago, and I really took very little notice of it ; but 
the substance of it I know pretty well. °I should like to make a statement about this. The 
fact of the matter is this : We were floating the White Rock, and a certain gentleman applied for a 
thousand shares. We gave a picnic up to the 'White Rock, and this gentleman was asked and accepted 
the invitation. He afterwards came and suggested that Mr. Proudfoot should go instead of himself, 
as he could not leave town, and Mr. Proudfoot was then included in the invitation ; so that he was 
there as my guest, as it were. He was continually speaking about the trams-what a good thing 
they would be to get hold of, and so on-and he became a regular nuisance at last. I went 
up there really to float the White Rock ; I did not want to go up and talk about anything else. He 
became a perfect nuisance to me, constantly talking about it, and I said to him, " Oh, it is all 
right. You need not bother your head any more about the trams, the whole thing is fixed 
up." He came to me and said, "Is that the case, Matheson ?" and I said, 'Oh, yes • only 

al the lease remains to be signed," or something of that sort. Then afterwards when I quarrelled wl Mr. 
McElhone, and I suppose he was looking about for something to damage me, he one night in the House 
said that he had heard that a recent visitor to the White Rock had been told by a Member of Parliament 
that the whole thing was fixed up. He said, "Very likely the Member for Glen Tunes knows something 
about it." Well, so little had I thought about this that I really did not understand his reference at the 
time, and it was some time afterwards before I really knew what McElhone meant about the matter, 
mid I thought it was just as well to let the matter slide, Further than that we had no conversation about 
leasing the trams, nor were any remarks made whatever. 
932. Do you remember when that trip to the White Rock took place ? I could not tell you, but it was 
before we put it on the market. 
933. Do you remember the month ? It must have been about eight mouths ago. It was before the 
prospectus was published in the papers. 
934. When you made use of the expression with reference to the leasing of the trams, did you then know 
anything at all about the leasing of the trams ? No, nothing, except what the whole public know. 
935. What was that ? Simply that it was talked of. 
936. You mean that it was talked of as an intended thing ? -Well, I really may say that I knew nothing 
about it. 
937. The talk amongst the public was that it was an intended thing ? I would not like to say now what 
I did know ; but seeing that I never knew anything worth talking about, I could not have known much. 
938. There is no doubt that it was talked about then as a contemplated thing? As a thing that was 
moving some way or another. It is my impression that I just had that general knowledge and nothing 
MID 
939. But did you know hi any way whether or not it had been fixed up ? No; I did not know anything. 
940. Or that any negotiations or arrangements had been made between the Government and anyone ? 
No, certainly not. It was merely to shut his mouth that I said it to him. I said it to him in an off-
hand way. After the first time I said it to him he came back and asked me if it was true, showing that I 
really said it more in a joking manner than anything else. 
941. Then you made that statement to him to shut him up ? That is exactly what I said it for. 
942. Because he persistently bothered you about the trams ? Yes. I did not like the man, and I did 
not want to have anything to do with him. 
943. He seemed to have trams on the brain, and was interfering with your business, and you told him 
this to put an end te his chatter about the trams? Yes. 

944. 
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941. And you say distinctly, so far as the truth of the statement is concerned, that you knew nothing O. Mt. 
about it ? I knew nothing about it ; and, moreover, as a Member of Parliament f did not want to have Matheson,  
it even suggested that we would go in for the trams. I did not see that there was much in it, and I did M. P. 
not know anything about it. 	 15 Jan., 1889. 

David Proudfoot called in, sworn, and examined:- 
945. President.] What are you ? A railway contractor. 
946. Do you know Mr. McElhone ? I do. 
047. Had you any conversation with him with reference to the leasing of the trams ? I had. 
0418. When ? In February, 1888. 
949. Where was it, do you remember ? That I do not know. 
950. In Sydney ? In Sydney. 
051. What took place ? I think I sent Mr. McElhone a report of what I had to say upon the subject. 
952. Just tell us what you said ; what took place between you ? What I told him was this ; that on the 
occasion of my going to the White Rock silver mine I remarked to Mr. Matheson, a Member of Parlia-
ment, that I thought there was something equally as good, if a fair concession could be obtained, as the 
silver mines that were DOW being boomed. He asked me what it was, and I replied, " The city of Sydney 
and suburban tramways, if a fair and liberal concession could be obtained.' To that Mr. Matheson 
replied that the whole thing had been settled ; that it had been agreed between the Government of New 
South Wales and the Melbourne syndicate to let the Melbourne Company have the tramways. 
953. Did he say that? lie said so to me in the railway carriage going to White Rock. I said, "Nonsense," 
but he said " Oh, yes." I told him I could not believe it. He corroborated it by saying that he voted 
with the Government or words to that effect, and that he knew all about it. On my return to Sydney I 
had occasion to call upon Mr. Matheson, and I asked him if he still maintained the statement he made 
to me on the way to the White Rock, and he said " Yes, he had been to the Government buildings and 
ascertained that the whole thing was settled." 
954. He said he had been to the Government buildings ? Yes ; the reason of his having to go to the 
Government buildings was this I had expressed a doubt coining down about their being let, and he 
said he would go, but he was certain they were-that it was all cut and dried. 
955. Is that all you told Mr. Malhone ? No, there was something more. I had occasion to go to 
Broken Hill, and on my way to Broken Hill I called upon Mr. George Duncan, the engineer for the 
tramways of the city of Melbourne and suburbs, not in respect to tramway business in any shape or form ; 
but after my business was over he told me that his company, the company he was working for, had got 
the tramways of Sydney. 
956. Mr. Duncan told you ? Mr. Duncan told me. " Well," I said, "I did hear something ahout it in 
Sydney, that they were let, but I could not believe it, and I do not believe it now." "Oh," lie said, "it 
is a settled fact ; all the details have been agreed to, and it simply remains for the agreement to be drawn 
up." I doubted it, but he said, " I am speaking from what I know as a fact, because I am one of the 
syndicate." He had 110 reason to tell me anything but what was correct, because he was a young fellow 
who had learned his profession on my contracts in New Zealand, and it came voluntarily from him. I 
made no inquiries. On my return from Broken Hill I made a note of the conversation and sent the 
whole purport of the affair down to friends here to try and stop such letting of the tramways. As a 
railway contractor and promoter of these things I thought it was rather too much for the Government 
to give away without public competition, and I wrote out a sketch of the whole affair and forwarded it 
down here, but no action was taken, and I ultimately gave it to Mr. McElhone. 
957. Was this before or after you saw Mr. Matheson ? After. 
958. And your authority for that statement is Mr. Duncan ? Mr. Duncan and Mr. Matheson. 
959. But the statement you have just given ? Mr. Duncan. 
960. What Mr. Duncan is that ? Mr. George Duncan.. He is engineer for the Melbourne city and 
suburban tramways. 
901. He is a gentleman who can be found in Melbourne ? Oh yes ; he is the engineer for the tramways 
there. 
962. What time was it when you saw Duncan, and he told you that he had the lease ? In the month of 
Sanuary or February. He did not tell ine they had the lease; but that all the details had been settled, 
and nothing remained but to draw up the agreement. 
963. Did Mr. Duncan say who had negotiated it ? He told Inc some of the names in the syndicate-
names familiar to myself. 
904. Melbourne gentlemen ? Yes. Jenkin Collier, William Cain, Andrew Rowan, and one or two I 
forget. 
965. Mr. Robertson, of Wagner and Robertson ? I think so. 
966. Did he mention who had negotiated the matter on behalf • of the Government ? No ; I don't 
remember. 
967. Did he mention any member of the Ministry ? Well, I am not sure upon that point. I believe he 
did ; but I would not like 1;o say. I believe that a member of the Ministry; was mentioned ; but I am not 
positively sure upon the subject. 
908. Did he make any statement compromising a member of the Ministry in any way at all ? There was 
a slight allusion made to a member of the Ministry, I believe; but I do not know whether it would go so 
far as to compromise a Minister. 
909. What was the statement ? The statement was that he thought Mr. Clarke had something to do 
with it. 
970. To do with what? To do with the tramway concession. 
971. That is you mean The concession to the Melbourne Company. 
972. The negotiations for the granting of the lease ? Yes. 
973. He thought Mr. Clarke-what Mr. Clarke ? The Minister for Justice. 
974. Had something to do with it ? Yes. 
975. In what way did he think he had something to do with it -I mean from what he said ? That I do 
not know now. 

976. 

D. Proudfoot. 

16 Jan., 1869. 
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D. roudfoot. 976. Was it that he was the gentleman who negotiated the matter, or that he had an interest in it ? I 
'inferred from what was said that he had an interest in it not that he negotiated it ahn., 1889. 	 n •  977. Are you clear about that, or is it only an impression ? It is merely an impression. I have not a 

i copy of what I did write out then, and I have been trying to think over it, and it s merely an impression 
of mine. 
978. Is the whole thing an impression as to Mr. Clarke's name being mentioned ? No; I think his name 
was mentioned. 

Aft. Lamb.] When you say you have not a copy of what was written, you mean a copy of the letter 
written to Mr. Malhone ? Yes. 
980. President.] Then, except what Mr. Duncan told you and what Mr. Matheson told you, you know 
nothing at all about it ? Nothing whatever. 
981. You are simply repeating to us what they told you ? It was simply hearsay. I saw Mr. Matheson 
the other day, and this is also only hearsay. He told a friend of mine-Mr. Watkin. 
982. Were you present then ? No • I was not present. 
983. In consequence of something Mr. Watkin told you, you spoke to Mr. Matheson ? Yes ; in Pitt-
street. 
984. What did you tell him ? I told him that Mr. Watkin had told me that he (Matheson) had said that 
I had committed a breach of confidence in relating a conversation about the leasing of the tramways when 
going up to the White Rock with him. I said, "There could have been no breach of confidence. You 
gave it to me in the railway carriage, and you did not say anything whatever about it being confidential ; 
and on your return to town you went to the Government buildings and told me, as a result, that the whole 
thing was settled-that there was no chance." I said, "I would sooner cut my arm off than commit any 
breach of confidence, if you had made me the statement in confidence." 
985. What do you mean by the Government buildings ? The Works Office, I presume. Matheson then 
replied, "I was quite correct, they were let," then-" all but let." 
986. When was this ? Just the other day-two or three days prior to the tendering. I asked him," How 
could there be a breach of confidence ; you, as a Member of Parliament, declaring that they were let, and 
the undertaking being one of such public magnitude." 
987. I want to know whether we are to take it that you have any recollection of Mr. Duncan's statements 
affecting Mr. Clarke, or whether it is an impression that you would not pledge your oath to ? I would 
not like to pledge my oath to it. 
988. It was merely all impression ? Merely an impression I believe his name was mentioned in that way. 
I know that at the time Mr. Duncan thought very highly of the concession, and he told me freely about 
it, without my making any inquiries, and I suppose more so upon the ground that he had been in my 
employ for years. 
989. Did you learn from Mr. Duncan at all who had negotiated the matter of the intended lease ? 
fancy it was the Melbourne people. 
990. Who negotiated on the part of the New South Wales Government ? That I cannot say. 
991. Did he tell you ? He may have ; I cannot remember. 
992. Do you remember whether he told you ? No ; I do not remember. 
993. Mr. Lamb.] Who negotiated on the part of Duncan and his friends ? I do not know ; I could 
not say. 
994. It was not Duncan himself ? No ; I do not think Ho. He was very emphatic about all the details 
having been settled, and that the only thing that remained to be done was the drawing up of the agree-
meat. I committed it all to writing then and sent it over to New South Wales, and a copy of that 
writing I afterwards forwarded to Mr. McElhone. 
991 He led you to believe that it was all settled as flu' as his friends were concerned, and as far as the 
Sydney Government were concerned ? Yes, most; emphatically. 	. 
990. You might have got a wrong impression ;-he might have meant that it was settled only so far as 
his friends were concerned ? What he led me to believe was that, as regarded this particular transaction 
of the trams, the whole thing, as far as the Sydney and suburban tramways were concerned, was given to 
the Melbourne syndicate. 
997. President.] What month was this ? January. We went up to the White Rock in January, and 
in the same month I went up to Broken Hill, via Melbourne. I know that I was in Melbourne on 25th 
January. 

G. M`Leod Matheson, M.P., recalled and further examined :- 
G. Mq„ 998. President.] Where did the conversation take place between you and Mr. Proudfoot on the White. 

Matheson, Rock trip ? I think at Drake. 
M.P. 	999. Was it in the train or out of the train ? It would be out of the train at Drake. I rather think it 

i ir'N was on the road up from Drake to the mine. 
° 	Mt  1000. Did he ask you about it afterwards when you returned to Sydney? I do not think so. No; I am 

sure he did not ask me about it ;. at least, so far as I can remember. 
1001. Did you ever go to the Works Office to inquire as to whether, in point of fact, any negotiations 
had taken place with reference 'to the leasing of the trains ? No; that I am positive about ; I never 
did that. 
1002. Or did you ever tell Mr. Proudfoot you had done so ? Certainly not. I have never had the 
slightest idea of interesting myself about the matter, and I certainly never did interest myself in the 
slightest. 
1003. But apart from that, did you go to the Works Office to inquire? No. 
1094. Did you tell Mr. Proudfoot you had been at the Works Office ? No; certainly not. 
1005. Do you know Mr. Watkin, of Robert Chalmers & Co.? I know the name. 
1006. You do not know the man? As far as I know I never met the man. I do not know him, at all 
events. I remember now that I have heard of the man, but I do not know him ; I never saw him in 
my life. 
1007. Did you tell him at any time that Mr. Proudfoot had committed a breach of confidence in repeating 
what you had said to him ? As far as I know I never met Mr. Watkin in my life, so that I could not 
have done so. 1008. 
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1008. Quite apart from meeting him, did you tell him or anyone else that ? No. Well, I would not like to B. MI... 
say that; because I certainly think that, when a man is my guest, to go and repeat a conversation like that Matheson, 

- to Mr. McElhone was about as great a breach of confidence as you could have; because I understand now • - 
that he believed I was really telling him what I believed to be the case; and to go and repeat a thing like r an.  1889  

. that to a man whom he knew was my enemy was a very dirty bit of business altogether. It was done 	
. 

 

merely for the purpose of injuring me, apparently, without doing himself any good. As far as I know, I 
never spoke to Mr. Watkin in my life, so that I could not have told him. At the same time, I had that 
feeling that Mr. Proudfoot had committed a breach of confidence ; and if I had met Mr. Watkin—and I 
meet many men whom I do not remember again—it is quite possible I did say so. 
1009. Did Mr. Proudfoot tax you with baying said to Mr. Watkin that he had committed a breach of 
confidence ? No, never. 
1010. Only just about the time the tenders were called for ? No; certainly not. As far as I know, I 
never said to anybody that I considered it a breach of confidence; at the same time I had that feelbw.-• 
1011. I am passing away from that ;—I want to know whether Mr. Proudfoot told you ? No; he did
not. 
1012. And did he tell you that it was not a breath of confidence, that it was a public matter, and that 
you yourself had told him that you had been to the Works Office and ascertained that it was true, and 
had told him you had done so ? That conversation never took place between Proudfoot and myself. • 
1013. Did you also tell him that in point of feet he was quite right that the trains were leaned? 
Certainly not. When was I supposed to have said that ? 
1014. About the time the tenders were called for ? The thing is absurd. The trams were never leased, 
and how could I have said that be was quite right. 
1015. Mr. Prondfoot says that on the road to the White Rock when in the train he spoke about the 
trams, and you said, "All that is settled ; they are leased, and it only remains to have the contract signed"; 
that when he came hack to Sydney be said to you, " Were you at the Works Office about that ?" and 
you said, " Yes ; I have been to the Works Office, and that Is a fact" ;—now is that correct ? No; it is 
not correct. In the first place, I am perfectly certain of this, that it was not in the train going up that 
I told him that ; it was when we had left Tenterfield, and my belief is, that it was at Drake, or near 
Drake ; and I certainly never said I had been to the Works Office, because I would not know where to 
go in the Works Department to get such information, and I certainly never did go to the Works Depart-
ment about it. 
1016. Do you still then adhere to your former statement ? Certainly. My former statement gives 
exactly what took place. 
1017. Do you know Mr. Duncan, engineer to the Melbourne Tramway Co.? No. I remember that 
Mr. Proudfoot told me at the White Rock excursion, that he expected to get some information from Mr. 
Duncan as to the probable cost of the construction of the tramways. The trip to the White Rock took 
place not more than fourteen days before the publication of the prospectus in the newspapers. The date 
of the prospectus was 4th February, 1888. 

THURSDAY, 17 JANUARY, 1889.. 

MORNING SITTING. 

tinged:— 
E. W. KNOX, ESQ. (IN THE CHAIR.) 

	
ALFRED LAMB, EsQ. 

James Matthew Toohey, M.P., called in, sworn, and examined 
1018. Hr. Knox.] I believe you are one of the Members for South Sydney in the New South Wales 1.M. Toohey, 
Parliament ? I am, 	 Esq. 
1019. Have you any personal knowledge in reference to the charges which have been made concerning 
the alleged attempt to bribe Members of Parliament with regard to the leasing of the tramways? Not 17 Tan. 1889 
the slightest. 
1020. And you have had no interest yoursel.f in any of the syndicates ? Not the slightest. 
1021. And you cannot give us any information on the subject? No. 

AFTERNOON SITTING. 

Vregent:— 
E. W. KNOX, ESQ. 	 A. LAMB, ESQ. 

CHAS E FILCHER, ESQ., Q.C. (RitEsinE87). 

THE PRESIDENT IN THE CHAIR. 
Robert Bowman called in, sworn, and examined : — 

1022. President] What are you? A. tea merchant, residing in Melbourne. 	 R•. Bowman. 
1023. What is your address ? 29, King-street, Melbourne. 
1024. How many years have you been engaged as a tea merchant ? Upwards of twenty years since I 1 17 Jan.,1889. 
started ; but I have changed my business since. 
1025. I believe you were once a Member of Parliament in Victoria ? I was a Member of the Victorian 
Parliament for nearly twenty years. 
1026. Are you still a Member ? No; I retired when I got into commercial difficulties, through mining, 
about three years ago. I retired of my own free will. I did so before filing my schedule. When I 
called a meeting of my creditors I was advised by a friend that the hest plan would be to go insolvent, 

' and accordingly I filed my schedule, and my creditors, representing three-fourths in number and value, 
signed 
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R.-Bowman;  signed my release. To show that I was never a fraudulent insolvent, I took the trouble to go to the 
Insolvent Court yesterday and obtained this attested copy of the certificate of release [Appendix B.] I 

"an" 1889 ' was never charged with being a fraudulent insolvent, and was never found guilty of any crime in my 
life. 
1027. You were never charged in any way with criminal insolvency ? Never. A trumped-up charge 
was brought against me when I was in difficulties, about nineteen years ago, the particulars of which are 
fully reported in the Melbourne firgus of 2nd December, 1870. A. firm called Levy and Sons trumped up 
a charge against me, with the object of getting £50 out of me. I bought some goods from them a short 
time before I became insolvent. This was the first time I was insolvent, for I have been insolvent twice. 
The schedule was taken off the file, and I may say that I have only gone through the Court on one 
occasion I ordered these goods, to the amount of £80, to be forwarded on to a certain firm in Mary-
borough, in Victoria—in fact, to one of my constituents—together with other goods to the value of £300 
or £400 that I was sending up. The invoice was sent to me, and when I got into difficulties they 
attempted to make the parties to whom the goods were sent pay for them. The case came on, and they 
wanted to charge me with obtaining those goods under false pretences. There was not a scintilla of 
evidence that ! bought the goods for any other person but myself. Levy and Sons were afterwards brought 
up for conspiracy in connection with this ease, and the magistrates disagreed. The case lasted three days. 
The evidence in this trumped-up charge against me was all published, and -none of my friends in Mary-
borough or Melbourne thought anything the less of me in consequence. T was never charged with any 
other crime, and I was never guilty of any crime in my life except that I was not able to pay 20s. in the 
B; and it is very hard that my name should be mentioned in Hansard in the way in which it was. 
1028. As I understand, your estate was insolvent in 1309, and again about three years ago ? Yes. 
1029. It was with reference to the insolvency of 1869 that this charge was made against you by Levy and 
Sons ? Yes. 
1030. Did you obtain your certificate in the first insolvency ? I did, or I should not have gone into 
business again. I obtained the certificate without the slightest opposition or trouble. 
1031. This speech of Mr. Wilson's in Parliament also states that you have been tried for perjury ? That 
is an infamous lie. I was never charged with perjury in my life, or with any other crime, except what I 
have told you about the trumped-up case with reference to the £80. 
1032. At page 1232 Mr. Wilson is reported to have made this statement ;— 

On the word of it late Member of tlm Victorian Assembly, a man who has been tried for I do not know how many 
offences, n man to whom no one with any self-respect, knowing his character, would be seen speaking, a man who has 
been tried for perjury, for criminal insolvency, and I do not know how many other offences. 

Have you ever had any charge brought against you either rightly or wrongly except the one you have 
referred to with reference to the £80? Never in my life. I desire to mention that all the evidence in 
the £80 case is reported in the Argus of the 2nd December, 1870. I refer to the conspiracy case in which 
they tried to get thatmoney out of 111 e. Levy and Sons were charged on the 7th December with conspiracy 
1033. What became of that charge ? The ease lasted two days in Court, and the Magistrates disagreed 
in the evening and finally they let them off. 
1034. Mr. Knox.] Dismissed the case ? The decision was, I think, that the Magistrates disagreed. I 
cannot tell you exactly, but I know they did disagree. 
1035. President.] However, nothing more came of it ? No. 
1036. You did not take any further proceedings ? No ; simply because I had not the means The case 
altogether cost me £400. 
1037. Were you in partnership or trading alone ? I was trading alone on both occasions. 
1038. All those twenty years ? No ; I have had a partner. When I bought Brown and Reid's estate 
I gave Brown a small interest in the business. That is about twenty-four years ago. Then I had a 
partner called Georgeson, who was to have put £6,000 into my business, but he did not put a sixpence in, 
and Iliad to get quit of him. 
1039. is that all you desire to say about those statements of Mr. Wilson against you ? I give them a 
flat contradiction. I am on my oath, and I distinctly say that I was never tried, and no one ever 
mentioned that I was guilty of criminal insolvency, or that I was guilty of perjury or any other offence, 
except with reference to the charge concerning the £80. 
1040. Another statement by Mr. Wilson is to this effect :— 

The whole charge was based on the fact that this outcast of the Victorian Parliament and of all decent society met 
the Honorable Member for Tamworth in Melbourne, presented him with his card, and introduced himself. 

What do you say concerning that? I was never an outcast from the Victorian Parliament. I retired 
from Parliament voluntarily. I retired twice from Parliament, and when I came back I was returned 
again, and I was sitting in Parliament three years ago. I may say that 1 am a candidate now, and I am 
quite satisfied that I shall be returned for my old electorate. 
1061. The two occasions on which you retired from Parliament were when you got into financial difficul-
ties? Exactly so, and on no other occasion. I retired on both occasions before 1 sequestrated my estate. 
I desire also to refer to a statement of Mr. W. J. Allen, reported at page 1295 of .7Tansard, to this effect : 
"That he was a friend and partner years ago of the Minister of Public Instruction." Mr. Inglis never 
was a partner of mine; he was an agent of mire in Sydney in the tea. business. He sold tea, and I 
allowed him 10 per cent. commission. 
1042. Is there anything else you would like to mention ? Mr. Dibbs is reported to have said at page 
1252:— 

The extraordinary part of the !thing is that Mr. Bowman was hanging about in the lobby of the Works Depart-
ment, waiting to see his intimate friend, the Minister of Public Instruction. 
I was not hanging about the lobby of the Works Department ; I was only in Sydney two days altogether 
I found that the Government had not published a copy of the tramway rolling-stock, and I went to the 
Public Works Department; to see if I could procure a copy. 
1043. Yon refer to the plant which, if your syndicate had got the lease of the tramways, they would have 
had to purchase from the Government? Yes. 
1044. Whom did you see when you went to get that list ? The Under Secretary, I think (Mr. Barling), 
and he said he knew nothing about the matter beyond what Ivas in the Gazette; and I said, " It is a most 
remarkable thing ; there must be a list of the rolling-stock somewhere." 1045. 



669 
miniDETtS OP Palti.Ta3iElei—IUTN11TES OF aviDENCii; 	 57 

1015. Did you take a card or letter to Mr. Darling ? I took a note from Mr. Inglis to Mr. Darling. 	• ft. Bowman 
1040. Do you remember the terms of that note ? I do not think 1 read. it 
1047. How did you obtain the note ? I asked Mr. Inglis when I came over here what was the best way 111.ttaf. 
to get the information, because I was a stranger with regard to the public offices hero, and he said he did 
llot know what department it was in, but thought it would be in the Public Works Department, and he said, 
" I will give you a note to Mr. Darling." So he gave me this note. 1 don't think I read the note. I 
look it to Mr. Darling, and he said. he knew nothing at all about the matter except what was in the 
Gazelle; "But," he said, "I will inquire in the Railway Department," and after doing so he introduced 
a Mr. Dadham to me, who showed me a list of tramway stock in manuscript, which I think ought to have 
been published. I had to engage a clerk and send him to make a copy of this list. 
1010. Did you tell Mr. Inglis that your time was short ? I told him that my time was short, anal was 
anxious to get away again. 
1019. That you wanted to get the information as quickly as possible? Yes. 
1050. And upon that he gave you this note to Mr. Darling? Yes. 
1051. To facilitate your inquiries ? Yes. 
1052. Did anything else take place between you and Mr. Inglis ? We had a conversation, and may have 
talked a little about business and the tea trade. 
1.053. But nothing about the trams? No. I told him that I came over hereto see about forming, a syndicate 
to tender for the trams, and that if I could get the information I desired it would facilitate my business 
very much ; and that I came over specially for that purpose. When I went to see Mr. Inglis he gave me 
the note to Mr. Darling. When I was in Mr. Darling's office Mr. Clarke, the Minister for Justice, came 
in, and the papers were lying before me at the time; Mr. Darling had just handed them to me. 
1054. What papers? The Gazelle notices. Mr. Clarke, when he came mlooked over my shoulder, and said, 
" Hulloo, Bowman," or something of that sort, " what are you doing here ; are you going to tender for the 
trams ?" I said I might, or something of that kind. I think I gave him all evasive answer, because I did 
not want anyone to know that I was bhere on that business at all, and I asked Mr. Inglis not to inform 
anyone, because I. knew Rowan & Co. were tendering, and I knew Mr. Clarke was a friend of Rowan's, 
and I was very sorry that Ile saw Inc there. That was all the conversation I had with Mr. Clarke. 
1035. What room was it that Mr. Clarke came into iP Mr. Darling's room. It was stated in Parliament 
that it was at the Treasury, but as a matter of fact it Was in the office of the Under Secretary for Public 
Works, to whom my note was addressed. 
1.050. Did you ever meet Mr. Clarke in any of the Treasury offices ? No. WI en Imet him it was in the 
presence of Mr. Darling. The statement in Hansard as to its being in the Treasury is a mistake. 
1057. Are you quite sure that you never met Mr. Clarke except at Mr. Darling's office ? I had met him 
before. 
1058. But during your visit to Sydney on that occasion you only met him at Mr. Darling's office, and it 
was on that occasion that he said. " Hulloo, Bowman, what are you doing here?" That is so. 
1059. On the occasion of that visit to Sydney did you see Mr. Clarke anywhere except) at Mr. Darling's 
office ? No, I did not, neither at a distance nor to speak to. 
1000. Did you see Mr. Inglis on more than one occasion during that visit ? I saw him twice. 
1061. One occasion you have told us of—when was the other ? On the other occasion I met him at the 
Colonial Secretary's Office. 
1062. What were you doing there ? I went there because there were several things I wanted to get 
information about. Mr. Inglis could not tell me. He said, "I don't know who can tell you ; I think the 
Colonial Secretary would be the only one who could answer the questions." Mr. Inglis did not know 
anything at all about the trams. It was not in his Department he said, and I said "'hey don't seem to 
know anything at all in the Public Works Department about it," because I had a long conversation with 
Mr. Darling,. and I wanted to know when we tendered, about what time it would be handed over to us ; 
because a Bill would require first to go through the House. There were seven or eight questions which I 
wrote out on a little bit of paper, about which I wanted to ask Sir Henry Parkes. 

- 1003. Do you mean information as to what time would probably elapse between the acceptance ef the 
tender and the handing over of the trains ? Yes. I also wished to know how long the Govermnent 
would keep the deposit which we intended to pay in cash. 
1064. That is in the event of your failing to get the lease ? Yes. After I had asked Sir Henry Parkes 
two questions he said, " Mr. Bowman, I think it would be advisable if you would put your questions in 
writing, and I will send you a reply." I said, " Thank you, that will suit me admirably." 
1065. Did you put them in writing? I did not we did not go on with it. 
RIO. As a matter of fact, you did not go on, and you did not tender ? No; and none of my partners 
were interested in the tenders as far as I know. 
1067. As I understand, the party with whom you were associated when you came to Sydney never 
tendered for the trains, and took no further steps beyond those which you took in Sydney ? That is so. I 
made an attempt in Melbourne to join the Jenning's party, and with that object telegraphed to Mr. 
Parkinson, or I should say Pritchard. 
1000. The question I asked you was whether the party with whom you were associated at the time you 
were coming over to Sydney ever tendered ? No; they did not. 
1.060. Did you know Mr. Clarke at all before your visit to Sydney on that occasion ? I knew him in 
Melbourne when lie was quite a young man ; in fact, when I was in business in Elizabeth-street. He 
was then an employee of Younghusband and Co. 
1070. How long have you known him ? Twenty-five years. 
1071. Intimately ? No; nothing more than that he was an employee in the same buildings, though not 
in the same office. 
1072. What buildings were they ? Brown, Stewart's. 
1073. What office was he in ? Younghusband's. 
1074. What office were you ill ? I was in business for myself. 
1075. You have spoken of a party with whom you were associated at the time you came to Sydney to get 
particulars about the trams

' 
 who were that party ? The members of the syndicate which was to have 

been formed if the matter had gone on were the Hon. Thomas Bent, the Hon. john A. Wallace, member 
of the Upper House, John Turnbull, and Cushing. That is all, I may say, that agreed to go in. Lots of 
my friends were anxious to go in; but it was only certain people we would admit in. 107G. 

25—F 
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B. Bowman. 1070. Those were the only gentlemen at that time associated with you ? That is 
kr-t-LtrTh 1077. Was your syndicate actually formed then ? No ; it was not formed. 

17 Jan" 1889'1073. In process of formation Pin process of formation. 
1079. You had not formed ; you were in process of formation. Had you agreed-the gentlemen you 
have named and yourself-upon anything in the way of capital or basis of subdivision, or anything of that 
sort ? The only basis we had agreed upon was that it was to be five shares of £10,000 each to pay the 
deposit. After, that we were to deal with it. I was to have a certain interest in it myself, and they were 
to have a certain interest, but the amount which each was to have was never stated. 
1080. But amongst you you were to make up the £50,000 deposit ? Yes. 
1051. And your interest would be in proportion to the amount of money you found ? Yes. 
1082. Was that the state of what I may call your syndicate? That was the basis. 
1033. And you say that after your visit to Sydney you ceased to exist? NVe were never formed. 	• 
1084, You took no more stops ? Not after. I could not amalgamate with the Pritchard and Jennings 
party. 
1085. After your visit to Sydney you tried to amalgamate with the Jennings syndicate? First of all we 
tried to amalgamate with Mr. Pritchard, whom I do not know, and never saw. 
1080. You did not succeed in that ? No. 
1037. Then you tried to amalgamate with Mr. Jennings ? Yes. I found that Jennings was the principal 
of the syndicate. 
1088. 'Yon did not succeed with that ? I had a meeting in Mr. Andrew Lyall's office in Melbourne, and 
we did not sucaed. 
1089. Then you let the matter drop ? Yes. 
1090. Had you spoken to any other gentleman, or had any other gentleman spoken to you, with a view of 
joining that syndicate-I will call it "syndicate," as a matter of convenience? I might, in confidence 
to some of my friends, have mentioned that I had a thing on, and would allow them to put £5,000 or ' 
£l0,000 in. These are the only people that we consulted. 
1.091. Had you ever spoken to any gentleman in New South Wales, or any gentleman in New South 
Wales spoken to you about it? No. When I was over here I wanted to keep it as quiet as possible. 
1092. Quite apart from that, did you, as a matter of fact, speak to anyone up here, or anyone up here 
speak to you? No. 
1093. With reference to joining that syndicate or acquiring any interest in it ? No. 
1091. Did Mr. Clarke or Mr. Inglis, or either of them, ever have any interest in that syndicate ? No; 
it never was intended that they should have, nor did they ever desire it. 
1005. Had you ever spoken to them about it, with the exception of, on your visit to Sydney, telling Mr. 
Inglis that you were forming a syndicate to apply for the leasing of the 

your 
 ? That was all. 

1090. When you applied to him for information ? Yes. 
1097. Beyond that was there any conversation between you and Mr. Inglis or Mr. Clarke, or either of 
them, with reference to your syndicate ? No, not a word. 
1098. Now we coine to that conversation with Mr. Levien. Do you know Mr. Levien ? I had never 
seen Mr. Levien ; I did not know who he was, until I met him in Melbourne, at Menton. 
1099. At the races ? Yes. It was the race week in Melbourne. I could not tell you the day. It was 
the first meeting on the new racecourse. 
1100. You cannot say the day ? I cannot say the day. 
1101. Can you say the month ? It was either the end of October or the beginning of November. 
1102. Last year ? Yes. It was a few days towards the end or a few days after the first of the 
month. 
1103. Where did you meet Mr. Levien first ? At the Montane Racecourse. A man named Pigott, who 
was a trainer, an old Sydney man who used to be a jockey, came up to me as I was standing with some 
friends at the end of the stand, and he said, "Will you allow me to introduce a friend of mine to you ?" 
I said, "Who is he?" and he said, "Mr. Levien, of Sydney, a Member of Parliament, and has a very large 
practice as a solicitor!' I said, "I have no objections ;" so he brought Mr. Levien, and Mr. Levien asked 
mime to have a glass of wine. That was all the conversation we had that day. T may have said to him," I 
have just returned from Sydney," something of that sort. I fortify that by a declaration from Pigott, 
to show that I did not seek MI:. Lavion's acquaintance, did not know the man, and did not want to know 
him. [Appendix C.] 
1101. That declaration was made before Mr. Harston ? Yes. 
1105. Is he a Justice of the Peace? Yes. 
1100. And a law-stationer in Melbourne? Yes. 
1107. Do you say that nothing more took place? Not as far as I recollect. I may have said, "I have 
just returned from Sydney," or something like that. 
1108. Was this shortly after your visit in search of particulars about the trains? Within two or three 
days. I could not tell you the date unless I recollected the date of the races. 
1.109. After your return from Sydney in search of the particulars you spoke about? Yes. 
1110. 'When did you see Levien again? The next time I saw Mr. Levien was on the Melbourne race-
course. He came up and spoke to me. 
MA. Was that the Cup Day ? I would not be sure that it was the Cup Day. 
1112. It was at the Cup Meeting ? Oh, yes. 
1113. He came up and spoke to you, you say ? Yes. I saw him repeatedly during the race meeting. 
1114. You mean casual passing ? Yes. He always came and spoke to me. I never went up to speak to 
him first. 
1115. You say that he came and spoke to you ; what did he say? He spoke about the horses and the 
racing, and one thing and another. 
1116. Anything else ? Nothing else took place then at the racecourse. 
1117. Did you see him again at all ? I met him at the Victorian Coffee Palace, in Collins-street, and the 
conversation about the trams °nine up. 
1118. How did it come up ; who mentioned it ? That I could not tell you. I do not know who intro- 
duced the matter, but we were talking about the probable number of tenderers for the trams. I said, 
" As far as I know, there will only be three tenderers-Burns, Philp, & Company, Andrew Bowan, and 

the 
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the party associated with MC." " Oh," he said, " there is another party ; a man named Pritchard! R. Bowman. 
" Well," I said, " we would prefer going in with the Sydney party," passing the remark at the same time er"--"---Th 
that I did. not see that there was much chance of a Melbourne party getting it unless there was a Sydney 17 Jana 1889' 
party associated with it. He said, " Well, I will introduce you to Pritchard," I said, " Where is he" ? 
He said, " Parer Brothers is where I think he is staying." 
1119. Where is that? In Bourke-street. 
1120. What is it—an hotel ? Yes. " 	I said, "I will try to see him," because we were just about 
collapsing, unless we amalgamated. 
1121. You were just about giving up the idea of tendering F Yes. So I took a cab and went to Parer 
Brothers. Mr. Pritchard was not there, and had not been staying there. 
1122. Did Mr. Letitia go with you ? No. I met someone from Sydney—I forget who it was—who 
told me that Mr. Pritchard had been staying, or was staying, at the" White Hart Hotel." I went up to 
the " White Hart Hotel," and found that he had left for Sidney. I sent him a telegram then. 
1123. Do you remember the terms of that telegram ? Asking him if he would amalgamate with our party, 
or to that effect. 
1124. Did you refer him to any one up here ? Yes. 
1125. Who was the person ? The Hon. James Inglis. We were sitting in Cushing's office, and I said, 
" It is very awkward I do not know this man." 
1126. I do not know whether John Turnbull was there; I think he was ; at any rate Cushing was there. 
"Well" he said " you had better refer him to Inglis." He knew that Inglis was a friend of mine, so he 
referred me to Inglis to let him know who I was. 
1127. For what purpose ? To let him know. He would not know me from Adam if I sent him a telegram 
with my name. Mr. Cushing said, "You had better refer him toInglis." I said to Mr. Cushing, " Have 
you any friends in Sydney that you can refer him to ?" Oh, he said, " You can refer to Mr. Inglis," so I 
just said, "See. Inglis," or" refer to Inglis about our position." 
1128. What do you mean by "our position" ? With regard to our intending to come in. 
11.29. But how would Mr. Inglis know that ? Because I told Mr. Inglis. 
1130. Did you mention those names to Mr. Inglis? I think I mentioned that Mr. Bent was in it. 
1131. Was tins reference by the telegram to Mr. Inglis a kind of credential F A credential, so that he 
could refer to him whether I was a bona :fide tenderer or likely to be. 
1132. But Mr. Inglis would not know that except from what you told him ? That was all he could 
know. 
1183. Just tell me why it was you referred him to Mr. Inglis ; because, according to your statement, all 
you mentioned to Mr. Inglis was, "That I am getting a syndicate formed, and I intend to go in for this 
tram lease. Would you give me some note, as my time is precious, to enable me to get the information I 
require "? Yes. 
1134. If that is so, I can understand that you simply referred him to Mr. Inglis to tell him who you were? 
That was all I did. 
1135. That is quite intelligible, but if you referred him to Mr. Inglis for particulars about the syndicate, 
that is quite unintelligible ? I did not refer to Mr. Inglis about the syndicate, but to let hint know that 
I was a probable tenderer. 
1136. You say you think you mentioned Mr. Bent's name ? I think I did when getting information 
from him. 
1187. You sent that telen

b
ram to Pritchard;—what took place then ? I got a reply back from him to-say-

1138. Have you a copy of the telegram you sent to him in the first place? No. (Telegram subsequently 
read, see Q. 1147 ) 
1139. Have you the telegram you received from Mr. Pritchard ? I have not got it ; I thought I had it. 
(Telegram subsequently read, see Q. 1148.) 
1140. What was the effect of it? "Party referred to ; no authority to act." Something of that sort. • 
He had misinterpreted my telegram. A. copy of this telegram could be obtained from the Telegraph 
Office. 
1141. The party referred to is Mr. Inglis ? Yes. 
1142. "No authority to act"? That was the meaning of it ; those might not be the exact words. 
1113. You say he misinterpreted your telegram—in what way ? Inasmuch as he thought Mr. Inglis was. 
in a position to amalgamate. I sent him a telegram, asking him to amalgamate. Then I saw Mr. Levien 
at the Coffee Palace. When I got this other telegram from Mr. PA arfi I went to see Mr. Levien, as 
he was going to Sydney. I saw him at the Coffe;Palace, and then I went back, after talking the matter 
over with some of my friends, to see if we could arrange with Mr. Lotion to manage the business with 
Pritchard for us as solicitor, and I went to the railway station. 
1141. To manage what business ? To arrange the amalgamation of the two parties, each to put in 
£25,000. 
1145. To see if you could get Mr. Levien as a solicitor to arrange an amalgamation between your party 
and Mr. Pritchard's ? Exactly so. Mr. Levien had left the Coffee Palace and I followed him to the. 
railway station and saw him fu tha carriage. The compartment was full of people. I told him exactly 
what I wanted, and I brought my card out and put ffiy address upon it. " Now," I said, "I may 
telegraph to Mr. Pritchard to meet you on the arrival of the train at Sydney." He said "Very 
good," and I said, "If he does not, perhaps you will see him." I gave him my card then, and not in. 
Collins-street, as has been stated. I never gave him my card until be was going to Sydney. When I 
went down into the city that evening or the following morning I met Mr. Lyall, and. I was speaking to 
him about the syndicate, as we have been mixed up in several things together, and he said that Jennings 
was the man in that syndicate and that he was coming over here. I said, " Could you arrange an 
appointment with Mr. Jennings ? I was jnst going to send a telegram to Pritchard and one to Levien." .  
He  said, " I may tell you that Mr. Pritchard was only admitted into that syndicate last week.. Mr. 
Jennings is the man who formed the syndicate." Mr. Hyatt made an appointment on the following day 
at his office, and I went down and met Mr. Jennings. 
1146. You left off by referring to the telegram you got from Mr. Pritchard, in which he said, "Party 
referred to has no authority," or words to that effect, and you said, that he had evidently misinterpreted 
your telegram;—how had he misinterpreted it? He misinterpreted it in this way: he thought, when I 

referred 
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R. Bowman. ieferred him to Mr. Inglis, that I intended that gentleman to arrange for the amalgamation, which was a 
mistake; there was no such intention. In the telegram I simply referred him to Mr. Inglis for a sort of 

17 Jan ' , 1889' credential, and to show that we were likely to be bona-fide tenderers. 
1147. Can you tell us the exact wording of your telegram to Mr. Pritchard ? I find that I have the 
telegram here, and it is as follows:- 

- Pritchard, Esq., 	 10, Victoria Chambers, Castlerenglostreet, Sydney, 12 November, 1852. 
Honorable Thos. Bent, Honorable John Alston Wallace, and friends going to tender for tramways. Goodrhop 

recommends join forces equally with your party, then only one tender to contend against. You can consult Honorable James 
Inglis, Minister of Instruction, about us. Strictly confidential. Reply quickly. 

ROBERT BOWMAN, 26, King-street, Melbourne. 

1148. Have you the reply to that ? Yes ; it is dated the 14th November, addressed to R. Bowman, 23 
King-street, Melbourne, and is as follows :- 
WRITE definitely respecting tender. Gentlemen mentioned not in position to negotiate amalgamation. I cannot place offer 
before my company pending. 

E. PRITCHARD. 
1149. You referred in your telegram of 12th November to Mr. Bent and Mr. Wallace. Those are two of 
the gentlemen whose names you have already mentioned? Yes. 
1150. And you have referred to a Mr. Goodchap ;-who is he? The Into Commissioner of Railways. 
1151. Where did you meet him ? I met him in Collins-street, near "Scott's Hotel." He is a friend of 
Turnbull and Cushing, and it was Cushing who instructed Inc to say that Mr. Geodchap recommended 
the amalgamation with Pritchard. Mr. Goodehap did not tell me so. The telegram was written in Mr. 
Cushing's office, and sent from there to the telegraph office. 
1152. And it was upon Mr. Cushing's instructions that you made the statement about Mr. Goode:hap ? 
Yes, altogether. 
1153. For what you know it may be utterly untrue ? Yes. I had some conversation with Mr. Goodchap, 
but I did not mention anything at all about using his name in the telegram. I said to Mr. Cashing 
distinctly at the time, " Now, can you use Goodchap's name? " " Yes," fie said, "in confidence." 
1154. 'Who is Mr. Cushing ? He is an American merchant and agent for the American mail-steamers. 
Mr. Cushing.  introduced me to Mr. Goodchap at " Scott's Hotel" as Mr. Bowman, who was a probable 
tenderer for the New South Wales trams, but I never went into any particulars with Mr. Goodehap 
about it. 
1155. Did you have any conversation with him except a mere casual remark ? A mere casual remark, 
nothing that I can repeat ; that is, nothing that I can remember. 
1156. No discussion about the trams in any way at all ? No. 
1157. And so far as you know this use of Mr. Goodehap's name may have been entirely without authority ? 
It may have been so. 
1158. And the representation made tore with reference to Mr. Goodchap may be absolutely untrue for 
aught you know ? it may for aught I know. 
1159. After that reply from Mr. Pritchard did you take any further stops ? I have told you that I met 
Mr. Lyell in the interim. 
1160. Ho told you that Jennings was the real person ? Yes, and I had an interview with Jennings 
instead of troubling any further with Pritchard. Mr. Lyell is an accountant, and I think he knows all 
Jennings' business. He told me that Pritchard was only admitted into the Jennings syndicate within the 
previous week, and that Jennings was the man and not Pritchard; then I had an interview with Jennings. 
1161. You proposed to amalgamate, and he would not agree to it ? Yes. 
1162. And that was an end to that ? Yes. 
1163. And then your party fell to pieces ? Altogether. 
1164. Have you told us all that took place between you and Mr. Levien ? Everything that took place 
with regard to the trams. 
1165. Mr. Levien in his speech on page 1217 of Hansard said -" I was introduced to a gentleman of the 
name of Mr. Robert Bowman, of 26, King-street, Melbourne. He was a Member of the Legislature of 
Victoria, and a wine and spirit merchant. He said to me, I would like to see you to-morrow ; I have 
something I should like to say to you" '' that true ? No; it is not true. 

"I wish you would come and speak to me" ? No; I never said so. 
1167. Did you say, " I will meet you" ? I never made an appointment with the man in any life. 
1168. Then he goes on to say; "The next day I met this gentleman, I think, in Collins-street" ? I never 
met him in Collins-street in my life, except when I saw him in the Coffee Palace, when I tried to get him 
to act as solicitor to try and make an arrangement with Pritchard. 
1169. Mr. Levien said, 5` The next day I met this gentleman, I think, in Collins-street." He said, "What I 
want to speak to you about was with reference to the leasing of the trams in New Smith Wales." Is 
that true ? We had a conversation about the leasing of the trams, but made no appointment for the 
purpose. 
1170. "lam  working up a syndicate and I have got a good deal to do with it" ? That is substantially 
true. 
1171. "You are a Member of the Legislature of New South Wales, and if you will assist us you will 
have a good chance of being solicitor" ? I never said so. 
1172. " I said, I don't want the solicitorship of this business;-that is not my game " ? That is not true ; 
I never used such language. 
1173. When you asked ham as a solicitor to bring about an amalgamation with Pritchard, what did you 
say ? He agreed to it. That was on the railway station in Melbourne. 
1174. I understood that it was at the Coffee Palace that you had this interview about his acting as 
solicitor ? No, it was at the Coffee Palace that I had the conversation with him regardinr ,  this man 
Pritchard. 
1175. It was at the railway station then that you asked him as a solicitor to negotiate the amalgamation 
with Pritchard, and what did he say to that ? He said he would. 
1116. Was anything said about terms or remuneration ? No, not a word. 
1177. Simply that what he did was as solicitor ? Exactly so. There was no understanding as regards 
terms or anything else. He was to act as solicitor in amalgamating the Melbourne syndicate with which 
I was connected and Mr. Pritchard's. 

• 	1178. 
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1178. Is that the understanding upon which he left you at the railway station ? Yes; that was the U.  Bowman-
time when. I gave him my card,. 
1179. Was there ever any proposal that he should be solicitor to the syndicate ? No, never. 	• 

17r.,1889. 
1180. And was there any proposal that he was to act as solicitor except in bringing about the amalgaronatien 
with Mr. Pritchard ? That is all. 
1181. Nothing else ? Nothing else. 
1182. You say it is not true that Mr. Levien said, "I don't want the solicitorship of this business. That 
is not my game"? I could not have said it to him, because I did not give him the offer. 
1183. Mr. Levien, in his speech, goes on to say, referring to you, "He then said, I believe there is in 
New South Wales a gentleman named Pritchard who attends to things of this sort'" ;-did you say 
that? No. 
1181. Did you at that time know that there was such a man as Mr. Pritchard ? I never heard of him 
before. 
1185. Who first mentioned his name to you ? Mr. Levien. 
1.180. Did you ever have any knowledge of Mr. Pritchard by name, or in any other way, until Mr. LeTien 
mentioned him to you ? Not in the least. 
1187. Did you say to Mr. Levien, "1)0 you think we could get him in" ?-meaning Mr. Pritchard ? I 
did not. I asked to amalgamate the two syndicates. 
1188. Did you say this : "We have the Minister of Justice and the Minister of Public Instruction" ? 
It is a most infamous lie. I never mentioned anything of the sort. 
1189. W bother you said it or whether you did not, is it true that the Minister of Justice and the Minister 
of Public Instruction, or either of them, were at any time connected with you in any way in any syndicate 
or any parties, with the view to leasing the trams? No; it is not. true. 
1190. Or for any other purpose ? No, except as regards my business relations with Mr. Inglis. 
1101. You mean about the tea agency ? Yes ; nothing to do with trams. I never said he had anything 
to do with the trains. I may have said that Mr. Inglis was very kind in getting me information quickly, 
and allowing me to get away from Sydney on the second day. 
1192. Did you tell that to Mr. Levien ? I may have said that in conversation. 
1193. You said, to use your own expression, that that statement of Mr. Levien is an infamous lie ? Yes. 
1191. Here is another expression ;-did you say this to him, " We intend to reserve a good many shares 
for Members of Parliament; but it is the Opposition that we fear " ? I did not. 
1195. Is there a word of truth in the statement that you intended to reserve any shares for anybody-
Members of Parliament or anybody else ? Not a word of truth, either for Members' of Parliament or any 
other persons. 
1190. A.s a matter of fact at that time, what was the state of your share list ? It was considered to be 
in five shares of £10,000 each. 
1197. Had you interviewed any Member of Parliament at that time upon the question ? Except when I 
spoke to Mr. Levien in Melbourne, and to Mr. Inglis in Ids own office, and afterwards at the Colonial 
Secretary's Office, and to Mr. Clarke when I saw him at Mr. Barling's office, I have not spoken to a 
Member of Parliament of New South Wales for four months. 
1198. Those are the only Member4 of Parliament whom you have seen to your knowledge within the last 
three or four months ? Yes. 
11.59. Have you ever spoken to either of them with reference to the probability of any Bill passing to 
authorise the leasing of the tramways ? I never had the -  slightest conversation with them of that kind. 
1200. Had you any knowledge of any shape or form of how their party would vote ? Not the slightest. 
3201. Did you ever make any appointment with Mr. Levien to meet him in Collins-street about trams ? 
No; I did not. 
1202. Anywhere ? Nowhere. 
1203. Near any corner or anywhere else ? Nowhere. 
1201. Is it true that you having made an appointment with him and he being a few minutes late he saw 
y011 going into a hotel and followed you in ? No, I do not recollect ever being in a hotel with him in 
'Melbourne. 
1205. You said you met him at the Coffee Palace ;-how did that come about ? I lunch at the Coffee 
Palace every day, and I met him there. I was going past the place where he was and I might have 
inquired for him I do not know ; I think I inquired for him ; and I found he was in a room ; he was 
sitting writing when I went in. 
1205. When you saw him writincr what did you do ? I went into the room. 
1207. Was it then that you bad the conversation with him which you have detailed ? That is the tune I 
had the conversation with him with regard to Mr. Pritchard. 
1208. Was the meeting at the Coffee Palace by appointment ? No, it was not. 
1.209. Had you ever an appointment to meet lino anywhere ? No. 
1210. I understood you to say that you sent a telegram to Mr. Pritchard, which resulted in the way.you 
have described, and that then you went to see Mr. Levien ? Yes. 
1211. Was that the time that you went to the Coffee Palace ? No ; I saw Mr. Levien at the Coffee 
Palace before. I went to see Mr. Loden when I went back, but lie had gone to the railway station ; but 
I followed him there. 
1212. Before you sent the telegram to Mr. Pritchard did you see Mr. Levien.at the CofTee Palace ? Yes. 
1213. How did that interview come about ? I think I met him by accident ; I do not think it was by 
appointment. I never made ally appointment with Mr. Levieu about the leasing of the trains. 
1211. You met him where ? At the Coffee Palace. 
1215. By accident? By accident. 
1215. What took place on that occasion? It was at the time he told me with regard to Mr. Pritchard, 
1217. The time he told you that Mr. Pritchard was getting up a syndicate ? Yes. 
1218. What did you say to him ? I said that we would amalgamate with Mr. Pritchard if he would with 
us. 
1219. What did he say to that? He told me that Pritchard was here and that he would give mean 
introduction, meaning that he was in Melbourne. 
1220. Then you looked for Mr. Pritchard and found that he had gone to Sydney ? Yes. • 
1221. You went back to look for Mr. Lovien, and found that he was gone ? Yes. 

1222.. 
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fit. Il.priman. 1222. Then you went to the railway station and found him, and gave him your card ? Yes. 
Mr. 1223. . Lamb.) Were those two interviews both on the same day ? That I could not tell you. I met 

17  0:an : t 1680. Mr. Levien at the railway station, either On the same day or on the next day. 
1224. President.] As I understood you, you first met Mr. Lovien on the Menton° Racecourse, where you 
were introduced ? That is true. 
1225. At that time there was no arrangement as I understand between you and him to meet again? Not 
the slightest. 
1226. The next time you met him was on the racecourse at Flemington? Yes. 
1227. Nothing took place there ? Nothing. 
1228. Had you any talk with him at Flemington about the trains ? Never, that I recoiled. 
1229. The next time you met him it was at the Coffee Palace ? Yes. I may have had an appointment 
with Mr. Levien with reference to horse-racing, but never with regard to trains. 

AFFIDAVIT. 
The following affidavit was subsequently forwarded to the President of the Commission by Mr. Bowman ;— 
I, ilosscr Bowls/G.1, of 20, King-street, in the City of Melbourne, in the Colony of Victoria, tea merchant, do solemnly 
and sincerely declare as follows :— 

I. I have read tlae speech of the Hon. James Inglis, late Minister of !Instruction in New South Wales Parliament, as 
reported in the Hattavd, under date of 18th December, 1888, p. 1247, in which it is stated :—" I took an agency from him 
when I started business here myself, which I held for some time, and did not think the agency was good enough. We were 
not satisfied with the terms on which Mr. Bowman was carrying out his pledges to us, and we gave up the agency of our 
own free will. From that until now—six or seven years—I have had nothing whatever to do with Mr. Bowman ; I know 
nothing of him." And at p. 1248 :—"I do not know much about him ; I only know that I had some tea transactions with 
him six or seven years ago, and as they wore not very satisfactory 1 gave up his agency." 

2. The allegation that Messm. Inglis and Brown gave up tire said agency of their own free will is absolutely untrue, 
and without any foundation, and the fact is that I withdrew the agency from them because I was not satisfied with the 
manner with which they conducted the same. 

3. The allegation that from the time Messrs. Inglis and Brown ceased to act as my agents he, the said James Inglis, 
had had nothing to do with Inc for six or seven, years is also untrue ; and I say the fact is that my agency with the said 
firm commenced on January 12th, 1882, and was continued up to 14th April, 1885, and the agency transactions during that 
time exceeded £11,000. After the said Messrs. Inglis and Brown had ceased to act as my said agents they sent me further 
orders for tea, which I declined to execute, and referred them to my Sydney agents. 

And.). make this solemn declaration, conscientiously believing the EWER to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of 
an Act of the Parliament of Victoria rendering persons making a false declaration punishable for wilful and corrupt perjury. 
Declared at Melbourne, in the Colony of Victoria, this 	 ROBERT BOWMAN. 

21st day of January, 1889, before me,— 
HENRI P. FERCIL, 

One of Her Majesty's Justices cf the Peace in and for the Central Bailiwick of the Colony of Victoria. 

James Ebenezer Tonkin, M.P., called in, sworn, and examined:- 
3'. B. Tonkin, 1230. President.] You arc one of the Members for East Macquarie in the Legislative Assembly, and have 

M.P. 	been so for sonic years, I believe ? Yes ; I have been a Member for about two years. 
1231. I believe you were present and took part in the debates on the tram-leasing question on the 12th, 

17  Jan. ; 1889' 13th, 14th, and 18th of December last ? Yes. I do not know whether I spoke on it. 
1232. You made some slight interjections, and were present and took part in that sense ? Yes. 1 Was 
not present on the night of the division on the question ; I was ill. I was there until the morning. 
1233. Of course you know what we are hero for—what we are inquiring about. You know that during 
that debate general charges, and one specific charge, affecting Members of Parliament generally, and you 
know that we are inquiring whether there is any truth ia these charges or not ? Exactly. 
1234. Can you give us any information or tell us anything that will throw any light upon this matter ? 
No. 
1235. Do you of your own knowledge know of anything ? Nothing at all. 
1236. Do you know where we can get any information to throw any light upon it? Excepting from Mr. 
Clarke, the Minister of Justice. I should think he could give you some information. 
1.237. Can you tell us why you think Mr. Clarke can give us any information ? No ; only I fancy he is 
connected with the trains in Victoria, and from that reason I fancy he had something to do with, or knew 
something about, the leasing of these trains here. 
1238. What do you mean by saying that you fancy he had something to do with the trains in Victoria ? 
He told me he had a large interest in the trains in Victoria. 
1239. The Melbourne trams ? Yes. 
1240. When did lie tell you that ? It was some months ago. -We were over in Melbourne together. It 
was on the occasion when a lot of us were going to Broken Hill. 
1241. Do you remember how long ago it was ? I think it must be four or five months ago. I could get 
the date of that from Mr. De Convey Browne. 
1242. Why do you think from that that Mr. Clarke would know anything about our tram business ? 
Well, of course, it is all a surmise on my part. I believe that this was a fraud—this attempt to sell the 
tramways. 
1243. Which tramways ? Our trams 
1244 Which attempt do you mean ? I mean the attempt to lease them for forty-five years—the proposi-
tion before the louse; and from that I inferred that certain Members of Parliament were interested in 
the leasing of these trams, certainly that Mr. Clarke was one of them. I have no reason to think so any 
more than from my own imagination. 
1245. You say that you think the attempt to lease the trams for forty-five years was a fraud ;—why do you 
think that ? Because I do not think there was publicity enough given in calling for tenders. I think 
that in such a gigantic undertaking as that, tenders ought to have been called for in other parts of the 
world besides the colonies. That is one reason. Another reason is the peculiarity of the specification. 
1246. In what respect? In respect of a certain kind of cable tram that, I am informed, was in the hands 
of only one party. They had the patent for the colonies. 
1247. What part of the specification do you refer to ? I refer to the laying down of a certain style of 
cable trams—mentioning a certain kind of cable. 
1248. The specification provides that the lessee shall lay down a certain style of cable tram? Yes ; of 
which, I am informed, a certain company have the patent for the colonies, 	 1249. 
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use a particular cable tram ? Yes. 
1251. And you say that that particular kind of cable tram is one to the use of which the Melbourne 17 Jan., 1889. 
Tramway Company have the exclusive right ? That is what I am informed, and I believe it to be correct. 
I do not know of my own knowledge that that is a fact, but I am informed that it is the case, and I 
believe it. 
1252. Have you any other reason for supposing it was a fraud ? Only the extraordinary time mentioned 
in the specification. 
1253. Do you mean the short time ? No, the long time. The forty-five years. 
1254. Why should it be an element of fraud because it was forty-five years ? Well, I think it is out of 
all reason. 
1255. Do you mean not business-like or fraudulent? Not business-like, at any rate. It is just what 
anybody would do in writing out a specification if they wanted to have some advantage in getting the 
contract themselves. 
1256. Now, you say that Mr. Clarke told you that he was largely interested in the Melbourne Tramway 
Company ? Yes. 
125e. From what is it that you suppose he is mixed up in this fraud, as you call it ? It is only any own 
imagination ; have no reason. 
1258. But how do you arrive at that conclusion ? Well, I know that Mr. Clarke is a great speculator. 
He goes into everything and anything in the shape of syndicates of all kinds, and I naturally put it down 
that he was in this one. 
1259. In which one ? In the tenders for the leasing. 
1260. Which syndicate do you mean? In the Melbourne one. 
1261. Do you only conclude that because he was a large shareholder in the Melbourne Tramway Com-
pany P Principally ; and from his speculating proclivities. I know he is in for anything-any specula-
tion of any kind-mining or anything else. 
1262. Have you any other reason, from what you have heard, except that he is a great speculator, and 
largely interested in the Melbourne tramways ?. Not except that. 
1263. Beyond that you do not know that he is interested in any syndicate at all ? No, not in these 
syndicates. I know he is interested in mining syndicates. 
1264. Do you know of any other Member of Parliament who is in any way implicated? No. 
1265. Do you know of any overtures being made to any Member of Parliament, of your own knowledge ? 
No. 
1266. With the exception of what occurred in the House, (lid you ever hear of any? No, not of any 
overtures. A. party came to me one day and asked me to take shares in the Sydney syndicate that was 
then being formed, and he sent me the articles of association. 
1267. Was that the Burns-Philps syndicate ? I do not know. I did not bother with it. I have got the 
articles of association in any office; but I got them from Mr. Harvey, who As a mining agent in the 
Exchange. 
1268. Who is the party who came and asked you ? Harvey, the mining agent. 
1269. What interest would he have in it-simply a commission ? No; he had a large number of shares 
in it himself. 
1270. But was it some of his own shares that he wanted you to take . Yes. 
3.271. At what terms were you to take them ? No privilege was to be given to me. 
1272. You wore simply to take them as a member of the public ? Simply to take them as a member of 
the public, 
1278. As I understand, Mr. Harvey was a holder of some shares, and trying to get rid of some of them 
to you on the same terms as to any member of the public ? Yes. 
1274. Did he ask a premium for them ? No. 
1275. You were to have them at par ? Yes. 
1276. Do you know which tramway syndicate that was ? I cannot say. 
1277. Mr. Lamb.] Do you know Who was the director or secretary ? I would know the names if they 
were read. 
1278. President.] Was Huntley the secretary ? Yes, I think he was. 
1279. Do you know anything at all beyond what you have told us about your suspicion of Clarke ? No. 
1280. Can you tell me apart from your suspicions of Clarke, or give us any information, or put us upon 
the scent of anything that would throw light upon this matter at all ? No, I cannot. 
1281. Can you suggest any person we ought to call ? No. 
1282. Except you say, Mr. Clarke? Mr. Haynes, of course-all the parties who have made statements 
in the House, though that you know as well as I do. 
1283. I am not now upon the question whether Mr. Clarke had shares in the Melbourne Tramway 
Company, because he has a perfect right. to have them if he likes; but suppose Mr. Clarke on oath stated 
that he had 110 interest in any syndicate for the purpose of leasing our trams, either directly or indirectly, 
what would you say to that? I should have to accept it as a fact. 
1284. That would be, if true, a complete answer to your suspicions? Yes. 
1285. And suppose we had ascertained and knew all the persons who were interested in the Melbourne 
syndicate, and that Mr. Clarke's name was not amongst them ? That may be accounted for in this way, 
that he may hold shares that have not been transferred through the books. I admit that he might hold 
shares in another persons name, But at that time he told me he had these shares. They may not have been 
transferred. So far as that is concerned, I think any Member of Parliament, if he wanted to interest 
himself in the purchase of those trams would be very foolish if he had his name on the list. 
.1286. Are you quite sure that the specification provides for this particular kind of tram that you have 
mentioned ? I am informed so. I did not see the specification myself. 
1287. Mr. Lamb.] Did Mr. Harvey tell you that he had shares in that company ? Yes. He told me that 
he was the holder of some shares, and he wanted me to take some of them. 
1288. President.] Did you take the shares, or any of them? No. 

1219. Which company is that ? The Melbourne Tramway Company. 	 J. E. Tonkin, 
1250. I understand you to say that the specification for leasing the trams provided that the lessees must 	M.P. 

THURSDAY; 
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THURSDAY, 24 JANUARY, 1889. 
Vrtnent 

	

C. E. PILCHER, If 	Q.C., P - RESIDENT, 
E. W. KNOX, ESQ., 	 I 	ALFRED LAMB, ESQ. 

THE PRESIDENT IN THE CHAIR. 
George Smith Duncan called in and sworn :- 

G. S. D Litman. 1280. President] What is your name ? George Smith Duncan. 
247Tan., 1889. 1290. I believe you are the engineer to the -Melbourne Tramway Company ? No; to the Melbourne 

Tramway Trust, a municipal body, formed from the different municipal corporations. 
1291. Then, in point of fact, you are a municipal officer, and have no connection with the Tramway Com-
pany at all 	No; no connection whatever. 
1292. They are quite distinct ? Yes, quite. 
1293. Do you know Mr. David Proudfoot ? Yes ; I do. 
1291. Had you a conversation with him some time ago in Melbourne with reference to the leasing of 
the Sydney trams ? Mr. Proudfoot called at my office about 12 o'clock. 
1295. Your office in Melbourne, you mean? Yes ; Queen-street, Melbourne, and he was there for a 
very short time indeed, and the conversation he had was of a very general nature ; in fact so general 
that I could not repeat to you any details of what took place. 
1296. Can you give the substance of it ? Well, I don't think I can. It was of such a general nature 
that there was nothing sufficient to impress it upon me. 
1297. What was the effect of it ? Well, I cannot tell you what the conversation was. He was only 
there for a few minutes, and we talked in a general way. There was nothing distinctive about the 
conversation to impress it upon inc. 
1298. Did you tell Mr. Proudloot in that conversation, or at any ether time, that the company you were 
working for had got the tramways of Sydney ? I. never made such a remark to Mr. Proudfoot. 
1299. Or anything like it ? No, I did not. 
1300. Did you say "It is a settled fact; all the details have been agreed to, and it simply remains for 
the agreement to be drawn up. lain speaking from what I know as a fact, because I am one of the 
syndicate" ? lsro; I did not. 
1301. Nor anythin g 	it? No, I did net; I made no such statement. 
1302. Did you tell Mr. Pilcher that the Sydney Tramways had been leased to your company or to any 
syndicate with which you were connected, and all that remained was for the agreement to be signed, or 
anything to that effect ? No ; I did not. 
1303. Did you say anything that could lead him to suppose that you meant that, or intended to convey 
it ? No, I did not ; I made no statement at all connected with the Sydney tramways. 
1301. Did you, as a matter of fact, at that time belong to any syndicate ? Well; I will tell you my 
position with regard to the Melbourne Tramway Company. They did form a syndicate to negotiate for 
The Sydney tramways, and they came to um to see if I would act as engineer. TO the event of :heir 
getting them I was to have an interest in it, but I had nothing to do with the negotiations between the 
Govermneut of New South Wales and themselves. At the time Mr. Proudfoot called I had not the 
slightest idea what had taken place-whether the company had seen the Government here, or whether 
any negotiations had transpired between it and the Government. 
1305. When you say the company you mean the syndicate ? Yes, I mean the Melbourne Tramway Com-
pany, and I dat know whether anymeootiations had taken place between the syndicate and the Guvern-
ment. It was part of the arrangement, that I was to build the lines for them if they obtained the lease, 
and have an interest in it afterwards. 
1306. Was that arrangement made between you and the tramway syndicate-I must call it the tramway 
syndicate-prior to your meeting Mr. Proudfoot ? Well, we had a conversation. The matter was merely 
mentioned in the way of approaching negotiations. 
1307. Then I understand that the whole of your negotiations with the Melbourne tramway syndicate was 
tit& in. the event of your obtaining the lease you were to act as engineer and take a small interest ; 
beyond that, did you know anything at all of the arrangements between the syndicate and the Govern-
ment? No, I did not. I did not attend any of their meetings, and had no correspondence with them 
about their negotiations with the Government. 
1308. But beyond that you know nothing of the relations or negotiations of the Melbourne tramway 
syndicate with the Government of New South Wales ? No, nothing whatever. 
1309. Did you have any conversation with Mr. Proudfoot about the gentlemen who were associated with 
yon in the Melbourne syndicate ? No; I made no statement whatever to Mr. Proudfoot about anyone in 
connection with the syndicate. 
1310. Did you mention any name ? No; I did not. 
1311. Did you mention the name of Mr. Collier or Mr. Cain, Mr. Rowan, or Mr. Robertson ? No. 
1312. None of them ? No. 
1313. Did you say in any way or talk in any way as to who had negotiated the matter between the 
Melbourne Tramway syndicate and the Government of New South Wales ? No. 
1314. Can you call to mind whether you had any conversation with Mr. Proudfoot about the Sydney 
tramways ? Well, if I had, it must have been in a very general way, because I could not tell you 
anything of importance that would recall it. It may have been mentioned generally, but so generally 
that I cannot recall the words that may have been used. 
1315. Then, as I understand, you cannot even undertake to say that you had a conversation about the 
Sydney tramways ? No; I could neither say that I had or that I had not. 
1316. But if you had it was of such unimportance that it made no impression on your mind ? Yes ; 
that is it. 
1317. Did you mention any member of the Ministry of New South Wales as being connected in any way 
with the Melbourne tramway syndicate ? No ; I did not. 
1318. Did you mention the name of any Minister? No. 
1310. Did you mention any Minister without the name ? No. 
13,20. Did you mention the name of Mr. Clarke ? No; I did not. 	 1321. 
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1319. Or did Mr. Proudfoot mention it ? No. 	 G. S. Duncan. 
1320. Did you know Mr. Clarke ? I did not know who he was at all. 
1321. Did you know the name of the late Minister for Justice here ? No. 	 21 Jan., 1889. 
1322. You did not know whether his name was Brown, Jones, or Robinson ? No, I did not. 
1323. Did you k.now that a gentleman of the name of Clarke was the Minister for -justice ? No; I did not 
know the name of a single member of the Ministry of New South Wales at that time, excepting Mr. 
Sutherland. 
1324. But since then you have heard that the Minister for Justice was Mr. Clarke ? Yes ; I have read 
it in the debates. 
1325. I suppose you knew Sir Henry Parkes ? Yes; • I knew the name of Sir Henry Parkes. 
1326. But you did not know the name of Mr. Clarke? No, I did not. 
1327. Nor of Mr. Inglis? No. 
1328. I want to ask you whether it is true,—and in answering my question I want you to consider 
whether you said this or said anything that would justify anybody making such a statement,—is it true 
that you were most emphatic in your conversation with Mr. Proudfoot about all the details having been 
settled, and that the only thing that remained to be said was the drawing up of the agreement ; is that 
true, or anything like it? No; no such statement was ever made. 
1329. But was anything said that could have been twisted into that ? No. 
1330. Is it true that you led him to believe that it was a settled thing, as far as your friends and the 
Sydney Government were concerned ? No. 
1331. Is it true that you led him to believe that as regarded this particular transaction of the trams and 
tramways of Sydney and the suburbs were going to the Melbourne syndicate ? No. 
1332. quite apart from what you led him to believe, or what he said to you, can you tell us whether you, 
yourself, understood, or believed that it was a settled thing that the Melbourne syndicate was to have 
a lease of the Sydney trams ? No; I never understood that there was any approaching settlement. 
1333. How did you understand that the lease of the Sydney tramways was to be obtained, assuming 
Parliament sanctioned it ? I always believed that tenders would be called for in the usual way. 
1331. Is it true that you learned your profession from, or were under, Mr. Prondfoot at any time? Yes. 
I was connected with him about 18 years ago ; I was assistant-engineer of the first railway constructed in 
New Zealand. Mr. Proudfoot was promoter of that line •; but since then I have had no connection with 
Mr. Proudfoot at all, although he has asked me to do work for him. 
1335. Is it true that you had no reason to tell Mr. Prondfoot anything that was incorreet, because you 
were a young fellow who had learned your profession upon his contracts in New Zealand, and that it 
came voluntarily from you ? No, it is quite untrue. Since I worked for him in New Zealand Mr. 
Proudfoot has asked me to do things for him, but I have had no connection whatever with him ; in the 
meantime I did not learn my profession with him, although it might have been part of my training, 
because I was young at the time. However I was trained In quite a different school. 

WEDNESDAY, 9 JANUARY, 1889. 

tircurn1:— 
C. E. FILCHER, Esq., q.C., PRESIDENT, 

E. W. KNOX, ESQ., 	 ALFRED LAMB, ESQ. 
THE PRESIDENT IN THE CHAIR. 

:Joseph Bailing, further examined:— 
1336. President.] Can you give us the date of the first negotiations with the Government about the j . Barll og . 
leasing of the trains ? You will find all the correspondence with regard to the leasing of the trams in the 
Parliamentary paper which I hand in to the Commission. • 	 9 Jan., 1888. 
1337. These papers include the negotiations which took place with a Melbourne firm before the tenders 
were called for, and shows the whole of the transactions ? Yes, so far as I am aware. The papers were 
not compiled by me, but were prepared, I presume, in the Railway Office. 
1338. This paper, which was ordered to be printed on the 10th April, 1888, is a 
RETURN to an Order of the Honorable the Legislative Assembly of New South Wales, dated 29th February, 1888, That 

there be laid upon the Table of this House,— 
" (1.) A copy of all minutes, letters, correspondence, documents, &e., between the Government and the Melbourne 
Tramway Company, or any other Company, or person or persons, in reference to leasing the Government Tramways 
or this Colony. 
" (2.) Also, copies of all correspondence, minutes, Sic., between the Coverm»ent and any Company, or person or 
persons, in reference to using electricity or any other motive-power to work the Tramways of this Colony." 

Does it show the whole of the transactions as far as you are aware between the Government and any 
persons in reference to the leasing of the tramways ? Yes. 
1339. Can you give its the dates in connection with the calling for tenders ? The first Gazette notice is 
dated the 15th October, and the tenders were to be received by the 15th November. Then by Gazette 
notice dated the 12th November the time for the tenders to be sent in was extended to the 29th 
November. Then by a Gazette notice dated the 28th November the time for sending in the tenders was 
further extended to Thursday the 13th December. 

25—G 	 APPENDICES. 
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ROYAL COMMISSION ON ALLEGED ATTEMPTED BRIBERY OF MEMBERS 
OF PARLIAMENT. 

APPENDICES. 

A. 

ACCOMPANYING their tender for the Metropolitan Tramways, the undersigned desire to state that if it be accepted they :  
propose to immediately commence converting, as far as practicable, the present motor system into cable tramways in the 
constrnetion and working of which they have experience, and for which they holi all the necessary patents for New South 
Wales. 

At an early date they will invite the co-operation of the public by a large distribution of shares. 
They have arranged for the purchase of the Sydney Tramway and Omnibus Company's plant and business, so that 

the wants of the travelling public may be supplied while alterations are being made in the Tramway construction. 
T. B. CLAP. P. 
JENKIN COLLIER. 
JOHN WOODS. 
W. G. SPRIGG. 
ANDREW ROWAN. 

Sydney, 13/12/88. 	 WILLIAM CAIN. 

Address qo Sydney Tamway & Omnibus Co. (Limited), King-street, Sydney. 

Before Ms HONOR JUDGE QUINLAN. 

Brow reading the notice of application for the release of the estate of the above-named Robert Bowman from sequestration and 
the several affidavits of the said Robert Bowman and of Montague Cohen and Maurice Goldsmith sworn and filed herein, and 
the release and acceptance of composition and agreement for composition annexed to the affidavit of the said Maurice Goldsmith ; 
and upon heftrinif

t' 
 the solicitor for the said Robert Bowman (no one appearing in opposition to the said application), and it 

appearing to this Court that three.fourtlis in number and value of the creditors who have proved debts by writing under their 
hands have actually accepted the offer of composition in the said release and acceptance of composition and agreement for 
composition mentioned, and that such composition has been paid to the creditors who have so accepted the said composition. 
And this Court being satisfied that the terms of the said offer have been complied with by the said insolvent, and that the 
acceptance of the same has not been procured by him or anyone on his behalf to his knowledge or belief by any fraudulent 
or undue means or influence or to the knowledge of one creditor over another, this Court dote order that the estate of the 
said Robert Bowman be and the same is hereby released Irons sequestration. 

Given under the Seal of the Court, this twenty-eighth day of May, one thousand eight hundred and eighty.six. 
By the Court, 

LLB.) 	 CHAS. P. WLLITAMS, 
Chief Clerk. 

I certify this to be a true and correct copy of the original order of which it purports to be a copy,— 
Dated this sixteenth day of January, 1889. 	 GEO. BELL, Chief Clerk. 

C. 
I, PATRICK PIGOTT, of McConnell-street, Kensington, in the Colony of Victoria, trainer, do solemnly and sincerely declare as 
follows :— 

1. On the day before the Menton° Races, about the time of the Melbourne Cup Meeting, in answer to a telegram from 
R. H. Levien, Esq., of Sydney, solicitor, I called upon him at the Federal Coffee Palace, Collins-street, West Melbourne, and in 
course of conversation I stated that I had a parcel for Mr. Robert Bowman, of King•street, Melbourne, tea merchant. Mr. 
Levien asked me if that was the Mr. Bowman who had been a Member of Parliament ; I said, "Yes." He said he would like 
to know him. 

2. On the following day I drove to the Montane Racecourse with the said R. H. Lesion, and: there met Mr. Robert 
Bowman, and at the request of Mr. Lorton I spoke to Mr. Bowman and asked him if I might introduce Mr. Leiden to him. 
He asked who Mr. ',evict' was. I informed him that lie was a solicitor of large practise in Sydney, and a Member of 
Parliament. I then introduced Mr. Levien to Mr. Bowman, and remained with them until they separated in the course of a 
few minutes, during which time the conversation was of a general character, and on the invitation of Mr. Levicn we .there 
had a glass of wine together. 

And 1 make this solemn declaration, conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of an 
Act of the Parliament of Victoria, rendering persons making a false declaration punishable for wilful and corrupt perjury. 

Declared at Melbourne, in the Colony of Victoria, this fourteenth day of 1 	 PATRICK PIGOTT. 
January, one thousand eight hundred and eight-s- -nin e, before me,— 5 

A. W. HANLON, 
One of Her Majesty's Justices of the Peace in and for the CentralBailiwick of the Colony of Victoria. 

B. 

The Insolvency Statute, 1871. 
In the Court of Insolvency, at Melbourne (Central District.) 

In the matter of Robert Bowman, of 26, King-street, Melbourne, in the Colony of Victoria, tea merchant (trading as R. 
Bowman & CO). 

D. 
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Cowlishaw, Mahon, Clarke 
Burns, James 
Aretuer, John 
Stokes C. F. 
McEaCharn, Donald Malcolm 
Wilson, David 
Nicholson, James B. 
Smith, Robert Henry 
Wallace, It. B. 
Wood, J. 
Hoffnung, Abraham 
Mort, J. fAidley 
Durham, George 
Welch, J. St. Vincent 
Johnson, Lewis Alexander 
Kemp, Francis 
Cruidkshank, William Douglas 
Broomfield, John 
Hudson, Robert 
Hudson, Henry 
Pollock, Robert 
Pickburn, Thomas James 
Curtis, Frederick 

APPENDICES. 

D. 

Bond, George 
Franki, J. P. 
Gillespie, Thomas 
Paling, W. H. 
Munro, George (cancelled) 
Walsh, John 
Orr, James 
Meeks, A. W. 
Herring, Leslie George 
Cliff, J. D. 
Trickett, Oliver 
Bliss, James Currie 
Iluxtable, Dr. L. R. (cancelled) 
Saywell, Thomas 
Halyard, C. A. M. 
Hineheliffe, John 
Collier, Alfred Henry 
McPherson, John 
Boar, Moritz 
Johnstone, A. 
Morice, NV., junr. 
Mode°, W., senr. 
Fishburn, George 
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:— 
Ferguson, J. W. 
Angus, James 
Harris, Henry (of Harris & Ackman) 
Stokes, Henry 
Frazer, H. C. 
Meldrum, Alexander 
Brooks, William 
Curry, Archibald 
Harris & Ackman 
Tither, F. NV. 
Smith, J. 
Carson, William 
Barnett, A. 
Levy, L. 
Wright, F. A. 
Philp, Robert 
Burns, Philp, & Co. 
Robinson, T. B. 
Rolin, T. B. 
Mitchell, J. R. 
Jackson, F. NV, 
Forsyth, Adam 
Phillips, R. M. 

THE following is a full list of the sharehold era in the N.S.W. Tramway Company 

Sydney : Charles Potter, Government Printer.-1889. 
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1839. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

MR. THOMAS WALKER, M.P. 
. • (CORONER'S VERDICT OF MURDER AGAINST, IN TORONTO.) 

Ordered by the Legislative Assembly to be printed, 8 Marc?;, 18S. 

Memorandum by The Colonial Secretary to The Inspector-General of Polled. 
[Confidential.] 	 Colonial Secretary's Office, Sydney, 26 April, 1887. 
THE printed matter on other side has been sent to me from Sandhurst (Victoria). It would appear from 
the letter signed " F. Fenton" that the verdict of the coroner's inquest at Toronto against 'Walker 
(Thomas Walker, Esq., M.P.) was "murder," and that Ile absconded. 

I think, in justice to the Legislative Assembly and to Mr. Walker himself as a member of that body, 
the Inspector-General should communicate with the authorities in Canada to ascertain the real facts, it 
appears that a copy of the depositions can be obtained on a small charge from Mr. Fenton; but I assume 
that the best way will be to communicate with the Canadian Police. 

HENRY PARKES. 

[Enclosures.] 
[Melbourne Herald, August 17, 1883.1 

Mn. WALKER AND THE SPIRITUALISTS. 

To the Editor of the Herald. 
Sir, 

My attention has only just been called to Mr. Thomas Walker's letter, published in your journal of the 10th 
instant, wherein he imputes malicious motives to spiritualists generally, and hints at what he ii pleased to call a libel (1) 
against him having emanated from "Russell-street." Individually, I do not know where you got your information from 
re Toronto Mail paragraph, or whether your informant was a spiritualist, but this I do know, that Mr. Walker has been 
treated with great consideration by all the prominent spiritualists I am acquainted with, who, instead of opposing him, 
have simply held aloof from him, save when attacked by him. You are aware that when your reporter called upon me 
three days after the publication of the matter referred to, asking if I could - furnish information on the subject, I told him 
I had documents cndorsive of the fact that a coroner's jury had -found Mr. Walker guilty of causing the death of Saunders, 
but declined to allow him either the papers or a copy of them for publication. These documents were sent to me by a 
friend, have been in my possession about three months, and in all probability would have remained unpublished had Mr. 
Walker been content to leave those who have been his best friends alone. As, however, he still continues to malign them, 
I see no reason for suppressing the official information relative to the Toronto inquest, and therefore place the papers at 
your service. • Yours, &e., 

W. II. TERRY. • 
84, Russell-street, Melbourne, 16 August. 

['We shall deal with these papers in due time. Mr. Terry's statement as to our reporter calling on him is quite 
correct —ED. R.] 

[Melbourne Herald, August 22, 18831 

In his last letter in our columns it will be remembered that Mr. Walker referred to a local spiritualist from Russell' 
street. Mr. Terry, feeling that he was the party referred to, wrote a letter, which we published, placing at our disposal 
certain papers connected with the charge against Mr. Walker, which were. in his possession. We give copies of these 
documents in another column. Mr. Walker, in his last letter, dwelt strongly on the fact that the newspaper reports of 
what took place were of the "Three Black Crows" order. Now, however, we have for the first time the actual verdict of 
the jury, and it is stronger than anything we have yet seen in print ; coining as this does, from the Coroner, there can be 
nothing of the "Three Black Crows" nature about it. The grave charge against Mr. Walker, in which the Coroner's jury 
declare that the phosphorus had been ignited for the purpose of deception, is therefore now, for the first time, officially 
formulated in the Colony, and we shall be glad to learn if there is any further defence to it than that already made by Mr. 
Walker. The " Three Black Crows" and the unreliability of newspaper writers will not now avail. The dates mentioned 
fully bear out Mr. Walker's statements as to the period which elapsed between the date of the occurrence and the death of 
Saunders. 

29—A 
Tao 
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THE CHARGES AGAINST MR. WALKER. 

THE following are copies of the papers referred to by Mr. Terry in his letter in our columns of Friday Inst. They 
have been copied by one of our staff from the originals in Mr. Terry's hands. 

. Both the letters are addressed to " Thomas litLear, Esq.," of Toronto, a well known publisher and a. friend of 
Mr. Terry's, to whom Mr. Terry wrote for information relative to the Saunders affair. The first letter is from Dr. Ricklel, of 
Toronto, the coroner who held the inquest on the body of Saunders. The second letter, which is written on the official note-
paper of the County Crown Attorney at Toronto, is from Mr. 1'. Fenton, the County Crown Attorney, in whose office the 
inquest papers are filed. This is the first official information in the matter we have seen, and sets out for the first time in this 
colony what the verdict of the jury really was :— 

Thomas flour, Esq., Toronto. 
Dear Sir, 	 Toronto, 25 March, 1883. 

In reply to your question whether the report of the inquest held by me on the 8th and 9th October, 1874, on the 
body of one John Saunders, published in the Globe about that time, was generally correct, I Into to say that at this distance 
of time it is impossible for me to tell particularly, as it is probable that I never read it. As shown in evidence at the inquest 
Walker had caused the injuries that led to Saunders' death, and a verdict tantamount to manslaughter was rendered by the 
jury against him. He escaped from the country, or would, have been committed for trial under my warrant. The original 
papers are on file at the County Crown Attorney's Office. Mr. Fenton would doubtless let you see them. Walker was 
shown to be an imposter, and it is a pity he frustrated the ends of justice by leaving Canada. As a dopy of the verdict might 
be of service to your friend, I give it below as follows, leaving the verbiage that red tape and lawyers' prolixity require as the 
preamble out. 

The jury upon their oath say : That the said John Saunders, on the 6th day of October, A.D. 1874, came to his death 
from the effects of certain burns inflicted while attempting to extinguish some burning phosphorus at Richard O'Brien's 
hotel, Front-street, in the said city of Toronto, on the 16th day of September, AD. 1874 which said phosphorus had been 
ignited by one Walker, for the purpose of deception, he ',Mending to he able, as a spiritualistic medium, to answer questions 
and delineate faces of spirits in fire by virtue of his gifts as such medium; and that therefore the said Walker feloniously 
caused the death of the said John Saunders. 

I think Walker's Christian name was not known to the witnesses. 
Saunders' family live on the hanks of the Don, Riverside, opposite T. Davis's brewery. 
1: shall send your letter re inquest on Saunders to Mr. Fenton, who may probably take steps to provide Walker with a 

free passage from Melbourne to Toronto. 
If I can be of any further use to you or your friend, kindly let me know. 

Very truly yours, 
A. A. RIDDEL, Coroner, 

City of Toronto. 

Office of the County Crown Attorney, County of York, Toronto Court-house, 29 March, 1883. 
Dear Sir, 

lie inquest on John Smolders, Dr. Riddeb Coroner of this City, has handed me your letter to him of 24th instant, 
as to this matter, as the orignial papers wore filed in my office. The evidence taken at the inquest and the verdict of the jury 
show clearly that Saunders died from the effects of the phosphorus ignited by Walker, and the inquest papers are indorsed 
" Queen v. Walker (Booster), prisoner absconded." If you desired copy of the full evidence, verdict and other papers of the 
inquest duly certified under my official seal, the costs will be 3 dollars, es the evidence is very fully taken down. Please let 
me hear from you. Yours truly, 
Thomas M`Loar, Esq., 15 'Adelaide-street, E. Toronto. 	 F. FENTON. 

The Inspector-General of Police, New South Wales, to The Chief Constable, 
Toronto. 

Sir, 	 Now South Wales, 20 April, 1887. 
I do myself the honor to request that you will furnish me with all information in your power 

relating to the following case:— 
On the 8th and 9th .  of October, 1874, all inquest was (1 am informed) held in your city by 

A. A. Rabid, Esq., Coroner, upon the body of one "John Saunders," a verdict being returned to this 
effect :—" The jury, upon their oath, say that the said John Saunders, on the lith day of October, Ain. 1874, 
came to his death from the effects of certain burns inflicted while attempting to extinguish some burning 
phosphorus, at Richard O'Brien's Hotel, Front-street, in the said. City of Toronto, on the lath day of 
September, 1874, which said phosphorus had been ignited by one Walker, for the purpose of deception, 
be pretending to be able as a spiritualistic medium to answer questions, and delineate faces of spirits in 
lire, by virtue of his gifts as such medium, and that therefore the said Walker feloniously caused the 
death of the said John Saunders." Walker's Christian name was apparently not disclosed at the inquest, 
but no doubt you could ascertain it. 

I am further informed that the inquest papers are endorsed "Queen versus Walker—Murder-
Prisoner absconded—Re having escaped from the country to evade committal for trial." 

Aliv object in addressing you is to request you to furnish me with duly authenticated copies of all 
proceedings and documents in the case referred to, together with such particulars regarding Walker as 
may be known to the police, and establish his identity. 

This information is required for a public purpose by the Government of this Colony, and I need 
scarcely add that any charges entailed in supplying the same will be promptly remitted to you upon 
receipt of your reply. 

The favor of your early attention will greatly oblige. 
I have, &e. 

EllilIND FOS BERY, 
Inspector-General of Police of New South Wales. 

[Confidential.] 
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[Confidential.] 
Memorandum by The Inspector-General of Police to The Colonial Secretary. 

Re inquest held at Toronto, Canada, on one John Saunders, Verdict—Murder against one "Walker.'' 
Police Department, Inspector-General's Office, 

Sydney, 23 August, 1887. 
HEREWITH I bog leave to submit to the Colonial Secretary the reply this day received from the Chief of 
Police at Toronto, Canada, to my letter of the 2fith of April last on the above subject, also certified 
copies of the depositions taken at the inquest, and other documents. 

Before remitting the amount of the charges, as per account enclosed, I should be glad to be 
informed if Sir Henry .Parkes desires that I should make any further communication on the subject to 
the authorities at Toronto. 

I return all the papers sent to me by the Colonial Secretary. 
EDMUND TOSBERY, 

Inspector-General of Police. 
[Enclosures.] 

Chief Constable's Office, Toronto, Canada, 5 July, 1887. 
In re John Saunders. 

The Inspector-General of Police, Sydney, New South Wales. 
Sir, 

In 'tidy to your letter of 20th April last, I have now the honor to forward a certified copy of the inquest held 
upon John Saunders in -October, 1.874, obtained from the County Crown Attorney, together with a note to myself stating his 
inability to discover ft trther particulars relating to the endonalion on the inquest papers. The police departmental records 
give no further information on the subject, which has remained dormant since Walker absconded. Both the coroner and 
Crown counsel alluded to being dead am afraid there is no official connected with the case who could throw any light on the 
so Ned,. 

Enclosed please find memo, of charges for the certified copy of inquest. 
3. have, ke., 

H. J. GRASETT, 
• 	Chief Constable. 

Dominion of Canada, Province of Ontario,} 
County of York, to wit. 

I, GEORGE WASHINGTON BADHEROW, of the City of Toronto, in the COnnty of York, County Crown Attorney of the said 
CORDV, do hereby certify : That in the ten pages hereunto annexed is contained a true copy of the depositions and verdict in 
and all other papers in connection with an inquest held by Dr. Archibald Alexander Riddel, one of the coroners of the said 
county, on the body of John Saunders, deceased, on the 8th and 9th days of October, A.D. 1874, at the said City of Toronto. 
The originals of the said annexed papers arc now on tile in my office, as County Crown Attorney of the said County, in 
accordance with the Statute in that behalf. 

As witness my hand and seal of office, at the Court-house, in the said City of Toronto, this twenty-ninth dhy of Tune, 
A.D. 1887. 

(Ls) 

Canada, Province of Ontario, City of Toronto, 
County of York, to wit. 

I, ARCHIBALD ALEX. Itumnr,, of the City of Toronto, in the County of York, hereby eertify,—That Tam OHO of Her Majesty's 
Coroners for the City of Toronto, in the County of York ; that by virtue of my office as such Coroner, I this day held an 
inquest at the General liospital, in the snid City of Toronto, on the body of John Saunders, it having been first made to 
appear to me that he came to his death through the culpable negligence of himself or some other person, and not through 
mere accident or mischance. 

As witness my hand and seal at the City of Toronto, in the County of York, this 9th day of October, AD. 1874. 
(r.s.) 	A.. A. RIDDEL, 

Coroner, City of Toronto. 

Canada, Province of Ontario, City of Toronto,} 
County of York, to wit. 

I j'OuX H. McCornunr, KB., of the City of Toronto, in the County of York, make oath and say :—That I am the resident 
surgeon of the General Hospital in the City of Toronto ; that on the 16th day of September, A.D., 1874, John Saunders was 
admitted as a patient into the said General Hospital with his two hands and one foot burning with phosphorus ; that he the 
said John Saunders subsequently became attacked with lockjaw, followed by tetanus, which were doubtless occasioned by the 
burning ; that he died in the said hospital on the 6th day of October, A.D., 1874, from exhaustion—the result of the 
lockjaw and tetanus,—which were doubtless occasioned by the injuries to the hands and feet by burning ; and that I there-
fore believe an investigation as to the cause of his death by a coroner is required. 
Sworn before me, at the City of Toronto, in the County 

of York, this 8th day of October, A.D., 1874 	 J. if. MCCOLLUM. 
before me,— 

A. A. RIDDEL, Coroner, City Toronto. 

Canada, Province of Ontario, City of Toronto, County of York, 
To wit. 

Leromesnos of witnesses severally taken and acknowledged on behalf of our Lady the Queen, at the General Hospital in 
the City of Toronto, in the County of York, on the 8th day of October, in the year of our Lord 1874, before me

' 
 Archibald A. 

Riddel, Esq., one of Her Majesty's Coroners for the said city, on view of the body of John Saunders, then and there lying 
dead, as follows, to wit,- 

-Joseph. H. S«urislers, carpenter, sworn, says :—I am brother to the deceased ; he was born in England, and is thirty-
one years of age ; I recognize the body in the dead house as that of my brother ; I saw him several times after he was injured; 
the first time I saw him be toia mo be Has attending an exhibition at Richard O'Brien's tavern, Front-street ; that the exhibitor 
professed to be able to show the spirits of departed friends ; that the exhibitor's name was Walker ; that my brother asked 
him to show the spirit of is dead friend; that; the exhibitor pretended to do so, but that the head showed was much larger 
than that of his late friend, while the lips were like those of Walker ; that he asked the pretended spirit to speak, when the 
lips moved ; that Walker was in a closet, and cried out that he was smothering ; that any brother' went to his relief, and took 
ham out of the closet ; that, observing some fire upon the floor, my brother undertook to extinguish it with his hands, when it 
set fire to his hands and burnt them ;  my brother said it was trickery and deceit in Walker saying that he could make the 
spirits show their own light. his 

1. H. a SAUNDERS. • 
Paten upon oath and acknowledged this 8th day } 	 mark 

of October, A.D. 1874, before me,— 
A. A. RI:M.3M, Coroner, City Toronto. 

GEO. W. 13A.DGER017v- , 
County Crown Attorney, County of York. 

At 
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At this stage of the inquiry the proceedings were adjourned sine die on account of the non-attendance of witnesses, but 
the inquest was subsequently called for the next day, at the same hour and place. 

Friday, 9th October, 10 o'clock as 
TnE inquest was resumed at the General Hospital in the City of Toronto, all the jurors being present. The evidence was 
taken down as follows — 

Richard O'Brien, tavern-keeper, corner of Front and John Streets, sworn, says 	knew the deceased and the man 
Walker for about a week ; they boarded with me for that time ; deceased was taken to the hospital on the night that he got 
burnt, and Walker left that same night ; I did not know that any exhibition was: going on that night, nor at any other time, 
and the first thing I knew of it was one of the boarders calling "fire " ; I then ran upstairs to the bedroom occupied by 
deceased and Walker ; any brother was in front of me, and be rapped at the door, and called to open the door as the door 
was not opened he burst it in ; then went down stairs to see if the fire had spread outside ; the hall was thick'  with smoke ; 
seeing there was no fire outside I returned up stairs ; the fire was then extinguished ; on going into the MOM I found my 
brother, Walker, and some of the boarders there, and Saunders was standing in the hall; I could not see any fire about 
Saunders for the dense smoke ; Walker was standing in the room and appeared to be nearly suffocated ; I assisted to get him 
out and told him to go to some druggist to get his hand dressed, as it was burnt ; I could see fire on his clothes then ; he went 
out and returned with his father, and took his trunk away ; he had his hand tied up then ; Saunders left, and I have not seen 
him since ; \Volker, his father, and the deceased were the only persons, as far as I know, in the room when any brother burst 
in the door ; I do not know what occupation Walker followed ; he did nothing but read the most of the time he was with me ; 
I do not know what Walker's aright° name is, nor where he or his father is, nor whether they are in the city or not ; I do not 
believe George Evans was present when the Walkers and deceased were in the bedroom, or even in the house ; I do not know 
what country Walker belonged to. 

Taken upon oath and acknowledged this 9th day 	 RICHARD 0 BRIEN.} 
of October, A 	 m .D. 1874, before e,— 

A. A. RInDEL, Coroner, City Toronto: 

Albert Raptly, printer, at R. O'Brien's, corner Front and John Streets, sworn, says :—I was in the room at Mr. 
O'Brien's, adjoining that in which Saunders got; burnt on the night of the 10th September last ; it was about 7 o'clock ; I did 
not hear nay noise et';ill I heard a ticking at Walker's door ; about a second afterwards some one called out, "Fire, fire—open 
the door," and there were repeated cries of " murder ;" I then went out into the hall, where I saw smoke issuing from the 
openings around the door; I tried to open the door, but finding it was looked, endeavoured to push it in ; I then ran down 
stairs and gave the alarm, as I could not open the door ;  Mr. O'Brien', brother went up and burst the door open ; I went into 
my own room, but I could hardly breathe for the smell of burning brimstone or phosphorus ; seeing one man, Saunders, I 
believe, come out of the room and go down stairs, I followed bhu, as he appeared to be in great agony, and be wanted to know 
where there was a doctor ; his hands were on fire then, and I look him to Dr. Thorburn's, he running and screaming all the 
way; I never heard of ally other exhibition taking place there before ; the doctor, Saunders, and I went to Woods' drug store 
ml King-street, and I assisted in bathing his hands and pulled his boots off, his left foot being somewhat burnt ; I remained 
about an hour ; while his hands were in the water he felt easier, but when they were token out he again complained of their 
burning ; I then left and went back to O'Brien's ; the fire was extinguished then, except some spots on the carpet where the 
phosphorus was still burning. 
Taken upon oath and acknowledged this 9th day } 	 ALBERT TABUN. 

of October, A.D. 1874, before me,— 
A. A. RIDDEt, Coroner, City Toronto. 

George Henry Evans, bookkeeper, lives at. R. O'Brien's, sworn, says : —I board at O'Brien's, but was not in the house 
at the time the alarm of fire was given, and the deceased's hands were burnt ; I entered the house some tune afterwards, and 
being told of what had happened, I went up to Walker's room, where I saw Mr. O'Brien and his brother putting out some 
fire on the carpet and in the cupboard ; I never heard of any such exhibition taking place, and don't think any one in the 
house but the three who were present did know of it. 

Taken upon oath and acknowledged this 0th day} 	 G. 	EVANS. 
AD. October, .n. 1874, before me,— 

A. A. RIDDEn, Coroner, City Toronto. 

Reverend Sanneel A. Dyke, Baptist, sworn, says :—About a fortnight ago I called to see a patient in the same ward as 
Saunders ; noticing Saunders' hands wrapped np, and he apparently in great pain, I went up to his bedside and entered into 
conversation with him, when be told me that his hands had been burnt with phosphorus ; upon asking if he was the same 
party of whom I had read of having met with an accident at a spiritualistic seance, he said he was ; I then asked if be 
believed in spiritualism; he replied that he had been studying it for some time, and had begun to believe somewhat in it ; that 
he was acquainted with a number of professed spiritualists in the city, and had attended some of their seances: that he had met 
Walker at some of them as a professed medium, where be seemed to enter into trances, and while in those trances he would 
breathe very heavily, and gave apparent corn munications front spirits, but he, deceased, noticed that nanny of those communica-
tions made to other parties present were very similar to particulars gathered in conversations he bad held with him at former times; 
deceased referred °Specially to seances held over a clothing store on Xing, which was fitted up with cabinet. Am., at consider-
able expense for the purpose; if I am not mistaken this was over Morrison's store ; he mentioned the names of several persons 
who engagedin those seances, some of them being men occupying leading positions in the city, but I forget who they were; 
having become acquainted with Walker at these seances, and meeting him at Mr. O'Brien's on the evening of the accident, he, 
Saunders, requested him to hold a private seance, to which he consented ; upon asking what the programme of the seance 
would be, Walker said he would answer questions and show faces of spirits; darkness being necessary he entered into a dark 
closet, taking with him the questions written on paper, and they were to be answered in letters of light written on the wall, 
where the faces would be shown also in light ; after Walker had entered the closet Saunders heard him breathing heavily as Ile 
had while in the pretended trances at other times ; he then heard him groaning and then call for help, whereupon he entered 
the closet and dragged him out ; noticing a quantity of fire upon the shelf, and not knowing that it was phosphorus, he swept 
off' with his left hand into his right, and carried it in both hands into a basin of water ; almost; immediately he experienced 
pain, and found that his hands were burning, whereupon he kicked at the door, shouted fire, and called for help ; he was sub. 
sequently brought to the hospital, and did not see Walker or his father since, but had beard that they had gone to England ; 
lie believed at the time I saw hitn that the questions were to be read by the light of the phosphorus, and the answers given 
and faces drawn on the wall by the same means. 
Taken upon oath and acknowledged this 0th day I 	 SAMUEL A. DIKE. 

of October, AD. 1874, before me,— 
A. A. Ibionm, Coroner, City Toronto. 

John .At Collin??
' 
 ME., and Jas. Tborlairn, M.D., sworn say :—The undermentioned John Saunders stated to me that 

the exhibition was to Lake place in one of the rooms at the hotel on the corner of John and Front Streets ; that there was a 
room that the exhibitor had arranged for the purpose of displaying his illusions ; John Saunders was admitted to the hospital 
on the night of the 16th September, about 10 o'clock ; he stated that he was a spectator at an exhibition where the exhibitor 
proposed to show the spirits of the departed and explain the theory of spiritualism,- that while the exhibitor was making 
arrangements in a closet for the exhibition the cry of fire was raised ; that he rushed into the closet to assist in putting out 
the fire, not knowing its nature or the danger lie risked, for he was not aware that it was caused by phosphorus ; his hands 
had been dressed by Dr. Thorburn before we came.•but even then he was suffering the most intense agony, a part of the 
phosphorus still acting on his hands and feet we immediately used means to neutralize it, which was accomplished in about 

forty 
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forty minutes ; then the burns were treated as an ordinary burn, the whole of the integument on the left hand and part of 
the right being destroyed, together with small patches on the feet ; he apparently did well up to Wednesday, the 80th of 
September, wham symptoms of lock-jaw set in ; this lasted for two days, when tetanus became developed ; a consultation of • 
the staff was called, and the suggestion of the consultation carried out to the last ; notwithstanding, he died on the evening of 
the 6th instant ; lie was attended by Isis own relations from the time that tetanus appeared, as well as by the hospital 
attendants ; we are of opinion that death was caused by the tetanus, and that it was induced by the burning. 
Taken upon oath and acknowledged this 8th day } 	 JAMES THORBURN, M.D. 

of October, A.D, 1874, before me,— 	 J. H. McCoauxt. 
A. A. RIDDED, Coroner, City Toronto, 

John Saunders came to my residence on the evening of the 16th September, suffering from a burn caused by handling 
phosphorus ; I used the proper means to neutralize the acid for upwards of an hour, when, at my request, he consented to go 
into hospital; when he came to mc his hands were in a burning flame, us well as parts of his wearing apparel and feet ; the 
deceased informed me that he -was witnessing an exhibition of supernatural power in an inn on the corner of John and Fron 
Streets, the spirit medium professing to show the faces of departed friends. 
Taken upon oath and acknowledged this 8th day} 	 JAMES THORBERN, M.D. 

of October, AD .. 1874, before me,— 
A. A. RIDDEL, Coroner, City Toronto. 

Canada, Province of Ontario, City of Toronto, } 
County of York, to wit,— 

Ai Inquisition indented, taken for our Sovereign Lady the Queen, at the General Hospital, in the city of Toronto, in the county 
of York, on the 8th day of October, in the thirty-seventh year of the reign of our Sovereign Lady Victoria, before Archibald A. 
Riddel, Esq., one of the Coroners of our said Lady the Queen for the said city, on view of the body of John Saunders, then 
and there lying dead, upon the oath of George Phillips (foreman), J. G. Smith, Francis Wilding, John Bates, Thomas 
Renniek, Geo. Nicholson, Henry Dttlennan, Albert Jones, Thomas Mellor, William J. Monkey, Robert Brown, Patrick 
Shea, and William Cline, good and lawful men of the said city, duly chosen

' 
 and who being then and there duly sworn and 

charged to inquire, for our said Lady the Queen, when, where, how and by what means the said John Saunders came to his 
death, do upon their oath say :—" That the said John Saunders, on the 6th day of October, in the year of our Lord, 1874, at 
the General Hospital, in the city of Toronto, came to his death from the effects of certain burns inflicted while attempting to 
extinguish some burning phosphorous at Richard O'Brien's hotel, Front-street, in the city of Toronto, on the 16th day of 
September, in the present year which said phosphorous had been ignited by one Walker for the purpose of deception

' 
 he 

pretending to be able as a spiritualistic medium to answer questions and delineate faces of spirits in fire by virtue of his gifts 
as such medium ; and that therefore the said Walker feloniously caused the death of the said John Saunders." 

In witness whereof, as well the said Coroner as the jurors aforesaid have hereunto set and subscribed their bands and 
seals, the day and year first above written. 

A. A. RIDDEL, 
Coroner, City Toronto. 

George Phillips, foreman of the jury. 	Henry Mtlennan. 
James G. Smith. 	 Albert Jones. 

Ins 	 Thomas Mellor. 
F. x Wilding. 	 William J. Mulkey. 
mark 	 Robert Brown. 

John Bates. 	 his 
Thomas Rennick. 	 P. x Shea. 

his 	 mark 
Geo. x Nicholson. 	 William Clint, 

mark 

City of Toronto, 
County of York, 	 Recognizance before Coroner. 

to wit. 
BE it remembered, that Joseph H. Saunders, carpenter, of City of Toronto, and Reverend Samuel A. Dyke, of the same place, 
Baptist Minister, do severally acknowledge to owe to Our Sovereign Lady the Queen the sum of ten pounds each, of lawful 
money of Canada, to be levied on their several goods and chattels, land and tenements, by way of recognizance, to Her 
Majesty's use, in case default shall happen to be made in the condition herevnder written. 

The condition of this recognizance is such, that if the above bounden Joseph Saunders and Reverend Samuel A. Dyke, 
do severally and personally appear at the next general gaol delivery, to be holden in, and for the County of York, and the 
said J. H. 'Saunders and Reverend S. A. Dyke shall then and there prefer, or cause to be preferred to the' grand jury, a bill of 
indictment against one Walker, late of the City of Toronto, and now charged with having caused the death of 
John Saunders, late of the City of Toronto, and that the said Joseph H. Saunders and Reverend Samuel A. Dyke, do then 
and there sevemlly appear to give evidence upon such bill of indictment to the said grand jury, end in ease the said bill of 
indictment be found by the grand jury a true bill, that then the said Joseph H. Saunders and the Reverend Samuel A. 
Dyke, do severally personally appear at the said general gaol delivery, and the said 
shall then and there prosecute the said Walker oil such indictment, and the said Joseph H. Saunders and Reverend Samuel A. 
Dyke, do then and there severally give evidence to the jury that shall pass on the trial of the said Walker touching the 
promises, and in case the said bill of indictment shall be returned not found, that then they do severally personally appear at 
the said general gaol delivery, and then and there prosecute and give evidence to the jury that shall pass on the trial of the said 
Walker, upon an inquisition taken before me, one of Her Majesty's Coroners for the said City, on view of the body of the said 
John Saunders, and not depart the Court without leave, then this recognizance to be void, otherwise to remain in full force. 
Taken and acknowledged this 9th day of} 	 A. A. RInnitz, 

October, 1874, before me, 	 Coroner. 
1874—Inquest on the body of John Saunders, held 8th and 9th October. 

A.. A, RIDDEL, 
Coroner, CT. 

Queen v. Walker, (Murder)—Prisoner absconded—Filed 10th October, 1874. 
F. FENTON, 

County Crown Attorney, 

Memo. from G. W. Hedgerow to Lieut.-Col. H. J. Grasett, Chief of Police, Toronto. 
Office of Crown Attorney, County of York, Ontario Hall, 

Dear Chief, 	 No. 60, Church-street, corner Church and Court Streets, Toronto, 29 June, 1887. 
I beg to return you herewith the letter of the Inspector-General of the Police Department of New South Wales, 

which Mr. Redburn has left with me. 
I also enclose you, as requested, a duly certified copy of the inquest held on John Saunders, deceased, by the late 

Dr. Riddel, Coroner, on the 8th and 9th October, 1874. I may say that the words, "Queen versus Walker, Murder, 
Prisoner absconded," which are endorsed on the back of the inquest papers, are in the handwriting of the late Kenneth 

Mackensie, 
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Mackensie, Q.C., who was doubtless the Crown Counsel at the Criminal Assizes at that time. I have made diligent search among 
the old records in the Crown Offices at Osgood° Hall, but have been unable to find that any indictment was presented or 

.returned against Walker for the murder with which he is charged. It has probably been thought unnecessary at the time to 
present a bill against him to the grand jury, as it was known that lie had left the country. It does not appear in any part of 
the inquest papers what Walker's Christian name was. 

I also enclose you a memorandum of my fees for services herein, which kindly forward to Sydney, New South Wales, 
with the other papers. 	• 

- I hope you will find the enclosed satisfactory-. 	 Yours, &e., 
GEO. W. BADGEROW, A.A.V.,' 

C. C. Atty. 

Lieut.-Col, H. J. Grasett, Chief of Police, Dr. to G. W. Barterow. 
Re John Saunders, Deceased. 

Office of Crown Attorney, Comity of York, Ontario Hall, 
No. 50, Church-street, corner Church and Court Streets, Toronto, 99 June, 18E37. 

To certified copy of inquest papers in this matter, and search in old files at Crown Office for documents in connection 
therewith, &c., &c 	  98 - 00. 

Memorandum by The Colonial Secretary to The Attorney-General. 
Colonial Secretary's Office, Sydney, 23 September. 1887. 

Mn. WIsr: will be good enough to read these papers. The printed correspondence with the Melbourne 
Herald appears of itself sufficient to identify the Mr. Walker, against whom a Coroner's verdict of 
" murder" was returned in Toronto, with the Mr. Thomas Walker, one of the Members for Northumberland. 
Mr. Wise upon the papers will advise whether it is incumbent upon the Government to take any steps in 
the matter in vindication of the character and privileges of the Legislative Assembly. 

RP. 

Minute for Cabinet by The Attorney-General. 
I HAVE carefully perused the papers in this ease, and ton of opinion as follows :— 

1. That the evidence discloses a strong prima. facie case of murder against 	Walker, and that 
the verdict of the jury to that effect is supported by the evidence. 

2. That there can be no reasonable doubt, after reading the letter in the Melbourne Herald, that 
Thomas Walker, one of the Members for Northumberland, is the — Walker against whom 
this verdict was found and who absconded from justice. 

That on being satisfied of these facts, and of the fact that Walker had no intention of meeting the 
charge by taking his trial, the House would be acting within its powers and in accordance with 
precedents by expelling him. 

4. That the practice appears to be for a motion of expulsion to be moved by the Leader of the House. 
5. That the House has been slow to accept any but the strongest proof that a Member was keeping 

out of the way of justice or was guilty of a charge until it was proved in court. 
6. That it would therefore be desirable to obtain some expression of opinion from the Canadian 

authorities, whether they will apply for Walker's extradition ; or, if not, why not ? 
I therefore advise that as a first step the Canadian authorities be communicated with by cable, 

informing them that there can be no doubt of Walker's identity and inquiring whether they will apply for 
his extradition. 

B. R. WISE, 
October 12, 1887. 	 Attorney-General. 

The Colonial Secretary to The Inspector-General of Police. 
My dear ME. Fosbery, 	 17 October, 1887. 

On mature consideration I have decided not to write to Sir John Macdonald, but to leave you 
to communicate with the proper officer of Police. 

Your draft letter (herewith returned) appears to me to require no comment. 
I return under sealed cover Mr Walker's paper, which you had better keep. 

Yours sincerely, 
HENRY PARKES. 

The Inspector-General of Police, New South Wales, to The Chief Constable, 
Toronto. 

[Confidential.] 
Sir, 	 18 October, 1887*. 

-• Adverting to your letter dated the 5th of July last, respecting an inquest held upon one John 
Saunders in October, 1874, at which a verdict of murder was returned against one — Walker, who 
thereupon absconded from the country, I have now the honor to inform you that Thomas Walker, of 
whose identity with the accused there can be little or no doubt, is now a resident in this city. 

I should therefore be glad to be informed, at your early convenience, whether the authorities of 
the Dominion will take action under the Imperial Fugitive Offenders' Act of 1881 (41 and 45 Vic., 
eh. 69) by sending an officer with the necessary documents to identify the accused and secure his extra-
dition to Canada upon the charge pending against him. 

I have, Sac., 
EDMUND FOSBERY, 

Inspector-General of Police of New South Wales. 
* A reply was received on the 9th February, 1888, to this letter to the effect that the Canadian authorities declined to 

proceed further in the matter.—Enarrxn HOEMBRE, Inspector-General of Police. 

Minute 
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Minute by The Colonial Secretary. 
Colonial Secretary's Oilice;78ydney, 14 January ;  1889. 

'TITE enclosed papers speak for themselves. There can be no doubt that the Walker against whom a 
coroner's jury returned a verdict of "murder" in Toronto is identical with Thomas -Walker, M.P. for 
Northumberland, who is a refugee from justice. 

After the communication with the police of Toronto, some delay took place in considering whether 
any other representations should be made to the Government of the Canadian Dominion, and this with an 
unwillingness to take any step against a Member so violently opposed to the Government as Mr. Walker 
was, induced further hesitation on the part of present Ministers. No such cause for hesitation can now 
exist, and I think there can be no doubt that Parliament ought to be informed of the case affecting 
Mr. Walker's seat. 
The Hon. G. It. Dibbs. 	 H.P. 

• Memorandum by The Colonial Secretary to The Inspector-General of Police. 
[Confidential.] 	 18 January, 1889, 

allOULD like the original correspondence and papers in the Thomas Walker inquiry case, and particularly 
the reply to Mr. Fosbery's letter to the chief constable of Toronto, received 9th February, 1888. 

G.R.D. 
All the papers relating to this matter are in the Colonial Secretary's office.—Enm. FOSBERY, 1811/89. 

The Holt. the Colonial Secretary. 

Memorandum by The Colonial Secretary to The Principal -Cinder Secretary. 
[Confidential.] 	 Colonial Secretary's Office, 21 January, 1.889. 
Sin HENRY PARKES has left me a printed paper, dealing with an inquiry into the past life of Mr. Thomas 
1Valker, lath M.P. for Northumberland, which I have carefully read, and find a very material document 
missing. I allude to the letter sent by the chief constable of Toronto to Mr. Fosbery, in reply to a 
letter of Mr. Fosbery's of 18th October, 1.887, and referred to in a foot.note at bottom of last page of the 
papers. 

should like a statement from you, in writing, as to the whereabouts of the missing letter 
referred to. 

G.R.D. 
I have no knowledge whatever of the missing document. All the papers that I have seen on the 

subject are printed. Perhaps Mr. Fosbery might be able to throw some light on the subject.—C.W., 
21/1/89. 

I should like Mr. Fosbery's explanation.—G.R.D., 21/1/89. Urgent. 	The Inspector-General 
of Police.—C.W., B.C., 21 /1189. 

The inquiry was a confidential one, made at the instance of Sir Henry Parkes personally. I 
transmitted the papers to him direct, including the letter from Canada, stating that no further action 
would be taken. I have noted this as submitted on the 9th of Feb., 1888.—EnistuND FOSBERY, B.C., 
21/1/89. The Principal 'Under Secretary. 

The Colonial Secretary to Sir Henry Parkes, G.C.M.G. 
Sir, 	 • 	Colonial Secretary's Office, Sydney, 28 January, 1889. 

I have read the printed papers in the matter of Mr. Thomas Walker, covered by your 'letter 
to me of the 1.4th inst., and find that a highly material letter is missing from the correspondence. 

The letter in question is refcrred to in the foot-note of the last page of the printed papers, and 
appears, 80 far as its contents are indicated in the foot-note, to evidence the abandonment of the 
imputation of the crime of manslaughter which the finding of the Coroner's jury had conveyed. 

The Under Secretary of this Department has no knowledge of the missing document, but the 
Inspector-General of Police writes that he transmitted all the papers, including the missing letter, to 
you on the 9th February, 1888. 

1 know that you will give your aid in assisting to discover the document said to have been last in 
your possession, but which must have been mislaid, seeing the importance of its recovery to the character 
of a late Member of Parliament. I have, &c., 

GEORGE R. DIBBS. 

The Principal Under Secretary to Sir Henry Parkes, G.C.M.G. 

	

Sir, 	 Colonial Secretary's Office, Sydney, 6 February, 1889. 
I am desired by the Colonial Secretary to request that you will kindly favour me with a reply 

to his letter of the 23rd. ultimo, regarding the missing letter from the papers relating to Mr. Thomas 
Walker. Yours truly, 

CRITCHETT WALKER, 
Principal 'Under Secretary. 

Sir 
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Sir Henry Parkes, G.C.M.G., to The Colonial Secretary 
Sir, 	 Hampton Villa, Balmain, 7 February, 1889. 

I have received two letters from you inquiring for papers, one being the reply of the police 
authorities of Toronto, in respect to the verdict of " murder" against Thomas Walker. 

During the two years I was in office as Colonial Secretary my private papers accumulated without 
being sorted or classified, and I have not found time since to go through them or arrange them. 

In regard to the Walker case, I distinctly recollect that the letter in question was brought to me 
on receipt by the Inspector-General of Police ; but whether it was left with me or not I cannot say. 
The letter, however, has no bearing at all on the facts of the verdict against Walker, and merely explained 
that the authorities at Toronto did not deem it expedient, owing to the death of witnesses and other 
circumstances, "to identify the accused, and secure his extradition to Canada upon the charge pending 
against him." That charge being `traurder," and not "manslaughter," as erroneously stated in your 
letter of the 23rd ultimo, you will find by consulting the Inspector-General that it is in no sense 
"material" to the case itself. 

Early next week I will examine all my papers, and if these or any other official documents are by 
accident amongst them they shall be immediately returned to the office. 

. I am, &c., 
HENRY PARKES. 

Sir HeruT Parkes, G.C.M.G., to The Principal Tinder Secretary. 
Sir, 	 Balmain, 11 February, 1889. 

I have been engaged yesterday and to-day sorting and arranging my papers, and I am glad to 
say I have found the letter from the Chief of Police, Toronto, to the Inspector-General of Police, Sydney, 
declining to take the necessary steps for the extradition of the absconder Walker. 

You will observe that the envelope has little of an official appearance, and is addressed to me by 
name, which will account for its having been tied up in a bundle of my private letters. 

This letter, however, has no bearing on the merits of the case against Walker, and merely shows 
that the Canadian Government (Ontario) were not disposed to incur the cost and trouble of his extradition. 

I have, &c., 
HENRY PARKES 

[Enclosures.] 
Sir, 	 Chief Constable's Office, Toronto, 28 December, 1887. 

I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter dated 18th October last, relative to the above, and in 
reply thereto would state that I immediately transmitted it to the Deputy Attorney-General of Ontario for such action as the 
Provincial Government might think advisable to take. I now enclose a copy of his reply from which it would appear that 
the Government do not intend to take any steps for Walker's extradition to this country. 

I have, Sic., 
The Inspector-General of Police, New South Wales. 	 H. J. GRASETT, C.C. 

Dear Sir, 	 Department of Attorney-General, Ontario, Toronto, 23 December, 1887. 
With reference to your letter of the 23rd instant and enclosure, I beg to advise you that the case is not one in 

which this Government would feel justified in taking proceedings to extradite the man named Walker. I notice that the 
offence occurred over 13 years ago, and after such a lapse of time it would be very difficult to procure the necessary evidence 
to establish the case of the Crown, even assuming that the person mentioned by Mr. Fosbery is the person charged with the 
offence. I have nothing before me showing the nature of the evidence taken at the inquest, and it does not appear whether 
the facts proved on the inquest were sufficient to establish a proper case for extradition. I return Mr. Fosbery's letter. The 
Coroner, who held the inquest, is, I believe, dead. Yours truly, 

E. T. B. JOHNSTON. 
H. J. Grasett, Esq., Chief of Police, Toronto. 	 D.A.G. 

Submitted for the Colonial Secretary's information and further instructions. I retain all the other papers for the 
present—Blown FOSBEBY, B.C., 9 Feb.,1888. The Hon. the Colonial Secretary. 

Minute by The Colonial Secretary. 
THESE papers now being complete by the deliver) ,  by Sir Henry Parkes of the Canadian authorities 
letter, I should like to have the whole papers printed in order of sequence, and a copy forwarded to 
Mr. Thomas Walker, M.P. 

G.R.D., 19/2/89. 

T. Walker, Esq., M.P., to The Colonial Secretary. 
Ron. Sir, 

The papers you have forwarded me for the purpose of enabling me to give what explanation 
I may have to offer of a painful accident which occurred when I was sixteen years of age, show clearly to 
what extent political malice may carry the free trade leader, Sir Henry Parkes. and his satellite, Mr. Wise. 

I observe they have published from the Melbourne Herald a letter of condemnation from W. H. 
Terry, who admits in that letter that had I chosen to keep my mouth shut about him and his seances all 
the documents re the accident which caused the death of Saunders "in all. probability would have 
remained unpublished." There is also a paragraph from the same paper, issued August 22nd, 1883, 
reflecting upon me, but not one of my letters of reply published in the same journal at that time is 
quoted, or even alluded to. Only that which -will carry malice with it is permitted to appear, with 
apparently no other object than to ruin my future prospects, and to crush me out of political life. 

You 
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You will have observed that the.papers have been printed since my action in investigating the 
IThrnsby-Holt-Sutherland affair. I May state that just before the close of the late Parliament I wail 
informed that Mr. Abigail intended to use them when I should speak on the "Mountain Maid Mine,'.' 
which you are aware I was ready to do the moment the Mining estimates were reached. However the 
House was dissolved without our reaching Mr. Abigail's estimates, and then Sir Henry Parkes left the 
already printed papers (from which I perceive he has deliberately suppressed at least one important 
-document from Canada) for you to deal with. 

About ten months ago, as nearly as I can remember, the ex Minister for Justice, Wm. Clarke, Esq., 
informed me that the lath Government were aware of the Canadian accident; and he tried to cause me to 
believe that the Canadian authorities had been attempting to move the Parkes Government to take some 
.action against me, but, he said, "The Government were going to take no steps in the matter." It seems, 
to use the very words of the ex Treasurer (Mr. Burns), however, that they "had a rod in pickle," whick 
might be used against me at any time for no less a crime than performing my public duties. 

I perceive the last date on the printed papers is the 9th February, 1888, twelve months ago. If 
there had been any charge against me it was the duty of the then leader of the House to have duly 
preferred it, but he took no steps in the matter until I was compelled to expose the suspicious transactions 
of his own Ministers, and then he has not the courage to make any charge himself, straightforwardly and 
-openly, but he leaves behind him a weapon which he is cowardly enough to ask you to fire. 

Now, as to the accident : I thought that nearly every one in Australia, who has at all watched my 
public career, was familiar with the particulars of it. I have never attempted to make any secret of it, 
and in proof of this I will quote for your information an extract from a work I published in June, 1882, 
and which I have sold up to the present at my public lectures. The work is entitled "Orthodoxy 
Unmasked," and I quote from pp. XII–XIV of the Introduction :— 

First, then, let me take the accident itself. Its history is briefly this : In 1874, being 16 years of age, I was a farm 
labourer in Canada, working on the farm of John Bennet, of Markham, and afterwards of Michael Fisher, of Vaughan (whose 
:son, my sister married) near Toronto. In October, the harvest season being over, I left the farm and remained a week or two 
at Toronto before going to England. 1 was a spiritualist at this time, and believed myself to be what, in spiritualistic phra-
seology, is termed a medium. In consequence of this I met with several Toronto spiritualists, and attended several seances. 
On one of these oceasions I met with Mr. Saunders, and I afterwards stayed at the same hotel with him in Front-street, 
Toronto. During the time we were together we more than once speculated as to how the so-called physical phenomena of 
:spiritualism were produced. We both of us firmly believed in them ; but from bearing so much talk about phosphorus 
being the source of spirit-lights, or at all events a very close imitation of them, and being a lad at the time, I purchased 
a small portion of phosphorus, in the stick, for the purpose of seeing what effect it would have in this respect in the dark. 

When the accident occurred I was thus experimenting in the bedroom occupied by Saunders and myself. I was 
totally ignorant of the chemical nature of the dangerous substance I had purchased. I took the st ick out of the water, and, 
holding it in my left hand, made some marks with it on a piece of paper. As may be supposed, in a very short space of time 
indeed the phosphorus, by exposure to the atmosphere, ignited, and rah, in the form of a burning liquid, into my left hand. 
Mr. Saunders struck at the flame with his hand, and in this way burned himself. 

Very early next morning I had to leave Toronto for Quebec en route for England, as I had purchased my ticket 
during the week, and bad made all preparations for starting, in the shape of providing provisions and the other necessaries 
for my trip on the day previous. This I had done before the accident occurred. These are facts for which proof 
can be provided independently altogether of my testimony. The local agency in Toronto for the "Allen" 
line of steamers, will be able to show from its books that / had purchased my ticket for England, per the 
S.S. "Peruvian" before the unfortunate accident, and that, consequently, I was obliged to leave at the time I did, or 
-otherwise I should have to forfeit my passage home, which at that time I could not afford to do. I am careful in the state-
ments of these facts, because the most malicious portion of the passage from the Medium and Daybreak is where it states:— 
" But Walker left the city immediately after the occurrence, and was out of the reach of justice," by which it is implied, 
if not expressly stated, that I fled from justice. At that time there was no justice to flee from. From what I saw of . 
Mr. Saunders after the accident his burn did not appear to be dangerous at all, and I remember that I consoled myself at 

, the time with the belief that I was by far the greater sufferer. It must be borne in mind that Mr. Saunders did not die 
until after I was in England, and then not from the severity of the burns, but from tetanus, which of course the severity 

•of the burns may have occasioned. But furthermore it must not be forgotten that tetanus can be produced from a multiplicity 
of causes and that in some systems a very slight flesh wound is sufficient to induce it. 

When in England, learned of Mr. Saunders' death through a letter from my sister (Mrs. Fisher) ' • I was grieved 
exceedingly, and shortly afterwards I resolved to go back to Canada that 1 might learn the real facts of the ease. 

•This resolution was strengthened by an offer of employment from my brother-in-law on his farm. I therefore borrowed 
the passage money from my benevolent friend Mr. E. Foster, chemist of Friargate, Preston, in Lancashire, and sailed 
for New York, from whence I departed for Toronto. I arrived in Toronto on a Sunday morning, and walked to 
Vaughan, some 15 or 16 miles, to the farm of my sister's father-in-law. It was here I read for the first tune the verdict of 
the jury, which put a load upon my heart that seemed for a time to crush out every hope. The next morning I walked 
back to Toronto, on my way to my brother-in-law's farm, some little distance out of Toronto, near a small village called Ethel 

* * I worked here for three months. in the meantime I wrote a letter to the Chief of Police at Toronto, stating 
that I had read the verdict of the jury on the death of Mr. Saunders, and that if there was any ease against me I was 
perfectly willing to submit to a trial. I posted this letter with my own hands in the Ethel Post-office, so up to that point 

. the destination of the letter is certain. Suffice it to say that, however it may be accounted for, I received no answer to 
my letter from that day to this. I have, therefore, naturally concluded ever since, that the chief of the police saw the 
absurdity of the verdict of the jury, and therefore declined to take any action in the matter. 

I may add to this extract (from a work I published over six years ago, and of which I have sold. 
some thousands of copies) that not only did I go back to Canada and communicate with the police, but 

•when I started my career in America, as a lecturer, it was as "Thomas Walker." For over two years I 
lectured in all parts of America, and my whereabouts could have been ascertained at any moment: But 
it remained for Mr. Wise to insist upon a cablegram being sent to inform the Canadian authorities 
that he could put his hands upon me. The Canadian authorities could, long ago, if there had been a case 
against me, have dispensed with his impetuous, if not, malicious, advice. °For the sake of contrast with 
the hasty and venomous opinion of the patriotic Attorney-General, who deserted his post because he 
could not make sufficient money out of it, I will quote the opinion of a Melbourne lawyer :—" As to the 
paragraph (making the charge) itself any lawyer will at once recognise that if any jury ever did 
arrive at such a verdict it was clearly an absurdity, and the subsequent inaction of the police 
is properly accounted for tliereby. As your readers would naturally infer from your report (unaccom-
panied by Mr. Walker's statement made in Court yesterday) that be fled from justice, I feel that you 
will unhesitatingly publish this letter.—I am, &C., DAVID 'GAUNSON." In Melbourne Daily Telegraph, 
June 24th, 1882. 

Had Mr. Wise been less eager for service to his very scrupulous chief ; had he been less ridiculously 
impulsive and more thoughtfully careful and regardful of the honor and dignity of his office, he might have 
made a few inquiries nearer home, when howoulcl have discovered that not only had I been to Canada 
and informed the police, but, that no loop-hole of accusation might be left, I had altogether dispensed with 

20—B 	 the 
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the necessity for his cablegram and "an officer with the necessary documents to identify" me, by for-
warding my address and admission of identity to the Chief of Police

' 
 Toronto, from Melbourne, over five 

years ago. Here it is as it appeared in the columns of the Evening Herald on the date affixed:— 
Ma. WALKER AND THE CANADIAN VERDICT. 

4/19/83. 
MR. THOMAS Warn has banded us the following letter, which he states is a copy of a letter sent by him to the Chief 
of Police, Toronto, Canada, and we have been shown the receipt for a registered letter so addressed :— 

" ' Hypatia Cottage,' Park•street, Hawthorn, Melbourne, Australia, 5th September, 1883. 
a To the Chief of Police, Toronto. 

" Sin—In 1871 I was the unwilling cause of a very unpleasant accident which occurred at O'Brien's Hotel, Front-street, 
in your city. I was 16 years of age at the time, and was about to leave for England, having my ticket in my pocket when 
the accident occurred. The circumstances of the accident are briefly these :—I was a spiritualist and was young and. 
insane enough to further believe I was a medium. Staying at the same hotel (the one abovementioned) and sharing my 
bedroom with me was another spiritualist named Mr. Saunders. We attended several seances together, and were up to the 
time of the accident close friends. As nearly as I can recollect the time about the 14th or 15th of September, as I 
was passing a chemist's shop, a foolish impulse seized me to buy a small piece of phosphorus in the stick for the 
purpose of seeing if spirit lights could be imitated (not produced, for I was then, and till long afterwards, a sincere. 
peliever in spiritualism). I was ignorant of the really dangerous nature of the chemical I had purchased, and on the 
16th of September, the night before leaving for Quebec to join the as. "Peruvian," one of the "Allen line" 
steamers, bound for Liverpool, I took the stick out of the water with my left hand and rubbed it on a 
piece of paper I held in my right, Mr. Saunders being present with me in my bedroom. I had no idea, I may repeat, of my 
hraninent danger. Whilst I was doing this, the stick, exposed to friction and the atmosphere, quickly ignited, and ran as a 
burning fluid into my left band. I at once cried out with pain and fear, and my friend struck at my hand to extinguish the 
• fire. In doing this he burned his hand, as I have sines learned, severely. The landlord and others were soon in our room, 
and, after removing all possible danger of fire to the rooms, they asked what the matter was; to which I heard Mr. Saunders. 
say, "That young fool has been fooling with phosphorous." The landlord ordered me out of the place at once. I went and 
stayed with some friends for the night, and, in accordance with my previous intention, departed early next morning 
on my way to England. I did not think Mr. Saunders was badly burned, or, at all events, so badly as I was burned, since 
I was bolding the burning liquid in my left hand, and he simply struck at it. I learned after I had been in England 
some little time that Mr. Saunders was removed to the hospital, where he subsequently died from tetanus. In England 
I was a short time in the Brownlow Hill Hospital, Liverpool. As soon as I could I returned, from England to 
'Canada, and I, for the first time, read the verdict given at the inquest on Mr. Saunders' death at my sister's father-in-law's 
farm, Michael Fisher, of Vaughan. I then went to Ethel to stay with my brother-in-law, Thos. Fisher. From thence I 
wrote you a letter, which I posted with my own bands at the Ethel post-office. In this letter I offer to submit myself for trial 
if any charge were preferred against me. Owing to the republication of the verdict here, in consequence of the malicious - 
persecution to which I have been subjected by some leading local spiritualists since my secession from spiritualism, and the way 
yen speak in a letter to a Toronto publisher, I am of opinion the letter in question most have miscarried. I therefore write. 
this for the same purpose, and with the same intention. I am willing to come to Toronto on my own account, and to stand my 
trial, on a definite charge being preferred, and if you do not think the verdict of the jury holding me responsible for Mr. 
Saunders' death an absurd one from the point of law and justice. 

"As such a trip would be costly and painful (I should have to leave my wife here), I do not wish you simply out of 
haste or impulse to invite me to your city for the purpose I have indicated. And at the same time, as my life is likely to be a 
public one, I do not wish you to ignore the letter altogether. May I presume to ask you to give my ease the consideration it 
deserves, and to make inquiries at the local office of the 'Allan line' to support my statement that I did not glee from 
justice,' but had my ticket for England in my possession at the time of the accident. I may state that I had been labouring 
on the farm of Mr. a W. Bennett (since deceased), of Markham Village, prior to being in Toronto the few days (a fortnight 
or so, though I will not be sure of the exact time) during which the accident took place. Trusting you will net towards me 
with duo consideration and justice. I remain, ke., 

THOMAS WALKER." 
Could mortal man do more than this ? Why did not Mr. Wise and Sir Henry Parkes print this letter, 
since they could extract others against me from the same source? My second letter, which as you will 
see I took care to have registered and read in presence of witnesses before it was sealed, altogether 
obviates the terrible hurry of this worthy pair of political scavengers. In 1883 the Chief of Police 
in Toronto read my letter. Five years later nothing hut a cablegram will satisfy the patriotic Attorney-
General, though Sir Henry it appears would be satisfied with a policeman sent for by the slow process of 
mail delivery. But neither the haste of Mr. Wise, nor the tardy malignity of Sir Henry Parkes, could 
effect their terrible purpose, for in the foot-note to their papers it is stated : "A reply was received on 
the 9th of February, 1888, to this letter to the effect that the Canadian authorities declined to proceed' 
further in the matter." And the letter stating how or why they decline has been suppressed. What 
splendid specimens of a pair of lovers of justice ! 

I have now to state that so eagerly have I sought to answer any call of justice that I went, nearly 
six years ago, in the presence of two witnesses, and asked the Melbourne Police Department to take the-
matter up. I give you two letters I have received from these witnesses to substantiate this :— 

Dear Mr. Walker, 	 642 William-street, Melbourne, 	30 January, 1889. 
I sent you all the papers I had having any reference to the Toronto accident. I remember something appearing 

in the Herald some weeks previously, but the copy I sent you was announced by the paper as being a copy of the whole of 
the evidence in connection with the case ; they stated it was an official report of the case. On thinking over the matter I 
remember quite well one morning after a report appeared in the Herald, accompanying you and Mr. Stevenson to the Super-

. intendent of Police, as witness, to the office opposite the Public Library, when you asked the officer in my hearing to move in 
the matter by communicating to the Toronto Police Department ; they decline to do so saying itwas not necessary as there was. 
nothing in the Herald's reports that warranted them in moving in the matter. 

If you still wish for further reports from the Herald, forward me the date of the printed report I sent you and I will 
look over the papers, and if I find anything I will forward you copies. 	 Yours faithfully, 

J. S. ROBERTSON. 
108, Elizabeth-street, Melbourne, 31 January, 1888. 

Ma. ROBERTSON has just read me this letter, and wishes me to confirm what is said re you going to the Superintendent of 
Police. I fully recollect going with you for the purpose of giving yourself up, when you were laughed at for taking any 
notice of the matter. I fully endorse all Mr. R. has said herein. 	 Yours, &a. 

F. W. STEVENSON, 
In conclusion, I have only to point out that the evidence taken at the inquest shows :— 

1st. That Mr. Saunders and myself were boarders at the same hotel. 
2nd. That we shared the same bedroom. 
3rd. -That we were in our bedroom on the night of the accident. 
4th. That no one in the place likely to know if such a thing had been going on was aware of any 

" exhibition." The landlord, the bookkeeper, and other boarders were ignorant of anything of 
the kind, which they could not have been, I repeat, had any "exhibition" really been taking-
place. 

gth. That the witnesses all confused the attendance of Saunders and myself at other seances with 
the unhappy accident that occurred in our bedroom. 

It 
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It is quite simple to explain how the jury arrived at their verdict. [I am again quoting from my work "Orthodoxy 
Unmasked.'] It was only sufficient for them to know that I was a spiritualist, that Mr. Saunders was also one ; that I was 
experimenting with phosphorus and had left Toronto, for, they knew not where, and that Mr. Saunders had died 
from tetanus, evidently in consequence of the accident; and so, having appearances against me, they very naturally 
supposed that I was afraid of remaining in Toronto because I was a guilty man. They therefore allowed their feelings to 
decide their judgments. They had no means of knowing my youth, and my ignorance, so far as I am aware, and for 
anything they knew to the contrary I might be a hardened. sinner. With so much room for the play of imagination and 
feeling, guided by their natural prejudices, it might he expected that any ordinary jury would be likely to be severe in its 
conclusions upon an occurrence of this kind. Nevertheless, even after considering these facts, I trust I may be pardoned 
for saying that the verdict they gave was a disgrace to them. 

I have complied with your request, Hon. Sir, and I now ask for neither mercy nor pity, but simple 
justice. 	 I have, &c., 

THOMAS WALKER. 

Received, 21 February, 1829.—G.R.D. 

Minute by The Colonial Secretary. 
Mn. WALKER having handed me his statement on the charges attempted to be made against him, let the 
whole now be printed, with the view of laying the completed. papers upon the Table of the House. 

G.R.D., 1/3/89. 

Sydney : Charles Potter, Government thinter.-1889 
(9d.1 
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1889. 

EXTRACTS FROM THE VOTES AND PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

VOTES No, 9. WEDNESDAY, 3 APRIL, 1889. 

1.5. STANDING ORDERS COMMITTEE (Sessional Order):—Sir Henry Parkes moved, pursuant to Notice,—
That the Standing Orders Committee for the present Session shall consist of Mr. Speaker, Mr. 
McMillan, Mr. J. P. Abbott, Mr. Want, Mr. Dibbs, Mr. Gould, Mr. Street, Mr. Gnrrett, Mr. 
Edmunds, and the Mover, with leave to sit during any adjournment, and authority and power 
to send for persons, papers, and records, and to examine witnesses, and to report in any matter 
or thing referred to or pending before the said Committee, and to confer upon subjects of 
mutual concernment with any Committee appointed for similar purposes by the Legislative Council. 
Question put mid passed. • 

VOTES No. 14. TUESDAY, 16 APRIL, 1889. 

4. STANDING ORDERS (Formal Motion):—Mr. Wall, for Mr. J. P. Abbott, moved, pursuant to Notice,— 
That the whole of the Standing Orders of this House be referred to the Standing Orders 
Committee for its consideration and report, with power from time to time to make progress reports 
to this House. 
Question put and passed. 

VOTES No. 21. TUESDAY, 7 MIT, 1889. 

4. LTMIT OP SPEECHES :—Mr. Waddell moved, pursuant to Notice,— 
(1.) That, in the opinion of this House, it is desirable, in order to expedite public business, that 
the speeches of Honorable Members should be limited to time. 
(2.) "That," with a view to carrying out this object, unless otherwise ordered, no Member shall 
occupy more than forty minutes in speaking to any subject, except the mover of a substantive 
motion, or the second reading of a Bill, in which cases he may occupy one hour and thirty minutes 
when addressing the House. 
Debate ensued. 
Mr. Garrard moved, That the Question be amended by the omission of all the words after the 
word "That," in the second paragraph, with a view to the insertion in their place of the words, 
" the Standing Orders Committee be requested to submit to the House a Standing Order dealing 
" with the Question." 
Question proposed, That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the Question. 
Debate continued. 
Question put,—That the words proposed to be omitted stand part of the Question. 
The House divided. 

Ayes, 10. 	 Noes, 51. 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. Tonkin, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Barbour, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Frank Parnell, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Wall, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. Creer, 
Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. Laken-tan, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Nyman Brown, 

And so it passed in the negative. 

Mr. Fletcher, 
Mr. Di labs, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Trail], 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen Ines), 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Melville. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Crick, 
Mr. Edmunds. 

Mr. Lea', 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Dan', 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mr. Alison, 
Mr H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Canterbury), 
Mr. :Bowman, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Scobie, 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Hawken, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Paul, 
M r. Clubb. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Levien, 
Mr. Nicoll. 

Question 
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Question put,—That the words proposed to be inserted in place of the words omitted, be so inserted. 
The House divided. 

Ayes, 43. 	 Noes, 12. 
Mr. McMillan, 
Mr. Bruce Smith, 
Mr. Brunker, 
Mr. Sydney Smith, 
Mr. Gould, 
Mr. Greene, 
Mr. Carruthers, 
Mr. William Stephen, 
Mr. Davis, 
Mr. Levien, 
Mr. Garrard, 
Mr. Inglis, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Nicoll, 
Mr. Bowman, 
Mr. Wheeler, 
Mr. Wilshire, 
Mr. Waddell, 
Mr. Cullen, 
Mr. MeCourt, 
Mr. Abigail, 
Mr. Wyman Brown, 
Mr. Dowel, 
Mr. Creer, 
Mr. Lees, 
Mr. Lehman, 

Mr. Harold Stephen, 
Mr. Perry, 
Mr. McRae, 
Mr. Hogan, 
Mr. Ewing, 
Mr. Cooke, 
Mr. Seobie, 
Mr. H. H. Brown, 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Cant erbury), 
Mr. Seaver, 
Mg Wall, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Cruickshank, 
Mr. Haynes, 
Mr. Chapman, 
Mr. King, 
Mr. Paul, 
Mr. Clubb, 
Mr. Dawson, 
Mr. Alison. 

Tellers, 
Mr. Nobbs, 
Mr. Barbour. 

Mr. Hibbs, 
Mr. Slattery, 
Mr. Fletcher, 
Mr. Trail!, 
Mr. Edmunds, 
Mr. Copeland, 
Mr. Cass, 
Mr. Melville, 
Mr. Kidd, 
Mr. Hawken. 

Tellers. 
Mr. Hutchison 

(Glen Inner), 
Mr. Crick. 

  

And so it was resolved in the affirmative. 
Question then,— 
(1.) That in the opinion of this Rouse, it is desirable, in order to expedite public business, that 
the speeches of Honorable Members should be limited to time. 
(2.) That the Standing Orders Committee be requested to submit to the House a Standing Order 
dealing with the question,—put and passed. 

VOTES No. 26, THURSDAY, 16 Mn, 1889. 
2. PROPOSED STANDING ORDERS :—Mr. J. P. Abbott, on behalf of the Chairman, brought up from the 

Standing Orders Committee a Report, with the Standing Orders prepared by that Committee, 
pursuant to the references of the 16th April and 7th May, 1389. 
Ordered to be printed. 
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1889. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

STANDING ORDERS. 

REPORT FROM THE STANDING ORDERS COMMITTEE 

OF THE 

LEGISLATIVE 'ASSEMBLY, 

WITH THE 

PROPOSED STANDING ORDERS. 

THE STANDING ORDERS COMMITTEE, to whom was referred,— 
(1,) On the 16th April; 1889, the whole of the "Standing Orders of this 

"House for its consideration and report, with power from time to time to 
"make Progress Reports to this House" ; and 

(2.) On the 7th May, 1889, a request to submit to the House a Standing Order 
dealing with the question "that in the opinion of this House it is desirable, 
"in order to expedite public business, that the speeches of Honorable 
"Members should be limited to time,"—have agreed to the following 
Report :— 

1. Your Committee, in accordance with the reference of the 16th April, 1889, 
having had under consideration the whole of the Standing Orders, have prepared, 
and have now the honor to present to your Honorable House, such Standing Rules 
and Orders as, i.n their opinion, ought to be adopted for the orderly conduct of the 
business of your Honorable House. 

2. Your Committee having considered the request of the 7th May, 1889, 
further report that in their opinion it is not expedient to pass a Standing Order to 
further limit the time of speaking of Honorable Members. 

JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
Chairman. 

Legislative Assembly Chamber, 
Sydney, 15th May, 1889. 
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1889. 

PROPOSED STANDING RULES AND ORDERS 
Or TEE 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, NEW SOUTH WALES. 

REPEAL OF PREVIOUS STANDING RULES AND ORDERS. 

1. All previous Standing Rules and Orders are hereby repealed. 

CHAPTER I. 

GENERAL CONDUCT OF BUSINESS. 

2. In all cases not specially provided for hereinafter, or by Sessional or other Go:m..1)3,4e 
Orders, resort shall be had to the rules, forms, and usages of the Imperial Parlia- of Practice. 

ment, which shall, be followed so far as the same can be applied to the proceedings 
of this House : Provided that nothing herein contained shall be deemed to render 
applicable any new Standing Order of the Imperial Parliament made since the 
1st January, 1880, save so far as the same shall have been or shall be expressly 
adopted by this House. 

CHAPTER II. 

PROCEEDINGS ON THE OPENING OF A NEW PARLIAMENT. 
3. On the first day of the meeting of a new Parliament for the despatch f 0— Clerk readg 

business, pursuant to the Governor's Proclamation., Members of the Assembly having Proclamation,  
met at the time and place appointed, the Clerk of the Assembly shall read the 
Proclamation and announce the receipt of the Writs of Election and the List of 
Members elected. 

4. The House shall await a Message from the Commissioners appointed by Message from 
the Governor for opening the Parliament. 	 theConimie- 

sioners. 

5. On receiving the message from the Governor's Commissioners for opening House hears 
the Parliament, the Members of the Assembly will attend at the place named in Oomission 

the Message to hear the Commission read. 
6. The Assembly having beard the Commission for opening the Parliament Members 

read, and being in their own Chamber, a Commissioner or the Commissioners sm 
appointed by the Governor for swearing Members shall be announced, and the 
Commission read by the Clerk. 

7. Members shall then be sworn or make affirmation as prescribed by law, Writs of eke-
and shall sign the roll ; and the writ of election of each Member, with the return tt,Miretbeffi.,' 
endorsed thereon, shall be produced by the Clerk on the oath or affirmation being 
administered to such Member. 

249 —B 	 8, 
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For speaker's 	8. For the purpose of the election of a Speaker, the Clerk of the Assembly election, Clerk 
acts as arm, shall act as Chairman of the House, and in any debate at such election shall decide 
man. 	which Member is entitled to address the House. 

9. After the Members present have been sworn, a Member, addressing 
himself to the Clerk, shall propose some other member, then present, to the House, 
for their Speaker, and move that "Mr. — do take the Chair of this House as 
Speaker." 

If unopposed, 
such Member 	10. If only one Member be proposed and seconded as Speaker, he shall be 
called to the called to the Chair of the House without a question being put. 
Chair. 

He submits 	 11. Such Member on being called to the Chair, shall stand up in his place, 
himH01113

se
e
1
.
f to tho and express his sense of the honor proposed to be conferred upon him, and submit 

himself to the House. 

Again called 	 12. Being again called to the Chair, he shall be conducted from his seat to andeonducted 
to the Chair. the Chair by the Members who proposed and seconded him. 
When two 
or more 
Members 
proposed as 
Speaker. 

Mode of 
decision 
between 
candidates. 

13. If two or more Members be proposed as Speaker, a motion shall be made 
and seconded regarding each such Member, "That Mr. — do take the Chair of 
this House as Speaker"; and each Member so proposed shall address himself to the 
House. 

14. The Clerk shall then, in the order in which the Members have been pro-
posed, put the question "That Mr. — do take the Chair of this House as Speaker;" 
and if resolved in the affirmative the Member shall be conducted to the Chair, as 
provided in Rule No. 12, but if in the negative, or in the event of the numbers 
being equal, the question shall then be put by the Clerk "That (the Wernher next 
proposed) do take the Chair of this House as Speaker," and so on until a majority 
has been recorded in favour of one of the candidates. 

Chair. 

The Speaker 
takes the 	

on the upper step, shall return his acknowledgments to the House for the honor 
conferred upon him, and assume the Chair. 

15. Having been conducted to the Chair, the Member so elected, standing 

Appointment 	16. Members having then congratulated the Speaker, a Member of the fo presenter 
tion

r 
 of the Government shall inform the House at what hour the Governor will be pleased to 

t
s ker

ve
to
mon receive the House for the purpose of presenting to His Excellency their Speaker, 

and the House shall then adjouru to that hour, unless the Governor is prepared to 
receive the House at once. 

The Speaker 	 17. The Speaker having resumed the Chair at that hour (in the .event of presents 
?himself  to the the House having adjourned) shall proceed, with any Members then present, to 
Governor. Government House, for the purpose of presenting himself to the Governor; and at 
LIP claim to such presentation he shall, in the name and on behalf of the House, lay claim to privileges, their undoubted rights and privileges, and pray that the most favourable construc-

tion may be put upon all their proceedings; and, on returning, shall pass through 
the Assembly Chamber, and having resumed the Chair, shall report his presentation 
to the Governor, as well as the circumstance that he had laid claim, on behalf of 
the House, to their undoubted rights and privileges. 

Time an- 	 18. A Member of the Government shall then inform the House at what hour nouncod for 
the Governer the Governor will be pleased to summon the House for the purpose of hearing the 
addressing the reasons of His Excellency's calling the Parliament together; and the House may Parliament. then adjourn to that hour. 

Introduction 	 19. A Member, returned at other than a general election, shall be introduced .of new 
member,. to the House by a Member. 

When seated 
on petition. 20. Members seated on Petition need not be introduced. 

A Member 
proposed as 
Speaker. 

21.' 
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• 21: Whenever the House shall be informed by the Clerk of the unavoidable Absence of 

absence of Mr. Speaker, the Chairman of Committees shall perform the duties and Spea k".  
exercise the authority of the Speaker in relation to all proceedings of the House as 
Deputy-Speaker until the next meeting of the House, and so on from (lay to day, on 
the like information being given to the House, until the House shall otherwise order: 
Provided that if the House shall adjourn for more than twenty-four hours, the 
Deputy-Speaker shall continue to perform the duties and exercise the authority of 
Speaker for twenty-four hours only after such adjournment. 

. 22. If the Clerk intimate that the Speaker and Chairman of Committees Absence of the 
both be absent, the House, if a quorum of Members be present, may at once proceed t. ittal 
to elect one of their number to act as Deputy Speaker for that day only, the question Committees. 
being put by the Clerk without debate ; and the Member so elected shall be, for the 
time being, in the same position hi every respect as provided for the Chairman of 
Committees in Rule 21; otherwise the House will stand adjourned to the next 
sitting day, and such adjournment shall be declared by the Clerk. 

23. In case of unavoidable absence or illness of the Clerk of the Assembly, Unavoidable 
the duties imposed upon him shall be performed by the Clerk-Assistant, or, in his acblesrer, of the 

absence, by the officer next in seniority. 
24. When a vacancy has occurred in the office of Speaker during a Session, Vacancy in 

the Clerk of the Assembly shall report th.e same to the House at its first sitting sdritn. 
afterwards, and the House shall forthwith proceed to the election of a new Speaker. 

25. When a vacancy has occurred in the office of Speaker during recess, v sakngereYreshinet except by dissolution of the Parliament, the Clerk of the Assembly shall report the 
same to the House on its return from hearing the Governor's Speech on opening the 
next Session, and it shall forthwith proceed to the election of a new Speaker. 

26. When a vacancy has occurred in the office of Speaker, during the rrivaeg98 hot 
currency of a Parliament, the new Speaker, on being presented to the Governor, er  

claimed by 
Speak 

does not lay claim to the privileges of the House. 	 elected during 
currency of 
Parliament. 

CHAPTER III. 
OPENING OF A SESSION OF PARLIAMENT. 

27. On the first (lay of the meeting of Parliament for the despatch of business, Clerk reads 
pursuant to the Governor's Proclamation, Members of the Assembly having met at Proclamation. 
the time and place appointed, the Clerk of the Assembly shall read the Proclamation. 

28. The House shall await a Message from the Governor. 	 Message frola 
Governor. 

29. When the reasons for calling Parliament together are announced by When.rarus,  
Commissioners appointed by the, Governor, the same forms shall be observed by the 133)1yenctorsta. 
Assembly as when the Governor opens Parliament in person. 	 sioners. 

30. On the receipt of the Message to attend the Governor to hear his Speech, House hears 
the Speaker with the House shall. attend at the place appointed by the Governor. 	tslipeeletvortior'e 

31. The Speaker and the House having heard the Governor's Speech, and Room Maine 
being in their own Chamber, the House may then adjourn during pleasure. 	to its own 

Chamber. 

• 32. Before the Governor's Speech is reported to the House by the Speaker, s ome  formal 
some formal motion shall be made, or formal business transacted. 	 business first 

transacted. 

• . 33. The Speaker shall then report that the House had that day attended the The Speaker 
Governor, and that His Excellency had been pleased to make a Speech to both 

ravoert:!'se Houses of Parliament, of which Speech the Speaker had, for greater accuracy, Speech. 
obtained a copy, which he will then read to the House. 

34. The Speech having been read, a Select Committee shall be appointed to cammittee.  
draw up an Address to be presented to the Governor in reply, and His Excellency's appointed 
Speech shall be referred to such Committee. 

35. 
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Address in - 	. 35. The Address being reported by the Committee, may be at once taken into 
reply agreed 
W and pre. consideration, or be ordered to be printed, and a future day fixed for its consideration ; 
sented to the and having been adopted by the House, with or without an amendment, shall be 
Governor. 	 a 

presented to the Governor by the Speaker, accompanied by the Mover and Seconder 
and such Members of the House as shall think fit -to attend, at such time as the 
Governor shall inform the Speaker it will be His Excellency's pleasure to receive 
the House. 

Only formal 	 36. No business beyond what is of a formal character shall be entered upon 
business 
before 	before the Address in reply to the Governor's Opening Speech has been adopted. 
adoption of 
Address. 

Meeting of 
the House. 

CHAPTER IV. 
SITTING AND ADJOURNMENT 00 THE HOUSE. 

37. The Bell shall be rung two minutes prior to Mr. Speaker taking the 
Chair. 

Time of 
meeting. 

there be not a Quorum of Members present, shall adjourn the House to. the next 
appointed for the meeting of the House, and if at the expiration of such half-hour 

sitting day ; the names of the Members present being entered on the Votes and 

38. The Speaker shall take the Chair within half an hour after the time 

Proceedings. 
House pro- 	 39. When the attendance of the House has been desired by the Governor, the 
coeds to 
business on House, on its return, will proceed with business, although less than a Quorum be 
return from present, until notice he taken thereof. attending the 
Governor. 

40. If, at any time after the commencement of the Business of the Day, Want of 
Quorum. notice be taken by any Member, or the Chairman of a Committee of the Whole 

report (whether upon Division or otherwise) that there is not a Quorum of Members 
present, the Sergeant-at-Arms, by direction of the Speaker, shall ring the Division 
Bell, and one of the Clerks Assistant at the Table shall simultaneously turn a 
Minute-glass ; and, at the expiration of one minute by the glass, the Speaker shall 
count the House, and if there be not a Quorum present (exclusive of the Speaker), 
shall adjourn the House to the next day of meeting • Provided that if, on any 
Division in the House, it appear by the Lists handed in by the Tellers that there 
is not a Quorum present, the Speaker shall adjourn the House at once, without the 
Bell being rung or the Minute-glass turned. 

Attention 	 41. When the attention of the Speaker, or of the Chairman of Committees, 
called to no 
Quorum, 	has been called to the fact that there is not a Quorum present, no Member shall 
Members to leave the Chamber until the House has been counted by the Speaker. 
reinain. 

Attention , 	 42. Any Member calling attention to the absence of a Quorum when a Quorum 
reeeratren 

 
is actually present shall be deemed guilty of disorder. 

actually pre-
sent. 
Names of 	 43. Upon every occasion when the House is counted out, the names.. of 
Members Members present shall be taken down by one of the Clerks Assistant, and be entered 
present at 
count Ont. in the Votes and Proceedings 
House only 	 44. Except in the cases mentioned in Rules 22, 38, and 40, when the Speaker 
adjou
itso rcsolu- adjourns the House without putting a Question, the House can only be adjourned rns by 

tion, with 	by its own resolution. 
exceptions. 
Motions for 	 45. No motion for the adjournment of the House shall be entertained until 

.adjournme"t,  the formal business shall have been disposed of, and then only for the purpose 
of discussing a definite matter of urgent public importance, the subject of which 
shall be first stated to the Speaker in writing. 

Motion to be 	 46. When the motion is proposed "That this House do now adjourn," such 
supported by at  a„ motion shall be openly proposed without any words from the mover in support, 
MeMbers, and shall only be proceeded with on five other Members rising in their places 

to support it. 	
47. 
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47. On the question being proposed "That this House do now adjourn," the Limilion of 

mover shall not exceed one hour in speaking in support of such motion, and any otherstpolmaeking . 
Member speaking to such motion, or the mover in reply, shall not exceed twenty 
minutes, and every Member ma'ting or speaking to any such motion shall confine 
himself to the one subject in respect to which the motion has been made. 

48. No second motion for the adjournment of the House shall be made on No second 

the same day, except by the consent of the House obtained by question from the nwtmaci SUMO ay. 
Chair, without debate. 

49. Nothing contained in .Rules 45, 40, 17, and 48 shall apply to the usual Mdotion for 

motion of adjournment by a member of the Government to terminate the sitting of tojtounorTioato 
t 

the House. 	 sitting. 

CHAPTER V. 
RECORDS OF THE HOUSE. 

50. Every Vote and Proceeding- of the House shall be recorded by the Clerk Votes and 
of the Assembly, and the Votes and Proceedings of the House shall, being first Proceedings 
perused by the Speaker, be printed by the Government Printer ; and the Votes and 
Proceedings, so printed from day to day, signed by the Speaker and countersigned 
by the Clerk, shall be the Journals of the House. 

51. The custody of the Votes and Proceedings, Records, and all documents costa,- of 
whatsoever laid before the House, shall be in the Clerk, who shall neither take, nor Records ' 
permit to be taken, any such Votes and Proceedings, Records, or Documents, from 
the Chamber or Offices, without the express leave or order of the Speaker. 

CHAPTER VI. 
ATTENDANCE AND PLACES OF MminEns. 

52. A Record of the Members of the House shall be kept by the Clerk, in Record of 
which shall be entered the name of each Member, the date of his election, the date member' 
of his taking his seat, and, on his ceasing to be a Member, the date and the cause 
thereof. 

53. Every Member is bound to attend the service of the House, unless leave members to 
of absence be given to him by the House. 	 attend House. 

54. Leave of absence, not exceeding the remainder of the then Session, may lime of 
be riven by the House to any Member, for any sufficient cause, to be stated to absence  may be given. 
the House. 

55. Notice shall be given of a motion for giving leave of absence to any 1:7400ttiicoen  off.,  

Member, stating the cause and period of absence, 	 leave of 
absence. 

any Leave of 
absence 
excuses from 
service. 

57. Any Member, having leave of absence, shall forfeit the same by attending Leave of 
absence the service of the House, before the expiration of such leave. 	 forfeited. 

58. No Order for a Call of -the House shall be made for any day earlier than can 'of the 
fourteen days from the day on which such order shall have been made. 	 House. 

59. A notice of the order for a Call of the House, signed by the Clerk, shall Notice of call. 
be  forwarded by post to each Member of the Assembly. 

60. For the purpose of enabling this notice to be given, every Member shall, 14. mint° 
at the commencement of each session, or as soon as he shall have taken his seat, Alillotsseela . 
enter his name and address in a book to be kept by the Clerk of the House. 

61. The order for Calling over the Rouse on a future day shall be set down call of tbe 

as the first Order of the Day for the day so appointed. 	 House a'n 
Order of tile 

62. Day' 

56. A Member shall be excused from service in the House, or on 
Committee, so long as he has leave of absence. 
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62. When the Order of the Day for Calling over the House is read, unless 
the - same be postponed or discharged, the names of the Members shall be called 
over by the Clerk alphabetically. 

Members not 	63. The names of all Members, who do not answer when called, shall be 
present, but taken down by the Clerk, and subsequently called over a second time ; when those subsequently 
attending. who answer, or afterwards attend in their places on the same day, are ordinarily 

excused. 
Members may 	64. Members not attending in their places on the same day may be ordeied a
itttens

nd 
d
°n

ay
! 

ftie 
 to attend on a future day, when, unless they attend, or a reasonable excuse be offered 

for their absence, they will be dealt with for their default as the House may think fit. -  
65. The front bench on the right hand of the Chair shall be reserved for 

Members holding office under the Crown. 
66. Every Member shall be uncovered when he enters or leaves the House, 

or moves to any other part, of the House during the debate ; and shall make 
obeisance to the Chair on entering or leaving the Chamber 

67. No Member shall pass between the Chair and the Table. 

68. Every Member of the House, when he comes into the House, shall taka 
a seat, and shall not stand in any of the passages or gangways. 

CHAPTER VII. 
STRANGERS. 

Admission of. 	69. The Speaker only shall have the privilege of admitting Strangers to the 
space at the back of the Speaker's Chair, or to the Lower Gallery ; but every 
Member shall have the privilege of admitting, by orders, not transferable, two 
Strangers to the Upper Gallery. 

Notice taken _ 	70. When the Speaker or the Chairman of Committees, as the case may be, has 
of  Pr'ne". been notified by a Member that strangers are present, and five other Members 

rise in their places in token of their support to the objection, the Speaker or Chair-
man of Committees shall, and he may at any time, order the strangers to withdraw. 

71. No Member shall bring any Stranger into any part of the Chamber 
appropriated to the Members of the House, while the House or a Committee 
of the whole House is sitting. 

Or to pecret 	
. 72. No Stranger shall be admitted at any time to a Secret Committee. 

Committee. 

Routirie of 
business. 

Presentation 
of gapers.. 

CHAPTER VIII. 
ROUTINE OF BUSINESS. 

73. The House shall proceed each day with its ordinary businnss, in the 
following routine :-1. Questions on notice. 2. Presentation of Petitions. 3. 
Questions without notice, and givin g 	of Motions and Questions. 4. Formal 
Business (including the placing of business). 5. Motions and Orders of the Day, or 
vice vend, as set down on the INotice Paper. 

74. Messages between the Legislative Connell and Assembly, Papers, and 
Returns may be presented at any time when other business is not before the House. 

, 
Questions 
respecting 
public 
business. 
Answers 
recorded. 

CHAPTER IX. 
QUESTIONS SEEKING INFORMATION FROM THE GOVERNMENT. 

• 	 75. Questions may be put to Ministers of the Crown relating to public 
affairs ; and to other Members, relating to any Bill, Motion, or other public matter 
connected with the business of the House, in which such Members may be concerned, 
and the Clerk shall enter upon the Votes and Proceedings the Questions of which 
formal notice shall have been given with the answers returned to the same. 

76. 

°icier of 
calling the 
names, 

Ministerial 
Bench. 

Member to 
be uncovered 
when not 
seated. 

Not to pass 
between Chair 
and Table. 
Not to 
obstruct 
passages. 

Not admitted 
into body of 
House. 
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76. In putting any such Question, no argument or opinion shall be offered, Questions not taorviomvoeinto  nor any facts stated, except so far as may be necessary to explain such Question. 

77. In answering any such Question, a Member shall not debate the matter No debate 
allowed. to which the same refers. 

78. When Questions are put without notice, neither the Question nor reply Questions 
without shall be recorded in the Votes and Proceedings. 	 notice. 

79. Notices of Questions shall not be openly read, but shall be handed to one l g  notices. of the Clerks at the Table before the Formal Business is entered upon as prescribed n  
by Rule 73. 

80. Answers to Questions of which notice has been given, shall not be openly Answers. 

read in the House, but written answers (in duplicate) shall be handed in to the Clerk. 

CHAPTER X. 
PETITIONS. 

81. Every Petition must he in writing, and no printed or lithographed Petition Form. 
shall be received. 

82. Every Petition must contain the prayer of Petitioners at the end thereof. Prayer. 

83. Every Petition must be written in the English language, and must be To be in 
E1 free from interlineations or erasures. 	 nglis 1. 

 

84. Every Petition shall be signed by at least one person on the skin or To be signed 
on sheet on which the Petition is inscribed. 	 same sheet. 

 

85. Every Petition must be signed by the parties whose names are appended Authenticity 

thereto, with their names or marks written or made by themselves, and by no one of signatures. 
 

else, except in cases of incapacity from sickness. 
86. Every signature shall be written upon the sheets bearing, or attached to signatures not to be 

transferred. the Petition itself, and not pasted upon or otherwise transferred thereto. 
eToofrbood  rses.ly as  87. All Petitions shall be received only as the Petitions of the parties signing  
from the per• the same. 
sons signing. 

88. Petitions of Corporations aggregate must be made under their common ire:a; o.  
seal. 	 rations. 

89. No letters, affidavits, or other documents shall be attached to any No d000. 
-Petition, except it be a Petition for a Private Bill, when the Gazettes, and news- arrtat, d) . be 
papers containing the necessary advertisements, may be attached, with a copy of Exception. 
the Bill. 

90. No reference shall be made in a Petition to any debate in Parliament. 	No reference  
to debates. 

91. Every Petition shall be respectful, decorous, and temperate in its Longuago of. 
language. 

92. Petitions can only be presented to the House by a Member. 	 Presented by 
a Member. 

93. A Member cannot present a Petition from himself. Prom 
Members. 

94. Every Member presenting a Petition to the House shall affix his name affix their 
 
to  

at the beginning thereof. 	 names. 

95. It shall be incumbent on every Member presenting a Petition to Members pre - 
acquaint himself with the contents thereof, and to ascertain that it does not contain sepett to 
language disrespectful to any branch of the Legislature. 

96. Every Member presenting a Petition shall take care that the same is in Rule' of the 
House to be conformity with the rules and orders of the House. 	 observed: 

97. No Petition shall, either directly or indirectly, pray for a grant of public Not to Pray 
money. 	 for money. 

98. 
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Mode of 
presenting. 

Printing of. 

98. Every Member presenting a Petition, not being a Petition for a Private 
Bill, or relating to a Private Bill before the House, shall confine himself to a state-
mart of the parties from whom it comes—of the number of signatures attached to 
it—of the material allegations contained in it—and to the reading of the prayer 
thereof ; and the only Question which shall be entertained by the House, on the 
presentation of any Petition, shall be, "That the Petition be received," which 
question shall be decided without amendment or debate. 

99. The Clerk shall cause to be printed, as a matter of course, all Petitions 
received by this House (excepting Petitions for the introduction of Private Bills), 
unless it be otherwise ordered by the House : Provided that when several Petitions 
are presented substantially to the same effect, he shall cause to be printed only the 
one first presented, to which he shall append a statement of the number of other 
Petitions, the general designation of the party or parties to each, and the number of 
signatures attached. 

CHAPTER XI. 

NOTICES.  OF MOTIONS. 

Notice of 	 100. Every Member on giving Notice of a Motion shall read it aloud, and 
Motion'yen 
in writing. g" deliver at the table a copy of such notice, fairly written, signed by himself and 

showing the day proposed for bringing on such Motion. 
Notice given 	 101. A Member, on being duly requested, may give notice for any other 
for an absent Member not then present, by putting the name of such Member on the Notice of Member. 

Motion, in addition to his own. 
Postpone. 	 102. A Member desiring to change the day for bringing on a Motion, may 
ment of  
Motion, 	give notice of such Motion for any day subsequent to that first named, but not 

earlier, subject to the same rules as other Notices of Motion. 
Time for 	 103. No Notice of Motion shall be received except at the time prescribed by 
receiving 	Rule 73. Notices, 
Unbecoming 	 104. If any Notice contains unbecoming expressions, the Speaker may order 
Notices 	that it shall not be printed, or it may be expunged from the Notice Paper, by order expunged. 

of the House. 
Giving more 	 105. No Member (except a Minister) may give two Notices of Motion con- 
than one  
Notice. 	secutively. 
Notices 	 106. Any Notice of Motion for a special adjournment or which relates to the 
taking Pre"' Privileges or Business of the House shall take precedence of all other Notices of dence. 

Motions or Orders of the Day. 

CHAPTER XII. 

FORMAL BUSINESS AND BUSINESS OF THE HOUSE. 

Formal 	 107. Every Motion or Order of the Day for the third reading of d Bill, to 
Motions or 
Orders of the 	011 which, the Question being put from the Chair—" Whether there is any objection 
Day. 	to its being a 'Formal' Motion or Order of the Day ?"—no objection shall be taken, 

shall be deemed to be a "Formal" Motion or Order of the Day. 
Busines 10S. Before the Ordinary Business of each day shall be entered upon, Mr. 
paper to be 
calted evertor Speaker shall call over the various Notices of Motions and Orders of the Day for 
•• Formal" third reading of Bills ; and on any such Motion or Order being called it shall be 
Business.  competent for the Member otherwise entitled to move it to have the above question 

put with reference thereto; and such "Formal" Motions or Orders of the Day shall 
be disposed of in the relative order in which they stand on the Business Paper, 
taking precedence of all the other Motions and Orders of the Day. 

No debate 	 109. No debate shall be allowed upon any such "Formal Motions or Orders 
allowed, 	of the Day," or upon the further proceedings consequent on the reading of such 

Orders, but the House may proceed to division thereupon, without amendment or 
debate, as in the ease of the motion for the first reacjing of a Bill. 	110. 
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110. NO motion for the appointment of a Select Committee, excepting upon Motions foe • 
a Private Bill, shall be held to be a " Formal " Motion. 	 Select 

Committee. 
111. The motion for leave to bring in a Private Bill shall be put from the Motion for 

Chair as a Formal Motion, no objection being allowed, 	 leave to bring
in Private 

• 
112. After calling over the various Notices of Motions and Orders of the Day Elaoing of 

for third reading of Bills for disposal as "Formal Business," Mr. Speaker shall again 'm e"' 
go through the Business Paper for the day to permit Members, without debate, to 
withdraw or postpone Notices of Motions or Orders of the Day on the Business 
Paper for that Day ; and any Notices of Motions or Orders of the Day not so -with-
drawn or postponed, shall retain their relative positions on such Business Paper. 

CHAPTER XIII. 
PUBLIC MONEY. 

113. This House will not proceed on a question involving the expenditure of make, in. 
public money or any charge upon the Public Revenue or upon the people, except IpZirexer 
in a Committee of the Whole on a day fixed by motion at a previous sitting ; no pebtremeney, ere. debate being allowed on such motion. 

111. This House will not pr3ceed upon any Petition, Motion, or Bill, for Grant of 
granting any money, or for releasing or compounding any sum of money owing to Izni= 
the Crown, but in a Committee of the Whole House. 	 owing to the 

Crown. 

CHAPTER XIV. 
RULES OF DEBATE. 

115. Every Member desiring to speak shall rise in his place uncovered, and Members 
address himself to the Speaker, and may, if he thinks fit,. advance thence to the tEtt,aggi and 
table for the purpose of continuing his address. 	 uncovered. 

116. By the special indulgence of the House, a Member unable conveniently indul gence 
to stand, by reason of sickness or infirmity, will be permitted to speak sitting and tatter, 
uncovered. 	 stand. 

117. When two or more Members rise together to speak, the Speaker shall Speaker 
calls upon call upon the Member who, in his opinion, first rose in his place. 	 Members to 
speak. 

118. By the indulgence of the House, a Member may explain matters of a Personal 
personal nature although there be no question before the House; but such matters explanation. 
may not be debated. 

119. No Member may sper.k more than once to a Question before the House, Member not 
except in explanation or reply, or in Committee of the whole House. 	 to speaktwice. 

120. A Member who has spoken to a Question may again be heard, to explain Explanation. 
himself in regard to some mater's1 part of his speech, but shall not introduce any 
new matter, or interrupt any Member in possession of the chair. 

121. A reply shall only be allowed to a Member who has made a substantive Rorly; 
Motion to the House, or moved the second or third reading of a Bill. 

122. A reply will also be allowed to the Mover of a substantive Motion, Reply at close 
although the debate thereon, by being adjourned, becomes an Order of the Day. 	alfadijemoi rnnead 

Motion. 
123. The Speaker shall, without waiting for the interposition of the House, Speaker 

call to order any Member, other than those provided for in the four last preceding atezearthee,rt 
rules, proceeding to speak a second time on the same Question : Provided that ft speaking 
shall be competent to a Member, when he seconds a Motion or Amendment before Ezaeptions. 
the House, without speaking to it, to address the House on the subject of such 
Motion or Amendment at any subsequent period of the debate. 

121. A motion may be made that any Member who has 
heard," or "Do now speak," and must be decided without debate. 

249—Q 	 125, 

risen " Be now Motion that 
a Member be 
heard, • 
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Debates of 	 125. No Member shall allude to any debate of the same Session, upon a 
same session 
not to  be 	Question or Bill not being then under discussion, except by the indulgence of the 
alluded to. House for personal explanations. 
Speeches of 	 126. No Member shall read the report of any speech made in Parliathent same Session 
not to beread. during the same Session. 
Extracts 	 127. No Member shall read extracts from newspapers or other documents 
referring to 

 debates not referring to debates in the House during the same Session. tr(3 	b 
•be read. 
Reflections 	 128. No Member shall reflect upon any vote of the House, except for the 
upon votes  
of the 	purpose of moving that such vote be rescinded. 
House. 
Allusion to 	 129. No Member shall allude to any debate in the other House of Parliament, 
debate in the 
other House. or to any measure impending therein. 
Use of the 	 130. No Member shall use Her Majesty's or the Governor's name irreverently 
Queen's in debate, not for the purpose of influencing the House in its deliberations. name. 

Offensive 	 131. No Member shall use offensive words against either House of Par- 
words against i . 
either HOU8C. 'lament, or against any Statute, unless for the purpose of moving for its repeal. 
No Member 	 132. No Member shall refer to any other Member by name, except for the 
to be referred purpose of distinguishing him from other Members returned for the same Electoral to by name. 

District. 
Offensive 	 133. No Member shall use offensive or unbecoming words in reference to any 
words against Member of either House of Parliament. a Member. 

Digressions, 	 1.34. No Member shall digress from the subject matter of any Question 
imputations, 
and reflections 

under discussion ; and all imputations of improper motives, and all personal 
- 	reflections on Members, shall be deemed disorderly. 

Question may 	135. Any Member may request that the Question or matter in discussion be 
be requested stated for his information at any time durin g the debate, but not so as to interrupt to be stated. 	 m 

a Member speaking. 
When the 	 136. Whenever the Speaker rises during a debate, any Member then speaking 
Speaker rises ' or offering to speak shall sit down, and the House shall be silent, so that the Speaker 

may be heard without interruption. 	 . 
Or puts the 	 137. When the Speaker is putting a Question, no Member shall walk out of 
Question: or across the Chamber ; nor, when a Member is speaking , shall any Member hold Interruptions. 	 b 

• discourse to interrupt him. 
Interruption 	 138. No Member shall interrupt another Member whilst speaking, unless 
not allowed, (1) to request that his words be taken down, (2) to call attention to a point of 
Exceptions. Order ; or (3) to call attention to the want of a Quorum 	 • 
Speaker or 	 139. The Speaker or the Chairman of Committees may call the attention of 
Chairman 
may call 	the House or the Committee to continued irrelevance or tedious repetition on 
attention to the part of a Member, and may direct such Member to discontinue his speech : inrodeloovrrerev e.  

'di Provided that the Member so directed shall have the right to require the Speaker or 
continuance Chairman to put the Question that he be further heard, and such Question shall be 
of speech. put without debate. 
Speaking 	 140. Any Member may rise to speak upon a matter of Privilege suddenly 
"To Order"  
or Privilege, arising, or "to Order," subject to rule 142. 

141. All matters of Privilege and question.s of Order at any time arising 
shall, until decided, suspend the consideration and decision of every other Question. 

• 142. Upon a Question of Order being raised, the Member called to Order' 
shall resume his seat, and after the Question of Order has been stated to the Speaker 
by the Member rising to Order, the Speaker may give his decision thereon, or he 
may first hear further argument thereon, at his discreti.on. 

Disagreement 	143. Any Motion disagreeing with a ruling or decision of the Speaker, shall 
wAliSpeaker's 
ruling 	be moved immediately the ruling is given or upon notice given on either of the next 

three sitting days of a Motion expressing such objection or disagreement, and such 
Motion shall have precedence of all other business on the day for which it is set 
down. 

144. 

Precedence 
to Question 
of Order or 
Privilege. 
Proceedings 
on Question 
of Order. 
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• 	144. If any objection is taken to a decision of the Chairman of Committees, Objection to 
such objection must be taken at once; and having been stated in writing, and if the Ceiti°Xifot• 
Committee so decide, the Chairman shall leave the Chair, and the matter be laid Committees. 
before the Speaker ; and having been disposed of, the Speaker shall leave the Chair 
without question put, and the p7oceedings in Committee shall be resumed where 
they were interrupted. 

145. When any Member objects to words used in debate, and desires them Words taken 
teunsetn to be taken down, the Speaker may direct them to be taken down. by the Clerk 	the  

accordingly. 
146. In a Committee of the whole House, the Chairman shall direct words Words taken 

objected to to be taken down, if so ordered by the Committee without debate, in d'wn irk  Committee. 
order that the same may be reported to the House. 

w
obJe

.(1s
nd

to
lo

bo  147. Every such. objection must be taken at the time when such words are 
used, and not after any other Member has spoken. 	 when used. 

148. Any Member having used objectionable words, and not explaining or Member not 
retracting the same, or offering apologies for the use thereof to the satisfaction of 	ill= or  
the House, shall be named by the Speaker as guilty of a wilful and vexatious breach 	. 
of the Standing Orders, and any Member so named shall sit down, unless 
permitted to explain. 

149. The House will interfere to prevent the prosecution of any quarrel "Tore will 
between Members, arising out of debates or proceedings of the House, or any TiarrPeoris. 
Committee thereof. 

150. No Member shall converse aloud or make any noise or disturbance No noise or 
istpitnion whilst any Member is debating, or whilst any Bill, Order, or other matter is being 

read or opened ; and in case of such noise or disturbance being persisted in after debate. 
the Speaker has called to Order, the Speaker shall name the Member as guilty of a 
wilful and vexatious breach of the Standing Orders. 

151. When, in consequence of disorderly conduct, the Speaker shall call upon Member 
any Member by name, such Member shall withdraw as soon as he has been heard in 
explanation ; and after such. Member's withdrawal the House shall at once take the after explana-
case into consideration. 	 tion.  

152. In the case of a charge against a Member, for any breach of the Orders When charge 
of the House, or for any matter that has arisen in debate, the charge shall be stated, n diLater'rinet 
and the Question moved, before the Member accused shall withdraw; he shall then 
be allowed the opportunity of explaining to the House the motives of his conduct 
in the matter alleged against him ; and, after having so done, he shall withdraw, 
when the House shall at once take the case into consideration. 

153. The rules for maintaining order in debate shall be observed in every Rules of 
Committee of the whole House. 	 debate in  Committee. 

154. Order shall be maintained in the House by the Speaker, and in a Com- o rder to be 
mittee of the whole House by the Chairman of Committees; but disorder in a t"irelisthp̀eianktbY 
Committee can only be censured by the House on receiving a report. 	 and Chairman 

of Committees 
155. A debate may be adjourned on motion, duly seconded, either to a later Adjournment 

hour of the same day, or to any other day. 	 of debate.  

156. The Member upon whose Motion any debate shall be adjourned by the .fember 
House shall, if he rises in his place, be entitled to pre-audience on the resumption 
of thethe debate. 	 entitled to  

pre-audience. 
157. In the event of a Motion for the adjournment of the debate upon any rover of 

iidett i7on  Question being negatived, the Member moving the motion for such adjournment 	=t may not address the House at any time during such debate. 	 spoken to  
question. 

158. If a debate on any Motion or Order of the Day be interrupted by the Debate 
nterr House being counted out, such Motion or Order may be restored to the paper for i rup 

a future day, on Motion with notice, but without debate; and then such debate shall count ou  
be resumed at the point where it was so interrupted. 

159. If the debate on any Question in a Committee of the whole House be Debate in 
similarly interrupted, the House may order, on Motion with notice, but without =L ir 
debate, the resumption of such Committee on a future day, and the debate on such interrupted. 
Question shall then be resumed at the point where it was so interrupted. 

160. 
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Motion may 	 160. At any time during the proceedings of the House, or during the pro- be made 
" That Qum- ceedings of a Committee of the Whole, any Member may move without debate 
tiou 

"
be now " That the Question be now put" ; and such motion shall then be put without put. debate, but shall not be decided in the affirmative unless by a vote of at least forty 

Members in favour thereof, and if such motion be carried, the Speaker or the 
Chairman of Committees, as the case may be, shall forthwith put the Question to 

Right of 	the vote : Provided that whenever the House or a Committee of the Whole House 

	

, Reply. 	shall have decided that any question shall be put, thereupon, and after the House . 	• 
shall have so decided, but before such question shall be put, the mover, proposer, 
or introducer of the matter pending (where any reply is now allowed by the Rules 
of the House), shall be permitted to speak in reply, but shall not speak on such 
reply for more than thirty minutes. 

No ak af 
Membor to 	161. No Member may speak to any Question after the same has been put by 

speter 
Question put. the Speaker and the voices have been given in the affirmative and negative thereon. 
Speaking to 
Order during 

162. A Member speaking to a point of Order, when the House is in Division, 
must remain seated. 

Decision on 	 163. If any difficulty arise on any point of Order during a Division, the 
po

u
i
r
nt

g
of Order 

din 
	Speaker shall decide it ; subject, however, after the division, to the ulterior decision 

Division. 	of the House. 

Question 
proposed by 
the Speaker. 

Resolutions 
to ho put 
seriatim. 
Previous 
Question. 
Form of 
previous 
Quostion. 

CHAPTER XV. 
QUESTIONS FROM THE ellAIR. 

164. When a Motion has been made and seconded, a Question thereupon 
shall be proposed to the House by the Speaker. 

165. When a Motion consists of more than one resolution, such resolutions 
shall be put seriatim if any Member so require. 

166. A Question may be superseded by the Previous Question. 
167. The Previous Question shall be put in the form "That that Question 

be now put" and if it be resolved in the affirmative, the original Question shall 
be put forthwith, without amendment or debate, but if it be resolved in the negative, 
the House shall proceed to the next business on the Notice Paper. 

Previous 	 168. Whenever the Previous Question shall be moved upon any Question 
Question with 
regard to 	consisting of a series of resolutions which have been brought under discussion or 
series of 	debate as one motion, with the understanding that the question be put on such 
resolutions, resolutions seriatim, the decision of the Previous Question, before putting the 

Question on the first of such resolutions, shall be taken and held to be, conclusive, 
whether in the affirmative or negative, as regards the whole of such resolutions. 

Division of 	 169. The House may, by motion, without debate, order a complicated Question complicated 
Question. 	to be divided. 
Question put. 	170. So soon as the debate upon a Question shall, be concluded, the Speaker 

shall put the Question to the House; and if the same should not be heard, shall 
again state it to the House. 

Question 	 171. A question being put shall be resolved in the affirmative or negative, by 
determined 
by the voice& the majority of voices, "Aye" or "No." 
Or 	 172. The Speaker shall state whether, in his opinion, the "Ayes" or the ils70141 of 
tho Hou„.  " Noes " "have it"; and unless his opinion be acquiesced in, the Question shall be 

decided by a Division of the House. 
Tho Berne 	• 	173. No Question shall be proposed which is the same in substance as any 
Question not 
to be again Question which, during the same Session, has been resolved in the affirmative or 

negative. proposed. 

Resolution 	 174. No resolution or other vote may be rescinded during the same Session, 
or vote 
rescinded, 	except after seven days notice, 	 • 

CHATTER 
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CHAPTER XVI. 
A MENDMENTS, 

175. A Question having been proposed may be amended by leaving out Df  incrorenft 
certain words ; by leaving out certain words in order to insert or add other words ; „°,„„BgnentE, 
or by inserting or adding words. 

176. An Amendment to any Motion before the House must, if required by Amendments 
be in the Chair, be in writing. 	 w 

to 
 riting. 

177. An Amendment proposed but not seconded shall not be entertained by Amendments 
must be the House, nor entered in the Votes. 	 seconded. 

178. When the proposed Amendment is to leave out certain words, the Atonlleen d m entt 
o Speaker shall put a Question, "That the words proposed to be left out stand past of weed, 11  

the Question." 
179. When the proposed Amendment is to leave out certain words in order Amendment 

wtoolrera fluid' t to insert or add other words, the Speaker shall put a Question "That the words pro- 
posed to be left out stand part of the Question, which, if resolved in the affirmative, insert or Rdd 
shall dispose of the Amendment ; but, if in the negative, another Question shall be others.  
put, "That the words proposed to be inserted" [or "added"] "be so inserted or added." 

180. When the proposed Amendment is to insert or add certain words, the Amendment 
Speaker shall put a Question "That the words proposed to be inserted" [oradded,,i to inswordert or 

J add 	s, 
"be so inserted [or "added."] 

181. No Amendment shall be proposed in any part of a Question after a later When later 

Question part has been amended, or has been proposed to be amended, unless the proposed P"t44° 
A.mend.ment has been, by leave of the House, withdrawn. 	 amended. 

182. No Amendment shall be proposed to be made to any words which the :NatdrE0,0;edl  
House has resolved shall stand part of the Question, except it be the addition of 
other words thereto. 	 to. , 

183. A proposed Amendment may be, by leave of the House, withdrawn. 

184. Amendments may be proposed to a proposed Amendment as if 
proposed Amendment were an original Question. 

185. When Amendments have been made, the main Question, as amended, Question as  amended put. shall be put. 
186. When Amendments have been proposed, but not made, the Question Whe" Am'd' 

shall be put as originally proposed, 	 pinoeseedb, bpurot.  not 
Made. 

CHAPTER XVII, 
DIVISIONS. 

187, A Division cannot be called for, unless voices have been given both for when no 
the Ayes and Noes. 	 Division, 

188. A member calling for a Division shall not leave the House, and shall Member 

vote with those who, in the opinion of the Speaker, were in the minority. 	calling for 
Division. 

189. No Member.shall be entitled to vote in any Division upon a Question in No Member 
which lie has a direct pecuniary interest, and the vote of any Member so interested ;00 restilly  
shall be disallowed. 	 interested. 

190. No .Member shall be entitled to vote in any Division, unless he be No member 
present in the House when the Question was put with the doors locked, and the p revs: net uwn  
vote of any Member not so present shall be disallowed. 	 Fot hueetkuett  ehedt in000r  

191. Previously to any Division, Strangers shall, if ordered, withdraw from Strangers . 
the body of the House, 	 withdraw, 

192. 

Proposed 
Amendment 
withdrawn. 

such Amendments 
to proposed 
Amendments. 
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192. So soon as a Division shall have been demanded, the Division Bell shall 
be rung, and one of the Clerk's assistant shall simultaneously turn a Minute glass, 
and the doors shall be locked immediately after the lapse of one minute, as indicated 
by such Minute glass, and then no Member shall enter or leave the House until 
after the Division. 

Question put 	193. When the doors have been locked, the Speaker shall put the question to 
and division Ai- e  to House, and the Members present shall take their seats, the "Ayes" to the right, taken. 
Tellers. 	and the " Noes " to the left of the Chair respectively, awl the Speaker shall appoint 

Tellers—two of each Party ; and shall declare which has the majority, from lists of 
the Members voting on each side to be handed to him by the Tellers ; and, in the 
event of the Tellers not agreeing, the Speaker shall appoint other Tellers, and so 

• 	from time to time until the Tellers shall have agreed. 
Members pre- 	194. Every Member present in the House when the Question is then put, 
sent must 
vote. 	will be required to remain and vote. 
If only one 	 195. In case there should be only one Member on a side on a Division, the 
Member. 	Speaker, without completing the Division, shall forthwith declare the resolution 

arrived at. 
196. Members having taken seats, as far as possible, every Member shall 

then be counted, and his name taken down by the Tellers on either side, who shall 
sion the list, and present the same to the Speaker, who will declare the result to the 
House. 

Division lists 
recorded. 

In case of 
error, House 
again divides. 

Mistakes 
corrected in 
Votes and 
Proceedings. 

When votes 
are equal, 
Speaker gives 
Casting Vote. 

197. An entry of the lists of Divisions in the House shall be made by the 
Clerk in the Votes and Proceedings. 

198. In case of confusion or error concerning the numbers reported, unless 
the same can be otherwise corrected, the House shall proceed to another Division. 

199. If the numbers have been inaccurately reported to the House, the 
House, on being afterwards informed thereof, shall order the Votes and Proceedings 
to be corrected. 

200. In case of an equality of votes, the Speaker shall give a Casting Vote 
and any reasons stated by him may be entered in the Votes and Proceedings. 

DMsions in 	 201. The rule as to voting, and demanding and taking Divisions,- shall be the 
Committee. same in Committee as in the House itself. 

No Motion to 
o„t proyio„o  but in pursuance of Notice openly given at a previous sitting of the House, and duly 
Notice. 	entered on the Notice Paper ; but it shall always be in order on the presentation of 
Exceptions. any document, except a Petition., for the Member presenting it to move, without 

previous notice, that it be printed, and that a day be appointed for its consideration. 
It shall also be in order at any time to move, without previous Notice, that any 
resolution of the House be communicated by message to the Legislative Council. 

Position of 	 203. Motions shall have precedence each day, unless by a special order of the 
Motions on 
Notice Paper. House, according to the order in which the Notices for the same were openly given 

or postponed. 
Precedence d 	204. Unless otherwise provided by Sessional Order, Notices of Motions shall motiohs. take precedence of Orders of the Day, and must be moved, withdrawn, or postponed 

in the order in which they appear on the Notice Paper or lapse. 
205. If, at the adjournment of the House, any Motions on the Notice Paper 

have not been called on, such Motions shall be set down on the Notice Paper for the 
next sitting day, at the end of the business already fixed for that day. 

Ple.cedeuee to 	206. A motion, directly concerning the Privileges or Business of the House, 
Question of 
pri vile.ge, or for a special adjournment, shall take precedence of other Motions, as well as 

;Orders of the Day. 
- 207. 

Division Bell 
rung, glass 
turned, and 
doors locked. 

Members 
counted, and 
names taken 
down. 

CHAPTER XVIII. 
MOTIONS. 

202. No Member shall make any Motion, initiating a subject for discussion, 

Remancts. 
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207. Precedence will be given by courtesy to a Motion for a Vote of Thanks Precedence 

of the House. 	 to Vote of 
Thanks. 

208. A Motion not seconded may not be further debated, and no entry thereof motion not 

shall be made in the Votes and Proceedings. 	 seconded. 
 

209. After a Motion has been proposed by the Speaker, it shall be deemed to be Restriction on 
Vothtidoransw.  al of in possession of the House, and cannot be withdrawn except by unanimous consent. 

210. A motion which has been, by leave of the House, withdrawn, may be Motions with-

made again during the same Session. 	 • 	 drawn again 
brought on. 	• 

CHAPTER XIX. 
ORDERS OF THE DAY. 

211. An Order of the Day is a Bill or other matter which the House has Order of the 

ordered to be taken into consideration on a particular day. 	 Day defined. 

212. At the time fixed fo:.! the commencement of public business, on days on Orders of the 
which Orders have precedence of Motions, and after the Motions have been disposed Day to be 
of or adjourned on all other days, the Speaker shall direct the Clerk at the table to 
read the Orders of the Day, without any question being put. 

213. The Orders [of the Day shall be dealt with in the order in which they Disposal of 

stand upon the Paper. 	 Orders of the 
Day. 

214. If, at the adjournment of the House, any Orders of the Day on. the Dropped 

Notice Paper have not been called on, such Orders of the Day shall be treated as (tZedgyd  
dropped Orders which shall be set down on the Notice Paper for the next sitting 
day, at the end of the Orders of the Day already fixed for that day. 

215. An Order of the Day may be read and discharged on motion without An O rder . 

debate. 	 discharged. 

216. On days fixed for the consideration of Government business, matters Precedence of 
relating thereto shall take precedence of all other business on the Notice Paper, bell7„7,:"' 
except Questions, subject to Rule 106 and the right is reserved to the Ministers of 
placing their business in the order in which they wish it to be taken. 

CHAPTER XX. 
ACCOUNTS AND PAPERS. 

217. Accounts and Papers may be ordered to be laid before the House, and Accounts, Ac., 

the Clerk shall communicate to the Chief Secretary all orders for Papers made by ordered ' 
the Rouse; and such Papers shall be laid on the table by any Member of the House, 
being also a Member of the Government. 

218. The production of Accounts or Papers concerning the Royal Prerogative, Addresses  for 

or of Despatches or other Correspondence addressed to or emanating from His Papers. 

Excellency the Governor, or having reference to the Administration of justice, shall 
be asked for only by Address to the Governor. 

219. Other papers may be presented pursuant to Statute, or by command of Presented by 

His Excellency the Governor. 	 command. 

220. All Papers and Documents laid upon the table of the House by a Papers pro-

Minister shall be considered public, and may be ordered to be printed without ;TX' 
notice and without debate. 
• 	221. The Clerk shall distribute to each Member of the Legislative Assembly Distribution 

a copy of each paper printed by Order of this House, and shall transmit to the of Papers  - 
Clerk of the Legislative Council a sufficient number of copies of all such Papers 
for distribution to the Members of the Legislative Council. 

CHAPTER 
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CHAPTER XXI. 
ADDRESSES TO THE GOVERNOR. 

222. Addresses to Her Majesty shall be presented to the Governor by the 
Speaker, who shall request His Excellency to cause the same to be foi warded for 
presentation. 

223. Addresses to the Governor shall be presented by the Speaker, unless the 
House orders otherwise. 

224. When an Address is ordered to be presented by the whole House, the 
Speaker, with the House, shall proceed to Government House, and, being admitted 
to the Governor's presence, the Speaker shall read the Address to the Governor, the 
Members who moved and seconded such Address being on his left hand. 

225. The Governor's answer to any address presented by the whole House 
shall be reported by the Speaker. 

CHAPTER XXII. 
MESSAGES FROM THE GOVERNOR. 

Mode of 	 226. Whenever the House shall be informed that there is a Message from the reception of. 
Governor, the business under discussion shall forthwith be suspended, and the bearer 
of the Message, if a Member, shall deliver it to the Speaker, and, if not a Member, 
shall be admitted and conducted to the Speaker, to whom he shall deliver it, and 
then withdraw. 

How dealt 	 227. The Speaker shall immediately read the Message to the Assembly, 
with. 	Members being uncovered. 
Consideration 	228. The Message may, if necessary, be at once taken into consideration, or of. 

ordered, without debate, to be printed, and a future day fixed for taking the same 
into consideration. 

Withdrawal 	 229. So soon as the Message has been read by the Speaker, the bearer of the 
of bearer. Message, not being a Member, shall withdraw. 

CHAPTER XXIII. 
COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. 

230. The modes of communication with the Legislative Council shall be — 
(1.) By Message. 
(2.) By Conference. 
(3.) By Joint Committees of the Legislative Council and Assembly. 
(4.) By Select Committees communicating with each other. 

By Message. 
231. Every Message from the House of Assembly to the Legislative Council 

shall be in writing, signed by the Speaker, and shall be sent by two or more 
Members of this House, to be named by the Speaker, ordinarily from among those 
Members who have taken the most prominent interest in the Bill or subject to be 
communicated, or by one of the Clerks at the Table. 

Messages 	 232. This House will receive a Message from the Legislative Council by two 
from Council. or more of its Members, or by one of its Clerks at the Table, at any time whilst the 

House is sitting, or in Committee, without interrupting the business then proceeding. 
Messages to 	 233. Every Message shall be entered upon the Journals, with the answer 

thereto, if any be given. 
Notice of 	 234. It shall be in order at any time to move, without previous notice, that 
Message not any Message be sent to the Legislative Council. required, 

Mode of 
cominnnica. 
Lion with 
Council. 

'Messages to 
Council to 
he signed 
by Speaker. 

be in writing. 

By 
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By Conference. 

235. The Members appointed by this House to represent it as Managers at Relative f  
Conferences with the Legislative Council shall in number never be fewer than five
at an ordinary Conference, and ten at a free Conference. 

236. Every demand for a Conference with the Legislative Council shall be Statent 
by Message and accompanied by a statement of the general objects of the Conference o f object. 

 

demanded ; and no such demand shall be made in reference to any subject matter 
at that time in possession of the Legislative Council. 

237. In everyllessage communicating to the Legislative Council a demand for Number of 

ated a Conference, this House will state the number of Members it will appoint as its mbeasntage"t 
Managers at such Conference. 	 Message.  

	 7coontko rn e n  for e  c  238. Every Motion for ,requesting a Conference shall contain the names d 

of the Members proposed by the Mover to be the Managers for the House of to name 
Assembly. 	 Managers. 

	

, 	. 
239. If, upon such Motion, any one Member shall so require, the Managers Mana ges 

for the House of Assembly shall be selected by ballot in the same manner as the ampapYointea 
Members of a Select Committee, 	 by ballot. 

240. In respect of any Conference requested by the Legislative Council, the lipneso 
time and place for holding the same hall be appointed by the House of Assembly ; acgorneremregnce to 
and when the House of Assembly requests a Conference, they will agree to its being arro titit 
held at such time and place as shall be appointed by the Legislative Council, and w°. g i 
such agreement shall be communicated by Message. • 

241. At ai.l Conferences requested by the Legislative Council, the Managers Asieral?l9 ' 
tmozacgme  for the House of Assembly shall assemble at the time and place appointed, and 	7 of 

 

receive the Managers of the Legislative Council. 	 Council. 

242. During any Conference the business of the House of Assembly shall be During Conference suspended. 	 business 
suspended. 

243. At all Ordinary Conferences, the matter to be communicated by the comminica. 
Managers for the House of Assembly shall be in writing ; an.d the Managers for the Ti! 
House of Assembly shall not receive r.ny communication from the Managers for the Lam. 
Legislative Council unless the same be in writing 

244. At all Ordinary Conferences, the duty of the Managers for the House alittedeidni:g8  
of Assembly shall be confined to the reading of the reasons or resolutions to be oniforencroY. 
communicated by them, and delivering the same to the Managers for the Legislative 
Council, or to the hearing read by, and receiving from, the Managers for the 
Legislative Council, the reasons or resolutions communicated by the latter. 

245. If a Motion for a Free Conference be agreed to, the Managers for the fif.e, ntet of 
on- House of Assembly shall be at liberty to confer freely by word of mouth with the fererence. 

Managers for the Legislative Council. 
246. In all cases of Conference, the Managers for the House of Assembly Proceedings to 

shall, when the Conference has terminated, report their proceedings to the House of  reported. 
Assembly forthwith. 

By Joint Committees. 

247. Every proposal to the Legislative Council for the appointment of a Number of 
Joint Committee shall be by Message :  and this House shall state the number of Ifsererme.bers to 
Members it will appoint to serve on such Committee. 

248. Whenever the Legislative Council shall agree to a proposal from this 117: yi  
House for the appointment of a Joint Committee, the first meeting of such Com- Lain g. 
mittee shall be held at such time and place as shall be named by the Legislative 	• 

. Council; and in every Message agreeing to a proposal by the Legislative Council for 
the appointment of a Joint Committee, this House will name the time and place for 
the first meeting of such Committee. 

249—D 	 249. 
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249. The presence of at least three of the Members appointed by this House 
to serve on a Joint Committee shall be necessary at every meeting of such Committee 
for the despatch of Business. 

250. The proceedings of every joint Committee shall be reported to this Hone 
by. the Members it shall have appointed to serve on such Committee. 

By Select Committees communicating with each other. 
251. No Select Committee of the House of Assembly shall confer with a 

Select Committee of the Legislative Council, without an order of the House of 
Assembly made on motion. 

252. Every Select Committee of the House of Assembly directed to confer 
with any Select Committee of the Legislative Council, may confer freely by word 
of mouth, unless the House of Assembly shall otherwise order. 

253. The proceedings of every Conference between a Select Committee of 
the House of Assembly and a Select Committee of the Legislative Council, shall be 
reported in writing to the House of Assembly by its own Committee. 

CHAPTER XXIV. 
PUBLIC Bats. 

254. On every order for the reading of a Bill the title only shall be read. 

Initiation - 
255. Every Public Bill (unless transmitted by the Governor by Message, or 

sent from Legislative Council) shall be initiated either by a Motion for leave to 
bring in the Bill, specifying its intended title, or by a Motion for a Committee of 
the Whole to consider the expediency of bringing in the Bill. 

256. Every Bill for the paving, lighting, draining, cleansing, or otherwise 
improving any City, Town, or District, or for supplying the same with water, pro-
moted by the Municipal or District Authorities of such City. Town, or District, shall 
be deemed and taken to be a Public Bill. 

257. No Bill relating to trade, or the alteration of the laws concerning trade, 
shall be brought into the House until the proposition shall have been first passed in 
a Committee of the whole House, and agreed to by the House. 

Grant, release .  258. The House will not proceed upon any Bill for grantinc,
t 
 any money, or 

position of 
or 000, 	for releasing or compounding any sum of money owing to the Crown, until the 
money. 	proposition shall have been first considered in a Committee of the whole House and 

agreed to by the House. 
Fair copy to 	 259. The Member having leave to bring in a Bill, shall prepare a draft of 

, be presented. such Bill, and shall present a fair copy thereof to the House at an early day. 
Clauses to - 	260. No clause shall be inserted in any such draft foreign to the title of the 
come within Bill, and if any such clause be afterwards introduced, the title shall be altered the titk. accordingly. 
If irregular, 	 261. Every Bill not prepared pursuant to the Order of 'leave, or according to 
to be with- the Rules and Orders of the House, shall be ordered to be withdrawn. 
drawn. 
To be pre- 	 262. A Bill shall be presented by or on behalf of the Member having leave 
sorted by 	to bring it in unless received by message. 
Member. 

First read-
ing without 
debate. 

First Beading. 

263. When any Bill shall be presented. by a Member, in pursuance of leave 
granted, or shall be brought -from the Governor or Legislative Council, the Question, 
"That this Bill be now read a first time," shall be immediately put and decided 
without amendment or debate. 

264. 
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264. After the first reading, a Question shall be put, without notice, " That Hay flied 
for second the Bill be printed, and the second reading • stand an Order of Day for [a future day,"] 

on which Question the merits of the Bill shall not be debated. 	
reading. 

Second Reading. 
265. On the Order of the Day being read for the second reading of a Bill; Question for • 

a Motion may be made, "That this Bill be now read a second time" or the Order ! e"gend  read-  - 
postponed or discharged. 

266. Amendments may be moved io such Question, by leaving out " now " Amendments: 
and adding "this day three months," " six months," or any other time, or by 
moving "That the Bill be referred to a Select Committee "; or the Previous 
Question may be moved. 

267. When a Bill has been reported on by a 
may be fixed for the second reading. 

Committal and Consideration in Committee. 
268. After the second reading, unless an instruction be moved as provided in committal 

No. 383, the Speaker shall put the Question., "That I do now leave the Chair, 
and the House resolve itself into a Committee of the Whole to consider the Bill in 
detail," which Question shall admit of no debate or amendment. 

269. When the House has decided, to resolve itself into a Committee of the Speaker leaves 
Whole on a Bill, the Speaker shall leave i he Chair, and when the Committee has re-Zt rtfreeee e. • 
ported progress and ordered the further consideration of the Bill in Committee fsforsqiateitoaiutoitnou.  
future day, the Speaker shall leave the Chair upon the Order of the Day for u  
further consideration being read, without question or debate. 

270. The Preamble shall stand postponed until after the consideration of the Preamble 
golasitpsoesnerde.ad  clauses, without Question put. Each dm ise shall then be read separately, and the 

Question shall be proposed by the Chairman "That the clause, as read, stand part and put. - 
of the Bill." 

271. In reading the clauses of a Bill, it shall be sufficient to read the numbers How clauses 
and marginal notes only. 	 to be read.  

272. Any Amendment may be made to a chaise, provided the same be relevant Amendments 
, to the subject matter of the 	pursuant to any instruction, and be otherwise in to clauses, &e. 

conformity with the Rules and Orders of the House ; but if any Amendment shall 
not be within the title of the Bill, the Committee shall extend the title accordingly, 
and report the same specially to the House. 

273. No clause, schedule, or amendment in substance shall be offered to be All Amend-
added to, or made, in any Bill in possession of the House, except in Committee of theeetseinbe! 
the whole House. 

274. If a clause is amended, a further Question shall be proposed, "That the clauses put as 
clause as amended stand part of the Bill." 	 amended. 

275. A clause that has been passed, with or without amendment, cannot, clauses 
except by recommittal, be again considered and amended ; but whenever it is moved ezeunottte in that the report be adopted, the reconsideration of any clause in Committee may be one day. 
moved as an. amendment. 

276. Any clause may be postponed, unless the same has already been 
sidered and amended. 

• 277. In going through a Bill, no Questions shall be put for the filling up of Proceedings. 
words already printed in italics, and commonly called "blanks," unless exception be on blanks. 

taken thereto, and if no alterations have been made in. the words as printed in italics, • 
the Bill is to be reported without amendment, unless other amendments have been 
made therein. 

Select Committee, a future - day When 
reported on 
by Select 
Committee. 

comi Clauses 
postponed. 

278. 
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Order in 	 278. In (min.' through a Bill, the clauses, and schedules if any, shall be 
which clauses 
shall bc taken. taken in the order in which they stand, and be passed or postponed ; and when the 

Bill has thus been gone through once, any postponed clauses and Schedules shall be 
similarly taken into consideration and disposed of ; and, in reconsidering the Bill, 
the same order shall be observed, further amendments being moved, according to the 
order in which the clauses and Schedules to be amended are placed. 

Verbal or 	 279. Amendments merely of a verbal or formal nature may he made, on 
,

Amendments. Motion, in any part of the Bill, at any time during its progress through the House, 
or in Committee of the whole House. 

Temporary 
laws. 

Preamble 
agreed to. 

Title agreed 
to. 

Proceedings 
in Committee 
not to be 
noticed till 
reported. 

280. The precise duration of every Temporary Bill shall be expressed in a 
distinct clause at the end of the Bill. 

281. After every clause and schedule has been agreed to, and any new clauses 
added which are within the title of the Bill, or pursuant to any instructions, the 
Preamble shall be considered, and, if necessary, amended, and a Question put "That 
the Preamble as read or as amended be the Preamble of the Bill." 

282. After the Preamble has been agreed to, if any amendment shall have 
been made in the Bill, not coming within the original title, such title shall be 
amended, and a Question put "That the Title as amended be the Title of the Bill," 
and the amendment thereof shall be specially reported to the House. 

283. No notice may be taken of any proceedings of a Committee of the Whole 
House, or a Select Committee on a Bill, until such proceedings have been reported. 

First Report to Adoption of Final Report. 
Dill ordered 	 284. When the Bill shall have been thus considered or amended, clause by 
to be reported. clause, the Question shall be put, "'that the Chairman do now leave the Chair and 
Bill reported. report the Bill with, or without, amendment to the House ;" and the Chairman 

shall report the Bill accordingly to the House, and the Report shall be received 
without Question put. 

Reported with 	285. When a Bill is reported, with Amendment, the Adoption of the Report 
amendmen t' may be immediately moved, unless at least five Members shall rise in their places 

and object, in which case a future day shall be appointed for moving the adoption 
of the Report 

286. When a Bill is reported without Amendment, the adoption of the report 
may be immediately moved. 

287. No Motion for referring the Bill to a Select Committee shall be con-
sidered after the Chairman of the Committee of the Whole House shall have reported 
the Bill. 

288. On the Motion for the adoption of the report, the Bill may be recom-
mitted for the reconsideration of the Bill as a whole, or of any specified clauses, 
schedules, :or other portions thereof, or for the insertion of new clauses or 
schedules. 

Third Reading and Passing. 
Day fixed for 	 289. When the report is adopted, a future day shall be fixed, without notice 

or debate, for the third reading. 
Question for 	 290. On the Order of the Day being read for the third reading of a Bill, a 
third reading. Motion shall be moved and Question proposed "That this Bill be now read a third 

time." 
Recommittal 	 291. On the motion for the third reading being made, the Bill may be recom- 
,:imortzifir. 	; and in the event of the Bill being amended on such recommittal, a subsequent 

• g.  day shall be appointed for the third reading 
•Amendments 	 292. Amendments may be moved to such Question by leaving out "now," 
to such 	and adding "this day three months," "six months," or any other time, or- the Question. Question may be negatived, or the Previous Question moved. 

Reported 
without 
amendment. 

Restriction 
on reference 
to a Select 
Committee. 
Recommittal 
on motion for 
adoption of 
report. 

third reading. 
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• 	293. After the third reading, a Question shall be put, " That this Bill do now Bill passed. 

pass, and that the title be—." 
294. Before this question shall be put, the Chairman of Committees shall certificate of 

certify in writing that the fair print is in accordance with the .Bill as agreed to at= 
in Committee and reported; and the Speaker shall announce that the Chairman has 
so certified. 

295. When a Bill originated in this House shall have been passed, the Clerk certificate of 

shall certify, at the top of the first page, "That this Public [or Private] Bill Bill 

originated in the Legislative Assembly, and, having this day passed, is now ready 
for presentation to the Legislative Council for its concurrence." 

296. Clerical, typographical, and other obvious errors may be corrected in any clerical 
part of the Bill by the Chairman of Committees, before it is sent to the Legislative en"' 
Council for its concurrence. 

Transmission to Council. 
297. After a passed Bill shall have been certified by the Clerk, it shall be Bill .  sent to 

sent with a message, signed by the Speaker, desiring the concurrence of the Legis- Mt" 
lative Council. 

Cowncil's Amendments on Bills originated in the Assembly. 
298. When a Bill shall be returned from the Legislative Council with Amend-

amendments, a day shall be fixed, without notice, for taking the same into con- 
sideration. 	 Council. 

299. With respect to any Bill brought to the Assembly from the Legislative Nature of 

Council, or returned by the Legislative Council to the Assembly, with Amendments, y,r„t hoe„ts.  
whereby any pecuniary penalty, forfeiture, or fee shall be authorized, imposed, 
appropriated, regulated, varied, or extinguished, the Assembly will not insist on its 
privileges in the following cases :— 

I. When the object of such pecuniary penalty or forfeiture is to secure the 
execution of the Act, or the punishment or prevention of offences. 

Where such fees are imposed in respect of benefit taken or service 
rendered under the Act, and in order to the execution of the Act, and 
are not made payable into the Treasury, or in aid of the Public 
Revenue, and do not form the ground of public accounting by the 
parties receiving the same, either in respect of deficit or surplus. 

tn. When such Bill shall be a Private Bill for a local or personal Act. 
300. Amendments made by the Legislative Council shall be agreed to either maw disposed 

with or without Amendments ; or disagreed to ; or the consideration thereof o f.  
postponed ; or the Bill ordered to be laid aside. 

301. The consideration of all Amendments made by the Legislative Council mast be eon. 

in Bills which shall have first passed the Assembly, shall, subject to the provisions 
of Rule 279, be in a Committee of the Whole House. 

302. When Amendments made by the Legislative Council, in Bills which Further pro. 

shall have first passed the Assembly, shall have been agreed to by the Assembly, Leendsiiaegraaftieorn 
without Amendment, a Message shall be sent informing the Council thereof ; and of Amenth 

if they shall have been agreed to with Amendment, a Message shall be sent with a n't  • 
Schedule of such further Amendment, desiring the concurrence of the Council 
therein ; and if they shall have been disagreed to, a Message giving reasons for snail. 
disagreement may be sent to the Council, or the Bill may belaid aside. 

303. In any case, when any of the Amendments made by the Council are when 
disagreed to, the Message intimating such disagreement shall also contain written ticgcrizeitiot: 
reasons for the Assembly not agreeing to the Amendments proposed by the Legis- masons to 
lative Council ; and such reasons shall be drawn up by the Member in charge of ne:szn. nY 
the Bill. 

304. 
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Schedule of 	 304. When any Amendment shall have been. made by the Assembly on the Amendments 
on Council's Council's Amendments, a schedule of! such further Amendments shall be prepared, 
Amendments, containing reference to each Amendment of the Council which has been amended 

by the Assembly, and describing the further Amendment proposed : and this 
Schedule shall be written or printed on paper, certified by the Clerk of the Assembly, 
and shall accompany the Message intimating such amendments and desiring the 
concurrence of the Legislative Council. 

When Coun- 	 305. If the Legislative Council shall disagree to any of the Assembly's cil disagrees to A 

Amendments /Amendments on the Council's original Amendment, and shall insist on its original 
on its 	Amendments, stating the reasons for So doing, or shall agree to the Assembly's Amendments. 

Amendments thereon, with further Amendments, a day shall be fixed for taking the 
same into consideration, which shall be in a. Committee of the whole Assembly ; and 
the Bill shall then he finally passed, or laid aside, unless the Assembly determines to 
re4ttest a Conference. 

Final agree ' 	 306. If the Council's Amendments shall be agreed to, or a Conference is ment to 
Council's 	desired or when the Bill i.s finally passed by the Assembly, a Message shall be sent 
Amendments, informing the Council thereof. 

Revival of 
Bills inter-
rupted in a 
provious 
Session. 

Interruption and Renewal of Proceedings on Bills. 
307. Within ten clear sitting days after the commencement of any Session, 

Bills which originated in this House during the preceding Session of the same 
Parliament and with respect to which proceedings have been interrupted in either 
House by the close of the Session, may be revived upon motion, and if so revived, 
the Bill, with such alterations as may have been made in the Assembly during the 
previous Session, shall forthwith, upon motion without notice or debate, be passed 
through the several stages in this House through which it shall have passed in the 
preceding Session and shall be proceeded with in all its subsequent stages, if any, in 
the usual manner. Provided that it shall not be necessary to consider in Committee 
of the Whole such portions of a Bill so revived as shall have been already considered 
in a Committee of the Whole during the previous Session. 

Bills Received First Time from the Council. 
Bills coming 	 308. Public Bills coming to the Assembly the first time from the Legislative the first time C

ouncil shall be proceeded with in all respects as similar Bills presented in the 
Council. 	Assembly. 
Certificate, 	 309. When any such Bill shall have been passed by the Assembly, it shall when re- 
turned to the be returned to the Council by Message, with the Clerk's certificate on the Bill 
Council. 	" That the Assembly has this day agreed to this Bill with [or without] Amendment"; 

and if the Bill be amended the message requesting the concurrence of the Council 
shall be accompanied by a Schedule indicating the Amendments. 

When Colin- 	 310. If the Council shall disagree to any of the A.mendments made by the ail returns 
the Bill with Assembly or propose further Amendments thereon, the Message, together with 
Amend- 	written reasons for disagreeing to any such Amendments proposed by the Assembly, menta on 
_Assembly's or showing the Amendments proposed upon the Assembly's Amendments, shall be 
Amendments taken into consideration in Committee of' the Whole, on a day fixed, without notice. 
How such 	 311. The Amendments made by the Council shall be then either agreed to 
Amendments with or without further Amendments, or disagreed to, and the original Amendments are disposed 

. of. 	made by the Assembly insisted on. 

Further 	 312. If the Amendments made by the Council on the Assembly's Amend- 
a
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are ments are agreed to without further Amendment, or disagreed to, and the original  
considered. Amendments made by the Assembly insisted on, a Message shall be returned to 

the Council to that effect ; or, if the Amendments made by the Council are 
agreed to with further Amendments, a Message shall be sent desiring the con-
currence of the Council therein. • 

When Conn- 	 313. In any case, when any of the Amendments made by the Council on ewe further the Assembly's Amendments are disagreed to, the Message shall contain written Amend- 
ments dis- reasons for the Assembly not agreeing to the Amendments proposed by the Council; 
agreed to,  
reasons to be and such reasons shall be drawn up by the member in charge of the Bill. 	. 
stated. 	 314. 



713 
g7 

• 311. When any Amendments shall have been made by the Assembly on a Schedule ?f 
rnic 5  Bill which shall have been first passed by the Council., a Schedule of such Amend- itr 

ments shall be prepared, containing reference to the page and line of the Bill where yr an a 
the words are to be inserted or omitted, and describing the Amendments proposed ; I.  • 
and this Schedule shall accompany the message returning the Bill, and be certified 
by the Clerk of the Assembly. 

315. When any further Amendments have been made by the Assembly on the pinidil f  
Council's Amendments on the Assembly's original. Amendments in a Bill which iteesieentWe 

ed- t  shall have been first passed by the Council, a Schedule of such further Amendments Ainn 
shall be prepared, containing reference to each Amendment of the Council which has lae:n se i?!1: 
been amended by the Assembly, and describing the further Amendment proposed ; Amendments.  
and this Schedule shall accompany the Message, and be certified by the Clerk of 
the Assembly. 

Assent. 
316. Every Bill originated in this House which shall finally pass shall be Reprint on 

fair printed on vellum or parchment, and be by the Speaker presented to the 
Governor for Her Majesty's Assent, provided the Chairman of Committees shall 
have certified, in writing, on the Bill, that he has examined such fair print and 
found it to correspond in all respects with the Bill as finally passed by both Houses, 
and that at the top of the first page of such fair print the Clerk of the Assembly 
shall have certified to its having finally passed both Houses. 

CHAPTER, XXV 
SELECT COMMMEES. 

317. A Select Committee shall consist of not less than five nor more than ten Number of  • Members. 
Members. 

318. It shall not be compulsory on the Speaker or Chairman of Committees to Exemption of 
serve on any Select Committee. 	 Speaker and 

Chairman. 

319.. The Speaker shall be ex officio a Member of Standing Orders Committee sPeaker 
and Library Committee. 	

Member of • 
certain Com-
mittees. 

emb 320. Every Member proposing a Select Committee shall be one of the mMin•erth be  
Committee named by the House. 	

a 	er. 
 

321. The Notice of Motion for the appointment of every Select Committee 3iNfaemnebs of  
shall contain the names of the Members the Mover intends to serve with himself on propose:. 
such Committee. 

322. (1.) If, upon any Motion for a Select Committee, any Member shall require Ballot—bow 
it, such Committee shall be chosen by Ballot, in the manner f ollowing,  conducted. 
viz. :—Each Member shall give in to the Clerk a list of the Members 
who he intends shall serve on the Committee, not exceeding the 
number proposed in such Motion..; and if any such list contain a larger 
number of names, it shall be void and rejected ; and the Members who 
shall be reported by the Clerk to have the greatest munber of votes 
shall be declared by the Speaker to be, with the Mover, the Members of 
such Committee ; and in any case of doubt, arising from two or more 
Members having an equality of Votes, the Speaker shall decide which 
shall serve on such Committee. 

(2.) Members balloting for a Select Committee shall place the Balloting 
Papers, after completion, in the hands of the Clerk of the Assembly, 
giving time for him to note one paper (as hereinafter mentioned) 
before another is presented. 

(3.) The Clerk shall have before him a complete printed list of the Members 
of the House, and on the presentation of any Balloting Paper shall 
place his initials against the entry in such list of the name of the 
Member presenting such Balloting Paper, and the Clerk shall place 
such list so initialled on record, with the other proceedings of the 
Ballot. 

323. 
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Bells rung 	 323. Before the House proceeds to ballot for a Select Committee, the bells 
prior to ballot, shall be rung as in a Division. 
No interested 	 324. No Member shall sit on a Select Committee who shall be personally 
Member to be  
on a Cora- interested in the inquiry before such Committee. 
mince. 
Members 
discharged 
aid added. 

325. Members may at any time, by Motion, be discharged by the House 
from attending a Select Committee, and other Members appointed. 

in Rule 418. 
Record of pro- 	329. An entry shall be made in the proceedings of the names of the Members 
readings and attending each Select Committee meeting, and of every Motion or Amendment Divisions. 	 •-• proposed in the Committee, together with the name of the Mover thereof; and if 

any Division take place in the Committee, the Clerk in attendance shall take down 
the names of the Members voting in any such Division, distinguishing on which 
side of the question they respectively vote. 

330. If, after the lapse of a quarter of an hour from the time appointed for 
the meeting of a Select Committee, there shall not be a Quorum, the meeting 
'shall lapse, and the mover for, or Chairman of such Select Committee, shall convene 
the next meeting. 

Whenquortun 	331. If at any time during the sitting of a Select Committee of the House 
not present. the Quorum • of Members fixed by the House be not present, the Clerk of the 

Committee shall call the attention of the Chairman to the fact, who shall thereupon 
suspend the proceedings of the Committee until a quorum be present, or adjourn 
the Committee to some future day. 

Adjournment 	332. A Select Committee may adjourn from time to time ; and, by leave of 
of c°"lue°-  the House, from place to place, and sit on those days over which the House is 

adjourned. 
Not to sit 
when Rouse 
is sitting. 

Report from 
time to time. 

333. Except by leave of the House, no Select Committee may sit after the 
hour appointed for the sitting of the House. 

334. By leave of the House, a Select Committee may report its opinions or 
observations from time to time, or report the Minutes .  of Evidence only, or Pro-
ceedings from time to time 

Power to send 	335. All Select Committees shall have power to send for persons, papers, and 
for persons 
and records. records.  
Clerk of the 	 336. The Chairman of a Select Committee shall direct the Clerk of the 

House to summon the Witnesses to be examined before such Committee. summon 
Witnesses. 
Examination 	 337: The examination of Witnesses before every Select Committee shall be on 
of Wit"' oath, and conducted as follows, viz. :—The Chairman shall first put to the Witness, 

in an uninterrupted series, all such questions as he may deem essential, with reference 
either to the subject referred to therein, or to any branch of that subject, according 
to the mode of procedure agreed on by the Committee. The Chairman shall then 
call on the other members severally by name to put any other questions which may 
have occurred to them during his conduct of the examination ; and the name of 
every member so interrogating a -Witness shall be noted and prefixed to the 
questions asked. All miles to questions put shall be in writing ; but, if the 
Committee be attended by a short-hand writer, the notes of such short-hand writer 
shall be sufficient. 

Admission of 	 338. When a Select Committee is examining Witnesses, Strangers may be 
Strangers. admitted, but shall be excluded at the request of any Member, or at the discretion 

of the Chairman of the Committee, and shall always be excluded when the Committee 
is deliberating. 

First meeting. 	326. The Mover for the Select Committee shall fix the time for the first 
meeting of the Committee. 

Quorum. 	 327. In all Select Committees three shall form a Quorum. 
Chairman to 	 328. Every Select Committee, as its first business, shall elect one of its 
have only a Members to be Chairman, who shall only have a casting vote, except as provided casting vote. 

When no 
meeting 
takes place. 

339. 
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339. Members of the House may lie present when a • Select Committee is Admission r 
examinino. Witnesses ; but shall withdraw when the Committee is deliberating. i‘offeonitteerrs.  

340. No Strangers, or Members not being of the Select Committee, shall be Secret - 
admitted at any time tO a Secret Committee. 

341. The evidence taken by any Select Committee of the House, and docu- Evidence 
ments presented to such Committee which have not been reported to the House, Ltelo.'„bde.  
shall not be disclosed or published by any Member of such Committee, or by any 
other person. 

342. It shall be the duty of the Chairman of every Select Committee to Chairman 
prepare the Report. 	 to prepare 

Report.. 

343. The Chairman shall read to the Select Committee convened for the pur- coe.idention 
pose of considering the Report the whole of his Draft Report, which, if desired by any  
Member, shall be printed and circulated amongst the Committee, and a subsequent 
day fixed for its consideration ; and when the 'Committee are desirous of taking the 
Report into consideration, the Chairman shall, read the Draft Report, paragraph by 
paragraph, putting the Question to the Committee at the end of each paragraph-
" That the paragraph. as read stand part of the Report." A Member objecting to 
any portion of the Report shall. propose his Amendment at the time the paragran 
he wishes to amend shall be under consideration. 

344. Every Report of a Select Committee should be signed by the Chairman, Chairman to 
but in the event of his refusing, the Committee may appoint-  any other Member of sign Report. 
the Committee to sign the Report. 

345. The Report of a Select Committee, with the documents accompanying it, Report 
shall be brought up by the Member signing the Report, and may, without debate, brou ght up. 
be  ordered to be printed. 

346. If any measure or proceeding be necessary-upon a Report of a Select Motion for 
subseiment Committee, such measure or proceeding Mall be brought under the consideration of proceedings. 

the House by a specific Motion, of which notice must be given in the usual manner. 
347. Every Select Committee shall have power to award payment to any Payment of 

professional or other Witnesses they may deem it necessary to employ in furtherance ,',V4 1,15," 1,1/4:;„4,-0  
of the inquiry with which the Committee is charged ; and the Chairman's certificate cermoineee. 
on the face of an account, countersigned by the Clerk of Select Committees, shall be 
sufficient authority for its payment by the Colonial Treasurer out of the Consolidated 
Revenue Fund, through the Clerk of the Assembly, or at the Public Treasury ; and 
every such award, with the sum awarded, the particulars of the services rendered, 
and the name of the party in whose favour made, shall be entered in the Minutes 
of the Proceedings of the Committee. . 

348. Lists of all Select Committees shall be affixed in some conspicuous place List. of 
in the Lobbies and Clerk's Office. 	 Members  serving. 

CHAPTER XXVI. 
COMMITTEES OF THE WHOLE HousE. 

349. Except in cases specially provided for, the same rules shall guide the Pei erdbing 

proceedings in Committee of the Whole as in the House itself ; the Chairman of a.f.;;;„ of  Ythe  
roci s • 

Committee of the whole Rouse being i avested with the 'same authority as the House. . 
Speaker for the preservation of Order. 

350. At the commencement of every Session a Member shall be appointed chairman of 
Chairman of Committees of the Whole House, and when so appointed shall continue Committees. 

 
to act as such Chairman during the whole Session, and until his successor lie 
appointed in the following Session of the same Parliament or until the dissolution 
of the then existing Parliament, unless the House shall otherwise direct. 

351. At the commencement of every Session, four Members shall be Deputy 
appointed by the House as Deputy Chairmen of Committees ; and whenever the ceti,;;;Ttiel o's! 
House shall be informed of the unavoidable absence of the Chairman of Committees, 
one of such Deputy Chairmen, to he named by the Speaker, shall take the Chair 
for that day only, vim, while so acting as ,Cliairman, shall have the same power as 
the Chairman of Committees. 

352. 

Committees. 
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The Chair' 
mail takes 
the Chair. 

• 352. When the House is in Committee of the Whole, if the Chairman of 
Committees shall desire to leave the Chair he may appoint any Deputy Chairman, 
or if none be present then any other Member, to take his place, and such Member, 
whilst so sitting, shall have the same power as the Chairman-of Committees. 

353. The Quorum in Committee of the whole House shall consist of the 
same number of Members, exclusive of the Chairman, as shall be requisite to form 
a Quorum of the House. 

354. A Committee of the whole House shall be appointed by resolution, 
"That this House will [immediately or on a future day] resolve itself into a Com-
mittee of the Whole, &c." 

355. When such a resolution has been agreed to, or an Order of the Day 
read for the House to resolve itself into Committee, the Speaker shall put a 
Question, without debate, "That I do now leave the Chair, &c.," which being agreed 
to, he shall leave the Chair accordingly. 

356. When a Bill • or other matter (not being connected with Supply or 
Ways and Means) bas been partly considered in Committee, and the Chairman 
has been directed to report progress, and ask leave to sit again, and the House 
has ordered that the Committee shall sit again on a particular day, the Speaker, 
when the Order of the Day for the further consideration in Committee has been 
read, shall forthwith leave the Chair without putting any Question, and the House 
thereupon resolve itself into such Committee. 

357. As soon as the Speaker has left the Chair, the Chairman shall take the 
Chair of the Committee at the Table. 

Power to 
appoint 
Acting 
Chairman. 

Quorum in 
Committee. 

Committee 
of Whole 
appointed. 

Speaker 
leaves the 
Chair. 

When Com-
mittee has 
reported 
progress. 

Considers 	 358. A Committee shall consider such matters only as shall have been 
only matters referred to it by the House. referred. 

Questions 	 359. Every Question in Committee shall be decided in the same manner as 
decided by in the House itself, the Chairman having only a Casting Vote, and any reasons majonty. 
Choi an has  stated by him when giving such vote may be entered in the proceedings of the 
Casting Vote. Committee. 
ago seconder 
required. 
Previous 
Question 
cannot he 
moved. 

360. A Motion made in Committee need not he seconded. 
361. No motion for the Previous Question can be made in Committee. 

364. If any sudden disorder shall arise in Committee, the Speaker may 
resume the Chair without any Question being put, and may leave the Chair in like 
manner, whereupon such Committee shall resume its proceedings. 

365. The Speaker may also resume the Chair without any Question being 
put whenever a Message is brought from the Governor, and., after the Message has 
been dealt with, may leave the Chair in like manner, whereupon such Committee 
shall resume its proceedings. 

366. If notice be taken, or it appears upon a Division in Committee, that a 
Quorum of Members be not present, the Chairman shall leave the Chair of the 
Committee without a Question being put, and the Speaker shall resume the Chair. 

Want of 	• 	367. When the Speaker shall have resumed the Chair on the breaking up of 
Quorum only a Committee, owing to the want of a Quorum, the Chairman shall inform the to he reported 
by the Chair- Speaker thereof, but make no further report. 
man. 

House 	 368. If a Quorum of Members be present when the House is counted by the 
counted by Speaker, the House shall again resolve itself into the Committee of the Whole the Speaker. 

without a Question being put. 
Weekly 	 369. Lists of Divisions in Committees of the Whole House shall be printed Report of 
Divisions. 	weekly. 	 370. 

Greater or 	 362. When there comes a Question between the greater and lesser sum, or 
lesser sum 
longer or 	the longer or shorter time, the least sum and the longest time shall be first put to 
shorter term. the Question.. 
:Members may 	363. In Committee Members may speak more than once to the same 
speak more Question. than once. 
When dis-
order arises. 

'When Mes-
sage comes 
from Gover-
nor. 

When a 
Quorum is 
not present. 
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• 370. When all matters referred to a Committee have been considered, the Report. 
Chairman shall be directed to report the same to the House ; and when all such 
matters have not been considered, the a airman shall report progress, and ask leave Report of 

to sit again. 	 progress. 

371. A Motion may be made dining the proceedings of a Committee "That mono. to 
, 	repert the Chairman leave the Chair, report progress and ask leave to sit again." 	 pro. 

372. A Motion "That the Chairman do now leave the chair" will, if carried, motion that 
supersede the proceedings of a Committee. 	 the Chair- 

. 	 man leave 
the chair. 

373. In Committee of Supply or Ways and Means, or in Committee of the No motion of 

Whole on any Bill or Resolution, no Member shall make any motion for the Choi r_ cahr itorbasetti.eurettet 

man to leave the Chair which, by the ruling of the Chairman without debate, shall Chairman.  
1vc be held to be of an obstructive character or not consistent with the regular and 	Chair 

 
orderly conduct of the business of the Committee. 

374. Every Report -from a Committee of the Whole House shall be brought nroptt 
up without any Question being put. 	 brought up. 

375. Resolutions brought up from a, Committee of the Whole House may be Reception of 
received on the same day on which they are reported, provided the Resolutions do Resolutions. 
not involve the expenditure of Public money nor Taxation, and do not affect Trade 
nor Religion. 

• 316. Resolutions brought up from a Committee of the Whole House, which Reception of 
involve the expenditure of Public money or Taxation, or which affect Trade or ttetirms 
Religion, or from the Committee of Supply or of Ways and Means, may be received comsat. 
on the same day on which they are reported, unless at least five Members shall rise 
in their places and object, in which case a future day shall be appointed for their 
reception. 

377. The Resolutions received from a Committee of the Whole House are Resolutions 
read a first time, and may be read a second time, agreed to or disagreed to by the 7,adisi""d 
House, or agreed to with amendments, recommitted to the Committee, or the - 
further consideration thereof postponed. 

378. The Committees of Supply and Ways and Means shall be appointed Appointment 
upon Motion at the commencement of every Session, so soon as an Address in ooff  ouit yo itt ittitoons  
reply to the Governor's opening speeeh has been agreed to, and unless otherwise woyrosa 
ordered, the Resumption of such Committees shall stand Orders of the Day, as of Means. 
course, on each day on which Government Business shall have precedence. 

379. No debate shall be allowed on the Order of the Day for the House to No debate or 
resolve itself into Committee of Supply or Ways and Means, and no Amendment or re"ote'tto  
contingent Motion shall be entertained on any such Order without the leave of the o l= of 
House, no debate being allowed upon the Motion for such leave, except a statement SuPPlYen  " d of the subject matter of the intended Motion, limited to ten minutes. 	

niss 
 

380. Unless otherwise ordered by Sessional Order, the -following Rules shall Procedure in 
be observed in Committee of Supply :-- 	 Committee or 

Supply. 
(1.) When a Motion is made, in Committee of Supply, to omit or reduce 

any item of a Vote, a Question shall be proposed from the Chair for 
omitting or reducing such item accordingly; and Members shall speak 
to such Question only until it has been disposed of 

(2.) When several Motions are offered, they shall be taken in the order in 
which the items to which they relate appear in the printed -Estimates. 

(3.) After a Question for omitting or reducing any item has been disposed 
of, no Motion shall be made, or Debate allowed, upon any preceding 
item. 

(4.) Where it has been proposed to omit or reduce items in a Vote, the 
Question shall be afterwards put upon the original Vote, or upon the 
reduced Vote, as the ease may be, without amendment. 

(5.) After a Question has been put for a reduction of the whole Vote, no 
Motion shall be made for omitting or reducing any item of such Vote. 

(6.) 
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When a general reduction of the amount of the Vote comprising 
many items, is proposed, the Question shall be first put upon the smaller 
sum, and, if that be negatived, then upon the next smaller sum, and so 
on, until the Question is put upon the original Vote, after the failure 
of the several Motions for a general reduction thereof. 
It shall be held to be in order, at any time during the discussion of a 
Vote or item in a Vote which has not been previously amended, to 
move the postponement of such Vote or Item, provided such post-
ponement be until the whole of the Estimates or Supplementary 
Estimates shall have been disposed of, or, on the motion of the Minister 
in charge, such Vote or Item may be withdrawn. 

Effects of an 
Instruction. 

WhatInstruc-
tions may be 
moved. 

When 
Instructions 
should be 

Instruction 
to Sclera 
Committee. 

CHAPTER XXVII. 
INSTRUCTIONS TO COMMITTEES. 

381 An Instruction empowers a Committee of the whole House to consider 
matters not otherwise referred. 

382. No Instructions may be moved Ordering a Committee to make provision 
in a Bill, nor to empower a Committee to make such provision if they already have 
that power. 

383 An Instruction shall be moved after the Order of the Day for going 
into Committee has been. read, and not as an Amendment to the Question " That 
the Speaker do now leave the Chair"; and when the committal of a Bill be moved 
on the same day that the second reading is carried, an instruction shall be moved 
prior to the motion being proposed from the Chair that the Speaker do leave the 
Chair and the House resolve itself into a Committee of the whole on the Bill. 

384. An Instruction to a Select Committee extends or restricts the order of 
reference. 

CHAPTER XXVIII. 
WITNESSES. 

Witnesses 	 385. Witnesses shall be ordered to attend before the House, or before a Com- summoned by .„ 
the Speaker. mittee of the whole House, by summons under the hand of the Speaker. 
Attendance 	 386. When the attendance of a Member is desired, to be examined by the of Members 
to be 	House, he shall be ordered by the Speaker to attend in his place. 
examined. 

387. If a Select Committee desire the attendance of a Member as a Witness,. 
the Chairman shall, in writing, request him to attend ; but should he refuse or neglect, 
the Select Committee shall take no further action, except to report the matter to 
the House. 

Committee 	 388. If any information come before any Committee that chargeth any Mem- 
untie enter- ber of the House, the Committee ought only to direct that the House be acquainted thin charges 
against 	with the matter of such information, without proceeding further thereupon. 
Members. 

389. When the attendance of a Member of the Legislative Council, or any When atten- 
dance of 	officer of that House, is desired, to be examined by the House or any Committee 
Member or 
Officer of 	thereof (not being a Committee on a Private Bill), a message shall be sent to the 
Legislative Legislative Council to request that the Council give leave to such Member or Officer 
(1"""cil is  to attend, in order to his being examined accordingly upon the matters stated in desired. 

such message. 
A ttendance 	 390. Should the Legislative Council request by Message the attendance of a 
of Members Member of the House beffire a Select Committee of the Council,. the House may or Officers of 
Assembly authorize such Member to attend, if he think fit. The House, if similarly requested 
before Coin, by the CORTI ell, may also instruct its own Officers to attend such Committees, if the mittee of 
Council. 	House thinks fit. 
When inten- 	 391. When a Witness Shall be in the custody of the keeper of any prison, (lea W itness such keeper may be ordered to bring the Witness, in safe custody, in order to his is in prison. 

being examined ; and from time to time, as often as his attendance shall be thought 
necessary ; and the Speaker may be ordenid to issue his warrant accordingly. 

‘-/ 	 392. 

(6 .) 

(7 -) 

By a Select 
Committee. 
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tt d o 
392 All Witnesses examined before the House, or any Committee thereof, Witnesses 

protection. are entitled to the protection of the House in respect of anything that may be said 
in their evidence. 

393. When the Witness appears before the House, the Speaker shall examine Witnesses 
the Witness, and no other Member shall put any question otherwise than through ,bvehfo'iree  
the Speaker. 	 examined by  

the Speaker. 
. 	394. In Committee of the whole .  House, any Member may put questions to Before Gem- 
the Witness. mittee by any 

Member. 
395. If any question be objected to, or other matter arise, the Witness shall Witness 

i withdraw while the same is under discussion, 	 withdraws if  question 
objected to. 

396. A Member of the House shall be examined in his place. 	 Member ex- 
°mined in his 
place. 

397. Judges, when present as witnesses, are introduced by the Sergeant-at- Judges, how 

Arms, and have chairs placed for them at the Bar. 	 introduced.  

• 398. No Officer of the House, Clerk, or short-hand writer employed to OP der:  !tot to 

take minutes of evidence before the House, or any Committee thereof, may give  
evidence elsewhere in respect of any proceedings or examination had at the Bar, or 
before any Committee of the House, without the special leave of the House. 

CHAPTER XXIX. 
SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS. 

399. Any Standing Order or Orders of the House may be suspended on Standing 
Motion duly made and seconded in accordance with notice given, and in cases of (=Ts-
urgent necessity such Standing Order or Orders may be suspended on Motion duly _thy ..rgent eles 
made and seconded without notice. The question of urgency shall be decided by without 

notice.' the House upon motion, without notice or debate, except a statement by the mover 
limited to ten minutes. 

- CHAPTER XXX. 
CONTEMPT AND PUNISHMENT. 

400. Any Member having been called to order for any breach of the foregoing Member 
rules, or for disorderly conduct, shall be guilty of contempt if he attempts to leave i E101:etdo ti=1" 
the Chamber before his conduct has been dealt with, except in cases where a the Chamber. 
Member has been called upon to withdraw, pending consideration of his conduct. 

401. Any Member who shall wilfully disobey any order of the House, and Wilful 
odbissotbruedotieonneeo, any Member or other person who shall wilfully or vexatiously obstruct or interrupt 	r  

the orderly conduct of the business of the House, shall be guilty of contempt. 	interruption 
held to be 
contempt. 

402. Any Member named by the Speaker as guilty of the wilful or vexatious Member 
breach of any of the Standing Orders, or as interrupting the orderly conduct of the ganithekderbY 
business of the House, may be adjudged by the House on Motion, without notice, P 	- 
guilty of contempt, no debate being allowed on such Motion except an explanation 
by the Member named. 

403. Every Member adjudged by the House, for any of the causes here; Punishment 
before mentioned, guilty of contempt, shall be conimittcd, by the Warrant of the for contempt,. 
.Speaker, to the custody of the Sergeant-at-Anus, and shall, by the Sergeant-at-Arms, 
be detained in custody until the payment of the fees imposed in Rules number 409 
and 410, when he may be released by an Order of the House. 

404. Any Member who shall so conduct himself as to make it impracticable Removal of 
for the Speaker or Chairman. of Committees, as the case may be, to carry out the l=„ ittinr.  
Standing Orders of the louse, may be, by the order of the Speaker.or Chairman. of 
Committees, removed by the Sergeant-at-Arms from the Chamber until the termina-
tion of the then sitting. 

405. 
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Arrest of 	 405. When any Member or other person shall have been taken into the 
tr
e
an

b
g
°
e
r
r 

cro• 
 be custody of the Sergeant-at-Arms, by order of the Speaker, such arrest shall be 

reported. reported to the House by the Speaker without delay ; and the Blouse shall fix the 
time for such Member or other person being brought to the Bar, to receive orders 
for commitment or discharge, after payment of certain fees. 

406. The Sergeant-at-Arms attending the House shall, from time to time, on 
being directed by the Speaker, take or deliver into custody any Stranger. whom he 
may see, or who may be reported to him to be, in any part of the Chamber appropriated 
to the Members of the House; and also any Stranger who, having been admitted 
into any other part of the House or gallery, shall misconduct himself, or shall not 
withdraw when Strangers are directed to withdraw, while the House or any 
Committee of the whole House is sitting; and no person so taken into custody shall 
be discharged out of custody without de special order of the House, and payment 
of certain, fees as hereinafter provided. 

Punishment 	 407. Any person not being a Member who interrupts the orderly conduct of 
for contempt. 
of strangem the business of the House, or obstructs the approaches to the House, or occasions 

a disturbance within the precincts of the House, may be arrested by order of the 
Speaker, and shall, by his Warrant, be committed to the custody of the Sergeant-
at-Arms, and shall, by the Sergeant-at-Arms, be detained in custody until payment 
of the fees imposed in Rules 409 and 410, when he may be discharged by an Order 
of the House. 

408. Any Member who shall so conduct himself as to make it necessary for 
the Speaker or Chairman. of Committees to call him to order more than. three times 
in the course of any one sittting for any gross breach of the Rules, may, by the 
order of the Speaker or -Chairman of Committees, be removed by the Sergeant-at-
Arms from the Chamber until the termination of such sitting 

Fees for 	 409. The following scale of fees shall be payable to the Sergeant-at-Arms, on 
a

itment. the arrest or c rrest or ommitment of any person, by order of the House or the Speaker ; and coMm  
no person shall, without the express direction of the House, be discharged out of 
custody until such fees be paid:— 

For arrest    £5 
For commitment     £10 

410. The following fee shall be payable to the Sergeant-at-Arms, as remunera-
tion for his personal expenses inCurred in the custody of the person arrested; and 
no person ordered by the House to be detained by him, shall be discharged out of 
custody until such fee be paid :— 

For each day's detention, including sustenance 	  £2 

Arrest of 
Stranger to 
be reported. 

Member 
repeatedly 
called to 
order. 

Personal fee 
to Sergeant-
at-Arms. 

CHAPTER 
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CHAPTER XXXI. 

PRIVATE BILLS .  
Noototiocte 01 411. Notice of the intention, to apply for every Private Bill shall, within three 	to  

months of the presentation of the Petiti am be published once a week, for four apply for 
consecutive weeks, in the Government Gatette, in one or more public newspapers Bill. 
published in Sydney, and in one or more public newspapers in or nearest to the 
District affected by the Bill, which notice shall contain a true statement of the 
general objects of the Bill. 

412. No Private Bill shall be initiated in this House but upon a Petition first Initiated on Petition. presented and received, with a printed copy of the proposed Bill annexed ; and such 
Petition shall be signed by one or more of the parties applying for the Bill. 

413. Every Petition for a Private Bill shall commence by setting forth, that nrin Petition. within the three months previous to its presentation to the House, the public notice 
required by Rule 411 has been duly given of the general. objects of, and the intention 
to apply for, such Bill, and shall conclude with a true statement of the general 
objects of the Bill, and a prayer for leave to bring it in ; and the production of the 
numbers of the Gazette and newspaper or newspapers containing such notice shall 
be required and shall be sufficient proof of such notice. 

614. When the Petition shall have been received, Notice of Motion for leave Introduction 

to bring in the Bill shall be given, and such Bill shall be brought in within thirty of 

days from the receipt of such Petition. 
415. When leave to bring in a Private Bill shall have been obtained, an.d before Printing of. 

it shall be read a first time, it shall be printed, at the expense of the parties applying 
for it, in the same form as Public Bills, and a sufficient number of copies of it 'shall 
be delivered to the Clerk, for the use of the House. 

416. Before a Private Bill shall be read a first time, the sum of twenty-five Deposit in 

pounds, towards meeting the expenses attendant on such Bill, shall be paid to the 
credit of the Consolidated Revenue Fund of the Colony, and a Certificate of such 
payment shall be produced by the Member moving the first reading of the Bill ; and 
whenever the expenses attendant upon such Bill shall be found to exceed the sum of 
twenty-five pounds so paid, a further sum of twenty-five pounds shall, from time to 
time, as may be demanded by the Clerk of the Assembly, be paid by the parties 
applying for the Bill, to the Credit of the Consolidated Revenue Fund of the Colony ; 
and a like Certificate of such additional payments shall be produced before pro-
ceeding further with the Bill ; but on the passing, rejection, or withdrawal of such 
Bill, the Promoters Shall pay into the said Consolidated Revenue Fund any additional 
sum which may be required to fully pay the expenses attendant upon such Bill and 
in the event of a balance remaining in favour of the Promoters they may obtain from 
the said Clerk a Certificate of the actual expenses incurred, with a view to the refund 
of any amount found to be unexpended. 

417. When a Private Bill shall have been read a first time, it shall be referred Reference to  
ins eiiteteetecom- to a Select Committee, to be appointed on Motion upon Notice, and such Committee 

shall, require proof of the allegations contained in the Preamble. 
418. The Chairman of a Select Committee on a Private Bill shall be entitled to voth of Chairs 

glin mitstettr,  vote on all questions in the same way as other Members of such Committee ; and,  
in case of an equality of votes, exercise a second or casting vote. 	 Private Bills. 

419. Every Petition in. reference to a Private Bill shall, if received, be Petition, 
deemed, without motion, to be referred to the Select Committee on the Bill. 	respecting. 

420. Every Select Committee on a Private Bill may, in its discretion, hear Select com• 
Counsel if it be desired; and may also take such oral or other evidence as it may ZiatrtseL  
think requisite ; and may decide on matters in issue between the persons conducting 
and opposing the Bill ; after which, the Question shall be put from the Chair, "That Proof of 
this Preamble stand part of the Bill" : And if the Question pass in the negative, Preamble' 
it shall be fatal to the Bill, and the Committee shall report accordingly ; but if the 
Question pass in. the affirmative, the several Clauses of the Bill shall next be 
proceeded with, and the Amendments, if any, carefully noted for report to the 
House, care being taken that no Clause be inserted or Amendment made in the Bill 
which shall be foreign to the import of the notice required under Rule 411 to be 
given by the party or parties applying for it. 	 421. 
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Report of 
Select Com. 	 421. When a Select Committee shall have reported in favour of aTrivate Bill, 
mittbe on. such Bill shall be proceeded with as in the case of Public Bills, and a future day, 

subsequent to the distribution of the printed Report and Evidence, shall be appointed 
for the second reading. 

Private Bills 	 422. Private Bills coming to this House the firstitime from the Legislative initiated 
Council.

in 
 Council, if accompanied by printed copies of the Reports and Proceedings of the 

Select Committees to which they may have been referred, shall be proceeded with, in 
all respects as Public Bills "presented" in pursuance of Orders of this House, unless 
the House shall otherwise order ; and every such Bill as shall finally pass this House 
shall be returned by Message to the Legislative Council with the Clerk's Certificate 
at the top, that "the Legislative Assembly has this day agreed to this Bill, with 
[or without] Amendment," as the case may require. 

Proceedings 
011 Private 	 425. If the Promoters of any Private Bill originated in the Assembly, with 
Pills inter- respect to which Bill, proceedings have been interrupt&l. in either House by the close 

ilted in one 
Session may of the Session before their completion, shall petition the Assembly within, ten clear m  

be renewed, sitting days after the commencement of the next Session for leave to proceed with 
upon Petition 
in the next. the same Bill, and the Petition be received, then such Bill shall be brought in 

again, but with such alterations as may have been made in the Assembly, and read a 
fast time without notice or debate ; and it may also, on a motion then put, without 
notice, and agreed to, be, without further notice or debate, passed through all the 
subsequent stages through which it had passed in the previous Session ; but should 
such motion be negatived, then the 13111 shall be proceeded with in - the ordinary 
way. Provided that it shall not be necessary to refer such Bill to a Select Com-
mittee, or to a Committee of the 'Whole, if it shall previously have been reported on 
by a similar Committee. Provided further that it shall not be necessary to consider 
in Committee of the Whole such, portions of a Bill so revived as shall have been 

• • already considered in a Committee of the Whole during the previous Session. 
When Bill 
find not been 	 426. If any such Private Bill sought to he proceeded with shall only have been 
reported on read a first time, and referred to a Select Committee, and, shall not have been ty  delect 
Coininittee. reported by such Committee before the close of the Session, it shall, after the recep-

tion of such Petition and Order thereon, upon Motion without Notice, be read a first 
time and referred to a Select Committee, comprising, as nearly as may be, all the 
Members composing the Select Committee to which it shall have been referred in the 
previous SesSion, together with the Minutes of Evidence taken before, and all Papers 
and Petitions which may have been referred, and all instructions which may have 
been .given, to such last-mentioned Committee ; and upon the Report of the Bill by 
the Select Committee, it shall be proceeded with, in all its subsequent stages, in the 
ordinary manner of proceeding with Private Bills. 

St nntliiig 
Orders held 	 427. In the case of every such interrupted Private Bill revived as provided in 
to be complied Rule 425, the Standing Orders shall be held to be satisfied in all respects, so far as 
with. 	they shall have been complied with in the previous Session. 

Sydney : Charles Potter, Co‘ riment Pritilm-1539. 

Expenses to 
be met before 	 423. -Upon the final passing of any Private Bill originated in the Assembly 
presented for the Clerk of the Assembly shall certify that all expenses incurred during the 
Assent, 	passage of the Bill through both Houses have been met, before the Speaker shall 

present the same for Her Majesty's assent. 
Not to be 
numbered. 	 • 424. No Number shall be given to ahy Private Bill which shall have passed 

both Houses and received Her Majesty's Assent. 
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MEMBERS, SOUTH SYDNEY. 

REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE 

op 

ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS; 

TOGETHER WITH THE 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE COMMITTEE 

D 

MINUTES OE EVIDENCE. 

ORDERED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY TO BE PRINTED, 
25 April, 1889. 

SYDNEY : CHARLES POTTER, GOVERNMENT PRINTER, 

1859. 
[is.) 	177—A 
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EXTRACTS FROM THE VOTES AND PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

ELECTION PETITION—BOWERS AND ANOTHER v. THE SITTING MEMBERS, 
SOUTH SYDNEY. 

VOTES No. 3. FRIDAY, 1 MA.RCII, 1889. 
3. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS A2TD QUALIFICATTONS :-Mr. Speaker, pursuant to the requirements of the 

Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the Table his Warrant appointing the Committee of Elections and 
Qualifications for the present Session, of which the following is a copy:— 
" By the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

" of Hew South Wales. 	 • 
" Pursuant to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 

New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint- 
" Joseph Hector Carruthers, Esquire, 
" Robert George Dundas Fitzgerald, 

" Esquire, 
" James Hayes, Esquire, 

"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
" Speaker." 

VOTES No. 5. WEDNESDAY, 6 Mutat, 1889. 
6. ELECTION PETITION (South Sydney) :—Mr. Dibbs, by command, aid upon the Table an Election 

Petition, which had been addressed to His Excellency the Governor, from James Bowers and 
Charles Coulton, alleging that at the last General Election, and upon the examination of the 
Ballot-papers after the closing the Poll for the Electoral District of South Sydney, it was found 
that a large number of such Ballot-papers had not the initials of the Presiding Officer or Officers, 
as required by law, and were not rejected, but were improperly and illegally initialled, and counted 
as formal ; that many of the voting-papers which were declared informal were not so, and many 
were declared formal which were not so ; and that, by reason of the premises, many votes should 
have been counted in favour of the candidates who were not declared duly elected ; that, for these 
and other reasons stated, the Petitioners pray that their Petition may be dealt with according to 
law, and that the said Election for South Sydney may be declared null and void, or that such other 
determination may be made in the premises as may be just. 
Ordered to lie on the Table. 

VOTES No. 7. FRIDAY, 8 Maiten, 1889. 
1. 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 

COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :- 
(1.) Maturity of Warrant reported :—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant appointing the 

Committee of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, laid upon the Table on Friday, 
lot March, 1889, not having been disapproved by the Assembly in the course of the three next 
sitting-days on winch the Assembly met for the despatch of business, had now taken effect as an 
appointment of such Committee • and intimated that it was therefore open to Members of the 
Committee to be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with the 69th section of the 
Electoral Act of 1880. 

(2.) Members Sworn :—Charles Alfred Lee, Esquire, and Alexander Ryrie, Esquire, came to the 
Table, and were sworn by the Clerk as Members of the Committee. 

2. ELECTION PETITIONS :—Mr. Dibbs moved, That the following Election Petitions be referred to the 
Committee of Elections and Qualifications :— 

* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 
(4.) From James Bowers and Charles Coulton, complaining of the Election and Return of William 
Henry Traill, Walter Edmunds, James Matthew Toohey, and James Martin, Members for the 
Electoral District of South Sydney, laid upon the Table of this House on 6th March instant. 

	

Question put and passed. 	 9. 

" Charles Alfred Lee, Esquire, 
" Alexander Ryrie, Esquire, 
"Bruce Smith, Esquire, and 
" Robert Bliss Wilkinson, Esquire, 

" being Members of the said Assembly, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and 
" Qualifications in the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid. 

" Given under my hand, at the Legislative Assembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
"this first day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
" eighty-nine. 
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O. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Mr. Speaker, pursuant to tire requirements of the 
Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the Table his Warrant appointing Frank James Smith, Esquire, 
and John Rende11 Street, Esquire, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications 
for the present Session, of which the following is a copy :— 
"By the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

of New South Wales. 
" Pursuant to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint- 

" Frank James Smith, Esquire, and 
" John Rendell Street, Esquire, 

" being Members of the said Assembly, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifi- 
cationsin the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid, in the 

" room of Joseph Hector Carruthers, Esquire, and Bruce Smith, Esquire, whose Seats in the said 
" Assembly were this day declared vacant, by reason of their acceptance of the offices of Minister 
" of Public Instruction and Secretary for Public Works respectively. 

" Given under my hand, at the Legislative Assembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
"this eighth day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
" eighty-nine. 

VOTES No. 11. TUESDAY, 9 AFRIL, 1889. 
• 

2. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 

(1.) Maturity of Warrant reported :—My. Speaker reported that his Warrant, laid upon the Table 
on the 8th March last, appointing Frank .Tames Smith, Esquire, and John Rendell Street, Esquire, 
to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, not 
having been disapproved by the Assembly in the course of the three next sitting-days onwhieh the 
Assembly met for the despatch of business, had now taken effect ; and intimated that it was there-
fore open to Mr. Smith and Mr. Street to be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with 
the 59th section of the Electoral Act of 1880. 

(2.) Members of Committee Sworn :—James Hayes, Esquire, Frank James Smith, Esquire, and 
John Rendell Street, Esquire, came to the Table and were sworn by the Clerk as Members of the 
Committee. 

VOTES No. 12. WEDNESDAY, 10 AERIE, 1889. 

12. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Robert Bliss Wilkinson, Esquire, Came IO the 
Table, and was sworn by the Clerk as a Member of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications. 

16. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Pursuant to the requirement of the 59th section 
of the Electoral Act of 1880, Mr. Speaker appointed the first meeting of the Committee of 
Elections and Qualifications to take place at eleven o'clock am., to-morrow, the 11th instant, in 
Committee Room No. 3. 

VOTES No. 17. THURSDAY, 25 Amin, 1859. 
5. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS—(Eledian Petition—Bowers and another v. The 

Sitting Members, South Sydney):—Mr. Leo, as Chairman, brought up the Report from, and laid 
upon the Table the Minutes of Proceedings of, and Evidence taken before, the Committee of 
Elections and Qualifications, to whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, the Petition of James 
Bowers and Charles Coulton against the return of the sitting Members for the Electoral District 
of South Sydney. 
And the said Report was read at length by the Clerk, by direction of Mr. Speaker, as follows :— 

"The Committee of Elections and Qualifications, duly appointed on 1st March, 1889, to 
"whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, a Petition from James Bowers and Charles Coulton, 
"alleging that at the last General Election, and upon the examination of the ballot-papers after 
"the closing the Poll for the Electoral District of South Sydney, it was found that a large number 
"of such ballot-papers had not the initials of the Presiding Officer or Officers, as required by law, 
"and were not rejected, but were improperly and illegally initialled and counted as formal ; that 
"many of the voting-papers which were declared informal were not so, and many were declared 
"formal which were not so ; and that, by reason of the premises, many votes should have been 
"counted in favour of the candidates who were not declared duly elected ; that for these and other 
"reasons stated, the Petitioners pray that their Petition may be dealt with according to law, and 
"that the said Election for South Sydney may be declared null and void, or that such other deter-
" ruination may be made in the premises as may be just,—have determined and hereby declare;— 

" (1.) That William Henry Trail], Walter Edmunds, James Martin, and James Matthew 
"Toohey, Esquires, the sitting Members, have been duly elected. 

" (2.) That the Petition of James Bowers and Charles Coulton is not frivolous nor vexatious. 
"(3.) That the Committee make no award as to costs. 

"CHARLES A. LEE, 
"No. 3 Committee Room, 	 " Chairman." 

"Legislative Assembly, 25th April, 1889." 
Ordered, on motion of Mr. Lee, that the Report and Minutes of the Proceedings and Evidence be 
printed. 

".TAMES HENRY YOUNG-, 
" Speaker." • 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

ELECTION PETITION—BOWERS AND ANOTHER v. THE SITTING MEMBERS, 
SOUTH SYDNEY. 

REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE 

or 

ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS. 

THE COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS, duly appointed On 1St 
March, 1889, to whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, a Petition from 
James Bowers and Charles CouRon, alleging that at the last General Election, 
and upon the examination of the ballot-papers after the closing the Poll for the 
Electoral District of South Sydney, it was found that a large number of such 
ballot-papers had not the initials of the Presiding Officer or Officers, as required 
by law, and were not rejected, but were improperly and illegally initialled, and 
counted as formal; that many of the voting-papers which were declared 
informal were not so, and many were declared formal which were not so ; and 
that, by reason of the premises, many votes should have been counted in favour 
of the candidates who were not declared duly elected; that, for these and other 
reasons stated, the Petitioners pray that their Petition may be dealt with 
according to law, and that the said Election for South Sydney may be declared 
null and void, or that such other determination may be made in the premises 
as may be just,—have determined and do hereby declare :— 

1. That William Henry Traill, Walter Edmunds, James Martin, and James 
Matthew Toohey, Esquires, the sitting Members, have been duly 
elected. 

2. That the Petition of James Bowers and Charles Coulton is not frivolous 
nor vexatious. 

3. That the Committee make no award as to costs. • 
CHARLES A. LEE, 

No. 3 Committee Boom, 	 Chairman. 
Legislative Assembly, 

25th April, 1869. 
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1889. 

MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND 
QUALIFICATIONS. 

In tke inciter of the Election Petition, which had been addressed to His Excellency the Governor, from 
James Bowers and Charles Coulton, alleging that at the last General Election, and upon the examination 
of the Ballot-papers after the closing the Poll for the Electoral District of South Sydney, it was found 
that a large number of such Ballot-papers had not the initials of the Presiding Officer or Officers, as 
required by law, and were not rejected, but were improperly and illegally initialled; and counted as formal; 
that many of the voting-papers which were declared informal were not so, and many were declared Ibrmal 
which were not so ; and that, by reason of the premises, many votes should have been counted in favour 
of the candidates who were not declared duly elected; that, for these and other reasons stated, the 
Petitioners pray that their Petition may be dealt with according to law, and that the said Election for 
South Sydney may be declared null and void, or that such other determination may be made in the premises 
as may be just. 

THURSDAY, 11 APRIL, 1889. 
MEMBERS PRESENT :— 

Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Ryrie, 	 Mr. Street, 

In attendance— 
The Second Clerk Assistant. 

1. On motion of Mr. Street, Mr. Lee was elected Chairman. 
2. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the Extracts from the Votes and Proceedings referring 

to the appointment of the Committee. (Vide Extracts, pages :3 and 4,) 
3. Resolved :—That the Chairman take the necessary steps to obtain the Attorney-General's opinion as 

to whether the Committee may proceed to business whilst a Member of the Committee has not been 
sworn its. 

4. The Clerk, by the direction of the Chairman, read the Extract from the Votes and Proceedings by 
which the Petition of James Bowers and another was referred to the Committee. (Vide Extract, 
page 3.) 

5. The Clerk then, by direction of the Chairman, read the Petition of James Bowers and another, to 
which the Bank deposit-receipt was attached, as follows 

To .  His Excellency the Right Honorable Citaxbrs ROBERT, BARON CARRINGTON, a Member of Her Majesty's 
Most Honorable Privy Council, Knight Grand Cross of the Most Distinguished Order of St. Michael and 
St. George, Governor and Commander-in-Chief of the Colony of NeW South Wales and its Dependencies. 

The humble Petition of James Bowers and Charles Coulton,— 
SHOWETH :— 

That at the last General Election of Members to serve in the Legislative Assembly of the Colony of 
New South Wales, William Henry Traill, Walter Edmunds, James Matthew Toohey, James Martin, John 
Plant Wright, Bernhard Ringrose Wise, and George Pile, were severally candidates for election as Members of 
the said Assembly for the Electoral District of South Sydney, and were severally persons entitled to be so 
returned. 

That at the nomination for the said election, on Thursday, the thirty-first day of January, one thousand 
eight hundred and eighty-nine, each of them the said James Martin, Alban Joseph Riley, james Matthew 
Toohey, William Henry Traill, John Plant Wright, Walter Edmunds, Bernhard Ringrose Wise, and George 
Pile, were duly nominated and proposed as such Members. Mr. S. W. Whiddon, the Returning Officer for the 
Electoral District, then called for a show of hands separately in favour of each candidate, and upon the same 
being taken declared such show of hands to be in favour of James Matthew Toohey, William Henry Traill, 
Walter Edmunds, and John Plant Wright, whereupon a Poll was duly demanded on behalf of the other 
candidates, which was afterwards taken on Saturday, the second day of February, then following. 

That before and at the time of the said nomination, and from thence, your Petitioners were and still are 
persons who had a right to vote at the said Election. 

That the said Returning Officer on the day of the declaration of the Poll for the said Electoral District 
declared the number of votes polled for the respective candidates to be as follows;— 

For the said William Henry Trail' 	  3036 
Walter Edmunds 	  2996 
James Matthew Toohey 	  2934 

11 	James Martin 	  2918 
John Plant Wright 	  

Alban Joseph Riley 	
Bernhard Ri» rose Wise 	  

228889 0291 5429  

George Pile 	  
And thereupon declared the said William Henry Trail, Walter Edmunds, James Matthew Toohey, and James 
Martin to be duly elected as Members of the said Assembly for the said Electoral District of South Sydney, and 
bile said Returning Officer afterwards and in due time endorsed on the writ for the said Election the names of 
the said William Henry Traill, Walter Edmunds, James Matthew Toohey, and James Martin as the persons so 
elected, and returned the said writ to your Excellency, as required by law. 

That upon the examination of the ballot-papers taken from one or more of the ballot-boxes after the 
closing of the Poll by the Presiding Officer or Officers for the purpose of ascertaining the number of votes 
recorded for each of the candidates, it was found that a large number of such ballot-papers, to the number of 
one hundred and fifty at the least, as your Petitioners verily believe, had not the initials of the Presiding Officer 
or Officers, as required by law, and were therefore informal, and the daid Presiding Officer or Officers did not 
thereupon reject such papers in accordance with the thirty-fifth section of the Electoral Act of 1880, but 
improperly and illegally initialled and improperly and illegally counted the same as formal, whereby the said 
William Henry Trail!, Walter Edmunds, James Matthew Toohey, and James Martin may have been made to 
appear to have a majority of the said votes recorded at the said Election, whereas if the ballot-papers had not 
been RO improperly and illegally initialled and counted as aforesaid, neither of the persons so declared to be 
duly elected as aforesaid might have had such a majority of these votes as were so declared by the said Returning 
Officer. That 

Mr. Hayes. 
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That your Petitioners have heard, and verily believe, that many of the voting-papers which were declared 

informal were not informal, and that many of the voting-papers which were declared to be formal were nut 
formal, and that by reason of the premises many votes should have been counted in favour of the said James 
Martin, and the said Alban James Riley, and the said Bernhard Ringrose Wise, and the said George rile, or 
one or more of the same, which were not counted for him or them ' • and that by reason of the premises in this 
and the preceding clause many votes were counted for the said William Henry Trail, and the said James 
Matthew Toohey, and the said Walter Edmunds, anti the said John Plant Wright, or one or more of the same, 
which ought not to have been counted for him or them, whereby the said William Henry Traill, and the said 
Walter Edmunds, and the said James Matthew Toohey, and the said James Martin were not, nor were any one 
or more of them, lawfully elected, and are not, nor is any one or more of them, Members or a Member of the 
said Legislative Assembly. 

That your Petitioners, pursuant to the said Electoral Act of 1880, caused the sum of one hundred pounds 
to be deposited with the Bank of New South Wales, Sydney, to the credit of the Speaker of the Legislative 
Assembly, in relation to this Petition, and the Bank deposit-slip for such receipt is hereunto annexed. 

Your Petitioners, therefore, humbly pray that this Petition may be dealt with according to law, and 
that the said Election for South Sydney may be declared null and void, and the return of the said William 
Henry Traill, Walter Edmunds, .Tames Matthew Toohey, and James Martin as Members of the said Legislative 
Assembly for the said Electoral District be also declared null and void for the reasons aforesaid ; and that the 
said William Henry Trani, Walter Edmunds, James Matthew Toohey, and James Martin were not, nor was any 
one or more of them lawfully elected, and are not, nor is any 0310 or more of them, such Members or Member of 
the said Legislative Assembly for the said Electoral District, and that such further or other order and determine,. 
tion may be made iiithe premises as may be just. 

And your Petitioners, as in duty bound, will ever pray, &c. 
JAMES BOWERS, 

No. 743 on Electoral Roll for South Sydney, householder, 350, Riley-street. 
OH. COULTON, 

No. 1758 on Electoral Roll for South Sydney, leaseholder, Foveaux-street. 

Sydney, 5 March, 1889. 
PAID into the Bank of New South Wales the sum of one hundred pounds, to be placed to the credit of the 
Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of New South Wales, by the hands of 

W. H. ROFT, 
For James Bowers and Charles Coulton. 

Dup £100. 	 E. G. ALLINGHAM, 
Teller. 

6. The Clerk submitted a letter from the Honorable the Speaker enclosing certified copies of letters lie 
had received from William Henry 	Walter Edmunds, James Matthew Toohoy, and James 
Martin, Esquires, giving notice of their intention to defend their Seats ;  which he read, as follows

" Legislative Assembly Chamber, 
Sydney, 10 April, 1889. 

[Enclogures.] 
Sir, , 	 Sydney, 8 March, 1889. 

I beg to inform you that it is my intention to defend the Seat I occupy as Member for South Sydney, 
against the Petition of James Bowers and Charles •Coulton. 

Yours, ke., 
The Honorable the Speaker. 	 JAMES TOOHEY. 
A true copy.—Jamss HENRY YOU a, Speaker. 

Sir, 	 Legislative Assembly, 14 March, 1889. 
I have the honor to give you notice that with reference to the Petition presented by James Bowers 

and Charles Coulton against the return of the Members declared elected for South Sydney, at the General Election 
in January, 1889, I, as one of the sitting Members to whose election such Petition relates, ask to be admitted as 
a party to oppose the said Petition and defend my return. 

I am, &c., 
The Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly. 	 W. H. THAT'LL. 
A true copy—JAMES HENRY Youxs, Speaker. 	• 

Sir, 	• 	 Legislative Assembly, 14 March, 1889. 
I have the honor to give you notice that with reference to the Petition presented by James Bowels 

and Charles Coulton against the return of the Members declared elected for South Sydney, at the General Election 
in January, 1889, I, as one of the sitting Members to whose election Bath Petition relates, ask to be admitted as 
a party to oppose the said Petition and defend my return. 

I am, &e., 
The Honorable J. H. Young, Speaker of the Legislative Assembly. 	 V. EDMUNDS. 
A true copy.—JAMES HENRY YOUNG, Speaker. 

3 April, 1889. 
Referring to the Petition of James Bowers and Chni'les Coulton, praying that the late Election for 

South Sydney should be declared null and void, which Petition was referred to the Elections and Qualifications 
Committee on the 8th March instant, I have the honor to request that I inay be admitted as a party to the 
reference, and be allowed to defend my Seat before the Committee. 

I have, he., 	• 
The Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly. 	 JAMES MARTIN. 
A true copy—JAMES HENRY YODER, Speaker. 

"To the Committee of Elections and Qualifications,— 
" Gentlemen, 

"I have the honor to transmit to you herewith copies of letters which have been 
"received by me from William Henry Trail-, Walter Edmunds, Tames Matthew Toohev, and 
"James Martin, Esquires, the sitting Members for South Sydney, giving notice of their intention 
"to defend their return, against which a Petition is now under your consideration. 

"I have, &c. 
".TAMES HENRY YOUNG, 

"Speaker." 

7. 
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7. Committee deliberated and ordered :— 
(1.) That Mr. S. T. Whiddou, the Returning Officer, together with the Presiding Officers, at the late 

Election for South Sydney, be summoned to give evidence next meeting. 
(2.) That the patties concerned in the Petition "Bourke against Perry—The Richmond," be informed 

that the hearing will be proceeded with on Thursday next, and that the Secretary to the General 
Post Office be summoned to give evidence on that day. 

(3.) That the parties concerned in the Petition "M‘Kinnen against Young and Roberts—The Hastings 
And Manning," be informed that the hearing will be proceeded with on Thursday, the 25th 
instant, and that James WInherney the Returning Officer, and the Presiding Officers at the 
Polling-places Beechworth and Kendall, be summoned to give evidence on that day. 

S. Committee adjourned until Tuesday next, at half-past 10 o'clock, 
R W. ROBERTSON, 

Second Clerk Assistant. 

TUESDAY, 10 APRIL, 1889, 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Mr. Lee in the Chair. 

Mr. Frank Smith, Mr. Ryrie, 

	

Mr. Street, 	 Mr. Hayes, 
•In•attendance,— 

The Second Clerk Assistant. 
I. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the minutes of the previous meeting, which were 

confirmed. 
2. The Chairman reported that, in accordance with the request of the Committee, he had written to the 

Attorney-General for his opinion as to whether the Committee was properly constituted whilst one 
of its members was not sworn in, and had received a. reply from the Secretary. By direction of the 
Chairman, the letter and the reply thereto, were read by the Clerk, as follows :— 

Sir, 	 • 	 Legislative Assembly, No. 3 Committee ROOM, 11 April, 1639. 
I have been requested by the Committee of Elections and Qualifications to submit, for your opinion, 

the following point in connection with the constitution of that Committee. 
" The Conunittee has been duly appointed, under the warrant of the Speaker, and six of the gentlemen 

. appointed have taken the necessary oath.' 
On the 10t4 instant, when six only of the said Committee of seven had been sworn, the Speaker appointed 

the day for the first meeting. The Committee met accordingly. 
The question now submitted for your consideration is—" Is the Committee of Elections and Qualifications, 

with six only of its members sworn, 	constituted, and entitled to proceed with the business referred to 
It?" 	 I have, kc., 

CHARLES A. LEE, 
The Honorable the Attorney-General, Sydney. 	 Chairman. 

Si,', 	 Attorney.Generals Department, Sydney, 12 April, 1839. 
I am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 11th instant applying, by desire of the 

Committee of Elections and Qualifications, for the opinion of the Attorney.General upon a point in connection 
with the construction of such Committee, and to inform you that Mr. Simpson regrets he cannot advise in 
matter of this kind, as it is neither within his province nor his duty as Attorney-General to do so. 

•
I have, ke., 

C. A. Lee, Esq., M.P., Legislative Assembly.  S.V. W. STEPHEN 

8. Parties called in. 
Present ;—Mr. James Bowers (one of the Petitioners). 

Mr. Charles Coulton (one of the Petitioners). 
. 	James Matthew Toohey, Esquire (one of the Sitting Members). 

Mr. Doyle (for Mr. Edmunds, one of the Sitting Members). 
4, Frederick -William Webb, Esquire, Clerk of the Legislative Assembly, called in, sworn, and examined, 

Witness ,produced the Writ of Election certifying to return of William Henry Trail!, Walter 
Edmunds, James Matthew Toohey, and James Martin, as Members for South Sydney. 

Witness also produced the parcel of ballot.papers as received from the Returning Officer for South 
Sydney. 

Witness withdrew. 
9. Mr. James Bowers, one of the Petitioners, sworn, and examined. 

Mr; Toohey put certain questions, which the witness refused to answer, and appealed to the Chairman 
to insist upon the questions being answered. 

Room cleared. 
Committee deliberated and decided to disallow the questions. 
Parties called in, and Mr, Toohey informed. 
'Witness withdrew. 

6. Samuel Thomas Whiddon, Esquire, Returning Officer for South Sydney, called in, sworn, and 
examined. 

'Witness withdrew. 
7. Mr. Francis Northey Alldritt, a Presiding Officer at the late South Sydney Election, called in, swam, 

and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

8. Mr. Charles William Coulton, one of the Petitioners, sworn, and examined, 
Witness withdrew. 

9. Mr. William Solomons called iv, sworn, and emmined. 
• • 	Witness Withdrew. 

10. 
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10. Walter Edmunds, Esq., one of the sitting Members, entered, the room, and, having addressed the 
Committee, the parties withdrew, 

11. The Committee adjourned to To-morrow, at Half-past Ten o'clock, 
R. W. ROBERTSON, 

Second Clerk Assist tint. • 

WEDNESDA Y, 17 APRIL, 1889. 

MEMBERS PRESENT:- 
Mr. Lee in the Chair. 

Mr. Frank Smith, 	 Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 	Mr. Hyliie, 

Mr. Street. 
1. In attendance,— 

'rho Second Clerk Assistant, 
2. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the minutes of the previous meeting, which were. 

confirmed. 
3. The Committee proceeded to the scrutiny of the ballot-papers. 
4. Committee adjourned till To-morrow, at One o'clock, 

R. W. ROBERTSON, 
Second Clerk Assistant. 

THURSDAY, 18 APRIL, 1889. 

ME3I3ER8 PRESENT :- 
Mr. Lee, 
M. Hayes, 

Mr. Street, 	• 
Mr. Frank Smith. 

 

There not being five members present one hour after the time appointed for the meeting of the 
Committee, the members present adjourned to Wednesday next, at Half-past One o'clock. 

R. W. ROBERTSON, 
Second Clerk Assistant, 

WEDNESDAY, 24 APRIL, 1589. 

MEMBERS PRESENT :- 
Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Hayes, 	- 
Mr. Eyrie, 

	

	 Mr, R. B. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Frank Smith. 

1. The Clerk, by dh•ection of the Chairman, read the minutes of the previous meetings, which were 
confirmed. 

Committee deliberated. 
Committee adjourned to To-morrow, at Ten o'clock. 

R. -W. ROBERTSON, 
Second Clerk Assistant. 

In attendance— 
The Second Clerk Assistant. 

1. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the minutes of the previous meeting, which were 
confirmed. 

2. The Committee proceeded to the further scrutiny of the ballot-papers. 
3. The Chairman reported the result of the scrutiny, as follows :— 

William Henry 'mill 	 3,030 
Walter Edmunds 	 2,993 
,Tames  Martin ... 	••• 	 2,928 
James Matthew Toohey 	••• 	 2,926 

4. The Committee then deliberated as to their Report. 
Moved by Mr. Hayes, seconded by Mr. Street,—" That William Henry Traill, Walter Edmunds, 

James Martin, and James Matthew Toohey, the sitting Members, have been duly elected." 
Carried. 

Moved by Mr. Hayes, seconded by Mr. Frank Smith,—" That the Petition of James Bowers and 
Charles Coulton is not frivolous nor vexatious." Carried. 

Moved by Mr. Hayes, seconded by Mr. Street,—" That the Committee make no award as to costs." 
Carried. 

Resolved, hat the conclusions at which the Committee have arrived be embodied in a Report and 
presented. to the House. 

R. W. ROBERTSON, 
Second Clerk Assistant. 

THURSDAY, 25 APRIL, 1859. • 
MEMBERS PRESENT :- 
Mr. Lee in the Chair. 

Mr. Hayes, Mr. Street, 
Mr. Frank Smith,  Mr. }lyric. 

177—B 
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COMMITTEE 

OF 

ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS. 

ELECTION PETITION—BOWERS AND ANOTHER I/. THE SITTI1 4,10 NEHBEREit  
SOUTH SYDNEY. 

TUESDAY, 16 APRIL, 1889. 

*matt:— 
Mr. Hayes, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Street; 

Mr. RyHe. 
C. A. Lee, Esq , in the Chair. 

Mr. Toohey, one of the sitting Members, appeared in person; Mr. Doyle, clerk to Mr. Brady, appeared 
on behalf of Mr. Edmunds; Mr. Trail! and Mr. Martin were not present, and were unrepresented. 

Frederick William Webb, Esq., Clerk to the Legislative Assembly, sworn and examined :— 
• 1. Chairman.] Do you produce the writ for the last election for South Sydney ? I produce the writ issued F. W. Webb, 
by His Excellency the Governor ;  on the 19th of January last, for the election of four Members to serve in 	Esq. 
the Legislative Assembly of the Colony, for the Electoral District of South Sydney, with the returning 
officer's certificate, to the effect that William Henry Trail], Esq., Walter Edmunds, Esq., James Matthew I6Apri1,1889. 
Tochey, Esq. 3  and James Martin, Esq., were duly chosen the Members for the Electoral District of South 
Sydney, to serve in the said Legislative Assembly. [Document produced.] 
2. Do you also produce the ballot-papers? I produce a large parcel endorsed as containing the ballot-
papers, rolls, dic., used at the late election for South Sydney, on February 2, 1889, that endorsement being 
signed by the returning officer. [Parcel produced.] 

Mr. James Bowers sworn and examined :— 
3. Chairman.] Are you an cleat& for South Sydney? Yes. 	 J. Bowers. 
4. Do you know your number on the roll I do not remember it. 
5. Did you vote at the last South Sydney election ? Yes. 	 16Apri1,1889 
G. You are a party to a petition against the return of the four sitting Members for South Sydney ;—wag 
that petition signed by you ? Yes. 
7. is this your signature to the petition ? Yes. [Petition produced and read.] 
8. Air. Toohey.] In your petition you make a statement in regard to certain ballot-papers width Were not 
initialled—were you a scrutineer at that election? I was not. 
9. How did you get your information? From those who were. 
10. From whom personally? From different people. 
11. Will you name one? No I svill not name any. 
12. There is £100 placed to the credit of the Speaker of the Assembly in connection with your petitioh ;-
was that your own money ? I won't say whether it was or not. 

. 	 . 
Samuel Thomas Whiddon, Esq., sworn and eXamined :— 

13. Chairman.] You are the returning officer for the Electoral District of South Sydney? i ain. 	 S. T. 
14. Did you act in that capacity at the last General Election? I did. . ,..., 

,—....A.....—, 
Nbiddon, 

Esq. 15. Both at the polling on the 2nd of February and at the nomination on the 2. 1st of 	JanuarY I Yes. 
16. Will you be good enough to tell the Committee how many candidates were nominated? Fight. 
17. And their nanses7 W. H. Traill, Walter E'dihurids, James Matthew Toohey, James Martin;  J. P. 16Apri1,1889. 
Wright, B. R. Wise, A. X. Riley, and George Pile. 
18. Is that your signature on the parcel containing the ballot-papers and other documents used at the Iasi 
election for South Sydney? To the best of my knowledge it is my signature. 
19. Mr. Frank Smith.] Are the papers sealed up by you? They are sealed by the presiding Offieers in each 
booth. 	 . 
20. But is the parcel sealed by you? Not by my.  hands, but in my presence by the deputy. 
21. Chairman.] Is this the electoral list used by you at your polling-booth? Yes. 	 22. 
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8, T. 	22. Will you turn to No. 743 :-what is the name of the elector ? Bowers Thomas, 356, Riley-street, lease- 
Whiddon, holder. 

Esq. 23. Did he vote? I could' not swear that he did. 
16461,1889. 21. Has the name been voted for? It has. 

25. How many polling-booths were there ? Bight 
26. Can you remember the letters of each? Yes. A, B C, D; E, F, G; H, I, J, K; li, M; N, 0, P, 
Q, 11; S, T; U to Z. . 
27. At which of the booths did you preside At A, B. 
28. Can you give the names of the gentlemen who presided at the respective polling-booths ? Myself at 
A, B; • Mr. W. H. Whiddon at C, D; Mr. A. C. Begby -E, F, 0; Mr. F. N. Alldritt 	I, J, K ;  Mr. 
C. L. Morgan at L, M ; Mr. Thomas Ridley at N, 0, P, Q, ; Mr. C. Eden at S, T; Mr. j. B. Mote at 
IT to Z. 
29. Did you provide the pfinted ballot-papers? . 1 did. 
30. And supplied them to the presiding officers? Yes. 
31. Did you initial those papers before you issued them to the presiding officers ? No; it is not usual. 
32. When you were counting the votes at the close of the poll, were there any ballot-papers in your ballot-
box that were not initialled ? No ; none whatever. 
33. As returning officer were you informed of any alleged irregularity that had occurred in any of the 
polling-booths? I was ;-at one only. 
34. Which one was that ? That would be the one at which Mr. Alldritt was presiding, H, I, J, K. It was 
reported to me early in the morning by my deputy, Mr. William Solomons, that one of the presiding 
officers had been issuing a number of papers, accidentally, as far as I can understand, without 
initialling them iii the usual way. I was asked by several of the scrutineers what I intended to do. I 
said that 7I could not interfere at present, but that before 4 o'clock I would give my decision. I asked 
them at that time whether they were, all satisfied that the papers had been properly used. I put the 
question to each scrutineer, and they all replied, " Yes." A few minutes before 4 o'clock I went round to 
the polling-booth and said, "Directly the poll closes sort out your papers, and when you find any of them 
not initialled put them aside Mid -afterwards initial them, so that they may be initialled before the final 
count ; " I asked, " Does that satisfy you ?" and they all said, " Yes." I requested a scrutineer for each 
side to take particular notice of this being done. One of the scrutineers was Mr. Forsythe, junior ; the 
other was a person whose name I cannot recollect, though I know him personally. They each undertook 
to see that this was properly done, and at the final count I asked the question, and they said it had been . 
properly done, as I directed. - That is all I know about it. 
35, And then the ballot-papers were delivered to you sealed in the usual form 7 Yes. 
36. Did the presiding officer inform you as to how many uninitialled papers he had given out? He could 
not well get-at that ; the papers are done up in packets of 100. I know that one parcel had gone, and he 
had opened the second. 
37. But did be say how many were found in the ballot-box without initials? The number was not counted. 
I wished the number not to be counted because my idea was that they should not be known from the other 
papers, so that the intention of the voters should not be known from them any more than from the others. 
38. Did the presiding officer inform you bow the votes were on those particular papers ? No ; and lie did 
not know. I asked the question, and it was not known to any of them. My desire was that they should 
not know?-that the papers should be treated in such a manner that it should not be known. I may be 
permitted to explain that this was a .  difficulty that had never arisen before. I consulted Mr. Solomons, 
who has conducted elections ever since we have had elections, and a similar case had never occurred in his 
experience, so that I WM in some difficulty as to what I should do, and I took what I conceived to be a 
strictly conscientious course. 
39. Then I understand that you instructed the presiding officer to initial those papers, and to place them 
wills the other papers and count theni2 Yes, before the final count was made. 
40. And they were so counted ? Yes ; and recorded in the totals of the votes. 
41. Arr. Frank Smith.] Have you any means of knowing whether the uninitialled papers were regularly 

• f used in voting ? If you remember, I asked the question whether any of the men had any doubt as to any 
improper use having been made of the papers,-  and they all said they were quite sure that every one of the 
papers had been placed in tbe box. 
42. Whom in particular did you ask? Mr. Forsythe ;  who was a scrutineer in that booth, and another, a 
stouttuan, -whose name I cannot call to mind. I asked them all, indeed. 
43. Can you give us the name of any other man that you asked in the same booth? Not particularly, 
because I was going about from one booth to another every hour or three-quarters of an hour. 
44. Why do you remember Mr. Forsythe? Because I have known him from boyhood. 
45. How many scrutineers were in that booth? Two for four candidates, and four for the other four in all 
cases. 
46. And you do not remember any but the one? No. You see there were a great number of scrutineers 
in the booths, and I had my attention taken up by looking after the smooth running of the election. 
47. And did you not, when this irregular course was reported to you, adopt every possible means to see that 
no improper use was made of- the ballot-papers? Certainly. 
48. And you cannot tell us the name of any other scrutineer ? I could ascertain the name of the stout 
man, but I cannot think of it now. The poll-clerk's name was Dalian). 
49. Do you remember how many ballot-papers you issued to that booth ? I cannot tell you, but I think it 
was 1,000 or 1,200. 
50. -Who will tell us that? Mr. William Solomons, my deputy. 
51. Chairman.] -Would he know the bumber of papers issued to each presiding officer?, Yes ; that is his 
special duty. 
52. Mr. Frank Smith.] How many did you hand to your deputy ;-do you remember that? I do not band 
them at all. He obtains them ; be acts on my responsibility. 
53. Do you not check the number of papers your deputy obtains ? Never. It is never done at any 
election. 
54. Do you sign the voucher for the number ? No. The usual number is ordered for East, West, and 
South Sydney, and all that are not used are afterwards returned. 	 55. 
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55. Then you do not know how many your deputy got? Not the total number. 	 . 	 8. T. 
56. Chairman. But your deputy would know? Yes ; it is Ins special duty to look after that. i 	 Whiddon, 
57. Mr. Street.] After the initialling of those papers by the deputy, was there any difference between the 	Esq. 
numbers and tl e rough count you had previously made ? No. 	 16Apr11,1888. 
58. They did not detect any in the total numbers? None whatever. I may say that I took every pre-
caution that anybody could take, under the circumstances, to see that no wrong was done, and I scarcely 
think that anybody could have taken more care than I did. 
59. kr. Hayes.] You say that you had the papers put on one side before the count commenced ;-were they 
put in a separate packet ? No. They were mixed up with the others. The object was to find out first 
which were not initialled, and then to initial them and mix them with the others. 
60. Hr. Teohey.] I presume that your only object was that the electors who had used the uninitialled 
ballot-papers should not be disfranchised by the action of the presiding officer? just so. My idea was 
this : In the ordinary course, when the papers were found in the ballot-box, they would be rejected as 
informal, because they were uninitialled, and the voters would therefore be disqualified by the act of my 
officer ; and in order to avert that I took the precautions I have stated. 
61. That was the only course you could take in fairness to the electors ? I could not see any other. The 
presiding officer has had many years' experience in elections, and T. engaged him on that account ; he was 
unknown to me, excepting as an efficient clerk. 
62. No irregularity in the other booths was reported to you ? None, whatever. 
63. And if you had not adopted the course you did, IL certain number of voters would have been robbed of 
their votes through no act of their own? Yes. I was particularly careful to ascertain whether any im-
proper use had been mane of the papers ; but the men, one and all, told me that no improper use had been 
made of them-that they had all gone into the ballot-box. The matter occurred early in the morning when 
the polling was very slow, so that they were all quite sure that no improper use had been made of the 
papers, but that the votes had been properly recorded, excepting as to the omission of the initials. 
64. Chairman.] At all events it would be impossible now to identify the papers ? I do not think it could be 
none. 	 . 
65. Arr. Too/icy.] If you had not adopted the course you did, would you not realise that each presiding 
officer could of himself prevent an election by neglecting to take that course ? Certainly he could, to a very 
great extent. 

Mr. Francis Northey Aildritt sworn and examined :- 
Mr. 66. Chairman.] Do you remember the occasion of the last general election for the electoral district of South 

Sydney? I dol 	 F. N. Alldrit.t. 

67. Did you act as presiding officer at one of the polling-booths ? I did ; at the one with the letters 1 	16A pril, 1889. IC. 
68. You had a poll-clerk assisting you ? Yes ; Mr. Dallam. 
69. Did you receive the ballot-papers from the returning officer on that occasion? Yes. 
70. How many did you receive ? Ten parcels. containing 100 each. 
71. From whom did you get them-Mr. Whiddon or Mr. Solomons? From Mr. Solomons. 
72. Were those papers initialled when you received them ? No, they were not. I thought they were ; 
but I found out afterwards that they were not. 
73. Well, to put the matter shortly, it is alleged that at your polling-booth, at the close of the poll, a number 
of ballot-papers were found in the box without your initials-is that correct ? It is correct. 
74. How many were there 	Well, I do not know, really. I should say about 140. I will explain the 
matter. When I received the papers I saw there was a stamp upon them, and having presided at the 
municipal election for Sydney, I noticed that all the ballot-papers at that election were initialled by the 
returning officer. I did not see the initials of the returning officer on these papers, but saw a stamp, and 
I thought that it had been used by the returning officer instead of his initials. I did not know that I had 
to initial them. 
75. What sort of a stamp was it that you saw on the ballot-paper-an impressed stamp ? Yes. I found 
out afterwards that it was the Government Printer's stamp. 
76. Was that stamp on the whole of the papers that you used? It was on a great many of them. 
77. What did you do with the papers without the initials ? They were initialled afterwards. 
78. By whom? By myself. 	 • 
79, And what did you do with them then? They were not initialled until they came out of the box. 
80. And after that, what did you do with them ? They were put on a file along with those that had been 
n 

81. Did you count them with the other papers? No, I did not count them ; but there were as nearly as 
possible about 140. 
82. You do not exactly understand my question-did you count them with the other papers as so many 
formal ballot-papers ? Yes, there was no objection taken by any of the scrutineers. 
$3. Will you tell the Committee why you initialled those ballot-papers ? It was arranged by the 
scrutineers that it should be done afterwards. Mr. Whiddon spoke to them, and there was no objection 
made. I initialled the papers in their presence, and they signed the papers afterwards: 
84. When did you first discover that the papers were not initialled? I did not discover it until Mr. 
Solomons drew my attention to it. 
85. At what time of the day ? As nearly as I can remember, it would be somewhere about 10 o'clock. 
86. You were then asked by Mr. Solomons, the returning officer, whether you had handed any ballot-
papers to voters without your initials? Yes, 
87. And your reply was ? That I had. 
88. What took place then? Mr. Solomons told me that it was a great pity, and to mind and initial them 
for the future. After that I initialled every paper. I told Mr. Solomons that I mistook the Government 
Printer's stamp as standing for Mr. Whiddon's signature. 
89. After that, had you any consultation with the returninc,

n 
 officer ? No-excepting that lie came in 

about ten minutes or IL quarter of an hour before the poll was dedared, and spoke to the scrutineers about 
initialling the papers afterwards, and there was no objection. In fact they agreed to it, as far as I can 
remember. 	 90. 
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Mt. 	90. Did you keep any particular list of the persons to whom those 140 papers were given ? Oh, no, I did 
F.N. Andra(' not keep any list. 
104pril,1.889. 91. You did not furnish the returning officer with any list? No. I am as ignorant of that as you are. 

92. Can you identify the papers ? Certainly not. 
93. Had you acted in the same capacity before ? I had just acted as pre-siding officer in the municipal 
election for Sydney, on the 2nd December-two months before. 
94. Hit Eyrie.] Were the municipal ballot-papers initialled with a stamp ? No; they were initialled by 
the returning officer, Mr. Chapman and thought the papers used in the South Sydney election would have 
to be initialled by the returning officer, and seeing the stamp, I mistook it for the stamp of the returning 
officer. 
95. Mr. Frank Smith.] How many ballot-papers did you receive from Mr. Solomons? There were teil 
packages, supposed to contain 100 each. 
96. Did you count them Not every one. 
97. Will you swear how many ballot-papers you received from the deputy returning officer? I received 
ten packets, supposed to contain 100 each. 
98. You did not count them? No. 
99. How many did you return to the deputy returning officer? Taking it for granted that there were 
100 in each packet, I returned one packet and sixty-two, I think. 
100. Chairman.] Did you return them to the deputy returning officer ? I put them into the box. 
101. Did you seal them up with the other papers that were used? Yes. They were all put into the box 
with the ballot-papers that were used-the electoral roll, and so on. 
102. What do you in can by putting them into the box ? The ballot-box. 
103. What did you do with the papers that you returned? I put them into the box and gave them to the 
returning officer. 
104. Mr. Frank Smith.] Up to 10 o'clock, when the irregularity was discovered, had anybody access to 
these papers? Nobody. 
105. Will you swear distinctly that every one of those uninitialled ballot-papers that were put into the 
box were regularly voted? To the best of my belief, they were I gave them out to the voters. 
106. But suppose any man who had access to the Government Printing Office came into that polling-booth 
to vote as, say, John Brown, having half a doy.en uninitialled ballot-papers in his pocket, would it not he 
possible for him to vote with them 3-you see what the petition alleges? I have not seen the petition. 
107. You say that no one had access to the papers before 10 o'clock ;-will you swear that nobody took them 
or interfered with them ? I will swear that nobody took them or interfered with them before me. 
108. But you will not swear that all the papers that were afterwards found in the box were regularly 
voted ? I could not exactly say that. I could not swear such a thing, because, supposing that a person 
came in with a ballot-paper from somewhere else, I could not swear how many were put into the box. 
109. Chairman.] Were you perSonally in charge of that booth from 3 o'clock in the morning until 4 o'clock 
in the afternoon? !Yea with the exception of five minutes, when I went out. It was about 12 o'clock. I 
was relieved before I went out by Mr. Solomons. 

• 110. You did not leave the booth without leaving a similar officer to yourself in charge? Certainly not. 
111. And you were relieved by Mr. Solomons, who was acting as deputy for the returning officer? Yes, 
1 L2. Mr. Frank Smith.] Do you know as a matter of fact whether your jiarcel contained more or less than 
the exact number you received in the morning? I do not quite understand your question. 
113. I want to know whether that parcel that contained your ballot-papers for the day contained exactly 
the same number that you received in the morning from Mr. Solomons7 To the best of my belief it did. 
114. Chairman.] This will settle that question. I will again ask you what you did with the used and the 
unused ballot-papers, the electoral list, and the other documents 	They were all put into the ballot-box. 
115. Did you place them in a package and seal them and address them to the returning officer? No. 
116. Then you parted with the papers unsealed in the ballot-box, and handed the key over 3-you cannot 
swear what became of the ballot-papers after that ? No. 
111. Mr. Rages.] How many votes were polled at your booth ? I gave out 830 ballot-papers, as near as I 
can recollect. 
118. But how many votes were polled at your booth? I cannot tell you that as nearly as I cart 
remember, the votes polled in my booth were 3,216. 
119. Can you tell how many ballot-papers you issued ? As nearly as I can remember, 834. 
120. And you say that you returned unused 162? As nearly as I can remember ; that makes the 1,000. 
121. Air. Tookey.] In answer to Mr. Smith you were unable to swear positively that the number of votes 
corresponded with the number of papers you gave out, but as nearly as you can remember they did corre-
spond? Yes. 
122. Then, again, you, in conjunction with the scrutineers, agreed to the ballot-papers being initialled in 
the afternoon after the ballot had been taken ? Yes. 
123. The object, I presume, was that those who by accident would have been disfranchised should not be' 
disfranchised ;-you had no other object but to secure fair play in the election / No other object at alt. 
My duty was to act impartially. 
124. And the scrutineers also agreed with the returning officer that that was the fairest course to adopt 
Yes. 
125. Will you give the names of the scrutineers who acted in your booth I My polling-clerk was Mr:. 
Dullant ; then there was a Mr. Ferney, and a Mr. Forsythe. I do not remember the other names. 
126. Air. Street.] Was the key of the ballot-box kept in your possession? Yes, during the election. 
127. And at the close of the election you put the unused ballot-papers and the electoral rolls into the box?' 
Yes. 
128, Mr. Toohey.] And no person could have had access to the box before you delivered it to the returning; 
officer? No. 

Mr. 



'7 4 3 
15 

Mr. Charles William Coulton sworn and examined 
129. Chairman.] Are you an elector for the electoral district of South Sydney ? Yes. 	 Mr. C. W.. 
130. Did you vote at the last general election ? Yes. 	 Coupon.. 
131. You are a party to a petition to the Governor against the return of the four gentlemen elected als 16460859; 
Members for South Sydney ? Yes. 
132. Did you sign the petition 	Yes. 
133. And is this your signature to it ? Yes. 
134. Do you happen to know your number on the roll The name on the roll is Charles Coulton ; but the 
qualification is quite correct. 
135. Can you. swear that this is your description on the roll—" Charles Coulton, leaseholder, Toveaux-
street "7 Yes. 
136. Mr. Toohey.] Do you usually take an active part in elections? Well, yes. At the last Sydney 
elections I have taken an active part. • 
137. Were you on any committees in the last election 7 No; not on any. 
138. What induced you to sign this petition? It was currently reported about the electorate, and the 
terms of the petition state it. I made one of two to comply with the Act, and ask for an investigation, 
139. Mr. Frank Smith.] You say in your petition that you have heard, and verily believe, that many of 
the voting-papers which were declared informal were not informal. In what respect were they not informal ; 
do you know anything about that allegation ? No. 
,140. The petition is signed by you. You say further that "many of the voting-papers which were declared 
to be formal were not formal, and that by reason of the premises many votes should have been counted in 
favour of the said James Martin, and the said Alban James Riley, and the said Dernhard Ringrose Wise, 
and the said George Pile, or one or more of the same, which were not counted for him or them ";—do you 
know anything about that allegation at all? Well, it is set forth in this way, as I have just noted it down 
here.. 
141. We want you to sustain these allegations, if you can The information I received was that about 150 
ballot-papers were used and put into the ballot-box without the endorsement of the chairman, and that at 
the conclusion of the ballot at 4 p.m. the presiding officer initialled those papers, thereby rendering the 
election invalid. If that is true, 1 consider that the election is invalid. 

. 142. Chairman.] That has reference to one portion of your petition ; you make two grounds upon which 
you petition—that is one; the other is that you " verily believe that many of the voting-papers which were 
declared informal were not informal, and that mally of the voting-papers which were declared to be formal 
were not formal ; and that by reason of the premises many votes should have been counted in favour of the 
said James Martin, and the said Alban James Riley, and the said Bernhard Ringrose Wise, and the said 
George Pile, or one or more of the same, which were not counted for him or thein ; and that by reason of 
the premises in this and the preceding clause many votes-were counted for the said William Henry Traill, 
and the said James Matthew Toohey, and the said Walter Edmunds, and the said John Plant Wright, or 
one or more of the same, which ought not to have been counted for him or them, whereby the said William 
Henry Traill, and the said Walter Edmunds, and the said James Matthew Toohey, and the said James 
Martin were not,-nor were any one or more of them, lawfully elected, and are not, nor is any one or more 
of them, Members or a Member of the said Legislative Assembly";—have you any evidence to give in 
support of that? Only this—I consider that the whole thing in summed up in this—that the election was 
invalid on account of the papers being dealt with in the way I stated. 
143. Mr. ?looney.] Then why do you make the other allegation which you cannot sustain? Wen, I might 
sustain it with a little consideration, but I am not at present in a position to sustain it. 
144. Have you any evidence to produce to sustain it at all ? Yes ; I can bring evidence. 
145. Mr. Frank Smith.] Do you know of any direct evidence to sustain that second allegation ? I have 
heard from one and another, that is all. 
146. Chairman.] I must inform you that you cannot answer that question without incriminating some 
other person, as there are only certain persons who could give the information, such as the presiding officers, 
poll-clerks, and scrutineers, and they are sworn to secrecy? I could get the information from other people. 
147. Mr. Doyle.] .What evidence have you—will you name the parties who will give the evidence? I must 
consult them first. What mean by bringing evidence is this—all the evidence i have is only hearsay 
evidence. I am not purporting to come here to prove this petition ill any shape or form, but I considered, 
as an elector, that if this evidence is true, that the ballot-papers were dealt with in the way 1 have stated, 
it ought to be investigated by the Elections and Qualifications Committee. 	 • 
148. Chairman.] We are past that ; we are now at the second allegation. Are you prepared to produce 
your witnesses, or have you any witnesses to produce, in support of the second allegation, that certain 
papers were declared formal that were not formal, and that others were declared to be informal that were 
not informal ? I have no witnesses of that description whatever. 

Mr, William Solomons sworn and examiiied :— 
149., Chairman.] You remember the last South Sydney General Election? Yes. 	 Mr. 
150. Did you act in some official capacity on that occasion ? I acted as deputy returning officer. 	W. Solomons. 
151. Wo do not know you as deputy returning officer—there is no such officer provided for in the Electoral 
Act. You assisted Mr. Whiddon, the returning officer ? Yes. 	 16Apri1,1889. 
152. What were your particular duties? I acted in his booth when he was going round. I visited the 
booths to see that the election was properly conducted, that all the officers were at their posts, and I also 
assisted at maldng up the final state of the la and in preparing the boxes. 
153. Did you deliver the ballot-boxes to the several presiding officers I I did. 
154. Do you remember how many papers you delivered to each? We had 9,000 printed, and we distributed 
a certain number among the different boxes and kept the balance. 
155. Do you know how many were delivered to booth 11, 1, J, K, presided over by Mr ANHUI I 
think 1,000. 
156. Can you be sure ? Yes ; there were ten packets of 100 each. 

157. 
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Mr. 	157. At the close of the poll, did you receive the unused ones from him I No ; they were brought into the 
W. &lemons. A B booth. 
16 Apri1,1889, 158. You did not receive them ? No. 

- 	159. Did you receive any documents from him whatever after the close of the poll? No, except sealed up 
with his box. They were all brought into me at the A B booth. 
160. Hr. Frank Smith.] Did you go to the Printing Office for the 9,000 ballot-papers? I gave the order 
there after the nomination. 
161. Were they delivered to you ? Yes, at the office, and I placed them in the boxes with an assistant. 
162. You say that you gave a thousand papers to Mr. .Alldritt? There was a thousand given for each 

• booth, excepting the A B booth, where there were more. 
163. But did you count the number you gave to Mr. Alldritt ? I counted the packets. I did not count 
the papers in each packet. 
164, Do you not think it your duty to count the papers in each packet ? We have never found it necessary. 
165. Suppose a man had access to the Government Printing Office, could he not take half a dozen ballot-
papers in his pocket and put them in the ballot-box? If there were any beyond what were ordered to be 
printed, but you know they bear a stamp. 
166. But what I want to know is tins: Could not a man having access to the Government Printing Office 
put 100 votes in the ballot-box if he chose, Unless there was some initialling to stop those votes from being 
improperly recorded ? I do not see how it could be done with the presiding officer active in his duties. 
167. But suppose lie were not active in his duties ? He must be very dull to allow anything of that kind. 
168. Well, if he allows votes to be recorded without the papers being initialled, is that doing his duty 	I 
think I can explain that if you will allow me. 
169. What I want to get at is this, viz., how far yon can prove to us that the number of ballot-papers which 
will appear in this parcel correspond with the number you gave to Mr. Alldritt in the morning? They 
correspond, with the exception of the unused papers. 
170. Then you cannot prove it, because you cannot tell us, except to the best of your belief, how many you 
gave to him? No. 
171. Mr. Too/icy.] As a matter of fact, are the ballot-papers not prepared in packets of 100 each ? Yes, 
and I believe the number is very correct. 
172. Mr. Hayes.] You say that the presiding officer brought the sealed-up ballot-papers to your A B booth ;- 
are you positive about that ? Yes. 
173. They were sealed up ? Yes, 
174. He did not bring them in together with the unused papers in the ballot-box? The papers were sealed 
and separate in the ballot-box. 
175. They were sealed by the presiding officer at this booth and put into the box with the unused papers? 
Yes. 
176. 'What become of the unused ballot-papers ? They were taken back to the Government Printing Office. 
177. Were they checked in any way? No. 
178. Mr. Street.] Do you say that the ballot-boxes are empty when handed to the presiding officers ? They 
contain all the necessary papers for carrying out the election. The presiding officers open the boxes them-
selves and fix up the papers, then lock the 1;11ot-box and prepare for the election. 
179. They are placed in the box by yourself 7 Yes. 
180. And you are positive that nothing else but the papers necessary to carry on the election were placed 
in the ballot.boxes? Yes. 
181. Mr. :balmy.] You say that these papers were brought into the returning officer's room and there 
locked •,--were they taken from the boxes again? Yes. 
182. Li your charge? in my charge. 
183. You do not understand me. There are various ballot-boxes. The presiding officers bring the boxes 
in with the papers locked up. : Where are those boxes now ; whose duty is it to take them? It is mine. 
I take the empty boxes to the Colonial Architect's office. 
181. Where did you take the papers out? At the office. 
185. Was anyone with you ? My brother and Ids son. 
186. Then the returning officer does not know, whether the papers have been interfered with since the 
election or not? We prepare the papers and send them to the Clerk of the Assembly. • 
187. Chairman.] Who seals up each individual packet? The presiding officer for his booth. 
188. Did Mr. Alldritt seal Ids papers ? Yes; be brought them up to the A B booth, together with all the 
papers used in the election. 
189. Are you sure that be delivered a sealed packet? Yes, as far as my memory- goes. 
190. Do you think he could have delivered the papers locked up in his ballot-box? The ballot-box, with 
the exception of the unused papers, was empty. 
191. 'While all the documents relating to the election were in a sealed packet ? Yes. 
192. I presume you have acted as returning officer on many occasions, and you know the duties of the 
returning officer and presiding officers, and that it is necessary for each presiding officer to seal up Ids own 
papers and hand them to the returning officer, who has no power to open them I Yes ; that is quite right. 
193. Mr, Hayes.] Was your attention called to anything wrong at IT, I, J, K. booth ? When 1 was going 
through the booth noticed that Mr. Alldritt was giving his papers out without initialling them, and I 
called' his attention to the circumstance. -He said that be was not aware of it, but that he thought the 
sfamp on the ballot-papers was Mr. Whiddon's stamp, and that he had no necessity to initial them. I told 
hirn that lie must initial them, and he then commenced to do so, but a number had been placed in the box 
without Ids initials. 
194. Chairman.] How did you see that ? I could not see the papers in the ballot-box, but I could see that 
he had not been initialling them. 
195. Mr. Too/thy.] Mr. Whiddon consulted you as to the best course to adopt, and suggested that the rapers 
should be initialled after the day's polling was over I Yes. 
196. I presume your object was to prevent the disfranchisement of a number of voters through no fault of 
their own ? Yes. 
197. That was the only object you had in view ? Yes. 

Sydney : charles Potter, Government Priptcy.-ISSO. 
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1889, 

EXTRACTS FROM THE VOTES AND PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

ELECTION PETITION-BOURKE v. PERRY-THE RICHMOND 

VOTES No. 3. FRIDAY, 1 MARCIE, 1889. 

3 COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :-Mr. Speaker, pursuant to the requirements of the 
Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the Table his Warrant appointing the Committee of Elections and 
Qualifications for the present Session, of which the following is a copy :— 
" By the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

• " of New South Wales. 
" Pursuant to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint- 

" .Toseph Hector Carruthers, Esquire, 	" Charles Alfred Lee, Esquire, 
• " Robert George Dundas Fitzgerald, 	" Alexander Ryrie, Esquire, 

" 
 

Esquire, i 	 " Bruce Smith, Esquire, and 
" James Hayes, Esquire, 	 " Robert Bliss Wilkinson, Esquire, 

"'being Members of the said Assembly, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and 
" Qualifications in the said Act referred to, during the present Se rssion of the Assembly aforesaid. 

" Given under my hand, at the Legislative Assembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
" this first day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
" eighty-nine. 

"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
" Speaker." 

VOTES No. 5. WEDNESDAY, 6 Kauai 1889. 
5, ELECTION PETITION (The 1?iehmontl):—Mr. Dibbs, by command, laid upon the Table an. Election 

Petition, which had been addressed to His Excellency the 'Governor, from William Bourke, 
alleging that Pelitioner is qualified to be elected a Member of the Legislative Assembly, and at 
the last General Election was a Candidate for the Electoral. District of The Richmond; that, in 
addition to the Petitioner, three other persons—T. T. Ewing, B. B. Nicoll, and John Perry—were 
Candidates ; that the said,John Perry, at and after the Nomination, was Postmaster at Alstonyille, 
receiving a salary voted by the Parliament of this i Colony, being an dice of profit under the 
Crown (that, under the circumstances detailed, the Petitioner was duly andlegally elected; and 
praying that it shall be determined and reported to the Legislative Assembly that the said John 
Perry was not duly elected, and that the Petitioner was duly elected for the said ElectoraiDistrict. 
Ordered to lie on the Table. 

VOTES No. 7. FRIDAY, 8 MARCH, 1889. 
1. 

• COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS . 	 • 

	

(1.) if 	of Warrant reported:—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant appointing the 
Committee of 'Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, laid upon the Table on Friday, 
1st March, 1889, not having been disapproved by the Assembly in the course of the.three next 
sitting-days on which the Assembly met for the despatch of business, had now taken effect as an 
appointment of such Committee; and intimated that it was therefore open to Members of the 
Committee to be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with the 59th section of the 
Electoral Act of 1880. 

(2.) Members Sworn :—Charles Alfred Lee, Esquire, and Alexander Ryrie, Esquire, came to the 
Table, and were sworn by the Clerk as Members of the Committee. 

2. ELECTION PETITIONS :-Mr. Dibba moved, That the following Election Petitions be referred to the 
Committee of Elections and Qualifications :— 

	

* 	* 	45 	45 	45 	*5 	* 
(3.) From William Bourke, complaining of the Election and Return of John Perry, a Member 
fOr the Electoral District of The Richmond, laid upon the Table of this House on 6th March 
instant. 

	

* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 
• Question put and passed. 	 9. 
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0. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICITIONs :—Mr. Speaker, pursuant to the requirements of the 
Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the Table his Warrant appointing Frank James Smith, Esquire, 
and John Rendell Street, Esquire, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications 
for the present Session, of which the following is a copy ;— 
" By the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

of Neuf South Wales. 
" Pursuant-to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly ot 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint- 

" Frank James Smith, Esquire, and 
" John Rendell Street, Esquire, 

" being Members of the said Assembly, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifi-
" cations in the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid, in the 
" room of Joseph Hector Carruthers, Esquire, and Bruce Smith, Esquire, whose Seats in the said 
" Assembly were this day declared vacant, by reason of their acceptance of the offices of Minister 
" of Public Instruction and.Secretary for Public Works respectively. 

" Given under my band, at the Legislative Assembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
" this eighth day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
" eighty-nine, 

VOTES No. 11. TUESDAY, 9 APRIL, 1889. 
9 . COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 

(1.) Maturity of Warrant reported :—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant, laid upon the Table 
on the 8th March last, appointing Frank James Smith, Esquire, and John Rendell Street, Esquire, 
to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, not 
laving been disapproved by the Assembly in the course of the three next sitting-days onwhieh the 

. Assembly met for the despatch of business. had now taken effect ; and intimated that it a-as there-
fore open to Mr. Smith and Mr. Street to be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with 
the 39th section of the Electoral Act of 1880. 

(2.) Members of Committee Sworn :—James Hayes, Esquire, Frank James Smith, Esquire, and 
John Rendell Street, Esquire, came to the Table and were sworn by the Clerk as Members of the 
Committee. 

VOTES No. 12. 'WEDNESDAY, 10 AIIRIL, 1889. 
12. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Robert Bliss Wilkinson, Esquire, Crone t0 the 

Table, and was sworn by the Clerk as a Member of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications. 
10, COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—PlIrSualit to the requirement of the 59th section 

of the Electoral Act of 1880, Mr. Speaker appointed the first meeting of the Committee of 
Elections and Qualifications to take place at eleven o'clock a.m., to-morrow, tho .1] th instant, in 
Committee -Thom No. 3. • 

VOTES No, 18, TUESDAY, 30 APRIL, 1889, 
4. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 

(1.) Mr. Speaker informed the House that he had received a letter from Robert George Dundas 
FitzGerald, Esquire, resigning his appointment as a Member of the Committee of Elections and 
Qualifications, which letter ho read to the House, as follows :— 

" Camp, National Park, 26 April, 1889. 
" J. H. Young, Esquire, M.P., Speaker, Legislative Assembly, — 

" Dear Sir, 
" I much regret that I have been unable to take the Oath as a Member of Elections 

" and Qualifications Committee ; and as I cannot do BO during the ensuing week, I reluctantly 
" tender you my resignation as a Member of that Committee, with a View to saving inconvenience,. 
lc as pointed out by Mr. Lee. 

" Yours truly, 
" ROBT. GEO. D. FITZGERALD." 

(2.) Mr. Speaker then, pursuant to the requirement of the Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the 
Table his Warrant appointing Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, to be a Member of the Committee 
of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, of which the following is a copy :— 
" Jig the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

" of New South Wales. 
" PURSUANT to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint— 

Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, 
" being a Member of the said Assembly, to be a Member of the Committee of Elections and 
" Qualifications in the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid, 
" in the room of Robert George Dundas FitaGerald, Esquire, resigned. 

" Given -under my hand, at the Legislative Assembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
" this thirtieth day of April, in the '-ear of our Lord one thousand eight hundred amid 
" 

 
eighty-nine. 

"JAMES DENBY YOUNG, 
" Speaker." 

VOTES 

"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
" Speaker.". 
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VorEs No. 22. WEDNESDAY, S Mn, 1889. 
11. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 

( l.) 3faturitif of Warrant reported :—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant, laid upon the Table 
on the 30th April last, appointing Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, to be a Member of the Committee 
of Elections and Qualifications for the present SCSSiOD, not having been disapproved by the 
Assembly in the course of the three next sitting-days on which the Assembly met for the despatch 
of business, had now taken effect ; and intimated that it was therefore open to Mr. Abbott to 
be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with the 59th section of the Electoral Act 
of 1880. 

(2.) Member Sworn :—Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, came lo the Table, and was sworn by the 
Clerk as a Member of the Committee. 

• 

VOTES No. 23. TnuasnAr, 0 MAT, 1389. 
17. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUAMFICATIONS—(MCCIi071 .Petiii01/—.730iltke t. Permh—The 

Richmond):—Mr. Lee, as Chairman, brought up the Report from, and laid upon the Table the 
Minutes of Proceedings of, and Evidence taken before, and Appendix handed in to, the Committee 
of Elections and Qualifications, to whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, the Petition of 
William Bourke against the return of john Perry as a Member for the Electoral District of 
The Richmond. 
_And the said Report was read at length by the Clerk, by direction of Mr. Speaker, as follows :— 

"The Committee of Elections and Qualifications, duly appointed on 1st March, 1889, to 
"whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, a. Petition from William Bourke, alleging that Petitioner 
"is qualified to be elected a Member of the Legislative Assembly, and at the last General Election 
" was a Candidate for the Electoral District of The Richmond ; that, in addition to the Petitioner, 
"three other persons—T. T. Ewing;  B. B. Nicoll, and John Perry—were Candidates ; that the 
" said John Perry, at and after the Nomination, was Postmaster at Alstonville, receiving a salary 
"voted by the Parliament of this Colony, being an office of profit under the Crown ; that, under 
" the circumstances detailed, the Petitioner was duly and legally elected ; and praying that it shall 
"be determined and reported to the Legislative Assembly that' the said John Perry was not duly 
"elected, and that the Petitioner was duly elected for the said Electoral District,—have determined 
" and do hereby declare,— 

" (1.) That John Perry, one of the Members for The Richmond, was not at the time of his 
" election, and is not at the present time, the holder of an office of profit under the Crown ; that 

he is not disqualified from sitting or voting as a Member of the Legislative Assembly. 
" (2.) That the Petition is frivolous and vexatious. 
"(3.) That the sum of 25 Us., out of the sum er £100 already lodged by the Petitioner, ho 

" awarded to the Sitting Member towards bis costs and expenses. 
" CHARLES 4. LEE, 

"No. 3 Committee Room, 	 " Chairman," 
" Legislative Assembly, 0th May, 1889." 

Ordered, on motion of Mr. Lee, that the 
together with Appendix, be printed. 

Report and. Minutes of the Preeeedingii and Evidence, 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

ELECTION PETITION—BOURKE v. PERRY—THE RICHMOND. 

REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE 

OF 

ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS. 

THE COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS, duly appointed on 1st 
March, 1889, to whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, a Petition from 
William Bourke, alleging that Petitioner is qualified to be elected a Member Of 
the Legislative Assembly, and at the last General Election was a candidate for 
the Electoral District of The Richmond ; that, in addition to the Petitioner, 
three other persons—T. T. Ewing, B. B. Nicoll, and John Perry,—were 

- candidates ; that the said John Perry, at and after the nomination, was Post-
master at Alstonville, receiving a salary voted by the Parliament of this Colony, 
being an office of profit under the Crown ; that, under the circumstances 
detailed, the Petitioner was duly and legally elected ; and praying that it shall 
be determined and reported to the Legislative Assembly that the said John 
Perry was not duly elected, and that the Petitioner was duly elected for the said 
Electoral District,—have determined and do hereby declare :— 

1. That John Perry, one of the Members for The Richmond, was not at the 
time of his Election, and is not at the present time, the holder of an 
office of profit under the Crown; that Ile is not disqualified from 
sitting or voting as a Member of the Legislative Assembly. 

• 2. That the Petition is frivolous and vexatious. 
3. That the sum of ,25 fis., out of the sum of £100 already lodged by the 

• Petitioner, be awarded to the sitting Member towards his costs and 
expenses. 

CHARLES A. LEE, 
.?To, 3 Committee Boom, 	 Chairman. 

Legislative Assembly, 
9th May, 1889. 
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1889. 

MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND 
QUALIFICATIONS. 

In the matter of the Election Petition, which has been addressed to His Excellency the Governor, from 
William Bourke, alleging. that Petitioner is qualified to be elected a Member of the Legislative 
Assembly, and at the last General Election was a Candidate for the Electoral District of The 
Richmond; that, in addition to the Petitioner, three other persons—T. T. Ewing, B. B. Nicoll, and 
John Perry—were candidates; that the said John Perry, at and after the Nomination, was Postmaster 
at Alstonville, receiving a salary voted by the Parliament of this Colony, being an office ofprq/it 
under the a.m.= ; that, under the circumstances detailed, the Petitioner was duly and legally elected; 
and praying that it shall be determined and reported to the Legislative Assembly that the said John 
Perry was not duly elected, and that the Petitioner was duly elected for the said Electoral District. 

THURSDAY, 9 MAY, 1889. 

illEmotats PRESENT 
'Mr. Lee, in the Chair, 

Mr. Ram, 	 Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. S. P. Abbott, 	 Mr. Siireet, 

Mr. Frank Smith. 
In att endance,— 

The Second Clerk Assistant, 
1. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the Extracts from the Votes and Proceedings in 

reference to the resignation of Mr. FitzGerald as a Member of the Committee, and the appointment 
of Mr. J. P. Abbott in his place. [Tide Extracts, pages 4 and 5.] 

9 . The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the Extract from the Votes and Proceedings, by winch 
the Petition of William Bourke was referred to the Committee. [Fide Irked, page 3.] 

3. The Clerk then, by direction of the Chairman, read the Petition of William Bourke, to which the 
Bank deposit-receipt was attached, as follows :— 

To His Excellency the Right Honorable CHARLES ROBERT, BARON CARRINGTON, MentbCE Of Her Majesty's 
Privy Council, Knight Commander of the Most Distinguished Order of St. Michael and St. George, 
Governor and Commander-in-Chief of the Colony of New South -Wales and its Dependencies. 

The Petition of William 13ourke, of 5, Little Bourke-street, Sydney, in the Colony of New South Wales,-
Sul owETH :— 

1, That your Petitioner is a natural-born subject of Her Majesty the Queen, and qualified, according to 
section 10 of the Electoral Act of ISSO, to be elected a 'Member of the Legislative Assembly of New South 
Wales. 

2. That your Petitioner, at the last General Election, was a candidate for the Electoral District of The 
Richmond. 

3. That at the Nomination your Petitioner was proposed and seconded by James F. O'Flynn and James 
White respectively, two persons duly qualified to vote for the election of Members of the Legislative Assembly 
for the said Electoral District. 

4. That, in addition to your Petitioner, three other persons—T. T. Ewing, B. B. Nicoll, and John Perry—
wore candidates for the said Electoral District, which is representhd by three Members in the Legislative 
Assembly. 

5. That the show of hands at the said Nominatioa was declared by the Returning Officer to be in favour 
of T. T. Ewing, your Petitioner, and B. B. Nicoll. 

G. That the said John Perry, at the time of and after the said Nomination, was Postmaster at Alstonville, 
in the Colony of New South Wales, receiving a salary voted by the Parliament of the said Colony, and in 
consequence was the holder of an office of profit under the Crown, within the meaning of section 18 of the 
Constitution Act (IS and 19 Victoria c. :4). 

7. That the results of the votes polled in the said Electoral District placed the candidates in the following 
order :-1, T. T. Ewing ; 2, B. B. Nicoll ; 3, John Perry ; 4, your Petitioner. 

S. That the said John Perry Was incapable of being elected as a Member of the Legislative Assembly. 
O. l`bitt under the circumstances bercinbefore detailed your Petitioner was duly and legally elected a 

Member of the Legislative Assembly for the said Electorate of The Richmond. 
10. That your Petitioner has paid into the London Chartered Rank, Oxford-street, the sum of one 

hundred pounds to the credit of the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly in relation to this 
Peti tion ; and your Petitioner has annexed to the said Petition a Bank deposit-receipt for the said sum of one 
hundred pounds. 

Your Petitioner, therefore, respectfully prays that it shall be determined and reported to the Legislative 
Assembly that the said John Perry was not duly elected for the said Electoral District of The - Richmond, and 
that it shall be determined and reported to the Legislative Assembly that your Petitioner was duly elected for 
the said Electoral District. - 

And your Petitioner will ever pray, &c. 

5, Little 13ourke-street, Sydney, 
25th February, ISSO, 

Sydney, 4th March. 1889. 
Pam into the London Chartered Bank of Australia the suns of One hundred pounds sterling, to he placed to the 
credit of the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative _Assembly, by 

W atm NI Bev rutE, 
A. B. CRANE, 

J:100. Dap, 
4 

WILLIAM BOURKE. 
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4. The Clerk submitted a letter from the Honorable the Speaker, enclosing ft certified copy of a letter he 
had received from John Periy, giving notice of his intention to defend his Seat, which he read as 
follows :— 

"Legislative Assembly Chamber, 
Sydney, 10 April, 1889. 

"To the Committee of Elections and Qualifications,— 
" Gentlemen, 

" I have the honor to transmit to you herewith a copy of a letter which has been 
"received by me from John Perry, Esquire, one of the sitting Members for The Richmond, giving 
"notice of his intention to defend ins return, against which a Petition is now under your con-

sideration. 
"I have, &c., 

" JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
"Speaker. 

Sir, 	 Parliament House, 7 	March, 1889. 
[Enclosure.] 

In reference to the petition of William Bourke against my election as one of the Members for 1119 
Richmond, I have the honor to request that I may be allowed to be made a party to the ease, and I beg to 
notify that I intend to defend my Seat. I have, &a., 

The Speaker, Legislative Assembly.  JOHN PERIM 
A true copy.—JAnms EIENEY YOUNG, Speaker. 

5. Parties called in. 
Present :—John Perry, Esq. ((lie sitting Member). 

William Bourke, Esq. ((lie Petitioner). 
Thomas Marshall, Esq. (Solicitor for the sitting Member). 

6. Frederick William Webb, Esq., Clerk of the Legislative Assembly, called in, sworn, and examined.. 
Witness produced Writ of Election certifying to return of Thomas Thompson Ewing, Bruce Baird 

:Nicoll, and John Perry, as Members for The Richmond.. 
Witness withdrew. 

7. -William Bourke, Esq., the Petitioner, sworn and examined. 
8. Samuel Harbord Lainbton, Esq., Secretary to the General Post Office, called in, sworn, and examined. 

Witness produced documents relating to the appointment and resignation of Mr. Perry, and appoint-
ment of Mr. Perry, junior, also mail time-bills, which were ordered to be appended. [Ville 
Appendices A to 1-.] 

9. Mr. Daniel Hogan called in, sworn, and examined. 
10. Mr. William Bourke addressed the Committee. 

My. Marshall addressed the Committee. 
Room cleared. 

11. The Committee deliberated as to Report. 
Mr. J. P. Abbott moved,— 

" That the following be the Report of the Committee :— 
" 1. That John Perry, one of the Members for The Richmond, was not at the time of his 

" election, and is net at the present lime, the holder of an office of profit: under the Crown ; 
"that he is not disqualified from sitting or voting as a Member of the Legislative Assembly. 

" 2. That the Petition is frivolous and vexatious, 
" 3. That the Wm of £5 5s., out of the sum of £100 already lodged by the Petitioner, be 

"awarded to the sitting Member towards his costs and expenses." 
Question put and agreed to. 
The Chairman to report to the House accordingly. 	

R. W. ROBERTSON, 
Second Clerk Assistant. 

LIST OF WITNESSES. 
PAGE. 

Bourke 'William 	  12 
Hogan Daniel 	  12 

Lambton S. H. 	  11 
Webb Frederick William 	  11 
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cOMMITTE 
Or 

ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS. 

ELECTION PETITION-BOURKE V. PERRY-TEE RIORATOND, 

THURSDAY, 9 NAY, 1889. 

Vrternt:— 
Mr. C. A. Lee, 	 Mr. A. Ryrie, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 	 Mr. J. Hayes, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 	 Mr. J. R. Street. 

C. A. Lee, Esq., in the Chair. 

Mr. Marshall, solicitor, attended on behalf of Mr. John Perry. 

Frederick William 'Webb, Esq., called in, sWorn, and examined :— 
1. Chairman.] What office do you hold 7 I am Clerk of the Legislative Assembly of New South Wales. F. W. Webb, 
2. Do you produce the writ for an election in the Richmond Electoral District? Yes. It is a writ issued 	EN. 
by His Excellency the Governor on the 19th of January of the present year for the election and return of 
three Members to serve in the Legislative Assembly for the Electoral District of, The Richmedtd„with the 9 may, 1889. 

Returning Officer's certificate thereon of the election of Thomas Thompson Ewing; of Sydney, ttueu,Baird 
Nicoll, of Sydney, and John Perry, of Alstonvillo, Richmond River, for the Electoral District of ..The 
Richmond. 

Stephen Harbord Lambton, Esq., called in, sworn, and examined :— 
3. Chairman.] What office do you bold? I am Secretary to the General Post Office. 
4. Are all contracts and documents in connection with tho mail service in your department? 
are kept by me. 
b. Have you a post office at a place called Alstonville, on Richmond River I Yes. 
6. Is it conducted by a salaried postmaster Yes. 
7. Are you personally known to Mr. John Perry, one of the Members for The Richmond? I was not until 
be became a Member of the Assembly. I do not think I met him before. 
8. Did Mr. John Perry, now one of the sitting Members for The ,Richmond, act as your postmaster at 
Alst,onville7 Yes. 
9. Up to what date? He sent in his resignation on the 21st January last (see Appendix A). 
10. Are there any other documents in connection with this business? Yes; I have here the appointment 
of Mr. Perry, junior ; it is on a printed form (see Appendix B); also the appointment and advice of the 
same to Mr. Perry, late Postmaster (see Appendix C). 
11. Are there any other documents in connection this with appoiniment ? Yes; I received a letter from 
Mr. J. A. Perry. Upon that I referred the matter to the Chief Clerk, who received a minute from 
the Postal Inspector as to Mr. Perry, junior, it being doubtful in connection with his age as to whether 
he should discharge the duties of the office (see Appendix D). Upon that the following letters were 
written (see Appendices E and R). I may explain that in the case of these non-official postmasters there 
is an authority signed by the Minister to fix the date, as may be required. The date of appointment is 
always left to myself. In many cases these country postmasters go away without notice, and we very 
often allow them to adjust the dates themselves. Here is the Minister's authority to which I refer (see 
Appendix C). The date of the appointment in this case was fixed in accordalice with the usual practice, 
which is either to make it the first or the middle of the month. In this case it was fixed at the 14th, but 
it was afterwards antedated, at Mr. Perry, junior's, request, because he stated he had acted from 23rd 
January. Here is a declaration by J. A. Perry, taken before Mr. J. Perry, J.P. (see Appendix II). 
12. What other documents have you ? I. have only some time-bills that accompany the mails ; they show 
that J. A. Perry has signed all the time-bills (see Appendix I) sent in since the 23rd January, with the 
exception of one on the 26th January, which is signed by Mr. Perry, the late postmaster. With that 
exception, all the other documents sent in since the 23rd January are signed by J. A.  Ferry ogi Assistant  
Postmaster, Acting Postmaster, or Postmaster. 
13. Mr. Frank Smith.] When are those time -bills sent in I As soon as possible after the end of the month, 
Some of these were received on 13th February. 

14, 

S. If. 
Yes; they Lambb II, 

Esq. 

9 May. 1899. 
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arnattihtion, 14. Chair»zan,] Are any of the documents which are dated after the 21st January signed by John Perry? 
Esq. 	Only one, on the 26th January. The. dates on which these documents were received in Sydney were 7th 

February, 4th February, 8th February, 15th February. 9 May, 1889. 15. Mr. . soon Perry.] Did all those documents leave the Alstonville Post Office on the date on which they 
were signed? Yes; they are supposed to be sent by the next post. 
16. Chairman.] Have you any other documents ? Yes ; I have another document which may be of 
importance. It is a receipt for J. A. Perry's salary from 23rd January to 31st March-.C2 5s. 4d. 
17. Is there anything in the Postal Act or the regulations thereunder which makes it clear as to the day on 
which the postmaster's resignation shall date from ? No. 
1.8. Does the resignation date from the day of its being posted to you, or from the date of the receipt of it? 
It dates from any day which we choose to fix; there is no particular rule. In these country offices it is so 
difficult to fix dates that we simply hold one man responsible up to the date fixed. 
19. Has any postmaster power to resign or vacate his office as he chooses 	Certainly not before another is 
appointed. 	• 
20. Mr. 	P. Abbott.] Is there any law on the subject? No. We hold him responsible until he is officially 
released. 
21. Chairman.] Does the postmaster put himself under obligation to compel him to do so ? No. If any 
employee chooses to put on his hat and leave we could only stop his pay. 
22. Mr. Bourke.] Would you prosecute a postmaster if he allowed the mails to•lie about? No. 
23. 'Do you remember any inquiries being made at you record office about Mr. Perry's resignation? No. 
24. Have you heard of any inquiries being made ? I think the Chief Clerk told me some inquiry was made. 
25. Do you know what date was given for Mr. Perry's resignation by the clerk in the record office? No. 
The Chief Clerk reported to me, as a matter of official routine, that some one had coiled, and that he had 
explained the case. I have no personal knowledge of the matter. No application was made to me. 
26. Is there not a penalty for neglecting the duties of postmaster? There is a general clause in the 
Postal Act, that any wilful neglect of duty is punishable. 
27. Would it be wilful neglect of duty for a gentleman to resign and refuse to perform the duties of 
postmaster before his successor was appointed? If he were to put on his hat and go out of the office, 
leaving no authorized or responsible person in charge to attend to the mails and deliver letters to the public, 

think that would be considered neglect of •duty. It is quite recognized, especially in the case of non-
official postmasters, that they are entitled to appoint their owThassistants. 
28. If the assistant he appointed was guilty of something wrong-a, misdeameanour or a felony-who 
would be held responsible? I think that any person who committed a crime or misdemeanour would be 
responsible for what he committed. If anything went wrong in the office-if there was a deficiency in the 
accounts-we should of course look to the postmaster until we officially released him. 
29. Mr. Marshall] Was Mr. John Perry entitled to any remuneration after the 21st January No. 
:30. Did he, with your knowledge, hold any office of profit under the Crown after the 21st January ? No. 

Mr. Daniel Hogan called in, sworn, and examined :- 
Mr.D.Hogunr. 	31. Chairman.] What is your occupation? I am a watchmaker and jeweller, residing at George-street, 

Sydney. 	 • 
3  May, 1883. 32. Mr. Bourke.] Did you make certain inquires at the Post Office ? I went to the Post Office about the 

23rd February, and asked one of the clerks a question. 
33. Chairman.] Do you know his name ? MrEfahon. I do not know his christian name. 
31. What position does he hold in the Post Office ? I do not know. 
35. Is he a personal friend of yours No. I went there to find out when Mr. John Perry was appointed 
postmaster at Alstonville, and when he resigned. A slip of paper was given to me stating that he was 
appointed in some month of 1886, and that lie resigned on the 13th February, 1889. 
36. Have you that piece of paper with you No. I went up again to make sure of the christian name. 

again 
t'
ifot the statement "John Perry, 13th Febructry,-resigned." 

37. Mr. Frank Smith.] Did the same person tell you the second time? No; the second time I asked Mr. 
Doyle upstairs. Ile.eent in to the clerk who has charge of that part of the office. 
38. Chairman.] On receipt of that slip of paper, did you go to the chief officials, such as the Secretary of 
the Post Office, the Chief Clerk, or the Postmaster-General? No. 
39. So you casually asked for the information from a clerk? Yes. I did not give any reason. I just 
simply asked the question. They sent up and had the reply sent down on this slip of paper. 
40. Mr. J. P. Abbott.] How did you come to do that? Because Mr. Bourke was a friend of mine, I took 
an interest in the matter, and I got a letter from Lismore stating that Mr. Perry was holding an office under 
the Crown when he was elected. 
11. Was Mr. Bourke himself in Sydney when you went to Make the inquiries? Yes. 
42. Did you know the clerks that you went to see? I know them through living in the neighbourhood for 
the last twenty years. 
43. You understood that they were officials in the Post Office, and you went to them? Yes. 
44. What did you do with the slips you got from them ? I showed them to Mr. Bourke. 
45. Mr. Marshall.] What became of the slip afterwards? I gave it to Mr. Bourke. 

Mr. William Bourke sworn and examined :- 
Mr. 	46. • Chairman.] Were you a candidate for election at the last general election in the electoral district 61 

W. Bourke. The Richmond? Yes. 
47. You have beard your petition read Yes. 9 May, 1889. 48. Is that the petition presented by you, and is that your signature? Yes. 	 • 
49. 4ft. J. P. Abbott.] Did you go to the Post Office yourself to make any inquiries, independently of the 
information you got from Mr. Hogan? No. I asked him to go twice, so as to make sure, He got the 
same information each time. Before I left the electorate I was assured that Mi. John Perry was post-
Master. In fact, Mr. Nicoll, one of the Members, told me before the election was over, and it was generally 
reported there. 50. • 
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50. Have you the memorandum which Hogan got ? No • it was just a slip of paper. The date of resigna- 	Mr. 
B tion was the date of polling, and that coincidence was sufficient to make me believe that it was Mr. Sohn W. ourke.  

Perry, and not his son. 	 • 9 May, 1869. 51. Chairman.] The chief ground in your petition is the sixth, in these words :—" 6. That the said John 
Perry at the time of and after the said nomintition was•poitinaster at Alstonville, in the Colony of New 
South Wales, receiving a salary voted by the Parliament of the said Colony, and in consequence was the 
holder of an office of profit under the Crown, within the meaning of section 18 of the Constitution Act (18 
and 19 Victoria c. 54)." You state there positively and emphatically that such was the case ;—did you 
take the necessary steps to ascertain Whethei-Mr. !Peri& with hOlding an -office of iii•ofit under the Crown 
before you petitioned against his Seat—in other words, did you go to the department, Or the head of the 
department, that being the only place where you could get the necessary information? I may say that I 
went and searched the Government Gazettes to endeavour to find the information, but I mil aSsiired that 
those matters were not gazetted. 
52. Did you apply persoriallyor by 'letter to the Post Office .Departitimitl 	opiate-did the record 
and I was told that the information need not be supplied to me ; then I got a persbn who knew Atilife 
official to make the inquiry. 
53. Did you apply by letter ? No; I applied personally at the  reccad officethat 	was . be-foire' :HdgaMmade 
the inquiry. I got letters from the district assuring me that Mr. Perry was actin°.

b 
 as postmaster, Gala 

further than that, Mr. Perry, in his hustings speech ;  told the electors-that if 	wax. eleated he intended to 
give up his business in the electorate. All these things led me to understand that Mr. Perry had resigned 
on the polling-day. 
54. Did you apply to the Secretary of the General Post Office or to the Postmaster-General for the time 
being for the information ? No, I did not apply: I was assured by the clerk of the record office that 
the information need-not be supplied by them. 
55. Did you apply by letter in a formal way No. 
56. Mr. Hayes.] bid you apply pei-sonally to the Po§tmastor-General or the Assistant Tlistmaster-Cefieral? 
No. 
57. Mr. J. P. Abbott.] Did you get a solicitor to write this petition for you? 'Yes. 
58. Did he suggest that you should get the 'information before you lodged the .  petition? I told him the 
information I got, and he thought that was enough. Like myself, he laid speeial emphasis on the fact Of 
the polling-day being the date of the resignation. He suggested searching the Government Gazettes, which 
I did, but they did not contain any information. 
59. Did he go himself ? No. 	 . 	. 
60. Chairman.] Were the letters which you -referred to as coming from the Richmond River -Distriat from. 
your friends? Yes—electors. 
Cl, Among other things stated, 	they say that Mr. John Perry was still postmaster/ Yes. 
62. Did they give you any evidence to prove that statement? No. 
63. Then it was simply a rumour, so far as they were concerned Rumours suggested the inquiry at the 
Post Office. 
64. Was it in consequence of your receiving those letters that you made inquiry at the Post Office l I may 
say that I left the electorate with the intention of lodging a petition—I was assured by many of the 
electors that that was the case. 
65. -Mr. Marshall.] When did you leave the electorate ? On the 15th February, I should say—it was two 
days after the polling. 
66. You mentioned that Mr. Perry stated that, if elected, he would give up-  his business in the electorate—
do you not know that Ile is a storekeeper carrying on business at Alstonville? I have heard so, but I have 
never seen the place. 
67. Do you recollect who were the persons who corresponded with you ? Yes. One was Mr. Hogan. 

do - not think he is a relation to the witness who gave evidence to-day. He is a resident of Lismore. 
Another was the Council Clerk at Lismore, Mr. Pollan; he has since been in Sydney at my-house. I also 
got a letter from Mr. Cope, an attorney from Casino. 
68. How far is Casino from Aletonvillel I think it is about 22 miles, 

Anticnbt 
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APPENDIX. 

[To the Evidence of Stephen Hachord Zinnhton,flth May, 1889.] 
A . 

The Secretary to the Post Office, Sydney,— 
Dear Sir, Alstonville, 21 January, 1889. 

I hereby tender my resignation of the office of Postmaster for Alstonville, and, in order that the public may not 
be inconvenienced, my son (who is succeeding me in my business) will perform the duties until he or some one else is 
appointed in my place. I have, &c.

, PERRY. 
I take the opportunity of drawing your attention to the small remuneration attached to this Office, and would 

suggest that it be iocreased.—J.P. 

P.M., Alstonville,—What Is the christian name of your son ?—S.H.L., 25/1/89. 

B. 
Sir, 	 General Post Office, Sydney, 6 February, 1889. 

The Postmaster-General hereby appoints you to succeed Mr. John Perry as the Postmaster at Alstonville, and 
requests that you will commence your duties on and from the 14th instant. 

2. The remuneration attached to the office is a salary at the rate of £12 per annum, and a commission of 2,1,- per cent. 
upon the value of the postage stamps sold by the postmaster. 

It should be understood that the engagement is subject to termination at any time that it may be considered necessary 
in the public interest. 

3. You will be required to sell duty stamps, for which service you will be allowed the usual remuneration by the 
Commissioner of Stamps, to whom you must apply for these stamps. 

4. In compliance with the 4th section of the Act 31st Victoria No. 4, you should make a declaration before a 
Justice of the Peace upon the form I enclose ; and if you intend employing anyone to assist you, he or she must make a 
similar declaration upon the prescribed form, also enclosed. Such declarations must be forwarded to this office in the 
accompanying printed letter. 

5. You will he required to give security to the extent of £100 for the faithful discharge of your official duties, but 
the department will make the necessary arrangements for such security, and the premium payable in respect thereof, 
namely, 5s. per centum per annum, will be deducted from your salary. 

U. Your predecessor has been instructed to hand over to you any postage stamps, letters, packets, book parcels, 
newspapers, printed notices to the public, printed forms and books, printed or manuscript letters of instruction, date and 
obliterating stamps, office seals, stores, or other 0 overmnent property in his possession, for which you will have to give him 
a receipt, in triplicate, upon printed forms furnished to the retiring postmaster. 

7. You will be guided in the performance of your duties by the Book of Regulations, which will be transferred to you 
by your predecessor, who has been requested to afford you every information and assistance in his power. 

I am, &c., 
S. H. LAMBTON, 

Secretary, 
(Per Mr. John A. Perry, Alstonvilla. 	 A.J.A.)  

C. 
Sir, 	 General Post Office, Sydney, 6 February, 1889. 

Referring to your letter of resignation, dated the 21st ultimo, I beg to inform you that Mr. John A. Perry has 
been appointed to succeed you as Postmaster at Alstonville, from the 14th instant. 	 • 2. You will be good enough, on that date, to hand over to him all letters, packets, hook parcels, newspapers, printed 
notices to the public, printed forms and hooks, printed or manuscript letters of instruction, date and obliterating stamps, 
office seals, stores, or other Government property in your possession, for which he has been instructed to give you a receipt, 
in triplicate, upon the enclosed form. One of these receipts you will forward to this office as a voucher that you have 
ceased to be responsible for the articles in question, one you will retain, and the other you will hand to your successor. 

3. Whatever amount may he due by you on postage-stamp account at the time of transferring your office (you are at 
this date indebted on that account to the amount of 	you will hand over to your successor, as any delay in the adjust- 
ment of your accounts will be looked upon as a serious matter. You will be -careful to take a correct receipt in triplicate 
for the amount of cash and postage stamps transferred upon the enclosed form. One of these receipts you will at once 
forward to this office, in order that credit may be given you for such amount, one you will retain, and the other you will 
hand to your successor. 

4. I trust that in transferring your office to your successor -you will afford him every information and assistance in 
your power. 	 I have, &c., 

S, II. LAMBTON, 
Secretary, 

The Postmaster at Alstonville. 	 (Per A.J.A.) 

D. 
The Secretary, G.P.O., Sydney,— 	 Alstonville, 14 February, 1889. 

Dear Sir, 
Your circular dated 6th February to hand. I have not yet signed documents, for the following reasons :— 

I. My father sent in his resignation on the 23rd January, and at that date handed all papers, letters, stamps, money, 
&c., to me as acting postmaster. My appointment should therefore date back instead of forward. 

2. I am only 17i years old, and it may not be thought advisable to appoint me on that account. 
Meanwhile I am acting as postmaster in the same premises, so that the public will not be inconvenienced, and shall 

continue so to act till my appointment is confirmed, or some one else appointed. 
I am, &e., 

	A, PERRY 

Postal Inspector as to No. 2.—M.D., 22/2/S9. 	I do not think that Alstonville is a place of sufficient importance 
to warrant the cancellation of this young man's appointment, 6/3/89. 	There can be no possible objection to this appoint. 
Mont dating from the day on which he states he took over the office, namely, the 23rd January.—S,H,L., 7/3/89. A0000ntant for inforniation.—S.H.L., 8/3/89. 	Noted—CF., 8/3/89. Noted.—A.G„ 12/3/89. 

B . 
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General Post Office, Sydney, 8 March, 1889. 
To Mr. john Pent, late Poshmasher, 
As it appears that Mr. John A. Perry took charge of the Alstonville Post Office on the 23rd January last, his appointment 

• as your successor will take effect from that date, instead of from the 14th ultimo, as previously notified. 
S. H. LAMBTON. 

F. 

To Mr. John A. Perry, Postmaster, Alstonville,— 
ItErspnixo to your letter of the 14th ultimo, you are informed that there is no objection to your retaining the position of 
Postmaster at Alstonville, or to your appointment dating from the day on which you state you took over the office, viz., 
23rd January last. S. H. LAMBTON. 

G.. 
General Post Office, Sydney, 5 February, 1889. 

Paz Postmaster at Alstonville resigns ; salary, £12 per annum. The following persons apply, or are recommended for the 
appointment, namely :—John Alston Perry (son of present P.M.), recommended by postmaster. 

E. S. TRIBE, 
Record Clerk. 

Postage-stamp account—Dr., 2.5.—S. RHOS, 1/2/89. 	Let Mr. John A. Perry be appointed as postmaster at 
Alstenville, to date as required. 	Approved.—H.C., 5/2/89. Mr. John A. Perry, P.M., Alstonville. Mr. Postal 
Inspector. The Commissioner Stamp Duties. 	Contr. G. Balzer. 	Journal.—F.C., 6/2/89, 	Accountant for infor. 
mation, to date from 14th instant—S.H.L., 6(2/89. 	Noted.-11.S.L., 7/2/89. 	Put away. 

Post Office Declaration—(31 Viet. No. IV., sec. 4.) 
1, Sons ALSTON PERRY, being engaged in the Post Office, Alstonville, as Acting Postmaster, do solemnly and sincerely 
declare, that I will not willingly or knowingly open, detain, return, or delay, or cause or suffer to be opened, detained, 
returned, or delayed, any letter or packet which shall come into my hands, power, or custody, by reason of my employment 
relating to the Post Office, except by the consent of the person or persons to whom such letter or packet shall be directed, 
or by an express warrant in writing for that purpose, under the hand of the Governor, or except in pursuance and under 
the authority of any of the provisions of any Act, now or hereafter to be in force, relating to the Post Office, or of any 
regulations made in pursuance of such Act. 

J. A. PERRY. 
Declared before me, one of Her Majesty's Justices of the Peace, in and for ) 

the Colony of New South Wales, 21st day of January, 1880,— 
JOHN PERRY, J.P. 

J. A. Petty. 
I ACKNOWLEDGE to have received from the Postmaster-General, this 9th April, 1889, the 611rn of £2 5s. 4,1., in full of my 
salary and allowances as Postmaster at Alstonville, for the period from 23rd January to 31st March, 1889. 

J. A. PERRY, Postmaster. 

J. A. PERRY, Postmaster. 

Sydney: Charles Potter, Government Prniter.-1889 

General Post Office, Sydney, 8 March, 1889. 

Witness—Seas. DUTTON. 

Please pay the above amount to J. A. Perry, Alstonville, by cheque. 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW. SOUTH WALES. 

ELECTION PETITION—McKINNON ve  THE SITTING MEMBERS—THE 
HASTINGS AND MANNING. 

REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE 

OF 

ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS; 

TOGETHER WITH THE 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE COMMITTEE 

AICD 

MINUTES OF EVIDENCE. 

ORDERED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY TO BE PRINTED, 

16 May, 1889. 

SYDNEY: CHARLES POWER, GOVERNMENT PRUSTTER. 
-- 

l.880. 
[Is. 3d. J 	 272-A 
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1889. 

EXTRACTS FROM THE VOTES AND PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

ELECTION PETITION-AMICINNON v. THE SITTING MEMBERS-THE HASTINGS 
AND MANNING. 

VOTES No. 3. FRIDAY, 1 MARCH, 1889. 
3. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :-Mr. Speaker, pursuant to the requirements of the 

Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the Table his Warrant appointing the Committee of Elections and 
Qualifications for the present Session, of which the following is a copy :— 
" By the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

" of New South Wales. 
" Pursuant to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint— 

Joseph Hector Carruthers, Esquire, 	" Charles Alfred Lee, Esquire, 
" Robert George Dundas Fitzgerald, 	" Alexander Eyrie, Esquire, 

"Esquire, 	 " Bruce Smith, Esquire, and 
" ;fames Hayes, Esquire, 	 " Robert Bliss Wilkinson, Esquire, 

" being Members' of the said Assembly, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and 
" Qualifications in the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid. 

" Given under my hand, at the Legislative A ssernbly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney , 
" this first day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
" eighty-nine. 

"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
" Speaker." 

VOTES No. 2. Tnunsusx, 28 FEBRUARY, 1689. 
7 ELECTION PETITION (The Hastings and Manning) :-111 . r. Dibbs, by coin wand, laid upon the Table an 

Election Petition, which had been addressed to flis Excellency the Governor, from Hugh McKinnon, 
alleging that, at the last General Election, .lames Henry Young, Charles James Roberts, John 
Lowry Ruthven, and the Petitioner were severally candidates for election for the Electoral District 
of The Hastings and Manning ; that, at the declaration of the poll, the said James Henry Young 
and Charles James Roberts were declared to be duly elected ; that, at the said election, the polling-
booth at Beechwood was closed for a portion of the time between the hours of eight o'clock in the 
forenoon and four o'clock in the afternoon on the day of polling, when the ballot-box was removed 
to another room, and certain voters were unable to record their votes ; that, for these and other 
irregularities specified, the Petitioner prays that the Petition may be dealt with according to law, 
and that the return of the said James Henry Young and Charles James Roberts may be declared 
null and void ; that a scrutiny of all the ballot-papers should be made; and that it may be declared 
and determined that your Petitioner was duly elected. 
Ordered to lie on the Table. 

VOTES No. 7. FRIDAY, 8 MARGE, 1889. 
1. 	* 	* 	- 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 

COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :- 
(1.) Maturity of Warrant reported :—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant appointing the 

Committee of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, laid upon the Table on Friday, 
1st March, 1889, not having been disapproved by the Assembly in the course of the three next 
sitting-days on which the A ssembly met for the despatch of business, had now taken effect as an 
appointment of such Committee ; and intimated that it was therefore open to Members of the 
Committee to be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with the ath section of the 
Electoral Act of 1880. 

(2.) Members Sworn:—Charles Alfred Lee, Esquire, and Alexander Ryrie, Esquire, came to the 
Table, and were sworn by the Clerk as Members of the Committee. 

2. ELECTION PETITIONS :-Mr. Hibbs moved, That the following Election Petitions be referred to the 
Committee of Elections and Qualifications :— 

	

* 	* 	*, 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	- * 	* 
(2.) From Hugh McKinnon, complaining of the Election and Return of James Henry Young and 
Charles James :Roberts, Members for the Electoral District of The Hastings and Manning, laid 
upon the Table of this House on 28th February last. 

	

* 	* 	* 	* 	. x. 	 * 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 

	

Question put and passed. 	 9. 
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9. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Mr. Speaker, pursuant to the requirements of the 
Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the Table his Warrant appointing Frank James Smith, Esquire, 
and John Rendell Street, Esquire, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications 
for the present Session, of which the following is a copy :— 
" By the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

of New South Wales. 
" Pursuant to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint- 

" Frank James Smith, Esquire, and 
" John Rendell Street, Esquire, 

" being Members of the said Assembly, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifi- 
cationsin the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid, in the 

" room of Joseph Hector Carruthers, Esquire, and Bruce Smith, Esquire, whose Seats in the said 
" Assembly were this day declared vacant, by reason of their acceptance of the offices of Minister 
" of Public Instruction and Secretary for Public Works respectively. 

" Given under my band, at the Legislative Assembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney; 
" this eighth day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
" eighty-nine 

"JAMES HENRY YOUNG-, 
" Speaker." 

VOTES No. 11. TUESDAY, 9 A.PRIL, 1889. 
2. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 

(1.) Maturity of Warrant reported :—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant, laid upon the Table 
. on the 8th March last, appointing Frank James Smith, Esquire, and John Rendell Street, Esquire, 

to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, not 
having been disapproved by the Assembly in the course of the three next sitting-days onwhich the 
Assembly met for the despatch of business, had now taken effect ; and intimated that it was there-
fore open to Mr. Smith and Mr. Street to be sworn at; the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with 
the 59th section of the Electoral Act of 1880. 

(2.) Members of  Committee Sworn :—James Hayes, Esquire, Frank James Smith, Esquire, and 
John Rendell Street, Esquire, came to the Table and were sworn by the Clerk as Members of the 
Committee. 

VOTES No. 12. WEDNESDAY, 10 AERIE, 1889. 
12. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Robert Bliss Wilkinson, Esquire, came to the 

Table, and was sworn by the Clerk as a Member of the Committee of Elections and Qualification.. 
16. COMMITTEE OF Eta:mass AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Pursuant to the requirement of the 59th section 

of the Electoral Act of 1880, Mr. Speaker appointed the first meeting of the Committee of 
Elections and Qualifications to take place at eleven o'clock a.m., to-morrow, the 11th instant, in 
Committee Room No. 3. 

VOTES No. 18. TUESDAY, 30 Arun, 1880. 
4. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUATIFICATIONS 

(1.) Mr. Speaker informed the House that he had received a letter from Robert George Pandas 
Fitzgerald, Esquire, resigning his appointment as a Member of the Committee of Elections and 
Qualifications, which letter he read to the House, as follows :— 
" J. H. Young, Esquire, M.P., Speaker, Legislative Assembly,— 

" Dear Sir, 	 " Camp, National Park, 26 April, 1889. 
" I much regret that I have been unable to take the Oath as a Member of Elections 

" and Qualifications Committee ; and as I cannot do so during the ensuing week, I reluctantly 
" tender you my resignation as a Member of that Committee, with a view to saving inconvenience, 
"as pointed out by Mr. Lee. 

" Yours truly, 
" ROBT. GEO. D. FITZGERALD." 

(2.) Mr. Speaker then, pursuant to the requirement of the Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the 
Table his Warrant appointing Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, to be a Member of the Committee 
of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, of which the following is a copy :— 
"By the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

"of New South Wales. 
" Puastrag to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint— 

Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, 
" being a Member of the said Assembly, to be a Member of the Committee of Elections and 
" Qualifications in the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid, 
" in the room of Robert George Dundas Fitzgerald, Esquire, resigned. 

" Given under my hand, at the Legislative Assembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
"this thirtieth day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
"eighty-nine. 

"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
" Speaker." 

VOTES 
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VOTES NO. 22. WEDNESI:fl, 8 MAY, 1889. 
1. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS 

(L.) Maturity of Warrant reported : —Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant, laid upon the Table 
on the 30th April last, appointing Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, to be a Member of the Committee 
of Elections and Qualifications for the' present Session, not having been disapproved by the 
Assembly in the course of the three next sitting-days on which the Assembly met for the despatch 
of business, had now taken effect ; and intimated that it was therefore open to Mr. Abbott to 
be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with the 59th section of the Electoral Act 
of 1880. 

(2.) Member Sworn :—Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, came to the Table, and was sworn by the 
Clerk as a Member of the Committee. 

VotEs No. 26. THURSDAY, 16 MAY, 1889. - 
6. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS—(Election Petition—MeKinnon v. the Sitting 

Members, The Hastings and Manning) :—Mr. J. P. Abbott, as Chairman, brought up the Report 
from, and laid upon the Table the Minutes of Proceedings of, and Evidence taken before, the 
Committee of Elections and Qualifications, to whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, the Petition 
of Hugh McKinnon against the return of the Sitting Members for the Electoral District of The 
Hastings and Manning. 
And the said Report was read at length by the Clerk, by direction of Mr. Speaker, as follows :— 

"The Committee of Elections and Qualifications, duly appointed on 1st March, 1889, to 
"whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, a Petition from Hugh McKinnon, alleging that at the 
"last General Election, James Henry Young, Charles James Roberts, John Lowry Ruthven, and 
" the Petitioner were severally candidates for election for the Electoral District of The Hastings 
"and Manning ; that, at the declaration of the Poll, the said James Henry Young and Charles 
" James Roberts were declared to be duly elected ; that, at the said Election, the polling-booth at 
" Beechwood was closed for a portion of the time between the hours of eight o'clock in the forenoon 
" and four o'clock in the afternoon on the day of polling, when the ballot-box was removed to 
"another room, and certain voters were unable to record their votes ; that, for these and other 
"irregularities specified, the Petitioner prays that the Petition maybe dealt with according to law, 
"and that the return of the said James Henry Young and Charles James Roberts may be declared 
"null and void ; that a scrutiny of all the ballot-papers should be made ; and that it may be 
"declared and determined that your Petitioner was duly elected,—have determined and do hereby 
" declare,— 

" (1.) That James Henry Young and Charles James Roberts, the Sitting Members, were 
"duly elected as Members for The Hastings and Manning. 

"(2.) That the Petition is frivolous and vexatious, 
"(3.) That the sum of MO out of the sum of £100, already lodged by the Petitioner, be 

" awarded as witnesses expenses. 

"No. 3. Committee Room, 
"Legislative Assembly, 16th May, 1889." 

Ordered, on motion of Mr. Abbott, that the Report and 
printed. 

"3. P. ABBOTT, 
" Chairman." 

Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence, be 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

ELECTION PETITION—McKINNON v. THE SITTING MEMBERS—THE 
HASTINGS AND MANNING. 

REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE. 

OF 

ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS. 

TILE COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS, duly appointed on 1st 
March, 1889, to whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, a Petition from 
Hugh McKinnon, alleging that, at the last General Election, James Henry 
Young, Charles James Roberts, John Lowry Ruthven, and the Petitioner were 
severally candidates for. election for the Electoral District of The Hastings and 
Manning ; that, at the declaration of the Poll, the said James Henry Young and 
Charles James Roberts were declared to be duly elected ; that, at the said elec-
tion, the polling-booth at Beechwood was closed for a portion of the time between 
the hours of eight o'clock in the forenoon, and four o'clock in the afternoon on 
the day of polling, when the ballot-box was removed to another room, and certain 
voters were unable to record their votes ; that, for these and other irregularities 
specified, the Petitioner prays that the Petition may be dealt with according to 
law, and that the return of the said James Henry Young and Charles James 
Roberts, may be declared null and void ; that a scrutiny of all the ballot-papers 
should be made ; and that it may be declared and determined that your 
Petitioner was duly elected,—have determined and do hereby declare :— 

1. That James Henry Young and Charles James Roberts, the Sitting 
Members, were duly elected as Members for The Hastings and 
Manning. 

2. That the Petition is frivolous and. vexatious. 
3. That the sum of £30, out of the sum of 2100 already lodged by the 

Petitioner, be awarded as witnesses expenses. 
J. P. ABBOTT, 

Ho. 3 Committee Boom, 	 Chairman. 
Legislative Assembly, 

16th May, 1889. 
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1889. 

MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND 
QUALIFICATIONS. 

In the matter of the Election Petition, which had been addressed to His Excellency the Governor, from 
Hugh McKinnon, alleging that, at the last General Election, James Henry Young, Charles James 
Roberts, John Lowry Rut liven, and the Petitioner were severally Candidates for election for the 
Electoral District qf The Hastings and Manning ; that at the declaration of the poll, the said James 
Henry Young and Charles James Roberts were declared to be duly elected; that, at the said Election, 
the polling-booth at Beechwood was closed for a portion of the time between the hours of eight o'clock 
in the .fbrencon and four o'clock in the afternoon on the day of polling, when the ballot-box was 
removed to another room, and certain voters were unable to record their votes; that, for these and 
other irregularities specified, the Petitioner prays that the Petition may be dealt with according to law, 
and that the return of the said James Henry Young and Charles James Roberts may be declared null 
and void; that a scrutiny of all the ballot-papers should be made ; and that it may be declared and 
determined that your Petitioner was duly elected. 

THURSDAY, 25 APRIL, 1889. 

MEMBERS PRESENT :— 
Mr. Lee, in the Chair, 

Mr. Hayes, 	 Mr. Wilkinson, 
Mr. Street, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 

Mr. Hyrie. 
In attendance,— 

The Second Clerk Assistant. 
1. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the Entry from the Votes and Proceedings by which 

the Petition of Hugh McKinnon was referred to the Committee. [Vide Extract, page 3.] 
2 The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the Petition of Hugh McKinnon (together with the 

accompanying Bank deposit-receipt) so referred to this Committee, as follows :— 
To His Excellency the Right Honorable CHARLES ROBERT, BARON CARRINGTON, a Member of Her Majesty's 

Most Honorable Privy Council, Knight Grand Cross of the Most Distinguished Order of St. Michael and 
St. George, Governor and Commander-in-Chief of the Colony of New South Wales and its Dependencies. 

The humble Petition of Hugh McKinnon, of Sydney, in the Colony of New South Wales, Esquire,— 
SHOWETH 

I. That at the last General Election of Members to serve in the Legislative Assembly of the said Colony, 
James Henry Young, Charles James Roberts, John Lowry Ruthven, and your Petitioner were severally 
candidates to be elected as Members of the said Assembly for the Electoral District of The Hastings and 
Manning. 

2. That at the Nomination for the said election, each of them, the said James Henry Young, Charles 
James Roberts, John Lowry Ruthven, and your Petitioner were duly nominated and proposed as such Members, 
and the Returning Officer then called for a show of hands separately in favour of each candidate, and upon the 
same taking place declared the show of hands to be in favour of your Petitioner and the said John Lowry 
Ituthven, whereupon a Poll was demanded on behalf of the said Charles James Roberts, which was afterwards 
taken. 

3. That before and at the time of the said Nomination, and from thence, your Petitioner was and is a 
person duly qualified by law to be elected a :Member of the said Legislative Assembly. 

4. That the Returning Officer on the day of the declaration of the Poll for the said Electoral District 
declared the number of votes polled for the respective candidates to be as follows :— 

For the said James Henry Young—One thousand and sixty-five votes. 
For the said Charles James Roberts—One thousand sixty-three votes. 
For your Petitioner—One thousand and forty-four votes. 
And for the said John Lowry Ruthven—One thousand and forty votes. 

And thereupon declared the said James Henry Young and Charles James Roberts to be duly elected as Members 
of the said Assembly for the said Electoral District ; and the said Returning Officer afterwards endorsed on the 
writ for the said election the names of the said James Remy Young and Charles James Roberts as the persons 
so elected, and returned the said writ to your Excellency. 

5. That a place called Beeehvvood was duly appointed a place at which a poll was to be taken at the said 
election, and a poll was accordingly held at that place on the ninth -day of February last. 

6. That the polling-booth at Beechwood aforesaid was closed for a portion of the time between the hours 
of eight o'clock in the forenoon and four o'clock in the afternoon on the day of polling, and that the ballot-box 
was in the meantime removed to another room. 

7. That during the said time a number of voters came to record their votes and were unable to do so. 
8. That the polling-booth at Kendall, one of the polling-places in the said Electoral District, was not 

opened till a quarter to nine of the clock on the day of polling, instead of eight o'clock as prescribed by the Act, 
consequently some electors were unable to record their votes. 

9. That at the time of such election the said Returning Officer did cause to be printed ballot-papers 
according to the form prescribed in Schedule Ito the Electoral Act of 1880, 44 Vie. No. 13, and did supply the 
various Presiding Officers throughout the said Electoral District with such ballot-papers for the purposes of the 
said election. 

10. That some of the ballot-papers in some of the polling-booths in the said Electoral District, after 
having been removed from the ballot-box at the close of the poll for the purpose of being counted, had not the 
initials of the Presiding Officer on them, as required by section 33 of 44 Mic.• No. 13. 

11. That the number of ballot-papers counted did not correspond with the number of voters marked on 
the Electoral Rolls by the Presiding Officers and Poll Clerks, 	 12. 

• 
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12. That at several of the polling-places in the said Electorate votes were declared informal which were 
not informal, and which should have been counted in favour of your Petitioner, and against the said James 
Henry Young and Charles James Roberts. 

13. That your Petitioner, pursuant to the said Electoral Act of 1880, has caused the sum of one hundred 
pounds (£100) to be deposited with the Commercial Banking Company of Sydney, to the credit of the Speaker 
of the Legislative Assembly, in relation to this Petition, and the Bank deposit for such receipt is hereunto 
annexed. 

Your Petitioner, therefore, humbly prays that this Petition may be dealt with according to law, and that 
the return of the said James Henry Young and Charles James Roberts, as Members of the said Legislative 
Assembly for the said Electoral District, may be declared null and void, for the reasons aforesaid ; that a scrutiny 
of all ballot-papers should be made by the Committee of Elections and Qualifications ; that for the reasons afore-
said it may be declared, that the said James Henry Young and Charles James Roberts were not lawfully elected, 
and are not such Members of the said Legislative Assembly for the said Electoral District ; that it may be 
declared, and determined that your Petitioner was duly elected as one of the Members at the said election, to 
serve and be a Member of the said Legislative Assembly for the said Electoral District of The Hastings and 
Manning, and that such further or other order and determination may be made in the premises as may be just. 

And your Petitioner will ever pray, &c. 
• HUGH MoKINNON. 

Sydney, the 26th day of February, 1889, 

26 February, 1889. 
PAID to the credit of the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of New South Wales, with the Commercial Banking 
Company of Sydney, the sum of £100 sterling, by 

Halm MCKINNON. 
A. 0. GRANT, 

£100. Dup. 	 Teller. 
3. The Clerk submitted a letter from the Honorable the Speaker, enclosing certified copies of a letter he 

had received from Charles James Roberts, giving notice of his intention to defend his Seat, and 
also a letter from the Honorable the Speaker, enclosing a letter from John Cameron, an elector of 
The Hastings and Manning, giving notice of his desire to defend the return of Mr. James Henry 
Young, which he read as follows :— 

" Legislative Assembly Chamber, 
"Sydney, 10 April, 1889. 

"To the Committee of Elections and Qualifications,— 
" Gentlemen, 

"I have the honor to transmit to you herewith a copy of a letter which has been 
"received by me from Charles James Roberts, Esquire, C.M.G., one of the Sitting Members 
"for The Hastings and Maiming, giving notice of his intention to defend his return, against 
"which a Petition is now under your consideration. 

"I have. Sm., 
"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 

"Speaker." 

[Enclosure.] 
Sir, 	 Sydney, 8 March, 1889. 

Referring to the Petition of Mr. Hugh McKinnon, protesting against my return as a Member for the 
electorate of The Hastings and Manning, and which has been referred to the Elections and Qualifications 
Committee, I have the honor to state that it is my intention to defend, by counsel or otherwise, my right to sit 
as an elected Member for the said Electoral District. 

I have, &c., 
The Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly. 	 CHARLES J. ROBERTS. 
A true copy.—JAMES HENRY YOUNG, Speaker. 

" Legislative Assembly Chambers, 
"Sydney, 10 April, 1889. 

"To the Committee of Elections and Qualifications,— 
" Gentlemen, 

"I have the honor to transmit to you herewith a copy of a letter which has been 
"received by me from John Cameron, being one who had a right to vote at the election for The 
" Hastings and Manning, giving notice of his desire to be permitted to defend the return of 
"Mr. James Henry Young, one of the Sitting Members for that Electorate, against whose 
"return a Petition is now under your consideration. 

"1 have, itc., 
"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 

"Speaker." 
[Enclosure.] 

Sir, 	 94, Sussex-street, Sydney, 20 March, 1889. 
Under the provisions of the 67th section of the Electoral Act of 1880, and being one who had a right to 

vote at the election for The Hastings and Manning, held in February last, I hereby give you notice that it is 
my desire to be permitted to defend the return of Mr. James Henry Young, which has been petitioned against. 

I have, &c., 
To the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly. 	 JOHN CAMERON. 
A true copy.—JAm as HENRY YOUNG, Speaker. 

4. Parties called in. 
Present :--Charles James Roberts, Esquire (one o the Sitting .111e)nbers). 

Hugh McKinnon, Esquire (the Petitioner). 
U. Frederick William Webb, Esq., Clerk of the Legislative Assembly, called in, sworn, and examined. 

Witness produced Writ of Election certifying to the return of James Henry Young and Charles 
James Roberts, as Members for The Hastings and Maiming. -Witness also produced the parcel of 

• ballot-papers, as received from the Returning Officer for The Hastings and Manning, also a letter 
from the Principal Under Secretary, enclosing a letter from the Returning Officer, forwarding 
protests against the election, 

-Witness withdrew. 
272—B 	 6. 
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Thigh i McKinnon, Esq., sworn and e xamined. 

7. James Di`Inherny, Returning Officer for The Hastings and Manning, called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

8. Mr. McKinnon requested to withdraw paragraph 8 of his Petition, which request was granted by 
the Committee. 

9. Mr. Josiah Secombe, Poll Clerk at Beechwood, called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

19. Mi. John Neville called in, sworn, and examined. 
Wont cleared. 

11. toinmiftee adjourned to to-morrow, at half-past 9 o'clock. 
R W. ROBERTSON., 

Second Clerk Assistant. 

FRIDAY, 26 APRIL, 1889. 
MEMBERS PRESENT :- 
Mr. Lee in the Chair. 

Mr. Street, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Ryrie, 	 Mr. Hayes, 

Mr. Wilkinson. 
, In attendance,— 

The Second Clerk Assistant. 
1. Pe csent :—Charlen :fames Roberts, Esquire (once the Sitting Henihers). 

 
- 	

Hugh AlcKinnon, Esquire (the Petitioner). 
2. Mr. McKinnon submitted certain declarations, which he wished to put in, in evidence. 

Room cleared, Committee deliberated, and decided not to admit the declarations. 
Parties called in, and Mr. McKinnon informed. 

3. Hugh McKinnon. Esq., the Petitioner, further examined. 
Petitioner requested to withdraw paragraph 11 of his Petition, which request was granted by the 

Committee. 
4. James M`Inherny, Esq., called in and further examined. 

Witness withdrew. • 
5. Walter Fryer, Presiding Officer at Beeehwood, called in, sworn, and examined. 
6. Room cleared, and Committee deliberated. 
7. Parties called in and informed that the Committee did not consider it necessary to hear further 

evidence or the Parties to the Petition. 
S. Conuniftee adjourned to 2 o'clock. 
9. There not being five Members present one hour after the time appointed for the meeting of the 

Committee, the Members present adjourned to Thursday, at 1.0 o'clock. 
R. W. ROBERTSON, 

Second Clerk Assistant. 

THURSDAY, 2 HAY, 1889. 
MEMBER PRESENT :- 

Mr. Lee. 
In attendance,— 

The Second Clerk Assistant. 
There not being five Members present one hour after the time appointed for the meeting of the 

Committee, the Member present adjourned, to to-morrow, at half-past 9 o'clock. 
R. W. ROBERTSON, 

Second Clerk Assistant. 

_FRIDAY, 3 HAY, 1889. 
MEMBER PRESENT :- 

Mr. Lee. 
In attendance,— 

. 	The Second Clerk Assistant. 
There not being five Members present one hour after the time appointed for the meeting of the 

Committee, the Member present adjourned to Tuesday next, at half-past 9 o'clock. 
R W. ROBERTSON, 

Second Clerk Assistant. 

TUESDAY, 7 HAY, 1889. 
MEMBERS PRESENT :- 

Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Street, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 	 Mr. Frank Smith. 

In attendance,— 
The Second Clerk Assistant. 

There not being five Members present one hour after the time appointed for the Meeting of the 
Committee, the Members present adjourned to Thursday next, at half-past 1 o'clock. 

R. W. ROBERTSON, 
Second Clerk Assistant. 

TEcussbA r, 
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THURSDA Y, 9 MAY, 1889. 
MEMBERS PRESENT :— 
Mr. Lee in the Chair. 

Mr. Hayes, Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 

	

	 Mr. Street, 
Mr. Frank Smith. 

in attendance,— 
The Second Clerk Assistant. 

1. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the minutes of the previous meetings, which were 
confirmed. 

2. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the Entries from the Votes and Proceedings in 
reference to the resignation of Mr. Fitzgerald, and the appointment of Mr. P. Abbott. [Tide 
:Extracts, pages 4 and 5.] 

3. Committee proceeded to the scrutiny of the ballot-papers. 
4. Committee adjourned to to-morrow, at half-past 9 o'clock. 

.15.8/DAY, 10 MAY, 1889. 
MEMBERS PRESENT :— 

Mr. Lee, 	 I 	Mr. Ryrie, 
INfr. Street. 

in attendance. 
The Second Clerk Assistant. 

There not being five Members present one hour after the time appointed for the meeting of the 
Committee, the Members present adjourned to Thursday next, at half-past 1 o'clock. 

R. W. ROBERTSON, 
Second Clerk Assistant. 

THURSDAY, 16 MAY, 1889. 
MEMRERS PRESENT :— 

Mr. J. P. Abbott, 	 Mr. Hayes. 
Mr. Eyrie, 	 Mr. Street. 
Mr. Frank Smith, 	 Mr. Wilkinson. 

In attendance. 
The Second Clerk Assistant. 

1. On Motion of Mr. Hayes, Mr. J. P. Abbott was elected Chairman. 
2. The Clerk by the direction of the Chairman, read the minutes of the previous meetings which were 

confirmed. 
3. Committee proceeded to the further scrutiny of the ballot-papers. 
4. Chairman reported the result of the scrutiny, as follows :— 

James Henry Young ... 	 1065  
Charles James Roberts ... 	 1058  
Hugh McKinnon 	 ••• 	 1045 
John Lowry Euthven 	 1034  

5. The Clerk submitted applications made for expenses of witnesses. 
Mr. Hayes moved,— 

That the Chairman be authorized to sign certificates for witnesses' expenses, as follows: — 

s. d. 
James M‘Inherny 	 10 0 0  
Frederick Hayward 	 10 0 0 
Walter Fryer 	 10 0 0 

Question put and agreed to. 	 £30 0 0 
6. The Committee then deliberated as to their Report. 

Mr. Hayes moved,— 
That the following be the Report of the Committee :— 

" 1. That James Henry Young and Charles James Roberts, the Sitting Members, were duly 
"elected as Members for the Hastings and Manning. 

" 2. That the Petition is frivolous and vexatious. 
"3. That the sum of £30 out of the sum of £100 already lodged by the Petitioner be awalded 

" as witnesses' expenses." 
Question put and agreed to. 

7. The Chairman to report to the House. 
R. W. ROBERTSON, 

Second Clerk Assistant. 

LIST OF WITNESSES. 
PAGE. 

Fryer, Wolter 	  20 
WInberny, James.. 	  13, 20 
McKinnon, Hugh 	  13, 18 
Neville, John 	  16 
Seeombe, Josiah 	  14 
Webb, Frederick William 	  18 

R. W. ROBERTSON, 
Second Clerk Assistant. 
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COMMITTEE 
OF 

ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS. 

ELECTION PETITION-11cRINNON t. THE SITTING MEMBERS—THE HASTINGS 
AND MANNING. 

THURSDAY, 25 APRIL, 1889 

idrzntut:— 
Mr. Hayes, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Street, 
Mr. Eyrie, 	 Mr. Wilkinson, 

C. A. Lee, Esq in the Chair. 

Mr. Hugh McKinnon appeared in support of the Petition. Mr. C. J. Roberts, one of the Sitting Members, 
appeared in person, and on behalf of Mr. H. Young, the other Sitting Member. 

Frederick William Webb, Esq., Clerk of the Legislative Assembly, sworn and examined :— 
1. Chairman.] Do you produce the writ for the Electoral District of The Hastings and Manning for the F. W. Webb, 
last general election? I produce the writ issued by His Excellency the Governor, on the 19th January, 	Esq. 
for the election of two Members to serve in the Legislative Assembly for the Electoral District of The 
Hastings and Manning, upon which writ the Returning Officer has certified that James Henry Young 25 Apri1,1889 
and Charles James Roberts were duly chosen for the Electoral District of The Hastings and Manning, to 
serve in the Legislative Assembly of New South Wales. 
2. Do you produce the ballot-papers used in that election? I also produce the ballot-papers for the same 
election certified under the hand of the Returning Officer as being such papers. They are in the condition 
in which they were received by me—the packages being somewhat broken. I also beg to submit to the 
Committee a letter received by me from the Principal -Ender Secretary. [Letter produced and read.] 1 
also produce the protests referred to in that letter. [Documents produced and read.] 

Mr. Hugh McKinnon sworn and examined :— 
3. Chairman.] Were you a candidate at the last general election for The Electoral 
and Manning ? I was. 
4. 'Were you returned as one of the elected members ? No. 
5. Did you petition the Legislative Assembly for an inquiry into the election ? 
6. The petition read is the petition presented by you? Yes. 
7. And the signature attached is yours ? It is. 

District of The Hastings 	Mr. 

I did. [Petition read.] 25April,1889. 
 

Mr. James MInherny sworn and examined :— 
8. Chairman.] Are you the Returning Officer for the Electoral District of The Hastings and Manning ? 	Mr. 
Yes. 	 J. M'Inherny. 
9. And you acted in that capacity at the last general election ? Yes. 
10. How many candidates were nominated ? Four. 	 25 April, 1889. 
11. What were their names ? Charles James Roberts, James Henry Young, John Lowry •uthven, and 
Hugh McKinnon. 
12. How many polling-places are there in the electorate ? Twenty-three. 
13. Will you be good enough to read me the names of the different polling-places ? Taree, Port 
Macquarie Rolland's Plains, Beechwood, Wauchope, Rawdon Island, Laurieton, Kendall, Telegraph 
Point, Cui:dletown, Wingham, Croki, Tinonee, Coopernook, -Upper Lansdowne, Woodside, Clarkson's 
Crossing, Marie°, Forster, Coolongolook, Firefly Creek, Ellenborough, and Yeldham's. 
14. Who acted as your presiding officer at Kendall ? Mr. Frederick Haywood. • 
15. And at Beechwood ? Mr. Walter Fryer. 
16. Who were the poll-clerks ? The poll-clerk at Kendall was Mr. J. D. Ross, and at Beechwood, Mr. 
Josiah Secombe, junr. 
17. And you presided at one of the polling-places yourself according to law ? Yes ; at Taree. 
13. Were there any complaints made to you after the election as to any alleged irregularities at either of 
the polling-places ? Yes, some days afterwards. There was a protest entered by Mr. McKinnon 
immediately after the declaration of the poll against the return of Mr. Roberts, but there was no ground 
stated as to why the protest was entered. It was merely a demand that the ballot-papers should be 
recounted, and the different documents compared. 	 19. 
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Mr. 	19. Did the presiding officer or poll-clerk at Kendall report to you any irregularities ? No. J.WInhernY' 20. Did they make any statement to you as to their having closed the poll for any time? Yes, afterwards: 
25401,1889. 21. How long afterwards ? It would' be on the Saturday after the election-three or four days afterwards. 

22. Did your officials at the Kendall polling-place make any complaint to you, or offer any statement to 
you as to the carrying out of the pommy

b 
 at that polling-place? No. 

23. Did the presiding officer or poll-clerk at Beechwood make any such statement? Not until Mr. 
Ruthven had sent in a protest and I asked if there was any truth in it. 
24. Mr. Hanes.] Did you distribute the ballot-papers? I posted. them in bundles to the different 
polling-places. 
25. Can you state the number that you sent to Beechwood? I cannot remember. The Port Macquarie 
end of the electorate is very large, and Mr. John Butler was acting there on my behalf. I left him to 
arrange everything for that end of the electorate, while I arranged for the Taree end. 
26. Did he act as your poll-clerk ? No ;  he was Presiding Officer at Port Macquarie, and acted generally 
there for me. Beechwood and Kendall are both on the Port Macquarie side of the electorate. 
27. Dir. Roberts.] When did you first hear of any complaint about the Kendall polling-booth not being 
opened after the prescribed. time? About the same time as I heard about the Beechwood polling-booth. 
28. What was the nature of the complaint; with regard to Kendall ? That the polling-clerk Mr. Ross 
was not at his post at 8 o'clock, and that the booth was late in opening. 
29. Who told you that? I think it was Mr. Ruthven. 
20. One of the candidates ? Yes. 
31. You never heard of any complaints from any of the electors ? None whatever. I asked Mr. 
Haywood about it and he dented the statement in toto. He said that both the polling-clerk and himself 
were there at 8 o'clock and opened the polling-booth punctually, 
32. Mr. Haywood told you that the polling-place was opened at 8 o'clock and that the polling-clerk was 
also there ? I have not seen Mr. Ross since, but I received a letter from him stating that the polling-
booth was opened at 8 o'clock. 
33. When did you first hear of any complaint with regard to the Beechwood polling-place being closed? 
On the Friday after the election took place ; not until I returned home to Port Macquarie. 
34. The election took place on the Saturday, and you heard of no complaint until the following Friday ? 
Thursday night or Friday morning. 
35. Whom did you hear it from ? Mr. Ruthven. 
36. You never heard of any complaints from any electors who were unable to record their votes ? No; 
no complaint reached me of any person being unable to record his vote. 
37. The only person who complained was Mr. Ruthven, who was a candidate at the election ? He was 
the only person. 
38. What did he tell you ? He told me that the polling-booth at Beechwood was closed for about half-
an-hour. 
39. That he had heard it was ? Yes ; and that some man named Miller went to record his vote and 
went away without recording it. 
40. Have you heard since whether that was a fact ? The presiding officer at Beechwood assured me that 
Miller returned afterwards and recorded his vote. 
41. That was the only name mentioned by Mr. Ruthven ? That was the only name. 
42. Hr. McKinnon.] Can you remember the time when the return came in from Kendall ? The official 
returns reached me at Taree on Sunday morning. 
43. But I mean the first intimation that you had of the result of the polling ? From Kendall, I should 
suppose it would be about 5 o'clock on Saturday afternoon, but I can tell you precisely, as I have the 
wires here. I find that the message from Kendall was transmitted at 525, and received at 5'30 on the 9th 
February. 
44. At what time was the Laurieton return received? It was despatched at 415 and received at 4:17, 
although by my time at Taree, I think it must have been a little earlier than that; it was the first one I 
received. I received it very early in the afternoon. 
45. Do you think there might be any discrepancy in the time given by the presiding officer at Kendall, 
according to the way in which the returns came in? Of course. You see at Kendall there would have 
to be a special messenger sent to Laurieton, which is 7 miles distant. 

[Mr.'lferinnon informed the Committee that he wished to withdraw paragraph 8 of the petition, and the 
Committee allowed the paragraph to be withdrawn.] 

Mr. Josiah Secombe sworn and examined :- 
Mr- 3. 	40. Chairman.] Do you remember the last general election for The Hastings and Manning ? Yes. • Secombe.  47. Did you act in the capacity of presiding officer at any polling-place ? No; but I was poll-clerk at 

Beecbwood. 25 Ap01,1889. 48. Who was the presiding officer ? Mr. Walter Fryer. 
49. At what hour in the morning did you attend at that polling-place ? Before 8 o'clock. I would not 
be sure as to how many minutes before. 
50. Was that polling-place closed at any time on that day between the hours of 8 a.m. and 4 p.m. ? Yes. 
51. At what time ? About 12 o'clock. 
52. For how long ? Between 20 and 25 minutes ; more than 20 minutes, but not 25, I think. 
53. In what way was it closed ? The door was shut and the ballot-box was taken out. 
54. By whom ? By the presiding officer. 
55. For what purpose was it closed? For the purpose of having lunch in another room. 
56. Was it closed at any other time after that ? Not until 4 o'clock. 
57. Then, with the exception of that one break, the poll was kept open from 8 in the morning till 4 in tile 
afternoon ? Yes. 
58. Were you there the whole time? Yes. 
59. During the time that the place was closed ? I went with the others to lunch. 
00. Who was in charge of the ballot-box during that time ? The presiding officer. 

61. 
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61. Did you go outside the building or communicate with any electors during that time? No. 	 Mr. J.  
62. Of your own knowledge, not from what you have been told, can you say whether there wore any Secombe.  
electors who applied to record their votes during that interval ? I cannot say of my own knowledge. 25April,1889. 
63. Mr. Hayes.] How many votes were polled at your booth on that day ? I do not remember. 
64. Mr. Lyric.] Was the door locked ? No; there was no lock on the door. 
65. Mr. Hayes.] What was done with the ballot-box while you were at lunch ? it was left M the room 
where we had lunch. 
66. The presiding officer took it with him into the room where you had lunch ? Yes. 
67. Do you know, as poll-clerk, how many ballot-papers you received from the Returning Officer ? 1. 
forget that. 
68. Did you not get them in bundles ? Yes, but I would not be quite sure as to the number. I fancy it 
was about 200. 
69. Do you know how many ballot-papers were returned unused? I do not know. 
70. You did not count them afterwards? Na. 
71. Mr. Frank Smith.] What were the names of the scrutineers ? Mr. Neville was scrutineer for the 
protectionist candidates, and Mr. Lindsay and Mr. Somerville were scrutineers for the freetrade candidates. 
72. Did they make any protest about the ballot-box being removed from the room and the polling-place 
being closed? No. 
73. No one made any objection ? I did not hear any. 
74. Did you hear any knocking at the door during the time the booth was closed ? No. 
75. No one attempted to gain admission ? No. 
76. And the door was not locked ? No. 
77. None of the scrutineers made any objection ? No. 
78. Mr. Street.] Was there any other entrance except through the room you lunched in ? Only a small 
window, through which an ordinary sized man could not get. 
79. Then any persons wanting to get into the polling-booth would have had to pass through the room 
where you were lunching ? They could get there without our seeing them. The room we lunched in was 
at the back part of the house. 
80. But not connected with it ? No. 
81. 2ft. Frank Smith.] Was anybody waiting at the door when you opened it again ? Only a few persons 
who were outside talking. 	 • 

82. No one wanting to record their votes ? There did not appear to be any. 
83. How long was it after opening the door before any votes were polled ? I would not be sure how long. 
84. Mr. Eyrie.] Was the room you removed to in any way connected with the building ? Both rooms 
belonged to the building. 
85. You stated that the room you removed to was at the back ? It was at the back, but under the same 
roof. 
86. Mr. Wilkinson.] Did it adjoin the room where the poll was taken ? No; there was a store between. 
87. But You were all together-you and the scrutineers and the presiding officer-at lunch ? Yes. 
88. And the ballot-box was there all the time? Yes. 
89. Chairman.] Did you offer any protest to the presiding officer ? No. 
90. Can you tell the Committee about how many votes were recorded between the time the poll was 
reopened and 4 o'clock ? 	; I have no idea. 
91. Was there any particular rush of voters to record their votes near the final closing of the poll ? I 
forget that ; I could not say. 
92. Mr. Lyric.] Were all the scrutineers present during lunch ? Yes 
93. Chairman.] You were present at the count were you not ? Yes. 
94. Do you remember whether there were any ballot-papers in the ballot-box that were without the 
presiding officer's initials? No, there were none found without the initials. 
95. Mr. Wilkinson.] There was nothing to prevent anyone from going to the room where you were at 
lunch ? No. 
96. Supposing any one came to the other room and found you away, I suppose there was nothing to 
prevent him from acquainting you with the fact. No. Both doors leading through the store were opened. 
97. Mr. McKinnon.] During the time that the poll was closed did you go outside? Only on to the 
verandah, and I walked along to the polling-booth from the lunch room. 
98. When you were at lunch where you in a position to know if any one Caine to record their votes ? No. 
99. You would not know ? No. 
100. Mr. Roberts.] You say that it was about 12 o'clock when you went to lunch ? Yes. 
101. And at that time there was in the room the presiding officer (Mr. Walter Fryer), yourself, Mr. John 
Neville (who represented Messrs. McKinnon and Ruthven as scrutineers), Mr. James Somerville, who 
was scrutineer for myself, and Mr. Wm. Lindsay, who represented Mr. Young, and you all had lunch 
together ? Yes. 
102. You did not hear one of those gentlemen offer any objection to the proposal to-have lunch ? No. 
103. And you returned in about 20 minutes ? Yes. 
101. That would be about 20 minutes past 12? Yes. 
105. And you say that the door was not locked ; that there was no lock upon the door, so that if any one 
had knocked at it or pushed it gently it would have opened instantly ? Yes. 
106. And if any one had come into the room where the votes were taken you would have heard their 
footsteps in the room where you were having lunch ; do you think that probable; there were only boards 
I suppose; no carpet on the floor ? There was no carpet. 
107. Then you would probably have heard the footsteps of anyone who came in? If they had stood on 
the verandah or outside we should not have heard ; there were a lot walking about at the time. 
103. It was in the adjoining room that you had lunch ? 	; it did not adjoin the polling-booth. 
1.09. How far away was it ; it was under the same roof ? Yes ; there was one room between. 
110. The place where the poll was taken is a building occupied by a storekeeper? Yes. 
111. What is his name? Mr. Dark. 
11.2. Did you see Mr. Dark before you went to lunch? Yes. 
11.3. Did you hear the presiding officer ask Mr. Dark if anyone came to vote while you were at lunch to 
let him know ? I did not hear him say that. 	 114. 
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Mr. J. 	114. But Mr. Dark was about outside while you were in having lunch ? Yes. 
Secombe. 115. And the probability is that, if any persons had come to vote, he would have seen them ? Yes ; 

2s1 probably. ' 116. Are there many houses to be seen from where the poll was taken at this Mr. Dark's ? No. 
117. How far away is the next house ? About 25 or 80 yards. 
118. What house is that? A blacksmith's shop and residence of the blacksmith. 
119. The houses are very scattered there ; it is not a thickly populated neighbourhood ? No. 
120. There is.just a blacksmith's shop and a hotel further on, is there not? The hotel is three-quarters 
of a mile away. 
121. And those are about all the houses you can see from the polling-place ? No; you can see the post 
office. 
122. Is not the post office at Mr. Dark's store ? I believe it is now ; it. is the old post office that I was 
thinking of. 	 • 
123. There are very few houses about there ; the principal voters are residents off the road-farmers and 
so forth ? Yes. 
124. Did you go outside before you went into lunch, or did anyone go outside to see if any person was 
coming along the road? I would not be sure of that. 
125. You did not go to the front of the building before you went to lunch ;-Did you go outside to see 
if anyone was wailing? We had to go along the front of the verandah to get to the place where we 
had lunch. 
126. Was there a great crowd there ; or how many persons were there ? I do not think there were more 
than twenty or thirty. 
127. Were they people waiting to vote or people who had recorded their votes ? A good many lad 
recorded their votes. 
128. And if anyone were waiting to record his vote he naturally would have come in ? Yes ; the 
presiding officer, about 5 minutes before the poll was closed, asked all who wanted to vote to come 
and vote. 
129. He went on to the verandah, I presume, and said, "If any gentleman wishes to record his vote we 
will be glad to take it as we are going to get lunch," or words to that effect ? Yes. 
130. Chairman.] That question was put by the presiding officer? Yes. 
131. He asked whether there were any electors present who wished to record their votes, and if there 
were, to do so, as he was about to take his lunch ? Yes, words to that effect. 
132. Did anyone step forward? Yes ; there were some who voted after that. 
133. And the presiding officer waited and took their votes ? Yes. 
131. And after that you went in and had your lunch ? Yes. 
135. .21fr. Roberts.] Could you see anyone coining down the road from where you were having your lunch? 
Yes ; we could see anybody both ways from the verandah. 
136. Did you see many come down ? No; there was nobody in sight. 
137. In fact, is it not the case, as you have told the Committee, that very few people travel along that 
road ? Yes, very few. 
138. You do not recollect how many votes altogether were recorded at Beechwood ? No, I do not 
recollect. 
130. Chairman.] The 7th allegation made by the petitioner is to this effect, "That during the said 

• a  time," that is, the time the poll was alleged to be closed, "a number of voters came to record their votes 
and were unable to do so ";-do you, as poll-clerk, k FLOW of your own knowledge whether they did so or 
not ? Not of my own knowledge. 
140. You are not in a position to inform the Committee whether during that interval a number of voters 
came to record their votes or not ? No ; I am not in a position to do so. 
141. The next allegation is that the number of ballot-papers counted did not correspond with the number 
of voters marked on the Electoral Rolls by the presiding officer and poll-clerks-at your polling-place 
were there more names marked off than there were votes recorded ? No ; they were exactly the same. 
142. Did you take steps to ascertain whether the number of ballot-papers in the box corresponded with 
the number of names ticked off in the Electoral. List ? Yes ; we checked the names in the Electoral List 
as each voter came in. 
143. But at the conclusion of the poll after you had counted the ballot-papers taken from the ballot-box 
did you then count the number of names ticked on the Electoral List ? Yes. 
144. Did they correspond ? Yes. 
145. That is, the Electoral List and ballot-papers corresponded ? Yes. 
146. One was not greater than the other nor less than the other ? No. 

Mr. John Neville sworn and examined 
j. 	147. Chairman.] Do you remember the last general election for The Hastings and Manning ? Yes. 

Neville. 148. Did you act in any official capacity ? I acted as scrutineer for Mr. Ruthven and Mr. McKinnon at 
the Beechwood polling-booth. 

25 Apri1,1889. 149. It is alleged, among other things, by the petitioner that the polling-booth at Beechwood was closed 
during a portion of the day-that is, between 8 in the forenoon and 4 in the afternoon-and that 
the ballot-box was in the meantime removed to another room. Can you tell the Committee whether such 
was the ease ? That was the case. 
150. At what hour was the polling-booth closed ? From about a quarter past 12 until 20 minutes to 1- 
about 25 minutes. 
151. And what became of the ballot-box during that time ? The presiding officer took it into the room 
where we had lunch. 
152. Who had lunch ? The presiding officer, two scrutineers for Mr. Young and Mr. Roberts, and 
myself. 
153. Did the poll-clerk have lunch too ? Yes. 
151. How long were you at lunch ? About 20 minutes. 	 155. 
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155. How far was the room from the polling-booth ? The main building is 25 feet long with a door in 
the centre. There is what is called a skillion room at the end of it, and this skillion room was the Neville. 
polling-booth. -We came out of the polling-booth and went in through the front door. The front part 254614889 
of the house is occupied as a store, and e went through that into a room at the back. 
156. IS there any communication between the polling-both and the room where you had luncheon ? No, 
excepting by going outside entirely. 
157. There is no communication by door from one room to the other ? No. 
1.58. During the interval of lunch do you know of your own knowledge whether any elector applied to 
record his vote ? I could not see anyone outside. 
159. Did you offer any protest at the poll being closed ? I do not know whether it would be considered 
a protest or not, but I put the question to the presiding officer whether he was sure it was a legal thing 
to do, and he said it lay entirely in his discretion whether he closed the booth or not. He said he could 
close for an hour if he wished. 
160. It was closed for the purpose of getting lunch and for no other purpose as you are aware ? Not as 
far as I am aware. 
161.. When the poll was reopened was there any ext raordinary rush of voters, having in view the number 
of electors about that polling-place ? ; there was one person of the name of Mackay who asked the 
presiding officer if he had done a legal thim-r

' 
 in closing the polling-booth. I could not be certain whether 

he had voted before or not. I think he had. 
162. Can you tell the Committee whether during the interval that the booth was closed a number of voters 
came to record their votes but were unable to do ? No; 1 cannot say. 
103. Were you present at the close of the poll when the ballot-papers were counted? Yes. 
164. Will you tell the Committee whether, upon counting those papers any were found that were 
not initialled ? I do not remember any not being initialled. 
165. Mr. IffeXinnon.] Was the door of the polling-booth closed when you went out to lunch ? Yes, 
closed but not locked ; there was no lock on the door. 
166. -Was the ballot-box removed to the room where you were having luncheon ? Yes. 
167. Did any of you go out between the time you left the polling-booth and went in again ; did you go 
out of the house at all ? Yes ; we went out to the back. 
168. Was the presiding officer out at all ? No ; not at that time that I am aware of.. 
169. Who remained with the presidino

ri 
 officer when you had lunch ; did he remain in the room or go 

out into the verandah ? I think two of us went out to the back, and then we all came round to the 
polling-booth. 
170. Who remained in that room? The poll-clerk and Mr. Lindsay or Somerville. 
171. Are you sure there Wile no one with him all the time? T could not say after I went away whether 
they left him. 
172. You are not sure whether the presiding officer was not left alone with the ballot-box ? He may 
have been for a few minutes. 
173. Was it possible for the ballot-box to be manipulated or stuffed from the time it left the polling-booth 
until the time it came back again ? I do not think so. 	 • 
174. But you are not sure ? I am not sure. 
175. How long was the polling-booth closed ? About 25 minutes. 	 • 
176. Is there not a saw-mill at some distance from the polling-booth ? At Wauchope there is. 
177. Is it not likely that; there would be a number of men in the neighbourhood of Beechwood who 
could only get away to vote during the dinner hour ? I could not say for a positive fact. 	• 
178. But would, you think there would be a number of men in that locality who would rather vote during • 
the dinner hour than at any other time ? It may be a reasonable supposition, but it would be only 
supposition. 
1.79. During the time that you were in at lunch, of course none of you were in a position to know whether 
electors came to vote or not ? No. We could not see the front street from where we were. 
180. The place where you were lunching is at the back and the polling-booth is in the front? Yes. . 
181. Are you aware that I had a majority of the votes polled at Beechwood ? Yes. 
182. Do you know the number of votes polled there ? I cannot recollect now ; I think it was sixty-seven. 
183. Did you draw the attention of the presiding officer to the fact that it was not legal to close the 
polling-booth ? I did not say as a positive fact that it was not, but I pat the question to him, because I 
thought it was not legal. 
184. You drew his attention to the fact, asking him if it was legal to close the polling-booth and to 
remove the ballot-box ? Yes. 
185. What did he say? Ife said it was entirely in his discretion as presiding officer to adjourn for lunch. 
186. Did he say for how longhe could adjourn ? He said he could adjourn for an hour if he wished. 
187. After the polling was over, did you hear any dissatisfaction expressed in the district about the 
polling-booth being closed ? I heard some discussion by electors to the effect that it was an illegal thing 
to do. 
188. Arr. Roberts.] You were scrutineer for Mr. Ruthven and Mr. McKinnon ? Yes. 
189. And as a matter of fact you did not go away at the dinner hour, but you left the polling-booth a 
little after 12 o'clock and returned at about 20 minutes to 1? Yes. 
190. And although you asked the presiding officer whether it was legal for hum to close the booth, you 
did not offer any objection to it ; when he said it was a matter that lay in his discretion you did not object 
as the representative of McKinnon and Mr. Ruthyen? No; because I thought he was master and could 
do as he liked. 
191. It was in a room under the same roof that; you went to lunch ? I can scarcely say that. The room 
\ vas a sloping or skillion room. 
192. Waucape, where the sawmill is supposed to be, is 5 miles away from Beeeliwood, and there is a 
polling-booth there at which the electors in the neighbourhood would probably vote ? Yes. 
193. And there were a good many votes polled there? I believe there were. 
1.94. It is not probable that people would go 4 or 5 nines from Wauchope to vote at Beechwood ? No. 
1.95. There was no rush of voters when the booth was reopened ? No. 
196. Nothing to make you suppose for a moment that a lot of people hall been waiting to record their 
votes ? No. 	 197. 

272-C 
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is 
Mr. 	1.97. Reechwood is not a very populous place ? No. 

J. Neville. 198. It is a small village ? Yes. ,-----..---, 
25 Apr5,1359. 199. You can count the houses easily ? Yes ; but not the houses of the electors. 

200. As you were going from the polling-booth to the lunch room, you would see anyone who might be 
coming to vote, but you did not see anyone coming down the road or you would naturally have drawn the 
attention of the presiding officer to the ffict? Yes. 
201. And as far as you know, no one was prevented from voting? No. 

FRIDAY, 20 APRIL, 1889. 
Vaunt:— 

Mr. Street, 	 Mr. Lee, 
Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Hayes, 	 Mr. Ryrie. 

C. A. Lee, Esq., in the Chair. 

Mr. Hugh McKinnon appeared in support of the petition. Mr. C. T. Roberts, one of the Sitting 
Members, appeared in person, and on behalf of Mr. 5. II. Young, the other Sitting Member. 

Hugh McKinnon recalled and further examined :— 
Mr. 11- 	202. Chairman.] The 10th allegation in your petition is in these words, "That some of the ballot-papers 

ale1Clinxini in some of the polling-booths in the said Electoral District after having been removed from the ballot-box 
at the close of the poll for the purpose of being counted had not the initials of the presiding officer on 

26 Apri1,1889. them, as required by section 33 of 44 Vic. No. 13" ;—have you any evidence to support that allegation ? 
I have 110 evidence further than that I was told that some of the ballot-papers had not the initials. That 
is why I included the allegation in the petition. 
203. But have you any reliable testimony in support of that allegation ? None, further than that I was 
told that some of the papers were not initialled. 
201, You do not know it of your own knowledge? No. 
205. Have you any witnesses present who could give testimony upon this point? No. 
200. This being one of the allegations in your petition, have you taken any steps to prooure evidence in 
support of it ? Not any further evidence than might be found upon an examination of the ballot-papers. 
207. You say in the 11th allegation of your petition "That the munber of ballot-papers counted did 
not correspond with the number of voters marked on the Electoral Rolls by the presiding officer and poll-
clerks." Have you any evidence to support that allegation ? None, further than that I was told by a 
Scrutineer at Cundle that they did not correspond. 
20.3. Kr. R. 13. Wilkinson.] Is he here? No, I think not. I did not look upon it as necessary to bring 
any witnesses in. reference to this matter, as I thought it would be dealt with by the Committee upon an 

• examination of the ballot-papers, when it would be seen whether the numbers corresponded. 
209. Chairman.] Your allegation is a very wide one. You may possibly have intended it to refer to one 
or more polling-places ;—do you wish to confine it to particular places, or do you wish to spread it over 
the whole of the Electoral Lists in the district? I wish it to refer to the whole of then. 

• 210. In that case we must ask you to produce some evidence, or some outline of evidence, justifying the 
Committee in entering upon an elaborate search of that character. It is for you to sustain the petition. 
Having made an allegation of this character, it is for you to produce as much evidence as you can in 
support of it ? Yes; but I was under the impression that we should get at the facts on a recount of 
the ballot-papers without my producing any further evidence. 
211: What you are asking for would necessarily lead to the consumption of a large amount of valuable 
lime by this Committee. It would also necessitate the aetention of witnesses and increase the costs. Of 
course if your allegation is not sustained, it would be competent for the Committee to consider whether 
you should not be called upon to bear a portion of the costs. It is competent for you to withdraw any 
allegation in your petition at the present time. Before proceeding further, we should like to know 
whether it is your intention to proceed with the allegation contained in paragraph 11 among others ? 
As I have no desire to waste any of the time of this Committee, and as I entered this allegation as one of 
my points from hearsay, depending upon a recount of the ballot-papers for its proof, I should like to 
WiLlffiraw it, rather than waste any time. 
212. That view of the case must not be taken. The time of the Committee is at the disposal of the 
country. It is for you to decide whether you will proceed with allegation No. 11 or not ? With the 
permission of the Committee I will withdraw the point as to the number of ballot-papers not corresponding 
with the number of voters marked on the rolls. 
21.3. You wish 1:0 withdraw that? Yes. 
214. Allegation No. 12 is as follows : "That at several of the polling-places in the said electorate votes 
were declared informal which were not informal, and which should have been counted in favour of your 
petitioner•and against the said James Henry Young and Charles James Roberts." Have you any evidence 
to offer in support of that allegation ? Yes. I should like to call the Returning Officer in reference 
to that. 

,Tames MInherny recalled and further examined :— 
Mr. 	215. Hr. McKinnon.] In reference to the ballot-papers at Tareeovere not some of them marked informal, 

J. MInherny simply because the stroke was downwards ? I think there was one ; the stroke was through one of the 
r•---";-•—■ initials of the name, and it was declared informal. 

26.A.prd,189. 21.6. Ohainman.] You think there was one? I know there was one. 
217. It might have been taken you think as formal? No, I do not think so. I considered myself that it Was 
informal. There is merely a stroke through the " 5" of .Mr. Roberts' name, and through the "H " of 
Mr. Young's name downwards, 218. 
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218. Mr Hayes.] May•there not have been more than one marked in that way ?. I do not think there 	Mr. 
was more than one. 	 J. WInherny.  
219. That is at Twee, where you presided ? Yes. In another case the mark was through the chrinian 2  c----AC G 	. name of Mr. McKinnon, and that was allowed to Mr. Roberts and Mr. Young. Upon the same paper A pri1,18b9.  
the pencil was put through "John Lowry " in the case of Mr. R.uthven's name. I think there 
were only three informal votes altogether at Taree. In the third ease none of the names were scratched 
out at all. 

Walter Fryer, called in, sworn, and examined :- 
220. Chairman.] You remember the election for the Electoral District of The Hastings and Manning Mr. 
at the last general election ? Yes. 	 W. Fier. 
221. Did you act in an official capacity at that election ? As the presiding officer at Beechwood. 
222. Will you tell the Committee as shortly as possible, how you conducted the proceedings. Among 26 Apri1,1850.  
other allegations contained in the petition before the Committee is the following :-" That the polling-
booth at Becchwood aforesaid was closed for a portion of the time between the hours of 8 o'clock in the 
forenoon and 4 o'clock on the afternoon on the day of polling, and that the ballot-box was in the mean-
time removed to another room." At what time did you open the poll ? At 8 o'clock. 
223. When did you close it? At 4 o'clock. 
224. Did you close it at any time during the day ? For about 20 minutes during lunch time. 
225. At what hour ? At about 12 o'clock. 
226. Previous to closing did you give any intimation to the electors ? Yes. I went on to the verandah 
of the polling-room and asked whether anyone wished to record his vote then, and, if not, whether they 
would kindly wait until we had our lunch. 
227. Was there any response to that from the electors ? No one came. 
228. Did you then lock the door of your polling-place ? No; I did not even close it, it was partly open-
ajar. 
229. Where did you have your luncheon ? In a room in the same premises. 
230. Was it in an adjoining room ? There was a shop between the two rooms. 
231. Was there any immediate communication between the two rooms ? All the doors were open. 
232. Was there direct communication between the polling-booth and the room where you had lunch ? 
We would have to no on to the verandah to get to the polling-booth. 
233. Where was the ballot-box left during lunch ? We took the ballot-box with us. 
234. Did it leave your charge ? No. 
235. Who else was present ? The poll-clerk and the scrutineers. 
236. Did they all lunch with you ? Yes. 
237. Did either of them protest against you closing the booth ? No ; no protest at all. 
238. Where were the unused ballot-papers during this time ? In with the ballot-box. 
239. Did you place the ballot-box within its outer case ? Yes ; and the ballot-papers with it-the unused 
ones. 
240. Did you lock the outer case and keep the key ? Yes. 
241. Consequently no one could have had access to the box during that time ? No one whatever. 
242. When you resumed your duties were there many electors present ? There seemed to be a goodly 
number outside, but no one about the polling-booth. 
243. Did they then come in to vote freely ? Not for about 10 minutes afterwards, I think they did not 
come in very freely. One or two came in very soon after we resumed duties. 
244. Was there any rush of electors immediately before or just after the final elosing'of the poll ? None 
whatever. No particular rush. 
245. About how many electors are in that portion of the electorate ? About eighty, or perhaps a few 
more. 
246. Do some live at a distance from the polling-booth ? I cannot tell the distance. 
247. What is the nearest polling-booth ? Wauchope, about 5 miles away. 
248. Did any elector inform you that he had been unable to vote at that polling-booth in consequence of 
your having closed the poll ? None whatever. 
249: Have you any reason to suppose that any elector lost his vote in consequence ? None whatever. 
250. At your polling-place, when finally counting the papers, wore any ballot-papers found in. your box 
without your initials ? None. 
251. Were any papers declared informal? One. 
252. Was there any question of dispute between you and either of the scrutineers as to the formality of 
any particular ballot-paper ;- -were there any papers voted in such a loose manner that there was a doubt 
as to whether they were formal or informal ? None, in that way. 
253. Was there no eontention between yourself and the scrutineers for the candidates respecting any 
ballot-paper ? Nothing whatever. We were on the most agreeable terms all day. 
254. Were there any ballot-papers at your polling-place counted for James 	 Young and Charles 
James Roberts, which, in your opinion, should have been counted for the petitioner 

Henry
.?  None whatever. 

255. Mr. Hayes.] How many votes were polled at your booth on that day ? I cannot be certain, but I 
think seventy-nine. It was between seventy and eighty-that is for the whole of the candidates. 
256. Mr. B. B. Wilkinson.] If any one wanting to vote came there while you had the place shut up would 
there be anything to prevent him from going to you and demanding to vote ? No ; I told the owner of 
the premises to state to any one who came that I would be out in a few minutes. 
257. Did any one come ? One did, and he subsequently voted. 
258. Was there anything to prevent an elector who intended to vote coming to you whilst you were at 
lunch and demanding a vote ? There was nothing to prevent him. 
259. Did any one do so ? No; one came and asked Mr. Dark, the owner of the premises. 
260. Chairman.] Did he wait and subsequently vote ? Yes. 
261. Mr. _McKinnon.] To what room did you remove the ballot-box ? The luncheon room. 
262. Is not that at the rear of the premises ? It is at the back. 
263. Is it a skillion place? I would not exactly call it a skillion. 
264. Is it under the main roof, or is a skiffion place ? I do not think it is exactly under the main roof. 
It may betermed a skillion. 	 265. 
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265. And the place where. the polling was conducted was at the front of the building? Yes; it is a little 
W. Fryer. room on the corner of the main building. 

266. While you were away at lunch, might not voters have come there and have gone away again without 
26 Apri1,1889. your knowing it? It is not very likely, because we could hear them on the gravel path. 

267. Were there not a great many people walking about outside ? Electors might have come without 
knowing, but I left a man in charge. 
268. He told you of one? Yes. 
269. Did you go out of the house at all during the time you closed the ballot until you came back ? No. 
270. Did Mr. Neville ask you, when you closed for lunch, whether you considered it was legal for you to 
do so ? No. 
271. Did Mr. Mackay or anyone ask you ? Not when closing. 
272. Or at any time before doing so? No. 
273. Or after? After it was all over Mr. Mackay asked me if it was right to do so, and I told him 
thought it was, inasmuch as I had left someone in charge. 
274. What became of the ballot-papers left after the voting was over ? They were enclosed in my bundle, 
which was sent to the returning officer. 
275. Were the numbers used and unused bath counted, and did they coincide with the number issued ? 
They coincided except as to the one I had to tear up, which an elector spoiled. 
276. Did you count the unused ones when sending them away ?1 cannot say ; 1 do not think so. 
277. Then you are not sure whether you did ? I think so, because I opened the two bundles. 
278. How many were issued ? I cannot say exactly 1. think 200. 
279. You did not count them? There were four parcels or packages, with fifty in each package. I did 
not actually count them. 
280. You did not count the unused ones to see that they and the used ones tallied with the number 
issued ? No I did not think it was necessary. 
281. Would any stranger coming to the polling-booth have some difficulty in (incline ,  out where 
you were at the back ;-would he not have to go down the verandah and through the shop F b  He might 
find me as almost as easily at the back as at the polling-booth, because the booth was a very-  inconvenient 
place. 
282. Was there not a shop between ? Yes. 
283. Mr. Roberts.] Are you a Magistrate of the Colony ? Yes. 
281. Did you act as presiding officer at elections befora this ? Yes ; on two previous occasions. 
285: When you decided to take lunch, did anyone of the scrutineers offer any opposition ? None what-
ever ; they were all agreeable to go ; in fact, the scrutineer for Mr. McKinnon wanted to go home to his 
own place, but i and the other scrutineer, Mr. Lindsay, prevented him from doing 80. 
286. The door of the booth was not really locked, but was merely closed? Yes. 
287. Before you went into lunch did you ask if anyone wanted to vote ? Yes. 
288. How many were outside then ? Twenty or thirty. 
289. Had they all voted ? I cannot say. 
290. How many of them ? A good many had voted, but most of the people voted after lunch ; in fact, 
during the morning we waited sometimes 20 minntes and 110 one came in. 
291. No one stepped forward and said he wished to vote when you said you wished to go to lunch ? Yes. 
292. You did not see any people coining down the road likely to vote or you would have waited ? Had I 
known anyone wished to vote I would have gone out. 
293. Could you see some distance from the building? Yes, both ways ;  and I would have waited if I had 
seen anyone coming. 
294. In addition to taking the precaution to ask the crowd if anyone wished to record his vote before 
lunch, you asked Mr. Dark, who keeps the post office, to been the watch ? Yes; he owns the premises. 
295. You told him to keep a strict lookout while you were taking lunch, and to let you know if anyone 
came, or to tell anyone to wait until you had finished lunch ? Yes. 
296. Did Mr. Dark say he would do so ? Yes. 
297. Is the room where you took lunch really under the same roof as the polling-booth ? Yes. 
298. Is it a. weatherboard building ? Yes; either weatherboard or planks. • 
299. You simply walked from one end of the verandah to the other to take lunch ? Not to the end of 
the verandah. We walked along it partly and went through the store. 
300. The probability is that even where you were sitting at lunch you would have heard the footsteps of 
any people anxious to vote walking on tie verandah ? Yes. 
301. You did not hear any footsteps and everything was very quiet ? Yes. 
302. Is Beechwood a• thickly populated place ? No, it is scattered. 
303. How many houses can you see from the verandah of the polling-booth? About a dozen, at different 
distances. 
304. How far away are they ? Two or three are very close and the others are about a mile away. 
305. After the election was over on that afternoon, or at any other time, did you hear of any voters being 
unable to record their votes through your fiction in taking lunch ? Only the one. He told me after-
wards ; that was John G. Miller ; he voted afterwards. 
306. Did he arrive while you were taking lunch and wait and then vote ? He told me that it was 10 
minutes from the time he came to the time he recorded his vote. 	• 
307. Hr. Street.] Did he make any complaint about you not being in your place? No. 
308. .711r. Roberts.] Was that the only mention of the matter that reached your ears ? Yes. 
309. A& McKinnon.] Do you know Alexander Stephenson ? Yes. 
310. Is it a fact that he came there while the polling-booth was closed and was unable to vote ? Not; 
that I heard of. I did not hear that he was unable to record his vote. I know he recorded his vote. 
311. At Beechwood ? Yes. 
31.2. .71th. Street.] Before or after your lunch ? After lunch. 

Sydney : Mule@ Potter, Government Priut.r.-1899. 
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1889. 
-- 

EXTRACTS FROM THE VOTES AND PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

ELECTION PETITION-ROSE v. BALL-ARGYLE. 

VOTES No. 3. FRIDAY, 1 MARCH, 1889. 
3. COMMITTEE OP ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Mr. Speaker, pursuant to the requirements of the 

Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the Table his Warrant appointing the Committee of Elections and 
Qualifications for the present Session, of which the following is a copy :— 
" By the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

"of New South Wales. 
" Pursuant to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint— 

Joseph Hector Carruthers, Esquire, 	" Charles Alfred Lee, Esquire, 
" Robert George Dundas Fitzgerald, 	 Alexander Eyrie, Esquire, 

"Esquire, 	 " Bruce Smith, Esquire, and 
" James Hayes, Esquire, 	 " Robert Bliss Wilkinson, Esquire, 

" being Members of the said Assembly, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and 
" Qualifications in the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid. 

" Given under my hand, at the Legislative Assembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
" this first day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
" eighty-nine. 

VOTES No. 2. THURSDAY, 28 FEBRUARY, 1889. • 
O. ELECTION PETITION (Argyle) :—Mr. Dibbs, by command, laid upon the Table an Election Petition, 

which had been addressed to His Excellency the Governor, from Thomas Rose, alleging that, in the 
late Election for the Electoral District of Argyle, When William Hillier Holborow and Edward 
Joseph Ball were returned, many mistakes were made in counting the ballot-papers ; that many 
of such papers were declared informal which should have been counted in favour of the Petitioner 
and Solomon Meyer ; and that other irregularities took place ; praying that the Petition inay be 
dealt with according to law ; that the return of the said Edward Joseph Ball may be declared null 
and void, for the reasons stated in the Petition ; and that the Petitioner be declared duly elected 
for the said Electoral District. 
Ordered to lie on the Table. 

VOTES No. 7. FRIDAY, 8 Blinetr, 1889. 
1. * 	* 	0 	* 	* 	* 	* 	 * 

COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 
(I.) Maturity of Warrant reported :—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant appointing the 

Committee of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, laid upon the Table on Friday, 
1st March, 1889, not having been disapproved by the Assembly in the course of the three next 
sitting-days on which the Assembly met for the despatch of business, had now taken effect as an 
appointment of such Committee ; and intimated that it was therefore open to Members of the 
Committee to be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with the 59th section of the 
Electoral Act of 1880. 

(2.) Members Sworn :—Charles Alfred Lee, Esquire, and Alexander Eyrie, Esquire, came to the 
Table, and were sworn by the Clerk as Members of the Committee. 

2. ELECTION PETITIONS :—Mr. Dibbs moved, That the following Election Petitions be referred to the 
Committee of Elections and Qualifications :— 
(1.) From Thomas Rose, complaining of the Election and Return of Edward Joseph Ball, a 
Member for the Electoral District of Argyle, laid upon the Table of this House on 28th February last. . • ••••• , * 	* 	*5* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	*  

	

Question put and passed. 	 9. 

"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
" Speaker." 
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• 9. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— .111r. Speaker, pursuant IO the requirements of the 
Electoral Ant of 1880, laid upon the Table his Warrant appointing Frank James Smith, Esquire, 
and John Rendell Street, Esquire, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications 
for the present Session, of which the following is a copy :— 
" By the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

of Hew South Wales. 
" Pursuant to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint- 

" Frank James Smith, Esquire, and • 
" John Rendell Street, Esquire, 

" being Members of the said Assembly, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifi- 
cations in the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid, in the 

" room of Joseph Hector Carruthers, Esquire, and Bruce Smith, Esquire, whose Seats in the said 
" Assembly were this day declared vacant, by reason of their acceptance of the offices of Minister 
" of Public Instruction and Secretary for Public Works respectively. 

" Given -under my hand, at the Legislative Assembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
" this eighth day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
" eighty-nine. 

" JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
" Speaker." 

VOTES No. 11. TUESDAY, 9 APRIL, 1889. 
2. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 

(1.) Maturity of Warrant reported :—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant, laid upon the Table 
on the 8th March last, appointing Frank James Smith, Esquire, and John Reudell Street, Esquire, 
to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, not 
having been disapproved by the Assembly in the course of the three next sitting-days on which the 
-Assembly met for the despatch of business, had now taken effect ; and intimated that it was there-
fore open to Mr. Smith and Mr. Street to be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with 
the 59th section of the Electoral Act of 1880. 

(2.) Members of Committee Sworn i—James Hayes, Esquire, Frank James Smith, Esquire, and 
John Pendell Street, Esquire, came to the Table and were sworn by the Clerk as Members of the 
Committee. 

VOTES.  No. 12. WEDNESDAY, 10 ARRIL, 1889, 
12. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Robert Bliss Wilkinson, Esquire, came ID the 

Table, and was sworn by the Clerk as a Member of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications. 
16. COMNEUTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS : —PLITS110211: to the requirement of the 59th section 

of th4 Electoral Act of 1880, Mr. Speaker appointed the first meeting of the Committee of 
Elections and Qualifications to take place at eleven o'clock am., to-morrow, the 11th instant, in 
Committee Room No. 3. 

VOTES No. 18. TUDSDAY, 30 APREL, 1889. 
COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 
(1.) Mr. Speaker informed the House that he had ,received a letter from Robert George Duudas 

Fitzgerald, Esquire, resignina
b 
 his appointment 11.8 a Member of the Committee of Elections and 

Qualifications, which letter he read to the House, as follows :— 
" J. H. Young, Esquire, M.P., Speaker, Legislative Assembly,— 

" Dear Sir, 	 " Camp, National Park, 26 April, 1889. 
" I much regret that I have been unable to take the Oath as a Member of Elections 

" and Qualifications Committee ; and-as I cannot do so during the ensuing week, I reluctantly 
"tender you my resignation as a Member of that Committee, with a view to saving inconvenience, 
" as pointed out by Mr. Lee. 

" Yours truly, 
"ROUT. GEO. D. FITZGERALD." 

(2.) Mr. Speaker then, pursuant to the requirement of the Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the 
Table his Warrant appointing Joseph Palmer AbbottiEsquire, to be a Member of the Committee 
of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, of which the following is a copy :— 
" 13y the Honorable the Speaker of/he Legislative Assembly 

" of New South Wales. 
" PURSUANT to the power in that behalf vested in ins, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint- 

" Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, 
" being a Member of the said Assembly, to be a Member of the Committee of Elections and 
" Qualifications in the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid, 
" in the room of Robert George Dundas Fitzgerald, Esquire, resigned. 

"Given under my hand, at the Legislative Assembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
" this thirtieth day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
" eighty-nine. 

".TAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
" Speaker." 

Voms 
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VOTES NO. 22. WEDNESDAY, 8 May, 1889. 
1. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 

* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	.k 	 4: 
(I.) Maturity of Warrant reported :—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant, laid upon the Table 

on the 30th April last, appointing Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, to be a Member of the Committee 
of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, not having been disapproved by the 
Assembly in the course of the three next sitting-days on which the Assembly met for the despatch 
of business, had now taken effect ; and intimated that it was therefore open to Mr. Abbott to 
be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with the 59th section of the Electoral Act 
of 1880. 

(2.) Member Sworn :—Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, came to• the Table, and was sworn by the 
Clerk as a Member of the Committee. 

VOTES No. 30. THURSDAY, 23 MAY, 3.889. 
2. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS arai QUALLFICATIONS :— 

(1.) Election Petition—Rose v. Ball, Argyle :—Mr. Lee, as Chairman, brought up the Report from, 
and laid upon the Table the Minutes of Proceedings of, and Evidence taken before, the Committee 
of Elections and Qualifications, to whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, the Petition of Thomas 
Rose against the return of Edward Joseph Ball as a Member for the Electoral District of Argyle. 
_Andthe said Report was read at length by the Clerk, by direction of Mr. Speaker, as follows :— 

"The Committee of Elections and Qualifications, duly appointed on 1st March, 1889, to 
"whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, a Petition from Thomas Rose, alleging that in the late 
"Election for the Electoral District of Argyle, when William Hillier Iffolborow and Edward Joseph 
"Ball were returned, many mistakes were made in counting the ballot-papers •' that many of such 
"papers were declared informal which should have been counted in favour of the Petitioner and 
"Solomon Moytr ; and that other irregularities took place ; praying that the Petition may be dealt 
"with according to law ; that the return of the said Edward Joseph Ball may be declared null and 
"void, for the reasons stated in the Petition ; and that the Petitioner be declared duly elected 
"for the said Electoral District,—have determined, and do hereby declare,— 

" (1.) That Edward Joseph Ball, Esquire, one of the sitting Members, has been duly elected. 
"(2.) That the Petition of Thomas Rose is not frivolous nor vexatious. 
"(3.) That the Committee make no award as to costs. 

"CHARLES A. LEE, 
"No. 3 Committee Room, 	 " Chairman." 

"Legislative Assembly, 23rd May, 1339." 
Ordered, on motion of Mr. Lee, that the Report and Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence be 
printed. 

(2.) Adjournment of tlw Committee 1—Mr. Lee moved, That the Committee of Elections and 
Qualifications have leave to adjourn sine die, the matters referred to them having been disposed of. 
Question put and passed. 
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1889. • 

EEOISLATi V 	J ASSEMMLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

ELECTION PETITION—ROSE v. BALL—ARGYLE. 

REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE 

Op. 

ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS. 

THE COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS, duly appointed on 1st 
March, 1889, to whom was referred, on 8th March, 1889, a Petition from 
Thomas Rose, alleging that, in the late Election for the Electoral District 
of Argyle, when William Hillier llolborow and Edward Joseph Ball were 
returned, many mistakes were made in counting the ballot-papers ; that many 
of such papers were declared informal which should have been counted in 
favour of the Petitioner and Solomon Meyer ; and that other irregularities 
took place ; praying that the Petition may be dealt with according to law ; 
that the return of the said Edward Joseph Ball may be declared null and void, 
for the reasons stated in the Petition ; and that the Petitioner be declared duly 
elected for the said Electoral District,--have determined and do hereby 
declare :— 

1. That Edward Joseph Ball, Esquire, one of the Sitting Members, has 
been duly elected. 

2. That the Petition of Thomas Rose is not frivolous nor vexatious. 
3. That the Committee make no award as to costs. 

CHARLES A. LEE, 
No. 3 Committee Boom, 	 Chairman. 

Legislative Assembly, 
23rd 3fay, 1889. 
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MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND 
QUALIFICATIONS. 

in the matter of the Election Petition., which had been addressed to His Excellency the Governor, from 
Thomas Rose, alleging that, in the late Election for the Electoral District qf Argyle, when William 
Hillier Holborow and Edward Joseph Ball were returned, many mistakes were made in counting the 
ballot-papers ; that many of such papers were declared informal which should have been counted in 
favour of the Petitioner and Solomon Alger; and that other irregularities took place ; praying that 
the Petition may be dealt with according to law ; that the return of the said Edward Joseph. Ball may 
be declared null and void for the reasons stated in the Petition ; and that the Petitioner be declared 
duly elected for the said Electoral District. 

THURSDAY, 23 MAY, 1859. 

MEMBERS PRESENT :— 

Mr. Lee, in the Chair, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 	 Mr. Street, 
Mr. Hayes, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 

Mr. 13. B. Wilkinson. 
In attendance,— 

The Second Clerk Assistant. 
1. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the Extract from the Votes and Proceedings, by which 

the Petition of Thomas Rose, was referred to the Committee. [Vide Extract, page 3.] 
2. The Clerk then, by direction of the Chairman, read the Petition of Thomas Rose, to which the Bank 

deposit-receipt was attached, as follows :— 
To His Excellency the Right Honorable CHARLES ROBERT, Rims: CARRINGTON, Member of Her Majesty's 

Most Honorable Privy Council, Knight Grand Cross of the Most Distinguished Order of St. Michael and 
St. George, Governor and Commander-in-Chief of the Colony of New South Wales and its Dependencies. 

The humble Petition of Thomas Rose, of Elsie-street, Burwood, near Sydney, in the Colony of New South 
Wales, Journalist, — 

SHOWETII :— 
1. That at the last General Election of Members to serve in the Legislative Assembly, in the said Colony, 

William Hillier Holborow, Edward Joseph Ball, Solomon Meyer, and your Petitioner were severally candidates 
to be elected. as Members of the said Assembly for the Electoral District of Argyle. • 

2, That at the Nomination for the said Election, each of them, the said William Hillier Holborow, 
Edward Joseph Ball, Solomon Meyer, and your Petitioner, were duly nominated and proposed as such Members, 
and the Returning Officer then called for a show of hands separately in favour of each candidate, and upon the 
same taking place declared the show of hands to be in favour of your Petitioner and the said Solomon Meyer, 
whereupon a Poll was demanded on behalf of the said William Hillier Holborow and Edward Joseph Ball, which 
was afterwards taken. 

3. That before and at the time of the said Nomination, and from thence, your Petitioner was and is a 
person duly qualified by law to be elected a Member of the said Legislative Assembly. 

4. That the Returning Officer on the day of the declaration of the Poll for the said Electoral District 
declared the number of votes polled for the respective candidates to be as follows :— 

For the said William Hillier Holborow—Nine hundred and eighty-two votes. 
For the said Edward Joseph Ball—Nine hundred and fifty Votes. 
For your Petitioner—Nine hundred and forty-one votes. 
And for the said Solomon Meyer—Nine hundred and twelve votes. 

And thereupon declared the said William Hillier Holborow and Edward Joseph Ball to be duly elected as 
Members of the said Assembly for the said Electoral District; and the said Returning Officer afterwards endorsed 
on the writ for the said election the names of the said William Hillier Holborow and Edward Joseph Ball as the 
persons so elected, and returned the said writ. 

5. That the Returning Officer for the said Electorate of Argyle declared publicly that the candidate 
Solomon Meyer had polled eight hundred and twelve votes, when in truth he had polled nine hundred and twelve 
votes, and your Petitioner has heard and verily believes that many mistakes were made in counting the ballot-
papers. 

G. That your Petitioner has heard and verily believes that many of the polling-papers were declared in-
formal which were not informal, and that such votes should have been counted in favour of your Petitioner and 
the said Solomon Meyer, thereby giving as your Petitioner verily believes a majority of votes in favour of your 
Petitioner. 

7. That your Petitioner has also heard and verily believes that many of the said polling-papers were not 
initialled by the Deputy Returning Officers, according to the provisions of the Electoral Act, and were therefore 
informal. 

8. Your Petitioner, pursuant to the Electoral Act of 1880, has caused the sum of one hundred pounds to 
be paid into the Commercial Bank of Australia (Limited), Pitt-street, Sydney, to the credit of the Speaker of 
the Legislative Assembly, in relation to this Petition, and the Bank deposit receipt for such payment is hereto 
annexed. 

Your 
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Your Petitioner, therefore, humbly prays that this Petition may be dealt with according to law, and that 
the return of the said Edward Joseph Ball, as a Member of the said Legislative Assembly for the said Electoral 
District of Argyle, may be declared null and void for the reasons aforesaid ; that a scrutiny of all ballot-papers 
should be made by the Committee of Elections and Qualifications; that for the reasons aforesaid may be declared 
that the said Edward Joseph Ball was not lawfully elected, and is not such Member of the said Legislative 
Assembly for the said Electoral District ; that it may be declared and determined that your Petitioner is duly 
elected at the said election to serve and, be a Member of the said Legislative Assembly for the said Electoral 
District of Argyle, and is entitled to take his scat accordingly in the Legislative Assembly. 

And your Petitioner will ever pray, &c. 

Dated at Sidney, the twenty-seventh day of February, LB. 1389. 

Sydney, 27 February, 1889. 
PAID to the credit of the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly, in relation to• the Petition of Thos. Rose, with 
the Commercial Bank of Australia (Limited), Sydney, the sum of one hundred pounds, by 

'PHOBIAS Ros E. 
3. WATERHOUSE. 

£100. 	 Teller. 
3. The Clerk submitted a letter from the Honorable the Speaker, enclosing a certified copy of a letter he 

bad received from Edward Joseph Ball, Esquire, giving notice of his intention to defend his Seat, 
which he read as follows :— 

"Legislative Assembly Chamber, 
" Sydney, 10 April, 1889. 

"To the Committee of Elections and Qualifications,— 
" Gentlemen, 

"I have the honor to transmit to you herewith a copy of a letter which has been 
"received by me from Edward Joseph Ball, Esquire, one of the Sitting Members for Argyle, 
"giving notice of his intention to defend his return, against which a Petition is now under 
" 

 
your consideration. "I have, &c., 

"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
"Speaker." 

[Enclosure.] 
Sir, 	 Goulburo, 26 March, 1889. 

Referring to the Petition of Thomas Rose, which was referred to the Elections and Qualifications 
Committee on the 8th March instant, I have the honor ,.to request that I may be admitted as a party to the 
reference, and be allowed to defend my seat before the Committee. 

I have, &c., 

	

The Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly. 	 E. 3. BALL. 
A true copy.—JAmks HENRY YOUNG, Speaker. 

4. Parties called in. 
Present :—Thomas Rose, Esquire (the Petitioner). 

Thomas Williamson, Esquire (Solicitor for the Petitioner.) 
Edward Joseph Ball, Esquire (the Sitting Member). 

5. Frederick William Webb, Esq., Clerk of the Legislative Assembly, called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness produced the Writ of Election certifying to return of William Hillier Holborow and 

Edward Joseph Ball, as Members for Argyle. 
Witness also produced the parcel of ballot-papers, as received from the Returning Officer for Argyle. 
Witness withdrew. 

0. Thomas Rose, Esquire, the Petitioner, sworn and examined. 
7. Thomas Naughton called in, sworn, 'and examined. 
S. Room cleared. 
9. Committee proceeded to the scrutiny of the ballot-papers. 

10. The Chairman reported the result of the scrutiny, which was confirmed by the Committee as follows:— 
William Hillier Holborow 	 978 
Edward Joseph Ball ... 	 ... 	946 
Thomas Rose ... 	 ... 	942 
Soloman Meyer ... 	 ... 	911 

11. In re Bowers and another v. the Sitting Members, South Sydney :— 
The Chairman submitted letter from Samuel T. Whiddon, Returning Officer for South Sydney, which 

was read by the Clerk by direction of the Chairman, as follows :— 
Sir, 	 Electoral District, South Sydney, Sydney, April, 1889. 

I have the honor to request that you will please cause to be paid into the Commercial Bank of Sydney to my' 
public account the sum of £9 9s. to enable me to pay the expenses of Returning Officer and Presiding Officers who attended 
at the Legislative Assembly Chambers by summons from the Honorable the Speaker to give evidence in the Petition against 
the elected Members for South Sydney, who were elected on the 2nd day of February, 1389. 

Samuel Thomas Whiddon, Esquire, Returning Officer ; 
William Solomons, Esquire, Presiding Officer ; 
Francis Northey Aldritt, Esquire, 

	

William Henry Whiddon, Esquire, 	„ 
Alfred Campbell ..Begbie, Esquire, 
Thomas Ridley, Esquire,. 
Charles Heden, Esquire, 

I have, &c., 
SAMUEL T. WHIDDON, 

The Honorable the Colonial Secrettiry, Sydney. 	 Returning Officer. 

Acct., 11/5/89.—This is a matter which should be dealt with by the Committee of Elections and Qualifications. 
Shall this letter be referred to the Clerk of the Assembly 2-3.0.

' 
 7/5/89. 	Refer, 17/5/89. 	The Clerk of the 

Legislative Assembly.—C.W., P.U.S., B.C., 17th May, 1889. 	Mr. Robertson,—Please submit to the Committee of 
Election's and Qualifications.—F. W. WEBB, 21/5/89. 

Resolved,— 
That this Committee, having reported and finally settled the matter of this Petition without making 

any award as to costs, the question of witnesses' expenses cannot now be entertained. 
293—B 	 12. 

THOMAS ROSE. 
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12. The Committee deliberated as to Report. 
Mr. Hayes moved,— 

That the following be the Report of the Committee :— 
"1. That Edward Joseph Ball, Esquire, one of the Sitting Members, has been duly elected. • 
" 2. That the Petition of Thomas Rose is not frivolous nor vexatious. 
"3. That the Committee make no award as to costs." 

Question put and agreed to. 
13. That the Chairman report to the HOUK accordingly, and move for leave to adjourn sine die. 

R. W. ROBERTSON, 
Second Clerk Anistant, 

LIST OF WITNESSES. 
PAGE. 

Naughton, John 	  11 
Bose, Thomas 	  11 
Webb, Frederick William 	  ii 
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COMMITTEE 
OF 

ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS. 

ELECTION PETITION-ROSE v. BALL-ARGYLE. 

THDIRSDA.I.', 23 MAT, 1889. 

T3 resent: — 
Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Street, 	 Mr. R. B. Wilkinson. 

C. A. Lee, Esq., in the Chair. 
— 

Mr. Williamson, solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Petitioner. 

Frederick WilHam 'Webb, Esq., Clerk of the Legislative Assembly, called in, sworn, and examined :— 
1. Chairman.] Do you produce the writ for the Electoral District; of Argyle issued to the Returning F. W. Webb, 
Officer at the last general election ? I produce the writ issued by His Excellency the Governor, on 19th 	Esq. 
January, 1889, for the election of two Members to serve for the Electoral District of Argyle, upon which 
the Returning Officer has certified the return of William Hillier Holbormv, Esq., and Edward J. Ball, 23  MaY,1282 . 
Esq., as such Members. 
2. Do you produce the ballot-papers ? Yes ; I produce a bundle containing the balloting-papers, certified 
under the hand of the Returning Officer as having been used at the election referred to in the writ. 

Mr. Thomas Rose sworn and examined :— 
3. Chairman.] Do you remember the occasion of the last general election for the Electorate of Argyle? 	Mr. 
Yes. 	 Thomas Rose. 
4. Were you a candidate for Parliamentary honours on that occasion ? -Yes. 
5. Subsequently did you lodge a Petition against the return of Mr. E. J. Ball, one of the sitting 23 May. 3889. 
111 embers ? Yes. 
fi. Is this the Petition with your signature thereto ? Yes. 
. Mr. Williamson.] At the time you were a candidate for Argyle had you the necessary qualification ? 

Yes ; the qualification required by the Electoral Act. 
S. Are the allegations contained in the Petition based upon statements made by person some of whom are 
here to-day ? Yes. 
9. Do you remember Saturday, the day of election? Yes ; the 2nd February. 
10. Was that the polling-day? Yes. 
H. Were you present on that day when the Returning Officer declared the number of votes polled? No. 
12. Were you present on the following Monday when the Returning Officer made a statement at the 
hustings? Yes. He stated that he could not officially declare that Mr. Holborow and Mr. Ball were 
elected, but it was an understood thing that they were elected and they returned thanks to the electors. 
The Marulan ballot-papers had not come to hand on that day. The Returning Officer also told me that 
he had to send out to 13inda for the statement signed by the Returning Officer. 
13. Is that the statement required to be signed by the Returning Officer and scrutineers, showing the 
number of votes recorded for each candidate? Yes. The Returning Officer told me it was signed, but! 
understand it was not signed in the presence of the scrutineers. It was sent across the next day. 
14. Did the Returning  Officer make any statement with 	to the numbers ? Yes. There was a 
difference of nearly 1c90 in the numbers. Mr. Meyer was 

regard 
	to have 912 votes, whereas on the 

previous day it was declared that lie had 800 or 812. 
15. Chai•man.] Were you present at the official declaration of the poll ? No ; that was 011 the Ohm. 
16. 311:. Ball.] You say that at what you term the declaration of ithe poll on the Monday the Returning 
Officer declared a certain statement as to the numbers ? Yes, the Returning Officer made a statement of 
the numbers. 
17. Did he make any declaration ? I 	not said that be did. 
18. You admit that he did not make the official declaration on that Monday? I stated previouff that 
the Returning Officer did not make the official declaration on that day. 

Mr. i ohn Naughton called in, sworn, and examined:— 
19. Chairman.] Where do you reside ? Near Lag,gan, in the electorate of Argyle. 	 my. John 
20. Do you remember the polling-day et the last general election for Argyle ? Yes. 	 Naughton. 
21. Did you act in any 	

May, 1889. official capacity ? I acted as scrutineer for Mr. Rose and Mr. Meyer at a polling- r` 
23 place called I/aggro). 

22. Mr. Williamson.] Where is Laggan ? About 30 miles from Goulburn. 
23. Is it near Binda ? 11 is the next polling-place ; it is about 12 miles from Binda. 
24. How far is it from Crookwell? Six miles. There was a polling-place at Crookwell. 
25. Who was the presiding officer ? Mr. William Henderson. 

Sydney : Charles Potter Government Printer.-18:9. 
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1889. 

EXTRACTS FROM THE VOTES AND PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

ELECTION PETITION—ANDERSON v. SCHEY—REDFERN. 

VOTES No. 3. FRIDAY, 1 MARCH, 1889. 
3. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Mr. Speaker, pursuant to the requirements of the 

Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the Table his Warrant appointing the Committee of Elections and 
Qualifications for the present Session, of which the following is a copy :— 
" By the honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

" of Hew South Wales. 
" Pursuant to the power in that behalf vested in me; as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint- 

" Joseph Hector Carruthers Esquire 	" Charles Alfred tee Esquire, 
" Robert George Dundas Fitzgerald, 	" Alexander Eyrie, Esquire, 

"Esquire, 	 " Bruce Smith, Esquire, and 
" James Hayes, Esquire, 	 " Robert Bliss.Wilkinson, Esquire, 

" being Members of the said Assembly, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and 
" Qualifications in the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid. 

" Given under my hand, at the Legislative -A ssembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
"this first day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
" eighty-nine. 

VOTES No. 7. FRIDAY, 8 Mallen, 1889. 
* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 	* 

1. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 
(1.) Maturity of Warrant reported :—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant appointing the 

Committee of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, laid upon the Table on Friday, 
1st March, 1889, not baying been disapproved by the Assembly in the course of the three next 
sitting-days On which the Assembly met for the despatch of business, had now taken effect as an 
appointment of such Committee; and intimated that it was therefore open to Manbers of the 
Committee to be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with the 59th section of the 
Electoral Act of 1880. 

(2.) ilienzbers Sworn .—Charles Alfred Lee, Esquire, and Alexander Ryrie, Esquire, came to the 
Table, and were sworn by the Clerk as Members of the Committee. 

9. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Mr. Speaker, pursuant to the requirements of the 
Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the Table his Warrant appointing Frank James Smith, Esquire, 
and John Rendell Street, Esquire, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications 
for the present Session, of which the following is a copy :— 
" By the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

of New South Wales. 
" Pursuant to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker d the Legislative A ssembly of 
" New South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint- 

" Frank James Smith, Esquire, and 
" ;1-0hn Rendell Street, Esquire, 

" being Members of the said Assembly, to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifi-
" cations in the said Act referred to, during the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid, in the 
" room of Joseph Hector Carruthers, Esquire, and Bruce Smith, Esquire, whose Seats in the said 
" Assembly were this day declared vacant, by reason of their acceptance of the offices of Minister 
" of Public Instruction and Secretary for Public Works respectively. 

" Given under my hand, at the Legislative Assembly Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
" this eighth day of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
" 

 
eighty-nine. 

"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
" Speaker." 

VOTES 

"JAMES HENRI YOUNG, 
" Speaker." 



VOTES No, 18. TUESDAY, 30 APRIL, 1889. 

4. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 

(1.) Mr. Speaker informed the House that he had received a letter from Robert George Dundas 
Fitzgerald, Esquire, resigning his appointment as a Member of the Committee of Elections and 
Qualifications, which letter he read to the House, as follows :— 

J. II. Young, Esquire, M.P., Speaker, Legislative Assembly,— 

" Dear Sir, 	 " Camp, National Park, 29 April, 1889. 
" I much regret that I have been unable to take the Oath as a Member of Elections 

" and Qualifications Committee ; and as I cannot do so during the ensuing week, I reluctantly 
" tender you my resignation as a Member of that Committee, with a view to saving inconvenience,. 
" as pointed out by Mr. Lee. 

" Yours truly, 
" ROBT. GEO. D. FITZGERALD." 

(2.) Mr. Speaker then, pursuant to the requirement of the Electoral Act of 1880, laid upon the 
Table his Warrant appointing Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, to be a Member of the Committee 
of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, of which the following is a copy 1— 

By the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 
"of New South Wales. 

" PURSUANT to the power in that behalf vested in me, as Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
" Now South Wales, by the Electoral Act of 1880, I do hereby appoint- 

" Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, 
" being a Member of the said Assembly, to be a Member of the Committee of Elections and 
" Qualifications in the said Act referred to, (luring the present Session of the Assembly aforesaid, 
" in the room of Robert George Dundas Fitzgerald, Esquire, resigned. 

" Given under my hand, at the Legislative Assembly 'Chamber, Macquarie-street, Sydney, 
" this thirtieth day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred arid 
" eighty-nine. 

"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 
" Speaker." 
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VOTES No. 11. TUESDAY, 9 APRIL, 1889. 

2. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 

(1.) Maturity of Warrant reported :—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant, laid upon the Table 
On the 8th March last, appointing Frank James Smith, Esquire, and John Ronde11 Street, Esquire, 
to be Members of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, not 
having been disapproved by the Assembly in the course of the three next sitting-days onwhich the 
Assembly met for the despatch of business, hail now taken effect ; and intimated that it was there-
fore open to Mr. Smith and Mr. Street to be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with 
the 59th section of the Electoral Act of 1880. 

(2.) Members of Committee Sworn :—Jaules Haves, Esquire, Frank James Smith, Esquire, and 
John Rendell Street, Esquire, came to the Table and were sworn by the Clerk as Members of the 
Committee. 

VOTES No. 12. WEDNESDAY, 10 APRIL, 1889. 

12. COMMITT.EE  OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :—Robert Bliss Wilkinson, Esquire, came to the 
Table, and was sworn by the Clerk as a Member of the Committee of Elections and Qualifications. 

16. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATION'S i—Pursuant to the requirement of the 59th section 
of the Electoral Act of 1880, Mr. Speaker appointed the first meeting of the Committee of 
Elections and Qualifications to take place at eleven o'clock a.m., to-morrow, the 11th instant, in 
Committee Room No. 2. 

Yams No. 22. WEDNESDA.Y, S MAY, 1889. 

1. COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :— 

* 
( I.) Maturity of Warrant reported :—Mr. Speaker reported that his Warrant, laid upon the Table 

on the 30th April last, appointing Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, to be a Member of the Committee 
of Elections and Qualifications for the present Session, not having been disapproved by the 
Assembly in the course of the three next sitting-days on which the Assembly met for the despatch 
of business, had now taken effect; and intimated that it was therefore open to Mr. Abbott to 
be sworn at the Table by the Clerk, in accordance with the 59th section of the Electoral Act 
of 1880. 

(2.) Member Sworn :—Joseph Palmer Abbott, Esquire, came to the Table, and was sworn by the 
Clerk as a Member of the Committee. 

VOTES 
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VOTES No. 58. Ennui, 12 JULY, 1889. 
5. ELECTION PETITION (Redfern) :—Mr. Speaker laid upon the Table an Election Petition, which had 

been addressed to him from George Anderson, of Waterloo, wool-washer and merchant, a person 
claiming to have bad a right to be returned as a Member of the Legislatiee Assembly for the 
Electoral District of Redfern, and a candidate for such election, alleging that, in pursuance of 
the Writ, dated 28th June, 1889, a meeting of the Electors of Redfern was held, at which William 
F. Schey and Petitioner were duly nominated as candidates ; that at such nomination a ballot was 
demanded by Petitioner, which duly took place on Monday, 8th July ; that the said Writ has been 
returned, endorsed with the return of the said William F. Schey to serve as a Member for the said 
Electoral District ; that Petitioner is advised and believes that the said William F. Schey is 
unduly elected, and that Petitioner should be declared elected, or a new election ordered, on 
the grounds :— (a) That the provisions of the Electoral Act were disregarded at the Polling-booth, 
New Masonic Hall, Sydney, in respect of several officials assisting in taking the poll there, who 
were appointed whilst the polling was actually going on, which resulted in Petitioner being 
deprived of certain of his just rights under the said Act ; (b) That ballot-papers were improperly 
introduced into the ballot-box during the course of the polling, and that, in instances, voters received 
or acquired more than one ballot-paper, and deposited them in the ballot-box ; (c) That votes were 
recorded by voters twice over ; (d) That certain votes recorded were not the votes of the persons 
entitled to record the same ; (e) That certain votes were rejected as informal which should count 
as votes to Petitioner ; (f) That undue influence was used by certain of the Presiding Officers 
and Poll Clerks to induce electors to vote in favour of the said William F. Schey ; (g) That the 
votes have not been correctly counted ; (h) And that otherwise the Election was irregularly 
conducted ; and praying that the said William F. Sty may be declared to be unduly elected, and 
that Petitioner may be declared elected, or that a new election may be ordered to take place. 
Ordered, on motion of Mr. Drunker, that the Petition be referred to the Committee of Elections 
and Qualifications; and that the Committee having adjourned sine die, the Chairman be empowered 
to summon the Committee, and fix the time and place for meeting. 

VOTES No. 76. WEDNESDAY, 14 AUGUST, 1889. 
2. COMMITTEE Or ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS :- 

(1.) Election Petition—Anderson v. Sthey—Redfern:—Mr. J. P. Abbott, as Chairman, brought up 
the Report from, and laid upon the Table the Minutes of Proceedings of, and Evidence taken 
before, and Appendix handed in to, the Committee of Elections and Qualifications, to whom 
was referred, on 13th July, 1889, a., the Petition of George Anderson against the return of 
William Francis Schey as a Member for the Electoral District of Redfern. 
And the said Report was read at length by the Clerk, by direction of Mr. Speaker, as follows:— 

" The Committee of Elections and Qualifications, duly appointed on 1st March, 1889, to 
" whom was referred on 13th July, 1389, a., a Petition from George Anderson, of Waterloo, 
" wool-washer and merchant, a person claiming to have had a right to be returned as a Member of 
"the Legislative Assembly for the Electoral District of Redfern, and a candidate for such election, 
" alleging that, in pursuance of the Writ dated 28th June, 1889, a meeting of the Electors of 
" Redfern was held, at which William F. &hey and Petitioner were duly nominated as candidates ; 
" that at such nomination a ballot was demanded by Petitioner, which duly took place on Monday, 
" 8th July; that the said Writ has been returned, endorsed with the return of the said William 
" F. Schey to serve as a Member for the said Electoral District; that Petitioner is advised and 
" believes that the said William F. Schey is unduly elected, that Petitioner should be declared 
" elected, or a new election ordered, on the grounds •—(a) 'That the provisions of the Electoral Act 
" were disregarded at the Polling-booth, New Masonic Hall, Sydney, in respect of several officials 
" assisting in taking the poll there, who were appointed whilst the polling was actually going on, 
" which resulted in  being deprived of certain of his just rights under the said Act ; 
" (b) That ballot-papers were improperly introduced into the ballot-box (luring the course of the 
" polling, and that, in instances, voters received or acquired more than one ballot-paper, and 
" deposited them in the ballot-box; • (e) That votes were recorded by voters twice ever ; (d) That 
" certain votes recorded were not the votes of the persons entitled to record the same ; (e) That 
" certain votes were rejected as informal which should count as votes to Petitioner ; cn That 
" undue influence was used by certain of the Presiding Officers and Poll Clerks to induce electors 
" to vote in favour of the said William F. Schey ; (g) That the votes have not been correctly 
" counted; (h) And that otherwise the Election was irregularly conducted; and praying that the 
" said William F. Schey may be declared to be unduly elected, and that Petitioner may be declared 
" elected, or that a new election may be ordered to take place,—have determined and do hereby 
" declare 

"(1.) That William Francis Schey, the sitting Member, was duly elected as a Member for 
" Redfern. 

"(2.) That the Petition is not frivolous nor vexatious. 
"(3.) That the sum of 	18s. 9(1. out of the sum Of 2100 already lodged by the Petitioner 

" be awarded as witnesses expenses. 
" No. 3 Committee Room, 	 "J. P. ABBOTT, 

"Legislative Assembly, 14th August, 1889. 	 "Chairman." 
Ordered, on motion of Mr. Abbott, that the Report and Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence, 
together with Appendix, be printed. 

(2.) Adjournment of the Committee :—Mr. Abbott .  moved, That the Committee of Elections and 
Qualifications have leave to adjourn sine die, the matters referred to them having been disposed of. 
Question put and passed. • 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

ELECTION PETITION—ANDERSON v. SCHEY—REDFERN. 

REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE 

Or 

ELECTIONS AN D QUALIFICATIONS. 

THE COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS, duly appointed on 1st 
March, 1889, to whom was referred, on 13th July, 1889, a.m., a Petition from 
George Anderson, of Waterloo, wool-washer and merchant, a person claiming to 
have had a right to be returned as a Member of the Legislative Assembly for 
the Electoral District of Redfern, and a candidate for such election, alleging that, 
in pursuance of the Writ, dated 28th June, 1859, a meeting of the Electors df 
Redfern was held, at which William F. Schey and Petitioner were duly 
nominated as candidates ; that at such nomination a ballot was demanded by 
Petitioner, which duly took place on Monday, 8th July ; that the said Writ has 
been returned, endorsed with the return of the said William F. Sehey to serve 
as a Member for the said Electoral District ; that Petitioner is advised and 
believes that the said William F. Schey is unduly elected, and that Petitioner 
should be declared elected, or a new election ordered, on the grounds :—(a) That 
the provisions of the Electoral Act were disregarded at the polling booth, New 
Masonic Hall, Sydney, in respect of several officials assisting in taking-the poll 
there, who were appointed whilst the polling was actually going on, which resulted 
in Petitioner being deprived of certain of his just rights under the said Act ; 
(b) That ballot-papers were improperly introduced Into the ballot-box during 
the course of the polling, and that, in instances, voters received or acquired 
more than one ballot-paper, and deposited them in the ballot-box ; .(c) That 
votes were recorded by voters twice over ; (d) That certain votes recorded were 
not the votes of the persons entitled to record the same ; (e) That certain-votes 
were rejected as informal which should count as votes to Petitioner ; (f) That 
undue influence was used by certain of the Presiding Officers and Poll Clerks 
to induce electors to vote in favour of the said William F. Schey ; (g) That the 
votes have not been correctly counted ; (h) And that otherwise the Election was 
irregularly conducted ; and praying that the said William F. Schey may be 
declared to be unduly elected, and that Petitioner may be declared elected, or 
that a new election may be ordered to take place,—have determined and do 
hereby declare :— 

1. That William Francis Sehey, the Sitting Member, was duly elected as 
a Member for Redfern. 

2. That the Petition is not frivolous nor vexatious. 
3. That the sum of El 18s. 9d. out of the sum of E100 already lodged by 

the Petitioner be awarded as witnesses expenses. 
J. P. ABBOTT, 

No. 3 Committee Boom, 	 Chairman. 
Legislative Assenthly, 

14th August, 18896 
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1889. 

MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE COMMITTEE OF ELECTIONS AND 
QUALIFICATIONS. 

In the matter of the Election Petition, which had been addressed to the Honorable the Speaker of the 
Legislative Assembly, by George Anderson, of Waterloo, wool-washer and merchant, a person claiming 
to have had a right to be returned as a Member of the Legislative Assembly for the Electoral District 
of Redfern, and a candidate for such election, alleging that, in pursuance of the Writ, dated 28 
June, 1889, a meeting of the Electors of Redfern was held, at which William E &hey and Petitioner 
were duly nominated as candidates ; that at such nomination a ballot was demanded by Petitioner, 
which duly took place on Monday, 8 July ; that the said Writ has been returned, endorsed with the 
return of the said William P. Schell to serve as a Member for the said Electoral District ; that 
Petitioner is advised and believes that the said William F. Schey is unduly elected, and that 
Petitioner should be declared elected, or a new election ordered, on the grounds :—(a) That the 
provisions of the Electoral Act were disregarded at the Polling-booth, New Mascnic Ball, Sydney, 
in respect of several officials assisting in taking the poll there, who were appointed whilst the polling 
was actually going on, which resulted in Petitioner being deprived of certain af his just rights under 
the said Act ; (b) That ballot-papers were improperly introduced into the ballot-box during the 
course of the polling, and that, in instances, voters received or acquired more than one ballot-paper, 
and deposited them in the ballot-box ; (c) That votes were recorded by voters twice over ; (d) That 
certain votes recorded were not the votes of the persons entitled to record the same ; (e) That certain 
votes were rejected as informal which should count as votes to Petitioner ; (f) That undue influence 
was used by certain of the Presiding Officers and Poll Welt to induce electors to vote in favour of 
the said William E Sr-hey; (g) That the votes have not been correctly counted; (h) And that other-
wise the Election was irregularly conducted; and praying that the said Milian; P. Schey may be 
declared to be unduly elected, and that Petitioner may be declared elected, or that a new election may 
be ordered to take place. 

THURSDAY, 18 JULY, 1889. 

MEMBERS PRESENT :— 
Mr. Lee in the Chair. 

Mr. J. P. Abbott, Mr. Prank Smith, 
Mr. Street, 	 Mr. Ryrie, 

Mr. Hayes. 
In attendance,— 

The Second Clerk Assistant. 
1. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the entry from the Votes and Proceedings by which 

the Petition of George Anderson, was referred to the Committee. [Vide Extract, page 5.] 
2. The Clerk then, by direction of the Chairman, read the Petition of George Anderson (together with 

the accompanying Bank deposit-receipt) so referred to the Committee, as follows :— 
. 	 Rose Valley, Waterloo, Sydney, 11th July, 1889. 

To the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly. 
The humble Petition of George Anderson, of Waterloo, wool-washer and merchant, a person claiming to have 

had a right to be returned as a. Member of the Legislative Assembly for the Electoral District of Redfern, 
and a candidate for such election, — 

SITOWETII :— 
- 	1. That a Writ was issued by the Honorable the Speaker on the twenty-eighth day of June, 1880, for the 

election of a Member to serve in the Assembly for the Electoral District of Redfern, in the place of the late 
John Sutherland, deceased. 

2. That in pursuance of such Writ, a meeting of the electors of Redfern was held at Redfern on the 
fourth day of July, 1889, at which William F. Schey, of Redfern, and your Petitioner were duly nominated as 
candidates for the said election. 

3. That at such nomination a ballot was demanded by your Petitioner and duly took place on Monday, 
the eighth day of July. 

4. That the said Writ of Election has been returned to the Honorable the Speaker, having endorsed 
thereon the return of the said William F. Schey as the person elected thereunder to serve as Member of the 
Legislative Assembly for the Electoral District of Redfern. 

5. That your Petitioner states that be is advised and believes that the said William F. Schey is unduly 
elected, and that your Petitioner should be declared elected or a new election ordered, upon the following 
grounds :— 

(a.) That the provisions of the Electoral Act were disregarded at the polling-booth, New Masonic Hall, 
Sydney, in respect of several officials assisting in taking the Poll there who were appointed whilst the 
polling was actually going on, which resulted in your Petitioner being deprived of certain of his just 
rights under the said Act. 

(b.) That ballot-papers were improperly introduced into the ballot-box during the course of the polling, and 
that in instances voters received or acquired more than one ballot-paper and deposited them in the 
ballot-box. 

(c.) That votes were recorded by voters twice over. 
(d.) That certain votes recorded were not the votes of the persons entitled to record the same. 
(e.) That certain votes were rejected as informal which should count as votes to your Petitioner. 
(.1) That undue influence was used by certain of the Presiding Officers and Poll Clerks to induce electors 

to vote in favour of the aid William F. &hey. 
(g.) That the votes have not been correctly counted. 
(71.) And that otherwise the election was irregularly conducted, 	 6. 
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6. That your Petitioner has deposited the sum of one hundred pounds (fl00) in the Australian Joint 
Stock Bank to the credit of the Speaker, as required by law, and a deposit receipt therefor is hereunto annexed. 

Your Petitioner humbly prays that the said William F. Schey may be declared to be unduly elected as a 
Member to serve in the said Assembly, and that your Petitioner may be declared elected as such Member, or 
that a new election may be ordered to take place. 

And your Petitioner, as ht duty bound, will ever pray, &c. 
Dated this eleventh day of July, a. li. 1889. 

Redfern, 11th July, 1589. 
Duplicate.—Roar. BEENCOWE, Acct. 

PAID into the Australian Joint Stock Bank the sum of one hundred pounds, to be placed to the credit of the 
Sneaker of the Legislative Assembly of New South Wales, J. IL Young, by 

GF.O. ASDERSON. 
Elm 

3. The Chairman submitted a letter from the Honorable the Speaker, enclosing a certified copy of a 
letter from William F. Schey, Esquire, giving notice of his intention to oppose the Petition, and 
praying to be admitted as a party to the reference, which he read, as follows :— 

" Legislative Assembly Chambers, 
"Sydney, 16 July, 1889. 

"To the Committee of Elections and Qualifications,-- 
"Gentlemen, 

" I have the honor to transmit to you herewith a copy of a letter which has been received 
" by me from William F. &hey, Esquire, one of the Sitting Members for Redfern, giving notice of 
"his intention to defend his return, against which a Petition is now under your consideration. 

"I have, &c., 
"JAMES HENRY YOUNG, 

"Speaker." 
[Enclosure.] 

Sir, 	 "Kosmos," 124 Raglan-street, Waterloo, 16 July, 1889. 
Referring to the Petition of George Anderson, which was referred to the Elections and Qualifications 

Committee on the 13th July a.m. instant, I have the honor to request, that I may be adinitted as a party to the 
reference, and be allowed to defend my Seat before the Committee. 

I have, &c., 
To the Honorable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly. 	 WM. F. SCHEY. 
A true copy.—J. H. YOCSG. 

4. Parties called in. 
Present :—George Anderson, Esquire (the Petitioner). 

W. E. Hawkins, Esquire (Solicitor for the Petitioner). 
William F. Schey, Esquire (the Sitting Member). 
M. A. Williamson, Esquire (Solicitor for the Sitting Member). 

5. Frederick William Webb, Esquire, Clerk of the Legislative Assembly, called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness produced the Writ of Election certifying to the return of William Francis Schey, as a Member 

for Redfern. 
-Witness also produced a parcel of ballot-papers as received from the Returning Officer for Redfern. 
Witness withdrew. 

6. George Anderson Esquire, the Petitioner, sworn, and examined. 
7. Mr. George Court 13uteridge, Scrutineer, Alexandria, called in, sworn, and examined. 

Witness produced Roll used by him at the election. 
Witness withdrew. 

S. Mr. John William Watkins, Scrutineer, Alexandria, called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness produced Roll used by him at the election, also tally-paper of the Votes recorded. 
Witness withdrew. 

9. Mr. George Court Buteridge recalled and further examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

10. Senior-Sergeant Joseph Bradwell called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

11. Mr. Hawkins, on behalf of the Petitioner; applied for an adjournment in order that Counsel may be 
instructed to appear for the Petitioner. 

12. Room cleared and Committee deliberated and decided to adjourn to Thursday next at 10 o'clock. 
R. W. ROBERTSON, 

Second Clerk Assistant. 

In attendance,— 
' 	The Second Clerk Assistant. 

1. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the minutes of the previous meeting, which were 
confirmed. 

2. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read a letter from Augustus Violent requesting to be allowed 
'to attend and'report the evidence on behalf of the Sydney Daily Telegraph. 

Committee deliberated and decided to refuse the request. 
3. 

CEO, ANDERSON: 

THURSDAY, 25 JULY, 1E89. 
Mr. Lee in the Chair. 

Mr. J. P. Abbott, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Ryrie, 	 Mr, Street, 

Mr. Hayes. 

478—B 
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3. Parties called in 
Present :--:G-6orgo Anderson, Esquire (the Petitioner). 

Bernard Ringrose Wise, Esquire (Counsel for the Petitioner). - 
W. E. Hawkins, Esquire (Solicitor for the Petitioner). 
William Francis Schey, Esquire (the Sitting Member). 
M. A. Williamson, Esquire (Solicitor for the Sitting Member). 

4. Mr. Wise addressed the Committee and applied for summonses for the following witnesses which 
were granted by the Committee :—John Roland Dacey, Returning Officer ; Thoinas Alderson, 
George- Barnard, Kelson Vaughan, Senior-sergeant Bradwell, Alderman Rolfe, Alderman William 
Marr, C. S. Jones, Sydney Newton, Andrew Collie, and Thomas Spencer. 

5. Henry William Bradford, Scrutineer, Masonic Hill, called in, 'sworn, and examined. 
Witness produced . Roll Used by him at the late election. 
Witness withdrew. 

0. Edwin Berry called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. ' 

7. Edward Pulsford called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

8. Constable, Joseph Meyer called in, sworn, and examined. 
'Witness Withdeow. 

9. Edward Pulsford recalled and further examined. 
Witness produced list of names which appear in more than one Scrutineers list as having voted at 
the election, which Was ordered to be appended. [See Appendix.] 
Witness 'withdrew. 

10. Parties applied to be supplied with copies of the evidence from day to day, which application was 
granted. 

11.. Room cleared. 
Committee deliberated and adjourned to To-morrow at 10 o'clock. 

R. W. ROBERTSON, 
Second Clerk Assidant. 

FRIDAY, 26 JULY, 1889. • 
MEMBERS PRESENT :- 
Mr. Lee in the Chair. 

Mr. Ryrie, Mr. Street, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 	• I  Mr. Haves. 

In attendance,— 	 • 
The Second Clerk Assistant. 

1. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairmanread the minutes of the previous meeting, which wore 
• • confirmed. 

2. Parties balled in. 
Present :—George Anderson, Esquire (the petitioner). 

• B. R. Wise, Esquire (Counsel for the Petitioner). 
W. E. Hawkins, Esquire (Solicitor •Thr the Petitioner). 
William Francis Schey, Esquire (the Sitting Member). 
M. A. Williamson, Esquire (Solicitor for the Sitting Member). 

3. Sydney Newton called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness Withdrew. 

4. George Anderson, recalled and further examined. 
5. Mr. Wise called attention to the printed Appendix of Mr. Pulsford's evidence which had been 

handed in on 25 July, and requested that the heading "Double Votes, Redfern Bleetion;Rjuly," 
might be altered to "Names of Voters appearing—on the Rolls of more than one or Air. Audition's 
Scrutineers—as having voted," and Clerk directed to make the alteration. 

6. Alfred George Mihail, outside Poll Clerk, Masonic Hall, called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

7. Senior-sergeant Bradwell recalled and further examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

S. Andrew Collie called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

9. John Bonynge Taylor, a Scrutineer, called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

10. William John Ogilsby, a Scrutineer, called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

11. Alfred George Mihell recalled and further examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

12. John Rowland Decoy, Returning Officer, called in, sworn, and examined, 
Witness withdrew. 

13. Ralson Vaughan, Council Clerk, Alexandria., called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew.. 

14. Mr. Wise addressed the Committee. 
15. Room cleared. 
16. Ordered,—That George Bernard, G. P. Cook, and Thomas Alderson, be summoned to give evidence 

hest meeting. 
Committee adjourned to Thursday next at 10 o'clock. 

R. W. ROBERTSON, 
8.econd Clerk Ar-eiotenti. 

THURSDAY, 
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cilURSDAY 1 AUGUST, 1889. 

MEMBERS PRESENT :— 
Mr. Lee in the Chair. 

Mr. J. P. Abbott, Mr. lyric, 

	

Mr. Frank Smith, 	 Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Street. 

In attendance,— 
The Second Clerk Assistant. • 

- 1. The Clerk by direction of the Chairman ;  read the minutes of the previous meeting; Whibh were 
confirmed. 	 • 

2. Parties called in. 
Present :—George Anderson, Esq. (the Petitioner). 

B. R. Wise, (Counsel for the Petitioner). 
W. B. Hawkins, Esq. (Solicitor for the Petitioner). 
William Francis Schey, Esq. (The Sitting Member). 

• 	M. A. Williamson, Esq. (Solicitor for the Sitting Member). 
3. Chairman, referring to the fact that representatives of the press were present, with a view of reporting 

the proceedings of the Committee, stated that although the Committee 151119 bein a conducted as an open 
Court, the Committee had decided that the evidence should not be published until it was reported 
to the House, and reminded the strangers present of that decision, and requested that an assurance 
might be given that the evidence should not be published. A representative of the press refusing to 
give such assurance, room cleared and Committee deliberated, and decided that the evidence 
must be allowed to be taken, but that a request should again be made that the evidence should 
not be printed until presented to the House. 

4. Parties called in, and request that the evidence should not be published again made to the strangers 
present. 

5. G. F. Cook, Presiding Officer, Sydney, called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

6. Thomas Alderson, Presiding Officer, Sydney, called in, sworn, and elamined. 
Witness withdrew. 

7. George Barnard, a Scrutineer, called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

8. Henry Silburn called in, sworn, and examined. 
Witness withdrew. 

9. Committee, after having deliberated as to the mode of conducting the scrutiny of the ballot-papers 
and Electoral Rolls used at the Sydney and Alexandria booths, proceeded to the scrutiny. 

10. Mr. Wise requested that the Scrutineer's Electoral Lists at Alexandria be compared with the Presiding .  
Officer's Lists, and the names of the Electors marked in the Ptesiding Officer's Lists and tot 
appearing in the Scrutineer's Lists be disclosed. 

11. Room cleared. 
1.2. Committee deliberated, and decided that the Petitioners be allowed t3 take copies of the Official and 

Scrutineers Rolls at Alexandria.. Redfern, and Masonic Hall. Sydney—polling-places. 
13, Parties called in and informed. 
14. Committee proceeded to the further scrutiny of the ballot-papers. • 

Committee adjourned to To-morrow, at half-past 1 o'clock. 
- R.. W. ROBERTSON, 

Second Clerk Assistant. 

FRIDAY, 2 AUGUST, 1889. 

MEMBERS PRESENT :— 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Hayes, 	

Mr. Ryrie, 
Mr. Street, 

Mr. R. B. Wilkinson. 
In attendance,— 

The Second Clerk Assistant. 
1. In the absence of the Chairman, Mr. J. P. Abbott was called to the Chair. 
2. The Clerk, by direction of the Chairman, read the minutes ,of the previous ineeting, which were 

confirmed. 
3. Parties called in. 

Present :NV. E. Hawkins, Esq. (Solicitor for the Petitioner).- 
William Francis Schey, Esq. (the Sitting Member). 
M. A. Williamson, Esq. (Solicitor for the Sitting Member). 

4. Committee continued the scrutiny of the Ballot Papers ; and the scrutiny-  being concluded, the 
Chairman read the result, as follows:— 

For Mr. Anderson 	... ... 	2,890 
For Mr. Schey 2,911 
Informal ... 	77 

Majority for Mr. Schey, 21. 
CoMmittee adjourned to ThuredaY next, at 2 p,m. 

R. W. ROBERTSON, 
Second Clerk Assistant. 

T.1177BSD47, 
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THURSDAY 8 AUGUST 1889. 
MEMBERS PRESMTT :— 

Mr. Byrie, 	I 	Mr. Street, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 	Mr. R. B. Wilkinson, 

Mr. J. P Abbott.. 
In attendance,— 

The Clerk Assistant. 
1. In the absence of the Chairman, Mr. J. P. Abbott was called to the Chair. 
2. Parties called in. 

Present :—W. E. Hawkins, Esq. (Solicitor for the Petitioner). 
William Francis &hey, Esq. (the Sitting Member). 
M. A. Williamson, Esq. (Solicitor for the Sitting Member). 

Committee adjourned till Wednesday next, at 1 o'clock. 

In attendance,— 
The Second Clerk Assistant. 

1. In the absence of the Chairman Mr. J. P. Abbott was called to the Chair. 
2. Parties called in. 

Present :—George Anderson, Esquire (the Petitioner). 
Bernard Ringrose Wise, Esquire (Counsel for the Petitioner). 
W. B. Hawkins, Esquire (Solicitor for the Petitioner). 
William Francis Schey, Esquire (the Sitting Member). 
M. A. Williamson, Esquire (Solicitor for the Sitting Member). 

3. Mr. Williamson and Mr. Wise addressed the Committee. 
4. The Clerk submitted applications made for expenses of witnesses. 

Mr. Street moved,— 
That the Chairman be authorized to sign a certificate for 21 18s. 9d. for witnesses expenses for 

G. F. Cook. 
Question put and passed. 

5. The Committee deliberated as to Report. 
Mr. Street moved,— 

That the following be the Report of the Committee :— 
" 1. That William Francis &hey, the Sitting Member, was duly elected as a Member for 

Redfern. 
" 2. That the Petition is not frivolous nor vexatious. 
" 3. That the sum of 21 18s. 9d. out of the sum of 2100 already lodged by the Petitioner 

be awarded as witnesses' expenses." 
Question put and passed. 

C. That the Chairman report to the House accordingly and move for leave to adjourn sine die. 
R. W. ROBERTSON, 

Second Clerk Assistant 

LIST OF WITNESSES. 

Alderson, Thomas 	  
PAGE. 
43 

Anderson, George 	  13, 24 
Barnard, George 	  46 
Berry, Edwin 	  IS 
Bradford, Henry William 	  16 

. Bradwell, Senior-Sergeant Joseph 	  15, 28 
Buteridge, George Court 	  13, 15 
Collie, Andrew 	  29 
Cook, G eorge Frederick 	  39 
Decoy, John Roland 	  31 
Meyer, Constable Joseph 	  19 
Mihell, Alfred George 	  06 31 
Newton, Sydney 	  23 
Ogilsby, William John  	 30 
Pulsford, Edward 	  19, 22 
Silburn, Henry 	  48 
Taylor, John Bonynge 	  29 
Vaughan, Nelson 	  37 
Watkins, John William 	  14 
Webb, Frederick William 	  13 

RICHD. A. ARNOLD, 
Clerk Assistant. 

WEDNESDAY, 14 AUGUST, 1889. 
MEMBERS PRESENT :— 

Mr. Hayes, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. 3 . P. Abbott, 	 Mr. Street, 

- 	Mr. Eyrie. 
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COMMITTEE 
or 

ELECTIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS. 

ELECTION PETITION—ANDERSON v. SCHEY—REDFERN. 

THURSDAY; 18 JULY, 1889. 

flaunt:— 
Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. J. P. Abbott, 	 Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Street, 	 Mr. Ryite. 

C. A. Lee, Esq., in the Chair. 	• 

Mr. Hawkins, solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Petitioner. Mr. M. A. Williamson, solicitor, appeared 
on behalf of the sitting Member. 

Frederick William Webb, Esq., Clerk of the Legislative Assembly, sworn and examined:— 
1. Chairman.] Do youroduce the writ that was issued for the last election for • the electoral district of F. W. Webb, 
Redfern ? I produce e writ issued on the 28th jun°, for the election of a Member to serve in the .Legisla- 

i 
Esq. 

tive Assembly for the e ectoral district of Redfern, to fill the vacancy caused by the death of the late John c"--- 1/4-•—■ 
Sutherland, Esq., with a certificate, under the hand of the Returning Officer, Mr. Dacey, that William 18 July, 1889. 
Francis Schey was duly chosen as a Member for the electoral district of Redfern. 
2. Do you produce the ballot-papers used at the election ? I produce a box containing ballot-papers, 
with a certificate from the returning officer that they are the ballot-papers that were used at the elec-
tion of one candidate on the 8th day of July, 1889. The box is under seal. 
3. 21r. Hawkins.] Can you give us the date when the writ was returned? The 10th July. 
4. The election took place on the 8th July? Yes ; that was the polling-day. 
5. When were the ballot-boxes sent in ? On the 12th July. 
6. That is four days after the election ? Yes. 
7. Can you tell us anything as to the custom in sending in the writs for metropolitan and-suburban elec-
tions ? A limit is fixed by the Speaker for the return of the writ in the writ itself, and the writ must be 
returned within that time, or if it should be returned later than that, the delay must be cured by 
proclamation by the Governor in the Government Gazette. 

• 
George Anderson, Esq., sworn and examined:— 

s. Chairman.] Were you a candidate for Parliamentary election at the last election for the electoral district G. Anderson, erson,  
of Redfern? Yes. 	 Esq. 
9. And you were defeated? Yes.  
1.0. And did you lodge a petition with the Speaker against the return of Mr. Schey ? I did. 	 18Iuly, 1889. 
11. Is this the petition, and is this your signature ? That is the petition, and that is my signature. 

Mr. George Court Buteridge sworn and examined :— 
12. Aft. Hawkins.] You were engaged as scrutineer by Mr. Anderson, on the 8th July, at the last Redfern Mr. a C. 
election ? Yes, at Alexandria. 	 Buteridge. 
13. You were at the second polling-booth L to Z. at Alexandria ? Yes. 	• 
14. Were the rolls issued to the polling-clerks certified before the polling began ? The only mark I saw 15 July' 1889' 
on the electoral roil was the words "poll-clerk," written on the margin. 
15. Chairman.] After the polling, was the number of votes checked with the number of voters who actually .  
voted—there would be a certain number of voting-papers in the ballot-box ;—was the number of those 
papers checked with the number of votes actually recorded according to the poll-clerk's rolls? The rolls 
were checked by each of us, calling the names over after the polling. 
16. Was the poll-clerk engaged in that at the same time ? Yes, and the presiding officer. 
17. What was the result ? The result was that the three rolls agreed. 
18. That is, the poll-clerk's roll, your roll, and the roll of the scrutineer for Mr: Schey ;—were the ballot-
papers counted? They were counted as they appear in that return. 
19. Was there any discrepancy ? it would not be possible to detect a discrepancy in that way as the 
papers were taken out of the box, and called out without being 'counted. 
20. They were not counted? • Not with the names on the rolls. 
21. But according to the check on your list there was a certain number of rotes recorded ? Yes. 
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Mr. G., C. 22. Was there any discrepancy between the number of votes recorded according to the check made by you 
Buteridgo. all and the number of papers actually in the ballot-box, or were the numbers identical ? No, it was in 

„ this way : that the numbers were not counted upon the roll. but we just checked back upon the roll. The 
" July, ,"

„„
". ballot-papers were taken out of the box, and put down as they appear on the return. 

23. Chairman.] Was the number of votes ticked off ou the electoral list counted -was it ascertained 
from the electoral list bow many voters had voted, and did that number correspond with the number of 
papers in the ballot-box ? No ; they were not counted. 
24. The voting-papers were not counted ? 	; they were taken out of the box and placed as you see 
them there. Of course they were counted as regards the number of fives. 
25. And you say that your roll, was checked with those of the poll-clerk and Mi. Schey's scrutineer ? 
Yes ; and the names were found to tally. 
26. And are you prepared to swear to the accuracy of your roll as ft is marked ;-do you produce your' 
own roll ? Yes ; that is my roll. 
27. It is the electoral list used by you ? Yes. 
28. You can identify it ? Yes. 
29. Mr. Hawkins.] Do the numbers that are ticked represent the number of electors who voted ? Yes. 
[Electoral roll produced.] 
30. Did you see the ballot-box sealed up ? 	; but the papers were sealed and put into the box, and the 
box was locked. 
31. You had no mark of your own ? No. 

Mr. john William Watkins sworn and examined :- 
Mr. J. W. 32. Mr. Hawkins.] You were scrutineer for Mr. 'Anderson at the Alexandria polling-booth A to K on 
Watkins. Monday, the 8th July ? Yes. 
rt-"^ 33. Can you say whether, after the polling, the number of votes declared was checked with the number of 
July, 1889. voters who actually voted ;-did you check your list with the list of Mr. Schey's scrutineer, and also that 

of theyresiding officer? No. 
34. Was there no check made at all? Each one checked off as the ballot-papers were issued. 
35. Was not there a check made afterwards ? No. 
36. Chairman.] Do you produce the electoral list used by you on that occasion ? Yes; that is the one I 
used. [Electoral list produced.] 
37. Mr. Hawkins.] Did yon mark off on that list every vote as it was recorded from the letters A to KI? 
Yes. 
38. And you can swear to the accuracy of your 	? Yes ; there is one name there where I made A 
mistake in. crossing the name out, and I have written the word "mistake " opposite to it. 
39. Were you present when the ballot-box was sealed up ? No ; I was not. 
40. Will you tell us what is the number of votes actually recorded according to your TOR, as checked with 
the others ? I could not say for certain ; I put it down on -the tally-paper, and I did make a record on 
the card, but I believe I left it in the Committee-room. 
41. You kept a tally-paper ? Yes. 
42. Can you identify it now ? Yes. 
43. And if you saw the roll of papers which you had could von tell the number of votes recorded ? Yes. 
44. Is this your tally-paper, made at the time of the voting ? Yes. [Tally-paper produced.] 
45. Can you tell us the number of votes recorded according to your check ? 160 for Mr. Anderson and 
1.82 for Mr. Schey, with three informal votes. 
46. Can you tell us how many names were marked off on the roll ? I could not without going over it. 
47. Can you do that and (rive us the exact number marked off on the roll ? Yes. 
43. Mr. J. P. Abbott.] 1711-"ill you swear that your tally is a correct tally of the votes recorded that (lay? 
It was a correct tally with the others at the time. 
49. Will you swear that your tally is a correct record of the number of voting-papers applied for that day 
at the booth where you were ? Yes, according to the presiding officer. 
50. Mr. Frank Smith.] You mean as read out by the presiding officer ? Yes. 
51. You do not know anything about the papers received by the presiding officer-you do not know how 
many he received ? He told me that he had 700. 
52. Do you know how many were left after the polling was over ? I do not know without seeing the 
returns: 
53. Do you know how many unused papers there were ? No. 
54. Mr. Hawkins.] Were the unused papers counted? We did not count the hundreds ; they were given 
to us in packages of 100 each. We counted the odd ones and then counted the hundreds. 
55. Mr. J. P. Abbott.] You assumed, that there were 100 in the packages? Yes. 
56. Mr. llawkins.] How many were there then, counting in that way ? I do not know. 
57. Mr. Frank Smith.] Was anything said i». your hearing by the presiding officer about the number of 
ballot-papers that were left ? He counted the odd ones before us. 
58. Were the ballot-papers counted and checked with the votes marked off ? No, they were not, because 
during one or two rushes they had not been kept in the proper boxes. We endeavoured to do so as 
well as we could, but when a rush came we were not sure whether the papers were put in the A. to K box or 
the L to Z box. 
59. Mr. S. P. Abbott.] Were the two boxes in the same room ? Yes, and on the same table-one at each 
end.. 
60. And any paper which you issued might go in the other box ? Yes, the same with both boxes. 	• 
61. Chairman.] In point of fact after the voters received their papers they could put them into either of 
the two boxes ? Yes. 
62. That is, the papers issued by the presiding officer from L to Z might be deposited in the box A to K, 
and vice versa ? Yes, we endeavoured to keep them separate as well as we could, but during one or two 
rushes we were not SUM about the papers, and I know that in several cases they went into the wrong 
box. 
63. Kr. Hawkins.] You can make out the numbers from your roll;-now will you do that ? Yes. 

64. 
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61. Arr. tr. P. Abbott.] .rou cannot say that the roll is exactly what it was when it left your hands? No. Mr. LW.  
65. Look at it. You cannot say that you made all the erasures that appear there? No; I would not swear WPI-kintt.• 
that the roll is as I left it. y, 66. Mr. Hawkins.] If. you went through the roll could you then remember what was the number made 18 Jul 1880.  
by you on the day of the election. I have a way of proving whether it would be right or wrong. On that 
day I kept a note of each vote as it was recorded, and I tallied one with the other to see if they agreed or 
not after going over my roll. 
67. litr. 	 After the poll closed to whom did you deliver this tally-sheet? To .A.1r. Taylor, 
secretary for Mr. Anderson, at the committee-rooms, Redfern-street. 
68. That was after the poll was declared? No ; before the poll was declared. 
69. Have you since the day on which you handed it to Mr. Anderson's secretary seen it ? No ; not 
'until now. 
70. Has Mr. Taylor, or any member of Mr. Anderson's committee, spoken to you about the tally since you 
handed it over ? They told me that it had been sent away. 
71.. Mr. Hawkins.] Can you swear that that tally was the same as when it left your hands ? The figures 
are the Annie. 

Mr. Buterilge recalled and further examined:- 
72. Mr. Hawkins.] This tally appears to have been taken twice ;-can you explain the reason ? That took 	Mr. 
place after the votes were counted. Mr. Schey's representative asked us to count the votes-he thought Buteridae. 
there was a slight mistake in the two, and we did recount and the result of the votes shows that there 
was a difference of two. 	 18 July, ma  
73. Chairman.] You recognise that tally as the one kept by you ? Yes. 
74. Mr. Hawkins.] You say there was some error ? Ye:(; the two tallies did not agree at the time. The 
scrutineers were asked to recount, and we thought that there might have been a mistake. 

0 

Senior-Sergeant joseph Bradwell called in, sworn, and examined 
75. Chairman.] What are you? Senior-Sergeant of Police stationed at Redfern. 
76. Mr. Hawkins.] Were von in any of the booths at the time when the voting was going on ?' I was. 
T was detailed for duty at the New Masonic Hall in Sydney on that day. 
77. Did you notice how the election was being conducted ? J. noticed a good deal. 
78. Were you inside or outside of the room ? 1 was inside, aecompanied by Senior-Constable .Toseph 
Meyer in plain clothes, and a constable from the Central Police Station named. Griffiths. Meyer and I 
were principally about the floor of the hall where the voting was going 
79. Did you notice whether any more than one paper was given to each vote ? T (lid not notice any more 
than one. 
SO. Did you notice in any instance more papers than one rolled up together ? Yes. 
81. When was that ? At the counting of the votes. 
82. How many papers were there ? Three. 
83. All rolled up together ? Yes. 
81. As if they had been put in together ? Yes. I did not actually see the papers come out of the box. 
The presiding officer took them up from the table. There was some pause in turning them over, and he 
passed them on to George Barnard sitting on his left, and Barnard passed them on to Mr. Alderson, who 
straightened them out and put them on the beep of papers waiting to be counted. I -noticed that 
Anderson's 11 ame was struck out, and on the back the papers were initialled by Mr. Alderson. 
85. Mr. 1. P. Abbott.] Was Mr. Alderson the presiding officer? He was appointed between 1 and 2 
o'clock. Dining the dinner-hour voting was very brisk there. A great many people came to vote between 
J. and 2 o'clock and they had not sufficient accommodation. The deputy returning officer, Mr. 
Vaughan, appointed Mr. Alderson and another person to assist in issuing the papers. 
86. Mr. Hawkins.] At what time did this take place ? From half-past 1 to 20 minutes to 2. 
87. Air. 1. P. Abbott.] Who was the presiding officer there ? A gentleman named Cook. I noticed on 
several occasions that when Mr. Alderson initialled the papers Barnard issued them to the electors-he 
passed them over to the gentlemen about to vote. 
SS. Mr. Hayes.] Was Barnard a poll-clerk ? I don't know what you call him. 
SO. Ain Hawkins.) Mr. Barnard was one of those appointed, was he not ? Yes. 
90. Mr. Street.] Where was Mr. Cook at the time you say the papers were initialled by Mr. Barnard. and 
Mr. Alderson? He was at the table, and Alderson and Barnard came to the table and assisted in issuing 
the ballot-papers. I may state upon my own knowledge that in the morning Barnard and Alderson were 
canvassing outside for Mr. Schey. Mr. .Alderson had the ticket in his hat for some time after he went 
to the table. 
91. Chairman.] And he acted as presiding officer ? Yes. 
92. And Mr. Barnard ? I cannot say what: capacity he acted in: 
93. Mr. Hayes.] Who initialled the papers ? Mr. Alderson. 
94. Chairman.] Do you know whether Mr. Alderson was appointed presiding officer or poll-clerlc ? 
Presiding officer I believe. 
95. Do you know it for a. fact ? lie initialled the papers. 
96. Me. Hawkins.] You actually saw him initialling the papers ? Yes. 
97. And at that time lie had Schey's card in his hat ? Yes. 
9S. You say that there were certain officials appointed between 1 and 2 o'clock ? Yes. 
99. And do you know who was the presiding officer there? Originally it was Mr. Cook. 
100. Who was the poll-clerk ? Mr. Hannigan was the presiding officer's poll-clerk, and Mr. Tamil wan 
poll-clerk issuing the numbers. 
101. Afr. Hawkins.] You say that others were appointed between 1 and 2 o'clock ;-did you see any 
communication between them and, the presiding officer P. No, they were all sitting at one table. 
102. He commenced to act betweensl and 2 o'clock? Yes. 
108. Have you seen him do anything there in any other capacity I saw him outside. 
101.. What, with the names ? Mn'Aldeison and George Barnard. 	 108. 

Sen.Serg. J. 
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Sam-Setts 105. Thu say that both were canvassing during the morning for Mr. Sehey, and afterwards acting as 
J. gradv'Pli• officials inside? Yes. 
a"---• 106. Did you see Mr. Schey's tickets in their hats afterwards ? I only refer to one. 	 •• 

18 July, 1889 ' 107. -Who was that? Mr. Alderson. 
108. Did he afterwards take the ticket out of his hat ? He did. 
109. Was anything said to him ? Mr. Vaughan went up and spoke to him. 
110. Mr. Williamson.] Were you stationed Inside the whole of the time ? No. 
111. During the day you repeatedly came outside did you not? I came out mid was about the door. 
112. I suppose you stood there conversing with people? No doubt I had conversations during the day 
with people when I was rendering assistance at the various tables. 
113. There were only two tables, were there ? Only two. 
114. You continued to go backward and forward all the time? Yes. 	 • 
11.5. Mr. Hayes.] You say that you saw three ballot-papers folded up together ;was it possible that 
those three would get together in the ordinary way, one being pushed inside the other ? I should say 
that it was impossible. 
116. Do you think that one could get into another ? No, they could not have -fallen into the folds of 
each other as I saw them. 
117. Mr. J. P. Abbott.] How many of them did you seem that state ? Only the three; I drew the atten-
tion of Senior-constable Meyer to it. 
118. Did you see them taken out of the ballot-box ? No. 
1.19. How many hands had they passed thromgh when you saw them in that state ? It was afterwards that 
I saw them. They came from Barnard to Alderson. 
120. Mr. Hayes.] Do you say that you drew the attention of some one to them ? Yes ; the attention of. 
Senior-constable Meyer. 
121. But any of the officials. Did the relurning officer, or any of the poll-clerks notice them ? I saw. 
Mr. .Alderson, and he coloured up considerably. 
122. Were the scrutineers, poll-clerks, and the presiding officers sitting together ? Yes. 
123. Did you see any of those officials taking any notice ? They were passed to Barnard ; he straightened 
them out and passed them to Alderson, and he straightened them out and put them out to be counted. 
124. And the scrutineers were there ? Yes, but they were engaged. 
125. Mr. Frank Smith.] Did you say that Mr. Alderson coloured up ? Yes. 
126. .211r. J. P. Abbott.] It was a shock for him to see that. I suppose ? I cleared out. 
127. You did not vote for Mr. Anderson that day, did you ? -Unfortunately I have no vote at all. 
125. Me. Williamson.] Do you know Alderman Berry, of Redfern ? I do. 
1.29. Do you remember him making application for a seat at the voting-table ? No; I do not. 
130. Were you not present when be did it 	I heard that lie did so. 
131. Chairman.] Did you hear him ? No. 

THURSDAY, 25 JULY, 1859. 
Word:- 

Mr. J. P. Abbott, 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Lee, 

Mr. Kyrie, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Street. 

 

C. A. Lee, Esq., in the Chair. 

Mr. B. R. Wise, instructed by Messrs. Carruthers and Hawkins, appeared for the Petitioner: 
Mr. M. A. Williamson, Solicitor, appeared for the sitting Member. 

Henry William Bradford sworn and examined:- 
Aft. H. w 132. Mr. Wise.] On the day of the Redfern election you were acting as scrutineer for Mr. Anderson at 
Bradford. the New Masonic Hall P Yes. 

133. You were duly appointed and signed the declaration in proper form? I did. 
26 July, 1889. 134. Who was the presiding officer at that booth, or acting presiding officer ? I do not know his name. 

135. Have you since learnt his name ;-is it Vaughan ? I do not know his name. 
136. Do you remember between 1 and half-past 1 there being a great rush of voters ? Yes. 
137. Was the rush so great that they could not all be attended to ? Not immediately. 
133. In consequence of that did you see the presiding officer do anything ? No. 
139. Did you see Mr. Thomas Alderson shortly after that doing anything? Yes. 
140. What was he doing ? He was acting as presiding officer. 
141. Chairman.] By whom was he appointed ? By Mi. Vaughan I believe. 
142. Mr. Wise.] Who was Mr. Vaughan ? I do not know any more than that I was told that he was the 
deputy returning officer. 
143. Did you see Mr. Alderson receive any document in writing appointing him ? No, I did not. 
144. What did he do-how did he act ? He took my place at the table, pushed me aside, and gave out 
the ballot-papers. 
145. Had he a separate box put in front of him ? Not at that time. 
146. Had he any electoral, roll given to him? Yes. 
147. Was that electoral roll when it was given to him a clean roll ? Yes. 
148. That is to say, the names of those who had already voted were not struck off? No. I saw the pages 
as they were turned over. 
149. This was about half-past 1 ? Twenty minutes to 2. 
150. How long was Mr. Alderson giving out the ballot-papers before any ballot-box was brought in to 
him ? About an hour. 	 • 
151. At the expiration of that time was a separate box placed in front of him? Another ballot-box was 
placed on the table. 	• 
152. Was that box under his control ? It was used by both presiding officers. 	 153. 
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153. Was anybody acting as poll-cleric for Mr. Alderson ? Yes; I do not know his name. 	 Mr. It W. 
ra 151. Did you afterwards learn that his name was Barnard ? I have been told so Both.  

155. Did you see a man named Mr. Berry in the room ? Yes. 	 25 July, MO 
156. Did you hear him make any application to the presiding officer ? I heard him say to Mr. Vaughan 
that the thine. was illegal. • 
157. Mr. J. 

thing 
 Abbott.] What thing ? Appointing a second presiding officer. 

155. Mr. Wise.] Did you hear anything said about a scrutineer for Mr. Anderson ? I did not. 
159. Was any person acting as scrutineer for Mr. Anderson with a box in front of him ? Only myself. 
160. You had the two to manage? Yes. 
161. Were you able to do your duty properly in looking after the two boxes ? No. 
162. Why not? The people were voting too fast for me. 
163. Could you keep any check or make any proper scrutiny of the voters as they came in ? At one 
time I could not-at the beginning when there was a rush. 
164. Did you apply for any assistance ? No; I had no one to apply to. 
165. Did you make any protest against the appointment of Mr. Alderson-before Mr. Alderson and Mr. 
Barnard were acting in this way had you seen them take any active part in the election ? I had not. 
166. Did you notice whether Mr. Alderson had anything in his hat while acting in this way? Yes ; he 
had a card. 
167. What card ? Mr. Schey's card. 	 • 
168. Chairman.] His visiting card ? No; a card asking electors to vote for Schey. 
169. Mr. Wise.] Did he retain that in his hat while he was acting as presiding officer ? Yes. 
170. Had Mr. Barnard any card? No. 
171. After Mr. Alderson had been appointed did you see him leave the room ? Once he left the room. 
172. I mean going outside to where the public were? He went out towards the street. 
173. Will you tell the Committee exactly what was done with the ballot-papers that Mr. Alderson had. 
Suppose a voter came and asked him for a vote, what would happen? Mr. Barnard would take his ticket 
and if it was correct Mr. Alderson would hand him a voting-paper. 
174. Was there anything to prevent Mr. Alderson handing more than one voting-paper ? I did not watch 
him to see whether he did or not. 
175. Was Mr. Vaughan about sufficiently to prevent it ? I did not see him. 
176. Was there anything to prevent Mr. Barnard from taking more papers than one ? He could have 
taken them if he liked, but I did not see him take any. 
177. Did you see Mr. Alderson initial any ballot-papers ? Yes. 
178. Were you acting as scrutineer the whole time ? Yes. 
179. And did you keep as careful& check as you could ? I did. 
180. Have you since added up the number of votes that are marked off on your scrutineer's roll ? I 
have not. 
181. Were you present at the counting of the votes ? Yes. 
182. Did you see anything of any votes coming out of the ballot-box together ? I did not notice them 
coming out together. I was busy tallying. 
183. During the whole time that Mr. Alderson was acting at this second ballot-box or acting as presiding 
officer did any person except yourself act as scrutineer for Mr. Anderson ? No. 
181. Mr. Williamson.] You say you could not make any proper scrutiny while the two boxes were on the 
table ?. I did not say that. I said I could not make any proper scrutiny while the crowd was there. r 
185. Mr. J. P. Abbott] You say there was a rush-did they allow snore than two voters in? At ono time 
there were 1.20 in the room at once. 
185. Chairman.] Were the ballot-papers issued to those people ? Yes. 
187. While there were 120 there ? Yes. 
188. By the one presiding officer ? By the one presiding officer. 
189. Mr. Williamson.] Were you placed in a similar predicament when the two boxes were on the table ? 
No; it was quiet then. The voting was pretty well over. 
190. You know Mr. Berry very well ? Yes. 
191. You know that he was an ardent and staunch worker for Mr. Anderson at the election? I do not. 
192. Did you hear Mr. Berry go in to the Masonic Hall and ask the presiding officer to get further 
assistance to enable the people to vote ? I cannot say that I did. 
193. Did you hear the officer-in-charge ask Mr. Berry if he would act? I did not. I did not hear the 
officer-in-charge, the presiding officer, make any complaint at all. 
191. There was a fair number of votes polled at that booth ? Yes-820. 
3.9.5. At any time during the polling did you take your pen or pencil and drive the ballot-papers into the 
box through the opening ? Never once. 
196. Did you see anybody do that? Yes ; the presiding officer did it. 
197. By doing that one or two papers might have been interwoven with the others? Very possibly. 
198. Do you know Mr. Stephen, one of the Members for Redfern ? I do. 
199. Did you hear him at any time at the polling at the New Masonic Hall ask that assistance be given ? 
I did not. 
200. Chairman.] How do you know that Mr. Alderson was appointed presiding officer ? I saw Mr. 
Vaughan bring him to the table and give him a roll. 
201. Did you see him make a declaration ? I did not. 
202. I presume he .could have made a declaration outside ? I believe it was made behind my back 
in the room. 
203. Is Mr. Vaughan a magistrate ? I do not know. 
204. As a matter of fact did you see Mr. Alderson hand more than one ballot-paper to any one voter ? 
I did not. 
205. Arr. Wise.] Your time would be fully occupied in making the scrutiny and marking off the names 
of the voters as they came in ? During the time of the rush it was-it was more than I could do. 
206. Mr. J. P. Abbott.] Did you see any of the presiding officers or poll-clerks doing anything improper 
during the time you were present at the New Masonic Hall ? .I did not. 
207. Did you see them interfere in any shape or form with the electors, or urge them as to the manner in 
which they should vote? No. 

478-C 	 208. 
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:Mr. H.  W. 208. If they had I suppose you would have seen it ? Yes. I would have seen about it. 
.Bradford. 209. You saw nothing to necessitate your interference in the interests of the gentleman yomwere repre-

senting ? No; excepting the rush. .25.July,12-89. 
210. Well, in your opinion, was it necessary at that time to get additional assistance for the taking of the 
poll ? Yes ; it was necessary to get an additional poll-clerk. 
211. So far as you could see was there any injustice done either to Mr. Anderson or to Mr. Schey by 
reason of the appointment of MT. Alderson ? No more than that I could have no control over watching 
the proceedings. 
212. You had not an opportunity nor had Mr. Anderson an opportunity of appointing another scruti-
neer ? No, there was no opportunity at all. 
213. Did you intimate to Mr. Anderson or to any of his Committee the necessity of appointing another 
scrutineer? There was nobody in the room to apply to. I had no time when the rush came. I was 
obliged to keep my eyes open to see what was going on. 
214. Had Mr. Schey two scrutineers ? No, only one. 
215. I suppose you felt that you were as good a man as he was? I think I kept the number of votes as 
correctly as he did. 
21.6. Had you had experience before ? Yes. 
217. Mr. Wise.] What did you do with your scrutineer's roll ? I handed it to Mr. Taylor the same 
evening, without having made any alterations. 
218. That is to say all the marks you made were made inside the room ? Yes, and the rolls were all 
tied up. 
219. Is this your roll ? Yes ; that is the roll I used. [Roll produced.] 
220. Mr. J P. Abbott.] Is this roll now in the same state as when you handed it to Mr. Taylor ? I could 
not say that. With the exception of the additions it is. 
221. With those exceptions it is in the same condition as when you handed it to Mr. Taylor ? Yes. 

Mr. Edwin Berry sworn and examined :- 
Mr. 	222. Mr. Wise.] Were you, on the day of the Redfern election, in the New Masonic Hall, about mid-day ? 

E. Berry. I was-on the premises. 
223. Do you remember seeing Mr. Alderson acting as presiding officer? I do. 

25 July, 1889. 224. Did you make any request, either to hiza, or to Mr. Vaughan, or to anybody ? When I was 
informed that they had appointed Mr. Alderson as presiding officer at that polling-place, I objected on 
behalf of Mr. Anderson to his appointment. I entered a protest. 
225. Will you state the ground of your objection ? The ground of my objection was because he was a 
partizan of the other party, and had Mr. Schey's tickets in his hat at the time. When Mr. Vaughan 
talked to me about appointing another presiding officer, and he could not get the scrutineers, I offered 
to act as scrutineer myself on behalf of Mr. Anderson, which was objected to by the party round about. 
I took no notice then. 
226. Did you ask Mr. Vaughan that a scrutineer might be appointed on Mr. Anderson's behalf ? Yes ; 
I said I would take the scrutineer's place on behalf of Mr. Anderson. 
227. Were you any length of time in that room ? Not in the room, but I was at the booth from half-
past 11 until 4 o'clock-outside principally. 
228. Can you say, from anything you saw inside, whether, when Mr. Alderson was acting as presiding 
officer, it was impossible for one scrutineer properly to do his duty-whether an additional scrutineer 
was necessary ? I could see that one scrutineer could not do the work with two presiding officers. 
229. Mr. Williamson.] Were you not the person who applied for assistance at this polling-booth? No. 
230. Did you not apply to Mr. Vaughan for assistance ? I said to Mr. Vaughan, when the crush was on, 
that he had better put another man on to give numbers ; that was the application I made. 
231. You applied for assistance ? That was the assistance I applied for, not for a presiding officer. 
232. NOT for a poll-clerk either ? No ; the only one I applied for was the extra man to give 
numbers. 
233. Did not Mr. Vaughan ask you if you would take the position, and you refused ? No; he never 
asked me to take the position. 
234. Did he ask you to take the position which Mr. Alderson subsequently held, and did you refuse ? 
He never asked me. 
235. When was it that you offered to go as scrutineer for Mr. Anderson ? After I had made the request 
with regard to the extra man for the numbers. He said that if an extra man was put on for the numbers 
he would have to put on an extra presiding officer. But there were no scrutineers, and I said that I 
would go scruti.neer for Mr. Anderson. 
236. And when be told you he would have to put on an extra presiding officer and a poll-clerk, you 
did not object to it then when you made your offer ? When they objected to my going in as scrutineer 
I did not think that they were going to appoint one. When I turned my back he was appointed in his 
place, and when Mr. Anderson's party told me that Mr. Alderson was appointed I immediately went in 
and objected to Mr. Vaughan. 
237. At the time when you applied for the appointment of scrutineer for Mr. Anderson had Mr. Schey 
an extra scrutineer ? I do not know. 
238. Mr. J. P. Abbott.] Can you tell us why they refused to allow you to act as scrutineer for Mr. 
Anderson ? Simply because lwas working a little in the interests of Mr. Anderson. 
239. But, as a matter of fact, I suppose you had no appointment in writing? No. 
240. Mr. Williamson.] It was not Mr. Vaughan who refused to accept your appointment ? No. 
241. You simply heard somebody say they objected to you and you walked away ? When they objected 
I did not walk away, because I was there until 4 o'clock; but I turned my back to look after any voters 
who were coming up. 

242. 



811 
19 

212. Mr. J. P. Abbott.] Did you see any irregularity in the taking of the poll after Mr Alderson was 	Mr. 
appointed ? No; except that I saw Mr. Schey and Mr. Stephen and several other people in the room E. Berry. 
where they had no business to be. I did not know Mr. Stephen was in, and I simply said to Mr. Schey, 25 July,1889. " You have no business in this room, your place is outside," and he said, "Mr. Stephen is in, and he has 
no business here either," and I immediately asked Mr. Stephen to retire as well. 
213. Where you not in too ? I went in because I was told Mr. Schey was in. I only went as far as the 
poll-clerk's place. 
241. You do not know of your own knowledge that Mr. Alderson was guilty of any irregularity ? 
Decidedly not. 
,245. And you did not see anything ? No. 
246. Cliairman.] You were not there long enough, I suppose-not acting there in any official capacity ? 
No, not in any official capacity. 
247. Did you record your vote there ? No, I recorded my vote at Redfern. 
248. Did you see other people there besides Mr. Schey and Mr. Stephen ? Oh, yes ; there were a great 
number in the room, one sort and another. 
249. How many do you think at that particular time ? I could not tell you how many. At the dinner-
hour, between 1 and 2 o'clock, the room was crushed. There was a great number-the same as if this was 
the table-putting their hands over to get their numbers from the poll-clerk, and he could not supply 
them. 
250. How many do you think there were there at that time ? I should think there must have been from 
forty to fifty at that time. 
251. Were you in the polling-booth more than once ? No further than just as far as the entrance to the 
room. 1 never went beyond the poll-clerk, except on the occasion when I went to object. 
252. You actually went into the room where the presiding officer and the poll-clerk were ? Yes ; to 
object. 
253. Arr. Frank Smith.] Did you see anyone outside with ballot-papers during the day ? I did not. 
251. Mr. Wise.] How close was the poll-clerk sitting to the officer who had the ballot-papers ? I suppose 
he was close to him. I could not positively tell! I was not near enough at any time to take any notice. 
255. How was Mr. Bernard sitting ? I could not tell you. 

Mr. Edward Pulsford sworn and examined :- 
256. Hr. Wise.] Did you receive this roll [Exhibit B] from Mr. Taylor ? I did. 	 Mr. 
257. When did you receive it ? On the morning following the election-Tuesday the 9th. 	 E. Pulsford. 
258. I believe you have calculated the number of names marked of on that roll ? Yes. 	 ,-......-...--, 
259. Can jou tell Inc what the total is? 801. 	 25 July, 1889. 
260. In going through that roll was there any appearance of any names having been erased, which had 	• 
01100 been struck off? No. 
201. Mr. Williamson.] Did you make any marks on the roll at all ? No; not beyond the marks indica-
ting additions. 

Mr. Joseph Meyer sworn and examined:- 
262. Mr. Wise.] You are a senior constable ? Yes. Mr. J. Meyer. 263. Were you on duty at the New Masonic Hall on the day of the Redfern election? I was. 
261. Were you on duty inside or outside ? Inside of the hall. 	 25 Suly,1889. 
265. Will you tell me what were the arrangements made inside for voting in the early part of the 
morning ? The presiding officer, Mr. Cook, was seated at the table with the ballot-boxes. Two scruti-
neers, Mr. Bradford and another gentleman, whose name I do not know, had places round the table, and 
also Mr. Millen, who was poll-clerk. That was up to about 1 o'clock. 
266. What sized table was it? A fair sized table, very nearly as long as this one, but I do not think it 
was quite as wide. 
267. How many ballot-boxes were on the table up to 1 o'clock ? Only one, at I o'clock. 
268. At that time WILS there a great rush ? There was a great rush between 1 and 2. 
269. How many people do you suppose you saw in the room at any one time-the largest number ? 
Round the poll-clerk I should reckon there would be about forty or fifty. 
270. Were there Others in the room ? They were going backwards and forwards to the presiding 
officer and the ballot-box. 
271. How many could you say you saw in the room at once ? Perhaps from fifty to sixty electors. 
272. After 1 o'filock what was done? An additional poll-clerk was placed at the table. 
273. Who was that ? Mr. Hannagan, I think, is his name. 
274. Who placed him there ? I believe Mr. Vaughan, but I am not quite sure ; however, Mr. Vaughan 
arrived about 12 o'clock. I will not say positively that Mr. Vaughan placed him there, but he was there. 
275. You say Mr. Alderson was appointed ? Mr. Alderson was also appointed and a young man named 
George Barnard. 
276. Where were they sitting? At the same table as the presiding-officer. 
277. How long were they acting before the extra ballot-box was brought up ? I would not be positive as 
to whether they were acting before the ballot-box was brought. There was such a crowd around the poll-
clerk that I was fully engaged keeping them away from the table. 
278. Did you see Mr. Alderson giving out any ballot-papers ? Yes, 
279. Did you see him initial any ? I will not be positive that I saw him initial any, because from I 
o'clock, when the crush came on, I was principally engaged at the poll-clerk's table. 
280. Were you present at the counting ? I was. 
281. Can you speak as to any ballot-papers that particularly attracted your attention at the counting? 
Yes. 
282. Will you tell the Committee what attracted your attention in connection with those vouchers? 
There were three ballot-papers folded up together. The presiding officer picked them up and unfolded 
them and turned one up, and I noticed then that on the top one the name of "Anderson" was scratched 
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Mr. J. Meyer. out, and also the second one ; I did not notice the third one at the time. He then folded them up 
together again and handed them over to Mr. Barnard, who was sitting next to him. At the same time 25 !lily, 1589. Senior-sergeant Bradwell nudged me with his arm, to draw my attention to it, and I said, "All right ; 
I see." 
283. Could you give the Committee any idea how those three papers were folded up together. Take three 
pieces of paper and fold them together exactly as you saw them ? [Papers folded up.] The presiding 
officer undid them and looked at the top one and the second one, and folded them up again, and handed 
them to the next man. 
284. Mr. A. P. Abbott.] Who was the presiding officer ? Mr. Cook. 
285. It was Mr. Cook who took them out ? He picked them up from the table and handed them to Mr. • 
Barnard, sitting next to him. Mr. Barnard also undid them and looked at the three of them, and then 
handed them to Mr. Alderson. While Barnard was looking, I saw that the -name " Anderson " had been 
scratched out on each of them. 
286. Chairman.] Mr. Cook was the presiding officer at that time counting the ballot-paperg at the close 
of the poll ? Yes ; he had already counted some. 
287. On his taking up these three alleged ballot-papers together, he opened them, examined them, refolded 
them, and passed them on to Mr. Bernard ? Yes. 
288. What did Mr. Barnard do ? He just looked at them, and handed them to Mr. Alderson. At the 
same time he whispered something to Mr. Alderson, but I do not know what was said. 
289. What did Mr. Alderson do with them ? He straightened them out and placed them on a heap of 
other ballot-papers that were straightened out ready to be counted. 
290. And to the best of your belief they were counted with the other ballot-papers ? Yes ; to the best 
of my belief they were. 
291. Hr. Wise.] From the way that these papers were folded, would it have been possible, in your opinion, 
for them to have got into the position in which you saw them, through being shuffled together in the box 
in any way ? No; they could not. 
292. They must have all three been put in together ? Yes. 
29:3. I believe a report was made by you to the Colonial Secretary on this matter ?. I believe so; of course 
I do not know whether it was or not. Senior-Sergeant Bradwell might have spoken of it, and he might 
have mentioned my name. • 
294. Mr. Williamson.] Though you and Senior-Sergeant Bradwell saw all this, you did not make any 
complaint•to the presiding officer ? No; we walked away. 
295. Nor did you make any complaint to the poll-clerks or scrutineers? No. 
296. Have you been engaged in collecting evidence in support of Mr. Anderson's petition ? Not in the 
least. In fact I have been away from Redfern this last fortnight. 
297. Mr. I. P. Abbott.] Were you or Sergeant Bradwell stationed at the door of the polling-booth? 
Not the outside door. 
298. But the inside door ? 'We stood at the inside door. 
299. There is an entrance from the street and the passage, and then there is a big room, and there is a 
door into that room ; where were you and the sergeant stationed-at the door ? Not particularly at the 
door, but inside. We went as far from the door as the presiding officer's table. 
300. Then anybody who liked could have come in and gone out. There was no constable there to stop 
anybody from coming in ? There was a constable at the outer door. There were three constables-
Constable Griffiths was in uniform, Sergeant Bradwell was in uniform, and I was in plain clothes. 
301. You were sent there to watch the electors, as you were living at Redfern for some time and knew 
the people? Yes. 
802. And you say there were as many as fifty or sixty in that room at once ? About the time of the rush, 
between 1 and 2 o'clock. They would not stop them. On one occasion the poll-clerk's chair was very 
nearly pulled away from him. They were leaning right over his shoulder. 
303. Do you know Mr. Bradford, who was acting as scrutineer foil Mr. Anderson ? Yes ; but I did not 
know at the time for whom he was acting. 	 • 
304. But you saw him there acting as scrutineer for Mr. Anderson ? Yes, I saw him there. 
305. Was he present when the ballot-papers were taken out of the boxes ? Yes, he was there. 
806. And who took them out of the boxes ? Arthur Mihell, the poll-clerk, and his assistant, who was 
appointed about 1 o'clock, took them out of the first box ;  and both of them counted the papers. At least 
they flattened them out ready to be counted, and placed them before the presiding officer. 
807. And Mr. Bradford, was he not there ? Yes, Mr. Bradford was there ; but he had a sheet of paper 
and marked them down as the presiding officer called them out-" Anderson" or "Schey," whichever it 
might be. 
808. And Mr. Bradford of course saw the papers, as they were taken out the same as the presiding officer 
did ? No doubt he would see, but he was more engaged putting down the number. 
309. Who was it took the ballot-papers out when you saw these three papers folded up? It was Mr. 
Hannigan, the assistant poll-clerk, who was appointed at 1 o'clock. Between Mr. Hannigan and Arthur 
Mihell they were straightened ready to be counted-that is, out of the ballot-box that was first in the room 
and contained most of the ballot-papers. The papers were taken out of the other box by Mr. Alderson, 
and straightened by him and Mr. Barnard. 
310. Mr . Eyrie.] Was Sergeant Bradwell alongside of you when you saw the three papers folded up taken 
out of the box ? Yes, close together. 
311. Were you in a better position to see them taken out of the box than he was ? I do not know about 
a better position, but equally as good. 
312. He could have seen them ? Yes. 
313. And if he has sworn that he did not see them come out of the box I suppose there is a probability 
that you were mistaken also ? Of course I do not swear positively that those three papers were taken out 
of the box, but what I state is that I saw the presiding officer take them up from the table. 
314. You did not see them come out of the box? No, I did not see them come out of the box. I saw the 
presiding officer take them up from the table away from papers that had come out of the box. 
i 5. Chairman.] You were there in plain clothes on that day ? Yes. 
316. On duty ? Yes. 
317. Purely in the interests of your department ? Yes. 	 318. 
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318. Not in the interests of either candidate at the election ? No. 
319. Were you stationed inside the door ? Inside the ball. 
320. Sometimes, I presume, walking up and down the room where the voting was going on? Not in the 25 July, 1889- 
hall. While the voting was going on I was in the hall. 
321. Were the ballot-boxes within your view where you were stationed? Yes. 
322. You saw the voters place the ballot-papers in the boxes? Yes ; and several times I sent them back 
again. After they had scratched out the names, and when they were attempting to come out with the 
ballot-papers, I sent them back to the ballot-box. In fact it was an instruction given me by Mr. Cook, 
the presiding officer, that I should particularly see that the people did not walk out of the hall without 
placing the papers in the ballot-boxes. 
323. You could see the voters placing the papers in the box, and you could also see the presiding officer 
or the poll-clerk handing out the ballot-papers? Yes. 
324. Did you notice any more than one ballot-paper handed to any one elector ? No. 
325. Not more than one at a lime ? I did not notice any more than one being handed at a time; but 
there was fully an hour, or perhaps two hours, during which I scarcely had time to look over to the table. 
326. You did not sec all the papers handed out? I did not. 
327. If you had noticed any irregularity in connection with the action of the presiding officer or the poll-
clerk, would it have been your duty to have interfered ? No. 
328. And, consequently, it not being your duty, you would not have mentioned it? No. 
320, You were there to look after the interests of the State, and not the interests of the election ? 
Exactly. 
830. As a matter of fact, did you notice any irregularities taking place ? That is the only thing I saw-
the folded ballot-papers. 
331. Did you notice any irregularities taking place on the part of the presiding officer or poll-clerks, or 
any other officer connected with the conduct of the election? That is the only irregularity that I saw. 
332. Then, as a matter of fact, all that you saw of that nature occurred after the polling closed ? Yes. 
333. And you noticed that when the presiding officer took up what appeared to be a ballot-paper, it 
turned out, when opened, to be three ballot-papers, and that is all you saw ? That is all. 
331. Did you make any arrests for personation ? I did nat. 
335: Do you know whether any persons were arrested at that polling-booth ? None were arrested on 
that day. 
336. Mr. Frank Smith.] During the rush that took place, did anyone complain to you that they could not 
vote, and did they go. away as if the rush bad prevented them from recording their votes ? They did not 
complain to me ; but I heard them complaim, and I know one or two went away. 
837. They did not vote, owing to the rush ? Yes. 
338. Did they complain to you ? Not to me. I heard them make remarks, I believe, to Senior-Sergeant 
Bradwell. I am not quite sure whether they complained to him or to someone standing by ; but I heard 
them say so. 
839. That they did not vote ? Yes. I heard them say, "Well, I have not time to stop any longer, I 
must be off-that is one lost." 
340. In your opinion, was the crush sufficient to justify their goino.

b 
 away ? If they were employed in 

town, and had to be back to work at a certain time (say 2 o'clock), they could not have remained there 
until such time that their number could have been given by the poll-clerk. 
341. Because of the crush ? Yes. They would be there perhaps until half-past 2 or 3 o'clock, and they 
would then have been late for their work. 
312. Mr. WilHamson.1 All the voters had to go through the one opening, had they not ? Yes. 
343. Mr. J. P. Abbott.] Was the crush relieved when Mr. Alderson was appointed ;  and another polling-
clerk ? There was a little relief ; but at the time--for half-an-hour or three-quarters of an hour-they 
seemed to come in very strong up till about 2 o'clock. . 
311. The dinner hour, I suppose? Yes. 
345. The Chairman.] Had all the voters little tickets containing a number ? Most of them. 
346. Purporting to be their number on the electoral list ? Yes. 
817. Will you describe what the proceedings were. When the electors entered the room what did they 
do ? Perhaps there were two rows standing round the table as thick as they could. As they came in 
they would stretch their arms across the shoulders of those in front and say to the poll-clerk, "Here is 
my number, give me a ballot-paper ; I must go away to dinner; I cannOt stop." The poll-clerk took the 
papers from the electors as fast as he could, looked at the number, turned over the roll, found the 
number, and saw that the name was correct, and gave the elector the paper. 
343. Mr. Wise.] You stated in answer to Mr. Abbott, that at one time there was such a crush that the 
poll-clerk's chair was almost pulled away ? Yes. 
349. At that time, or at any other was the crush so great that it would have been possible for a person to 
appfopriate a ballot-paper improperly without his being observed ? Yes ; it was possible. 
350. During the counting of the votes had Bradford anything to do with taking the votes out of the 
ballot-box ? No. 
851. Have you been stationed long in Redfern? For eight years. 
852. This Mr. Cook, who was appointed either deputy-returning officer or presiding officer, is he an old 
resident of Redfern ? I do not believe so ; because I really did not know him until I saw him in the 
Masonic Hall. 
353. Do you know that he lives at Newcastle ? I do not. 
851. And this Mr. Bernard who was appointed, who is he ? He is an agent. 
355. How long has he been in Redfern? Between three and four years, to my knowledge. 
356. Do you know a lad named Currie, living on the Beaconsfield Estate, at Waterloo ? No; I do not. 
357. How long has Mr. Dacey, the returning officer, been a resident in Redfern ? Well, I do not know, 
I have known him a few years in Redfern. 
358. Have you known him more than four years? No. He may have been there more than four years. 
359. What position has Mr. Dacey in life ? He is one of the aldermen of Alexandria. 
360. Of what occupation is he ? That I could not say. 	• 
361. Did you ever know him in any occupation in Redfern ? No. 

362. 
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Mr. T. Meyer. 362. You say you have known him there for four years ;-do you not know that he only came to Redfern 
about five years ago ? I do not. 

25  Sub', 1839. 363. Mr. Williamson.] Is it quite possible for a man to be a resident of Redfern without your knowing 
him? He may be for some time. 
364. You do not know all the people in Redfern ? No, not all of them; but, of course, if anyone is 
resident for any length of time in Redfern I am likely to know that he is living somewhere about. 
365. You know, as a matter of fact, that Mr. Dacey has been Mayor of Alexandria for nearly two years ? 
Yes. 
360. You also know, as a matter of fact, that Mr. Dacey was never in Redfern in his life, do you not ? 
He lives in Alexandria. 
367. Where he lives is a long way from Redfern? Yes, from the Borough of Redfern. 
368. And you know also that within the last four or five years he has been carrying on a pretty extensive 
business where he is living ? No, I do not know. 
369. As an agricultural implement manufacturer ? No, I cannot say I know that. I know Mr. Dacey 
by his being an alderman. 
370. Has not your business as a policeman frequently taken you to where his place is ? Yes, all about 
there. It is in the police district. 
371.. You know the man well enough, do you not ? Yes; I know Mr. Dacey well. 
372. Mr. Wise.] Did you see or hear anything of ballot-papers being outside the polling-booth ? I 
never saw any outside. 
373. I do not mean anyone coining up and saying they were there after the election, but during the day 
of the election, did you hear any persons conversing amongst themselves say there were ballot-papers 
outside ? No. 

Mr. Edward Puleford recalled and further examined:- 
Mr. 	371. Mr. Wise.] Will you look at that roll having reference to the polling-booth L to Z, at Alexandria ;- 

E. Pulaford. have you added up the number on that roll which are marked off as having voted? I have. 
r---A-r• 875. What is the total number ? 417. 

25 JulY' 1889-  376. Will you look at the roll referring to polling,-booth A to K, Alexandria; used by Mr. Watkins as a 
scrutineer ;-have you done the same with regard to that roll ? Yes. 
377. And what is the total ? 303. 
878. In either of those rolls was there any appearance of the erasures of names which had once been 
marked off ? None. 
879. The total number in those two rolls is 720 ? Yes. 
380. Have you been through the scrutineers' rolls of all the polling-booths, with a view to finding out 
whether there was any double voting ? I have been through the whole of them. 
331. Have you prepared a list ? I have. 
382. Dow did you conduct the inquiry? I should like to say that within a quarter of an hour of the 
declaration of the poll on Monday I sent h. telegram to Mr. Anderson at his residence at Waterloo, asking 
that the whole of the inside scrutineers' rolls might be brought up to the office of the Free-trade and 
Liberal Association on the following morning. Early the next morning, somewhere between 10 and 11, 

mi Mr. Anderson and Mr. Taylor ca mein n together and brought the rolls. Since that time the whole of the 
rolls have been in my sole possession until last week, when two of them were deposited here. The way I 
went over the rolls to cheek the double voting was this: I think there were five different polling-places. 
I took one roll myself, and two of my clerics each took a roll, and I think Mr. Taylor, Mr. Anderson's 
secretary, took another. Then I called off the whole of the numbers that were ticked off in the roll I had. 
When that was done with I took one of the others, so that we went through the whole of the rolls, and 
wherever we found a vote recorded twice I took a note of it. 
383. I believe you made no inquiries from persons on that list as to how they voted ? I have not. 
331. Do you identify the list now put in as the list you prepared ? Yes. [See Appendix.] 
335. 2r, Williamson.] Did the names on this list appearing as double votes occur in only two of the 
rolls F Only two. 
330. And you had the scrutineers' rolls for the whole five places ? Yes. 
387. Mr. J. P. Abbott.] Do you remember which two they were ? I thought the question was, had any-
body voted at more than two places, to which I say "No." 
383. Mr. 147/1/ianison.] My question is this-were the names, which appear on the list as those of double 
voters, erased off only two of the rolls ? Certainly, only two. 
339. So that there was only double voting at the two places ? You do not understand me, or I do not 
understand you. Take the first name-it is Redfern and Alexandria ; the second name is Redfern and 
Sydney. 
390. That is double voting at two places ? Just so. No one voted at three different places. The names 
only appear on two rolls, but the two rolls are not in every case the rolls of two distinct polling-places. 
391. Chairman.] It is really a record of double votes, not treble votes ? Yes. 
392. M.. Wise.] Of course that only indicates the marks made by the scrutineers-the scrutineers may 
be mistaken ? Just so. 
393. And the only test will be a comparison of those names with those on the official rolls ? I believe so. 
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FRIDAY, 26 JULY, 1889. 

Mr. Hayes, 	 Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Lee, 	 Mr. Ryrie, 

Mr. Street. Street. 
C. A Lee, E g., in the Chair. 

Mr. Wise, instructed by Messrs. Carruthers and Hawkins, appeared for the Petitioner, 
Mr. M. A.. Williamson, solicitor, appeared for the sitting Member. 

Mr. Sydney Newton sworn and examined:- 
394. Mr, Wise.] What are you ? I work on the railway. 	 Mr. 
395. Were you at the New Masonic Hall on the day of the Redfern Election ? Yes. 	 S. Newton. 
390. Ai what time of the day were you there ? I was there from about 20 minutes to 4 until a quarter 
to 5. 	 2G July, 1889. 
397. Outside the polling-place, did you see any papers that looked like ballot-papers ? Yes. 
398. In whose hands were they ? In some man's hands ; I do not know him by name. 
399. Had he any party badge or ticket in his hat or about him ? Yes ; he had a ticket of Mr. Schey's-in 
his hat, and he was in the company of three or four more who had the same tickets in their hats. 
400. Did you hear anything said with reference to those papers ? About 10 minutes past 4, just 
after the polling-booth closed, this man I refer to held up two of the papers, one in each hand, and made 
the remark, " &hey is in. Here we have two to spare ; if we wanted a hundred we could get them." 
4W.. You do not know the name of the man ? No. 
402. I believe you have tried to find him since? Yes ;  I have described the man, and I have been round 
to two of the factories to try and identify him. 
403. Did you know any of the men by sight as residents of. Redfern ? Yes ; I have seen them several 
times. I have not been a resident of 'Waterloo for the last three years, but one of them I knew to be a 
resident there when I lived there, but I do not know him by name. 
404. Arr. Williamson.] Are you an elector of Redfern ? Yes. 
405. Did you make any wager about the result of the election? No. 
406. Will you swear that you did not bet with anybody that Ahderson wouldheat Schey? No; not this 
time-not at all. 
407. You work on the railway ; is it in the moulders' shop ? No; in the engineers' department. 
408. Will you swear that you and two of the moulders who work at Redfern did not make wagers on the 
result of the election ? I did not. 
409. Did you, in conjunction with them, snake wagers on the result of the election? No; none whatever. 
At the previous election I did, but not at the last 
410. When you heard all the talk about the ballot-papers did you report it to anyone ? I did ; in fact, 
that is how it got about in the shop where I was working. 1 remarked it the very next day. 
411. That was to men in the shop ? Yes. 
412. Did you report it to Mr. Anderson ? No. 
41.3. To his secretary ? No ;  I was not aware then who the secretary was. 
414. Were not the persons to whom you reported it members of Mr. Anderson's committee ? Yes. 
415. Was it not with those men you made a wager about the election ? No ; I made no wager. 
416. Did you give them money to make a wager for you ? No, I had nothing to do with any wager at 
all. I did not go with the intention of reporting it, but I made a remark in reference to what I had seen, 
and seine party reported it to the committee. 
417. Do you know Thomas Lyons who works on the railway ? Yes. 
418. Have you been speaking generally about this particular thing ? Yes. 
419. And on the day you say this took place did you place yourself in communication with Mr. Anderson 
or any of his committee ? I did not. 
420. Do you know the name of the man in whose hands you saw the ballot-papers ? No, if I did I would 
very soon find him out. I described the man. 
421. To whom-to Mr. Anderson or any of his committee ? Not to Mr. Anderson. I did to Mr. Taylor, 
and also to Mr. Bradwell. 
422. .711r. Frank Smith.] What was on the papers you saw ? I could not actually swear, but I was close 
enough to see that they had the appearance of ballot-papers. They had two names on them, and they were 
exactly the same as the papers Iliad vtted on. I was not close enough to actually read what was on them. 
423. What colour were they ? White. 
424. Is that the same colour as that of the papers used ? Yes. 
125. But you cannot say that they were ballot-papers ? The man did not say ballot-papers, but he said 
" Schev is in. Here's two, and if we wanted 100 we could get them." 
426. What Made you think they were ballot-papers ? Simply because they answered the description of 
what Iliad seen myself when I voted. 
427. Did you know the men whom he addressed when he said "Here's two ?" I did not take it that he 
was addressing anybody individually. There were four or five more persons with him at the time. 
428. Was be sober ? Yes ; he did not appear to be anything else. 
429. Was he very excited ? He seemed to be very pleased at the idea. 
430. Ohairman.] Pleased at the result ? There was no result, because the polling-booth had just been 
closed. 
431. Mr. Frank Smith.] Had lie come from the polling-booth ? I had seen him there before the poll was 
closed. 
432. You have not seen him since at all ? No. I have tried. I have been out several times to try and 
see him 
433. Mr. Williamson.] Have you taken any interest in elections previous to this one ? Yes. 
431. Have you seen papers handed out with the names of the candidates on, and with directions to vote 
in a certain way? Yes, cards but not ballot-papers. 	 435. 
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Mr. 	435. Will you swear that the papers you saw were not papers of that description ? Yes. S. Newt' 436. Where did the conversation take place ? Outside the New Masonic Hall. 
r-A'allaN  26 Jail 1889 437. That is not where the poll was declared ? No, that was one of the polling-booths. , 1889' 438. Were you at work that day ? Part of the day. 

439. You were not at work in the afternoon ? No. 
440. Mr. Eyrie.] You say that you knew this man previously? Only by sight. I have seen him before. 
441. Haring knowfl him previously could you not ascertain his name in any way ? I have tried to. I 
have only known him by sight not by name. 
442. Mr. Wise.] Have you seen the police with reference to this matter ? Yes ; two or three. I have 
been to four different places to see if certain men were the man I described, but they were not. 
443. Chairman.] At all events you swear positively that you do not know the man ? No. 
414. Mr. Hayes.] Were there many people outside the New Masonic Hall when the nyin held up what 
appeared to you to be ballot-papers ? There were a great many outside, but at that particular spot there 
was a knot of about five. 
445. Including yourself ? I was a little distance away. 
416. Could many besides yourself have heard the remark ? I should iinagine that others could have 
heard it. Those who were in the group could have heard it as well as I did. 
447. And others? I do not say that others could. 
448. Mr. Williamson.] Did you go to the police or did the police come to you ? I went to the police. 
419. When ? About a quartet past 1 or a quarter to 2. 
450. On what date ? I cannot exactly tell. 
451. This week or last week ? Last week, Wednesday, I think. No, it was Monday. 
452. What is the name of your foreman, is it Mr. Howe? Mr. Scott, I should imagine, would be called 
the foreman. 
453. Were you late for your work on that day ? Yes. 
454. Did a constable go to the works to excuse you ? Yes. 
455. Were you present when he gave the excuse ? No. 
456. It was Sergeant Bradwell was it not? Yea. 
457. Mr. Street.] How far were you from the man when he held up the papers ? About the length of 
this room, 8 or 9 or 10 yards. 
458. Had he more than the two papers in his possession, so far as you could see ? No; be did not 
show them. 
459. Did any of the other men appear to you to have any papers ? I did not notice any. They did not 
expose them if they had. 
460. Mr. Wise.] Were the five men in a group by themselves ? Yes ; a little distance off from the 
main crowd. The people were forming little knots of four or five all around, and this was one of them. 
461. Had the man who held up the papers his back or his face towards you ? His side face. 
462. Except yourself and that group was there anybody else within hearing? Unless anybody was 
trying to listen to the conversation I do not think he could hear. Of course if anybody had been 
listening and wanted to hear, they could have heard, but, otherwise, I do not think lie could. 
463. This man was talking to the members of the group-he was not shouting out for all the world to 
hear ? No; he was making a remark to the few persons who were with him. 
464. How long have you been in the railway service ? About nineteen or twenty years. 
465. You were asked just now who was your foreman-is Mr. Howe, a brother of the Member, foreman 
in your shop? Yes. 
466. Has he spoken to you about this matter at all ?. No. 
467. Mr. Williamson.] Were the persons who were in that small group strangers to you? Yes ; as far 
as being personally acquainted with them is concerned. I had seen them before. 
463. What took you amongst them ? I was not with them, 
469. How far were you off? About the length of this room. 
470. You heard them at that distance-in order that you could do that they must have spoken above the 
ordinary tone of voice ? So it was. Generally when a person makes use of an expression of that sort 
he raises his voice a little higher than in ordinary conversation. He made the remark, " Schey is in. 
Here is two and if we wanted 100 we could have got them." 
471. And you say that although you were distant from the group the length of this room you could see 
what was on the papers ? I could see that there were two names, and that they were ballot-papers to all 
appearance. 
472. Do you wear spectacles ? Yes. 
473. Are you short sighted ? Not the least. I could not see you with spectacles on going along the 
street. It is only when reading or writing that I wear spectacles. 
474. Can you tell me what the letters in large type on this paper are [holding up the first page of these 
Minutes of Evidence]? No. I have said that I could not distinguish the names, but I could see that 
there were two names on the paper. 
475. You say you could see the manes ? I saw two lines, that is all. 
476. Do you mean to say that at the distance of this room you could see the names on a ballot-paper, and 
yet at the distance between you and me, you cannot tell what is on this paper ? I could see that there 
were two names, but I could not say what the names were ; just as I can see that there are two lines on 
that paper. 
477. Did you see any seal on the papers ? No. 
478. A.s a matter of fact you cannot tell, what was on the paper ? No; only to the best of my opinion 
the papers corresponded exactly with the ballot-papers I have used, but what were the names on them I 
could not tell. 

Mr. George Anderson recalled and further examined:- 
Mr. 	479. Mr. Wise.] Were you outside the New Masonic Hall polling-booth on the day of he election ? Yes. 

G. Anderson. 480. How long? I should say about half-an-hour. 
r--A-r• 481. At what time of the day ? Between 1 and 2 o'clock. 

B6 July, 1889. 	 482. 
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Mr. 482. Was there a great rush of voters there then ? Yes. 
483. Was the accommodation sufficient for them P No. 	 G. AndfriOD, 
484. Did you see any voters go away without recording their votes ? Yes. Numbers went away and on 2 .67-A-r‘uly, 1889,  
going away they said., "That is some loss to you, old man ; we cannot remain any longer, we must•go to 
our work* 
4-85. Can you say how maily persons whom you believe would have voted for you, or who told you that 
they would vote for you, were prevented from recording their votes in consequence of the badness of the 
arrangements? There were five or six in one group, and at different times there were about twenty, 
altogether, if not more. 
486. That is persons that you actually know ? Yes ; persons who said they were going to vote for me. 
487. And who came away Win" to the badness of the arrangements preventing them from recordingtheir 
votes ? That is so. During the time I was there nobody was supervising the arrangements inside. Mr.. 
Vaughan, the deputy returning officer, came while I was there, but he was absent previously. 
488. When you went there he was absent? Yes. 
480. lie was not in charge then ? There seemed to be nobody in charge. The place seemed to be like a 
common, where everybody could resort without cheek. 
490. Were there other persons in the room besides yourself ? There was a. large number of persons in 
the room. 
191. Were you allowed in yourself ? Yes, I went in and I had occasion to direct attention to some 
partisans inside who had no interest in the electorate at all. 
402. And you say there seemed to be nobody in charge? No. 
493. But you saw Mr. Vaughan afterwards ? Yes, I saw him afterwards, and it was intimated to me that 
a scrutineer offered his services on my behalf, but that they were declined; and I heard persons speaking 
in a very violent manner to this effect "Anderson shall have no scrutineer. We won't allow it ;" -notably 
Mr. O'Grady. 
494. Chairman.] Who is Mr. O'Grady ? He is a cab-driver. 
495. Not one of the officials employed there? No except by the opposite party. I do not know whether 
he was employed or not. 
496. At any rate he was not an official? No. 
497. Mr. Wise.] You have lived in the electorate a great many years ? About twenty-two. 
498. And I suppose you know most of the people who livethere who take an active part in public affairs ? 
I do. 
490. Can you tell me who Mr. Cook is, whom we have heard spoken of as being a scrutin.eer ? I know 
Mr. Cook, who was carrying on business as a draper for six or nine months, on the Botany Road some 
eighteen months or two years ago. 
500. Is that the first you knew of him in this electorate at all? That is the first and the last, until I 
heard that he was brought from Newcastle to act as presiding officer. 
501. Is he a man-who has ever taken any part in public affairs and likely to know people ? I have never 
seen him on any occasion where gentlemen were called together for the purpose of identifying themselves 
with matters useful to the district. 
502. A Mr. Barnard has been mentioned-bow long have you known him as a resident of the district ? 
Between four and five years. 
503. What position has lie occupied ? I think he is carrying on business as a sort; of agent collecting, debts. 
501. Mr. Williamson.] He is well known there is he not? I think he is very well known. 
505. Mr. Wise.] Do you know a lad named Currie? No; only by sight. 
506. Did you see a- lad of that name acting as poll-clerk at the Redfern booth? I cannot say that I took 
notice of him. 
507. Mr. Williamson.] You say there was a great rush at the New Masonic FM? 'Yes. 
508. Do you remember Mr. Berry being there ? I do. 	 • 509. Did you send him into the building to ask that additional assistance might be given to help the 
polling along ? I asked Mr. Berry to go inside and try to get me fairly represented. 
510. Did you ask him to get the assistance ? I do not think I did. 
511. Did you hear Mr. Berry go in and ask anybody to get additional assistance ? I believe he did. 
512. Did you hear anybody apply to Mr. Berry to take the position himself ? No. 
513. Did you hear him refuse or decline to take it? No; but became back and told me that he offered 
to go as scrutineer and that they declined his services. 
514. Did he tell you who declined his services ? No; he did not. 
515. Can you swear that there were twenty voters that intended to vote for you, but who could not vote? 
I will say that the number even exceeded that. 
516. Did.you secure a majority at th.at particular polling-booth ? I believe I did according to the returns. 
517. Are you aware whether or not you did obtain a majority at that booth ? Yes, and I believe I would 
have obtained 200 more. 
518. Can you tell us what the majority was? No, I cannot. All that I can say is that all the positions 
seemed to be really packed. Every appointment was made by the opposite party in a manner that was 
detrimental to my interests. At the same time I have not the slightest objection to persons opposed to 
me being appointed so long as they are men of integrity, which I do not believe some of them were. 
519. Mr. Brie.] You mentioned that about twenty people went away who intended to vote for you do 
you know the names of any of those persons, and did they vote or not lote ? I cannot say that their 
names are recorded. 
520. Can you mention any of their names ? No ; because there seemed to be so much confusion at the 
time, that persons were actually prevented from going inside, if it was found that they were likely to be - 
favourable to one particular side. 
521. But You cannot mention the names of any persons who went away without recording their votes ; 
they may have gone back again? I believe I could get the names. 
522. Williamson.] Do you know if the names of any of those persons are on the roll at all ? No. 	• 
523. Were there not fully twenty people who were not electors of Redfern at all round about the booth 
askina

b 
 others to vote for you ? At the Sydney polling-hooth I had only one representative for the greater 

part of the day, and that was Mr. Sparks. 
4•78-D 	 594. 
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Mr. 	524. Was he not there asking people to vote for you? No ; that is a principle I do not believe in. 

G. Anderson. 525. Will you swear that he did not advocate your cause in that way by asking people to vote for 
you ? I do not think he did. He did not in my hearing at any rate, lie had an electoral roll, and 26 July, 1889. 	 • was giving their numbers to the voters, but I am sure he never asked any person in my presence to vote 
for me. 
526, Chairman.] Which polling-place did you remain at during the polling ? I went to the whole of 
them. 
527. Did you enter the whole of them ? No; I did not. I only entered two-the Sydney polling-place 
and the Botany polling-place. I recorded my vote at Waterloo. 
528. You did not enter the New Masonic Ball polling-place ? Yes ; that is where I did enter. 
529. That wasithe Sydney one? Yes. 
530. Were you in the various booths more than once during the day ? No. 
531. When you entered the Masonic Hall booth, for what purpose was it? My object was to see who 
was actually my scrutineer there. 
532. When there, how many electors did you see at one time ? I would estimate the number altogether 
to be-disinterested parties, that is- 
533. I mean the number outside the officials ? About seventy or eighty persons altogether. 
534. At one time surrounding the officials ? Yes. 
535. Waiting to receive ballot-papers, as it appeared to you? Yes. 
536. Did they appear to you to be waiting for ballot-papers ? Yes. 
537. Do you happen to know whether any of them have recorded their votes ? I do not. 
538. Now, at Alexandria, how many people did you see inside the booth there ? I did not enter that 
booth at all. 
539. At Waterloo then ? At -Waterloo there seemed to be only those who had actually their numbers 
and were getting fairly attended to. 
540. At Botany ? The same thing occurred there. 

Mr. Alfred George Mihell sworn and examined :- 
Mr. 	541. Mr. Wise.] You were an outside poll-clerk at the hew Ma/sonic Hall, I believe ? Yes. 

A. 0. Millen. 542. When I say outside, I mean that, although in the hall you sat away from the ballot-box? Yes, 10 
r•-"•-"Th or 12 yards. 

26 July, 1889. 513. We have been told that during one part of the day there was a great rush of voters ? Yes ; a 
terrible rush. 
544. Were the arrangements adequate to accommodate all who came to vole? No; I do not think so. 
Mr. Dacey did not expect such a run of voters there. He told us when wo were appointed-Mr. Cook, 
Mr. Hannigan, and myself-that he did not expect a great rush, 80 that he thought three would do there. 
545. Can you say whether in your opinion any persons went away Without reomiding their votes ? Between 
1 and 2 there was a terrible crowd ;-sometimes 150 or 200 people in the room at once around my table. 
I found after the crush that the table and chair had been moved about 15 yards by the pushing. They 
were singing out one thing and another. Some were saying, " You are only giving the Protectionists 
tickets ;' others, "You are only giving the Freetraders tickets ;" and a lot were saying that if they could 
not get their tickets they would go away and not vote at all. 
546. There was a regular state of confusion for some time ? Yes; a terrible state. 
547. Did you hear many people say that they would go away-that they could not stay ? Yes. Ser-
geant Bra:dwell and a constable were doing all they could to keep the people back from me-froth poking 
their tickets into my ears. 

• 548. Chairman.] What tickets? Nearly everybody had a ticket with either Mr. Schey's or Mr. 
Anderson's name upon it, and his own number on the roll. They got them outside. 
549. Mr. Wise.] In your opinion, did any large number of people go away without recording their votes ? 
I could not say that for certain, but I heard them say that they would go, if they did not get their tickets. 
550. I do not ask you to say for certaim.but as a matter of opinion, you being on the spot, do you think 
many people went away without recording their votes ? I do. 
551. I believe yOu have taken no active part in the election on either side ? No. 
552. Did you vote on the day in question ? Yes. 
553. Where ? At the Masonic Hall. 
554. Mr. Williamson.] You are well known in Redfern ? Yes ; I have lived there nearly all my life. 
555. Nearly everybody knows you there? Yes. 
556. Did you know any of those who were poll-clerks or scrutineers at the Redfern booth? Yes ; I knew 
a lot of them. 
557. Can you tell the Committee whether or not those people knew you were appointed poll-clerk at 
Sydney ? They must have known it, because we were all appointed the same night in the same room. 
558. Chairman.] You were appointed by Mr. Daeey, the returning officer ? Yes. 
559. And made your declaration ? Yes. 
560. How many poll-clerks were acting at the New Masonic Hall ? I was what they call the outside 
poll-clerk. 
561. How many were there besides yourself ? During the day there was one appointed to help me, just 
for about a quarter of an hour. 
562. How many poll-clerks were there at the opening of the poll? I was one and Mr. Hannigan was 
another. 
563. You started. the day with those two ? Yes, but I had one table. 
564. How many ballot-boxes were there when you first started at the New Masonic Hall ? I think there 
was only one at the start ; I could not say for certain. 
565. You think you opened the poll with one ballot-box and two poll-clerks ? Yes. I would not Sear 
that there was only one ballot-box because I did not take particular notice. 
566. There might have been more than one ? There might have been. 
567. Were there any other appointments made during the day at that particular polling-place? Yes. 
568 What were they ? A young gentleman named Shyne was appointed to help me as p011-cletk. 

569. 
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569. At about what hour of the day ? About ten minutes to two. 	 Aft 
570. By whom was he appointed? I could not say. 	 A. G. Milaell. 
571. How do you know he was appointed ? He came in and spoke to me two or three times during the  
day. He was hanging about the place and he came and sat down, and I said "Have you got a position 	

6
Y' 

and he said "Yes, I have got to help you." 	 - 
572. That is all you know about it ? Yes. 
573. And you never questioned him any further ? No. 
574. Were any other appointments made ? I know there were extra gentlemen put on at the other table. 
575. I wish to ascertain whether there were any other appointments made during the progress of the 
election in addition to the officers who were present at the opening of the poll. You have already said 
that Mr. Shyne was ono, was there any other ? I forgot to mention that before the election was over 
there was another gentleman who sat down at my table. 
576. What was his name ? I do not know his name. He was a total stranger. 
577. Did you ascertain from him what his business was ? No. 
578. Did he make any statement to you ? No, he did not seem to like to mix up with us. 
579. Was he acting in any official capacity? Yes, be gave two or three different people their tickets. 
580. What do you mean by their tickets ? He gave them their number. He had a roll and he gave 
them their number. 
581. Did he give them any ballot-papers ? We did not have the ballot-papers. 
582. You did not have custody of the ballot-papers ? No. 
583. And your duty then would be to give the numbers to the electors as they came in and tick them off 
the roll ? Yes. 
584. And Mr. Shyne and the stranger also did that ? Yes. 
585. Were there any other gentlemen appointed ? Daring the day I believe Mr. Alderson and Mr. 
Barnard were appointed. 
586. What ground.; have you for such belief ? Only from seeing them sitting at the table after the rush 
was over. 
587. What is Mr. Alderson's christian name ? I do not know. I think it is T. Alderson. 
588. After the rush was over-that would be about 2 o'clock ? About a quarter past 2. 
589. After the rush was over at about a quarter past 2 you noticed Mr. T. 'Alderson and Mr. Barnard 
sitting at the table where the ballot-boxes were 	Yes. 
590. Did you notice them doing anything ? I noticed them right up to 4 o'clock the time the poll was 
closed, I noticed Mr. Alderson giving the different people ballot-papers as they came over to him. 
591. Do you know of your own knowledge whether Mr. Alderson initialled any ballot-papers 	mean 
did von see lit do so ? No; I was not in a position, I was too far away. I know there were two different 
initials on the ballot-papers that we opened. When Mr. Cook opened the ballot-box and got Shyne and 
myself to take the ballot-papers out and straighten them out, he told us to keep the ones that were mtialled 
in blue-they were his, to keep them by themselves and to put those initialled in black, which were Mr. 
AMerson's by themselves. He said that seine .  of Mr. Alderson's ballot-papers had got into his box. 
592. At the close of the poll did Mr. Alderson and Mr. Barnard assist to count the votes ? While Mr. 
Shyne the other poll-clerk and myself were taking the papers out of the ballot-box and straightening them 
out, Mr. Alderson and Mr. Barnard were taking the papers out of their ballot-box. 
593. You have no reasonable doubt in your own mind, but that Mr. Alderson and Mr. Barnard were acting 
there in an official capacity ? No. 
594. That was your impression ? Yes. 
595. Did you see them make any declaration ? I only beard Mr. Vaughan during one part of the day say 
to Mr. Alderson, " Come on and 1 will get you to sign this," and they went over to another part of the 
hall, and I saw Mr. Alderson take a pen, but I do not know whether he signed or not. 
596. Was that before or after he acted ? I could not say, I was trying to think, but I cannot possibly 
say, I know it was during the day. 
597. Was it the practice at that polling-place to admit a number of the electors in at one time ? The 
doors were open and they could come in just as they liked, I have acted before, and I never saw such a 
number of people voting between 1 and 2 o'clock. 
598. This practice retarded the taking of the poll ? Yes ; but to tell you the truth I did not lift friy head 
all the time between land 2 o'clock. They were singing out "James M`Caffrey" or "James Smith," or 
whoever they were, and of course :1; had to give them a number as they sang out. 
599. Do you consider the returning officer made proper arrangements to conduct the poll at that place ? 
He did not expect the voting to be so large. He told us he did not expect it to be so large. 
600. Then do I understand you to say that he made what he thought were sufficient arrangements to take 
the poll? Yes. 
601. And that there was a far larger number of electors than he expected? Yes. He told us when we were 
appointed, "I have made up my mind that Mr. Cook and Mr. Hannigan, and you are to take tile Masonic 
Hall, because you understand the business, and I want somebody down there who understands it." 
602. Why was Mr. Alderson put on during the day ? I think it was because the other gentlemen could 
not possibly do the work. At one time during the day when Mr. Cook saw there was such a crowd 
round, our table he sent his poll-clerk over to help me, and after the poll-clerk had been helping me for 
about ten minutes, Mr. Cook found that we were doing the work too quickly for him and there was a 
good crowd at his table so he commenced to sing out to me, " Mihell, Mihell, send my clerk back again, 
you are doing them too quickly for me," and his clerk had to go back again. 
603. Att. Hayes.] When you and Shyne were taking out the papers from the ballot-box did you see more 
than one ballot-paper folded together ? Not out of our box, unless there was one or two stuck in 
each other. 
604. One baying slipped within the other you mean ? Yes. 
605. Did yon see at any time in your box three ballot-papers folded up as one ? Not out of our box. 
606. Could there have been three papers folded up as one taken out of your box without your notice ? I 
am sure that every ballot-paper out of our box came through the hands of Mr. Shyne and myeelf, and I 
am sure I would have noticed it. 
607. It wouldhave been imiioesible.  to occur without your noticing it ? Yes out of our ballot-box.. Of 
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Mr.• COM:se while we were engaged doing that, Mr. Barnard and the other gentleman were engaged taking the 
A. (I'Mthell. ballot-papers out of their box. 

•608. You took each ballot-paper, straightened it out, and passed it on to the returning officer? Yes ; we July, 1889. straightened them out and piled them up, and then passed them on. 
609. Mr. Wise.] I suppose your attention would be occupied in taking the ballot-papers out of your 
box ? Yes. 
610. You would not watch the ballot-papers as they came out of the other box ? No. We were all 
engaged-the two poll-clerks and the scrutineers-at one box, and the only two who were disengaged 
were Mr. Barnard and the other gentleman. • 
611. Mr. Williamson.] Can you tell me whether your ballot-box was emptied quicker than the other one ;- 
Which was emptied quicker, your ballot-box or the other ? Ours was much the larger box. 
612. Then their ballot-box was emptied before yours ? Yes. 
013. Mr. Street] Who took the papers out of the other box ? Mr. Alderson and Mr. Barnard. They 
were the two gentlemen appointed during the day. 
614. Mr. Hayes.] Was Mr. Hannigan, the assistant poll-clerk, helping you to take them out of the box? 
No ; he was engaged in tallying. He was poll-cleric at the time at the other table-at the table of the 
presiding officer. 
615. Did he assist in emptying either of the ballot-boxes ? No; he only tallied. 
616. He did not assist you ? No • 
617. You axe clear about that? Yes ; quite clear. 
618. Only you and Shyne emptied out the ballot-boxes and straightened out the ballot-papers ? That 
was out of that ballot-box. No one else took one out. I may say that I took nearly every one of them 
out myself, because I used to take them out of the ballot-box and hand them over to Mr. Shyne. 
619. Chairman.] Was Mr. Hannigan acting at your ballot-box ? No; he was engaged in tallying. 
620. Mr. Hayes.] As a matter of fact, !Hannigan did not assist in emptying either of the ballot-
boxes ? No. 
621. Hr. Wise.] Can you say whether Hannigan had anything to do with Mr. Alderson's box any part of 
the time ? I am quite certain he had not ; he was engaged in tallying all the time. 
622. Was Mr. Hannigan sitting close by you? Opposite tome. 
623. But was he tallying from your box ? Yes. Well, Mr. Cook counted the papers that Mr. Alderson 
and Mr. Bernard straightened out. Mr. Cook took them and sang out the names himself. 
621. And Mr. Hannigan t•allicd ? Yes. 
625. And Mr. Hannigan you say was sitting close by you ? Yes ; sitting opposite to me. 
626. Chairman.] At the close of the poll, did you tot up the number of names on the electoral list that 
you had used? No; we had nothing to do with that at all. 
627. Therefore you do not know, according to the electoral list you used, how many electors applied for 
voting papers ? No ; I did not add them up at all. I was not asked to add them up. 

Senior-Sergeant Joseph Bradwell recalled and further examined:- 
8„„ . .8,,,„„t 828. II& Williamson.] Might I ask it in your official capacity as sergeant of police, you have been 
J. Bradwell. collecting evidence in this matter ? On behalf of either of the candidates ? 

629. Have you been collecting evidence at 	? I was collecting evidence. I was making an official 
20 ;July, 1889. inquiry into the matter on behalf of the police authorities as to any personation. 

630. On behalf of the police authorities ? Yes. 
631. Did you inform anybody that you were instructed by the Colonial Secretary to collect evidence in 
connection with this matter? I never said so. .1 never was instructed by the Colonial Secretary. I wai 
instructed by my Superintendent. 
632. You know Mr. Howe, one of the foremen at the Railway Works?  Yes. 
633. Did you ever tell him that the Colonial Secretary had instructed you to collect information respecting 
this election ? I did not tell him so. I told him I was making inquiry. I saw him there personally 
at the workshops. 
634. ; Do you remember any time since yesterday week calling on Mr. Howe to excuse two men who 
were late for their work ? Yes. 
635. Did you, on that occasion, tell him that you were instructed by the Colonial Secretary to make 
inquiries and collect evidence ? I did not-not that I was instructed by the Colonial Secretary; I never 
saw the Colonial Secretary. 
636. I do not suppose you did, but you might have got instructions? I got my instructions through the 
Superintendent of Police, Mr. Read. 
037. All I want to know is this did you or did you not tell Mr. Howe that you were instructed by the 
Colonial Secretary to collect evidence in connection with this petition? I did not tell him F30. 
638. .711r. Wise.] Had a man named Newton been to you and given a description of some man who he 
believed had ballot-papers ? I had seen a man named Newton. 
639. And he had given you a description of somebody ? Yes. 
640. Did you then apply to Mr. Dacey to take out a warrant for a person answering that description ? 
No; not in that case. 
641. Did you apply to Mr. Dacey at all for a warrant against anybody ? I did. 
612. In what case was that ? A case of personation at Redfern. A man named Collie was personated 
at Redfern. 
613. You had information which led you to believe that you could recognize the man who personated? I 
had it witness there-a person who was an official at the table. He said he could identify him. 
611. Did he know the name of the man, or did he only identify him by description ? By description. 
The man gave the name "Andrew Collie," and the proper Andrew Collie turned up in the afternoon 
after he had been personated. 
615. Did you then apply to Mr. Ducey for a warrant? I saw Mr. Daeey, and some conversation took 
plithe-would he take out a warrant Fl--and he wanted time to consider the matter. I got an anSwer in 
writinc,  subsequently to the effect that after inquiry they had decided not to take out a warrant. 

•616. Teti Welt present, I believe, at the counting Of the votes in the New Masonic Hall ? A portion of 
the time. 



670. You did not vote ? I got my paper at the door, but I did not vote. 	 62 'July, 1889. 677. You came to claim your vote and found that somebody else had voted for you ? Yes, I was euchred. 
678. Mr. Williamson.] What do you mean by saying that you got your paper at the door of the polling-
booth ? I got my paper downstairs at the entrance, and when I carried it upstairs to give it to the poll, 
clerk, in order to get a ballot-paper, it was rejected. I think my name ought to have been scored out 
downstairs as well as up above. 
070. It was not scored off downstairs ? No. 

674. Aft. Wise.] You are an elector of Redfern ? Yes. 	 Mr.  A. Collie. 075. Did you vote at the last election ? No • I (lid not. I was personated. 

8"1 

29 

017. During the time you were there can you say who took the votes out of the two ballot-boxes ;-did Sen.. Serginit 
you notice who took them out of the ballot-boxes ? I did not. 	 5. Brad well. 
618. Mr. Williamson.] When was it that you communicated with Mr. Darcy for the purpose of prosecuting. 

26 July,1889. this personator ;-how long after the declaration of the poll ? It must have been a week or ten days 
after the declaration of the poll. 
649. That was after it was publicly announced that Mr. Anderson intended to petition against Mr. 
Schey's return, was it not ? I do not know. I do not think the petition had gone in then. 
650. But it was publicly announced that Mr. Anderson intended to petition against Mr. Sellers return ? 
That was generally understood from the declaration of the poll. 
651. And it was ten days after the declaration of the poll that you made this application. Might I ask 
you when you got your information before you made your application -how long were you in posses-
sion of this information about which you speak ? It was a week after before I found out about Collie. 
It was on the Saturday afternoon after that that I saw Collie, and it was Sunday evening before I saw 
Riley, and that would make it about a week after. 
652. Mr. Brie.] Were you alongside Senior-constable Meyer at the time when the three ballot-papers 
which were alleged to be folded up were taken out of the box? I was. 
658. Who took those papers out of the box? I could not say. 
654. Were you not in as good a position to see as Senior-constable Meyer ? I was. I do not know that 
Meyer had seen them until. I nudged him. I never actually saw them taken out of the box. I saw them 
first when the presiding officer took them off the table to count them. 
655. Who was employed in taking the papers out of the ballot-box in which were the three papers that 
were folded up ? Mihell , I believe. 
656. And who else? At that particular ballot-box there was Mr. Barnard. 
657. No other but Mihell ? The other two, the scrutineers, were tallying off, and the presiding officer 
was counting ;  so that there would be nobody else. The table was full of papers which were being 
straightened out. 
658. 'Did you sec Mr. Hannigan there ? Yes ; I saw Hannigan. 
059. Was he employed ? Yes; I believe he was. 
660. Then, ifiMr. Mihell has sworn that Hannigan had nothing to do with it he has sworn what is false ? 
I am not very clear about the part that Hannigan took in the matter. I am not very clear on that point. 
I believe he was straightening out the papers. 
661. Mr. Hayes.] You stated in your evidence before the Committee. on the 18th July, that you saw three 
papers folded together as one, and that they were laid on the table and handed to Mr. Alderson? Yes ; 
first handed to Mr. Barnard and then passed to Mr. Alderson. 
662. You did not see these papers taken out of the ballot-box ? I did not. 
663. Were you looking on for any time before you saw this ? I was from 4 o'clock until about half-past. 
I was standing immediately in the rear of the presiding officer. 
661. What did the poll-clerk, who was taking the papers out of the ballot-box, do with them as he took 
out each paper ? He was straightening them out and putting them in heaps. 
665. What did he do with them after he had put them in heaps ? They were passed on to the presiding 
officer for counting. 
666. Was that done in this case ? In this ease the table was literally covered with papers. 
667. Perhaps you do not understand the question. The poll-clerk took the papers out singly and 
straightened them out in heaps and passed them on to the presiding officer for counting ? Yes. 
668. And it was then that you saw these three papers ? Yes, on the table. The presiding officer 
took up these three papers in front of him. 
609. if the poll-cleric took the papers out of the ballot-box and spread them out on the table in heaps as 
you describe, how was it that you managed to see these three together ? The table was covered with 
papers. Although he was engaged in doing that, the table was literally covered with papers, and the 
presiding officer after finisbin

e'  
trIlis heap took up papers from in front of him and amongst them were these 

three papers-immediately in the front of him ; and when he turned them over I saw they were initialled 
by Mr. Alderson. He looked at them after turning them over, and passed them over to Mr. Barnard 
alongside of him, and Mr. Barnard passed them over to Mr. Alderson. 
670. Did the poll-clerk do that ? I do not know in what capacity they were acting. 
671. Mr. Williamson.] You say you saw these three ballot-papers opened out ? Yes. 
672. There are three pieces of paper, representing three ballot-papers,-can you show the Committee how 
the papers were folded ? [Witness:faded the papers.] 
673. Senior-Constable Meyer was in as good a position as you were to see how the papers were folded ? 

presume he was. 

Mt Andrew Collie sworn and examined:- 

Mr. John Bonynge Taylor sworn and examined :- 
680. .71fr. TVise.] 1 believe you were acting as scrutineer for Mr. Anderson at the Redfern election? Yes. 	Mr. 
681. Mr. Dacey I believe was the presiding officer at the Redfern booth and also returning officer ? Yes. J. B. Taylor. , 
682. Did you see him acting in any way that .you thought was improper ; and, if . so, what was he JAI?  Yes, I .  did, in this way :-In the first place there was a voter who went with his ballot-paper from L I 26 July, 1889. 
tAble, and this voter was standing in the centre of the room, or near about the centre of the room, and 

Mr. 
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Mr. 	Mr. Dacey went up to him and was speaking with him, and putting his finger across Mr. Anderson's 
.J. B. Taylor. name.  
r-Lr' 683. Had the voter at that time his ballot -paper ? Yes ; and Mr. Dacey followed him up to the box where 26 July, 1889. he had to scratch the name out. 

684. Was Mr. Dacey standing by him when the name was scratched out ? He followed him up to the 
box, and he tried to find a pencil, and then went back again to the box. 
685. With a pencil ? No; he could not find one. 
686. Do you know the name of that voter ? No. 
687. Can you tell me anything else that you saw ? I got up then from my table, and went to L M table. 
The scrutineer, Mr. Ogilsby, was sitting there, and I drew his attention to it. 
688. Did you notice anything else? There was another similar thing. I did not know that he came from 
the far end of the room, this voter, and he went up and was speaking to him, and the voter had his paper 
in his hand at the time, and hadn't voted, and he had finished speaking to him, but did not follow him to 
the box. The voter went and voted, and put his paper into the ballot-box. 
689. Did you see Mr. Daeey mark it ? No ; only in the first instance I saw him put his finger across 
the name. 
690. Did you see him do anything else of a similar character ? That was all I took notice of. This was 
not within my hearing when he was speaking to these voters, and not within the hearing of the other 
scrutineers. 

• 691. Did you make any remonstrance with Mr. Dacey about this ? No; he went away. I could not run 
about after him I was sitting at the table ; I had to mind my own business. The reason why I could 
noticcall this was because I had a very easy duty to perform-N to Q I was sitting at. 
692. At the conclusion of the counting did you make any request to Mr. Dacey ? Yes. 
693. What was it ? After we had checked off the votes I wished to have the official tickets with the 
numbers from the outside poll-clerks counted; also the ballot-papers unused, and the ballot-papers used. 
They declined to do soboth Mr. Vaughan and Mr. Pricey-. 	 • 
694. Mr. Frank Smith.] What do you call the official tickets from the outside poll-clerks ? The official 
tickets are from the Government Printing Office. Voters cannot bring their number up except with 
these official tickets. There is a heading printed on them, and the outside poll-clerk sends up a number 
with pencil on. If they bring up a private card of any description with a number on it is not recognized. 
695. Mr. Wise.] The numbers that are given by the outside poll-clerks? Yes ; the official tickets are 
given by the poll-clerks outside. 
696. Were the official tickets you mean, tickets with numbers on-the numbers voted? No; there was 
no other. printing on that I noticed. They were the only tickets recognized by the presiding officer. 
They had to come from the poll-clerks outside the booth. 
697. But do they not contain the number of votes? Yes ; I wanted these counted. 
698. And you say they were on a special official form on this occasion ? Yes. 
699. Did anybody besides the officials assist Mr. Dacey in counting the votes? No. 
700. Do you know Mr. Parr ? Yes. 
701. 'What was he doing ? I do not know what capacity he was in, but he was all over the room. 
702. Was lie present at the counting ? No. 
703. Who was acting as poll-clerk from L to M ? I do not know ; it was a boy. 
704. About what age did he appear to be ? I suppose sixteen or seventeen. I am going by my own idea. 
705. You do not know his age, but he looks quite a boy ? Yes; he waS not seventeen years, I believe. 
What made me take particular notice was that Mr. Lucas came and got his ticket from him The man at 
the It T table drew my attention to the contrast. 

Mr. William John Ogilsby called in, sworn, and examined:- 
Mr. W. J. 706. Mr. Wised Were you one of Mr. Anderson's scrutineers at the late Redfern election? Yes. 

Ogileby. 707. Did you see the returning officer do any-thing which in your opinion was improper ; and, if so, what? 
1---"'m I saw one of the voters come up to the table to vote, Those who did not know how to vote he asked if 26 July, 7889. they knew how to vote. Some would say no, and then be would instruct them. 

708. How ? He would tell them if they wanted to vote for one person to leave it on the paper ; but if 
not, to strike it off. Then I saw him follow the voters to the ballot-box. He followed them in several 
instances to the box. What occurred there I do not know. In all other cases they were struck out 
before the scrutineers. 
709. In some cases they were struck off in the box, and Mr. Dacey-  was present in the box ? Yes ;. behind 
the voter. 
710. Was anyone else present to see or hear what was done or said ? No. 
711. In how many cases did that occur ? Two or three I know particularly. One of the other scrutineers 
drew my attention to it. 
712. Did  you remonstrate in any way with Mr. Dacey ? No; I saw it occur at a previous election. 
713. Who was the returning officer at the previous election ? Mr. Darey. 
714. Mr. Williamson.] Were you engaged at the same table as Mr. Dacey was sitting at ? No. 
715. How far were you from Mr. Dacey's table ? He was walking about the whole time. 
716. Did he never sit down at all ? Very rarely. 'When the presiding-officer wanted to go down for 
anything he took his place at the table. 
717. Do you know of any voters who came up there who could not read or write? I do not know their 
names, 
718. Do you know the names of any voters to whom he spoke ? No. 
719. Did you mention this circumstance to anybody since the election? Only at Committee meetings. 
720. How long after the election? The same night. 
721. Did you Say nothing to Mr. Dacey at 'all? 	; I did not at this election. 
722. Judguag from the way in which you express yourself here, you have some knowledge of carrying on 
elections. Yes. 

• 723. If you thought that Mr. Dacey was acting in an improper manner why did you not remonstrate with 
him? 
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him ? I did so during the previous election ; but he told me that it was the returning officer's duty to do mn.w. 
that. 	 Ogitsity. 
724. Notwithstanding your knowledge, you accepted that as correct? Yes; I thought it was left to the 26  j;ntyLia 
returning officer's discretion, and that was the reason why I did not remonstrate. 
725. Who has been tutoring you since that it was incorrect ? No one at all. 
726. No ono at all ? No; I do not know whether it is correct or not. 
727. Has no one at all been speaking to you on this particular subject? No. 
728. Have you given any testimony before coming here ? Yes; anything that occurred there. 
729. To whom ? To Mr. Anderson's committee. 
730. To anybody else ? No. 
731. Did you to Mr. Hawkins, who is here? Yes ; he was at the committee meeting. 
732. The same night ? No. 
733. How long afterwards ? Two or three nights afterwards. 
734. Was that the first time you spoke of it after the declaration of the poll ? I spoke at the declaration 
of the poll, and we had a meeting afterwards on the question. 
735. Mr. Ityrie.] Was there any complaint lodged against Mr. Dacey at last general election except your 
own ? I think other scrutineers spoke of it. 
736. On other matters ? No; only in respect to going behind the voters. 
737. At last election ? Yes, 
738. Mr. Williamson.] You do not know what the voters said to him ? No; I do not know anything 
about what occurred. 
739. Chairman.] Will you explain to the Committee whether it was Mr. Dacey's practice to accompany 
every elector to the ballot-box ? No. 
710. Or only those who had signified that they did not know how to read or write ? Yes ; those who did 
not know how to vote-not read or write. 
741. Would it be the class of men generally known as "marksmen" who cannot read or write ? I should 
say yes. 
742. I want you to let the Committee know clearly whether it was that class of electors whom the 
returning officer accompanied to the ballot-box, because you led us to believe that he accompanied the 
electors to the ballot-box tuid then erased the name for them ? Oh no, they did it themselves ; he did not 
crate any names for them. 
743. While you were at the table did you hear any of those men asking any question that would lead you to 
believe that they could not read or write ? Yes ; some of them said they could not. 
744.. What would the returning officer do then ? The names were struck off in the presence of the 
scrutineers. 
745. Ho would ask the voter for whom he wished to vote, and he erased the name ? Yes; I saw that done 
at the table. 
746. I want to clearly get at this : Did he, while he accompanied any elector to the ballot-box, erase a 
name at the ballot-box ? Not to my knowledge. 
747. Do you know if there was any apparent reason why he should accompany any elector to the ballot-
box ? No ; I cannot give any reason. He simply instructed them. He let them go across, and he went 
behind. 
748. Did any elector call him aside privately as to the names ? Not to my knowledge. 
749. Do you think that any elector, being unable to read or write, would be somewhat ashamed to make 
his ignorance known in public, and therefore would ask the returning officer quietly ? I never heard 
anyone do that. 
750. Had you ample opportunity from where you sat of seeing whether a name might be erased or was 
erased ? Yes. 
751. Mr. Wise.] Was there any reason in your opinion why he should accompany them to the ballot-
box ? No; I simply state what I saw. 
752. You saw no reason ? No; _I saw him go into the box with some men, and not with others. When 
the names were struck off in the presence of the scrutineers, it was when the voters could not read. There 
is one other case which I might mention a voter got a paper and took it across to the ballot-box, but 
he made a mistake and brought it back to the presiding officer. He wanted another ballot-paper, but of 
course he could not get it. He said he made a mistake. He said he did not want to vote that way. Mr. 
Dacey came across and held the paper. Mr. Sehey's name was left oil, and it was demanded that it 
should be put in the box. The man refused, and wanted to destroy it. Mr. Dacey wanted to call the 
constable to arrest him for destroying Government property. He then put it in the box. 

Mr. Arthur George Mihell recalled :- 
753. Mr. Wise.] Was ti:ny opportunity afforded you to inspect the ballot-box used by Mr. Alderson Mr. A. G. 
previous to its being locked up for receiving the ballot-papers ? No ; I never had anything to do with Mihell. 
that box. . 	 ,-..._.A......--, 
754. Mr. Willia9nson.] Had you anything to do with the other ballot-box ? Yes ; what I said before 26  July, In% 
was, that I took all the ballot-papers out of one box. 
755. But before the ballot-papers were put in either of them ? I did not go to that table at all. 
756. You had nothing to do with either ballot-box, except taking the papers out after polling ? Yes. 

Mr. John Roland Duey called in, sworn, and examined :- 
754, Mr. Wise.] Were you returning officer at the last Parliamentary election at Redfern ? Yes. 	Mr. 
757. Did you fix the New Masonic Hall as one of the polling-booths ? No. They fixed it in the Colonial 3'.11. %coy. 
Secretary's office, I might state that it is not usual for them to do so, but the polling-places were created 
so late that they thought it would aid me if they secured a building. 	 26 July, 1889 
758. Was it done at your suggestion ? No. 
759. Then who do you say did secure the building. Had you any communication with anyone about it ? 
No, I believe the chief clerk in the Colonial Secretary's office secured the building. 

760, 
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Mr. 	760. Had you any communication from him to say that it was secured ? Yes, a verbal one, when I called 
B. PaceY' here on the following day. 

761. Do you mean Parliament House ? Yes, the Legislative Assembly Chambers. 26 July, r 89. 762. Whom did you see ? I saw Mr. McKenny. 
763. You were satisfied that it was a recognised polling-booth ; that is all I want to know ? Yes. 
764. Whom did you appoint as poll-clerks to that booth? Myhill and Hannigan. 
765. On the day before the day fixed for taking the poll did you give each of them a certified copy of the 
electoral roll ? No, it was given into the possession of the presiding officer. 
766. How many copies did you give to the presiding officer on the day of the poll ? Three. 
767. Who was the presiding officer ? Mr. G. F. Cook, of Burwood. 
768, For whose use were these three rolls intended ? One for each of the poll-clerks, and one for his 
own use. 
769. In the course of the day, that is the day of election, did You yourself make any other appointment ? 
I appointed a deputy returning officer. 
770. Was that appointment in writing ? Yes. 
771. Do you produce it ? The deputy has it. 
772. Who is he ? Mr. Vaughan. 
773. You appointed him deputy then ? Yes. 
774. And is that the only gentleman that you appointed during that day ? No ; I appointed a poll-clerk 
and sent him to the New Masonic Hall-a man named Newton. 
775. Then are these two the only gentlemen that you appointed during that day ? That is all. 
776. Was Mr. Vaughan the deputy returning officer at the New Masonic Hall booth ? No ; 
appointed Mr. -Vaughan as my deputy to go to Waterloo and the New Masonic Hall and to act in my 
absence. 
777. Will you let the Committee understand exactly to what position Mr. Vaughan was appointed ? IJe 
was appointed to act in my absence. 
778. Li what way? If I should be absent from the booth. 
779. You yourself were able to act that day as returning officer ? Yes. 
780. Then you did act on that day ? Yes. 
781. You were not prevented yourself from attending at the booths ? No; not at Redfern. 
782. Now will you state what was your reason for appointing a deputy returning officer ? When I 
appointed this officer I took the advice of an expert as to how I should act, and he told me that when 
there were a number of booths all in one building, the returning officer should supervise the lot, and that 
in ease of his absence lie should always appoint some one who would hold a written authority as his 
deputy for fear of any flaw. I appointed Mr. Vaughan at the first election, that is the one previous to 
this, and at this election under that advice from Mr. 8olomons who is in Gordon and Gotch's 
783. The poll was taken on the 8th July, was it not ? Yes. 
784. When did you send the ballot-papers in ? On the 12th. 
785. What was the reason for the delay in sending them in ? Delay. 
786. Yes ? The election took place on the Monday ; I did not offer to send them in on the Tuesday, but 
on Wednesday I gave instructions for them to be sent in. I told Mr. Vaughan. I went to the Council 
Chambers at about 3 o'clock and I asked Mr. Vaughan if the ballot-papers had been taken in and he said 
"no." I said, "If the man is not here by a quarter to 4 do not let them go to-day for fear they might be 
brought back again; I do not care that that should be done." 
787. On what tray was that ? On Wednesday. I came in here to the Legislative Assembly Chambers 
wanting to see if the man had brought the papers in. I saw Mr. Webb, the chief clerk. I told him I was 
waiting for the man to bring the papers in. He said, "They are not here." I said, "I told him not to send 
them in if the man was not at Alexandria before a quarter to 4." Mr. Webb then said it did not matter as - 
there was no particular hurry for them. However, I wished to have them in ; I did not want the 
responsibility of looking after them ; the papers did not come in that day, and on the following morning, 
Thursday, the man called at tbe Town Hall for them ; it was amining heavily and Mr. Vaughan fold him he 
must get a tarpaulin and if he could not get it he would not allow the papers to go out in the wet ; the 
man tried to borrow a tarpaulin, but could not get it, and he did not take the papers in until the next 
morning-that was Friday. 
788. Who was the man? Loveridge. 
789. Where were all the papers collected ? I had a boot trunk at the Redfern Town Hall on the day of 
the election, and as the parcels came in from the different polling-booths they were deposited in the trunk. 
790. On the night of the election then all the ballot-papers used in the election were deposited in tho 
trunk ? Yes, in parcels. 
791. Was each parcel numbered and sealed ? Yes. 
792. By whom? By the presiding officer. 
793. Were the rolls which had been used by each presiding officer also sent in with these parcels ? Yes. . 
794. Were they tied or sealed in any way ? I could not state positively ; I am under the impression -. 
that they were. 
795. When they came into your possession were they tied or sealed ? I believe they were. 
796. Tied or sealed, or both ? I took the packets from the presiding officers personally, and I presume 
that each roll was placed in the parcels according to my instruction. 
797. Did you receive any rolls on that evening that were not in the packet ? Yes ; all the poll-clerks' 
rolls. 
798. Did you receive any presiding officers' roll which was not in the packet ? Not that I remember. 
799. But you did receive the poll-clerks' rolls outside the packets ? Yes. 
800. And to the best of your belief you will swear that all the presiding officers' rolls were, in accordance 
with your instructions, put inside the packets and sealed ? Yes. 
801. Did the rolls also come in on the Monday night as well as the packets of papers ? Yes : they came 
in altogether. 
802. Was the boot-trunk locked in any way ? Yes ; there was a lock and key on it. 
803. Was it locked after the papers were put in ? As the returns came in 
804. Will you answer my question ;-was the box locked up on that night? It was tied up and sealed; at 
least so I understood from Vaughan. 	 ' 	805. 
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805. Did you leek it that night ? No ; my deputy was present making up the returns, and as soon • Mr. 
as he got the last return in his statement was handed to me, and 1 immediately went out to declare J. R. Dac°3'• 
the poll to the people. While I was declaring it Mr. Vaughan secured the box, and it was gone when 
I came out. 	 26.7uly, 1889. 
800. From that moment-when did you next see the papers ? I saw them next morning, when I initialled 
the parcels. 
807. You initialled them? Yes; I signed my name to each packet. 
808. Did you open the packets for that purpose ? No, 
809. What then became of the papers ? They were looked up in my room in the Town Hall. 
810. Who had the key ? Vaughan. 
811. Still I do not understand why it was that you did not send in these papers until Friday. Have you 
any other explanation to give, except that which you have already given to the Committee ? Not that I 
am aware of. 
812. Were you not aware that a petition was going to be presented ? Yes. 
813. You became aware of that on the Tuesday morning ? On the Monday night. 
814. Were you then aware that one of the allegations in the petition would be that there was all Mean-
sistency in the votes recorded and the votes counted ? No. 
815. I suppose you see the morning papers and read them? Not always; 1 have not read to-day's. 
816. Did you see that it was alleged In the Evening News on the Tuesday that there had been double-
voting at Redfern and Alexandria ? 1 do not remember. 
817. You did net see that stated in any paper ? I remember seeing a copy of the petition in the Daily 
Telegraph. 
81.8. I am not speaking of that ; but before that date had you not seen it alleged in the Daily Telegraph 
of Tuesday, and in the Evening News, that there had been considerable double-voting at Alexandria and 
Redfern ? .1 am not prepared to swear that I did see it. 
819. Are you prepared to swear that you did, not know on the Tuesday that the allegation was made ? I 
am not prepared to swear that I did on the Tuesday ; I have not a distinct recollection on the point. 
820. You may have heard it without seeing it in the papers. Are you prepared to swear that you did not 
know on the Tuesday that that was one of 	allegations made by Mr. Anderson and his supporters ? It 
was utterly impossible for me to know what the nature of their allegations was. 
821. But, as a fact, will you swear that you did not know on the day of the election the nature of the 
allegations made by Mr. -Anderson and his supporters ? That I did not know the nature of the allegations 
of Mr. Anderson on this date. 
822. On the day of the polling? Decidedly I did not know; I had no connection with Mr. Anderson and 
I could not take notice of idle rumours. 
823. Did you not know on the Tuesday, then, that it was alleged that there had been considerable double 
voting between Alexandria and Redfern. I want a plain answer to that question-yes or no ? If I am to 
go by rumour I might say yes. 
821. Now knowing that there was a rumour to that effect why did you keep these packets of papers and 
the rolls until Friday locked up apparentlyin a boot-chest ? 1 think I have stated that 1 gave instructions 
that they were to be sent in on the Wednesday. 
825. Have you no other explanation to offer than that whieh you have already offered ? Nothing beyond that. 
820. Was the lock of tins boot-trunk of any peculiar construction ? If 1 remember right Mr. Vaughan 
bought a - little padlock for it. 
827. Did you yourself do the locking ? The box was taken to the Mayor's room at the Alexandria Town 
Mall ; it was tied up and sealed with sealing-wax. I believe that the lock of the boot-trunk broke at 
Redfern. Vaughan, 1 believe, tried to Open it and broke it in the morning. 
828. Did yo.0 seal the box yourself? Vaughan soaledit. 
829. When did he seal it ? After I had initialled the packets. 
830. On the Monday night ? On the Tuesday morning% 
831.. Is the box you see behind 3rOLL the box containing the ballot-papers used al; the last Redfern 
election ? Yes. 
832. That is the condition inth which it wa-s put on the Tuesday morning? Yes. 
833. Where was it lying all Monday night? In the Mayor's room, at; the Alexandria Town Hall, 
locked up. 
831. I thought - you said it had no lock to it? It was locked up in the room. _ 
835. Is that box in the same condition as when it left your possession ? Exactly the same. 
836. Mr. Wise.] You see there is no lock upon the box, so that you must have been mistaken in swearing 
in the first instance that it was locked ; and secondly, that it was padlocked ? 1 did not swear any such 
thing ; I never swore that it was locked at all ;. I said the room was locked. 
837. Did you not swear that a small padlock was put on it ? That it was put on the box-yes. 
838. Chainnan.] Yon mean this box ? Yes. 
839. Mr. Wise.] When was it put on ? On the Saturday. 
810. Do you mean the Saturday before the poll ? Yes. 
811. Then when was it taken off ? The box was taken to the Redfern Town Hall, containing the ballot-
papers and the rolls , and so forth, locked up. Mr. Vaughan informed me that when he went on Monday 
to take out the ballot-papers he had to break the lock. 
812. 1Vas the padlock on it On the Monday night ? No ; Vaughan broke it on the Monday morning. 
813. You told me when speaking of Monday or Tuesday that the padlock was then on the box; I want to 
know when you first saw it on the box ? On the Saturday night. 
811 When did you last see it there ? On the Monday. 
845: After 8? No. 
846. During all the answers you were giving me 5 minutes ago, will you swear that you were referring to 
Saturday ? With referance to the lock ? 
817. Yes ? I swear I Was. . 	. 	. 	. 
818. You wish the Committee to believe that when I asked you these questions as to whether Thaboi 
was locked, speaking as I was with reference to Monday and Tuesday, you gave your answer' speaking.of 
Saturday ? With reference to the padlock. So far as the security of the box goes it was locked up - in 
my room. 
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Mr. 	849. But as to the padlock ? Yes. 
tr. IL Dun' 850. Then you wish that to be your evidence? Yes. 
.2i1July,1889. 851. You now swear that you sealed the box on Tuesday morning ? Vaughan sealed it. 

852. Then we may take it that immediately after the declaration of the poll until the seal was put on 
these papers were lying in an unlocked open box ? They were lying in this box tied up. 
-853. With no lock on the box ? No; I may say that we are not required to send the papers in a box, 
we are required to send them in in parcels. 
851. Immediately after the declaration of the poll did not Mr. Anderson demand a. recount? Yes. 
855. Now, I ask you did you not consider it your duty, as presiding officer, seeing that Mr. Anderson had 
demanded a recount, to take particular care of the ballot-papers and of the rolls ? So I did. 
850. You consider that you did take particular care in leaving them in an open box in a room at the 
Council Chambers ? I put them under lock and key, I could take no more care than that. 
857. You allowed them to remain in an open box in a room at the Council Chambers? The box was 
sealed and tied up, and was locked in the mayor's room at the Alexandria Town Hall. 
858. Was it sealed up, do you say ? Well that I could not say. 
859. Did you not swear ten minutes ago that it was not sealed tilt Tuesday? I do not know what 
-Vaughan-did when he took the box away while I was making the declaration of the poll. 
860. Have you not sworn that you saw Vaughan seal it up on the Tuesday ? Yes, after I initialled the 
papers on the Tuesday, but you are alluding now to Monday night. 
861. Who had the key of the room in which the papers were kept on Monday night ? Vaughan. 
$62. Was there no other key ? Not that f know of. 

W 863. hose room was it ? The mayor's room. 
864. And you say that there is only one key to the mayor's room? That is all 1 know of. 
865. Has not the caretaker a key ?' No, gr. Vaughan is the caretaker. 
866. Do you think it ivas.your duty as returning-officer, seeing that a recount had been demanded, to 
have kept the ballot-papers so long in your custody? It was not iny desire ; 1 desired that they should be 
sent in on -Wednesday. 
867. You see, do you not, that it opens the door to the suspicion of the papers being tampered with ? Of 
course it might do so. 
868. Who took the papers from the Council Chambers at R.edfern on Monday night? Vaughan. 
869. Was a man 'mined Barnard helping him ? Not that I know of. 
870. Will you swear that he did not help to carry these packets of papers out of the Redfern Town 
hail ? I could not say ' • I was out on the balcony making the statement. 
871. What position had Barnard in connection with the election ;-had he any official position ? He was 
a scrutineer. 
372. Who appointed him ?, 	presume Mr. Schey. 
873. Did you authorize him to act as a poll-clerk ? No. 
874. -Was Thomas Alderson an official connected with the election 7 Ile was a presiding officer. 
875. Who appointed him? 31r. Vaughan. 
876. Without your authority ? I sent Mr. Vaughan. 
.877. Will you answer my question ;-was it with your authority? Yes, in an indirect way ; I gave 
Vaughan full power. I sent him to the New Masonic Hall to see that everything was going on all right, 
.and I told him that if anything occurred which was not right he was to adopt measures to set it right ; 1 
-considered that authority sufficient if be thought that an extra presiding-officer was required. 
878. Can you point to any section of the Act authorizing you to appoint a deputy returning-officer 
with power to appoint presiding-officers? I do not think I could. 
879. Chairman.] How long have you acted as returning-officer for the electoral district of Redfern ? I. 
have acted since the last general election. 
880. Then you 1116Ye acted on two occasions? Yes. 
881. On the occasion of the last election how many polling-places were there in the electorate, and AVIA 
were their names? There were polling-places at Red EOM .A lexandria.  Waterloo, Botany;  and Sydney. 
882. At Sydney, the New Masonic Hall? Yes. 
888. Were all these polling-places advertised ? Yes. 
884. Was there a division at each or any of these polling-places ; for instance did yen divide them by 
letter? Yes; there were eight divisions at Redfern. 
885. Take Redfern first ;-can you tell me how the letters ran ? 1. could not state deliniMly how the letters 
ran, but the alphabet was divided intmeight divisions. 
886. And were there eight ballot-boxes there? Yes. 
887. Was there a division at any other polling-place? At Alexandria the alphabet was divided into two. 
888. And were there separate ballot-boxes ? Yes. 
889. Were there divisions at any other polling-place ? Yes, at the New Masonic Hall. About dinner-
time there was another presiding-officer appointed there. 
890. How many voting places were there at the New Masonic Hall? Two, 
891. Will you be good enough to giro me the names of the presiding officers you appointed, to act; at each 
of these polling -places ? John Skinner at Redfern, Arthur Skinner at Redfern, George Garten at 
'Redfern, N. Collins at Redfern, Joseph Hineheliff at Redfern, George Matthews at Redfern, E. Berry at 
Redfern, and Hodges at Redfern. 
892. And at Alexandria? James Ralph and William Marr. 
893. And at the New Masonic Hall? Cr. P. Cook and Thomas Alderson. At Waterloo James Spicer, 
and at Botany J. J. 319.fadyen. 
894. Were those all the presiding officers ? Those are all. 
895. Were they all appointed by you ? All with the exception of Mr. Alderson who was appointed by 
Mr. Vaughan. 
896. 'Do you know whether they made their declarations? Yes. 
897. Are you a Magistrate? No. 
898. Do you know before whom they made them ? The majority think before Mr. Smith, 	of 
Waterloo. 
899. I should like a list of the poll-clerks of each of these polling-places? I have not that with me but 

will furnish it, 	 900. 
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000. At which polling-place did you preside ? At Redfern. 
901. At which place did Mr. Vaughan, whom you have said yon appointed deputy returning offi 

	

	3'. R. Dace!: cer,  
,ide? He was not in charge of a box anywhere. 28 July,1889.. 902. He did not preside ? He did not actually preside. 
903. Do you know if any of your presiding officers were prevented from attending by illness or other 
sufficient cause and had to appoint anv person to act in their stead ? Not that I am aware of. 
901. Under what section of the Act did you appoint Mr. Vaughan a deputy returning-officer ? I took 
an expert's advice, the advice of Mr. Solomons, and he advised me to do this. I was guided by him and 
he was recommended to me by the chief clerk. 
905. Have you read the Electoral Act ? Yes. 
906. And do you know that there is no provision, made in that Act for the appointment of deputy 
returning-officers ? In reading it over last night I was certainly struck with the opinion that there was 
no such provision. 
907. How many ballot-papers had you printed for this election ? Speaking from memory I think 
about 9,000. 
908. Can you tell me where they were printed ? At the Government Printing Office. 
909. Was there any distinctive mark upon all these ballot-papers, such as the printing-office impress?. I 
could not say. 
910. Will you be good enough to tell me how you apportioned these ballot-papers among the different 
polling-places? Speaking from memory I believe we gave out 800 for each presiding officer. 
911. I want you to be certain about this? I am under the impression that we gave SOO to each presiding 
officer. 
912. But you are not quite positive ? No. 
913. Did you issue the papers yourself ? Mr. Vaughan issued the papers, and made up the packets for 
each presiding officer-he would be more clear on the point than I am. 
914. Could you tell me how many of the number of ballot-papers issued you received back from each 
presiding officer ? They are sealed up in each presiding officer's parcel. 
91.5. You know, of course, how many were required of each ? Yes. I had a printed statement furnished 
to each presiding officer, who had to fill in in figures the number of papers he received, and the number 
that were used ; the remainder, of course, appeared on the return. This return was filled in by each pre-
siding-officer, I presume, and the balance would be sent to the Colonial Secretary's office. 
910. I understood you to say that you furnished each presiding officer with a certified electoral roll ? Yes. 
917. Certified under your hand ? Yes. 
918. Did you have any examination made of these electoral lists after the close of the poll ? No. 
919. Did you compare the number of Totes ticked off on the roll with the number of votes polled? No, 
I had too much work to do ; besides it would not be reliable ; the poll-clerks often make mistakes, and 
give the wrong numbers. 
920. Did Alderson receive his appointment under your band? 	; he was appointed by Vaughan. 
921, Do you know whether be made Ins declaration ? I believe he made his declaration before Mr. 
Stephen. 
922. Did you appoint an additional polling-clerk at this time ? Yes, a man named Newton. 
928. Did lie make his declaration ? That I could not say. 
921. After the close of the poll did you receive the used ballot-papers in sealed parcels from each of the 
presiding officers ? Yes. 
025. What did you do with them ? The used and the unused papers were sealed up in the packets. 
926. Then you do not know if the unused ones were really there ? I do not know positively. 
927. So far as your official duties are concerned, you believe that all the papers used are in these sealed 
packets ? The papers of every description. 
928. When did you receive them ? On the Monday night just before the poll was declared. 	 • 
929. What did you do with them ? I put them in this box. 
930. And where was that box put ? It was in a room about the size of this. Vaughan was there. It 
was at the Redfern Council Chambers, and as each parcel came in while he was making the return up I 
put them in this box. As soon as the last return came in he handed me the list of returns, and I left him in 
charge of the box and went out on to the balcony. 	 • 
031. Did you seal up your own ballot-papers at the polling-place at which you presided ? At Redfern 
all of our papers were sealed under my supervision. 	' 	 • 
932. And you collected the whole of the papers together in this box ? Yes. 
938. On Monday night it was left unlocked and unsealed ? I was under the impression that this box 
was in the state that it is in now with the exception of the seal. 
934. You left it unsealed and unlocked, locked up in a room at the Alexandria Council Chambers ? Yes. 
935. Who had the key of the room ? Vaughan. 
936. Does he keep the key ? Yes. 
937. How long did the box remain there ? It remained there till Friday morning. 
938. Did you take possession of the key from Vaughan ? No, I had not possession of it at all. 
939. He had possession of the key continuously ? Yes. 
910. You had no occasion to refer to the documents Cr papers in that box while it was in the roomia't 
Alexandria ? No, only to put my name on each packet. 
941. When did you do that ? On the Tuesday morning. 
942. You had access to the papers after Monday night then? Yes, with Mr. Vaughan. 
943. He was present ? Yes. 
944. Who sealed up the box before it was despatched to the Legislative Assembly Chambers ? Vaughan. 
045. Did you see it before it was despatched? Yes. 
946. You saw it after it wias sealed ? I am not quite clear about that. 
917. When you finally instructed Vaughan to send the box to the Legislative Assembly Chambers was it 
then sealed ? The last time I saw the box on the Tuesday morning Mr. Vaughan called me in to sign 
each packet. He then put them in the box and tied it up. I then left. I mid not be sure whether the 
box was sealed before I left the Town Hall or not. 
948. As a matter of fact you cannot swear positively that that box was sealed when you last saw it ? I . 
am-under the impression that it was, but I could not swear it. 	 - 949. • 
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Mr: 	949. Did you see it after that before it reached the Legislative Assembly Chambers? After Tuesday' 
L.11. 011 0E17. morning? 

950. Yes? No ; I am not aware of seeing it afterwards. I do not remember being in the room after 26 July, 1889. that. 
951. Air. Hayes.] When you initialled, the sealed parcels received from the different presiding officers on 
the Tuesday morning did you notice that any of the parcels were in any way tampered with ? They 
were not tampered with in any way. 
952. Immediately after they were put in that box you sealed it, or saw it sealed by Vaughan ? No; 
Vaughan proceeded to tie up the box, and to seal it. I would not swear that I saw him seal it, but I am 
under the impression that I did. 
953. gr. Frank Smith.] How often were you at the Masonic Hall on the day of the election ? Not at 
all ; I was at Redfern. 
9.54. Did it come to your knowledge that any of the ballot-papers were out in the street in the hands of 
any one ? No. 
955. Have you any means whatever of telling the Committee whether the balance of unused ballot-papers 
corresponded with the number of votes polleTi? It will be shown by the returns. 
956. But you have no memorandum of any kind ? No I am under the impression that the number of 
unused and used papers make up the totals received by the presiding officers. I understand so from the 
presiding officers. 
957. .31h Williamson.] Did Mr. Anderson approach you on the day of the election with regard to 
additional assistance at any of the polling-booths ? Yes ; at Waterloo. 
958. Did you grant that assistance ? I sent Vaughan over there. He came back, and informed me that 
no assistance was required ; consequently I did not appoint any one. 
959. Vaughan is your council clerk, is he not ? Ye. 
NO. And he is a trustworthy officer ? Yes. 
961. He resides. alongside of the Town Hall, does he not ? Yes. 
962. His residence is provided for him by the Council ? Yes. 
963. 3Ir. Frank Smith.] Was Mr. Oglesby a scrutineer ?I. cannot remember ; I do not know the 
scrutineers' names. 
904. Did you show anyone at the Redfern polling-booth during the day how to vote ? Yes ; those who 
stated that they were unable to vote. 
005. No one else? No. 
066. Lid any man come and ask you which way he should vote. Were you sitting at the table all day, or 
were you walking about the polling-booth ? I was passing from one table to another ; disputes were 
continually arising. 
067., Did any man ask you how he should vote, and talk to you with 'a ballot-paper in his hand respecting 
the candidates in any way ? • No. One man came to me in the centre of the floor, and said he wanted to 
vote for Mr. Schey ; I told lilin to go back to the table to the presiding officer ; he went to the table and 
thapresiding officer recorded the votafor him. 
968. Were there many votes recorded by persons who could not read or write in your booth that day? 
No; I do not think there were. 
969. Not many? No. 
970. Mr. Street.] Was any report made to you about a. large number of personations taking place on that 
day ? No. 
971. Did the police subsequently apply to you for the arrest of any person for personation? Yes ; very 
often disputes arise -at the table. Men come in and it is found on reference to the list that some one has 
voted for them. It appears that one man Caine up to one of the tables, and he was told that Ms vote was 
taken. I am informed that the poll-clerk said, c' It is all right ; I know who personated you." I did not 
know this till afterwards. I called for a report from the presiding officer, and he did not think that this 
poll-clerk was to be taken much notice of. It seems that he was acquainted with him, and that he did not 
consider it worth while paying much attention to what he said ;  he took no notice of it, and he would not 
advise that a warrant should be issued on this poll-clerk's statement. 
972. Dir. Wise.] Who was that presiding officer ? John Skinner. I furnished a copy of the report to 
the police. 
973. Hr. Street.] You declined to issue a warrant for the man's arrest ? Yes ; without the recommen• 
dation of the presiding officer. 
074. Arr. Wise.] Did those persons, whom you showed how to vote, vote in the presence of the scruti• 
neers of each candidate ? Yes ; at the table. 
975. In every instance ? Yes; in every instance. • 
07. 0. Did you in any instance accompany a voter to the ledge upon which they strike out the names of 
the candidates and stand behind him while he did it? Decidedly not. 
977. Then if that has been sworn to by two witnesses it is false ? Yes. 	. 
978. You said Oaten the Tuesday morning you signed or initialled the packets of ballot-papers? Yes. 
979. Why did you not do it on Monday night ? Well, really I do not think that after such a day's duty I 
was called upon to go and initial these papers at night. 
980. That is your answer ? Yes. 
981. What was the necessity for initialling them at all? Just to show that they were the packets I • 
received. Vaughan suggested that I should do it, and I did so. 
982. If the initials signify that, does it not strike you that it ought to have been done immediately the 
packets were received ? No they were virtually in my possession all the time. 
983. You say you received all the papers on the Monday night ? Yes. 
984. Can you swear that in every case the roll forwarded with the papers was inside the packet ? I could 
not without examining the papers, which I could not do. 
985..At what polling-place did you preside? I was in charge at Redfern. 
980. I believe you have taken a prominent part in polities in the Redfern electorate ? I do not think Bo-
net more than the ordinary run of people. 
987. How long have you been a resident in the Redfern electorate ? Five years. 
988. Did you come front Victoria then ? Yes. 
989. You appointed Mr. Cook one of the presiding officers ? Yes. 	 990. - 
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990. What knowledge has he ot this electorate ? He had acted previously. 
991. On your appointment ? Yes. 	 J. R. Dace3-.  
992. Do you know that he had only lived in the electorate a few months? Mr. Cook fivea at Burivood. 
993. Does he not live at Redfern ? He has an establishment there, and he has an establishment at New- 26July,1883. 
castle also. 
994. Did you not know that he had only lived in the Redfern electorate a few months ? 'No *; I think he had 
lived in it twelve months ; he had a draper's shop in the Botany Road. 
995. Did you appoint a boy named Currie a poll-clerk ? Yes. 
990. Do you consider it a proper thing to appoint a boy to such a position ? I go by competency, not 
by age. 
997. You consider it proper then to appoint a boy ? Provided be is qualified. 
998. Chairman.] What was the age of the boy ? Seventeen, 
999..71/5-. Wise.] What are the qualifications for these clerks ? A boy with sharp sight might be able to 
find the numbers very quickly ; in this case I think they were found more quickly than by the other two 
put together. 
1000. Is it not necessary that this officer should have some personal knowledge of the electors in order 
to prevent personation ? No ; I do not think so. 
1001. Don't you think for the same reason that it is desirable to make all your presiding officers men of 
long personal acquaintance with the clectoiate ? No ; I do not. A man may be so occupied that he 
would not see the party to whom be was giving a vote. 
1002. Chairman.] After the poll had been taken, or during the progress of it, did any elector or any 
other person mako any complaint to you that any of your presiding officers or clerks had committed 
irregularities in the discharge of their duties, or had done anything considered to be improper ? No, I 
may state that one of the presiding officers, I cannot remember which, told me that he had sealed up his 
clerk's roll instead of his own. 
1003. Ma. Wise.] Will you swear that that was not Cook or Alderson ? I am under the impression that 
it was IVIacTadyen of Botany. 
1004. What had become of his own ? His own is there too. 
1005. When did you receive it ? On the Monday night. 
1000. Can you remember whether Barnard brought you any roll or parcel of ballot-papers? I cannot 
remember that he brought me any roll or ballot-papers. Alderson brought me a packet and Cook 
brought me his 

' 
• in fact each presiding officer brought his ONTII 

1007. Mr. Franis Smith.] Alderson was appointed by Vaughan ? Yes. 
1008. I notice that there is a bundle of rolls in the box-what rolls are they ? The poll-clerks' rolls. 
1C09. Chairman.] The official rolls are rolled up with the ballot-papers ? Yes. 
1010. AL:. Street.] And you say that all these packets came in sealed up as they are on Monday 
night? Yes. 
1011. Did you certify each copy of the rolls used by the presiding officers ? Yes. With reference to the 
question which Mr. Wise has asked me as to the position I have taken in the electorate I have received 
this letter from the Hon. John Sutherland's Committee, and I will read it because I think it might help 
to explain matters :- 

• 	 Sutherland Committee Rooms, Regent-street, 4 February, 1889. 
R. Dacey Esq., Returning Officer, Electorate of Redfern,- 

Sir, 
We the undersigned beg to acknowledge the courtesy and great facilities afforded IT you to its in the conduct of 

the election just completed, and also your strict impartiality in taking the votes. We do this spontaneously, believing you 
deserve the same. 

We arc Sir, on behalf of the Hon. John Sutherland Committee, 
Yours very faithfully, 

0. A. TAYLOR, Hon Sec, 
JAMES PICKERING, for the Committee. 

P.S.-You arc at liberty to use this in any way you may think fit.-J. P. 
1012. Mr. Williamson.] This is not the first occasion on which you have acted as returning officer ? No. - 
1013. On a previous occasion upon which you acted Mr. Anderson was a defeated candidate ? Yes. 
1014. He did not make any complaint about your conduct at that time ? He said he was perfectly 
satisfied. 

Mr. Kelson Vaughan called in, sworn, and examined :- 
1015. Mr. Wise.] You are council clerk to the Borough of Alexandria ? Yes. 	 Mr. 
1016. I believe you acted under appointment from Mr. limey as deputy returning officer at the late R. Vaughan. 
Parliamentary election for Redfern ? Yes. I made my declaration as presiding officer and T was 
appointed by Mr. Dacey as deputy returning officer. 	 26 July, 1883. 
1017. Have you that appointment with you ? It is in the hands of the Colonial Secretary. 
1018. During the day did you appoint Mr. Thomas Alderson ? Yes. 
1019. As what ? Shortly before 1 o'clock Mr. Dricey felt a little anxious as to the' polling-place at the 
New Masonic Hall; he asked me to go down there; I arrived shortly after 1. o'clock; I saw a large crowd 
of people; in fact the crowd was so large that I could not see any of the officers who had been appointed 
by Mr. Dacey. Mr. Berry, a supporter and friend of Mr. Anderson, was very persistent in his demand for 
further assistance •, I saw that it was necessary, and after some little time I asked him if he would act. 
1020. Chairman.] Do you mean Alderson ? I asked Berry if be would act but somebody outside inter- - 
jected the remark, " I object." Then I asked another gentleman if he would act and he refused. • I then 
saw Mr. Alderson standingby himself • he was apparently taking no interest in the election or any part of it. 
1021. Had he not Mr. Schey's card in his hat ? I believe he had, but I did not see it then; 1 will mention 
that matter presently. When I asked Alderson if he would act he at first objected but he afterwards said, • 
"I see that you are in a difficulty-I will do so, but mind the appointment is none of my seeking." Mr. 
Alderson then made a declaration before Mr. Stephen as presiding officer, and Mr. Shying made a 
declaration before Mr. Alderson who is a JP., as a poll-clerk. I then took a cab immediately and found 
a ballot-box. 
1022. What did you do with the ballot-box ? I brought it to the New Masonic Hall. 
1023. What did you do with it there ? I gave it to Alderson and placed him in charge of it. 

1024.. 
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Mr.. 	1024.  K 	 Did you t 0rice eaeh of the poll - clerks and scrutineers au opporthnity of inspecting the - ballot -box . Vaughan. . , •oetore it was locked ? Yes, they had every opportunity. • 
26 J.,i6, 1.8-e* .  1023. Did you held it up to them ? T. took it up; they were all sitting at the table; they could see it was • 

	

. 	empty ; it; had glass sides. 	 • 
1026. Did you appoint Barnard to act ? No. 
1027. Theta if -Barnard acted with .A.1derson in giving out the ballot-papers he was acting irregularly ? • 
B o rude a declaration as a scrutineer for Mr. Schey. 
1028. he had no authority whatever to touch the ballot-papers ? Not that I know of. 
1029, Do you know as a fact that he was handing out; ballot-papers ? He was not doing so when I was there. 
1030. You were not there all the time ? No; when I was there Alderson was giving out the ballot-papers 
himself. I said, "Be careful and initial each ballot-paper and give .them out one by one." After I brought 
in the ballot-box I went into the shop and bought some requisites.! then saw -  the ticket in Alderson's 
hat and I went up to him and -called .  Ins attention to the fact. He took it out of his hat and he said, 
" Why aid you not tell me a.bout it before-I am very sorry." I said, " I did not see it" 
1031. Were you present at the counting of the votes at the New Masonic Hall? No. 
W32. Who did - preside at the count ? Mr. Cook was the presiding officer he was appointed by Mr. 
Dacey a. night or two before. 
1033. Mr. Williamson.] By whom were you asked for additional assistance? By Mr. 'Berry. 
1031. Are you positive of that ? Certainly; I can call •witne.sses to prove it ; he was most persistent in 
ins demand for further assistance. 
1035. He said yesterday lie did not; which statement is correct? lain correct ; I am positive about it. 
1036. Let Me refer you to question 229 of the evidence ? I am certain it was he; lie was most persistent 
in his demand for assistance. 
1037. When he applied for assistance did you ask him to take the position? Yes, he was the first person 
asked. 
1038. Nis. Frank Smith.] "ow many ballot-papers did vou give to Alderson ? There were S00. given to 
Cook, and I think 200 to Alderson. 
1039. Did you count: Alderson's ? Yes. And I would draw attention to this fact in reference to 
Alderson's box : that there was a majority in favour of Anderson of over 12 per cent. while Cook's box 
showed a majority of about 6 per cent. for him. 
1010. You did not; count Alderson's ballot-papers ? Yes. 
1011. And you say there were 200? Yes. 
1012. Did you hear anything about ballot-papers being outside ? No. 
1043. 	 Can you tell me the total number of papers taken out of Alderson's box ? I have a 
copy of the return at; home-about 1.51 1 think. 
1044. Were the.votes put indiscriminately into either box ? They may have been put into either box 
but the presiding officer afterwards sorted out the papers. 
1015. According to the initials ? Yes, after the election was over. 
1045. Were you there at the time of the crush ? When I was there I could not see the offieets. I 
have been connected with a number of elections, but I think the crush on this .occasicin was 
unprecedented. 
1046. Do you think any persons were deprived of their votes ? They would have been if we had not 
provide.d extra assistance ; a. good many came, and said that they were anxious to get back to their work 
at 2 o'clock. 
1017. At what limo did von provide the extra assistance? A portion of the extra assistance was provided 
at 20 minutes past 1, and the remainder about half-past I. 
1(4S. You say there were men who were anxious to get back to their work at 2 ? They expressed them-
selves anxious to do so, and got very excited about the matter, They said they would have to go back to 
work as they could not lose the time. 
1.019. Mr. _Crank Smith.] 'Was the crush over at 2 o'clock ? No I do not think it was. I left a little 
before 2, or I should say rather, at half-past 1, to get the ballot-box. 
1050. Was the crush over then ? It was increasing then. 
1051. When did you get back PA little after 2. 
1052. Was the crush bad then ? No. But I believe a crush took place afterwards. 
1053. What time was that ? I could not say. 
1054. Was it while you were there ? No; I think there was aerush about 4 o'clock. 
1055. Did anyone complain to you that they could not vote ? No, 

	

- 	1056. Chairman.] You are clear as to the number of ballot-papers you supplied to Alderson, and also as 7 
. 7 to the number you supplied to Cook ? Quite clear. I received 9,600 papers from the Government 

Printing Office, and 1 issued 9,500 to the different; presiding officers; the balance of 100 was sealed up 
with the papers in the box ; 1,100 went down to the new Masonic Hall. 
1057. How many were retained for Redfern - ? 5,500; 1,400 went to Alexandria ; two eight hundred's to - 
Waterloo ; and 800 to Botany. 
1058. You do not know about the number of unused papers returned ? They are sealed up in the parcels. 
I might state that -each presiding officer was supplied with printed duplicate returns, and that these were 
all signed by the scrutineers. 
1059. When the poll was over did you, as deputy returning officer, examine' the rolls ? No, I did not 
examine the rolls. When the poll was over I was at Redfern, and I told the presiding officers there what 
to do in connection with the rolls ; they got the returns signed in duplicate, and a duplicate copy Was 
given to me. 
1060. That is just what I want to know ; I want to know whether the number of names ticked off on 

	

' 	the electoral roll was totted up after the poll ? No, they were not, and I never knew that to be done ; I 
do not think it is the usual practice. I might state that iMr. Dacey always expressed himself anxious that 
every vote possible should be polled. This New Masonic Hall was a new polling-place, and he was anxious 
in connection with it; my instructions from him were, quite irrespective of my position as deputy 
returning officer, to provide-assistance, ift were required. I have no doubt that if the assistance 
had not been' afforded complaint would have been made that people were deprived of their Votes. 
1001. Mr. Wise.] Wet% you' present when -these' pftckets• Of ballot-pipers 'were sent in On the Monday 
night ? Yes.. • • 

•
1062. 
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1002. From all the polling-places? Yes. 
1003. Were the presiding officers' rolls inside the parcel of hallot-papers? Yes, inside. . 1064.. In every instance ? in every instance, I believe. 

:0  258- .”--17Z11,1111,. 9. i• - 1005. Will 	vou swear that the electoral roll was in no case outside of the packet ? I cannot say ; I 
not remember. 

e 	1060. Wilt you swear that that was not the case? I will not swear about it ; I instructed every presiding 
- officer as to his duties beforehand: 
1067. When these parcels of papers came in what was done with them ? They were put into a box. 
1.008. Was that box locked ? No ; it was roped up—tied with a rope. 

- 1009, Chair/non] Is that box by your side the box ? Yes ; there are two locks on it, but both docks 
have been broken. It is an Mil boot trunk ; it was left at the Alexandria Council-chambers for me to 
put the parcels in for the presiding officers ;  there was a clasp on it, and in shutting-  down the box it 
somehow got pushed back ; in -bending, it out again it broke off. A local locksmith 'fixed on a padlock. 
At Redfern, when I was trying to lock it when several witnesses were present, I. saw, looking inside, 
that the catch of the lock was broken ;  it was a little brass padlock. I tied the box up with rope at 
night, and with assistance took it down to the Alexandria Council-chambers, where I locked it up in the 
Mayor's room. 
1070. When did you take it down to Alexandria ? Directly after the preparation of the return. 
1071. When was that? On Monday evening while the returning officer was declaring the poll I got (ho 
box carried out and took it down to Alexandria where I locked it in Mr. 1/any's private room. 
1.072. Do you happen to know why it was left there till Friday ? Mr. Ducey called and saw me on 
Tuesday; he spoke about the box, and said he would send me a carter for it. The carter came down on 
'Wednesday afternoon, when it was too late to send it away. He came again on the following morning ; 
it was raining very heavily, lie was not provided with proper conveniences to take the box away. 1 

- told him to see if he could borrow a tarpaulin, and that if he could not borrow one I would pay for one. 
I was anxious to get the box away. I did not see him again. It seems that he tried to borrow a tar-
paulin but could not obtain it. 	did not see him till the following morning. 
1073. During all this time where was the box ? Locked up in the -Mayor's room. 
1074t. 8uppose no special seal was used ? It wits sealed up in the usual way, with the usual wax. 

.1.075. Me, It'iss.] The wax did not bear the impress of any particular seal? No. 	' 
1076. Nor did the wax on the parcels containing the ballot-papers? No; no seal was provided; I do 
net think there was any seal upon them. could not say lor certain. I saw that sealing-wax had been 
used but I. tobk no particular notice of it. The course I have seen adopted previously was adopted in 
this particular case in connection with the papers. 
1.077. /11C. 	 You ha-d been engaged in elections at Redfern before Mr. Dacey was appointed 
returning officer ? Yes, and previously there were complaints about people being unable to record their 

•votes. 
1078. Hr. Mel Did you ever see the papers kept form days in tin unlocked box it the Council Chambers 
at any other election at Redfern, or anywhere else ? Certainly not ; but the box itself was seal ed on Tuesday 
morning, and, as I have explahied,- certain circumstances prevented its delivery. It should have been 
delivered on the Wednesday. I spoke to Mr. Daeey in connection with the matter. 
1070. Choi;-man.] Had you charge of the key of the room all the time ? Yes. 
1.080. From the Monday until the time the box was dispatched to the Legislative Assembly Chambers ? 
Yes. 
1081. During that time had any person access to the box ? No one could get access because the room 
was continually locked; they could not get in without breaking open a window, or breaking open the 
door. I never heard a single complaint in connection with the election -until the following day, apart 
frOM the talk as to Alderson's appointment. 

TITURSDA I. AUGUST, 1889. 

iIrrcitutt-- 	• 
Mr. 3. I', A bl»tt 
Mr. Hayes, 
Mr. Lee, • 

i\ Ii'. Ryrie, 
Mr. Frank Smith, 
Mr. Street. 

  

C. A. Lee, E. 	in the Chair. 

Mr. Wise, instructed by Messrs. Carruthers and Hawkens, appeared for the Petitioner. Mr. M. A. - 
Williamson appeared for the sitting Member. 

• — 
Ni. George Frederick Cook sworn aml examined:- - 

-1082. Choi rove n.] Where do you reside ? At Durwood, near Sydney, but I. have come now from 	Mr. 
as Newctle. 	 G. P. Cook. 

-1083. Did you act in any official capacity or the last election for Redfern ? 1 lid. I :meted as presiding 
officer at the Sydney booth in the New Masonic. Hall. 	 Aug., 185u. 
1084.. Mr. Frank Smith.] Who appointed you ? Mr. Dacey. 
1085. How were you appointed? iii the ordinary manner by declaration, at thc Alexandria Town Hall. 
1086. Only that?' Yes ; I had. a communication from Mr. Dacey, asking me would 1 act as presiding 
-officer at, the election, and I said yes. He told me then to be in attendance at the Alexandria Town Hall 
on a. certain dale. I was there and took the necessary declaration. 
1087. Where were you stationed on the day of the election ? At the New 'Masonic Hall. 
1058. All day ? Yes. 

-1.089. Who else was there with you ? At the start of the-poll there was a poll-clerk aud en outside poll-
clerk as well as myself, but during the day there was another presiding officer appointed. 
1090. What was his name ? I believe it was Mr..Alderson. 
1091. 'Where was Mr. Alderson stationed—at the- feline place is yourself 	Teti; 
1092. Were you both together all day ? Yes. 
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1093. 1Vas anybody e18e with you at the table? Yes, the scrutineers on both sides. 
1091. Had Mr, Alderson the same control over the ballot-papers as yeti had ? Yes, Mr. Vaughan gave 
him ballot-papers the same as he (lid me and he used them the sa.me, as I did by a  the backs of 
them and handi4them to the electors as they came to the table. 
1095. Do yen know in what capacity Mr. Vaughan was acting ? As deputy returning officer. 
1096. Did he take ballot-papers from you and hand them to Mr. Alderson, or did he give him a fresh 
packet? He took his own packet-he had two separate packets. 
1097. He did not take them from you and give them to Mr. Alderson ? No. 
1098. Do you know the names of the perBons who were with you and Mr. Alderson at the table? The 
only one I knew was Mr. Barnard who was next to me. 
1099. Had he access to the ballot-papers ? No. 
1100. Did he handle the ballot-papers at all that were under your charge ? Not to my knowledge. I 
cautioned him against touching them. 
1101. AVas he going to touch them ? No, but when the tickets came from the outside poll-clerk he was 
throwing them over where I was throwing mine, and I told him that by no means was he to touch ally of 
my stack-he was then handing the tickets from 111.. Alderson. The crowd was right around us, and when 
an elector would come to Mr. Alderson with his ticket, Mr. Alderson would turn up the eleetor's - mune in 
the book, and pass a ballot-pa-per to Mr. Barnard, who handed it over to the elector, whom name was 
ticketed of Until we got the rush away from the table. 
1102. Did you have anybody assisting youin the same way ? No; tit least at one particular time before Mr. 
Alderson was appointed Mr. Vaughan came into the room and assisted ine in handing 1-he ballot-papers. 
1103. Mr. Vaughan took the ballot-papers from you and gave them to the electors ? Yes ;  as I challenged 
them. 
1101. How do you know that he gave the ballot-papers to the right person ? 	the parties in each 
instance said " Yes" when I called their name and address. 
1105. Then you handed the ballot-papers to Mr. Vaughan ? Yes. 
UK Not to the man who said " Yes"? No. 
1107. How do you know that Mr. Vaughan in every instance gave them to the right man ? I could not 
swear it. 	• 
1108. You say that there was yourself and Mr. Barnard who was next to you ;-on which hand was he ? 
On the left-hand side. 
1109. And on which side was Mr. Alderson? Further on again on the left-hand side. 
1110. And Mr. Barnard was between you and Mr. Alderson ? Yes. 
1111.. And he could have had access to the ballot-box ? Yes ; Paine was in front of me. 
11.12. Did you Bee Mr. 13arnard take any of the ballot-papers from Mr. Alderson's pack ? No. 
1113. You say you saw him-that is Mr. Alderson-hand them to Mr. Barnard to give to the elector in 
the same way as you handed them to Mr. Vaughan ? Yes. 
1114. At what time was the rush ereatest ? Between 1 and 2 o'clock. 
1115. Was it possible for Mr. Alderson with that rush occurring to tell what Mr. Barnard was doing with 
the papers ? Yes. 
1110. How many people were mind about the table ? I should reckon there were a-bout fifty or sixty 
people around the table at one time. 
1117. What size was the table P About 6 feet lw 4 feet. 
1.115. Mr. Alderson's duly was to find the numbers and hand the ballot-papers to the electors? Yes. 
.1119. And instead of doing that he kept on finding the numbers and -handing the ballot-papers to Mr. 
Barnard to give to the electors ? Yes ; during this time I was under the impression that Mr. Barnard was 
;1 poll-clerk for Mr. Anderson, Mr. Vaughan gave me specific; instruction 5 as to the appointments he 
had made, lie just told Mr. Alderson to get Ins directions from me. 
1120. Mr. Vaughan did not loll you that Mr. Alderson had been appointed assistant presiding officer ? 
Yes ; he came to Inc and asked me my advice as to whether I thought it necessary to appoint a presiding 
officer, and I told him I thought we had got through the worst of the rush and could manage ourselves. 	• 
11.21. What time was that? 1. should say that it was about half-past 1. 
1122. Was the rush over then ? There appeared to be a bit of a lull. 
1123. Was Mr. Vaughan with you then assisting you to hand the papers to the electors ? No. I think 
be went away from me .  and went over to assist the outside poll-clerk. 
1.124. When was Mr. Vaughan assisting you to hand the ballot-papers to the electors ? Between 1. and 2. 
1125. When did Mr. Alderson go on ? I should reckon about half-past 1. 
1126. -What time did Mr. Vaughan leave of assisting you? He was only a few minutes assisting Inc. 
When Mr.:Vaughan came into the room I had no poll-clerk. I had sent him to relieve the pressure at the 
outside poll-cleric's table when the rush came to my table. I sent a constable to bring back my poll-clerk 
and keep the way clear to the ballot-box. Then Mr. Vaughan appeared on the scene and assisted Inc in 
distributing the ballot-papers. 
1127. -What time did Mr. Barnard take the table? Somewhere about the same time as Mr. Alderson 
came to the table. 
1128. •Then you concluded that Mr. Barnard came there as Mr. Alderson's poll-elerlc, as limy came 
together ? Yes. 
1129, And you saw Mr. 'Barnard hand the ballot-papers to the electors, and in your opin:ion Mr. Alderson 
could tell whether the ballot-papers got into the correct hands ? Yes. 
1130. Yet you say you will not swear that the ballot-papers handed on your behalf reached the proper 
hands ? To the best of my belief they did. I exerted all my powers to see that the right parties got their 
ballot-papers. 
1131. But you would not swear it in your own case, and yet you swear Mr. Alderson could have done it ? 
-Well, Mr. Alderson had never had experience in an election before-he was a bit green. 

Would he not be all the more likely to let the ballot-papers go into the wrong hands ? No, not 
necessarily. 

• 1183. Do you know Mr. Barnard' No. 	 •• 
1134. You do not know whether he had had any exrerienee P I could not say. In fad they, were -ail 
Btimigers to Inc. 	 • 	1185. 



41 
. 	. 	 Mr. 1135. Did anybody complain to you that he could not vote at that particular time between 1 and 2 o'clock ; 

that he could not get his ticket ? No; one party slapped me on the back and said," This is a pretty 	.G. P..Cook. 

1136. What did he mean by that ? I suppose that he meant that he could not poll sufficiently quick. .1 Aug., 1889. 
1137. Did he poll his vote ? I could not say. 
1139. Have you any knowledge of any ballot-papers being exhibited outside the booth ? No. 
1139. Mr. Ityrie.] -While the ballot-japers were being handed to the voters and they called out "Yes," 
did anyone make an objection or find fault that be had not received his ballot-paper ? No. 
1140. And you believe they were handed to the electors properly ? I believe that each man got his own 
ballot-paper. 	 • 
1141. AIr. I. P. Abbott.] Where were you residing when you got your appointment ? At Burwood. 
.1142. Had you previous to that been living in the electorate of Redfern ? Yes. 
1143. For how long ? I lived on the Botany Road for about eighteen months. 
1.111. That was the whole of the time you were living there ? Yes. 
1145. Mr. Anderson says you were wily carrying on business there as a draper for eight or nine months? 
It may have been so. 
1146. But you say eighteen months ? Well, I cannot exactly tell the time. 
1147. There is no doubt there i'as a great rush between 1 and 2 o'clock at the New Masonic 	? 
There was. 
1148. Was there a lull afterwards ? After 2 o'clock there was. 
1140. And any of those persons who could not vote between 1 and 2 o'clock had many opportunities of 
Voting between 2 and 4? Plenty. 
1150. And there was no reason why they should not do so? No. In fact I had sufficient time to call 
back all my polls with my polling-clerk after 2 o'clock. 	 • 
1151. Chairman.] Do you know how many ballot-papers you received for that booth ? About 800. The 
return will show. 
1152. Did you receive them in packets ? Yes. There was 100 in each packet. 
1153. Do you remember receiving eight packets ? I could not be certain; I think 800 was the poll. 
1154. Do you remember seeing any particular mark upon the ballot-papers, such as the impressed seal of 
the Government Printing Office ? Yes ; I think it was on all of them. 
1155. Did you use the whole of the papers that were supplied to you? No. 
1156. What did you do with the unused papers ? I put them all in the packet. 
1157. Sealed them up ? Yes ; sealed them all together with the other papers at the close of the poll. 
1158. At the close of the poll did you calculate the number of voters ticked off on your official electoral 
electoral list ; did you count them you  see how many there were ? No. 
1159. You do not 

you 
 whether thenumber ticked off on your electoral list corresponded with the number 

of ballot-papers in the ballot-box ? No. 
1160. I presume you remained at your post all day ? Yes ; excepting two or three minutes when I went 
away to attend to the calls of nature. 
1161. Had you any reason to suppose that the ballot-papers were improperly introduced into the ballot-
box ? In what way do you mean ? 
1162, In any way ? Not to my knowledge. Each man got one ticket, and he came and put it back into 
the box again. 
1163. Had you any reason to suppose that any elector was putting in more than one ballot-paper? No. 
I stationed a constable at the door to see that no one took their ballot-papers out of the room. 
1164. Could you have detected it if it had taken place ? If my attention had been directed to a man 
putting his paper into the box I could tell if lie was putting in a bundle or only one. 
1165. Could you tell if he was putting in two ? I do not suppose I could, unless it was done very 

1166. When the ballot-box was opened at the close of the poll did you find more than one ballot-paper 
folded up together ? No. 
:1.167. Did you find two folded together ?No. 
1168. Or three ? No. 
1169. Or four ? No. 
1170. Or more than four ? No. 
1171. They were all single ? Yes, 
1172. Had you any dispute with the scrutineers or The candidates or the poll-clerk as to whether any 
particular votes should be declared formal or informal ? No As I threw them out I submitted the votes 
to the scrutineers and they were perfectly satisfied that they wereinformal. In fact Mr. Schey's scrutineer 
did not seem to bother his head much ;-it was Mr. Anderson's scrutineer who seemed to look into all 
matters. 
1173. There was no dispute ? No dispute at all. 
1174. Can you inform the Committee of any irregularity alleged to have occurred at the polling-
place ? No. 
1175. Are you aware of any ? No. 1: think the election was carried on fairly and above board. 
1176. Have you acted at an election on. previous occasions ? Yes, at Redfern. 
1177. Once or more? Once. 
1178. As presiding officer ? Yes. 
1.179. Mr. T. P. Abbott.] Who appointed you at Redfern on the former occasion ? Mr. Dacey-it was 
at the general election. 
1180. Mr. Wise.] You were in charge at the New Masonic Hall booth ? Yes. 
1181.. -Who was Mr. Anderson's scriitineer ? I could not tell his name. 
1182. Was it Mr. Bradford ? I think it was sonic name like that. 
1182. Did you allow him to handle the ballot-papers ? No. 
1184. Do you know that Mr. Barnard was acting as scrutineer for Mr. &hey ? Not at that particular time. 
1185. Who was acting as scrutineer for Mr. Schcy in that booth ? I could not tell his name. 
1186. Will you swear that you do not know? Yes. 
1187. Then if it has been sworn by Mr. -Vaughan or by Mr. Dacey that Barnard was a scrutineer for Mr. 
Sehey in that booth, Will you say that it is incorrect ? I could not contradict it. 

478-F 	 1188. 
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Mk. 	1188. To the best of your belief Barnard was scrutineer for Mr. Sehey ? No, to the best of my belief he 
'G. F. Cool" was poll-clerk for Mr. Alderson. 
r")--"Th 1139. Are you prepared to swear that you remember any other person except Barnard present his 1 Aug., 1889. credentials as scrutineer for Mr. &hey in that booth? No. 

1190. Why did you allow Barnard to handle the ballot-papers ? The deputy returning officer was present 
in the room ; he had the fixing up of things. It took me all my time to poll the votes. 
1191. I understood you to say that during the rush the deputy returning officer was not there ? He was 
there in the room assisting me to distribute the ballot-papers. 
1192. I thought you said you had to send for the outside poll-clerk ? No, I said that I sent my poll-clerk 
to assist the outside poll-clerk. 	. 
1193. Then do you shift the responsibility for Mr. Barnard's banding the ballot-papers on to Mr. 
Vaughan's shoulders? No. 
1194. You take the responsibility yourself ? Yes, 
1195. Was there anybody but Mr. Barnard present as Mr. Schey's scrutineer ? That], could not say. 
1196. When you saw Mr. Barnard handing the ballot-papers did you not inquire what right he had to do 
it ? It was only a matter of a few minutes. I was under the impression that he was poll-clerk to 
Mr. ,Alderson. 
1197. Had you not seen him in the room all the morning previously ? No. 
1198. Will you swear it ?. Yes. 
1199. Will you swear that he had not been in the room ? I could not swear it, but he was not sitting in 
the room where I was. 
1200. However, you say this : That if Mr. Barnard was not Mr. Schey's scrutineer, you cannot name 
anyone else who was ? No more than that there was one of Mr. Schey's scrutineers sitting at the table 
all the day from the start. 
1201. Besides Mr. Barnard? Yes. 
1202. Then Mr. Salley had two scrutineers during a portion of the time if Mr. Barnard was one ? Yes. 
1203. 'Had Mr. Anderson two scrutineers? I believe so. 
1204. Who were they ? I could not say. 
1205. Do you, on your oath, believe that there was anybody but Mr. Bradford acting as scrutineer for 
Mr. Anderson during any part of the day ? Yes. 
1206. Do you believe that on your oath ? Yes. 
1207. Do you know that Berry applied to Mr. Vaughan to be allowed to act as scrutineer ? I could not 
tell. 
1208. You could not hear ? No. 
1209, Have you no idea who the person was who was acting for Mr. Anderson besides Bradford ? No; 
they were all strangers to me. 
1210. And I suppose the bulk of the voters were strangers to you ? Yes ; of course there were voters 
that I knew, having had business transactions with them one way and another. 
1211. Did not Bradford protest to you against Barnard acting ? Not in my presence. 
1212. And against the irregular manner in which your booth was conducted ? No. 
1213. Did you allow Barnard to assist M counting the votes ? No ; he did not handle anything. 
1214. You will swear that ? Yes ; he simply looked on. I know he did not handle any of the ballot-
papers that came out of my box. 
1215. Did he handle any of the ballot-papers? You cannot expect me to know whether he handed the 
papers during the time that Mr. Alderson was taking them out of his box, because I was employed counting 
them then. 
1216. Did you take steps to ascertain what authority either Mr. Barnard or Mr. Alderson had to be 
present at the counting of the votes and to handle ballot-papers ? Simply from what Mr. Vaughan told 
me. I saw him take the declaration. 
1217. You say Mr. Barnard took the declaration ? I think so • he went away from the table with that 
object. I did not see him, but I know that Mr. Vaughan took him from the table for that purpose. 
1218. Did Mr. Vaughan tell you that Mr. Barnard was entitled to be present ? No. 
1219. Did Mr. Vaughan tell you that Barnard was there as a poll-clerk ? No. 
1220. Why did you, as presiding-officer, allow Mr. Barnard to be present at the counting of the votes 
and to handle the ballot-papers without ascertaining what right he had to be there ? I could not say that 
,he handled the ballot-papers. 
1221. Will you swear that he did not? I could not swear, but to the best of my belief he did not. 
1222. You admit that he was present ? Of course he was present. 
1223. Did you ascertain what right he had to be present ? No.; I was under the belief all along that he 
was poll-clerk to Mr. Alderson. 
1224. How did you arrive at that belief? Because Mr. Vaughan brought him into the room and placed 
him alongside me and Mr. Alderson. 
1225. Do you know that Mr. Vaughan has sworn that Barnard was scrutineer for Mr. Schey and was not 
a poll-clerk at all? I could not say. 
1226. However, you did not take steps to see Mr. Ba,rnard's credentials ? No; I left that to Mr. 
Vaughan. 
1227. He was only present during a short period of the day ? Yes ; between the hours of 1 and 2. I 
think they left the room after the rush was over. 
1228. When the count was finished what was done with the ballot-papers ? 'They were all tied together. 
1229. By whom ? I tied my own and Mr. Alderson tied his. 
1230. Mr. Barnard was assisting Mr. Alderson ? I do not think so. I think be did it all himself. 
1231. Was not Mr. Barnard sitting by Mr. Alderson during the count? Yes. 
1232. Will you swear that Mr. Barnard did not assist to tie the papers up ? To the best of my belief I 
do not think he handled any of the ballot-papers. In fact I will swear that he did not handle thenatvhen 
they were packed up. 
1233. When did you see Mr. Barnard there first ? The only recollections I have of Mr. Barnard coming 
to the table was when Mr. Alderson came along with Mr. Vaughan. 
1234. Will you swear you did not see him in the room previously ? To the best of my belief I do not 
believe he was in the room. 	 1235. 
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1235. Did you know him by sight before ? Yes. 	 Mt 
1236. The fact remains then that when he did come you took no steps to ascertain what right he had to a ' Ced" 
be there ? No more than I was under the belief that he was poll-clerk for Mr. Alderson. I reckoned 1 Aug, 1889. 
that Mr. Vaughan knew his duty. 
1237. Are you still prepared to swear that Mr. Barnard never handled the papers at the counter ? To 
the best of my belief he did not. Of course I was busily occupied counting my own papers. 
1238. Only to the best of your belief you cannot swear positively one way or the other ? I am firmly of 
opinion that Mr. Alderson handled all his papers. 
1239. If three witnesses have sworn that Barnard handled the papers you would not be prepared to swear 
that that is false ? No. I know I gave Mr. Alderson instructions to open the ballot-box. 
1240. Mr. Alderson tied up, you say, one packet altogether independently of you ? Yes. 
1241. When the two packets were tied up what did you do with them ? 1 gave him instructions to put 
the packets in his ballot-box, and I did the same, and we went to Redfern. 
1242.. Who took the packets to Redfern? Mr. Alderson and myself together. 
1243. Were the rolls that had been used by Mr. Alderson and yourself tied up with the packet or 
separately ? Each roll was in each packet. 
1244. Were the votes that were initialled by yourself and those initialled by Mr. Alderson separated ? 
Yes. 
1245. By whom was that done ? Partly by me and partly by Mr. Alderson. 
1216. That would be after the count ? No; before the count. I sorted out ray initials first, and I gave 
him instructions to do likewise, and in telling them I saw they were all correct. I counted all the votes 
myself. 
1247. Were the votes strewn upon the table before they were counted in order to enable the separation to 
be made ? They were raked out of the boxes. 
1248. Lying on the table, and separated according to the initials before they were counted ? Yes. 
1219. And who was present during the whole of that time ? The whole of us. 
1250 Whom do you mean ? The constables, the scrutineers, the presiding officers, and the poll-clerks, 
and the outside poll-clerks. 
1251. And Mr. Alderson and Mr. Barnard ? Yes ; they all seemed to take a lively interest in the count: 
1252. Who was the scrutineer for Mr. Schey besides Mr. Barnard ? I could not tell you his name. 
1253. But there was somebody ? Yes ; I know the man's face. 
1254. Mr. Williamson.] Did you see Mr. Alderson leave the room at any time during that day before the 
closing of the poll ? He left for a few minutes to go to the urinal. He was not away more than about 
two or three minutes. 
1255. 	hat is the situation of this place ;-is it on the street side of the buildi W 	 ng or at the rear of the 
building ? On the street side of the building. 
1256. Did you see him leave the table ? Yes ; he drew my attention to his going away, and asked me to 
look after his papers for him. 
1257. Had he anything in his hands when he left ? No. 
1258. Did you see any ballot-papers in his hands ? No. 
1259. Had he anything at all in his hands ? No. 
1260. How long before he went out was it that he drew your attention to the fact of his wishing to 
retire ? About the instant he wanted to get away. 
1261. Did yOu see anybody'touch Ids ballot-papers while lie was away ? No. No one touched his papers 
during the time he was away. 
1262. Mr. Wise.] You said in answer to Mr. Smith that you had cautioned Barnard against touching 
your papers ;-what reason had you to do that ? Well, I did it in a general way, so that my papers 
should not be mixed with Mr. Alderson's. 
1263. Did you give that caution to Mr. Bradford, Mr. Anderson's scrutineer ? Be was sitting at the far 
side of the table, and could not interfere with me at all. 
1264. He could not have touched your papers in any way ? No. 
1265. Did you give that caution to Mr. Alderson ? Mr. Alderson could not interfere with my papers ; 
be was too far away from me. 
1266. I want to know what necessity there was for cautioning Barnard-what made you think he was 
going to touch your papers ? During the poll, shortly before that, an elector tore up his ballot-paper, 
and be came over, leaned behind me, and took a ballot-paper, and I stopped him. I took the paper from 
him and asked him what he was doing, and he said, "I have torn up my own and I want another paper." 
I took the paper back from him and put it on my stack, and I took the paper which he had torn up into 
bits and stuffed it into the ballot-box. 
1267. But how does that explain the necessity for cautioning l3arnazd ? I am just giving you an outline 
of what my ideas were-so that the papers should not be mixed with Mr. Alderson's, 
1268. But why did the conduct of the voter in leaning over for a ballot-paper make you tell Barnard not 
to touch them ? For the simple reason that I did not want them mixed. I wanted him to work with 
Mr. Alderson's pack. 
1269. And that, you say, is the only reason? Yes. 
1270. Then Mr. Barnard was working on Mr. Alderson's pack ? At this particular time he was handing 
them over from Mr. Alderson. 

Mr. Thomas Alderson sworn and examined :- 
1271. Chairman.] Where do you reside ? In Dowling-street. Redfern. 
1272. Do you remember the last Parliamentary Election for Redfern? Yes. 
1273, Did you act in any official capacity on that occasion ? Yes, as presiding officer. 
1274. By whom were you appointed ? By Mr. Vaughan. 
1275. Under a written appointment ? Under the usual declaration before a J.P. 
1276. But did you receive any appointment in writing ? No. 
1277. You made the declaration of office before you acted? Yes. 
1278. What hour in the day did you commence your duties ? -Between 1 and 2 o'clock. 
1278. And at what polling-place? The New Masonic Hall. 1280. 

Mr. 
T. Alderson. 

1 Aug., 1889. 
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Mr; 	1280. And you acted from the time of your appointment up to the dose of the poll ? Yes. 
T., Alderson. 1281. Why were you appointed at that late hour ? On account of the great rush of voters to the booth. 

3  7:71.7-2,320  1282. And you were appointed an additional officer to enable the public to record their votes ? Yee. 
' 11 ° ." ---* 1283. When you commenced your duties were there any other officers acting in the room? Yes. 

1284. Who were they ? Mr. Cook. 
1285. Who acted as your poll-clerk? Mr. Shying. 
128G. Do you know whether he made his declaration as poll-clerk? Yes, he did. 
1287. Were there any scrutineers acting at your table ? Yes. 
1288. I am not referring to those acting under the presidency of Mr. Cook ? Mr. Barnard acted as 
scrutineer with me. 
1289. Anyone else ? No. 
1290. Did not Barnard act for Mr. Schey as scrutineer ? Yes. 
1291. And during that time, up to the closing of the poll, did Mr. Barnard hand any of the ballot-papers 
to the electors ? By my handing them to Mr. Barnard. 
1292. Had he any authority to hand them? Only by my handing them to him. 
1293. tinder your authority ? Yes, to get rid of the crush. 
1294. So far as you know did any elector receive more than one ballot-paper ? Not one. 
1.295. Did you notice, or had you reason to suppose, that any elector was putting more than one 
ballot-paper into the box ? No reason whatever. 
1296. When you opened your box to count the votes did you find more than one ballot-paper ? No. 
1297. They were all singles ? Yes. 
1298. Had you any argument or dispute with any of the scrutineers as to the formality or informality of 
any particular ballot-paper ? No, not a word. 
1299. Do you remember how many ballot-papers you received ? I received in the first instance 100. 
1300. Did you receive any others ? Yes, 200 afterwards ; making in all 300. 
1301. Were they all used? No. 
1302. What did you do with the unused ones? I put them in a parcel and sealed them up with the other 
papers. 
1303. At the close of the poll did you frit up the number of names that had been ticked off on the 
electoral lists ? No, the scrutineers were doing that. 
1304. Did your poll-clerk tot up your official electoral list to ascertain how many voters had actually 
voted? No. 
1305. Therefore you did not compare the number of voters as ticked off on the electoral list with the 
number of votes as recorded in the ballot-box ? No; not with the rolls we had. 
1.306. Then you are not aware whether there was any discrepancy or not ? I am sure there was no 
idscrepancy. 
1307. You are not aware because you did not count them ? I counted up the papers-the tally-sheets. 
1308. I do not mean the tally-sheets; I mean the electoral list. The ticking of each name being prima 
facie evidence of a man's vote, did you tot up those rolls to ascertain how many voters had voted or applied 
for papers ? No. 
1309. Therefore, not having done so, you are not prepared to swear whether there was any discrepancy 
between the list and the number of papers ? No. 
1310. What were you doing on that day prior to your appointment ? Working outside. 
1311. Using your best influence on behalf of your particular candidate? Yes. 
1312. Did you apply to be appointed poll-clerk ? .No. 
1313. You were requested to do so ? Yes. 
1314. After you were appointed did you still exercise your influence on behalf of your candidate ? No; 
certainly not. 
1315. Did you hold out any inducement to electors to vote in any particular way ? No; not iu the 
slightest degree. 
1316. Nor did you hold out any inducement to electors not to vote? No. 
1317. How did you treat the class of voters whom we call marksmen, that is, who could neither read nor 
write? None came under my notice. One came under Mr. Cook's. 
1318. At any time while you were proceeding, did you leave your seat and go over to the ballot-box with 
an elector to show him how to vote ? No. 
1319. I suppose you have acted at elections before? Not inside. 
1320. But you are a very old electioneering hand, are you not ? Pretty good. 
1321. You are up to all the ways that are dark ? Not bad ways. 
1322. What did you do with your papers after the close of the poll ? I put them all up in brown paper, 
tied them up, and sealed and stamped them. 
1323. And to whom did you deliver them ? I locked them in the ballot-box and delivered them to Mr. 
Dacey at Redfern. 
1324. Air. Frau Smith.] You say you bad no appointment in writing from the returning officer ? No 
appointment in writing. 
1325. You are an old band at elections ; do you not know it is necessary before you can act as presiding 
officer to have the appointment in writing ? I had never acted inside before. 

• 1326. But you had no appointment in writing ? No; it was done to relieve the great crush that took 
place, momentarily. 
1327. You did not appoint Mr. Barnard in any way ? No ; he was acting as scrutineer for Mr. Schey. 
1328. But he was acting authoritatively at the table as poll-clerk while you were acting as presiding 
officer? No ; not as poll-clerk-as scrutineer. 
1329. As presiding officer, did you hand to Mr. Barnard any polling-papers to hand to the electors? 
Yes. He was sitting on my right, and during the crush he used to reach them over and pass them on. 
When the crush subsided 1 handed them over myself. That was just at the commencement. 
1330. Could you see in carrying out your duties as presiding officer that Mr. Barnard handed those papers 
to the electors who were entitled to get them in every case ? Certainly in every case. 
1331. Could Mr. Barnard have reached the papers on which you were operating and taken them himself 
without your seeing him ? He could not have done it. I had my hand on them all the time. 	. • 

1332. 
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1332:Aye you aware of your own knowledge of any ballot-papers • being found outside thefpolling- Mr. 
booth ? No. 	 T. Mr. 
1333. Mr. Wise.] During the time you were acting in this way you had Mr. Schey's card in your hat, I ra"--- • 1, Au 	18t,D.. believe ? 	had for about a minute or two, 	 g.,  
1334. Is that all ? That is all. 
1335. Will you swear it was not over an hour ? No ; it was not. 	 • 
1.336. And did you not refuse to remove it? No ; as soon as my attention was called, to it I whipped A 
out and tore it up. Mr. Vaughan called my attention to it. 
1337. Before your attention was called to it by Mr. Vaughan had not Mr. Bradford called your attention 
to it ? No. 
1338. Nor any one else? No. 
1339. Who was acting as scrutineer for Mr. Anderson at your box ? Mr. Bradford. 
1340. Who was acting as scrutineer at Mr. Cook's box? I do not know the gentleman's name. 
1341. Who was acting as Mr. Schey's scrutineer at Mr. Cook's box ? I do not know the gentleman. 
1342. There was someone, though ? I think there was. They were strangers to me. 
1348. Will you swear that there was anybody except Bradford. acting as scrutineer in Mr. Anderson's 
interest in that booth ? Yes. 
1344. -Who was he ? I do not know the gentleman's name-they were strangers to Inc. 
1345. Would you recognise him if you saw him again ? I think I would. 
1346. Are you quite sure on that point-that Bradford was acting as scrutineer at your box ? Mr. 
Bradford was sitting next to me when I sat down. 
1347. Why did you not hand the ballot-papers to him instead of to Mr. Barnard? He was on my left, 
and the voters were on my right. 
1343. That is your only reason ? I could not have done otherwise. The voters were coining round the 
back. 
1349. I wish to ask you, as an old electioneering hand, whether you think it a proper thing to hand ballot-
papers to a scrutineer of one of the parties ? I did not exactly hand them. There was such a crush 
coming round at the back that I gave the papers to Mr. Barnard, who was sitting on my right, to hand to 
the voters. I could not reach the voters. 
1350. Why did you not get your poll-clerk on your right ? I do not know ; there was not room. 
1351. Why did you not put him there in place of Barnard, and hand him the ballot-papers ? There was 
no TOM. 
1352. Why did you not make him change places with Barnard, 80 that the ballot-papers might be handed 
up officially, and not by a partizan ;-have you any reason to give ? No reason whatever. There were not 
more than half a dozen papers handled. 
1353. Will you swear that Barnard never handled mare than half a dozen papers ? I do not think he did. 
1354. Are you prepared to swear that he did not handle more than half a dozen? Yes ; I am. 
1355. As a matter of fact, did he not handle every paper you gave out during the crush ? No. 
1356. During the whole of the crush? No. It was only just at the commencement when I commenced 
to sign the papers and initial the ballot-papers. 
1357. Are you quite confident that Barnard did not: If other witnesses have sworn that he did hand out 
the papers it is false ? In numbers certainly it is false. 
1353. Did Mr. Cook have as good an opportunity as you had of seeing who were handling the ballot-
papers ? No. 
1359. Where was Mr. Cook sitting? He was very nearly the length of this table away. There were two 
persons between him. The voters were coming in behind Mr. Cook, up to the corner of the table where I 
was sitting. 
1360. Then had not Mr. Cook a perfectly good opportunity of seeing what had been done with your 
ballot-papers P He could occasionally see certainly. 
1361. Could he not have seen the whole of the time ? Not when he was engaged giving papers out. 
1362. Was there anything between him and you on the table to shut out his view ? No. 
1363. He sat on one side of the table and Barnard on the other ? Yes ; but he could not see when we 
were both dealing out papers at the time the crush was. 
1361. Did you ever tell Mr. Cook that Barnard was your poll-clerk ? No. 
1365. Where was Mr. Shying sitting ? He was down at the other end. 
1366. Is your memory so clear that you are prepared to swear that there were two persons 
acting as scrutineers for Mr. Anderson in that room ? Is it not a fact that Mr. Bradford was scrutineer 
for Mr. &hey, and that there was no scrutineer for Mr. Anderson in regard to your box ? Mr. Bradford, 
I understood, was scrutineer for Mr. Anderson. There was another gentleman sitting on the right of Mr. 
Cook, whose name I do not know. I understood that he was a scrutineer for Mr. Anderson also. 
1367. -You swear that was your understanding ? I do. 
1368. Did Barnard help you to take the ballot-papers to the Town Hall at Redfern? No. 
1369. You and Mr. Cook did it alone ? Yes, we took them in a cab. 
1370. Are you quite sure of that ;-did not Barnard take them to the Redfern Town Hall P I lin positive. 
1.371. Quite positive ? Very positive. I carded the box up myself. 
1372. Was Barnard with you ? No. 
1873. There was no one with you ? No. Mr. Barnard was in a separate cab ; he was not near Inc. 
1374. But he did come to the Redfern Town Hall at the same time as you ? Certainly, like everybody 
else. 
1375. Hr. Willironson.] Did you retire from the polling-booth at any time before the poll closed ? Yes, 
for about a minute or a minute and a half. 
1376. Might I ask you where you went ? To the urinal, through a side door. 
1377. You did not go into the street did you ? No. 
1378. You did not take any ballot-papers with you ? No, it is not likely. 
1879. When you saw the ballot-papers taken out of the box, did you see three of them rolled into one? 
No. 
1.380. Did anybody draw your attention to the fact that from the box where you were placed three voting-
papers were taken out in that way ? No, certainly not. 

1381. 
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Mr. 	1381. Did :you hear any complaint from any of the officials present about three of the ballot-papers being T. Alderson. wrapped closely in one with the other ? Not one word was mentioned in my hearing. 
Au 1889.  1382. You saw Sergeant Biadwell there? Yes. g., 1383. Did he mention anything to you about it ? No. Sergeant Bradwell was standing next the ballot-

box when I went in. 
1384. At the time they were taking the papers out of the ballot-box did Sergeant Bradwell mention to 
you the fact of three papers being folded up one with another ? No. Everything was perfectly orderly; 
they were very quiet, not a word was mentioned. 
138.5. Did anybody remark to you that such was the ease ? No. 
1386. You deny then that ballot-papers were brought out of your box twisted one within the other ? 
Certainly I do. 
1387. Who took the papers out of your box ? I did. 
1388. And you had every opportunity of noticing the circumstance if it had occurred? Every paper I 
took out was single and I folded them out on the flat. 
1389. Who was alongside of you at the time you took the papers out of the box ? Mr. Barnard. 
1390. Anybody else ? Mr. Bradford. 
1391.. Did he have an opportunity of seeing you do this ? Yes. 
1392. He did not make any complaint, did he ? No. 
1393. Did you hear any application made to Mr. Berry asking him if he would net there on that day before 
you were asked ? No. Mr. Berry caine into the room in a very excited manner and said I had no right 
there. Mr. Vaughan told me he had asked Mr. Berry in the morning. 

Mr. George Barnard sworn and examined :- 
Mr. 	1394. Chairman.] Where do you reside? In Botany-street, Redfern. 

G. Barnard. 1395. Have you resided there for any time? I have been in business in Redfern for the last four or 
five years. 

1 Aug., I.889. 1396. Do you remember the last Redfern election ? Yes. 
1397. Did you act in any official capacity ? Yes ; I acted in the New Masonic Hall. 
1398. As what ? Scrutineer for Mr. Sehey. 
1399. Only ? That is all. 
1400. And in no other capacity ? No. 
1401. Not as poll-clerk ? No. 
1402. Simply as scrutineer for Mr. Schey ? Yes. 
1403. Mr. .Frank Smith.] Do you know Mr. Alderson well? Yes. 
1404. Did he ask you to assist him in handing the ballot-papers to the voters? I did hand some papers to 
them from Mr. Alderson. 
1405. Did Mr. Alderson ask you to do it ? He passed them on to me. I cannot exactly say he asked me 
to do it, but he handed them over to me. As Mr. Alderson might have been sitting at the counter I was 
sitting next to him and he banded them to me to pass to the voters. 
1406. Did he give you the name of the voter when he handed you the paper ? No. 
1407. How did you know whom to give it to ? Because the voter called out his name to me. I saw him  
before the paper was handed to him and I marked him off the roll. 
1408. Did you in any one instance during the crush get more than one paper handed to ybu ? No. 
1.409. Are you sure of that ? I am positive of it. I did not hand out all the papers. It was only on one 
or two occasions and not in every ease. 
1410. How many ballot-papers do you think you banded out? I do not suppose there would be more 
than about a dozen. There may have been a few more; I could not say exactly. 
1411. There would have been more than a dozen.? Yes, I dare say. 
1412. There was a great crush at the time ? At one time there was. 
1413. You are quite sure you gave the ballot-papers singly to the persons entitled to them ? Yes, I am 
positive about that. 
1414. Of your own knowledge do you know of any ballot-papers that were outaide the polling-booth on 
that day ? No. 
1415. Mr. Ryrie.] I suppose there was no complaint made by any voter that he had not received his 
ballot-paper ? No I heard no complaint. 
1416. Mr. Wise.] When did you receive your appointment as scrutineer? Between 1 and 2 o'clock 
on the polling-day. 
1417. From whom did you get it ? From Mr. Vaughan. 
1418. How long were you assisting Mr. Alderson in handing out the ballot-papers ? I was inside the  
polling-booth from half-past 1 until the poll was closed. 
1419. There was no necessity for you to handout ballot-papers after the crush was over ? No. 
1420. And during the crush he would pass them to you, and you would pass them on to the voters? Yes. 
1421. And that would go on during the whole of the time of the crush? It would not be the whole 
time, but only when I was crowded. 
1422. During the whole of the time there was a crowd that would be going on? Yes. 
1423. And there was a crowd for about half-an-hour I suppose ? I do not think it would be that long. 
1424. About 20 minutes or half-an-hour ? Yes. 
1425. Mr. Frank Smith.] Did you say that Mr. Vaughan appointed you scrutineer? Yes. 
1426. Did you make the declaration before Mr. Vaughan ? Yes. 
1427. Do you get an appointment in writing from Mr. Vaughan ? I did not get the appointment in 
writing. I was asked to act as scrutineer for Mr. Schey. 
1428. By whom ? By one of the people outside. I forget exactly who it was. At the same time Mr. 
Alderson went in. 
1429. It was not Mr. Vaughan? No. I made a declaration before Mr. Vaughan. 
1430. Did you have any appointment at all from Mr. Schey ? No, not from Mr. Schey himself. It was 
one of Mr. Schey's comniittee outside. 
1431. What was his name? I cannot exactly recollect his name. 	 1432: 
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Mr. 1432. How do you know it was Mr. Schey's committee-man. Might it not have been Mr. Anderson's 
committee-man? He was sitting at Mr. Schey's table. 	 :A.. :78;9.. 
1433. And you really got no appointment as scrutineer ? No, I did not receive any written appointment. 
1434. You do not know who appointed you, or who asked you to act ? ifo; I could learn the name of 
the person. I know him well by sight ; but I don't know his name. 
1435. You had to get your remuneration for acting, had you not ? No, I got nothing. I never have in 
connection with any election. 
1436. Chairman.] When you say you received your appointment from Mr. Vaughan do you wish the 
Committee to understand that he appointed you, or that he simply took your declaration? He took my 
declaration. 
1437. While you were acting there as scrutineer for Mr. Schey, what did You consider it to be your duty 
to do ? To check the names off the roll, and to see that the same parties did not come and vote twice. 
1438. While you were handing the papers from Mr. Alderson were you still checking your own? Yes. 
1439. And while you were handing those papers would it have been possible for a man to get two from 
you instead of one ? No, because Mr. Alderson would hand one to me and I would pass it on. I should 
know myself very well whether there were two papers. 
1410. You could not possibly know every face that came ? No. 
1441. So that it would be possible for some person to come up and get another paper ? Not with the 
same name, because I should know him by.the number. 
1442. Hr. ;Vim.] Did the rolls you received contain the names of those who had already voted marked 
off? No. 
1443. Then there was nothing to prevent a man who had already voted in the morning from coming up 
and voting again at your roll? No, I did not get those names crossed out. 
1444. Nor had Mr. Alderson? That I could not say. 
1115. Could you not say whether he got a clean roll at the same time that you did ? I could not say 
whether he did or not. I used my own roll-the one I had outside. 
1446. Had Mr. Anderson any scrutineer at your box ? Yes. 
1447. Who was be ? Edo not know his name. 
1448. Bradford ? Yes, Bradford. 
1449. Who then was Mr. Anderson's scrutineer at Mr. Cook's box ? .Bradford. 
1450. He had one scrutineer for the two boxes ? Yes. 
1451 And Mr. Schey had two ? Yes. 
1452. Mr. J. P. Abbott.] Did you give out any ballot-papers yourself independently of Mr. Alderson ? 
No. 
1453. You are sure of that ? Tam positive. I only gave those that Mr: Alderson passed over to me. 
1454 And did he hand you any ballot-papers before he satisfied himself that the person asking to vote 
was entitled to vote ? No. 
1455. In every case when you got a ballot-paper from him he had previously satisfied himself that the 
person was entitled to vote ? Yes, because the name had been called out previously. 
1456. Chairman.] At the close of the poll did you assist in counting the papers out of Mr. Alderson's 
box ? I did not assist in counting. I sat at the table while they were counting. 
1457. Did you sign the certificate as scrutineer ? Yes. 
1458. At the close of the poll did you tot up your list to see how many electors had voted ? No, I did 
not tot it up because I had not been there from the commencement of the poll ; but the other scrutineers 
for Mr. Schey totted it up. 
1459 And you did not ? No. • 
1460. For the reason that you had only been there a part of the day ? Yes. 
1461. And if you had totted it up it would not have been a complete check ? No. I saw the ballot-
papers counted. 
1462. You saw the ballot-papers taken out of the box, and you saw them counted? Yes. 
1463. During the process of their being counted out and then folded did you at any time see more than 
one paper together ? No, not on any occasion. 
1464. Did you see two or three together ? I have heard about two papers being folded together, and 
perhaps I might explain that, because there was one paper tern in half. I saw that taken out of the box, 
and the two halves were folded together. 
1465. Did you see one of the officers take up apparently one paper and open it, when it turned out to be 
three ? No. 
1466. And he passed it on to another officer, who examined it and passed it to another-did you notice 
that proceeding ? No. 
1467. I suppose party feeling ran pretty high at the election? It was not running -as high as it has done 
at previous elections. 
1468. And at one time while the poll was being taken there was a considerable number of people inside 
the booth ? Yes, between I. and 2 o'clock. 
1469. Was there much confusion? The people were crushed at the table where they got their numbers 
on the roll, and they could not get their numbers quick enough. 
1470. Were you able to get your list checked ? Yes. 
1471. Would the poll-clerk whose duty it was to check the names be able to do so during the crowd? 
It would depend upon whether he took his time in handing out the tickets. 
1472. But it you were able to do it would he not be? I was able to do it. I kept my list checked while 
the rush was on. 
1473. Did any marksman-that is, voters who could not read or write-come to your box to vote ? Yes, 
there were two I believe. 
1474. How were their votes taken ? Mr. Cook marked the papers for them. 
1475. Did Mr. Alderson mark any ? No, I did not see him mark any. 
1476. Did Mr. Alderson leave his seat at any time and go with any elector to the ballot-box and instruct 
him as to his paper ? No. 
1477. Had you any reason to suppose or suspect that electors were putting more than one paper into the 
ballot-box ? No. 
1478. Was the attention of any person directed to it at the time? No. 	 1479. 
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. Mr. 	1479. Mv, Street.] You say you do not know the name of the other scrutineer who acted for Mr. ScheY ? • (4. Barnard. No.  

• 1480. At the time of the counting of the papers did you help in any way ? No; on one occasion wh'en  Aug., 1889. 
the papers were being separated from the two presiding officers they were passed on to me, and I put my 
hand on them and passed them on to Mr. Alderson in that way. • 
1481. Did not Mr. Alderson in taking up the papers hand them to you, and did you not flatten them out 
in heaps for him ? No, any more than passing them on like that. 	 • ; 

t 

Mr. Henry Silburn called in, sworn, and examined :— 
Mr. 	1482. Mr. Wise.] What are you ? I am a carpenter. 11. Silhors. 1483. I believe that at the last Redfern election you went to the New Masonic Hall to vote ? Yes. 

1 Aug., 1889. 1484. At what time did you arrive there ? A.t 5 minutes past 1 o'clock. 	 • 1485. How long did you have to remain there before you were able to vote? Until half-past 2 o'clock. 
1486. During the time that you were in the room did you see many persons going away without recording 
their votes ? I saw a great many persons grumbling about not being able to vote. 
1487. Can you say of your own knowledge that they went away without recording their votes ;—did you 
hear any persons say that they had been unable to record their votes ? I would not swearthey did ; I think 
they went away without voiing. 
1488, Did you notice anything irregular in the giving out of the ballot-papers during the time that you 
were in the room ? No. 
1489. Did you notice any irregularities when you were there at all—what did you see while you were 
there ? I went up to the table to get my number in order to vote. There was a great crowd around the 
table, and of course I could not get near it. I was shoved about. 
1490. When the persons came up to vote to whom were the ballot-papers given—when there was a big 
crowd round the person at the table, did you see anything done to indicate the persons to whom the 
papers ought to be given ? No. 
1491. What is your name? My name is Silburn. 
1492. Are you -the gentleman who was talking to Mr. Anderson, and volunteered to give evidence ? Yes. 
1493. You told Mr. Anderson what evidence you were going to give—did you see ally nudging going on 
by anybody? I did not see any nudging. 

APPENDIX. 

[To the Evidence of Edward Pulsford, Beg., 25 July, 1889.] 
Names of Voters appearing—on the Rolls of more than one of Mr. Anderson's Scrutineers—as having voted, 8 July. 

80 Allen Wm. Redfern and Alexandria. 5844 Marshall John Sydney and Alexandria. 
232 Altwell Semi. Redfern and Sydney. 6007 Mihill A. G. Sydney and Redfern. 
824 Boylen James Redfern and Alexandria. 6119 Montgomery John Sydney and Alexandria. 

1153 Burleigh John Redfern and Sydney. 6382 Neil John Sydney and Redfern. 
1482 Child Thos. Redfern and Alexandria. 6528 O'Brien John Sydney and Redfern. 
1635 Clarke Peter Sydney and Botany 7589 Ryan Michael Sydney and Redfern. 
2930 Fletcher Wm. Sydney and Redfern. 7736 Shadbolt Hy. Redfern and Botany. 
3226 Gerrard Geo. Sydney and Alexandria. 7956 Smith Charles Redfern and Botany. 
4140 Hogan C. S. Sydney and Redfern. 7970 Smith Fredk. Redfern and Sydney. 
4550 Johnson Henry Redfern and Alexandria. 8760 Turner Thos. Redfern and Alexandria. 
5506 
5835 

M'Gregor I. 
kfaurs Daniel 

Redfern and Sydney. 
Redfern and Sydney. 

9121 Welsh Wm. Sydney and Botany. 
• 

Sydney: merles Potter, Covernment Printer.-1399. 
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1889. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

ADDRESSES OF CONDOLENCE TO HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN, AND HER 
IMPERIAL MAJESTY THE EMPRESS VICTORIA OF GERMANY. 

(REPLY TO DESPATCH FORWARDENG.) 

Vrezrntcb it Varliantent Ft Cammanb. 

The Secretary of State for the Colonies to His Excellency Lord Carrington, G.C.M.G. 

	

My Lord, 	 Downing-street, 12 November, 1888. 
With reference to your Lordship's despatch No. 117 of 11th July, I have the honor to acquaint 

you that the Addresses of Condolence from the Members of the Legislative Council and Legislative 
Assembly of New South Wales were duly forwarded to their destination. The Queen has commanded 
rue to express to you her pleasure at receiving the Address intended for herself ; and I have received from 
the Foreign Office and have the honor to enclose a copy of the reply of the Empress Frederick, conveyed 
through the German Acting Minister for Foreign Affairs in Berlin, by which Her Majesty ha been 
much touched. I have, ace., 

KNITTSFORD. 

[Enclosur e.] 
[Translation.] 	 Foreign Office, Berlin, 11 October, 1889. 

The undersigned has the honor to inform Mr. Beauclerk, &e., &e., that he bas not failed to convey to their high 
destination the Addresses of Condolence to Her Majesty the Empress and Queen Frederick, enclosed in his notes of the 3rd, 
the 18th, and 31st August, and of the 7th and 21st September, namely :—An Address from the Legislative Council and the 
Legislative Assembly of New South Wales. 

Her Majesty, deeply affected by these manifold expressions of sincere sympathy at Her great loss, has commissioned 
the undersigned to convey Her Royal thanks to those who have so expressed themselves by diplomatic channels. The under-
signed whilst informing Mr. Beauclerk of the execution of Her Majesty's commission avails himself, &e. 

Mr. Beauclerk. 	 HOLSTEIN. 

The Colonial Secretary, for Parliament. —C., 8/1/89. 

lad .] 
	 62— 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

PARLIAMENTARY REPRESENTATIVES ALLOWANCE BILL. 
(MESSAGE No. 28) 

Ordered by the Legislative Assembly to be printed, 5 June, 1889. 

CARRINGTON, 	 Message No. 28. 
Governer. 

In accordance with the provisions contained in the 54th section of the Constitution Act, the 
Governor recommends, for the consideration of the Legislative Assembly, the expediency of making 
provision to meet the requisite expenses in connection with a Bill to authorize the payment of Members of 
the Legislative Assembly of an annual allowance as reimbursement for expenses incurred in the discharge 
of their Parliamentary duties. 

Government House, 
Sydney, 4th June, 1889. 

'Od.j 	jgd- 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

PARLIAMENTARY REPRESENTATIVES ALLOWANCE: 
BILL (NO. 2.) 

(MESSAGE No. 42.) 

Ordered by the Legislative Assembly to be printed, 30 July, 1889. 

("7 
/- 

CARE INGTON, 	 Message No. 42. 
Governor. 

In accordance with the provisions contained in the 54th section of the Constitution Act, the 
Governor recommends, for the consideration of the Legislative Assembly, the expediency of making 
provision to meet the requisite expenses in connection with a Bill to authorize the payment to Members of 
the Legislative Assembly of an annual allowance as reimbursement for expenses incurred in the discharge 
of their Parliamentary duties. 

Government House, 
Sydney, 30th July, 1889. 

tad.] 	 502— 



843 



847 
4 

1889. 

LEGISLATLVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

PUBLIC WORKS (COMMITTEES' REMUNERATION) BILL. t  
(MESSAGE No. 11.) 

Ordered by the Legislative Assembly to be printed, 4 April, 1889. 

CARRINGTON, 	 Message No. 11. 

Governor. 

In accordance with the provisions contained in the 54th section of the Constitution Act, the 
Governor recommends for the consideration of the Legislative Assembly the expediency of making 

provision to meet the requisite expenses in connection with a Bill to provide for the remuneration of the 

Members of the Parliamentary Standing Committee on Public Works. 

Governneent _Obese, 
Sydney, 4th April, 1889. 

{3dj 	 128— 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

GENERAL ELECTION, 1889. 
(COST OF.) 

- S.  

Ordered by the Legislative Assembly to be printed, 30 April, 1889. 

[Laid upon the Table of this House in accordance with promise made in answer to Question No. 2 of 
30 April, 1889.] 

Mn..WADDELL asked THE COLONIAL SECRETARY,— 
(1.) What were the respective sums of money spent by the Government in conducting the election 
of Members in the different constituencies at the last General Election ? 
(2.) Also, what was the total cost of the last General Election ? 

STATEMENT showing the respective sums of money expended by the Government in conducting the 
election of Members of the different constituencies at the last General Election, and also the total 
cost thereof. 

Name of Constituency. Amount. Name of Constituency. Amount. 

2 	s. d. s. 	d. 
Canterbury 	  414 	6 	0 Bathurst 	  95 19 	0 
Central Cumberland 	  337 	8 	3 Newcastle 	  128 	1 	6 
lure roll 	  200 0 	0 Northumberland 	  157 	3 	0 • t 
Globe 	  160 	0 	0 Wellington 	  148 14 0 
Gwydir 	  47 10 	4 West Maitland 	  16 	9 	8 
Paddington 	  300 	3 	7 Mon aro 	  175 	9 10 
West Sydney 	  Grenfell 	  131 	9 	8 
East Sydney 	  580 	9 	0 3/tame 	  68 15 	0 
South Sydney 	  319 17 	0 Wollombi 	  111 12 	8 
Durham 	  94 13 	6 Orange 	  135 19 	0 
Newtown 	  149 	0 	0 Inverell 	  20 17 	0 
Nep can 	  106 	0 	0 Camden 	  171 18 	1 
Tamworth 	  171 	8 	6 Shoalhaven 	  95 17 	8 
New England 	  290 	0 11 Forbes 	  406 	2 	6 
Balmain 	  183 13 	5 The Clarence 	  960  
Hastings and Manning 	  257 	4 	8 West Macquarie 	  217 	6 	9• 
The Murray 	  43 15 	4 Morpeth 	  77 	0 	6 
Murrumbidgee 	  375 	2 	9 Gloucester 	  132 13 	0 
Hawkesbury 	  190 	0 	0 Glebe 	  140 0 	0 
Redfern 	  237 	0 	0 Tenterfield 	  173 11 	5 
Upper Hunter 	  
St. Leonard, 	  

286 18 	5 
179 	0 	0 

The Hunter 	  
Goulb urn 	  

72 11 	2 
37 10 	6 

Parramatta 	  54 	2 	2 Burrow% 	  3 10 	6 
Eden 	  149 10 	3 Hartley 	  129 14 	5 
Graf ton 	  31 19 	0 The Hume 	  31 	9 	6 
Braidwood 	  63 10 	0 Tumut 	  66 	5 	6 
Glen Inne? 	  1177 	8 	3 Port Macquarie 	  255 14 	9 
Mudgee 	  278 14 10 Gun nedah 	  90 13 	3 
Carcoar 	  200 16 	4 Sturt 	  123 	8 	7 
Gundagai 	  120 	7 	9 Patricks Plains 	  109 	6 	2 
Maeleay 	  163 	4•10 The Richmond 	  158 	6 10 
Young 	  181 19 11 The Rogan 	  759 	8 	3 
Albury 	  89 	3 	0 
Bourke 	  365 	1 	8 
Queanbeyan 	  96 15 	6 Total 	  E 11,915 16 10. 

The Treasury, New South Wales, 	 J. PEARSON, 
29th April, 1889. 	 Accountant. 

[3d.] 	 —216 
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1889. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

•., 
ELECTORAL DISTRICT OF THE RICHMOND. a ' • 

. 	 , 

(PETITION FROM CERTAIN ELECTORS PRAYING FOR A DIVISION OF TilE.) 	 • e '• 

Received by  the Legislative Assembly, 28 May, 1889. 

•To the Honorable Speaker and Legislative Assembly of New South Wales, in Parliament assembled. 
The Petition of the undersigned electors in the Police District of the Tweed,— 

HuMnLX 
* * 

ifelVETIE :— 

That the time has now arrived when the Tweed and Brunswick portions of the Electorate of 
The Richmond should be erected into a separate electorate for the following and other reasons :— 

1st. The geographical features of the country intervening between the Tweed and Richmond Rivers 
are such as to preclude that intercourse socially and commercially which should exist in an 
electorate as a whole. • 

2nd. That the interests of residents of the Tweed and Brunswick Rivers are distinct from those of the 
Richmond or southern portion of the electorate in that their means of communication with the 
markets of the Colonies are totally independent of the port of The Richmond, and can only be 
maintained through the ports of the Tweed and Brunswick Rivers. 

3rd. The number of electors in the Police District of The Richmond is so vastly in excess of that in 
the Tweed and Brunswick, part of the present electorate, that we in this northern portion are 
virtually disfranchised, as we can be totally outvoted in the election of Parliamentary represen-
tatives, and therefore our various local and other requirements do not meet with attention to 
which they are entitled. 

4th. The number of electors on the roll for 1889-1890 in this portion of the electorate which seek to 
have it erected into a separate electorate is 1,152. 

5th. That the fact of granting us the concession we ask would not increase the number of represen-
tatives in Parliament, as it reduces the number returnable for The Richmond to two. 

6th. That a conference of delegates from the Progress Associations throughout the whole electorate, 
held at Lismore on the 30th January last, unanimously resolved that it would be beneficial to the 
whole electorate to divide it as we request. 

7th. That the several candidates seeking election expressed the opinion that the electorate as at 
present is too large to allow of proper representation. 

And your Petitioners pray that you will take the foregoing facts into your favourable consideration 
and afford the relief desired. 

And your Petitioners will ever pray. 

[Here follow 348 signatures.] 

[3d.] 	 322— 



. 852 

, 

• 

• 



1889. 
• 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 

NEW SOUTH WALES. 

ELECTORAL DISTRICT OF -VIONARO• 
(PETITION FROM CERTAIN ELECTORS PRAYING FOR A DIVISION OF TEE). 

Received by the Legislative Assembly, 28 May, 1 .889. 

To the Honorable the Speaker and thel-lonorable the Members of the Legislative Assembly of the 
Colony of New South Wales, in Parliament assembled. 

• The humble Petition of the undersigned Electors of the Electorate of Monaro,— 
RESPECTFULLY SROWETIL :- 

1. That the Electorate of Monaro has at present on the Electoral Roll 3,640 voters. 
2. That such electorate is of so largo a geographical extent that it includes two distinct centres of 

activity, one being Bonabala, and the other Comma, while the distance between the various polling-places 
of the southern portion and those of the northern is so great that a consensus of opinion upon political 
questions cannot be achieved by the usual channel of frequent interchange of views. 

3. That Southern Memo° (of which Bombala is the centre) has always been and probably will 
continue to be divided from Northern Monaro (of which Cooma is the centre) by a divergence of interests 
and a dissimilarity in sentiment, and that the expansion clause of the Electoral Act will tend to accentuate 
the evil by giving increased representation to the Northern District, which has a majority of the electors. 
and more complete a disfranchisement to the Southern District, which contains a smaller number of 
voters. 

4. That the electorate comprises so large an area of country that it necessarily imposes upon 
candidates for its suffrages a considerable expenditure of time, labour, and money, thus tending to limit 
the field of choice of voters when electing Members for the constituency. 

5. That the Bombala portion of the said electorate, which is comprised within the Police District 
boundaries, has on the Electoral Roll no less than 1,062 voters, with every indication of a large yearly 
increase in number. 

G. That the Electoral representation of Monaro would be more effective and faithfulin its results 
if the electorate were divided into two electorates, each returning one Member. 

Your Petitioners therefore humbly pray that the Electorate of Monaro be divided into two elec-
torates, one comprising the Police District of Cooma, and the other the Police District of Bombala, or 
otherwise as to your Honorable House may seem expedient. 

And your Petitioners, as in duty bound, will ever pray. 
Dated this first day of May, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-nine. 

[Here follow 708 signatures.] 

• 

r3d.] 	 323 — 


